
 

 

Meeting Notice 

 
 
 
Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
 Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Mayor Peggy Thomsen 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Councilmember Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor Bill Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor John Chiang 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Vice Mayor Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 

 
 

Alameda County  
Transportation Commission 
Thursday, January 23, 2014, 2 p.m. 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA 94607 

 
Mission Statement 

The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund and deliver transportation programs and 
projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant 
and livable Alameda County. 

 
Public Comments 

Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 
covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 
specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item 
discussion. If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand 
it to the clerk of the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your 
name. When you are summoned, come to the microphone and give 
your name and comment. 

 
Reminder 

Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 
scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may 
attend the meeting. 

 
Glossary of Acronyms 

A glossary that includes frequently used acronyms is available on the 
Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081


 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 
transportation modes. The office is 
conveniently located near the 12th Street/City 
Center BART station and many AC Transit bus 
lines. Bicycle parking is available on the street 
and in the BART station as well as in electronic 
lockers at 14th Street and Broadway near 
Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires purchase of key 
card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between  
1300 Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street.  
To plan your trip to Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 
Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome. Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD)  
five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 

     
 
Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 
 
Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 
meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 
accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 
www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. 
 
Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 
 @AlamedaCTC 
 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
 Thursday, January 23, 2014, 2 p.m. 

 Chair: Supervisor Scott Haggerty,  
Alameda County, District 1 

Vice Chair: Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan,  
City of Oakland 

Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 

Clerk: Vanessa Lee 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call 

3. Public Comment 

4. Election of Chair and Vice Chair Page A/
I* 

Recommendation: Elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the Commission, assign 
Commission standing committee members; and assign other local and 
regional transportation committee assignments to serve during calendar 
year 2014. 

1  

5. Chair/Vice Chair Report   

6. Executive Director Report   

7. Approval of Consent Calendar 
On January 13, 2014, Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action 
items on the consent calendar, except Item 6.1. 

  

7.1. December 5, 2013 Meeting Minutes 5 A 
Recommendation: Approve the December 5, 2013 meeting minutes.   

7.2. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 
720.5/724.4/724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

9 A 

7.3. I-580 Express (HOT) Lane Projects (PN 720.4/724.1):  
Monthly Progress Report 

19 A 

7.4. Development of Express Lanes Planning and Implementation Principles 33 A 
7.5. Congestion Management Program: Summary of the Alameda CTC’s 

Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan 
Amendments 

37 A 

7.6. California Transportation Commission December 2013 Meeting Summary 51 I 
7.7. Alameda CTC At Risk Monitoring Reports   A 

Recommendation: Approve the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP), Federal Surface Transportation/Congestion Mitigation 

57  

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12844/4-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12845/7.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12846/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12846/7.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12847/7.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12847/7.3_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12848/7.4_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12849/7.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12849/7.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12849/7.5_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12850/7.6_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12851/7.7_Combo.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

and Air Quality (STP/CMAQ), and Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) At Risk monitoring reports dated December 31, 2013. 

7.8. Alameda County Freeway Soundwall Policy 87 A 
Recommendation: Approve revisions to the Alameda County Freeway 
Soundwall Policy. 

  

7.9. Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF): Status of Technology Program 93 I 
7.10. Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF): Local Transportation Technology Program 

Policy 
99 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Policy for administration of the VRF 
Local Transportation Technology Program as a direct local distribution 
program. 

  

7.11. Cap and Trade Program Update 103 I 
7.12. Revised Implementation Guidelines For The Special Transportation For 

Seniors and People With Disabilities Program  
113 A 

Recommendation: Approve revisions to the Implementation Guidelines 
for the Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities 
Program. 

  

7.13. Proposition 1B Transit System Safety, Security and Disaster Response 
Account (TSSSDRA) Funds 

123 A 

Recommendation: (1) Adopt Resolution 14-001 which authorizes the 
execution of Grant Assurance documents for the TSSSDRA Program and 
appoints the Executive Director or designee as the Alameda CTC’s 
authorized agent, to execute the Grant Assurances, grant applications, 
funding agreements, reports or any other documents necessary for 
project funding and TSSSDRA program compliance. (2) Authorize the 
Executive Director, or his designee, to submit project applications 
requesting allocations for FY 2013/14 TSSSDRA funds. 

  
 

7.14. I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes Project(PN 
720.5): Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans  

135 A 

Recommendation: Approve the Cooperative Agreement (District 
Agreement No. 04-2467) with Caltrans to satisfy offsite compensatory 
mitigation requirements for the I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 
with Auxiliary Lanes Project required by project permits. 

  

7.15. State Route 84 Corridor Widening Projects: Agreements with the City of 
Livermore for Transfer of Tri-Valley Transportation Development Fee Funds 

149 A 

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into 
Agreements with the City of Livermore to transfer Tri-Valley 
Transportation Development Fee Funds to the State Route 84 Corridor 
Widening Projects. 

  

7.16. Route 84 Expressway Project - North and South Segments (PN 624.1 & 
624.2) and Isabel Avenue - Route 84/I-580 Interchange (PN 623.0): 

159 A 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12852/7.8_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12853/7.9_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12854/7.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12854/7.10_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12855/7.11_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12856/7.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12856/7.12_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12857/7.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12857/7.13_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12858/7.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12858/7.14_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12859/7.15_COmbo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12859/7.15_COmbo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12860/7.16_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12860/7.16_Combo.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

Agreement with the City of Livermore for Utility Relocation along the 
Route 84 Expressway Project and an Amendment to the Project Specific 
Funding Agreement No. A07-0058 with the City of Livermore for the Isabel 
Avenue – Route  84/I-580 Interchange Project 

Recommendation: (1) Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an 
Agreement with the City of Livermore for Utility Relocation along the 
Route 84 Expressway Project - North and South Segments (PN 624.1 & 
624.2) and (2) Amend the Project Specific Funding Agreement No. A07-
0058 for the Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 Interchange Project (PN 
623.0). 

  

7.17. Various Projects: Amendments to Professional Services and Project 
Specific Funding Agreements for Time Extensions 

169 A 

Recommendation:  Approve time extensions and authorize the Executive 
Director to execute amendments for requested time extensions to 
Professional Services and Project Specific Funding Agreements in support 
of the Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects and Program delivery 
commitments. 

  

7.18. FY2014-15 Administration Support Professional Contracts Plan  173 A 
Recommendation: Approval of the FY2014-15 Administration Support 
Professional Services Contracts Plan 

  

7.19. Results of Solicitation of Ratings for Debt Issuance   179 I 
7.20. Alameda CTC HRA Retiree Health Benefit for the 2014 Calendar Year 185 A 

Recommendation: Approval of the Alameda CTC Retiree Health 
Benefit for the 2014 Calendar Year 

  

7.21. Alameda CTC General Fund Balance Reserve Policy  187 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC General Fund Balance 
Reserve Policy  

  

7.22. Alameda CTC 2014 Meeting Schedule 189 A 
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC meeting schedule for the 
2014 Calendar Year 

  

7.23. Community Advisory Committee Appointment 193 A 
Recommendation: Approve Community Advisory Committee 
Appointments.  
 

  

8. Community Advisory Committee Reports  
(Time limit: 3 minutes per speaker) 

  

8.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee- Midori Tabata, Chair 211 I 
8.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee – James Paxson, Chair 217 I 
8.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair 225 I 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12861/7.17_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12861/7.17_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12863/7.18-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12864/7.19_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12865/7.20_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12866/7.21_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12867/7.22_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12868/7.23_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12869/8.1-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12870/8.2-Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12871/8.3_Combo.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123 *(A = Action Item; I = Information Item) 
 

9. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
On January 13, 2014, the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee 
approved the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the 
recommendations. 

  

9.1. Legislative Update 241 I 
9.2. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update  257  A 

Recommendation: Approve the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan, 
direct staff to seek approval of the Plan from Alameda County City 
Councils and the Board of Supervisors to place on the November 4, 2014 
ballot, and authorize future polling services for the 2014 TEP. 

  

10. Finance and Administration Committee Action Items 
On January 13, 2014, the Finance and Administration Committee approved 
the following action items, unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

  

10.1. Debt Issuance for the 2000 Measure B Capital Program 265 A 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Commission approve 
the:  

1. Structure and Issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax 
Bonds), Series 2014 for the delivery of the 2000 Measure B 
Capital Program for a Par Amount Not to Exceed $165 Million; 

2. The Bond Documents and Bond Resolution, in their substantially 
final form; 

3. The State Board of Equalization (SBOE) Amended and Restated 
Agreement and SBOE Resolution;  

  
Adopt Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures for Tax-Exempt 
Bonds; and 

Authorize the Chair, the Executive Director and/or the Director of 
Finance to Execute all Documents Required for the Issuance of the 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014. 

  

11. Member Reports (Verbal)   

12. Adjournment   

 

Next meeting: February 27, 2014 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12872/9.1_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12879/9.2_Combo.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12874/10.1_Combo.pdf


 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\4_ Election_Chair_Vice-
Chair\Election_Chair-ViceChair_Memo_20140107.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 4 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Commission  

RECOMMENDATION: Elect a Chair and Vice-Chair of the Commission, assign Commission 
standing committee members; and assign other local and regional 
transportation committee assignments  to serve during calendar year 
2014 

 

Summary  

The Administrative Code calls for the election of the Commission's Chair and Vice-Chair 
at the January Commission meeting, and states that such elections will be effective 
immediately. The Code also indicates that the term of the Chair and Vice-Chair is for one 
year but traditionally, the Chair and Vice-Chair normally serve for two consecutive years. 
The current Chair and Vice-Chair are in their first year of service.     

Background 

The Commission annually elects the Chair and Vice Chair at its January Commission 
meeting.  The Administrative Code indicates that in selecting the Chair and Vice-Chair, 
members of the Commission should give reasonable consideration to rotating these 
positions among geographic areas and transit representatives.  

Subsequent to the election, the Chair shall appoint all members of the Commission’s four 
Standing Committees and include designation of the chair and vice-chair of each 
Committee. The Chair shall also make appointments to other local and regional 
transportation committees, when these appointments are required from the Alameda 
County Transportation Commission. Attached is a roster showing the current members of 
the Standing Committees as well as local and regional transportation-related boards and 
committees which include one or more current Alameda County Transportation 
Commissioner including boards and committees where Commissioners represent 
agencies other than Alameda CTC.  

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Current roster of Alameda CTC Standing Committee Assignments  

Page 1Page 1



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\4_ Election_Chair_Vice-
Chair\Election_Chair-ViceChair_Memo_20140107.docx 

 

 

 

Staff Contact  

Art Dao, Executive Director 
Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission  

Page 2Page 2

mailto:adao@alamedactc.org
mailto:vlee@alamedactc.org


AL
AM

ED
A 

CO
U

N
TY

 T
RA

N
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
20

13
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
ES

 M
EM

BE
RS

HI
P 

CO
M

M
IT

TE
ES

:
I-6

80
 S

U
N

O
L 

EX
PR

ES
S 

LA
N

E 
JO

IN
T 

PO
W

ER
S 

AU
TH

O
RI

TY
I-5

80
 P

O
LI

CY
 

CO
M

M
IT

TE
E

PL
AN

N
IN

G
, P

O
LI

CY
 

AN
D 

LE
G

IS
LA

TI
O

N
 

CO
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(P
PL

C)

PR
O

JE
CT

S 
AN

D 
PR

O
G

RA
M

S 
CO

M
M

IT
TE

E 
(P

PC
)

FI
N

AN
CE

 A
N

D 
AD

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 

CO
M

M
IT

TE
E 

(F
AC

)

ST
AR

TI
N

G
 T

IM
E:

9:
30

 A
M

10
:0

0 
AM

*
10

:3
0 

AM
N

O
O

N
1:

30
 P

M

CH
AI

R:
Bi

ll 
H

ar
ris

on
Jo

hn
 M

ar
ch

an
d

Ti
m

 S
br

an
ti

La
rr

y 
Re

id
 

Jo
hn

 C
hi

an
g

VI
CE

-C
HA

IR
:

Je
rr

y 
Th

or
ne

N
at

e 
M

ile
y

Ke
ith

 C
ar

so
n

Bi
ll 

H
ar

ris
on

 
To

m
 B

la
lo

ck

EX
-O

FF
IC

IO
:

Sc
ot

t H
ag

ge
rt

y
Sc

ot
t H

ag
ge

rt
y

Sc
ot

t H
ag

ge
rt

y

EX
-O

FF
IC

IO
:

Re
be

cc
a 

Ka
pl

an
Re

be
cc

a 
Ka

pl
an

Re
be

cc
a 

Ka
pl

an

M
EM

BE
RS

:
Sc

ot
t H

ag
ge

rt
y

Sc
ot

t H
ag

ge
rt

y
El

sa
 O

rt
iz

Ca
ro

l D
ut

ra
-V

er
na

ci
M

ar
ie

 G
ilm

or
e

Ti
m

 S
br

an
ti

Je
rr

y 
Th

or
ne

W
ilm

a 
Ch

an
Ru

th
 A

tk
in

Pe
gg

y 
Th

om
se

n

G
ai

l P
ric

e 
(V

TA
)

Ti
m

 S
br

an
ti

Jo
hn

 M
ar

ch
an

d
Lu

is
 F

re
ita

s
Ri

ch
ar

d 
Va

lle

M
ar

vi
n 

Pe
ix

ot
o

La
ur

ie
 C

ap
ite

lli

M
ic

ha
el

 G
re

go
ry

N
at

e 
M

ile
y

Je
rr

y 
Th

or
ne

* 
O

r i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

I-6
80

 S
un

ol
 E

xp
re

ss
 L

an
e 

Jo
in

t P
ow

er
s A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
ee

tin
g

U
pd

at
ed

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

8,
 2

01
4

4A

Page 3Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 4Page 4



 

  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20131205 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Commission Meeting Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, December 05, 2013, 2:00 p.m.  

  
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Roll Call 
A roll call was conducted and a quorum was confirmed.  

 
3. Public Comment 
There were no public comments.  

 
4. Chair/Vice Chair Report 
Chair Haggerty recognized Beth Walukas and presented her with a resolution from the 
Commission as well as a certificate of appreciation from the Alameda CTC. He also informed 
the Commission that he attended the ribbon cutting ceremony for the Caldecott Tunnel on 
November 15, 2013.  
 
5. Executive Directors Report 
Art stated that he attended the East Bay Section of the California League of Cities with 
Commissioner Sbranti and Commissioner Thorne. He also stated that there will be an 
Alameda CTC open house ceremony following the Commission Meeting in which the Citizens 
Advisory Committee will be recognized. 
 
6. Consent Calendar 

6.1. Approval of October 24, 2013 Minutes A 
Recommendation: Approve the October 24, 2013 meeting minutes.  

6.2. I-580 Express Lane Projects Workshop: Concept of Operations Review I 
6.3. I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 720.5/724.4/ 

724.5): Monthly Progress Report 
I 

6.4. I-580 Express Lane Projects (PN 720.4/724.1): Monthly  
Progress Report 

I 
 

6.5. Congestion Management Program: Summary of the Alameda CTC’s 
Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and General 
Plan Amendments 

I 
 

6.6. Draft 2014 Alameda CTC Legislative Program A 
6.7. Goods Movement Collaborative and Plan Update A 
6.8. Cap and Trade Principles and AB 32 Scoping Plan Update I 

Recommendation: Approve Cap and Trade Principles. A 
6.9. 2014 Level of Service Monitoring Request for Proposal A 

Recommendation: Approve the release of a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for preparation of the 2014 Level of Service (LOS) Monitoring 

A 

7.1

Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20131205 

Study and authorize the Executive Director, or a designee of the 
Executive Director, to negotiate and execute a professional services 
agreement with consultants or consultant teams selected as a result 
of the RFP process in accordance with procurement procedures 

6.10. Safe Routes to Schools Annual Update A 
6.11. I-580 Express Lanes Project (PN 720.4/724.1) Outreach and Education 

Plan: Issuance of Request for Proposals for Public Outreach and 
Education Services 

A 

Recommendation: Authorize the release of a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for implementation of a Public Outreach and Education Plan for 
the I-580 Express Lanes and authorize the Executive Director, or a 
designee of the Executive Director, to negotiate and execute one or 
more professional services agreements with consultants or consultant 
teams selected as a result of the RFP process in accordance with 
procurement procedures. 

A 

6.12. Report of Pavement Condition Of Bay Area Jurisdictions for 2012 A 
6.13. Alameda CTC FY2013-14 First Quarter Investment Report A 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2013-14 First Quarter 
Investment Report. 

 

6.14. Alameda CTC FY2013-14 First Quarter Financial Report  
Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC FY2013-14 First Quarter 
Financial Report. 

 

6.15. Alameda CTC Contract Equity Annual Utilization Report for FY2012-13  
Recommendation: Approve the Contract Equity Annual Utilization 
Report for payments processed between July 1, 2012 and  
June 30, 2013. 

 

6.16. Alameda CTC Staff Benefits for Calendar Year 2014 and Salaries for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

 

Recommendation: Approve the Alameda CTC Staff Benefits for 
Calendar Year 2014 and Salaries for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 and Adopt 
Resolution No. 13-013 

 

6.17. Advisory Committee Appointments  
Recommendation: Approve the advisory committee appointment  
Commissioner Worthington motioned to approve the Consent Calendar. 
Commissioner Chiang seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

7. Community Advisory Committee Reports 
7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

There was no one present from BPAC.  
7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee 

Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12260/4.4_Combo.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20131205 

James Paxson, CWC Chair stated that the CWC met on November 4, 2013. He 
stated that the CWC welcomed new members, reviewed the outreach program 
and met with the ACTC auditors. James concluded by stating that the CWC is 
starting the review of the year-end annual reports. The next scheduled CWC 
meeting is January 13, 2014.   
  

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
There was no one present from PAPCO.  

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
 

8.1.  Approval of Transportation Expenditure Plan  
Chair Haggerty stated that the TEP Steering Committee (SC) met and 
recommended that the Commission consider the approval of the Transportation 
Expenditure Plan at its next scheduled meeting in January. He also stated that the 
TEP SC formed a four member ad-hoc committee to do a more extensive review of 
the TEP before its approval.  

 
8.2. Presentation of Priority Development Investment and Growth Strategy 

Implementation  
Tess Lengyel introduced the item. She provided an overview of the PDA Investment 
and Growth Strategy and introduced Commissioners Harrison and Capitelli to 
present an overview of their One Bay Area Grant award projects. Commissioner 
Harrison introduced Jessica Von Borck, who reviewed Fremont’s proposed projects. 
Commissioner Capitelli introduced Matt Nichols from Berkeley who reviewed 
Berkeley’s PDA development. Tess concluded by updating the Commission on key 
issues and next steps.    
 

This item was for information only.  
 

9. Programs and Projects Committee Action Items 
9.1. Revised State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Fund Estimate  

Stewart Ng recommended that the Commission approve the Revised 2014 Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Program based on the Revised STIP Fund 
Estimate, and approve exchange of 2014 STIP funds. He stated that the exchange 
proposal is in alignment with the STIP approved by the Commission in September 
and approving the item would allow an exchange of STIP funding and Measure B 
funds to consolidate STIP funding from three projects into the I-880 to Mission Blvd. 
East-West Connector project.   
 
Commissioner Worthington motioned to approve the Item. Commissioner Atkin 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 

Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20131205 

10. Finance and Administration Committee Action Items 
 

10.1. Alameda CTC Draft Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the ACTIA 
Limitations Worksheet for the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Art recommended that the Commission approve the Alameda CTC draft audited 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the ACTIA Limitations Worksheet for 
the year ended June 30, 2013. Art stated the auditors declared Alameda CTC had 
a clean audit and there were no that there were no deficiencies or difficulties 
encountered in the audit.  
 
Commissioner Kaplan motioned to approve the Item. Commissioner Blalock 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

11. Adjournment  
The meeting adjourned at 3:25pm 

The next meeting is:  
Date/Time: Thursday, February 27, 2014 @ 2:00 p.m. 
Location: Alameda CTC Offices, 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA  94607 

 
 
Attested by: 
 
___________________________ 
Vanessa Lee, 
Clerk of the Commission  

Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.2_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\7.2_I580HOV_Progress_Report.docx 

 

Memorandum  7.2 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects (PN 720.5 / 724.4 
/ 724.5): Monthly Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the I-580 Corridor High 
Occupancy Vehicle Lane Projects 

 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lane 
Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-Valley. This monthly progress report provides a 
status update of the various projects currently underway in the corridor. This item is for 
information only. 

Background 

The Alameda CTC is the sponsor for the I-580 Corridor High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) 
Lane Projects which include HOV lanes in the Eastbound and Westbound directions 
between Pleasanton and Livermore. The projects provide increased capacity, safety and 
efficiency for commuters and freight along the primary corridor connecting the Bay Area 
with the Central Valley.  In its role as project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has been working 
in partnership with Caltrans, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), Alameda 
County, and the cities of Livermore, Dublin, and Pleasanton to deliver the projects. 

The I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects will be completed with the construction of three final 
projects in the Livermore Valley (two westbound HOV segments and one eastbound 
auxiliary (AUX) lanes project).  All of these projects are currently in construction and are 
being administered by Caltrans. Construction activity began in March 2013 and the 
project partners held a groundbreaking ceremony in June 2013. 

Attached for the Committee’s review are the December 2013 progress reports for the I-
580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (Segment 3 Aux Lanes) and the I-580 Westbound HOV 
Lane Project (Segments 1 and 2). 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  

Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.2_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\7.2_I580HOV_Progress_Report.docx 
 

Attachments 

A:  I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project Monthly Progress Report (PN 720.5) 

B:  I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects Monthly Progress Report (PN 724.4/724.5) 

C:  I-580 Corridor HOV Lane Projects – Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Stefan Garcia, Project Controls Team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:sgarcia@alamedactc.org


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane Project (PN 720.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 
Through December 1, 2013 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Eastbound I-580 HOV Lane Project is completing one final construction segment, 
Segment 3 Auxiliary (AUX) Lanes, between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road. The 
Project scope includes: 

• Construction of auxiliary lanes from Isabel Avenue to First Street; 
• Pavement width necessary for a double express / high occupancy toll (HOT) 

lane facility; 
• Final lift of asphalt concrete (AC) pavement and striping for entire eastbound 

project limits from Hacienda Drive to Portola Avenue; 
• The soundwall that was deleted from the I-580/Isabel Avenue Interchange 

Project; and, 
• The widening of two bridges at Arroyo Las Positas in the eastbound direction. 

 
CONSTRUCTION STATUS  
 
Traffic Handling & Night Work 
Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 
rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 
complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 
closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 
rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 
setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 
striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 
and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 
perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 
work is expected to occur during day time hours. 
 
Construction Challenges 
Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 
project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for this project include: 

• Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas 
• Installation of future HOT Lane components to facilitate HOT Lane completion 

 
Completed Activities – 39% of the contract work was completed as of 11/20/13 
Construction activities began in April 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 

• Las Positas Creek (EB and WB) bridge widening  
• Widening of major box culvert at Arroyo Seco and modification of drainage 

facilities.  Creek diversion is removed and area restored 
• Several retaining walls on the outside edges of the freeway corridor 

 
Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 
Caltrans maintains a project website 
(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 

7.2A 
 

Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate.doc 

 

and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 
activities include: 

• Construct and backfill remaining retaining walls 
• Winterization measures project-wide 
• Install Lighting and Traffic Operation Systems 
• Complete Subgrade preparation and cement treated soil 
• Installation of bird exclusion measures at bridge locations 

 
FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
The I-580 Eastbound HOV Project is funded through federal, state and local funds. 
 
Funding Plan – SEGMENT 3  
 
Project 
Phase 

Funding Source ($ x million) 
CMIA RM2 TVTC FED SHOPP Meas. B Total 

PA&ED      0.02 0.02 
PS&E  1.72 1.30 0.23   3.25 
ROW  0.17 0.08    0.28 0.53 
Construct 
Cap 

17.87 2.20 0.14  4.69 6.57 31.47 

Construct 
Sup 

2.53 1.12 0.10   0.71 4.46 

Total 20.40 5.21 1.62 0.23 4.69 7.58 39.73 
Total Project Cost: $39.7M 

 
 
SCHEDULE STATUS  
 
The EB Auxiliary Lane project between Hacienda Drive and Greenville Road was 
advertised on July 9, 2012; bids were opened on October 5, 2012. Caltrans awarded 
the contract to OC Jones & Sons (with a bid 6.33% below the Engineer’s Estimate) on 
November 16, 2012. Construction is planned to complete in late 2014. 
 
Project Approval December 2011 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction 
(Award) 

November 2012 (A) 

End Construction November 2014 (T) 

 

Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

ATTACHMENT B 
I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Projects (PN 724.4/724.5) 

Monthly Progress Report 
Through December 1, 2013 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Westbound I-580 HOV Lane Project includes three segments: 
• SEGMENT 1 – WB HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue.
• SEGMENT 2 – WB HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road.
• SEGMENT 3 – Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas Creek.  This work is included in the

construction contract for the EB HOV Lane Project (see Attachment A).

CONSTRUCTION STATUS – SEGMENTS 1 & 2 

Traffic Handling & Night Work 
Construction activities include both day and night work. Significant work is involved in 
rehabilitating the existing pavement which requires closing traffic lanes; however, no 
complete freeway closures are anticipated. Due to heavy daytime traffic volumes, 
closing traffic lanes in the daytime is not feasible. For this reason, pavement 
rehabilitation work can only be done during nighttime hours. Night work will include 
setting lane closures and shifting traffic lanes (placement of safety barrier (k-rail) and 
striping work), existing pavement rehabilitation work (crack and seat, slab replacement 
and overlay) and electrical work.  Caltrans lane closure charts permit the contractor to 
perform this work at night between 9pm and 4am. Work behind k-rail and all bridge 
work is expected to occur during daytime hours. 

Construction Challenges 
Alameda CTC staff is working in close coordination with Caltrans to implement the 
project within limited funding.  Challenges and managed risks for the project include: 

SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 
• Installation of future HOT Lane components to facilitate HOT Lane completion
• Additional widening of the North Livermore Avenue structure to accommodate

HOT Lane width requirements
• New retaining wall to account for recent, accelerated erosion within the Arroyo

Seco Creek adjacent to the widening necessary for westbound lanes
• Coordination of concurrent work with ongoing Caltrans projects in the area to

reduce cost
• Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas
• Revision of pavement slab replacement locations to prioritize in areas most in

need

SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 
• Installation of future HOT Lane components to facilitate HOT Lane completion
• Elimination of a retaining wall to reduce project cost
• Changes to the pavement cross section to reduce project cost
• Bird Nesting on structures and in adjacent field areas

7.2B 

Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

• Revision of pavement slab replacement locations to prioritize in areas most in 
need 

 
Completed Activities 
Construction activities began in March 2013.  Work completed to date includes: 
 
SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) – 24% of the contract work was completed as of 11/20/13 

• North Livermore Ave bridge widening – pile driving at Abutment 4 
• Bridge widening at Arroyo Las Positas (2 locations)  
• Arroyo Seco RCB culvert extension 
• Construct major drainage facilities (e.g. double box culvert) 
• Concrete pavement slab replacements  
• Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of k-rail on outside shoulder 

from Greenville to Airway 
 
SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment – 36% of the contract work was completed as of 11/20/13 

• Stage 1 median widening from Airway to Hacienda  
• BART Barrier modifications  
• Temporary striping, shift traffic lanes and placement of safety barrier (k-rail) to 

allow for Stage 2 outside widening 
• Bridge widening at Dougherty Undercrossing near Dublin BART station  
• Bridge widening at Tassajara Creek  
• Precast slab pavement replacements 
• K-rail placed for Stage 2 from Airway to just east of Tassajara Creek 

 
Ongoing & Upcoming Activities 
Caltrans maintains a project website 
(http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/) and conducts public information 
and outreach efforts in cooperation with Alameda CTC. Ongoing and upcoming work 
activities include: 
 
SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 

• Excavate and construct retaining walls and soil nail walls 
• Soundwall construction at Vasco Road 
• Winterization measures project-wide 
• North Livermore Ave bridge widening foundation work 

 
SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 

• LCB work in progress for widening between Isabel and Santa Rita 
• Precast concrete pavement slab replacements are in progress 
• Lime treatment of existing soils for roadway section 
• Stage 2 outside widening 
• Drainage systems installation for stage 2 in progress 
• Winterization measures project-wide 

 

Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dist4/projects/i580wbhov/


 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
The I-580 Westbound HOV Lane Project is funded through federal, state and local funds 
available for the I-580 Corridor. The total project cost is $143.9M, comprised of 
programmed (committed) funding from federal, state and local sources.   
 
Funding Plan – SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment) 
 
Project 
Phase 

Funding Source ($ x million) 
CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.53 0.04         0.57 
PA&ED   4.38           4.38 
PS&E   2.29 0.11 0.15   1.69 0.42 4.66 
ROW   1.16       0.04  1.20 
Utilities   0.32           0.32 
Const Cap 35.34   5.92 6.19 13.54 1.60   62.59 
Const. Sup 6.52   1.59     1.08   9.19 
Total 41.86 8.68 7.66 6.34 13.54 4.41 0.42 82.91 

Total Project Cost: $82.9M 
 
Funding Plan – SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment) 
 
Project 
Phase 

Funding Source ($ x million) 
CMIA RM2 TCRP FED SHOPP Meas. B TVTC Total 

Scoping   0.36 0.02         0.38 
PA&ED   2.92           2.92 
PS&E   1.53 0.07 0.10   1.12 0.28 3.10 
ROW   0.77       0.03   0.80 
Utilities   0.21          0.21 
Const Cap 33.73   2.49   9.61 0.10 0.30 46.23 
Const. Sup 6.75         0.58   7.33 
Total 40.48 5.79 2.58 0.10 9.61 1.83 0.58 60.97 

Total Project Cost: $61.0M 
 
 
SCHEDULE STATUS 
 
SEGMENT 1 (Eastern Segment): 
The Westbound HOV Eastern Segment from Greenville Road to Isabel Avenue was 
advertised on July 16, 2012 and bids were opened on September 19, 2012. Caltrans 
awarded the contract was awarded to Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. (with a bid 

Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.1_I580_HOV_ConstructionUpdates\4.1B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

16.33% below Engineer’s Estimate) on November 20, 2012. Construction is planned to 
complete in 2015. 
 
Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL May 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote May 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) November 2012 (A) 

End Construction June 2015 (T) 

 
SEGMENT 2 (Western Segment): 
The Westbound HOV Western Segment from Isabel Avenue to San Ramon Road was 
advertised on June 25, 2012 and bids were opened on August 29, 2012. Caltrans 
awarded the contract to DeSilva Gates Construction (with a bid 23.32% below 
Engineer’s Estimate) on October 29, 2012. Construction is planned to complete in late 
2014. 
 
Project Approval January 2010 (A) 

RTL April 2012 (A) 

CTC Vote April 2012 (A) 

Begin Construction (Award) October 2012 (A) 

End Construction November 2014 (T) 

 

Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16



58
0

58
0

68
0

84

84

68
0

Po
rto

la
 A

ve

A
irw

ay
   

   
 

La
s P

os
ita

s R
d

S Vasco Rd

Greenville Rd

N Vasco Rd

S L
ive

rm
ore

 A
ve

Hopyard   Rd

Hacienda  

Santa    Rita      RdTassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ramon Rd

Dougherty Rd

Foothill 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on

D
ub

lin

Dr

Firs
t S

t

Isabel     Ave

NC
a

n
yo

n

N Livermore Ave

El  C
ha

rro

 

Bl
vd

Rd

Po
rto

la
 

Ave
Liv

er
m

or
e

M
un

ic
ip

al
 A

irp
or

t

Liv
er

m
or

e

Al
ta

m
on

t P
as

s R
d

Rd

 I-
58

0 
C

or
rid

or
 H

O
V 

La
ne

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
- L

oc
at

io
n 

m
ap

 

I-5
80

 E
as

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V 

La
ne

 (C
om

p
le

te
) 

I-5
80

 E
as

tb
ou

nd
 A

UX
 L

a
ne

 (P
N

 7
20

.5
) 

I-5
80

 W
es

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V 

La
ne

 (W
es

t -
 P

N
 7

24
.4

) 

I-5
80

 W
es

tb
ou

nd
 H

O
V 

La
ne

 (E
a

st
 - 

PN
 7

24
.5

) 

7.2C

Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia

sgarcia
Sticky Note
Accepted set by sgarcia



       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.3_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\7.3_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgressRpt.docx 

 

Memorandum  7.3 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lane Projects (PN 720.4 / 724.1): Monthly Progress Report 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive a monthly status update on the I-580 Express Lane Projects

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC is sponsoring the Express Lane Projects along the I-580 corridor in the Tri-
Valley. The Eastbound I-580 Express High Occupancy Toll (HOT) Lane Project will convert 
the newly constructed eastbound High Occupancy Vehicle Lane (HOV) lane, from 
Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road, to a double express lane facility.  The I-580 
Westbound Express (HOT) Lane Project will convert the westbound HOV lane (currently 
under construction) to a single express lane facility from west of Greenville Road to west 
of the San Ramon Road/Foothill Road Overcrossing in Dublin/Pleasanton.   

A Categorical Exemption/Exclusion (CE) for the westbound direction was approved on 
August 2, 2013. An Initial Study/Environmental Assessment (IS/EA) for the eastbound 
direction is forecast for completion in March 2014. Staff is evaluating options to implement 
civil contract construction. The options include; a stand-alone civil construction contract; 
and entire civil construction through multiple change orders to the on-going construction 
contracts. The I-580 Eastbound and Westbound Express Lane civil construction work will 
construct the necessary infrastructure, such as signing, sign gantries for dynamic 
messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for connecting power and communication 
sources, and striping to accommodate the express lanes.  The System Integrator 
contractor will install the required communication equipment and software.  The express 
lane facility is scheduled to open for use in 2015.   

For detailed information on project funding, schedule and status of the Eastbound I-580 
Express (HOT) Lane Project, Westbound I-580 Express (HOT) Lane Project and System 
Integration activities, see Attachments A, B and C of this report. 

 

 

 

Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.3_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\7.3_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgressRpt.docx 
 

Background 

Delivery Strategy 

I-580 Eastbound Express (HOT) and I-580 Westbound Express (HOT) Projects will be 
combined into one project for the construction phase, via a stand-alone construction 
contract.  This will reduce bid advertising and construction support costs and minimize 
potential conflicts with two contractors performing work within the same project limits and 
median of the highway.   

Staff has issued four Contract Change Orders (CCO’s) to the on-going construction 
contracts (I-580 Westbound HOV, I-580 Eastbound Auxiliary Lane and Freeway 
Performance Project) along I-580 to incorporate some scope elements (Tier 1 CCOs) for 
the express lane project. Staff is working with Caltrans to identify additional scope 
elements that can be incorporated via CCO’s (Tier 2 CCOs) to the above mentioned 
contracts. Staff is also evaluating the option to implement the remaining civil construction 
work via CCO’s (Tier 3 CCOs). The benefit of implementing CCO’s is to avoid working in 
the environmentally sensitive area, minimize additional traffic disruptions to the traveling 
public, reduce or eliminate re-work and potentially finish construction sooner. Items 
included in already issued CCOs and under consideration to be included in the potential 
future CCOs include: 

• Electrical Conduit – across and along I-580  

• Service and controller cabinets 

• Striping – stripe to final HOT configuration  

• Install K-rail along median at sign locations  

• Median concrete barrier 

“Near Continuous” Access Configuration Status  

Staff is currently moving forward with the concept of a “near continuous” (aka “more 
open”) access configuration in lieu of “limited” access for the express lanes on the I-580 
corridor.  The “near continuous” access configuration would eliminate the two foot buffer 
between the express lane and the general purpose lanes except at “hot spots” or “safety 
zones” such as between Hacienda and Fallon Road (eastbound) and Hacienda and I-680 
(westbound).    

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A:  I-580 Eastbound Express (HOT) Lane Project Monthly Progress Report  

B:  I-580 Westbound Express (HOT) Lane Project Monthly Progress Report  

Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.3_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\7.3_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgressRpt.docx 
 

C:  I-580 Express (HOT) Lanes System Integration Monthly Progress Report 

D: I-580 Corridor Express Lane Projects – Location Map 

 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Gary Sidhu, Project Controls Team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2A_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

ATTACHMENT A 
I-580 Eastbound Express (HOT) Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 
Through December 31, 2013 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Eastbound I-580 Express (HOT) Lane Project will convert the newly constructed 
eastbound HOV lane, from Hacienda Drive in Dublin/Pleasanton to Greenville Road in 
Livermore, to a double express lane facility.   

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

The Environmental Phase for this project is underway as follows: 
• Environmental studies are complete and the Draft Initial Study and Environmental

Assessment (IS/EA) is scheduled for public circulation in early January 2014 and a 
public open house in late January 2014. A 30-day public circulation period is 
required for the Draft IS/EA.  

• Staff is coordinating with the three I-580 HOV lane projects currently in
construction (I-580 Westbound HOV Lane - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV 
Lane - East Segment and  I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane -  Segment 3 with Auxiliary 
Lanes) to implement some Contract Change Orders ( Tier 2 CCOs) in addition to 
already issued CCOs (Tier 1 CCOs) to on-going construction contracts.    

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

• Received approval of Traffic Operational Analysis Report for “near continuous”
access configuration

• Submitted Tier I CCO packages to Caltrans for construction implementation
• Submitted 95% Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) for Caltrans review
• Executed construction cooperative agreements for Tier 1 CCO implementation
• Executed High Profile Project Agreement
• Received Caltrans and FHWA approval of Concept of Operations & System

Engineering Management Plan
• Executed Fiber Optics Conduit sharing Memorandum Of Understanding with

Caltrans

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

• Finalize Draft Project Report – target early January 2014
• Circulate the Draft IS/EA for 30-day public comment – target early January 2014
• Address Caltrans comments on 95% PS&E review and prepare final PS&E – target

February 2014
• Public informational meeting  –  target late January 2014
• Environmental clearance and project approval by Caltrans and the Federal

Highway Administration – target March  2014

7.3A 

Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2A_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate.doc 

 

 
POTENTIAL ISSUES/RISKS 
 

• Construction implementation – due to potential delays in completion of 
construction contracts, it may not be possible to issue a stand-alone contract for 
civil construction in time to complete the project on schedule. Staff is working 
with Caltrans to evaluate other options including completing the entire civil 
construction work via CCO’s to the on-going contracts.   

 
FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
See Attachment C for combined project funding and financial status. 
 
 
SCHEDULE STATUS 
 
I-580 Eastbound Express (HOT) Lane Project Schedule: 
 
Project Approval March 2014 

RTL April 2014 

Begin Construction September 2014 

End Construction 
(Civil and System Integrator) 

November 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusU
pdate.doc 

ATTACHMENT B 
I-580 Westbound Express (HOT) Lane Project 

Monthly Progress Report 
Through December 31, 2013 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The I-580 Westbound (HOT) Lane Project will convert the planned westbound HOV lane 
to a single express lane facility from west of the Greenville Road Undercrossing in 
Livermore to west of the San Ramon Road / Foothill Road Overcrossing in Dublin / 
Pleasanton, a distance of approximately 14 miles. 

PROJECT DELIVERY STATUS 

• Traffic studies are complete and the Traffic Operational Analysis Report (TOAR) has
been approved by Caltrans

• The environmental document, a Categorical Exemption (CE), has been approved
• Staff is coordinating with the three I-580 HOV lane projects currently in construction

(I-580 Westbound HOV - West Segment, I-580 Westbound HOV - East Segment, I-580
Eastbound HOV Segment 3 - Auxiliary Lanes) to implement additional Contract
Change Orders (Tier 2 CCO’s).

RECENT ACTIVITIES 

• Four CCO’s (Tier 1 CCOs) were approved and submitted to Caltrans for construction
implementation

• Construction Cooperative Agreement amendments and new cooperative
agreements were executed to implement Tier 1 CCO work

• Submitted 95% Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) for Caltrans review
• Executed High Profile Project Agreement
• Received Caltrans and FHWA approval of Concept of Operations & System

Engineering Management Plans

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 

• Address Caltrans comments on 95% PS&E review and prepare final PS&E – target
February 2014

• Develop and process additional CCO’s (Tier 2 CCOs) through Caltrans
• Execute a new contract with Electronic Toll Collection Corporation for the

installation of electronic toll system for the westbound express lane – target mid-
January 2014

FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 

See Attachment C for combined project funding and financial status. 

7.3B 

Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusU
pdate.doc 

 

 
 
 
SCHEDULE STATUS 
 
I-580 Westbound Express (HOT) Lane Project Schedule: 
 
Project Approval August  2013   

RTL April 2014  

Begin Construction September 2014   

End Construction  
(Civil and System Integrator) 

November 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegratio
n.doc 

ATTACHMENT C 
I-580 Express (HOT) Lanes Systems Integration 

Monthly Progress Report 
Through December 31, 2013 

SYSTEM INTEGRATION SCOPE DESCRIPTION 

The I-580 Express Lane civil contract will construct the necessary infrastructure, such as 
signing, sign gantries for dynamic messaging and toll reading, electrical conduit for 
connecting power and communication sources, and pavement striping to 
accommodate express lanes. The System Integrator will include tolling hardware design 
and software development, factory testing of design, equipment and system 
installation, and road geometry and toll system integration. It will also consist of field 
testing of the toll equipment and all subsystems including the interfaces to the BATA 
Regional Customer Service Center and Caltrans prior to implementing the new express 
lanes. 

Detailed Discussion 
The systems integration focuses on the most recent technologies including software, 
hardware and traffic detection that will be deployed to optimize the existing corridor 
capacity in order to effectively manage the current and forecasted traffic in the 
corridor.  The system integrator, however, will continue to own the software while the 
implementing agency will pay for a license to allow for the use of the toll integrator’s 
software.   

Project toll system integrator, the ETC Corporation, has been revising the system design 
to support the “near continuous” access configuration in both directions of I-580. The 
“near continuous” concept provides additional access opportunities while reducing the 
foot-print required for implementing a shared express/general purpose lane facility.  In 
addition, it looks and feels similar to an HOV facility and, therefore, is expected to 
provide driver familiarity. 

Project Geometry and Electronic Toll System Design  
The latest version of the express lanes concept proposes the following: 

In the eastbound I-580 direction: 
• Buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda Drive

to Fallon Road 
• Continuous access dual-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Fallon Road to

west of Vasco Road 
• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from west of Vasco

Road to Greenville Road 

In the westbound I-580 direction: 
• Continuous access single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Greenville

Road to Hacienda Drive 

7.3C 

Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegratio
n.doc 

 

• A buffer separated single-lane HOV/Express Lane will be installed from Hacienda 
Drive to the I-580/I-680 Interchange 

 
PROJECT STATUS 
  
Concept of Operations/System Engineering Management & Enforcement Plans 
CDM Smith staff updated the Concept of Operations (Con Ops) Plan and the System 
Engineering Management Pan (SEMP) to reflect the changes described above. These 
plans outline the engineering process, the testing process, QA/QC guidelines, toll 
maintenance and operations requirements, and communication network requirements. 
Both these documents have been approved by Caltrans and FHWA.   
 
Software and hardware design   
ETC staff has been revising the Detailed Design Document (DDD) for the software and 
hardware development based on deploying a “near continuous” access express lane 
system.  The system designers are in the process of assessing the communication 
network and electrical power needs.  ETC staff will then complete the system design, 
perform a series of factory and field tests and work with the agency staff to validate its 
hardware and software design, prior to opening the new express lanes facility. 
 
Toll Pricing and Rate Publishing  
As discussed in previous meetings, for practical purposes and to curtail toll violation, a 
zone-based tolling has been included in design to effectively support the “near 
continuous” access configuration.  The zone-based toll rates will be displayed to 
patrons via the Dynamic Message Signs.   
 
Toll Antennas, Readers and Violation Enforcement Subsystem  
The toll gantries will be placed at approximately ¾  mile intervals. Closely spaced toll 
antennas and readers will help facilitate a “near continuous” access express lane 
configuration since it will lead to an effective FasTrak® transponder read.  It should also 
support more effective toll violation enforcement.    
 
As discussed previously, the system design includes an automated toll violation 
enforcement to effectively manage toll violations in this “near continuous” access 
express lane facility.  
 
The agency staff is also working to deploy a comprehensive public education/outreach 
program in spring 2014 to support the implementation of a “near continuous” access 
configuration and the use of switchable transponders, which will be new to Bay Area 
toll customers.   
 
The Golden Gate Bridge Authority implemented another payment option, payment 
through pay-by-plate.  The user is required to open up an account to pay via their 
license plate.  Our initial assessment indicates that this payment option is likely to 
encounter challenges since it will be difficult to distinguish the HOV and SOV users in an 
open/shared express lane facility, unless every vehicle is required to register as either an 
HOV or SOV vehicle.  Staff will continue to evaluate and collaborate with other toll 
operators and report back to the committee on whether or not the I-580 Express Lanes 
will employ such payment option. 
 

Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\I580_PC\20140113\4.2_I580_Express_HOT_Lane_Monthly_Status\4.2C_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegratio
n.doc 

 

In summary, even though the “near continuous” access concept provides additional 
opportunities it is a relatively new concept for implementation in the region.  Staff is 
committed to working closely with other like-minded agencies/industry experts to move 
forward and implement an effective electronic toll collection system strategy to 
effectively support a “near continuous” access express lane configuration. 
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES   
  
• ETC contract amendment for the eastbound and a new contract for the westbound 

have been executed to reflect “near continuous” access configuration scope 
• Continue to work on accommodating “zone tolling” and automated violation 

enforcement in project design documents 
• Concept of Operations and System Engineering Management documents have 

been approved by Caltrans and FHWA 
• Completed a draft Public Outreach and Marketing Plan 

 
UPCOMING ACTIVITIES 
 
• Continue to work on accommodating “zone tolling” and automated violation 

enforcement in project design documents 
• ETC to continue with Electronic Toll System design 
• Procure a consultant to embark the public outreach and marketing campaign in 

spring 2014 
 

 
FUNDING AND FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
Combined Eastbound & Westbound Funding Plan for “near continuous” access 
 
Project  
Phase 

Funding Source ($ x million) 
ARRA 
 

Federal 
Earmark 

RM2 TVTC TCRP 
Deferred 

Local 
(Meas. B) 

Other 
Local 

Total 

PA&ED 
 

  1.39 2.17 0.10   3.66 

PS&E 
 

0.70  0.11 0.93 3.10   4.84 

Sys. Int. 6.80   0.68 1.47  8.05 
 

17.00 

ROW 
 

   0.37    0.37 

Const. 
Support 

  2.55  0.05 1.47 
  

 4.07 

Construct 
Cap 

 1.00  0.63 1.28  21.65  
 

24.56 

O&M 
 

     0.18 0.30 0.48 

TOTAL 7.50 1.00 4.05 4.78 6.0 1.65 
  

30.00 54.98 

Total Project Cost: $54.98 M 
 

Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30



58
0

58
0

68
0

84

84

68
0

Po
rto

la
 

A
irw

ay
   

   
 

La
s P

os
ita

s  
   

Rd S Vasco Rd

Greenville Rd

N Vasco Rd

S L
ive

rm
ore

 A
ve

Hopyard   Rd

Hacienda  

Santa    Rita      RdTassajara    Rd

Fallon Rd

San Ramon Rd

Dougherty Rd

Foothill 

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on

D
ub

lin

Dr

Firs
t S

t

Isabel     Ave

N Livermore Ave

El  C
ha

rro

 

Bl
vd

Rd

Av
e

Liv
er

m
or

e
M

un
ic

ip
al

 A
irp

or
t

Liv
er

m
or

e

Al
tm

on
t P

as
s R

d

Rd

Bu
ffe

r S
ep

ar
at

ed
 1

-L
an

e 
Ex

pr
es

s L
an

e 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 A

cc
es

s 1
-L

an
e 

Ex
pr

es
s L

an
e 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 A

cc
es

s 2
-L

an
e 

Ex
pr

es
s L

an
e 

 I-
58

0 
Ex

pr
es

s 
La

ne
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

m
ap

 

7.3D

Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent Items\7.4_EL_Plan_Implementation_Principles\7.4_EL-Plan-
Principles_20131218_Draft.doc 

 

Memorandum  7.4 

 
DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Development of Express Lanes Planning and Implementation Principles  

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on Self-Help Counties Coalition’s effort in 
responding to the Caltrans Managed Lane Policy Directive 

 
 

Summary  

For close to a decade, staff have been utilizing new and emerging technologies to address 
traffic congestion in two Alameda County corridors that serve as major commute and/or 
freight routes to Alameda County and surrounding communities.  Caltrans recently 
prepared a draft Deputy Directive No.43 (DD-43) for managed lane facilities, and in June 
2013, circulated it for local agency review and comment.  Local agencies have 
collectively voiced their concerns to Caltrans and are actively engaging Caltrans to 
resolve the issues and come to consensus on the policy directive.  The purpose of this item 
is to provide the Commission with an update on the local agencies’ combined efforts in 
responding to the Caltrans Policy Directive, DD-43.   This item is for information only. 

Background 

In 2004, Assembly Bill 2032 (AB 2032) authorized Alameda CTC to implement express lanes in 
two Alameda County corridors.  Express lanes manage the existing infrastructure capacity 
efficiently to address recurring and projected traffic congestion.  Express lanes improve 
the performance of the corridor, including the general purpose lanes and transit 
operations. Among the various benefits, they encourage carpooling and offer solo 
motorist a choice to pay to use the lane when time saving is of value to them. The 
Southbound I-680 Express Lane was the first operational express lane in Northern California 
that opened to traffic on September 20, 2010. Since opening, it has continued to provide 
congestion relief and maintain travel reliability in the corridor.  The I-680 Northbound 
Express Lane project is currently in the environmental phase.  Concurrent environmental 
and final design phase efforts are underway to open the I-580 Express Lanes in fall 2015.   

Other counties, which administer local sales tax measure programs, such as Santa Clara 
Valley Transportation Authority (VTA), Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), San 
Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG), and Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (LA Metro) have also implemented express lanes to improve the 
performance of various routes of regional significance and are in the process of 

Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent Items\7.4_EL_Plan_Implementation_Principles\7.4_EL-Plan-
Principles_20131218_Draft.doc 

  
 

developing additional express lanes.  In addition, San Bernardino Associated 
Governments (SANBAG), Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) and the Bay 
Area Infrastructure Financing Authority (BAIFA) are currently developing express lanes.  
BAIFA’s current program encompasses express lane implementation on I-80 (in Solano 
County), I-680 (in Contra Costa County), I-880 and toll bridge approaches (in Alameda 
County).  Twenty of these local sales tax counties have formed the Self Help Counties 
Coalition (SHCC) to advance their voter-approved sales tax measure programs and 
jointly address transportation challenges facing each of their respective counties.  The 
SHCC is dedicated to ensuring sound public policy so that the State of California can 
meet its transportation infrastructure needs.  

Caltrans has been working toward completing a Deputy Directive (DD-43), a policy 
document to manage express (or managed) lane implementation.  In June 2013, 
Caltrans circulated a draft DD-43 for local agencies’ review and comment.  The draft DD-
43 expressed the state’s intent to:  

• Seek revenue sharing and funding with local agencies for the maintenance and 
operation of other existing roadway facilities 

• Seek new authority to implement express lanes 
• Request local participation for oversight costs 

The SHCC member agencies provided their comments to Caltrans and raised concerns 
regarding an array of issues, including: 

• Decision on toll policy 
• Decision on toll revenue allocation 
• Decision on reinvesting the excess (net) revenue 
• Oversight costs  

Since receiving the comments prepared in response to the draft DD-43, the Director of 
Caltrans has reached out to the SHCC members inviting an open dialogue on the 
concerns.  He plans to meet with the Southern California SHCC member agencies in 
December 2013 and the Bay Area Counties in late January 2014.  In response to the 
development of the DD-43, the SHCC members as congestion management agencies of 
respective counties are in the process of developing a draft planning and 
implementation principles document to collectively outline their vision for managing 
traffic congestion and/or improve corridor throughput.  The draft principles will be used in 
initial discussions with Caltrans Director.  Caltrans is expected to discuss the SHCC 
members’ concerns with the state administration to come to consensus between the 
state and the SHCC member agencies.  Staff will provide additional update in upcoming 
months. 

Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent Items\7.4_EL_Plan_Implementation_Principles\7.4_EL-Plan-
Principles_20131218_Draft.doc 

  
 

Fiscal Impact: This is an informational item only, and has no fiscal impact.  

Staff Contact  

Art Dao, Executive Director 

Kanda Raj, Project Controls Team 

Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35

mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org
mailto:kraj@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.5_EnvDocReview\7.5_EnvironmentalDocReview.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.5 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Alameda CTC’s Review and Comments on 
Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 

 

Summary  

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 
of the Congestion Management Program (CMP). As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 
Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on them regarding the 
potential impact of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last monthly update on November 4, 2013, staff reviewed three NOPs, one DEIR, 
three FEIRs and a Final Environmental Assessment/Draft Finding of No Significant Impact.  
Comments were submitted for four of these documents.  The comment letters are attached. 

Attachments: 

A. Comment Letter for Notice of Preparation of a DEIR for the City of Pleasanton East 
Pleasanton Specific Plan  

B. Comment Letter for City of Tracy Notice of Preparation of a DEIR for the Tracy Hills 
Specific Plan  

C. Comment Letter for City of Oakland Lake Merritt Station Area Plan DEIR 
D. Comment Letter for City of San Leandro Notice of Preparation of a DEIR for the 

Shoreline Development Project 

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact. 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Matthew Bomberg, Assistant Transportation Planner 

Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:MBomberg@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38



7.5A

Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39



Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40



Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42



7.5B

Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43



Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44



7.5C

Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45



Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46



7.5D

Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47



Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48



Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.6_CTC_Summary\7.6_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.6 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: California Transportation Commission December 2013 Meeting 
Summary 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the December 2013 CTC Meeting

 

Summary  

The December 2013 California Transportation Commission (CTC) meeting was held at 
Riverside, CA. Detailed below is a summary of the three(3) agenda items of significance 
pertaining to Projects/Programs within Alameda County that were considered at the 
December 2013 CTC meeting (Attachment A). 

Background 

The California Transportation Commission is responsible for programming and allocating 
funds for the construction of highway, passenger rail, and transit improvements 
throughout California. The CTC consists of eleven voting members and two non-voting ex-
officio members. The San Francisco Bay Area has three (3) CTC members residing in its 
geographic area: Bob Alvarado, Jim Ghielmetti and Carl Guardino.  

Detailed below is a summary of the three (3) agenda items of significance pertaining to 
Projects / Programs within Alameda County that were considered at the December 2013 
CTC meeting. 

 
1. 2014 Active Transportation Program Update and Fund Estimate 

On September 26, 2013 the Governor signed legislation creating the Active Transportation 
Program (Senate Bill 99, Chapter 359 and Assembly Bill 101, Chapter 354). This legislation 
required the CTC, in consultation with an Active Transportation Program Workgroup, to 
develop program guidelines by March 26, 2014. 

As a first step in the development of guidelines, Commission staff conducted a series of 
workgroup meetings, open to the public, to solicit input on key issues. Having gathered this 
input, staff developed the preliminary draft guidelines as a basis for continuing workgroup 
discussions. 

Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.6_CTC_Summary\7.6_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx 

 

 

The schedule for the development of the Active Transportation Program guidelines is 
proposed to include: 

Workgroup and subgroup meetings     December 2013 – mid January 
Guidelines hearing, South       January 23, 2014 
Guidelines hearing, North       January 29, 2014 
Guidelines to the Joint Legislative Budget Committee  February 3, 2104 
Commission adopts Guidelines      March 20, 2014 
 

The CTC also approved the 2014 Active Transportation Program (ATP) Fund Estimate. The new 
ATP will divide approximately $120 million for active transportation projects between the state 
and regions subject to guidelines that will be adopted by the Commission. This replaces the 
current system of small-dedicated grant programs, which fund programs like Safe Routes to 
Schools, bicycle programs, and recreational trails. The intent of combining this funding is to 
improve flexibility and reduce the administrative burden of having several small independent 
grant programs. 

Outcome: Approximately $10 million ATP funds are estimated to be available for MTC Region; 
Alameda County share will be determined through MTC’s Regional process. 

 
2. State Highway Operation and Protection Program/Proposition 1B Trade Corridor 
Improvement Fund (SHOPP-TCIF) / I-580 Eastbound Truck Climbing Lane Project  

The CTC approved de-allocation of $10.1 million in Proposition 1B SHOPP-TCIF Program funds 
from the construction phase of the I-580 EB Truck Climbing Lane Project due to elements not 
attributed to the SHOPP-TCIF approved scope of work. The non-SHOPP-TCIF project elements 
will be delivered with alternative fund sources by Caltrans.  

Outcome: The construction capital allocation will reduce to $31.6 million.  

 

3. Proposition 1B Local Bridge Seismic Retrofit Account (LBSRA)  

The CTC allocated approximately $2.1 million LBSRA funds for 2 projects in Alameda County. 

Outcome: Allocation will provide $1.7 million for the construction phase of City of Oakland’s 
Embarcadero Street Bridge Project (over Lake Merritt Canal) and $460,000 for the 
construction phase of City of Fremont’s Niles Blvd Bridge Project (over BART, UPRR, & BNSF 
Railroad). 

 

 

Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.6_CTC_Summary\7.6_CTC_Meeting_Summary.docx 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

 
Attachments 

A. December 2013 CTC Meeting summary for Alameda County Project / Programs 

 
Staff Contact  

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 

 

Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53

mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54



D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 C

T
C

 S
um

m
ar

y 
fo

r 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

/ P
ro

gr
am

s

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
og

ra
m

 / 
Pr

oj
ec

t
It

em
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
C

T
C

 A
ct

io
n 

/ D
is

cu
ss

io
n

C
al

tra
ns

20
14

 A
ct

iv
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (A

TP
)

C
TC

 st
af

f p
re

se
nt

ed
 th

e 
20

14
 A

TP
 F

un
d 

Es
tim

at
e 

an
d 

dr
af

t 
pr

og
ra

m
 g

ui
de

lin
es

.
A

pp
ro

ve
d

C
al

tra
ns

St
at

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
/P

ro
po

si
tio

n 
1B

 T
ra

de
 C

or
rid

or
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Fu

nd
 (S

H
O

PP
-T

C
IF

) /
 I-

58
0 

Ea
st

bo
un

d 
Tr

uc
k 

C
lim

bi
ng

 
La

ne
 P

ro
je

ct
 

D
e-

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 $
10

.1
 M

ill
io

n 
in

 P
ro

po
si

tio
n 

1B
 S

H
O

PP
-

TC
IF

 P
ro

gr
am

 fu
nd

s f
ro

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
of

 I-
58

0 
EB

 
Tr

uc
k 

cl
im

bi
ng

 la
ne

 p
ro

je
ct

du
e 

to
 e

le
m

en
ts

 n
ot

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 
th

e 
SH

O
PP

-T
C

IF
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

sc
op

e 
of

 w
or

k.
 T

he
 n

on
-S

H
O

PP
-

TC
IF

 p
ro

je
ct

 e
le

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

ith
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fu

nd
 

so
ur

ce
s b

y 
C

al
tra

ns
. 

A
pp

ro
ve

d

C
al

tra
ns

Pr
op

os
iti

on
 1

B
 L

oc
al

 B
rid

ge
 S

ei
sm

ic
 R

et
ro

fit
 A

cc
ou

nt
 

(L
B

SR
A

)

$1
.7

 M
ill

io
n 

fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
of

 C
ity

 o
f O

ak
la

nd
’s

 
Em

ba
rc

ad
er

o 
St

re
et

 B
rid

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
 (o

ve
r L

ak
e 

M
er

rit
t C

an
al

) 
an

d 
$4

60
K

 fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
of

 C
ity

 o
f F

re
m

on
t’s

 N
ile

s 
B

lv
d 

B
rid

ge
 P

ro
je

ct
 (o

ve
r B

A
R

T,
 U

PR
R

, &
 B

N
SF

 R
ai

lro
ad

)

A
pp

ro
ve

d

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.d
ot

.c
a.

go
v/

hq
/tr

an
sp

ro
g/

ct
cb

oo
ks

/2
01

3/
12

13
/0

0_
E

TA
.p

df

7.6A

Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/transprog/ctcbooks/2013/1213/00_ETA.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.7_AlaCTC_At_Risk_Reporting\7.7_AR_Reports_memo_20140113.docx   

 

 

Memorandum 7.7 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC At Risk Monitoring Reports 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), Federal 
Surface Transportation/Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
(STP/CMAQ), and Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) At Risk 
monitoring reports dated December 31, 2013  

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC monitors the projects programmed with State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP), Federal Surface Transportation/Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
(STP/CMAQ), and Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) County Program Manager funds 
for compliance with the respective program requirements and provides periodic updates to 
the Commission.  The attached At Risk reports are dated December 31, 2013.  

Background 

Project sponsors are responsible for meeting the milestone deadlines associated with each of 
the monitored fund sources.  The At Risk reports assign projects to zones of risk based on the 
status of the monitored activities at the time of the report date.  Red zone projects are 
considered at a relatively high risk of non-compliance with the requirements, Yellow zone 
projects at moderate risk, and Green zone projects at low risk. The durations included in 
the criteria are intended to provide adequate time for project sponsors to perform the 
required activities to meet the deadline(s). A project may have multiple activities that 
indicate multiple zones of risk.  Projects with multiple risk factors are listed in the zone of 
higher risk.  

The STIP and STP/CMAQ reports are based on information provided to the Alameda CTC’s 
project monitoring team by project sponsors as well as information made available by 
other funding agencies such as the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and 
Caltrans Local Assistance. The Alameda CTC requests project sponsors provide copies of 
certain documents related to the required activities to verify that the deadlines have 
been met.  The requested documentation may include copies of material submitted by 
the sponsor to agencies such as MTC, Caltrans and the California Transportation 
Commission (CTC).  The TFCA report is based on status information on file with the 
Alameda CTC.  

Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.7_AlaCTC_At_Risk_Reporting\7.7_AR_Reports_memo_20140113.docx 

 

STIP At Risk Report 

The attached STIP At Risk report (Attachment A) includes projects monitored for 
compliance with the STIP “Timely Use of Funds” provisions. The criteria for determining the 
project zones are listed near the end of the report.  The risk zone associated with each risk 
factor is indicated in the tables following the report.  Note that for the STIP “Complete 
Expenditures” deadline, sponsors are to provide documentation supported by their 
accounting department as proof that the deadline has been met.   

STP/CMAQ At Risk Report 

The attached STP/CMAQ At Risk report (Attachment B) includes locally-sponsored, 
federally-funded projects monitored for compliance with the requirements set forth in 
MTC’s Regional Project Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution 3606, revised July 23, 2008). 
Appendix B of the report provides the Resolution 3606 deadlines associated with each of 
the required activities.  Sponsors of STP/CMAQ projects are requested to note the 
following: 

• For projects programmed in federal fiscal year (FFY) 2013/14, the deadline to 
submit a request for authorization (RFA) is February 1, 2014 and the deadline to 
obligate funding (receive E-76 or FTA transfer) is April 30, 2014.   

• Projects in the three local federal Safety Programs: Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP), High Risk Rural Roads Program (HR3), and Safe Routes to School 
Program (SRTS) have been added to the STP/CMAQ report. As of November 2010, 
MTC has been enforcing the provisions of MTC Resolution 3606 for all local safety 
programs. Per MTC, sponsors with local safety funds not obligated by the deadline 
are ineligible for future programming. 

• The deadline for submitting the environmental package one year in advance of 
the obligation deadline for right of way or construction capital funding is tracked 
and reported, but is not affiliated with a zone of risk. 

• MTC will be revising Resolution 3606 in early 2014. Once approved, all projects will 
be subject to the revised provisions and associated deadlines, with the following 
exception:  for the revised RFA and E-76 deadlines, FFY 2015/16 is proposed to be 
the transitional year for the revised (earlier) dates.  
 

TFCA At Risk Report 
 
The attached TFCA TUF report (Attachment C) includes active and recently completed 
projects programmed with Alameda County TFCA Program Manager funds and 
monitored for TFCA program compliance. In this report, twenty projects are in the Red 
zone with required activities due within four months (of the report date of December 31, 
2013). Of these, twelve are in the Red zone for unexecuted funding agreements. There 
are two projects in the yellow zone for activities due within seven months and seven 
projects in the Green zone with required activities that are not due for eight months or 

Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.7_AlaCTC_At_Risk_Reporting\7.7_AR_Reports_memo_20140113.docx 

 

more. The nine recently completed projects listed at the end of the report have met the 
monitored requirements and will be removed from future reports. 

Next steps 

The next reporting cycle is anticipated late spring 2014.  

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. STIP At Risk Report, dated December 31, 2013 
B. STP/CMAQ At Risk Report, dated December 31, 2013 
C. TFCA At Risk Report, dated December 31, 2013 

Staff Contacts 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

James O’Brien, Project Controls Team 

Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

 

 

Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59

mailto:MTodd@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:jobrien@alamedactc.org
mailto:jtaylor@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60



STIP At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013

Index PP No. Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date Req’d 

By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

1 0057J Caltrans
RIP $1,100 CE 13/14 Allocate Funds 6/30/14 R R
RIP $500 Con 13/14 Allocate Funds 6/30/14 R
RIP $400 PSE 12/13 Complete Expend 6/30/15 G $400K Allocated 6/11/13

2 2014U GGBHTD
RIP $12,000 Con 11/12 Allocate Funds 12/31/13 R 18-Mo Ext App'd May 12

$20M Total RIP - $12M Ala
R

Index PP No. Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date Req’d 

By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

3 2100F Alameda Co.
RIP-TE $1,150 Con 10/11 Accept Contract 11/1/14 Y $1,150 Allocated 5/12/11

Awarded Nov 2011
G

4 2103 BART
RIP $20,000 Con 10/11 Accept Contract 9/1/14 Y App'd into STIP and 

allocated 9/23/10
Awarded Oct 2010

G

5 2140S LAVTA
RIP-TE $200 Con 10/11 Accept Contract 8/10/14 Y $200 Allocated 5/12/11 from 

SM County Reserve
Contract Awd 8/10/11

G

6 2009K LAVTA
RIP $4,000 Con 11/12 Accept Contract 11/7/14 Y Note 3

$4M Alloc'd 6/23/11 PTA
Contract Awd 11/7/11

G

Page 1 of 5

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

End of Yellow Zone

Satellite Bus Operating Facility (Phases 1 & 2)

STIP-RIP Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Red Zone Projects
Project Title 

Yellow Zone Projects

SF Golden Gate Bridge Barrier

End of Red Zone

Project Title 

SR-24 Caldecott Tunnel 4th Bore Landscaping

Cherryland/Ashland/Castro Valley Sidewalk Imps.

Oakland Airport Connector

Rideo Bus Restoration Project

7.7A

Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61



STIP At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013

Index PP No. Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

7 2009A AC Transit
RIP $3,705 Con 06/07 Project Being Removed from Report $3,705K Allocated 9/7/06 G

8 2009B AC Transit
RIP $1,000 Con 06/07 Project Being Removed from Report $1,000K Allocated 9/7/06 G

9 2009C AC Transit
RIP $2,700 Env 06/07 Project Being Removed from Report $2,700K Allocated 4/26/07 G

10 2009D AC Transit
RIP $4,500 Con 06/07 Project Being Removed from Report $4.5M Allocated 7/20/06 G

11 2009Q AC Transit
RIP $14,000 Con 06/07 Project Being Removed from Report $14M Allocated 10/12/06 G

12 0044C Alameda CTC
RIP $2,000 PSE 10/11 Final Invoice/Report NA R

13 0062E Alameda CTC
RIP $954 Env 07/08 Project Being Removed from Report $954 Allocated 9/5/07

Contra Costa RIP
G

14 0081H Alameda CTC
RIP $34,851 Con 16/17 Allocate Funds 6/30/17 G G

RIP-TE $2,179 Con 16/17 Allocate Funds 6/30/17 G

15 0139F Alameda CTC
RIP-TE $350 Con 10/11 Accept Contract 7/26/15 G $350K Allocated 10/27/11

3-Mo Ext for Awd 5/23/12
Contract Awarded 7/26/12

G

16 2100K Alameda CTC
RIP-TE $400 PSE 09/10 Final Invoice/Report NA $400K Allocated 6/30/10

12-Mo Ext App'd April 2012
R

17 2179 Alameda CTC
RIP $1,563 Con 12/13 Complete Expend 6/30/15 G $1,563 Allocated 6/28/12 G

RIP $750 Con 13/14 Complete Expend 6/30/16 G $750K Allocated 8/6/13
effective 7/1/13 (SB184)

RIP $886 Con 16/17 Allocate Funds 6/30/17 G

18 2009Y BART
RIP-TE $1,200 Con 07/08 Project Being Removed from Report $1,200 Allocated 6/26/08

Completed 3/31/13
G

Page 2 of 5

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Ashby BART Station Concourse/Elevator Imps

Planning, Programming and Monitoring (Note 2)

Rt 580, Landscaping, San Leandro Estudillo Ave - 141st

Berkeley/Oakland/San Leandro Corridor MIS

I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility

STIP-RIP Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Bus Component Rehabilitation

RT 84 Expressway Widening (Segment 2)

Green Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Maintenance Facilities Upgrade

Bus Purchase

SATCOM Expansion

I-880 Reconstruction, 29th to 23rd

I-880 Landscape/Hardscape Improvements in San Leandro

Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62



STIP At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013

Index PP No. Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

19 9051A BATA
RIP-TE $3,063 Con 16/17 Allocate Funds 6/30/17 G Added in 2012 STIP G

20 2009W Berkeley
RIP $4,614 Con 07/08 $4,614 Allocated 6/26/08 G
RIP $1,500 Con 09/10 Project Being Removed from Report AB 3090 App'd 8/28/08

$1.5M Allocated 9/10/09

21 2100G Berkeley
RIP-TE $1,928 Con 10/11 Final Invoice/Report NA $1,928 Allocated 12/15/11

Awarded 5/29/12
G

22 2100H Dublin
RIP-TE $1,021 Con 10/11 Final Invoice/Report NA $1,021 Allocated 8/11/11

Contract Awd 2/7/12
Accepted 2/19/13

G

23 2100 MTC
RIP $114 Con 12/13 Complete Expend 6/30/15 G $114 Allocated 6/27/12

effective 7/1/12 (SB184)
G

RIP $122 Con 14/15 Allocate Funds 6/30/15 G
RIP $118 Con 13/14 Complete Expend 6/30/16 G $118K Allocated 6/11/13

effective 7/1/13 (SB184)

RIP $126 Con 15/16 Allocate Funds 6/30/16 G
RIP $131 Con 16/17 Allocate Funds 6/30/17 G

24 1022 Oakland
RIP $5,990 R/W 07/08 Project Being Removed from Report $5.99M Allocated 12/13/07 G

25 2100C1 Oakland
RIP-TE $193 Con 07/08 Project Being Removed from Report $193 Allocated 7/26/07 G

26 2103A Oakland
RIP-TE $885 Con 10/11 Final Invoice/Report NA $885 Allocated 6/23/11

Contract Awd 11/10/11
Completed 3/13/13

Y

27 2110 Union City
RIP $4,600 Con 07/08 Project Being Removed from Report $4.6M Allocated 9/5/07 G
RIP $720 Con 05/06 $720K Allocated 11/9/06

RIP-TE $5,307 Con 05/06 $5,307K Allocated 11/9/06

RIP-TE $2,000 Con 06/07 $2,000K Allocated 11/9/06

RIP $9,787 Con 06/07 $9,787K Allocated 11/9/06
6-Mo Ext App'd 9/23/10 for 
Accept Contract - Site Imps 
accepted 11/19/10

Page 3 of 5

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Union City Intermodal Station

End of Green Zone

MacArthur Transit Hub Improvement, 40th St

Rte. 880 Access at 42nd Ave./High St., APD

Berkeley Bay Trail Project, Seg 1

Oakland Coliseum TOD

STIP-RIP Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Green Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Planning, Programming and Monitoring 2

Ashby BART Station Intermodal Imps

Alamo Canal Regional Trail, Rt 580 undercrossing

Improved Bike/Ped Connectivity to East Span SFOBB

Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63



STIP At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013

 Notes:    
1

2

3

Page 4 of 5

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Transit projects receiving State-only funds are subject to project specific requirements in agreements with 
Caltrans (Federal funds are typically transferred to FTA grant).

The "Date Req'd By" for the required activity is before the status date of this report.  Sponsor is working with 
Caltrans, MTC and Alameda CTC to expedite/complete the required activity and/or satisfy the requirement.

PPM funds programmed in the Con phase are not subject to the typical construction phase requirements.  
Once PPM funds are allocated, the next deadline is "Complete Expenditures."

STIP-RIP Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64



STIP At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013

Red Zone Yellow Zone Green Zone
within four months within four to eight months All conditions other than Red or 

Yellow Zones
within six months within six to ten months All conditions other than Red or 

Yellow Zones
within eight months within eight to twelve 

months
All conditions other than Red or 
Yellow Zones

within eight months within eight to twelve 
months

All conditions other than Red or 
Yellow Zones

within six months within six to eight months All conditions other than Red or 
Yellow Zones

within six months within six to twelve  
months

All conditions other than Red or 
Yellow Zones

within eight months within eight to twelve 
months

All conditions other than Red or 
Yellow Zones

NA NA NA

Notes:

Page 5 of 5
Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Required Activity
Allocation

Construction Contract Award 1

Required Activity

Zone Criteria 

Final Invoice/Project Completion
(Final Report of Expenditures)

For all phases, by the end (June 30th) of the fiscal year identified in the STIP.

Criteria Timeframes for Required Activities

For Env, PSE, &  R/W funds, within 180 days (6 months) after the end of the FY in 
which the final expenditure occurred.
For Con funds, within 180 Days (6 months) of contract acceptance. 

Accept Contract (Construction)

Complete Expenditures

Accept Contract

 Allocation -Env Phase

Allocation -Right of Way Phase

Allocation -PS&E Phase

Construction Contract Award

Allocation -Construction Phase

Yellow Zone

1.  Statute requires encumbrance by award of a contract for construction capital and equipment purchase within twelve months 
of allocation.  CTC Policy is six months. 

STIP-RIP Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Within 36 months of contract award.

For Env, PSE, &  R/W funds, costs must be expended by the end of the second FY 
following the FY in which the funds were allocated.

The Timely Use of Funds and At Risk reports utilize the deadlines associated with each required activity of the STIP Timely 
use of Funds Provisions to assign a zone of risk. The following zone criteria was developed for each of these risk zones (Red, 
Yellow,  & Green). For the Final Invoice, this activity is tracked but no zone of risk is assigned.

2012 STIP -Timely Use of Funds Provisions

Red Zone

Complete Expenditures

Other Zone Criteria
STIP /TIP Amendment  pending

Extension Request pending

Final Invoice/Project Completion
(Final Report of Expenditures)

The Timely Use of Funds and At Risk reports monitor the STIP Timely Use of Funds Provisions included in the current STIP 
Guidelines as adopted by the CTC. The current Timely Use of Funds Provisions are as follows:

Within six (6) months of allocation.

Timely Use of Funds Provision

Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

1 ALA130022 Alameda Alameda City Complete Streets
STP $130 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

STP $505 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

2 HSIP4-04-002 Alameda
HSIP $348 Con 11/12 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 01/11/14 R

Complete Closeout 01/12/16 G

HSIP $68 PE 11/12 Liquidate Funds 07/12/15 G $68 Obligated 1/18/12

3 HSIP4-04-010 Alameda
HSIP $607 Con 11/12 Submit Req for Auth 01/12/14 R See Note 2 Y

Obligate Funds 04/12/14 Y

Complete Closeout 04/12/16 G

HSIP $126 PE $126 Obligated 1/18/12

4 ALA090069 Ala County
STP $1,815 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $1,815 Obligated 4/4/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 04/04/18 G

STP $320 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/16/17 G $320 Obligated 3/16/11

5 ALA050035 Ala County
CMAQ $130 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-03 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

CMAQ $300 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 11/01/14 G

Obligate Funds 02/01/15 G

6 ALA110026 Ala County
STP $1,071 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $1,071 Obligated 4/4/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 04/04/18 G

STP $50 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/23/17 G $50 Obligated 3/23/11

7 ALA130018 Ala County Alameda Co-Various Streets and Roads Preservation
STP $100 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

STP $1,565 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

Page 1 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Alameda Co - Central Unincorporated Pavement Rehab

Red Zone Projects
Project Title 

Shoreline Dr - Westline Dr - Broadway Improvements

Park Street Operations Improvements

Alameda County: Rural Roads Pavement Rehab

Cherryland/Ashland/CastroValley/Fairview SidwlkImp

7.7B

Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

8 H3R1-04-031 Ala County
HRRR $717 Con 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 06/30/15 G

Complete Closeout 12/31/15 G

HRRR $101 PE Prior Liquidate Funds 06/30/15 G $101 Obligated 12/19/08

9 HSIP2-04-024 Ala County
HSIP $577 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 R Obligated 9/19/12

HSIP $59 PE Prior Obligated 8/14/09

HSIP $63 R/W Prior Obligated 2/15/11

10 HSIP2-04-027 Ala County
HSIP $427 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/30/14 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 09/30/14 Y Con Obligated 8/11/13

HSIP $59 PE Prior PE Obligated 2/23/09

11 SRTS1-04-001 Ala County
SRTS $508 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 G Obligated 9/19/12

SRTS $77 PE Prior Obligated 1/29/09

12 ALA110007 Berkeley
CMAQ $10 Con 11/12 Obligate Funds Note 1 R Working with Caltrans and

MTC to add to PE
R

CMAQ $1,990 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 02/22/17 G $1,990 Obligated 2/22/11

13 ALA110024 Dublin
STP $547 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $547 Obligated 3/16/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 03/16/18 G

14 ALA110034 Dublin
CMAQ $580 Con 11/12 Submit First Invoice Note 1 R $580 Obligated 6/1/12

Contract Awd 9/18/12
R

CMAQ $67 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/18/17 G $67 Obligated 3/18/11

Page 2 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Dublin Citywide Street Resurfacing

West Dublin BART Golden Gate Drive Streetscape

City of Berkeley Transit Action Plan - TDM

Fairview Elementary School Vicinity Improvements

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Remove Permanent Obstacle along Shoulder (Foothill Road)

Patterson Pass Road - PM6.4 Widen or Improve Shoulder

Castro Valley Blvd - Wisteria St Intersection and Frontage Improvements

Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

15 SRTS3-04-007 Emeryville
SRTS $696 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 03/07/14 R See Note 2 G

Obligate Funds 06/17/14 G

Liquidate Funds 12/07/15 G

Complete Closeout 06/07/16 G

SRTS $52 PE 11/12 G $52 Obligated 5/4/12

16 ALA110012 Fremont
CMAQ $1,114 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $1,114 Obligated 3/27/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 03/27/18 G

CMAQ $432 Con 10/11 Project Complete NA $432 Obligated 4/13/11

CMAQ $54 Con 10/11 Project Complete NA $54 Obligated 6/13/11

17 ALA130020 Fremont Fremont Various Streets and Roads Preservation
STP $2,105 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

18 ALA130025 Fremont Fremont City Center Multi-Modal Improvements
STP $5,333 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

STP $522 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

19 HSIP1-04-005 Fremont
HSIP $164 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 R $164 Obligated 3/7/13

HSIP $35 PE Prior Obligated 11/28/07

20 HSIP2-04-018 Fremont
HSIP $183 Prior Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 R Con Obligated 4/19/11
PE Obligated 4/8/09

21 HSIP4-04-020 Fremont
HSIP $275 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 01/11/14 R

Liquidate Funds 07/12/15 G

Complete Closeout 01/12/16 G

$41 PE Prior Obligated 11/8/11

Page 3 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Replace Concrete Poles with Aluminum in Median (Paseo Parkway)

Fremont Blvd / Eggers Dr

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Install Median Barrier, Install Raised Median and Improve Delineation (Mowry)

Fremont CBD/Midtown Streetscape

San Pablo Avenue 43rd to 47th Pedestrian Safety

Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

22 HSIP4-04-022 Fremont
HSIP $348 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 01/11/14 R

Liquidate Funds 07/12/15 G

Complete Closeout 01/12/16 G

$43 PE Prior Obligated 11/8/11

23 ALA110019 Hayward
STP $1,336 Con 10/11 Award Contract Note 1 R $1,336 Obligated 2/23/11 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 02/23/17 G

24 ALA110035 Hayward
CMAQ $1,540 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $1,264 Obligated 4/4/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R Amounts per Phase Adjusted

Liquidate Funds 04/04/18 G

CMAQ $260 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 01/18/17 G $536 Obligated 1/18/11

25 ALA130013 Hayward Hayward - Industrial Boulevard Preservation
STP $70 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

STP $1,265 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

26 HSIP5-04-007 Hayward
HSIP $22 PE 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R New Cycle 5 Project R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

HSIP $139 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 3

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

27 ALA130010 Livermore Livermore Various Streets Preservation
STP $1,053 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

28 ALA110029 Oakland
CMAQ $2,200 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $2,200 Obligated 4/4/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 04/04/18 G

Page 4 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Oakland Foothill Blvd Streetscape

West "A" Street between Hathaway and Garden

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Fremont Blvd / Alder Ave

Hayward Various Arterials Pavement Rehab

South Hayward BART Area/Dixon Street Streetscape

Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

29 ALA130016 Oakland Oakland Complete Streets
CMAQ $467 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

CMAQ $3,384 Con 15/16 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/16 G NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/16 G

30 HSIP2-04-004 Oakland
HSIP $223 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 03/30/14 R See Note 2 G

Complete Closeout 09/30/14 Y Obligated 6/30/11

31 HSIP2-04-005 Oakland
HSIP $81 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 03/30/14 R See Note 2 G

Complete Closeout 09/30/14 Y Obligated 7/8/11

32 HSIP4-04-005 Oakland
HSIP $345 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 Y

Obligate Funds 03/13/14 Y

Liquidate Funds 09/13/15 G

Complete Closeout 03/13/16 G

$71 PE Prior Obligated 1/23/12

33 HSIP4-04-011 Oakland
HSIP $398 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 01/11/14 R

Liquidate Funds 07/12/15 G

Complete Closeout 01/12/16 G

$87 PE Prior Obligated 1/23/12

34 HSIP4-04-012 Oakland
HSIP $738 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 01/11/14 R

Liquidate Funds 07/12/15 G

Complete Closeout 01/12/16 G

$162 PE Prior Obligated 1/25/12

35 HSIP5-04-011 Oakland
HSIP $125 PE 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R New Cycle 5 Project R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

HSIP $574 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 3

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

Page 5 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

W. MacArthur Blvd. between Market & Telegraph

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Bancroft Ave - 94th Ave Improvements

Hegenberger Rd Intersections

San Pablo Ave - West St - W. Grand Ave Intersections

West Grand at Market, Macarthur at Fruitvale & Market at 55th Improvements

Various Intersections Pedestrian Improvements

Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

36 HSIP5-04-012 Oakland
HSIP $99 PE 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R New Cycle 5 Project R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

HSIP $558 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 3

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

37 HSIP5-04-013 Oakland
HSIP $103 PE 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R New Cycle 5 Project R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

HSIP $541 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 3

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

38 SRTS1-04-014 Oakland
SRTS $613 Prior Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 G PE Obligated 3/2/08
Con Obligated 8/18/11

39 SRTS2-04-007 Oakland
SRTS $753 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2 R

Complete Closeout 03/31/14 G Con Obligated 2/3/12

SRTS $118 PE Prior PE Obligated 1/26/10

40 ALA130019 Piedmont Piedmont Complete Streets (CS)
STP $129 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

41 ALA110031 Pleasanton
CMAQ $709 Con 12/13 Award Contract 02/01/14 R $709 Obligated 5/1/13 Y

Submit First Invoice 06/01/14 G Advertised 5/30/13

Liquidate Funds 05/01/19 G

42 ALA110010 Port
CMAQ $3,000 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $3,000 Obligated 2/16/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R

Liquidate Funds 02/16/18 G

43 ALA110027 San Leandro
CMAQ $4,298 Con 11/12 Award Contract Note 1 R $4,298 Obligated 2/28/12 R

Submit First Invoice Note 1 R Advertised

CMAQ $312 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 12/21/16 G $312 Obligated 12/21/10

Page 6 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Multiple School (5 Schools) Improvements Along Major Routes

Intersection Improvements at Multiple School (5 Elem. + 1 Middle)

Shore Power Initiative

San Leandro Downtown-BART Pedestrian Interface

Pleasanton - Foothill/I-580/IC Bike/Ped Facilities

Market Street between 45th & Arlington

98th Avenue Corridor

Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

44 HSIP4-04-015 San Leandro
HSIP $307 Con 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 01/12/14 R See Note 2 Y

Obligate Funds 04/12/14 Y

Liquidate Funds 10/12/15 G

Complete Closeout 04/12/16 G

$66 PE Prior Obligated 12/15/11

45 ALA090015 Union City
CMAQ $8,692 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

46 ALA130023 Union City Whipple Road Pavement Rehabilitation
STP $18 PE 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/14 R TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/14 Y

STP $651 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

47 HSIP5-04-030 Union City
HSIP $62 PE 12/13 Submit Req for Auth Note 1 R New Cycle 5 Project R

Obligate Funds Note 1 R See Note 2

HSIP $288 CON 13/14 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 3

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

Index PP No. Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

48 HSIP3-04-005 Fremont
HSIP $120 Con 12/13 Liquidate Funds 06/02/14 Y G

Complete Closeout 12/02/14 G Con Obligated 2/16/12

HSIP $23 PE Prior PE Obligated 11/18/10

49 HSIP3-04-006 Fremont
HSIP $458 Con 12/13 Liquidate Funds 06/02/14 Y See Note 2 Y

Complete Closeout 12/02/14 G $458 Obligated 4/11/13

HSIP $59 PE Prior Obligated 11/22/10

Page 7 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Yellow Zone Projects
Project Title 

End of Yellow Zone

Paseo Padre Parkway - Walnut Ave and Argonaut Way

Red Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

End of Red Zone

Alvarado Road between Decoto & Mann

Washington Ave / Monterey Blvd 

Union City Intermodal Station Infrastructure

Paseo Padre Parkway - Walnut to Washington - Replace Poles

Page 73Page 73Page 73Page 73



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

50 ALA110119 AC Transit AC Transit: Spectrum Ridership Growth
CMAQ $1,803 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-05 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

51 ALA110025 Alameda
STP $837 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/08/17 G $837 Obligated 3/8/11

Awarded 5/17/11
G

52 ALA030002 Ala County
STP $235 ROW 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

STP $1,785 Con 09/10 Liquidate Funds 08/31/16 G $1,785 Obligated 8/31/10

Contract awarded 6/7/11

STP $478 PE 12/13 Liquidate Funds 04/17/19 G $478 Obligated 4/17/13

53 SRTS1-04-002 Ala County
SRTS $450 Con 12/13 Liquidate Funds 11/01/14 G See Note 2 G

Complete Closeout 04/01/15 G Obligated 9/19/12

SRTS $50 PE Prior G Obligated 12/7/10

54 ALA110009 Alameda CTC
CMAQ $500 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/29/17 G $500 Obligated 3/29/11 G

Obligated w/ALA110033

55 ALA110033 Alameda CTC
CMAQ (OBAG) $2,000 Con 13/14 Liquidate Funds 10/24/19 G TIP Amend 13-05 G

CMAQ (RSRTS) $2,673 Con 13/14 Liquidate Funds 10/24/19 G

STP (RSRTS) $1,000 Con 13/14 Liquidate Funds 10/24/19 G $5,673 Obligated 10/24/13

CMAQ (RSRTS) $620 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/29/17 G

CMAQ $1,669 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/29/17 G $2,689 Obligated 3/29/11

STP $400 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/29/17 G Obligated w/ALA110009

56 ALA110122 Alameda CTC Local PDA Planning - Alameda
STP $3,905 Con 15/16 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/16 G TIP Amend 13-06

Obligate Funds 04/30/16 G NA

57 ALA110030 Albany
CMAQ $1,702 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 06/01/18 G $1,702 Obligated 6/1/12

Contract Awd 10/15/12
1st Invoice dated 5/14/13
Fed-Aid No. 5178(012)

G

58 ALA110039 Albany
STP $117 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 05/02/17 G Contract Awd 7/12/11

$117 Obligated 5/2/11
G

Page 8 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Albany - Pierce Street Pavement Rehabilitation

Vasco Road Safety Improvements Phase 1A

Alameda - Otis Drive Rehabilitation

Alameda County Safe Routes to School

Albany - Buchanan Bicycle and Pedestrian Path

Marshall Elementary School Vicinity Improvements

Green Zone Projects
Project Title 

Bikemobile - Bike Repair and Encouragement Vehicle

Page 74Page 74Page 74Page 74



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

59 ALA090068 BART
CMAQ $626 Con 10/11 $626 Obligated 3/16/11 G

Transferred to FTA Grant

60 ALA110032 BART
CMAQ $4,066 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 G

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

CMAQ $706 PE 10/11 $706 Obligated 3/16/11

CMAQ $1,099 Con 10/11 $1,099 Obligated 3/16/11

Transferred to FTA Grant

61 ALA110038 BART
CMAQ $21 PE 10/11 $21 Obligated 2/2/11 G

CMAQ $839 Con 10/11 $839 Obligated 2/2/11
Transferred to FTA Grant

62 ALA110121 BART
STP $1,493 CON 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

63 ALA110022 Berkeley
STP $955 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/18/17 G $955 Obligated 3/18/11

Contract Awd 7/19/11
R

64 ALA130012 Dublin Dublin Boulevard Preservation
STP $470 CON 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

65 ALA130021 Emeryville Emeryville - Hollis Street Preservation
STP $100 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

66 HSIP2-04-009 Hayward
HSIP $725 Prior Project Being Removed from Report R

Closeout Complete 2/13/13

67 ALA110013 Livermore
CMAQ $1,566 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 04/04/18 G $1,241 Obligated 4/4/12

Contract Awd 7/23/12
First Invoice Dated 2/8/13
TLC Project Fed Aid (025)

G

68 ALA110015 Livermore
CMAQ $176 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 04/04/17 G $176 Obligated 4/4/11

Billing 1 dated 2/22/12
Fed Aid (024)

G

Page 9 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Livermore Downtown Lighting Retrofit

Iron Horse Trail Extension in Downtown Livermore

BART - West Dublin BART Station Ped Access Imps

Berkeley - Sacramento St Rehab - Dwight to Ashby

BART Train Car Accident Repair Project

Carlos Bee Blvd between West Loop Rd and  Mission Blvd

Downtown Berkeley BART Plaza/Transit Area Imps.

MacArthur BART Plaza Remodel

Green Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Page 75Page 75Page 75Page 75



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

69 ALA110023 Livermore
STP $1,028 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/21/17 G $1,028 Obligated 3/21/11

Billing 1 dated 2/22/12
Fed Aid (023)

G

70 ALA110037 Livermore
Project Being Removed from Report R

Funds Moved to ALA130011 TIP Amend 13-04

71 ALA130011 Livermore Livermore Relocation and Restoration of R/R Depot
STP $2,500 CON 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

72 ALA110016 Newark
STP $682 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 02/17/18 G $682 Obligated 2/17/12

1st Invoice 11/28/12
G

73 ALA110006 Oakland
STP $3,492 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 02/16/18 G $3,492 Obligated 2/16/12

Awd 12/4/12
R

STP $560 PE 10/11 Liquidate Funds 02/22/17 G $560 Obligated 2/22/11

74 ALA110014 Oakland
CMAQ $1,700 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 04/27/17 G $1.7M Obligated 4/27/11 G

Contract Dated 8/19/11

75 ALA130014 Oakland 7th Street West Oakland Transit Village, Phase II
CMAQ $3,288 Con 15/16 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/16 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/16 G

76 ALA130017 Oakland Oakland - Peralta and MLK Blvd Streetscape Phase I
CMAQ $5,452 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

77 ALA130024 Oakland Lakeside Complete Streets and Road Diet
STP $4,846 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

78 ALA110021 Pleasanton
STP $876 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 04/14/17 G $876 Obligated 4/14/11

Final Inv/Rep 10/30/12
Final Rep returned
Prog Billing Dated 4/30/13

G

79 ALA130009 Pleasanton Pleasanton Complete Streets
STP $832 CON 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-04 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

Page 10 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Green Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Oakland - MacArthur Blvd Streetscape

Pleasanton Various Streets Pavement Rehab

Livermore - 2011 Various Arterials Rehab

Livermore Village Plaza & Infrastructure

Newark - Cedar Blvd and Jarvis Ave Pavement Rehab

Various Streets Resurfacing and Bikeway Facilities

Page 76Page 76Page 76Page 76



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index TIP ID Sponsor
Source Prog’d Amount

($x 1,000)
Phase FY Required Activity Date 

Req’d By
Zone Notes Prev

Zone

80 ALA110020 San Leandro
STP $807 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 03/29/17 G $807 Obligated 3/29/11 G

Contract Awd 5/5/11

81 ALA130008 San Leandro San Leandro Boulevard Preservation
STP $804 Con 14/15 Submit Req for Auth 02/01/15 G TIP Amend 13-06 NA

Obligate Funds 04/30/15 G

82 HSIP5-04-019 San Leandro
HSIP $380 Con 15/16 Submit Req for Auth 08/23/15 G See Note 2 R

Obligate Funds 11/23/15 G See Note 3

Liquidate Funds 05/23/17 G

Complete Closeout 11/23/17 G

HSIP $69 PE 12/13 $69 Obligated 7/16/13

83 SRTS3-04-017 San Leandro
SRTS $410 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 03/06/16 G See Note 2 G

Complete Closeout 09/06/16 G $410 Obligated 3/22/12

84 ALA110017 Union City
STP $861 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 04/13/17 G $861 Obligated 4/13/11

Contract Awd 6/14/11
G

85 ALA110028 Union City
CMAQ $860 Con 11/12 Liquidate Funds 03/22/18 G $860 Obligated 3/22/12

Contract Awd 6/12/12
R

86 ALA110036 Union City
CMAQ $4,450 Con 10/11 Liquidate Funds 02/02/17 G $4,450 Obligated 2/2/11 G

Contract Awd 6/28/11
FTA CA-95-X157

 Notes:    
1

2

3

Page 11 of 11

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

HSIP Cycle 5 projects are not yet included in an adopted TIP.  Sponsors cannot request obligation until included in TIP.  Projects 
with Cycle 5 programming requested in FY12/13 are shown in report with the same "Required Activity" and "Dates Required By" 
as other projects with FY 12/13 funding while they wait for the TIP approval.

HSIP, SRTS and HRRR projects may have different timely use of funds provisions than the MTC Reso 3606 requirements.  The 
values for "Date Req'd By" shown in this report are based on the Safety Progam Delivery Status Reports - Complete Project 
Listing available from Caltrans Local Programs at www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/HSIP/delivery_status.htm.  For the 
purposes of this monitoring report, the Submit Request for Authorization dates are set to three months prior to the date shown for 
authorization in the Safety Program Delivery Status Reports, and the Liquidate Funds dates are set to six months prior to the date 
shown for Complete Closeout shown by Caltrans.

Green Zone Projects (cont.)
Project Title 

Union City BART East Plaza Enhancements

End of Green Zone

MTC Reso 3606 deadline or the Safety Program Monitoring date is before the status date of this report.  Sponsor is working with 
Caltrans, MTC and Alameda CTC to expedite/complete the required activity.

Union City - Dyer Street Rehabilitation

Multiple Schools Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety 

Bancroft Ave/ Sybil Ave

Union City Blvd Corridor Bicycle Imp. Phase 1

San Leandro - Marina Blvd Rehabilitation

Page 77Page 77Page 77Page 77



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Red Zone Yellow Zone Green Zone
 Request Project Field Review Project in TIP 

 for more than nine (9) 
months, or obligation 

deadline for Con funds 
within 15 months. 

Project in TIP for less than 
nine (9) months, and 

obligation deadline for Con 
funds more than 15 months 

away. 

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Submit Environmental Package NA NA NA

 Approved DBE Program and  
 Methodology

NA NA NA

 Submit Request for Authorization (PE) within three (3) months within three (3) to six (6) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Submit Request for Authorization (R/W) within four (4) months within four (4) to nine (9) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Submit Request for Authorization (Con) within six (6) months within six (6) to nine (9) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Obligation/ FTA Transfer within two (2) months within two (2) to four (4) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Advertise Construction within four (4) months within four (4) to six (6) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Award Contract within six (6) months within six (6) to nine (9) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Award into FTA Grant within two (2) months within two (2) to four (4) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Submit First Invoice within two (2) months within two (2) to four (4) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

 Liquidate Funds within four (4) months within four (4) to nine (9) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones
Move to Appendix D

 Project Closeout within four (4) months within four (4) to nine (9) 
months

All conditions other than 
Red or Yellow Zones

Red Zone

Yellow Zone

Page A1 of A1

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

 Notes:    1 See Apendix B for more information about the Required Activities and Resolution 3606.

Appendix A
Federal At Risk Report Zone Criteria

Required Activities per Resolution 3606 (Revised July 23, 2008)

Required Activities 
Monitored by CMA1

Criteria Timeframes for Required Activities

Other Zone Criteria

Projects with funds programmed in the same FY for both a project development 
phase (i.e. Env or PSE) and a capital phase (i.e. R/W or Con) without the project 
development phase(s) obligated.

Projects with an Amendment to the TIP pending.

Page 78Page 78Page 78Page 78



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index Definition Deadline

1
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Implementing agencies are required to request a field review from Caltrans 
Local Assistance within 12 months of approval of the project in the TIP1, but no less than 12 months prior to the 
obligation deadline of construction funds. This policy also applies to federal-aid projects in the STIP. The 
requirement does not apply to projects for which a field review would not be applicable, such as FTA transfers, 
regional operations projects and planning activities. Failure for an implementing agency to make a good-faith effort 
in requesting and scheduling a field review from Caltrans Local Assistance within twelve months of programming 
into the TIP could result in the funding being reprogrammed and restrictions on future programming and 
obligations. Completed field review forms must be submitted to Caltrans in accordance with Caltrans Local 
Assistance procedures.”

12 months from 
approval in the TIP1, but 
no less than 12 months 
prior to the obligation 
deadline of construction 
funds.

2
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Implementing agencies are required to submit a complete environmental 
package to Caltrans for all projects (except those determined Programmatic Categorical Exclusion as determined 
by Caltrans at the field review), twelve months prior to the obligation deadline for right of way or construction 
funds. This policy creates a more realistic time frame for projects to progress from the field review through the 
environmental and design process, to the right of way and construction phase. If the environmental process, as 
determined at the field review, will take longer than 12 months before obligation, the implementing agency is 
responsible for delivering the complete environmental submittal in a timely manner. Failure to comply with this 
provision could result in the funding being reprogrammed. The requirement does not apply to FTA transfers, 
regional operations projects or planning activities.” 

12 months prior to the 
obligation deadline for 
RW or Con funds. 
(No change)

3
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Obligation of federal funds may not occur for contracted activities (any 
combination of environmental/ design/ construction/ procurement activities performed outside the agency) until and 
unless an agency has an approved DBE program and methodology for the current federal fiscal year. Therefore, 
agencies with federal funds programmed in the TIP must have a current approved DBE Program and annual 
methodology (if applicable) in place prior to the fiscal year the federal funds are programmed in the TIP. 
STP/CMAQ funding for agencies without approved DBE methodology for the current year are subject to 
redirection to other projects after March 1. Agencies should begin the DBE process no later than January 1 to meet 
the March 1 deadline. Projects advanced under the Expedited Project Selection Process (EPSP) must have an 
approved DBE program and annual methodology for the current year (if applicable) prior to the advancement of 
funds.”

Approved program and 
methodology in place 
prior to the FFY the 
funds are programmed 
in the TIP. 

4
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “In order to ensure funds are obligated or transferred to FTA in a timely 
manner, the implementing agency is required to deliver a complete funding obligation / FTA Transfer request 
package to Caltrans Local Assistance by February 1 of the year the funds are listed in the TIP. Projects with 
complete packages delivered by February 1 of the programmed year will have priority for available OA, after ACA 
conversions that are included in the Obligation Plan. If the project is delivered after February 1 of the programmed 
year, the funds will not be the highest priority for obligation in the event of OA limitations, and will compete for 
limited OA with projects advanced from future years. Funding for which an obligation/ FTA transfer request is 
submitted after the February 1 deadline will lose its priority for OA, and be viewed as subject to reprogramming.”

February 1 of FY in 
which funds are 
programmed in the TIP.

Page B1 of B3

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Sub Req for Auth

Appendix B
Definitions of the Required Activities per Resolution 3606 (As revised July 23, 2008)

Req Proj Field Rev

Sub ENV package

Approved DBE Prog

Page 79Page 79Page 79Page 79



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index Definition Deadline
5

Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “STP and CMAQ funds are subject to an obligation/FTA transfer deadline of 
April 30 of the fiscal year the funds are programmed in the TIP. Implementing agencies are required to submit the 
completed request for obligation or FTA transfer to Caltrans Local Assistance by February 1 of the fiscal year the 
funds are programmed in the TIP, and receive an obligation/ FTA transfer of the funds by April 30 of the fiscal year 
programmed in the TIP. For example, projects programmed in FY 2007-08 of the TIP have an obligation/FTA 
transfer request submittal deadline (to Caltrans) of February 1, 2008 and an obligation/FTA transfer deadline of 
April 30, 2008. Projects programmed in FY 2008-09 have an obligation request submittal deadline (to Caltrans) of 
February 1, 2009 and an obligation/FTA transfer deadline of April 30, 2009. No extensions will be granted to the 
obligation deadline.”

April 30 of FY in which 
funds are programmed 
in the TIP.

6
Per MTC Resolution 3606, “The implementing agency must execute and return the Program Supplement Agreement 
(PSA) to Caltrans in accordance with Caltrans Local Assistance procedures. The agency must contact Caltrans if the 
PSA is not received from Caltrans within 60 days of the obligation. This requirement does not apply to FTA 
transfers. Agencies that do not execute and return the PSA to Caltrans within the required Caltrans deadline will be 
unable to obtain future approvals for any projects, including obligation and payments, until all PSAs for that agency, 
regardless of fund source, meet the PSA execution requirement. Funds for projects that do not have an executed 
PSA within the required Caltrans deadline are subject to de-obligation by Caltrans.” 

Within 60 days of 
receipt of the PSA from 
Caltrans, and within six 
months from the actual 
obligation date. 2

7
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “For the Construction (CON) phase, the construction/equipment purchase 
contract must be advertised within 6 months of obligation and awarded within 9 months of obligation. However, 
regardless of the advertisement and award deadlines, agencies must still meet the invoicing deadline for construction 
funds. Failure to advertise and award a contract in a timely manner could result in missing the subsequent invoicing 
and reimbursement deadline, resulting in the loss of funding. Agencies must submit the notice of award to Caltrans 
in accordance with Caltrans Local Assistance procedures, with a copy also submitted to the applicable CMA. 
Agencies with projects that do not meet these award deadlines will have future programming and OA restricted until 
their projects are brought into compliance.  For FTA projects, funds must be approved/ awarded in an FTA Grant 
within one federal fiscal year following the federal fiscal year in which the funds were transferred to FTA.”

Advertised within 6 
months of obligation and 
awarded within 9 
months of obligation.

FTA Grant Award: 
Within 1 year of transfer 
to FTA.

8
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Funds for each federally funded (Environmental (ENV/ PA&ED), Preliminary 
Engineering (PE), Final Design (PS&E) and Right of Way (R/W) phase and for each federal program code within 
these phases, must be invoiced against at least once every six months following obligation. Funds that are not 
invoiced at least once every 12 months are subject to de-obligation. There is no guarantee that funds will be available 
to the project once de-obligated. Funds for the Construction (CON) phase, and for each federal program code within 
the construction phase, must be invoiced and reimbursed against at least once within 12 months of the obligation, 
and then invoiced at least once every 6-months there after. Funds that are not invoiced and reimbursed at least once 
every 12 months are subject to de-obligation by FHWA. 

For Con phase: Once 
within 12 months of 
Obligation and then once 
every 6 months 
thereafter, for each 
federal program code. 

There is no guarantee that funds will be available to the project once de-obligated. If a project does not have eligible 
expenses within a 6-month period, the agency must provide a written explanation to Caltrans Local Assistance for 
that six-month period and submit an invoice as soon as practicable to avoid missing the 12-month invoicing and 
reimbursement deadline. Agencies with projects that have not been invoiced against and reimbursed within a 12-
month period, regardless of federal fund source, will have restrictions placed on future programming and OA until 
the project is properly invoiced. Funds that are not invoiced and reimbursed against at least once every 12 months 
are subject to de-obligation by FHWA.”

For all other phases: 
Once within 6 months 
following Obligation and 
then once every 6 
months thereafter, for 
each phase and federal 
program code.

Page B2 of B3

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Submit First Invoice / Next Invoice Due

Appendix B
Definitions of the Required Activities per Resolution 3606 (As revised July 23, 2008)

Obligate Funds/ Transfer to FTA

Execute PSA 

Advertise Contract /Award Contract/Award into FTA Grant

Page 80Page 80Page 80Page 80



Federal At Risk Report Status Date: December 31, 2013
Federally-Funded Locally-Sponsored Alameda County Projects

Index Definition Deadline

8a
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Most projects can be completed well within the state’s deadline for funding 
liquidation or FHWA’s ten-year proceed-to-construction requirement. Yet it is viewed negatively by both FHWA 
and the California Department of Finance for projects to remain inactive for more than twelve months. It is 
expected that funds for completed phases will be invoiced immediately for the phase, and projects will be closed 
out within six months of the final project invoice. Funds that are not invoiced and reimbursed at least once every 12 
months are subject to de-obligation by FHWA. There is no guarantee the funds will be available to the project once 
de-obligated.”

Funds must be invoiced 
and reimbursed against 
once every 12 months to 
remain active.

9
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Funds must be liquidated (fully expended, invoiced and reimbursed) within 
six years of obligation. California Government Codes 16304.1 and 16304.3 places additional restrictions on the 
liquidation of federal funds. Generally, federal funds must be liquidated (fully expended, invoiced and reimbursed) 
within 6 state fiscal years following the fiscal year in which the funds were appropriated. Funds that miss the 
state’s liquidation/ reimbursement deadline will lose State Budget Authority and will be de-obligated if not re-
appropriated by the State Legislature, or extended (for one year) in a Cooperative Work Agreement (CWA) with 
the California Department of Finance. This requirement does not apply to FTA transfers.”

Funds must be 
liquidated within six 
years of obligation.

10
Per MTC Resolution 3606-Revised, “Implementing Agencies must fully expend federal funds on a phase one year 
prior to the estimated completion date provided to Caltrans.  At the time of obligation, the implementing agency 
must provide Caltrans with an estimated completion date for that project phase. Any un-reimbursed federal funds 
remaining on the phase after the estimated completion date has passed, is subject to project funding adjustments by 
FHWA. Projects must be properly closed out within six months of final project invoice. Projects must proceed to 
construction within 10 years of federal authorization of the initial phase. Federal regulations require that federally 
funded projects proceed to construction within 10 years of initial federal authorization of any phase of the project. 

Est. Completion Date:  
For each phase, fully 
expend federal funds 1 
year prior to date 
provided to Caltrans. 

Furthermore, if a project is canceled, or fails to proceed to construction in 10 years, FHWA will de-obligate any 
remaining funds, and the agency is required to repay any reimbursed funds. If a project is canceled as a result of the 
environmental process, the agency does not have to repay reimbursed costs for the environmental activities. 
However, if a project is canceled after the environmental process is complete, or a project does not proceed to 
construction within 10 years, the agency is required to repay all reimbursed federal funds. Agencies with projects 
that have not been closed out within 6 months of final invoice will have future programming and OA restricted 
until the project is closed out or brought back to good standing by providing written explanation to Caltrans Local 
Assistance, the applicable CMA and MTC.”

Project Close-out: 
Within 6 months of  
final project invoice.

Notes:
1 Approval in the TIP: For administrative/ minor TIP Amendments it is the date of Caltrans approval.  For formal 

TIP Amendments, it is the date of FHWA approval.
2 Per DOT letter from Caltrans Local Assistance to MPOs, regarding “Procedural Changes in Managing 

Obligations”, dated 9/15/05.

Page B3 of B3

Alameda CTC Project Monitoring

Appendix B
Definitions of the Required Activities per Resolution 3606 (As revised July 23, 2008)

Inactive Projects

Liquidate Funds

Estimated Completion Date/Project Closeout

Page 81Page 81Page 81Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 82Page 82Page 82Page 82



TFCA County Program Manager Funds
At Risk Report 

Report Date:  December 31, 2013

Page 1 of 4

Project 
No. Sponsor Project Title Balances Required

Activity
Date
Due

Activity 
Completed 

(Date or Y/N)
Notes

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/7/10 12/03/09
350,000$            Project Start Sep-09 Nov-09

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 01/13/13 Yes
236,535$            Final Report Apr-13 Apr-13

Final Reimbursement 01/31/14
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 06/01/12

100,000$            Project Start Dec-12 Oct-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13

-$                       Final Report Feb-14
Final Reimbursement 12/31/14

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 01/04/12
256,000$            Project Start Dec-12 Nov-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13
82,114$              Final Report Feb-14

Final Reimbursement 12/31/14

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 02/27/12
190,000.00$       Project Start Dec-12 Feb-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13
-$                       Final Report Feb-14

Final Reimbursement 12/31/14
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 07/05/11

245,000$            Project Start Dec-12 Jan-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13

123,214$            Final Report Feb-14
Final Reimbursement 12/31/14

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 2/6/13
57,507$              Project Start Dec-13 Jul-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14
-$                       Final Report Jan-14

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

90,000$              Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/16

-$                       Final Report Jan-17
Final Reimbursement 12/31/17

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
155,000$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

76,000$              Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
190,000$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

Expenditure deadline Nov '13
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Feb '14

14ALA04 Fremont Arterial Management 
Stevenson Blvd

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA05 Hayward "A" Street Signal 
Upgrade and 
Coordination

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA01 Alameda 
County

Fairmont Rd Class II 
Bike Lanes

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '16
3-year expenditure period 
approved 

14ALA02 Berkeley Berkeley Citywide 
Bicycle Parking Project

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

Hayward

Expenditure deadline Nov '13
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Feb '14

12ALA02 Pleasanton Pleasanton Trip 
Reduction Program 
(FY 12/13)

Expenditure deadline Oct '14
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Jan '14

11ALA13 Alameda County 
Guaranteed Ride Home 
(GRH) Program 
(FYs 11/12 & 12/13)

Albany

Expenditure deadline Nov '13
Expenditures not complete
FMR due  Feb '14

North Fremont Arterial 
Management 

Buchanan Bike Path

11ALA06

Alameda CTC

RED ZONE (Milestone deadline within 4 months)  

11ALA03

Fremont

1st extension approved Oct '11
Expenditures complete
Final Invoice received
FMR received

09ALA07 AC Transit Easy Pass Transit 
Incentive Program

Expenditure deadline Nov '13
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Feb '14

11ALA08 Clawiter Road Arterial 
Management 

7.7C

Page 83Page 83Page 83Page 83



TFCA County Program Manager Funds
At Risk Report 

Report Date:  December 31, 2013

Page 2 of 4

Project 
No. Sponsor Project Title Balances Required

Activity
Date
Due

Activity 
Completed 

(Date or Y/N)
Notes

        

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
51,000$              Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

88,000$              Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
118,000$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

60,000$              Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
123,821$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

130,000$            Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14
120,000$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14

47,000$              Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/8/09 12/16/08
420,000$            Project Start Jan-09 Jun-09

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 12/22/13 Yes
236,372$            Final Report Jun-14

Final Reimbursement 12/31/14
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/7/10 7/7/09

400,000$            Project Start Oct-09 Jul-09
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 12/22/13 Yes

327,145$            Final Report Jun-14
Final Reimbursement 12/31/14

14ALA06 Oakland

Webster Street Corridor 
Enhancements Project

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

Second BART to 
Campus Shuttle
(FY 13/14)

14ALA14 LAVTA Rte 53 Ace to BART 
Shuttle
(FYs 13/14 and 14/15)

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA15 LAVTA Rte 54 Ace to BART 
Shuttle
(FYs 13/14 and 14/15)

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

Alameda CTC

14ALA07 Oakland CityRacks Bicycle 
Parking Program Phase 
10

14ALA11 AC Transit Route 51 Transit Signal 
Priority (TSP)

RED ZONE (Milestone deadline within 4 months), continued

09ALA01 Alameda CTC Webster St SMART 
Corridors

2nd extension approved Sept 
'12
Expenditures complete
Final Invoice to be received
FMR due Jun '14

08ALA01 3rd extension approved Sept '12
Expenditures complete
Final Invoice to be received
FMR due Jun '14

Adeline St Bikeway Gap 
Closure 

YELLOW ZONE (Milestone deadline within 5-7 Months)

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA09 Pleasanton Pleasanton Trip 
Reduction Program 
(FYs 13/14 and 14/15)

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA10 San Leandro San Leandro LINKS 
Shuttle
(FYs 13/14 and 14/15)

Agreement to be executed
Expenditure deadline Oct '15

14ALA13 Cal State - 
East Bay

Page 84Page 84Page 84Page 84



TFCA County Program Manager Funds
At Risk Report 

Report Date:  December 31, 2013

Page 3 of 4

Project 
No. Sponsor Project Title Balances Required

Activity
Date
Due

Activity 
Completed 

(Date or Y/N)
Notes

        

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/17/11 07/09/10
100,000$            Project Start Mar-11 Jul-10

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/28/12 Yes
100,000$            Final Report Jul-15

Final Reimbursement 12/31/13 Oct-12
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/17/11 01/26/11

614,000$            Project Start Mar-11 Dec-10
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/28/13 Yes

614,000$            Final Report Sep-15
Final Reimbursement 12/31/14 Jan-13

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 06/13/12
230,900$            Project Start Dec-12 Dec-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/14
-$                       Final Report Feb-15

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 01/24/12

40,000$              Project Start Dec-12 Dec-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/14

11,500$              Final Report Feb-15
Final Reimbursement 12/31/15

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 03/08/12
125,000$            Project Start Dec-12 May-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/14
36,489$              Final Report Feb-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 06/01/12

50,300.00$         Project Start Dec-12 Feb-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/14

-$                       Final Report Sep-15
Final Reimbursement 12/31/15

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14 11/8/13
180,000$            Project Start Dec-14 Jul-13

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16
TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14 7/1/13

190,000$            Project Start Dec-14
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15

-$                       Final Report Jan-16
Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

TFCA Award Agreement Executed Jan-14 7/1/13
270,000$            Project Start Dec-14

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/29/15
-$                       Final Report Jan-16

Final Reimbursement 12/31/16

Expenditure deadline Oct '15
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Jan '16

Traffic Signal Controller 
Upgrade and 
Synchronization

Hayward 1st extension approved Oct '13
Expenditure deadline Nov '14
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Sept '15

11ALA07

1st extension approved Oct '13
Expenditure deadline Nov '14
Expenditures not complete
FMR due date Dec '15
(2 years post-project)

11ALA01

Alameda 
County

11ALA09 Oakland Traffic Signal 
Synchronization along 
Martin Luther King Jr. 
Way

1st extension approved Oct '13
Expenditure deadline Nov '14
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Feb '15

10ALA04

GREEN ZONE (Milestone deadline beyond 7 months)

14ALA08 Oakland/
Alameda CTC

11ALA02

Park Street Corridor 
Operations Improvement

14ALA03 East Bay 
Regional Park 
District

Iron Horse Trail 
Dublin/Pleasanton BART 
Santa Rita Road

Expenditures complete
Final invoice paid
FMR due July 2015, after overall 
I-80 ICM project is operational. 

Alameda CTC10ALA02 I-80 Corridor Arterial 
Management

1st extension approved Oct '13
Expenditure deadline Nov '14
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Feb '15

Alameda

Post-project Monitoring/
Retiming activities for 
Arterial Mgmt project 
10ALA04

Mattox Road 
Bike Lanes

1st extension approved 9/27/12
Expenditures complete
FMR due Sept 2015
(2 years post-project)

Hayward

East Bay Greenway Expenditure deadline Oct '15
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Jan '16

14ALA12 Alameda CTC Alameda County 
Guaranteed Ride Home 
and Transportation 
Demand Management 
Services Information
(FYs 13/14 and 14/15)

Expenditure deadline Oct '15
Expenditures not complete
FMR due Jan '16

Page 85Page 85Page 85Page 85



TFCA County Program Manager Funds
At Risk Report 

Report Date:  December 31, 2013

Page 4 of 4

Project 
No. Sponsor Project Title Balances Required

Activity
Date
Due

Activity 
Completed 

(Date or Y/N)
Notes

        

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 11/08/11
194,000$            Project Start Dec-12 Aug-11

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13 Yes
194,000$            Final Report Feb-14 Oct-13

Final Reimbursement 12/31/14 Dec-13
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 11/08/11

52,000$              Project Start Dec-12 Sep-11
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13 Yes

52,000$              Final Report Dec-12 Dec-12
Final Reimbursement 12/31/13 Jun-13

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 1/5/12 11/08/11
47,500$              Project Start Dec-12 Jul-11

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 11/14/13 Yes
47,500$              Final Report Sep-13 Aug-13

Final Reimbursement 12/31/14 Oct-12
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 12/14/12

35,300$              Project Start Dec-13 Jul-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 Yes

35,300$              Final Report Sep-13 Sep-13
Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 Aug-13

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 2/6/13
56,350$              Project Start Dec-13 Sep-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 Yes
56,350$              Final Report Sep-13 Oct-13

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 Dec-13
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 1/9/13

144,346$            Project Start Dec-13 Jul-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 Yes

144,346$            Final Report Sep-13 Aug-13
Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 Jul-13

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 1/9/13
34,180$              Project Start Dec-13 Jul-12

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 Yes
34,180$              Final Report Sep-13 Aug-13

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 Jul-13
TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 1/9/13

30,700$              Project Start Dec-13 Jul-12
TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 Yes

30,700$              Final Report Sep-13 Aug-13
Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 Jul-13

TFCA Award Agreement Executed 2/1/13 5/17/13
1,430,000$         Project Start Dec-13 NA

TFCA Expended Expend Deadline Met? 10/17/14 NA
-$                       Final Report Sep-13 NA

Final Reimbursement 12/31/15 NA

Report Milestone Notes
Agreement Executed = Date TFCA Agreement executed by Alameda CTC
Project Start = Date of project initiation 
Expend Deadline Met? = Expenditures were completed by established deadline (Yes/No)
Final Report = Date final project reporting received by Alameda CTC
Final Reimbursement = Date final invoice paid by Alameda CTC

12ALA05 LAVTA ACE Shuttle Service - 
Route 53
(FY 12/13 Operations)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

11ALA12 San Leandro San Leandro 
LINKS Shuttle  
(FYs 11/12 & 12/13)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

12ALA07 BAAQMD Port Truck Replacement 
Program
(Model Years 2005/06) 

Agreement termination letter 
received from Air District 6/5/13. 
$1.43M to be included in 
FY14/15 fund estimate.

Transportation Demand 
Management 
Pilot Program
(FY 11/12)

11ALA05

12ALA01 Oakland Broadway Shuttle: Fri 
and Sat Evening 
Extended Service
(FY 12/13)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

Completed Projects (will be removed from the next monitoring report)

12ALA04 LAVTA Route 10 - Dublin/ 
Pleasanton BART 
to Livermore ACE 
Station and LLNL
(FY 12/13 Operations)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

Cal State - 
East Bay

11ALA04 CSUEB  - 2nd Campus 
to BART Shuttle
(FYs 11/12 & 12/13)

Cal State - 
East Bay

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

12ALA03 Cal State - 
East Bay

CSUEB Second Shuttle - 
Increased Service Hours
(FY 12/13)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

12ALA06 LAVTA ACE/BART Shuttle 
Service - Route 54 
(FY 12/13 Operations)

Expenditures complete
Final Invoice paid
FMR received

Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.8_Soundwall_Policy\7.8_Soundwall_Policy.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 7.8 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda County Freeway Soundwall Policy 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve revisions to the Alameda County Freeway Soundwall Policy

 

Summary 

Implementing soundwall projects involves lengthy lead times due to design constraints and 
identifying funding. The delivery of a retrofit soundwall project (wherein existing homes were 
in place prior to a freeway) also involves above average coordination and outreach efforts 
between the local agencies, property owners and other community stakeholders, Caltrans 
and the Alameda CTC. 

The existing Alameda County Freeway Soundwall Policy (Policy) adopted in 2002, is not 
consistent with the current project nomination / project deliver methodology for soundwall 
projects as well as how other transportation projects are advanced within Alameda County. 
The Policy also needs to be streamlined to increase its effectiveness and responsiveness to 
citizens’ request for noise barriers.  

The amended Policy will reflect the following responsibilities: 

Local Jurisdiction  

• Provide preliminary evaluation studies to evaluate whether the requested location 
qualifies for a retrofit soundwall. 

• Provide an agency resolution that confirms the community support for the proposed 
project. 

• Prepare a Noise Barrier Scope Summary Report (NBSSR) if applying for STIP funds. 

Alameda CTC  

• Forward project requests received to the respective jurisdictions 
• Evaluate preliminary studies conducted by Local jurisdictions to ensure they are 

eligible to receive Federal / State funds 
• Coordinate NBSSR study requests with Caltrans’ Project Initiation Document (PID) work 

plan process 

Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.8_Soundwall_Policy\7.8_Soundwall_Policy.docx 

 

 

Approving the amendments will result in  

• Increasing the effectiveness of the Policy 
• Increased responsiveness to citizens request for consideration for noise barriers 
• Maintaining consistent project nominations process to be funded through the State 

Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
• Streamline the process to align with the current project delivery methodology 

Upon approval, the Soundwall Policy issues considered in this memo will result in a new 
Alameda CTC Soundwall Policy and will supersede the existing Alameda County CMA 
Freeway Soundwall Policy. 

Background 

Caltrans Retrofit Soundwall Program 

In the 1980s the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) was administered by the 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and included a subprogram (HB311) to address 
retrofit sound wall candidate projects. The program funded soundwall projects to mitigate 
noise impacts for pre-existing residences after freeways were constructed (before the advent 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA) in the early 1970s).  The program arose because of the interest in established 
communities, in various parts of California, for noise mitigation from adjacent freeways.  The 
policy justification arose because freeways built before CEQA and NEPA may not have 
considered soundwall components.  Those statutes mandated that environmental impacts 
be considered in the construction of public improvements – and implied such impacts should 
be mitigated where reasonably feasible. 

The retrofit soundwall program required Caltrans to develop a priority list of soundwall 
improvements, and to fund them in priority order.  The total cost of all the projects on 
Caltrans statewide retrofit soundwall list was estimated to cost between $200 to $300 million 
range (at that time).   Staff has the understanding that all the eligible projects that were on 
the retrofit list in Alameda County have been completed.  

HB 311 program was eliminated with the passage of SB 45 (1997) legislation which 
restructured the STIP programming process.  

Under the existing STIP process, new capital projects (that meet STIP eligibility criteria), 
including retrofit soundwalls, could compete for funding through the STIP process. 

The Alameda CTC continues to periodically receive requests from residents for soundwall 
projects to mitigate existing freeway noise.  Based on requests received in the past, the 
ACCMA approved the Alameda County Freeway Soundwall Policy (Policy) in 2002. Retrofit 
soundwall requests within Alameda County are currently reviewed and evaluated by the 
Alameda CTC consistent with the Policy.  

Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.8_Soundwall_Policy\7.8_Soundwall_Policy.docx 

 

 

The Policy is based on identifying locations where soundwalls would effectively mitigate noise 
and also be eligible for federal funding. The primary criteria that are considered to evaluate 
retrofit soundwall projects include: 

• The houses were constructed prior to the freeway, 
• The existing noise level is above 65 decibels, 
• A soundwall would reduce noise by at least 5 decibels, and 
• The soundwall could be constructed within a reasonable cost (currently 

identified as $45,000 per residence). 

Implementing soundwall projects involves lengthy lead times due to design constraints and 
identifying funding. The delivery of a retrofit soundwall project also involves above average 
coordination and outreach efforts between the local agencies, property owners and other 
community stakeholders, Caltrans and the Alameda CTC. 

Policy Issue - Roles and Responsibilities to Deliver Retrofit Soundwall Projects  

Retrofit soundwall projects require a unique mix of participation from multiple stakeholders 
in the delivery process. Caltrans is the owner and operator of all freeways and freeway 
facilities (soundwalls included) in the State of California. The Alameda CTC is responsible 
for prioritizing STIP funds and has assisted in reviewing and evaluating retrofit soundwall 
requests in the past. The local jurisdiction the soundwall would be located in must also be 
involved from the time of the initial request. The local jurisdiction needs to work with 
residents, community groups and other stakeholders and provide advocacy and 
resources (staff and funding) to deliver and construct the projects they support. Similar to 
other transportation project priorities, local agencies need to nominate soundwall 
projects for STIP funding. In the past, organization structure and budget allowed for 
Caltrans to provide certain project delivery requirements such as initial evaluation of 
proposed soundwall locations and preparation of Noise Barrier Scope Summary Reports 
(NBSSR) (the scoping document required prior to a request for STIP funds). The current 
structure of Caltrans is no longer capable of providing the resources for these services 
without committing additional financial resources. Therefore, it is recommended that the 
Policy be amended to reflect the current project delivery process for retrofit soundwalls, 
including the additional financial responsibilities required by project sponsors.  

Policy Issue - Initial Evaluation of Retrofit Soundwall Requests 

The existing Policy defined an initial step in the evaluation of a retrofit soundwall request 
to gauge feasibility. This initial step was called a “pre-NBSSR” and was intended to provide 
an initial low cost checklist based evaluation on the likelihood a project location would 
meet the base criteria of the soundwall policy (houses preceeded freeway facility, noise 
level, effectiveness of wall, and cost effectiveness).  In the past, organization structure 
and budget allowed for Caltrans to provide certain project delivery requirements such as 
an initial evaluation of proposed soundwall locations. This step was included to avoid 
completing a costly NBSSR study for a project that would not likely meet certain minimum 

Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.8_Soundwall_Policy\7.8_Soundwall_Policy.docx 

 

 

project requirements. The current structure of Caltrans is no longer capable of providing 
this evaluation. Therefore, it is recommended that the Policy be amended to reflect the 
current project delivery process for retrofit soundwalls, including providing local agencies 
with guidance and required documentation to establish the feasibility of a proprosed 
retrofit soundwall project.  

Policy Issue - Funding Retrofit Soundwalls Projects 

One of the biggest challenges for implementing retrofit soundwall projects is the 
availability (or rather lack of) fund source types. Retrofit soundwalls are eligible to be 
funded with State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds, Federal Surface 
Transportation Program (Federal STP) and Local funds (Measure B Local Streets and 
Roads). Alameda County has already committed approximately $200 Million of STIP funds 
from future cycles. The county shares of STIP funding received by Alameda County over 
the past several years have varied between $0 to 30 Million per cycle (biennial). Federal 
STP funds have been prioritized to fund One Bay Area Grant projects including road 
rehabilitation, bike, pedestrian and transit oriented development improvements. Local 
funds such as Measure B Local Streets and Roads direct distribution funds, which are 
assigned at the local agency level, could fund retrofit soundwall projects. Reviewing the 
past prioritization of projects for these limited fund sources, retrofit soundwall projects 
have not competed well against other transportation priorities within the County. 

In summary, the amended Policy will reflect the following responsibilities: 

Local Jurisdiction  

1. Provide preliminary evaluation studies to evaluate whether the requested location 
qualifies for a retrofit soundwall. 

2. Provide an agency resolution that confirms the community support for the proposed 
project. 

3. Prepare an NBSSR if applying for STIP funds. 

Alameda CTC  

1. Forward project requests received to the respective jurisdictions 
2. Evaluate preliminary studies conducted by Local jurisdictions to ensure they are 

eligible to receive Federal / State funds 
3. Coordinate NBSSR study requests with Caltrans’ PID work plan process 

Existing Requests and Status 

The Alameda CTC over the past decade has received close to fifty (50) soundwall requests 
from various parts of the county. Based on initial evaluations, nine (9) locations have been 
approved as potential locations where a soundwall may be constructed. Out of these, eight 
(8) locations are in the City of Oakland and one (1) is in the City of San Leandro. As a next 

Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.8_Soundwall_Policy\7.8_Soundwall_Policy.docx 

 

 

step the jurisdictions were required to provide the Alameda CTC petitions signed by residents 
adjacent to the proposed soundwall project confirming community support of the project. 
Alameda CTC has received two (2) signed petitions. 

The NBSSR studies for these two locations have been included in Caltrans’ 3 years Project 
Initiation Document (PID) Work Plan request for Alameda County. In order for NBSSR work to 
proceed funding needs to be identified for both the study work and Caltrans oversight costs. 
The approved nine locations will be grandfathered into the revised Policy and would not 
need to go through a pre-approval process again. 

The Policy will consider soundwall locations that meet the federal (4) criteria listed in the 
memo above (Retrofit Soundwalls). Any noise impacts as a result of other improvements 
being constructed will be required to be addressed through environmental review and 
permiting processes.  

The Programs and Projects Committee also discussed the scenario where developments that 
have been constructed, after the freeway has been constructed, and are impacted by 
increasing traffic noise. Staff acknowledges that although such cases may not be covered 
under the Retrofit Policy (due to Federal eligibility requirements), a jurisdiction could pursue 
other fund sources that may allow for this scenario, such as Measure B Local Streets and 
Roads funds, to develop a noise barrier / mitigate noise at the impacted location. 
Information regarding these areas will be included in the policy. 

Upon approval, the Soundwall Policy issues considered in this memo will result in a new 
Alameda CTC Soundwall Policy and will supersede the existing Alameda County CMA 
Freeway Soundwall Policy. 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

 
Staff Contact 

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director, Programming and Projects 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

 

Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 7.9 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF): Status of Technology Program 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the VRF Technology Program

 

Summary 

The goal of the VRF program is to sustain the County’s transportation network and reduce 
traffic congestion and vehicle related pollution. The program includes four categories of 
projects to achieve this, including: 
 

• Local Road Improvement and Repair Program (60%) 
• Transit for Congestion Relief (25%) 
• Local Transportation Technology (10%) 
• Pedestrian and Bicyclist Access and Safety Program (5%) 

 
In 2011, the Commission established the policy that the VRF Local Transportation Technology 
funding would fund the SMART Corridors Program.  This policy is proposed to be further 
refined in the following item 7.10, VRF Local Transportation Technology Program Policy.  The 
goal of this policy is to improve the revenue collection and funding required to support 
capital investments and ongoing operational and maintenance requirements that benefit 
corridors with technology projects such as the Smart Corridors Program. 
 
This Memorandum provides information on the Local Transportation Technology component 
(a.k.a. SMART Corridors) of the VRF program. 

Background 

The SMART Corridors Program consists of capital investment and operations & maintenance 
of equipment used to improve the performance of the transportation systems, by promoting 
efficient use of the existing roadway, highway, and transit systems.  The goal of the SMART 
Corridors Program is to better manage congestion and incidents, improve transportation 
safety, mobility and efficiency along various corridors, and efficiently operate and manage 
express lanes, emergency services, and transit resources. 

Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status.docx 

 

 

 
The SMART Corridors Program field elements support the following corridors: 

• East Bay SMART Corridors  
o Interstate 80 (I-80)/San Pablo Avenue (SPA) Corridor 
o Interstate 880 (I-880) Corridor 
o International Boulevard/Telegraph Avenue/East 14th Street (INTEL) Corridor 

• Interstate 680 Corridor - Express Lane Support 
• Interstate 580 Corridors - Express Lane Support (future) 

 
The East Bay SMART Corridors (EBSC) Program is a cooperative effort by the Alameda CTC 
and 17 other partner agencies to operate and manage a multi-modal Advanced 
Transportation Management System (ATMS) to support three field elements along the I-
80/SPA, I-880, & INTEL corridors.  The field elements include: 
 

• Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) – Fixed cameras mounted on poles to monitor local 
street traffic flow conditions as a way to confirm actual traffic conditions and to 
implement appropriate traffic management strategies during an incident. 

• Non-Intrusive Vehicle Detection System (VDS) – a microwave motion sensor to detect 
moving vehicles and provide traffic count data. 

• Transit System Priority (TSP) equipment – Equipment that communicates to traffic 
signals to provide an early green and a green extension for Rapid Bus transit vehicles. 

 
Details of typical field elements at an intersection are shown in Attachment A. The data from 
the field elements and local Traffic Management Centers (TMC) are connected to a 
centralized EBSC server through leased wire-lines and wireless communication modems.  In 
the Tri-Valley corridor, CCTV and VDS data from the cities of Dublin, Livermore and 
Pleasanton is accessed through a leased wire-line so Tri-Valley information can be displayed 
on the EBSC website (http://www.smartcorridors.com).   
 
The I-80 Integrated Corridor Management (ICM) project is in the process of rehabilitating the 
I-80/San Pablo Avenue (SPA) SMART Corridor equipment, as part of the approximately 20 
mile long project between the I-80/580/880 interchange to just south of the Carquinez Bridge.  
A new I-80 ICM Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was signed by 14 stakeholders along 
the I-80 corridor in May 2012.  Per the MOU, equipment and assets in Contra Costa County 
Right-of-Way (ROW) were relinquished to Contra Costa cities and Contra Costa County.  In 
addition, equipment and assets in Caltrans ROW, in Alameda County, were relinquished to 
Caltrans.   
 
The ongoing operation and maintenance (O&M) of the EBSC equipment is provided by a 
routine maintenance and emergency service contract. The O&M contract was authorized 
by the Commission in October 2012.  The required maintenance services include annual 
cleaning, calibration, semi-annual inspection and troubleshooting and performing 

Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status\7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status.docx 

 

 

emergency repair of EBSC field elements.   Emergency repair and maintenance services 
include responding to knock-downs, thefts, collisions, reported failures and malfunction or 
other abnormal conditions. 
 
The I-880 Corridor and the INTEL Corridor equipment are included in the O&M services 
contract.   The maintenance services are underway in these corridors, providing cleaning, 
calibration and trouble-shooting for the field equipment. This ongoing maintenance of EBSC 
equipment will ultimately reduce the operations costs for the system, by providing reliable 
and updated equipment.   It is anticipated that EBSC equipment in the Caltrans ROW 
associated with the I-880 ICM project will be relinquished to Caltrans in the future. 
 
The I-680 Southbound Express Lane also requires maintenance and emergency repairs of 
intelligent transportation system (ITS) elements, such as dynamic message signs (DMS), 
remote traffic monitoring stations (RTMS), in-lay traffic monitoring stations (TMS), Closed Circuit 
Television (CCTV), communication and power connections.  The I-680 Express Lane has been 
in operation since September 2010 and its annual operations and maintenance costs have 
been funded with a combination of toll revenue, federal grants, and other local funds.  VRF 
funds will support the routine maintenance and emergency on-call repairs of the ITS 
elements to effectively manage traffic congestion in this express lane corridor.  The toll data 
center (TDC) of the I-680 Express Lane and the data center of the EBSC are collocated for 
efficient management of these ITS projects. The future I-580 Express Lanes are also 
anticipated to use VRF Technology funding for scope similar to the I-680 Express Lanes. 
 

Fiscal Impact: The SMART Corridor program capital investment and operations & 
maintenance budget is approximately $1.0 million annually. 

Attachments 

A. East Bay SMART Corridor (EBSC) Elements and Communications Features 
 

Staff Contact 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Hank Haugse, Senior Project Manager 

Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95

mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org
mailto:hhaugse@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96



TS
P 

TS
P 

Re
ce

iv
er

 
C

C
TV

 

C
C

TV
 

C
ITY

 TM
C

s 

C
O

-L
O

C
A

TIO
N

 S
ITE

 
& 

EB
SC

 S
ER

VE
RS

 

C
C

TV
 /

 T
SP

 /
 V

D
S/

 C
on

tro
lle

r /
 C

ab
in

et
 L

oc
at

io
n 

D
et

ai
l 

C
ity

 O
w

ne
d 

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Lin

e 

PG
&E

 S
er

vi
ce

  

T.1
 L

in
e 

VD
S 

A
T&

T W
ire

le
ss

 M
ob

ili
ty

 

Si
gn

al
  

C
on

tro
lle

r 

TS
P 

Ph
as

e 
Se

le
ct

or
 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 S
M

A
RT

 C
or

rid
or

 (E
BS

C
) E

le
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Fe
at

ur
es

 

VD
S 

EB
SC

 
C

ab
in

et
 

C
ity

 
O

w
ne

d
 

Si
gn

al
 

T1
 L

in
e 

TS
P 

Sy
st

em
 S

ta
tu

s 
 

Da
ta

  

A
C

 TR
A

N
SI

T 

EB
SC

 W
EB

SI
TE

 

Vi
de

o 
C

on
tro

lle
r 

EB
SC

 
Sw

itc
h 

C
ity

’s
 

Tr
af

fic
 

Si
gn

al
 

se
rv

er
 

C
C

TV
 T1

 

C
C

TV
 T1

 

C
C

TV
 T1

 

DS
3 

hu
b 

VD
S 

TS
P 

Em
itt

er
- 

Lo
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
fro

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
bu

s b
eh

in
d

 m
ar

qu
ee

.  

Fr
on

t V
ie

w
 

C
C

TV
 

C
lo

se
d

 C
irc

ui
t T

V
 

TS
P 

Tr
a

ns
it 

Si
gn

a
l P

rio
rit

y 

V
D

S 
V

eh
ic

le
 D

et
ec

tio
n 

Sy
st

em
 

TM
C

 
Tr

af
fic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

en
te

r 
T1

 
A

T&
T 

C
om

m
un

ic
a

tio
n 

Lin
e 

Le
ge

nd
 

7.9A

Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent Items\7.10_VRF_Tech_Policy\7.10_VRF_Tech_Policy_20140106.docx  

 

Memorandum 7.10 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF): Local Transportation Technology 
Program Policy 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Policy for administration of the VRF Local Transportation 
Technology Program as a direct local distribution program

 

Summary 

One of the original objectives of the VRF Program, approved by Alameda County Voters in 
November 2010, was to create a reliable source of funding to support ongoing operational 
requirements for technology related capital investments that benefit traffic corridors within 
Alameda County. The Local Transportation Technology Program category defined in the VRF 
Expenditure Plan has funded, and is proposed to continue to fund, the operation, 
maintenance and ongoing management of transportation technology projects such as the 
“Smart Corridors Program” which is operated by the Alameda CTC. The goal of the proposed 
VRF Local Transportation Technology Program Policy is to create an efficient method to 
allocate funding for ongoing operational requirements for Alameda CTC’s technology 
related capital investments that benefit traffic corridors in Alameda County such as the 
“Smart Corridors Program”. The proposed policy is consistent with the original intent of the 
VRF Program.  Upon approval by the Commission, the policy will be incorporated into the 
next update of the Alameda CTC’s Strategic Plan (FY14/15).  

Background 

Measure F, the Alameda County VRF Program, was approved by the voters of Alameda 
County in November 2010. The fee generates about $11.5 million per year through a $10 per 
year fee on each vehicle registration in Alameda County. Collection of the $10 per year VRF 
started in May 2011.  The goals of the VRF Program are to sustain the County’s transportation 
network and reduce traffic congestion and vehicle related pollution.  

The program includes four categories of projects to achieve this, including: 

• Local Road Improvement and Repair Program (60%) 
• Transit for Congestion Relief (25%) 

Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent Items\7.10_VRF_Tech_Policy\7.10_VRF_Tech_Policy_20140106.docx 

 

• Local Transportation Technology (10%) 
• Pedestrian and Bicyclist Access and Safety Program (5%) 

The VRF Local Transportation Technology Program Policy provides a process by which the 
Alameda CTC will administer the Local Transportation Technology Program as a direct Local 
Distribution program. The goal of this policy is to create a reliable source of funding to 
support ongoing operational requirements for Alameda CTC’s technology related capital 
investments that benefit traffic corridors in Alameda County such as the “Smart Corridors 
Program”. 

The proposed policy is consistent with the original intent of the VRF Program which is to 
create a reliable source of funding to support ongoing operational requirements for 
technology related capital investments that benefit traffic corridors in Alameda County. The 
policy is further detailed in Attachment A. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact. 

 
Attachments 

A. Vehicle Registration Fee Local Transportation Technology Program Policy 
 

Staff Contact 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100

mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


Vehicle Registration Fee  
Local Transportation Technology Program  

POLICY 

PURPOSE 

The goal of the Vehicle Registration Fee Local Transportation Technology 
Program Policy is to create an efficient method for revenue collection and 
funding of the support required for ongoing operational requirements for 
Alameda CTC’s technology related capital investments that benefit traffic 
corridors in Alameda County such as the “Smart Corridors Program”.  

The Policy specifies that the Local Transportation Technology Program funds will 
be distributed as a direct Local Distribution program to the Alameda CTC.  

POLICY PROVISIONS 

A. The Local Transportation Technology Program will be administered as a 
Direct Local Distribution Program to the Alameda CTC. 

B. The Commission will have the authority to program the Local 
Transportation Technology funds directly to the operation and 
maintenance of ongoing transportation technology projects such as the 
“Smart Corridors Program” operated by the Alameda CTC. 

C. If excess programming capacity remains after addressing all ongoing 
operation and maintenance costs required of existing technology corridor 
operations, the Commission may authorize the programming of excess 
funds to other eligible projects within the Local Transportation Technology 
Program category. 

7.10A

Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.11_Cap_Trade\7.11_Cap_Trade.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 7.11 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Cap and Trade Program Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the Cap and Trade Program

 

Summary 

California’s greenhouse gas (GHG) cap-and-trade program is a central element of 
California's Global Warming Solutions Act (Assembly Bill 32) and covers major sources of GHG 
emissions in the state such as refineries, power plants, industrial facilities and transportation 
fuels. The regulation includes an enforceable GHG cap that will decline over time. The 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) distributes allowances, which are tradable permits, 
equal to the emission allowed under the cap. The Alameda CTC supported AB 574 
(Lowenthal) which required that Cap and Trade funds derived from motor fuels be used for 
transportation purposes that support GHG reductions, supporting a nexus between the 
source and use of the funds.  AB 574 included the advocacy principles of the Transportation 
Coalition for Livable Communities, which was developed and supported by transportation 
interest and advocacy groups across the state. 

On April 16, 2013, the CARB released its draft Cap & Trade Investment Plan and adopted a 
final plan on April 25th with no revisions.  The final expenditure plan was submitted to the 
Governor for his May 2013 Budget Revise. However, in the 2013/14 budget, the State 
borrowed from these funds and did not allocate them for other purposes.  It is anticipated 
that the Governor’s proposed 2014/15 budget, which will be released in January 2014 will 
include proposals for how to allocate the funds. 

Over the past few months the Bay Area Congestion Management Agencies have been 
collaborating with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) regarding 
development of the allocation methods for Cap and Trade funds that come to the region. At 
its December 2013 meeting, the MTC approved the Cap and Trade Funding Framework and 
Project Selection Guideline Development Process. 

 

Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103

http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/ab32/ab32.htm
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_0551-0600/ab_574_bill_20130415_amended_asm_v98.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_0551-0600/ab_574_bill_20130415_amended_asm_v98.pdf
http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/DraftCapandTradeInvestmentPlan.pdf


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.11_Cap_Trade\7.11_Cap_Trade.docx 

 

 

Background 

The Bay Area’s Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS), 
known as Plan Bay Area (PBA), was adopted in July 2013 and assumes $3.1 billion dollars in 
Cap and Trade revenue. These funds represent the Bay Area’s share of funds that are 
expected to be administered by the state’s metropolitan planning organizations. 

PBA includes a description of eligible uses, including, but not limited to “transit operating and 
capital rehabilitation/replacement, local street and road rehabilitation, goods movement, 
and transit-oriented affordable housing, consistent with the focused land use strategy 
outlined in Plan Bay Area.”  PBA further notes that the “share of funds reserved for these 
purposes, the specific project sponsors and investment requirements will be subject to further 
deliberation with partner agencies and public input following adoption of Plan Bay Area.” 

Regarding support for communities of concern, PBA states that Cap and Trade revenues will 
be allocated to specific programs through a transparent and inclusive regional public 
process that “will specifically ensure that at least 25 percent of these revenues will be spent 
to benefit disadvantaged communities in the Bay Area, and to achieve the goals of Plan Bay 
Area.” 

In addition, PBA states that the plan will direct a “significant portion” of the revenue 
generated from Cap and Trade to unmet transit needs. 

MTC released a proposal in November 2013 that identified specific categories of 
expenditures for cap and trade funds that aligns with the focused land use strategy outlined 
in Plan Bay Area. The proposal also includes principles that, among others, require all 
investment categories to include funding that benefits disadvantaged communities as 
defined by MTC’s Communities of Concern analysis that was included in Plan Bay Area.  

At its December 2013 meeting, the MTC approved the Cap and Trade Funding Framework 
and Project Selection Guideline Development Process. 

Table 1: investment categories for Cap and Trade Funding included the following focus areas 

Funding Category Amount        
($ x million) 

 

  

1.   Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grants Program 875 

2.   Transit Operating and Efficiency Program 500 

3.   One Bay Area Grants 1,050 

4.   Climate Initiatives 

    

275 

 5.   Goods Movement 450 

TOTAL $3,150 

Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.11_Cap_Trade\7.11_Cap_Trade.docx 

 

 

The Transit Core Capacity program includes investment of $875 million over the life of Plan 
Bay Area and focuses on BART, SFMTA, and AC Transit – transit operators that carry 80% of 
region’s passengers and account for approximately 75% of the plan’s estimated transit 
capital shortfall, and also includes funding for the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
(VTA) system. 

The Transit Operating and Efficiency Program includes investment of $500 million and is 
distributed based on a formula that provides 40% of the funding to core capacity transit 
operators (AC Transit, BART, and SFMTA) and 60% to the remaining transit operators. The 
formula for distribution within the two operator categories is as follows: 50% based on 
ridership; 25% based on low-income ridership; and 25% based on minority ridership (see 
attached material for additional detail). 

The One Bay Area Grants category includes investment of $1,050 million towards 
transportation improvements concentrated near high quality transit and higher density 
housing focusing on complete streets, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, and streetscape 
improvements. 

The Climate Initiatives Program is a multi-agency program focused on investments in 
technology advancements and incentives for travel options that help the Bay Area meet the 
GHG emission reduction targets related to SB375. This category includes $75 Million funding to 
support the county Safe Routes to School programs 

Goods movement investments fall into two categories: (1) projects focused on improving the 
efficiency of the movement of goods within and through the region, and (2) mitigation 
projects that reduce the associated environmental impacts on local communities. MTC is 
currently working with Caltrans and selected Congestion Management Agencies (including 
the Alameda CTC) to update the regional goods movement program and to inform the 
California Freight Mobility Plan. 

The proposed principles and a set of investment categories for Cap and Trade Funding are 
listed in Attachment A. The process for developing the guidelines for various categories are 
detailed in the Project Selection Guidelines and will occur in 2014 (and are further detailed in 
Attachment B). 

 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments 

A. Principles and investment categories for Cap and Trade Funding 
B. Process for developing the Project Selection Guidelines 

 
Staff Contact 

Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.11_Cap_Trade\7.11_Cap_Trade.docx 

 

 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106

mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


Date: December 18, 2013 
W.I.: 1515

Referred by: PAC

Attachment A
Resolution No. 4130 
Page 1 of 3 

Attachment A 

Bay Area Cap and Trade Funding Framework  

Cap and Trade Reserve Investment Principles  
1. Cap and Trade Funds must have a strong nexus to Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction
2. Distribution of the estimated $3.1 billion in available funds will serve to strategically

advance  the implementation of  Plan Bay Area and related regional policies
3. Investment Categories and related Policy Initiatives will be structured to provide co-

benefits and opportunities to leverage investments across categories and from multiple
sources (public and private).

4. All Investment Categories should include funding that benefits disadvantaged
communities.  The communities are defined as MTC’s Communities of Concern, or as
refined during the guideline development process.

Cap and Trade Reserve Funding Categories 

1. Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grants Program
Plan Bay Area identifies a remaining need of $17 billion over nearly three decades to achieve an 
optimal state of repair for the region’s public transit network.  The plan’s in-fill and transit-
oriented growth strategy relies on a well-maintained transit system to meet greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction targets and other plan performance objectives. 

Proposal: 
 Invest $875 million over the life of Plan Bay Area
 The proposed Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grant Program:

a) accelerates fleet replacement and other state of good repair projects from Plan
Bay Area, including “greening” the fleet and other strategic capital enhancements

b) focuses on BART, SFMTA, and AC Transit – transit operators that carry 80% of
region’s passengers, account for approximately 75% of the plan’s estimated
transit capital shortfall, and serve PDAs that are expected to accommodate the
lion’s share of the region’s housing and employment growth

c) achieves roughly $7 billion in total state of good repair investment by leveraging
other regional discretionary funds and requiring a minimum 30% local match
from the three operators

d) requires that participating operators meet the Transit Sustainability Project’s
performance objectives outlined in MTC Resolution No. 4060

7.11A

Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107



Attachment A 
Resolution No. 4130 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

2.  Transit Operating and Efficiency Program 
Plan Bay Area fully funds existing transit service levels at nearly $115 billion over the three 
decade period, with an assumption that the largest transit operators achieve near-term 
performance improvements.  However, the plan also identifies the importance of a more robust 
and expanded public transit network, anchored by expanded local service, as a key ingredient for 
success of Plan Bay Area’s growth strategy.  In particular, the plan falls short of the funding 
necessary to meet the performance target of growth in the non-auto mode share to 26 percent of 
all trips. 
 
Proposal: 

 Invest $500 million over the life of Plan Bay Area 
 Distribute the funding based on a formula that provides 40% of the funding to core 

capacity transit operators (AC Transit, BART, and SFMTA) and 60% to the remaining 
transit operators. The formula for distribution within the two operator categories is as 
follows: 50% based on ridership; 25% based on low-income ridership; and 25% based on 
minority ridership.  The $500 million distribution based on 2011 National Transit 
Database ridership and 2006 Godbe Transit Passenger Demographic Survey is as follows: 

 
Core Capacity Operator 40%

AC Transit $35 

BART $54 

SFMTA $111 

Subtotal $200 

Other Operator 60%

Caltrain $35 

Golden Gate (w Marin Transit) $22 

SamTrans $44 

VTA $140 

Subtotal $241 

ACE $1.8 

CCCTA $10.3 

ECCTA $8.1 

Fairfield + Suisun $2.9 

LAVTA $5.4 

NCTPA $2.5 

Santa Rosa $9.7 

SolTrans $4.8 

Sonoma County $4.3 

Union City $1.5 

Vacaville $1.3 

WCCTA $3.8 

WETA $2.7 

Subtotal $59 

Total $500   
 

Page 108Page 108Page 108Page 108



Attachment A 
Resolution No. 4130 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

3.  One Bay Area Grants 
Plan Bay Area invests over $14 billion in transportation improvements concentrated near high 
quality transit and higher density housing – through the One Bay Area grant program – focusing 
on complete streets, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, and streetscape improvements.  The Plan 
identifies a remaining need of $20 billion over the next three decades to achieve a PCI score of 
75, the Plan’s adopted performance target for pavement; of this, roughly 45% is for non-
pavement infrastructure, critical for complete streets that would serve alternative modes and 
transit-oriented development that is a key part of Plan Bay Area’s growth strategy.  Further, the 
provision of housing for low and moderate income households in areas that provide access to 
jobs was identified in Plan Bay Area as critical to sustaining the region’s economic growth and 
attaining the Plan’s GHG and Housing Targets.    
 
Proposal: 

 Invest $1,050 million to augment the One Bay Area Grant Program 
 
4.  Climate Initiatives 
The Climate Initiatives Program is a multi-agency program focused on investments in 
technology advancements and incentives for travel options that help the Bay Area meet the GHG 
emission reduction targets related to SB375. 

Proposal: 
 Invest $275 million for the Climate Initiatives Program over the life of Plan Bay Area, 

including $75 million funding to support the county Safe Routes to School programs 
 
5.  Goods Movement 
Goods movement investments fall into two categories: (1) projects focused on improving the 
efficiency of the movement of goods within and through the region, and (2) mitigation projects 
that reduce the associated environmental impacts on local communities.  MTC is currently 
working with Caltrans and selected Congestion Management Agencies to update the regional 
goods movement program and to inform the California Freight Mobility Plan.  

Proposal: 
 Invest $450 million for goods movement projects over the life of Plan Bay Area 
 

Funding Category Amount  
($ millions) 

1. Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grants Program 875
2. Transit Operating and Efficiency Program 500
3. One Bay Area Grants  1,050 
4. Climate Initiatives 

Safe Routes to School 
275 
 75

5. Goods Movement 450 
TOTAL $3,150 

 
J:\SECTION\ALLSTAFF\Resolution\TEMP-RES\MTC\Dec PAC\tmp-4130_as revised by Commission.doc

Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 110Page 110Page 110Page 110



Date: December 18, 2013 
W.I.: 1515

Referred by: PAC

Attachment B
Resolution No. 4130 
Page 1 of 2 

Attachment B 

Cap and Trade Guideline Development Process 
Following adoption of the Cap and Trade Funding Framework, staff will convene stakeholders to 
develop the project selection process and criteria for individual categories, summarized below: 

 Transit Operating and Efficiency Program
 One Bay Area Grants
 Climate Initiatives
 Goods Movement

The Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grant Program would follow the process and project 
selection included in MTC Resolution No. 4123. 

Stakeholder Involvement: Staff will convene the Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG) 
as the discussion forum for the development of the project selection process and criteria. 
Members of the Partnership Board and Policy Advisory Council (or their working groups) will 
be invited to participate in the RAWG, but will also receive updates on the progress of the 
RAWG Cap and Trade guideline development discussions.  In addition, certain subject matter 
experts or stakeholders may be added to the standing working groups to provide information for 
specific categories of funding. 

Development of Program Guidelines: The development of the project selection process and 
criteria is proposed to take place over a 6-12 month period and generally follow the process 
below: 

 Review studies/efforts completed to-date
 Conduct an initial evaluation to establish focus area within the Funding Category
 Develop the draft guidelines
 Release the draft guidelines for stakeholder review
 Commission approval of Program Guidelines and adjustment to Framework, if necessary

More detail on each step in the proposed process is provided in the table on the next page.  Staff 
proposes to initiate discussions between summer 2014 and early 2015, depending on the 
enactment of state legislation and completion of studies that may inform guidelines.

7.11B

Page 111Page 111Page 111Page 111



A
tta

ch
m

en
t B

 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 4

13
0 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2
 

 

Pr
oc

es
s S

te
ps

 
W

or
k 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 S
tu

di
es

 a
nd

 E
ff

or
ts

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 T
o-

D
at

e 
 

St
af

f w
ill

 su
m

m
ar

iz
e 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 w

ith
 st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 re

ce
nt

 e
ff

or
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
 

ca
te

go
rie

s. 
 P

os
si

bl
e 

st
ud

ie
s b

y 
ca

te
go

ry
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

Tr
an

si
t O

pe
ra

tin
g 

an
d 

E
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

1)
 T

ra
ns

it 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

2)
 S

ho
rt 

R
an

ge
 T

ra
ns

it 
Pl

an
s o

r s
im

ila
r p

la
ns

 

O
ne

B
ay

A
re

a 
G

ra
nt

s 
1)

 P
la

n 
B

ay
 A

re
a 

2)
 C

yc
le

 1
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 

C
lim

at
e 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 

1)
 P

la
n 

B
ay

 A
re

a 
2)

 I
nn

ov
at

iv
e 

G
ra

nt
s 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
3)

 A
ir 

D
is

tri
ct

 P
la

ns
 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
4)

 C
A

R
B

 p
ro

gr
am

s 

G
oo

ds
 

M
ov

em
en

t 
1)

 P
la

n 
B

ay
 A

re
a 

2)
 R

eg
io

na
l G

oo
ds

 
M

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

an
d 

up
da

te
 

3)
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 F
re

ig
ht

 
M

ob
ili

ty
 P

la
n 

C
on

du
ct

 a
n 

In
iti

al
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
to

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

Fo
cu

s A
re

a 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

C
at

eg
or

y 
 

Ev
al

ua
te

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

 C
at

eg
or

ie
s, 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f e
ff

or
ts

 to
-d

at
e,

 b
ro

ad
ly

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
1)

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

 re
du

ct
io

n;
 

2)
 H

ow
 w

el
l t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s o

r p
ro

gr
am

s s
er

ve
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

;  
3)

 O
th

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fa

ct
or

s;
 a

nd
  

4)
 C

on
si

st
en

cy
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
 st

at
ut

e,
 w

he
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
Th

is
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 fo
cu

s a
re

as
 a

nd
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r c

om
pe

tit
iv

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
el

ec
tio

ns
. 

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 

 
Th

is
 st

ep
 sh

ou
ld

 fo
llo

w
 e

na
ct

m
en

t o
f t

he
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

C
ap

 a
nd

 T
ra

de
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y.

  T
he

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s s
te

ps
 a

bo
ve

 a
nd

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
1)

 E
lig

ib
le

 p
ro

je
ct

 ty
pe

s 
2)

 In
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 sc
or

in
g 

3)
 F

un
di

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
4)

 C
on

si
st

en
cy

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 
5)

 P
ot

en
tia

l l
ev

er
ag

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s/
lo

ca
l m

at
ch

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
6)

 O
th

er
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 (s

ta
te

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

) 
R

el
ea

se
 th

e 
D

ra
ft 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 

fo
r S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 R

ev
ie

w
 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
dr

af
t g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

om
m

en
ts

.  
St

af
f w

ou
ld

 re
vi

ew
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 fi
na

liz
e 

th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
. 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
f 

Pr
og

ra
m

 G
ui

de
lin

es
 

Th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 fo
r s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s i
n 

ea
rly

 to
 la

te
 

20
15

. A
s n

ec
es

sa
ry

, t
he

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

 a
ny

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
C

ap
 a

nd
 T

ra
de

 F
un

di
ng

 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 st

ak
eh

ol
de

r d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 o
r f

in
al

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

di
re

ct
io

n.
  T

he
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
es

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 th

e 
en

ac
tm

en
t o

f l
eg

is
la

tio
n 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
C

ap
 a

nd
 T

ra
de

 a
nd

 th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
he

 g
ui

de
lin

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. 

Page 112Page 112Page 112Page 112



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.12__Revised_Imp_Guidelines_Paratransit\7.12_Revise_Imp_Guidelines_20140113_V3.docx 

 
 

Memorandum 7.12 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Implementation Guidelines for the Special Transportation for Seniors 
and People with Disabilities Program 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve revisions to the Implementation Guidelines for the Special 
Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program 
 

 

Summary  

In 1986, Alameda County voters approved the Measure B half-cent transportation sales 
tax, which was later reauthorized in November 2000. Alameda CTC allocates 
approximately 60 percent of the net sales tax revenues to essential programs and services 
in Alameda County. The remaining approximated 40 percent are earmarked for specific 
capital projects as set forth in the 2000 Measure B Transportation Expenditure Plan. Of the 
60 percent of net sales tax revenues directed to programs, 10.45 percent is designated to 
the Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities program. The 
Implementation Guidelines for the Special Transportation for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities Program provide program eligibility, definitions and fund usage for both 
Measure B direct local program distribution funds and discretionary grant funds.  

The Implementation Guidelines were originally adopted by the Commission on December 
16, 2011 and incorporated into the Master Programs Funding Agreements (MPFA). Minor 
revisions to the Guidelines were adopted on January 24, 2013.  The Paratransit Advisory 
and Planning Committee (PAPCO) and the Paratransit Technical Advisory Committee 
(ParaTAC) discussed revisions to the Implementation Guidelines at the November 25, 2013 
Joint meeting and PAPCO recommended the revised Implementation Guidelines 
(Attachment A) for Commission approval. The revised Implementation Guidelines for the 
Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program clarify certain 
aspects of the existing policy and will replace the referenced Implementation Guidelines 
in the MPFA. 

Background 

The Implementation Guidelines for the Special Transportation for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities Program provide the eligibility requirements for services that can be funded, 
partially or in their entirety, with Alameda CTC direct local program distribution funds and 

Page 113Page 113Page 113Page 113



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.12__Revised_Imp_Guidelines_Paratransit\7.12_Revise_Imp_Guidelines_20140113_V3.docx 

 

 

discretionary grant funds as part of the MPFA. The Guidelines were originally adopted by 
the Commission on December 16, 2011 and incorporated into the Master Programs 
Funding Agreements (MPFA). All ADA mandated paratransit services, city-based non-
mandated programs, and discretionary grant projects funded with Measure B revenues 
were required to be in full compliance with these guidelines by the end of fiscal year 
2012-2013.  

Minor revisions to the Guidelines were adopted on January 24, 2013.  PAPCO and TAC 
discussed revisions to the Guidelines at the November 25, 2013 Joint meeting and PAPCO 
approved and recommended two revisions for Commission approval. The revised 
guidelines reclassify the “Wheelchair Van Service” as a “Specialized Van Service” and 
broaden the parameters of the “Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program” to allow city-based 
programs greater flexibility in meeting community needs. The Specialized Van Service 
provides accessible, door-to-door trips on a pre-scheduled or same-day basis as a 
supplement to a city-based program (e.g. subsidized taxi) that does not meet critical needs 
for particular trips in certain communities. The Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program 
language was clarified to confirm that Cities can use non-Measure B funds to purchase 
East Bay Paratransit tickets, above the current three percent limit of total Measure B funds 
that they are allowed.  Some Cities purchase East Bay Paratransit tickets to be provided 
to their patrons at a lower cost.  Once approved, the Implementation Guidelines for the 
Special Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program will replace the 
referenced Implementation Guidelines in the MPFA. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments 

A. Implementation Guidelines for Special Transportation for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities Program 

Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 114Page 114Page 114Page 114

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:MTodd@AlamedaCTC.org
mailto:jhemiup@alamedactc.org


REVISIONS DRAFTED NOVEMBER 2013 

Page | 1 

Implementation Guidelines – Special Transportation for 
Seniors and People with Disabilities Program 
These guidelines lay out the service types that are eligible to be funded with Alameda 
County Measure B and Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF) revenues under the Special 
Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities Program (Paratransit). All 
programs funded partially or in their entirety through Measure B or the VRF, including 
ADA-mandated paratransit services, city-based non-mandated programs, and 
discretionary grant funded projects, must abide by the following requirements for each 
type of paratransit service. Programs must be in full compliance with these guidelines by 
the end of fiscal year 2012-2013.  
Fund recipients are able to select which of these service types is most appropriate in their 
community to meet the needs of seniors and people with disabilities. Overall, all 
programs should be designed to enhance quality of life for seniors and people with 
disabilities by offering accessible, affordable, and convenient transportation options to 
reach major medical facilities, grocery stores and other important travel destinations to 
meet life needs.  
The chart below summarizes the eligible service types and their basic customer 
experience parameters; this is followed by more detailed descriptions of each. 

Service Timing Accessibility Origins/ 
Destinations Eligible Population 

ADA Paratransit Pre-
scheduled Accessible Origin-to-

Destination 
People with disabilities 
unable to ride fixed route 
transit 

Door-to-Door Service  Pre-
scheduled Accessible Origin-to-

Destination 
People with disabilities 
unable to ride fixed route 
transit and seniors 

Taxi Subsidy Same Day Varies Origin-to-
Destination 

Seniors and people with 
disabilities 

Specialized Van 
Pre-
scheduled & 
Same Day 

Accessible  Origin-to-
Destination 

People with disabilities 
using mobility devices that 
require lift- or ramp-
equipped vehicles 

Accessible Shuttles Fixed 
Schedule  Accessible Fixed or 

Flexed Route 
Seniors and people with 
disabilities 

Group Trips Pre-
scheduled Varies 

Round Trip 
Origin-to-
Destination 

Seniors and people with 
disabilities 

Volunteer Drivers Pre-
scheduled 

Generally Not 
Accessible 

Origin-to-
Destination 

Vulnerable populations with 
special needs, e.g. 
requiring door-through-door 
service or escort 

7.12A

Page 115Page 115Page 115Page 115



Page | 2 

Mobility Management 
and/or Travel Training N/A N/A N/A Seniors and people with 

disabilities 
Scholarship/Subsidized 
Fare Programs  N/A N/A N/A Seniors and people with 

disabilities 

Note on ADA Mandated Paratransit: Programs mandated by the American’s with 
Disabilities Act are implemented and administered according to federal guidelines that 
may supersede these guidelines; however all ADA-mandated programs funded through 
Measure B or the VRF are subject to the terms of the Master Programs Funding 
Agreement. 
Interim Service for Consumers Awaiting ADA Certification: At the request of a health 
care provider, or ADA provider, city-based programs must provide interim service through 
the programs listed below to consumers awaiting ADA certification.  Service must be 
provided within three business days of receipt of application.   
 

Page 116Page 116Page 116Page 116



Page | 3 

 

City-based Door-to-Door Service Guidelines 
Service Description City-based door-to-door services provide pre-scheduled, accessible, door-to-door 

trips.  Some programs allow same day reservations on a space-available basis.  
They provide a similar level of service to mandated ADA services.  These 
services are designed to fill gaps that are not met by ADA-mandated providers 
and/or relieve ADA-mandated providers of some trips.   
This service type does not include taxi subsidies which are discussed below.  

Eligible Population People 18 and above with disabilities who are unable to use fixed route services 
or Seniors 80 years or older without proof of a disability. 
Cities may provide services to consumers who are younger than age 80, but not 
younger than 70 years old. 
Cities may offer “grandfathered” eligibility to program registrants below 70 years 
old who have used the program regularly in the prior fiscal year as long as it does 
not impinge on the City’s ability to meet the Implementation Guidelines. 
Program sponsors may use ADA eligibility, as established by ADA-mandated 
providers (incl. East Bay Paratransit, LAVTA, Union City Transit), as proof of 
disability. 

Time & Days of Service At a minimum, service must be available five days per week between the hours of 
8 am and 5 pm (excluding holidays). 
At a minimum, programs should accept reservations between the hours of 8 am 
and 5 pm Monday – Friday. 

Fare (Cost to Customer) Fares for pre-scheduled service should not exceed local ADA paratransit fares, 
but can be lower, and can be equated to distance.  Higher fares can be charged 
for “premium” same-day service. 

Other Door-to-Door programs must demonstrate that they are providing trips at an equal 
or lower cost than the ADA-mandated provider on a cost per trip and cost per 
hour basis. 
Programs cannot impose limitations based on trip purpose, but can impose per 
person trip limits to control program resources.  

Page 117Page 117Page 117Page 117



Page | 4 

  

Taxi Subsidy Service Guidelines 
Service Description Taxis provide curb-to-curb service that can be scheduled on a same-day basis. They 

charge riders on a distance/time basis using a meter.  Taxi subsidy programs allow 
eligible consumers to use taxis at a reduced fare by reimbursing consumers a 
percentage of the fare or by providing some fare medium, e.g. scrip or vouchers, 
which can be used to cover a portion of the fare.   These programs are intended for 
situations when consumers cannot make their trip on a pre-scheduled basis.  This is 
meant to be a “premium” safety net service, not a routine service to be used on a 
daily basis.    
The availability of accessible taxi cabs varies by geographical area, but programs 
should expand availability of accessible taxi cabs where possible. 

Eligible Population People 18 and above with disabilities who are unable to use fixed route services or 
Seniors 80 years or older without proof of a disability. 
Cities may provide services to consumers who are younger than age 80, but not 
younger than 70 years old. 
Cities may offer “grandfathered” eligibility to program registrants below 70 years old 
who have used the program regularly in the prior fiscal year as long as it does not 
impinge on the City’s ability to meet the Implementation Guidelines. 
Program sponsors may use ADA eligibility, as established by ADA-mandated 
providers (incl. East Bay Paratransit, LAVTA, Union City Transit), as proof of 
disability. 

Time & Days of Service  24 hours per day/7 days per week 
Fare (Cost to Customer) At a minimum, programs must subsidize 50% of the taxi fare. 

Programs can impose a cap on total subsidy per person.  This can be accomplished 
through a maximum subsidy per trip, a limit on the number of vouchers/scrip (or 
other fare medium) per person, and/or a total subsidy per person per year. 

 

Page 118Page 118Page 118Page 118



Page | 5 

 

City-based Specialized Van Service 
Service Description Specialized van service provides accessible, door-to-door trips on a pre-

scheduled or same-day basis. These services are generally implemented as a 
supplement to a program that does not meet critical needs for particular trips in 
accessible vehicles in certain communities.  Examples of unmet needs might be a 
taxi program without accessible vehicles or medical trips for riders too frail to take 
a shuttle, or outside of the ADA-mandated service area. 
These programs make use of fare mediums such as scrip and vouchers to allow 
consumers to pay for rides.  

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 
Time & Days of Service At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 
Fare (Cost to Customer) At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 
Other Specialized van programs should provide trips at an equal or lower cost than the 

ADA-mandated provider on a cost per trip and cost per hour basis. 

 

Page 119Page 119Page 119Page 119



Page | 6 

 

City Accessible Shuttle Service Guidelines 
Service Description Shuttles are accessible vehicles that operate on a fixed, deviated, or flex-

fixed route and schedule.  They serve common trip origins and destinations 
visited by eligible consumers.  Common trip origins and destinations are: 
senior centers, medical facilities, grocery stores, BART stations, other transit 
stations, community centers, commercial districts, and post offices.   
Shuttles should be designed to supplement existing fixed route transit 
services.  Routes should not necessarily be designed for fast travel, but to 
get as close as possible to destinations of interest, often going into parking 
lots or up to the front entrance of a senior living facility.  Shuttles allow for 
more flexibility than pre-scheduled paratransit service, and are more likely to 
serve active seniors who do not drive and are not ADA paratransit 
registrants. 

Eligible Population Shuttles should be designed to appeal to older people, but can be made 
open to the general public.   

Time and Days of Service At discretion of program sponsor with local consumer input. 
Fare (Cost to Customer) Fares should not exceed local ADA paratransit fares, but can be lower, and 

can be equated to distance. 
Cost of Service By end of FY12/13, the cost per one-way person trip must be $20 or lower, 

including transportation and direct administrative costs.   
Other Shuttles are required to coordinate with the local fixed route transit provider. 

Shuttle routes and schedules should be designed with input from the senior 
and disabled communities and any new shuttle plan must be submitted to 
the Alameda CTC for review prior to requesting funding to ensure effective 
design. 
Deviations and flag stops are permitted at discretion of program sponsor.   

 

Group Trips Service Guidelines 
Service Description Group trips are round-trip rides for pre-planned outings or to attend specific 

events or go to specific destinations for fixed amounts of time, e.g. shopping 
trips, sporting events, or community health fairs. Trips usually originate from 
a senior center or housing facility and are generally provided in accessible 
vans and other vehicle types or combinations thereof.  These trips are 
specifically designed to serve the needs of seniors and people with 
disabilities.   

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.   
Time and Days of Service Group trips must begin and end on the same day. 
Fare (Cost to Customer) At discretion of program sponsor.   
Other Programs can impose mileage limitations to control program costs.  

 

Page 120Page 120Page 120Page 120



Page | 7 

 

Volunteer Driver Service Guidelines 
Service Description Volunteer driver services are pre-scheduled, door-through-door services that 

are generally not accessible.  These programs rely on volunteers to drive 
eligible consumers for critical trip needs, such as medical trips.  This service 
type meets a key mobility gap by serving door-through-door trips for more 
vulnerable populations. This is a complementary gap-filling service. 
Volunteer driver programs may also have an escort component where 
volunteers accompany consumers, who are unable to travel in a private 
vehicle, on ADA trips.   

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.  
Time and Days of Service At discretion of program sponsor.  
Fare (Cost to Customer) At discretion of program sponsor. 
Other Program sponsors can use Measure B funds to pay for volunteer mileage 

reimbursement purposes or an equivalent financial incentive for volunteers 
and/or administrative purposes. 

 

Mobility Management and/or Travel Training Service Guidelines 
Service Description Mobility management and/or travel training play an important role in ensuring 

that people use the “right” service for each trip, e.g. using EBP from Fremont 
to Berkeley for an event, using a taxi voucher for a same-day semi-
emergency doctor visit, and requesting help from a volunteer driver or group 
trips service for grocery shopping.  Mobility management covers a wide 
range of activities, such as travel training, escorted companion services, 
coordinated services, trip planning, and brokerage.   

Eligible Population At discretion of program sponsor.  
Time and Days of Service At discretion of program sponsor.  
Fare (Cost to Customer) N/A 
Other Programs must specify a well-defined set of activities that will be undertaken 

in a mobility management or travel training program. 
The mobility management plan or travel training program must be submitted 
to the Alameda CTC for review prior to requesting funding to ensure effective 
design. 

 

Page 121Page 121Page 121Page 121



Page | 8 

 

Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program Guidelines 
Service Description Scholarship or Subsidized Fare Programs can subsidize any service for 

customers who are low-income and can demonstrate financial need. 
Eligible Population Subsidies can be offered to low-income consumers with demonstrated 

financial need; these consumers must also meet the eligibility requirements 
of the service for which the subsidy is being offered. 
Low income should be considered 30% AMI (area median income) or lower. 

Time and Days of Service N/A  
Fare (Cost to Customer) N/A 
Other Program sponsors must describe how financial means testing will be 

undertaken. 
If program sponsors include subsidized East Bay Paratransit (EBP) tickets in 
this program, no more than 3% of their direct local program distribution 
funds, or discretionary funds, may be used for these tickets. Programs may 
use other funds to purchase these tickets in excess of the 3% direct local 
program distributions funds or discretionary funds. 

 

Meal Delivery Service Guidelines 
Service Description Meal Delivery Programs deliver meals to the homes of individuals who are 

transportation disadvantaged.  Although this provides access to life 
sustaining needs for seniors and people with disabilities, it is not a direct 
transportation expense.   

Eligible Population For currently operating programs, at discretion of program sponsor.  
Time and Days of Service For currently operating programs, at discretion of program sponsor. 
Fare (Cost to Customer) For currently operating programs, at discretion of program sponsor. 
Other Currently operating programs can continue to use Measure B funds for these 

service costs, but new meal delivery services cannot be established.   

 
 

Page 122Page 122Page 122Page 122



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.13_Prop1B_TSSSDRA\7.13_Prop1B_Transit_Security.docx  

 

 

Memorandum 7.13 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposition 1B Transit System Safety, Security & Disaster Response 
Account (TSSSDRA) Funds 

RECOMMENDATION: (1) Adopt Resolution 14-001 which authorizes the execution of Grant 
Assurance documents for the TSSSDRA Program and appoints the 
Executive Director or designee as the Alameda CTC’s authorized 
agent, to execute the Grant Assurances, grant applications, funding 
agreements, reports or any other documents necessary for project 
funding and TSSSDRA program compliance. (2) Authorize the 
Executive Director, or his designee, to submit project applications 
requesting allocations for FY 2013/14 TSSSDRA funds

 

Summary 

Section 8879.23 of the California Government Code creates the Highway Safety, Traffic 
Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Fund of 2006 (Proposition 1B) in the State Treasury. 
Section 8879.23(h) directs that $1 billion be deposited in the Transit System Safety, Security 
and Disaster Response Account (TSSSDRA). The State Controller’s Office has recently released 
a list of allocations for eligible agencies for the Proposition 1B TSSSDRA program. The 
Alameda CTC’s FY 2013/14 allocation from this program is $38,826, and will be allocated for 
the Altamont Commuter Express (ACE) service within Alameda County. The allocations for 
ACE are made available through the Alameda CTC whereas agencies such as AC Transit 
and BART have received their allocations directly.    

Background 

Proposition 1B, approved by the voters on November 7, 2006, includes a program of funding 
in the amount of $1 billion to be deposited in the Transit System Safety, Security and Disaster 
Response Account (TSSSDRA). The State Controller’s Office has recently released a list of 
allocations for eligible agencies for the Proposition 1B TSSSDRA program administered by the 
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES). The Alameda CTC’s FY 
2013/14 allocation from this program is $38,826, and will be allocated for the Altamont 
Commuter Express (ACE) service within Alameda County. The allocations for ACE are made 

Page 123Page 123Page 123Page 123



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.13_Prop1B_TSSSDRA\7.13_Prop1B_Transit_Security.docx 

 

 

available through the Alameda CTC whereas agencies such as AC Transit and BART have 
received their allocations directly. 

Eligible project types include transit capital projects that provide increased protection 
against a security or safety threat and projects that increase the capacity of transit operators 
to prepare for disaster response transportation systems that can move people, goods, 
emergency personnel and equipment in the aftermath of a disaster. 

The program guidelines released by Cal OES state “Applications to Cal OES for projects 
seeking funds pursuant to GC Section 8879.58(a)(2) and 8879.58(a)(3) must be submitted 
through and approved by the appropriate County transportation commission”.  Projects 
submitted for funding will be reviewed and approved in two phases. 

Phase I 

Eligible applicants are required to submit Investment Justifications (IJ) to Cal OES.  

Phase II 

Cal OES shall review the information submitted by project sponsors to determine if projects 
are compliant with the program requirements. Upon final project approval, sponsors shall be 
issued a Notice of Project Eligibility (NOPE) letter. The NOPE will include project milestones, 
audit requirements, program monitoring requirements, reporting requirements and directions 
to complete the Cal OES Financial Management Forms Workbook (FMFW). Upon receipt of 
the NOPE the agency has up to six weeks to complete and submit all supporting application 
documents. The supporting documents include the FMFW, certified copy of the Alameda 
CTC Resolution No. 14-001 (Attachment A) and the signed original Grant Assurances 
(Attachment B). 

San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission (SJRRC) staff has proposed FY 2013/14 funds ($38,826) 
be assigned to the ACE Electronic Fare Collection (eTicketing) project. The eTicketing will 
require registered users and provide a real-time passenger manifest for active trains able to 
be accessed remotely, in real-time, by both SJRRC staff, law enforcement, and first 
responders. SJRRC had assigned the FY 2012/13 TSSSDRA funds to the eTicketing project. 

It is recommended the Commission authorize the Executive Director, or his designee, to 
submit Investment Justifications and project applications requesting allocations for FY 
2013/14 TSSSDRA funds. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact. 

 
Attachments 

Page 124Page 124Page 124Page 124



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.13_Prop1B_TSSSDRA\7.13_Prop1B_Transit_Security.docx 

 

 

A. Draft Alameda CTC Resolution #14-001 
B. Grant Assurances 

 
 

Staff Contact 

Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

Vivek Bhat, Senior Transportation Engineer 

Page 125Page 125Page 125Page 125

mailto:mtodd@alamedactc.org
mailto:vbhat@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 126Page 126Page 126Page 126



 
 
 
        ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
                                    RESOLUTION # 14-001 
 
Authorization for Execution of the Grant Assurances Documents for the 
Transit System Safety, Security & Disaster Response Account Bond Program 
(FY2013/14 – ACE Electronic Fare Collection Project) 
 
WHEREAS, the Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port 
Security Bond Act of 2006 authorizes the issuance of general obligation 
bonds for specified purposes, including, but not limited to, funding made 
available for capital projects that provide increased protection against 
security and safety threats, and for capital expenditures to increase the 
capacity of transit operators to develop disaster response transportation 
systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal 
OES) administers such funds deposited in the Transit System Safety, Security, 
and Disaster Response Account under the California Transit Security Grant 
Program (CTSGP ); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Alameda County Transportation Commission (“Alameda 
CTC”) is eligible to receive CTSGP funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC will apply for FY 2013/14 CTSGP funds in an 
amount up to $38,826 for the Electronic Fare Collection Project to enhance 
and expand the functionality and reliability or the San Joaquin Regional 
Rail Commission’s fare collection system; and  
 
WHEREAS, Alameda CTC recognizes that it is responsible for compliance 
with all Cal OES CTSGP grant assurances, and state and federal laws, 
including, but not limited to, laws governing the use of bond funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cal OES requires Alameda CTC to complete and submit a 
Governing Body Resolution for the purposes of identifying agent(s) 
authorized to act on behalf of Alameda CTC to execute actions necessary 
to obtain CTSGP funds from Cal OES and ensure continued compliance 
with Cal OES CTSGP assurances, and state and federal laws.   
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Alameda CTC that 
the Executive Director, and/or his Designee, is hereby authorized to 
execute for and on behalf of Alameda CTC, a public entity established 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Mayor Peggy Thomsen 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor William Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor John Chiang 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Councilmember Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

7.13A

Page 127Page 127Page 127Page 127



Alameda County Transportation Commission  
Resolution 14-001 
Page 2 

under the laws of the State of California, any actions necessary for the purpose of obtaining financial 
assistance provided by the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services under the CTSGP. 
 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Alameda County Transportation Commission at the regular 
meeting of the Board held on Thursday, January 23, 2014 in Oakland, California, by the following 
votes: 
 
AYES:   NOES:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
 
SIGNED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________ 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty                       Vanessa Lee 
Chair       Clerk of the Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128Page 128Page 128Page 128



Transit System Safety, Security and  
Disaster Response Account Program 

Name of Applicant: ________________________________________________________ 

Grant Cycle: ________________________ Grant Number: ____________________________ 

Address: _________________________________________________________________ 

City: _____________________________ State: ________________ Zip Code: _________ 

Telephone: (_____) ________________E-Mail:__________________________________ 

As the duly authorized representative of the Applicant, I certify that the Applicant named above: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for CTSGP-CTAF funds, and has the institutional,
managerial, and financial capability to ensure proper planning, management, and
completion of the grant provided by the State of California and administered by the
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES).

2. Assures that the grant funds will only be used for allowable, fair, and reasonable costs.

3. Recognizes the importance of accountability for the use of CTSGP-CTAF funds, and will
give the State of California generally, and Cal OES in particular, through any
representative authorized by Cal OES, access to and the right to examine all paper and
electronic records, books, and other documents related to the award.

4. Will establish and maintain a proper accounting system for CTSGP-CTAF funds, in
accordance with applicable laws, generally accepted accounting standards, and Cal OES
directives.

5. Will provide reports and documentation related to this grant to Cal OES, in accordance
with applicable laws and Cal OES grant guidance, including but not limited to:  progress
reports, closeout documentation, authorized agent forms, governing body resolutions, and
other information as may be required by Cal OES.

6. Will initiate and complete approved project work within applicable timeframes, after Cal
OES approves the project.

7. Will comply with Standardized Emergency Management System requirements as stated
in the California Emergency Services Act (California Gov Code Section 8607 et seq.) and
Title 19 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 2445, 2446, 2447, and 2448.

8. Will promptly return to the State of California all funds received which exceed the actual
expenditures approved by Cal OES.

7.13B

Alameda County Transportation Commission

contact@alamedactc.org510 208-7400

OAKLAND CA 94506

1111 Broadway Suite 800

Grant Assurances

Page 129Page 129Page 129Page 129



9. If the approved amount of the grant is reduced, will promptly return to the State of 
California funds equal to the amount of this reduction. 

10. Will keep CTSGP-CTAF funds in a separate interest bearing account.  Any interest that 
is accrued must be accounted for and used for the project approved by Cal OES. 

11. Agrees that equipment acquired or obtained with CTSGP-CTAF funds: 

a. Will be made available under the California Disaster and Civil Defense Master 
Mutual Aid Agreement in consultation with representatives of the various fire, 
emergency medical, hazardous materials response services, and law enforcement 
agencies within the jurisdiction of the applicant; and 

b. Will be made available pursuant to applicable terms of the California Disaster and 
Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement and deployed with personnel trained 
in the use of such equipment in a manner consistent with the California Law 
Enforcement Mutual Aid Plan, the California Fire Services and Rescue Mutual 
Aid Plan, and the State Emergency Plan. 

12. Will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, executive orders, 
regulations, program and administrative requirements, policies, and any other
requirements governing this program. 

13. Understands that failure to comply with applicable state and federal laws governing 
general obligation, tax-exempt, and Build America bonds may result in penalties 
administered by the Internal Revenue Service or a loss of tax-exempt bond status. 

14. Will retain records for thirty-five years after notification of grant closeout by the State, 
and ensure that any subcontractors, subgrantees, or entities to which project 
responsibilities are transferred, retain records in accordance with state, federal, and local 
record retention requirements. 

15. Grantees and subgrantees will use their own procurement and contracting procedures, 
which comply with applicable state and local laws and regulations, or with the California 
Public Contract Code, whichever is more restrictive. 

16. Will maintain and abide by procedures to minimize the time between the award of funds 
and the disbursement of funds. 

17. Will abide by Cal OES CTSGP-CTAF guidelines. 

18. Will submit to Cal OES a CTSGP-CTAF Program Investment Justification, listing all 
projects to be funded for the life of the bond, including the amount for each project and 
the year in which the funds will be requested. 

Grant Assurances

Page 130Page 130Page 130Page 130



19. Will submit to Cal OES a signed Authorized Agent form designating the representative 
who can submit documents on behalf of the Applicant and an original, certified copy, or 
e-signed and verified copy, subject to approval by Cal OES, of the board resolution 
appointing the Authorized Agent.  Should a new agent be authorized by the Applicant’s 
governing board, the Applicant will submit to Cal OES a new, signed Authorized Agent 
form designating the representative who can submit documents on behalf of the 
Applicant, and an original, certified copy, or e-signed and verified copy, subject to 
approval by Cal OES, of the board resolution appointing that Authorized Agent. 

20. Will ensure that CTSGP-CTAF funds will be used only for the approved capital project 
and that this approved project will be completed within applicable timeframes and remain 
in operation for its useful life, in accordance with state and federal laws, including, but 
not limited to applicable laws governing the CTSGP-CTAF Program, state general 
obligation bond laws, and federal laws governing tax-exempt and Build America bonds.   

21. Will promptly notify Cal OES of pending litigation, bankruptcy proceedings, and 
negative audit findings related to the project. 

22. Will maintain continuing control over the use of project equipment and facilities, and will 
maintain project equipment and facilities for the useful life of the project, in accordance 
with state and federal laws, including, but not limited to the laws governing the CTSGP-
CTAF Program, state general obligation bond laws, and federal tax-exempt and Build 
America bond laws. 

23. The project sponsor must notify Cal OES of any changes to the approved project and 
obtain Cal OES approval to these changes prior to their implementation.   

24. Funds must be encumbered and liquidated within the time allowed in the applicable 
budget act and in accordance with grant guidelines. 

25. Understands that all of Applicant’s contractors and subcontractors shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws.  Applicant assures that its contractors and 
subcontractors will be obligated to agree to comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws.   

26. That any project cost for which the Applicant received funds that is determined by 
subsequent audit to be unallowable under applicable federal, state, or local laws, are 
subject to repayment by the Applicant to the State of California.  Should the Applicant 
fail to reimburse the moneys due to the State within thirty (30) days of demand, or within 
another time period mutually agreed to in writing between Cal OES and the Applicant, 
the State is authorized to withhold future payments due to the Applicant from the State. 

27. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose 
that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of 
interest, or personal gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they 
have familial, business, or other ties. 

Grant Assurances

Page 131Page 131Page 131Page 131



28. Will comply with all California and federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, 
including, but not limited to: 

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), as amended, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; and 

b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §1681-
1683 and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; and 

c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabilities; and 

d. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Chapter 126), as 
amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabilities; and 

e. The Unruh Civil Rights Act (California Civil Code §54, et seq.) and California 
Government Code §11135, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
disabilities; and  

f. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §6101-6107) which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; and 

g. The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255) as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; and 

h. The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; and 

i. Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 
§290dd-2), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; and 

j. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §3601, et seq.), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; and 

k. Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which 
application for assistance is being made; and 

l. The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) that may apply to the 
application or to the Applicant. 

29. Will comply, if applicable, with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 
102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase 
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or 
more. 

30. Will complete required environmental documentation before requesting an allocation of 
CTSGP-CTAF funds.  The Applicant certifies that projects approved for CTSGP-CTAF 
funds will comply with all applicable federal and state environmental laws.  These may 
include, but are not limited to: 

a. California Environmental Quality Act. California Public Resources Code Sections 
21080-21098. California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3 Sections 
15000-15007; and 

Grant Assurances

Page 132Page 132Page 132Page 132



b. Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO)11514; 
and 

c. Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; and 
d. Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; and 
e. Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; and 
f. Assurance of project consistency with the approved state management program 

developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §1451 et 
seq.); and 

g. Conformity of federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under 
Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §7401, et 
seq.); and 

h. Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking 
Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); and 

i. Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as 
amended, (P.L. 93-205); and 

j. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §1271, et. seq.) related to 
protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic 
rivers system. 

k. Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 
U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and preservation of historic properties), 
and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C.     
§469a-1, et seq.).

31. The Applicant and its principals: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, sentenced to a denial of federal benefits by a state or federal court, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or 
agency; and 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of 
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a 
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 
violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; and 

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and (d) have not 
within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default; and where the 

Grant Assurances

Page 133Page 133Page 133Page 133



applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or 
she shall attach an explanation to this application. 

32. Will comply with the audit requirements set forth in the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, “Audit of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit 
Organizations.”

33. Agrees that the noncompliance with these assurances, Cal OES CTSGP-CTAF Program 
guidelines, and applicable laws, may be taken into consideration by Cal OES when 
considering future allocation applications from Applicant. 

34. Understands that failure to comply with any of the above assurances may result in 
suspension, reduction, or termination of grant funds. 

As the duly authorized representative of the Applicant, I hereby certify that the Applicant will 
comply with the above certifications. 

The undersigned represents that he/she is authorized by the above named Applicant to enter into 
this agreement for and on behalf of the said Applicant.  

Signature of Authorized Agent: ______________________________________________

Printed Name of Authorized Agent: ___________________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________  Date: _____________________ 
 

Arthur L. Dao

Executive Director

Grant Assurances

Page 134Page 134Page 134Page 134



 
 
 

  

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.14_I580_EB_AUX_Mitigation_Coop\7.14_I580AuxLane_MitigationCoop_with_Caltrans_140113.docx 

 

Memorandum 7.14 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes Project(PN 
720.5): Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans     

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Cooperative Agreement (District Agreement No. 04-2467) 
with Caltrans to satisfy offsite compensatory mitigation requirements for 
the I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes Project 
required by project permits

   

Summary  

Alameda CTC, in partnership with Caltrans, is constructing the following improvements on 
Eastbound I-580: 

• An eastbound auxiliary lane between the Isabel Avenue on-ramp and the North 
Livermore Avenue off-ramp.  

• An eastbound auxiliary lane between the North Livermore Avenue on-ramp and 
the First Street off-ramp.   

• Widening of I-580 between the Santa Rita Road and the Fallon Road interchanges 
to accommodate future Express Lane improvements.  

• Minor widening at the Hacienda Drive on ramp, Fallon Road on-ramps and Airway 
Boulevard on-ramp to provide standard outside shoulder widths.  

• Pavement overlay of Asphalt Concrete from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road. 

The total cost of these improvements is $41.0 million funded with a combination of 
federal, state, regional and local fund sources; including Corridor Mobility Account 
Improvement funds. 

Background 

The I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes Project started construction 
in April 2013 and is currently underway.  Completion of the project is expected in 
November 2014.  The project will construct eastbound auxiliary lanes at two locations; 
between the Isabel Avenue on-ramp and North Livermore Avenue off-ramp and between 
the North Livermore Avenue on-ramp and First Street off-ramp.  The project also includes 
widening work to accommodate future Express Lane improvements between Santa Rita 

Page 135Page 135Page 135Page 135



  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.14_I580_EB_AUX_Mitigation_Coop\7.14_I580AuxLane_MitigationCoop_with_Caltrans_140113.docx 

 

Road and the Fallon Road interchanges; the widening of two eastbound bridges at 
Arroyo Las Positas; and a pavement overlay of asphalt concrete from Hacienda Drive to 
Greenville Road.   

During the environmental phase of the project, the environmental impacts and mitigation 
requirements were determined.  Prior to construction, permits were obtained from 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and US Fish and Wildlife Service.  These permits 
address the offsite mitigation requirements for the project. 

Caltrans and Alameda CTC agreed that Alameda CTC would assist Caltrans in satisfying the 
permit requirements by implementing the offsite mitigation plan.  Alameda CTC will fund all 
work and ensure compliance with the permit requirements for the offsite mitigation.  All 
financial commitments to implement the offsite mitigation have been fulfilled through 
previously approved and executed agreements with the mitigation providers.   

The offsite mitigation, which includes the preservation of 140 linear feet of riparian habitat, 
preservation of 20.4 acres of California red-legged frog and California tiger salamander 
habitat, and preservation of 0.06 acres of wetlands, will be implemented at the Eagle Ridge 
Preserve in Alameda County.  Agreements between Alameda CTC and Eagle Ridge 
Preserve have been previously approved and executed.  Per these agreements, Eagle Ridge 
Preserve is responsible for constructing and maintaining the necessary mitigation work on the 
Eagle Ridge Preserve property and for performing the necessary reporting.   

In addition, through previous approvals, Alameda CTC has set up an endowment fund which 
will provide the necessary funding for the perpetual maintenance of the mitigation property.   

A Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans is needed to address the offsite mitigation 
requirements for the I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 Auxiliary Lanes Project.  The 
Cooperative agreement includes the roles and responsibilities of Alameda CTC and Caltrans 
as it pertains to mitigation implementation, monitoring and reporting.   

RM2 funds were previously allocated by MTC on July 28, 2010 and April 30, 2012 in the 
amounts of $1,265,000 and $585,000 respectively to fund the required mitigation for the I-580 
projects, including the I-580 Eastbound HOV Lane - Segment 3 with Auxiliary Lanes Project.    

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact for approving this item.  The necessary funding for the 
purchase and sale of the mitigation property and endowment fund were approved through 
previous board actions and subsequent RM2 allocations by MTC ($1,265,000 on July 28, 2010 
and $585,000 on April 30, 2012).   

Attachments 

A. Cooperative Agreement: District Agreement No. 04-2467  

Page 136Page 136Page 136Page 136



  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.14_I580_EB_AUX_Mitigation_Coop\7.14_I580AuxLane_MitigationCoop_with_Caltrans_140113.docx 

 

 
Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Connie Fremier, Project Controls Team 

Page 137Page 137Page 137Page 137

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 138Page 138Page 138Page 138



7.14A

Page 139Page 139Page 139Page 139



Page 140Page 140Page 140Page 140



Page 141Page 141Page 141Page 141



Page 142Page 142Page 142Page 142



Page 143Page 143Page 143Page 143



Page 144Page 144Page 144Page 144



Page 145Page 145Page 145Page 145



Page 146Page 146Page 146Page 146



Page 147Page 147Page 147Page 147



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 148Page 148Page 148Page 148



 
 

  

  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.15__SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreements_TVTC\7.15_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreements_TVTDF.docx 

 

Memorandum 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: State Route 84 Corridor Widening Projects: Agreements with the City of 
Livermore for Transfer of Tri-Valley Transportation Development Fee 
Funds  

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into Agreements with the City 
of Livermore to transfer Tri-Valley Transportation Development Fee 
Funds to the State Route 84 Corridor Widening Projects 

   

Summary  

The City of Livermore is the project sponsor and proposes to implement the following two 
projects to widen State Route 84 (SR 84):  

1. Route 84 Expressway – South Segment , and  
2. Route 84 Widening – Pigeon Pass to I-680.  

The Tri-Valley Transportation Council (TVTC) allocated $2.94 million of Tri-Valley 
Transportation Development Fee (TVTDF) funds at their July 2013 meeting for the Project 
Approval and Environmental Document (PA&ED) phase of Route 84 Widening – Pigeon 
Pass to I-680 Project. The TVTC allocated $5.0 million TVTDF funds at their October 2013 
meeting for the Route 84 Expressway – South Segment Project. The Alameda CTC is the 
implementing agency for both of these projects. Two agreements between the City of 
Livermore and Alameda CTC, will transfer $7.94 million TVTDF funds to Alameda CTC to be 
applied to these projects, according to the TVTC allocation.  

Background 

In 2003, a Project Study Report - Project Development Support (PSR - PDS) sponsored by 
TVTC identified several improvement projects along SR 84 to widen the corridor to 
expressway standards between I-680 and I-580 that could be constructed in stages as 
funding became available. The Route 84 Expressway – South Segment Project and Route 
84 Widening - Pigeon Pass to I-680 Projects were identified in the PSR - PDS.  All other 
projects identified in the PSR - PDS are either complete or nearing completion. 

7.15 

 

Page 149Page 149Page 149Page 149



  
   
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.15__SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreements_TVTC\7.15_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreements_TVTDF.docx 

 

The Route 84 Expressway – South Segment Project is currently in the design and right of 
way acquisition phases. Construction is expected to start in spring 2015 with completion in 
fall 2016. This project is funded from a combination of State Transportation Improvement 
Program funds, Transportation Enhancement funds, Measure B funds, TVTDF funds and 
Rule 20 A funds. A total of $10.0 million TVTC funds are programmed for this project. TVTC 
allocated $5.0 million TVTDF funds at their October 2013 meeting. The remaining $5.0 
million TVTDF funds are expected to be allocated in 2014. 

No project development work has been initiated on the Route 84 Widening – Pigeon Pass 
to I-680 Project. TVTC allocated $2.94 million TVTDF funds at the July 2013 meeting to the 
PA&ED phase of this project. The request to issue a Request for Proposals for the 
professional services contract for the PA&ED phase for this project is anticipated to go to 
the Alameda CTC Commission for approval in February 2014.  

Two Agreements between the City of Livermore and Alameda CTC will transfer $7.94 
million TVTDF funds to the Alameda CTC to be applied to the Route 84 Expressway – South 
Segment Project and The Route 84 Widening - Pigeon Pass to I-680 Project.   

Fiscal Impact:  The fiscal impact for approving this item is $7.94 million; the action will 
authorize the encumbrance of additional project funding for subsequent expenditure. This 
budget is included in the appropriate project funding plans.  $5.0 million is included in the 
Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital Program Budget. An 
encumbrance of $2.94 million will be added to the Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2013-2014 
Operating and Capital Program Budget. 

 Attachments 

A. Cooperative Agreement between Alameda County Transportation Commission and 
City of Livermore for the Route 84 Expressway Project – South Segment  

B. Cooperative Agreement between Alameda County Transportation Commission and 
City of Livermore for the Route 84 Widening Project – Pigeon Pass to Interstate 680 

 
 
Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Gary Sidhu, Project Controls Team 

 

Page 150Page 150Page 150Page 150

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org


1 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AND  

CITY OF LIVERMORE 

Route 84 Expressway Project – South Segment 

This COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effective on _________________, 2014 is entered 
into by and between the City of Livermore (“City”), a municipal corporation, and Alameda County 
Transportation Commission (“Alameda CTC”), a joint powers agency.   

RECITALS 

A. City as one of the members of the Tri Valley Transportation Council (“TVTC”) is a signatory to the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Pertaining to the Tri-Valley Transportation Development Fee 
(TVTDF) for Traffic Mitigation.  

B. The TVTDF fees are divided into the “Eighty Percent Fees” which are allocated by TVTC for projects 
in the TVTDF Funding Plan, and the “Twenty Percent Fees” a portion of which are available to the City 
for allocation to projects at its discretion. 

C. The TVTC has identified the Project (defined as Route 84 Expressway from I-580 to I-680) as one of 
eleven projects which it proposes to fund in part with the “Eighty Percent Fee” portion of the developer 
fees.  

D. The Project is divided into three Segments; Segment 1 - I-580 to Airway Boulevard, Segment 2 – from  
Airway Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive, and Segment 3 – from Ruby Hills Drive to I-680. 

E. Segment 2 is further divided into three phases: Phase 1 – Isabel Avenue/Vineyard Avenue intersection 
realignment; Phase 2 – Airway Boulevard to West Jack London Boulevard; Phase 3 – West Jack London 
Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive. 

F. Phase 3 is further split into two Segments; North Segment – from West Jack London Boulevard to 
North of Concannon Boulevard; and South Segment – from North of Concannon Boulevard to Ruby 
Hills Drive. 

G.  South Segment is to be funded with $34.9 million in State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
funds, $2.2 million in Federal Transportation Enhancement funds, and the balance in local contributions 
comprising Measure B, TVTDF funds and Rule 20A funds. 

H. TVTC allocated $5.0 million out of $10.0 million TVTDF funds programmed for the South Segment on 
October 17, 2013. 

I. Alameda CTC is the implementing agency for preliminary engineering, environmental studies, design, 
right of way acquisition and utility relocation and California Department of Transportation (“State”) will 
retain a Contractor and manage and administer construction for the South Segment. 

7.15A

Page 151Page 151Page 151Page 151



2 
 

J. The State will submit invoices to Alameda CTC for payment of local contributions for construction of 
the South Segment if so authorized by a separate agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I  

Alameda CTC Agrees: 

1.1 To oversee environmental clearance, final design, right of way acquisition, utility relocation 
monitor construction progress, and apply local contribution payments to either Alameda CTC or Consultants, 
for reimbursement of design, right of way acquisition, utility relocation or construction management costs, or to 
the State for construction of South Segment, in accordance with Alameda CTC policy. 

Section II  

City Agrees: 

2.1 To transfer $5 million TVTDF funds to Alameda CTC upon execution of this Agreement and 
within 30 days of City’s receipt of funds from TVTC, and transfer remaining $5 million TVTDF funds for the 
South Segment upon allocation by TVTC.   

Section III  

It Is Mutually Agreed: 

3.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject 
matter hereof and any oral discussions or written or oral agreements with respect thereto preceding the effective 
date of this Agreement are superseded hereby. No amendment, alteration, or variation of the terms of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or 
agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. 

3.2 Alameda CTC and the City each render their services under this Agreement as independent 
agencies. None of the agents or employees of either shall be deemed agents or employees of the other. 

3.3 This Agreement shall terminate upon construction completion of the South Segment.  

3.4 Any notice given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if 
delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail or commercial overnight courier, return receipt of 
confirmation of delivery requested, or by facsimile transmission with voice confirmation or receipt, the parties at 
the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice): 

 If to Livermore:     If Alameda CTC: 

 Marc Roberts, City Manager   Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director 
City of Livermore    Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1052 S Livermore Ave    1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Page 152Page 152Page 152Page 152



3 
 

Livermore, CA  94550    Oakland,  CA  94607 
Facsimile (925 ) 373-5318    Facsimile:  (510) 893-6489 
 

CITY OF LIVERMORE ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 

By: _________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 
      Marc Roberts           Arthur L. Dao 
      City Manager           Executive Director 

Approved as to Legal Form:    Recommended: 

 

By: _______________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
Jason Alcala            Stewart D. Ng 
Acting City Attorney            Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

  

       Reviewed as to Budget/Financial Controls: 
 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Patricia Reavey 
             Director of Finance 

       Approved as to Legal Form: 

 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP 
             Alameda CTC Legal Counsel 

Page 153Page 153Page 153Page 153



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 154Page 154Page 154Page 154



1 
 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AND  

CITY OF LIVERMORE 

Route 84 Widening Project – Pigeon Pass to Interstate 680 

This COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effective on ____________________, 2014 is entered 
into by and between the City of Livermore (“City”), a municipal corporation, and Alameda County 
Transportation Commission (“Alameda CTC”), a joint powers agency.    

RECITALS 

A. City as one of the members of the Tri Valley Transportation Council (“TVTC”) is a signatory to the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Pertaining to the Tri-Valley Transportation Development Fee 
(TVTDF) for Traffic Mitigation.  

B. TVTDF fees are divided into the “Eighty Percent Fees” which are allocated by TVTC to projects in the 
TVTDF Funding Plan, and the “Twenty Percent Fees” a portion of which are available to the City for 
allocation to projects at its discretion. 

C. TVTC has identified the Project (defined as Route 84 Expressway from I-580 to I-680) as one of eleven 
projects which it proposes to fund in part with the “Eighty Percent Fee” portion of the developer fees.  

D. Project is divided into three Segments; Segment 1 - I-580 to Airway Boulevard, Segment 2 – from  
Airway Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive, and Segment 3 – from Ruby Hills Drive to I-680. 

E. Segment 3 is further segmented into two stages: Stage 1 – Ruby Hills Drive to Pigeon Pass and Stage 2 – 
Pigeon Pass to I-680. 

F. TVTC allocated $2.94 million TVTDF funds on July 31, 2013 to conduct preliminary engineering and 
environmental studies for Stage 2. 

G.  City is the project sponsor of Route 84 Expressway from I-580 to I-680 for the TVTC. 

H. Alameda CTC will be the implementing agency for preliminary engineering and environmental studies 
for Stage 2. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I  

Alameda CTC Agrees: 

1.1 To oversee environmental clearance, and apply local contribution payments to either Alameda 
CTC or Consultants, for reimbursement of environmental clearance for Stage 2. 

7.15B 

Page 155Page 155Page 155Page 155



2 
 

1.2 To inform City staff of progress and key findings as they are developed and seek input from 
City staff during the analysis and development of project scope and alternatives, consultant selection, and 
environmental assessment including the identification of project impacts and mitigation measures. 

Section II  

City Agrees: 

2.1 To transfer $2.94 million TVTDF funds to Alameda CTC upon execution of this Agreement 
and City’s receipt of funds from TVTC.   

Section III  

It Is Mutually Agreed: 

3.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject 
matter hereof and any oral discussions or written or oral agreements with respect thereto preceding the effective 
date of this Agreement are superseded hereby. No amendment, alteration, or variation of the terms of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or 
agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. 

3.2 Alameda CTC and the City each render their services under this Agreement as independent 
agencies. None of the agents or employees of either shall be deemed agents or employees of the other. 

3.3 This Agreement shall terminate upon completion of preliminary engineering and environmental 
studies for Stage 2.  

3.4 Any notice given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if 
delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail or commercial overnight courier, return receipt of 
confirmation of delivery requested, or by facsimile transmission with voice confirmation or receipt, the parties at 
the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):  

 If to Livermore:     If Alameda CTC: 

 Marc Roberts, City Manager   Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director 
City of Livermore    Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1052 S Livermore Ave    1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Livermore, CA  94550    Oakland,  CA  94607 
Facsimile (925 ) 373-5318    Facsimile:  (510) 893-6489 
 

CITY OF LIVERMORE ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 

By: _________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 
      Marc Roberts           Arthur L. Dao 
      City Manager           Executive Director 

Page 156Page 156Page 156Page 156



3 
 

Approved as to Legal Form:    Recommended: 

 

By: _______________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
Jason Alcala            Stewart D. Ng 
Acting City Attorney            Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

 

       Reviewed as to Budget/Financial Controls: 
 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Patricia Reavey 
             Director of Finance 

       Approved as to Legal Form: 

 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP 
             Alameda CTC Legal Counsel 

Page 157Page 157Page 157Page 157



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 158Page 158Page 158Page 158



 
 
 

  
  
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.16_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreement_UtilityRelocation\7.16_SR84_Corridor_ Projects_Agreement_Utility Relocation_Memo.docx 

 

Memorandum 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Route 84 Expressway Project - North and South Segments (PN 624.1 & 
624.2) and Isabel Avenue - Route 84/I-580 Interchange (PN 623.0): 
Agreement with the City of Livermore for Utility Relocation along the 
Route 84 Expressway Project and an Amendment to the Project 
Specific Funding Agreement No. A07-0058 with the City of Livermore 
for the Isabel Avenue – Route  84/I-580 Interchange Project 

RECOMMENDATION: (1) Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an Agreement with 
the City of Livermore for Utility Relocation along the Route 84 
Expressway Project - North and South Segments (PN 624.1 & 624.2) and 
(2) Amend the Project Specific Funding Agreement No. A07-0058 for 
the Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 Interchange Project (PN 623.0)

   

Summary  

The City of Livermore is the sponsor of the Route 84 Expressway Project – North and South 
Segments from West Jack London Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive.  Alameda CTC is the 
implementing agency for this project. The City of Livermore and Alameda CTC have 
agreed to share certain responsibilities for relocation of utilities within the Project limits. The 
Agreement between the City of Livermore and Alameda CTC will commit both parties to 
fulfill their responsibilities for utility relocation along the project limits.  

The City of Livermore and Alameda CTC have also agreed to amend the Project Specific 
Funding Agreement (PSFA) No. A07-0058 for the Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 
Interchange Project. The amendment to the PSFA will allow City of Livermore to use the 
projected $1.5 million Measure B savings from the Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 
Interchange Project for close-out costs for the Isabel Interchange project. The 
amendment will also allow the City of Livermore to use the funds for staff oversight costs 
for the underground relocation of existing PG&E and AT&T utilities between north of 
Concannon Boulevard and north of Stanley Boulevard on the Route 84 Expressway 
Project – North and South Segments. 

 

 

7.16 

 

Page 159Page 159Page 159Page 159



  
   
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.16_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreement_UtilityRelocation\7.16_SR84_Corridor_ Projects_Agreement_Utility Relocation_Memo.docx 

 

Background 

The Route 84 Expressway Project proposes to widen and upgrade State Route 84 in the 
Cities of Pleasanton and Livermore to expressway standards from West Jack London 
Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive. The Alameda CTC is the implementing agency and the 
project is funded in part with 2000 Measure B funds. The project is being implemented in 
two phases; a North Segment, from north of Concannon Boulevard to West Jack London 
Boulevard and a South Segment, from north of Concannon Boulevard to Ruby Hills Drive.  
The North Segment is currently under construction. The South Segment is in the design and 
right of way acquisition phases.  

The proposed improvements along State Route 84 within the limits of Route 84 Expressway 
- South Segment project require relocation of certain utilities. The City of Livermore is 
proposing relocation of certain utilities within the limits of Route 84 Expressway - North 
Segment project in accordance with the City of Livermore’s Scenic Route and General 
Plan Policies.  The City of Livermore and Alameda CTC have agreed to share certain 
responsibilities for relocation of these utilities along the project’s limits, including cost 
sharing. 

The Isabel Avenue – Route 84/I-580 Interchange Project is in construction close-out and 
right of way close-out phases. The City of Livermore is the implementing agency for this 
project, which received 2000 Measure B funds. There is a projected $1.5 million savings in 
allocated Measure B funds on this project.  As part of the agreement, the City of 
Livermore and Alameda CTC have agreed to amend the PSFA No. A07-0058 for the Isabel 
Ave – Route 84/I-580 Interchange Project. The amendment to the PSFA will allow City of 
Livermore to use the projected Measure B savings for project close-out costs on the Isabel 
Ave – Route 84/I-580 Project. The amendment will also allow the City of Livermore to use 
the funds for staff oversight costs for the underground relocation of existing PG&E and 
AT&T utilities along the Route 84 Expressway Project, between north of Concannon 
Boulevard and north of Stanley Boulevard.  The Agreement between the City of Livermore 
and Alameda CTC will commit both parties to fulfill their responsibilities for utility relocation 
for the Route 84 Expressway Project – North and South Segments and authorize the 
Alameda CTC Executive Director to amend the PSFA No. A07-0058 with the City of 
Livermore.   

Fiscal Impact:  The fiscal impact for approving this item is $3.0 million; the action will authorize 
the encumbrance of additional project funding for subsequent expenditure. This budget is 
included in the appropriate project funding plans.  This encumbrance amount is included in 
the Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital Program Budget. 

  

 

Page 160Page 160Page 160Page 160



  
   
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.16_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreement_UtilityRelocation\7.16_SR84_Corridor_ Projects_Agreement_Utility Relocation_Memo.docx 

 

Attachment 

A. Cooperative Agreement between the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
and City of Livermore for Utility Relocation along Route 84 Expressway Project – North 
and South Segments 

 
 
Staff Contact  

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

Gary Sidhu, Project Controls Team 

Page 161Page 161Page 161Page 161

mailto:stewartng@alamedactc.org
mailto:gsidhu@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 162Page 162Page 162Page 162



1 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

AND  

CITY OF LIVERMORE 

Utility Relocation along Route 84 Expressway Project – North and South Segments 

This COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated for reference purposes only as of January 23, 
2014, is entered into by and between the City of Livermore (“City”), a municipal corporation, and Alameda 
County Transportation Commission (“Alameda CTC”), a joint powers agency.  This Agreement shall become 
effective on the date the same is fully-executed by both parties (“Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

A. City is the sponsor of the State Route 84 Expressway Widening Project (“Project”) between West Jack 
London Boulevard and Ruby Hill Drive.  

B. Alameda CTC is the implementing agency for preliminary engineering, environmental studies, design, 
right of way acquisition and utility relocation.  The State of California Department of Transportation 
(“Caltrans”) will retain a contractor and manage and administer construction of the Project. 

C. The Project is segmented into the “North Segment,” from West Jack London Boulevard to north of 
Concannon Boulevard, and the “South Segment,” from north of Concannon Boulevard to Ruby Hill 
Drive.  

D. The Project Report and Environmental Document (PA&ED) for the combined North Segment and 
South Segment was approved in September 2008. 

E. The PA&ED and associated project budget documents assumed that utilities within the Project limits 
would remain overhead after relocation.   This was an incorrect assumption, since Route 84 was 
designated as a Scenic Route in the City’s General Plan, and the City’s Scenic Route and General Plan 
policies call for overhead utilities to be undergrounded in the City’s Scenic Route Corridors.  Subsequent 
to approval of the PA&ED, the City requested that certain utilities within the Project limits be 
undergrounded to reflect these policies. 

F. The City committed $1.5 million in Measure B Project Specific Funds anticipated to be saved at the 
future close out of its Isabel Avenue – 84/I-580 Interchange Project and $2.0 million in City Rule 20A 
Underground Funds for the underground relocation of certain utilities within the Project limits. 

G.  The City subsequently proposed to exchange $1.5 million in City Rule 20A Underground Funds for the 
$1.5 million in previously committed Measure B Project Specific Funds from the City’s Isabel 
Interchange Project. 

H. The City adopted Resolution No. 2013-130 on October 28, 2013, pursuant to which the City announced 
an intent to form an Underground District along certain segments of the Project between Vineyard 
Avenue and approximately 1,000 feet north of Stanley Boulevard. 

7.16A

Page 163Page 163Page 163Page 163



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I  

Alameda CTC Agrees: 

1.1 To perform the overhead relocation of PG&E’s 60KV electrical transmission line, 21KV 
electrical distribution line and AT&T communication line between Ruby Hill Drive and Vallecitos Road at 
project cost within the State Route 84 Expressway operating right of way as described in Caltrans Variance 
Request for 04-297614/297621.   

1.2 To pay all design sunk costs incurred in evaluating the underground relocation alternative for 
PG&E’s 60KV electrical transmission line.   

1.3 To perform the underground relocation of existing overhead utilities between north of 
Concannon Boulevard and East Vineyard Avenue (Segment 1) as shown on the attached Exhibit A, to be funded 
partially from the South Segment budget and partially from City’s contribution of $1.5 million Rule 20A 
Underground Funds in-lieu of City’s original $3.5 million ($2.0 million Rule 20A Underground Funds plus $1.5 
million in Measure B Project Specific Funds for the Isabel Interchange) commitment for underground utility 
relocation.  

1.4 To relinquish $2.0 million in City Rule 20A Underground Funds out of City’s original $3.5 
million commitment for utility relocation, to permit City to utilize the same for underground relocation of 
PG&E and AT&T utilities between north of Concannon Boulevard  and north of Stanley Boulevard (Segments 
2a and 2b).  

1.5 To accept City’s proposed exchange of $1.5 million in City Rule 20A Underground Funds for 
$1.5 million in previously committed Project Specific Measure B funds from the City’s Isabel Interchange 
Project.  

1.6 To secure all Right-of-Way for the undergrounding of utilities, including Design Exceptions 
with Caltrans for undergrounding overhead utilities on the State parcels.  

Section II  

City Agrees: 

2.1 To pay $1.5 million in City Rule 20A Underground funds to Alameda CTC towards 
underground relocation of existing overhead utilities between North of Concannon Boulevard and Vineyard 
Avenue (Segment 1) as shown on Exhibit A.   

2.2 To underground PG&E and AT&T utilities between north of Concannon Boulevard and north 
of Stanley Boulevard (Segment 2a & 2b) as shown on Exhibit A using City’s Rule 20A Underground Funds 
and/or other local funds.  

Page 164Page 164Page 164Page 164



3 
 

Section III  

It Is Mutually Agreed: 

3.1 City and Alameda shall take all requisite action to amend Project Specific Funding Agreement 
No. A07-0058 between City and Alameda CTC to add $1.5 million in freed up Project Specific Measure B funds 
back into the Isabel Interchange Project to be used for any Isabel Interchange Project close out costs and any 
City staff costs to provide oversight for the Project or underground relocation of existing PG&E and AT&T 
utilities between north of Concannon Boulevard and north of Stanley Boulevard. 

3.2 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject 
matter hereof and any oral discussions or written or oral agreements with respect thereto preceding the effective 
date of this Agreement are superseded hereby. No amendment, alteration, or variation of the terms of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or 
agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto.  

3.3 Alameda CTC and City each render their services under this Agreement as independent 
agencies. None of the agents or employees of either shall be deemed agents or employees of the other.  

3.4 Any notice given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if 
delivered personally or mailed by registered or certified mail or commercial overnight courier, return receipt of 
confirmation of delivery requested, or by facsimile transmission with voice confirmation or receipt, the parties at 
the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):  

 If to Livermore:     If to Alameda CTC: 

 Marc Roberts, City Manager   Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director 
City of Livermore    Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1052 S Livermore Ave    1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Livermore, CA  94550    Oakland,  CA  94607 
Facsimile (925 ) 373-5318    Facsimile:  (510) 893-6489 
 

CITY OF LIVERMORE ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 

By: _________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 
      Marc Roberts           Arthur L. Dao 
      City Manager           Executive Director 

Approved as to Legal Form:    Recommended: 

 

By: _______________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
Jason Alcala            Stewart D. Ng 
Acting City Attorney            Deputy  Director of Programming and Projects 

Signatures continue on the following page 

Page 165Page 165Page 165Page 165



4 
 

       Reviewed as to Budget/Financial Controls: 
 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Patricia Reavey 
             Director of Finance 

       Approved as to Legal Form: 

 

       By: ____________________________________ 
             Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP 
             Alameda CTC Legal Counsel 

Page 166Page 166Page 166Page 166



CONCANNON BLVD

`STANLEY BLVD

Proposed Utility
Undergrounding

Segment 1,
Approximately 4,200 feet

Proposed Utility
Undergrounding

Segment 2a,
Approximately 3,250 feet

Proposed Utility
Undergrounding

Segment 2b,
Approximately 1,000 feet

North to I-580

Alden Lane

Exhibit "A"

Page 167Page 167Page 167Page 167



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 168Page 168Page 168Page 168



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.17_Time_Extension_Amendments\7.17_Time_Ext_Amend_Memo_201312.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.17 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Various Projects: Amendments to Professional Services Agreements for 
Time Extensions 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve time extensions and authorize the Executive Director to 
execute amendments for requested time extensions to Professional 
Services Agreements in support of the Alameda CTC’s Capital Projects 
and Program delivery commitments. 

 

Summary  

Alameda CTC enters into professional services agreements with firms, project funding and 
grant agreements with project sponsors to provide the services necessary to meet the 
Capital Projects and Program delivery commitments. Agreements are entered into based 
upon estimated known project needs for scope, cost, and schedule. 

Two agreements have been identified with justifiable needs for a time extension and are 
recommended for approval. 

Background 

Through the life of an agreement, situations may arise that warrant the need for a time 
extension. 

The most common and justifiable reasons include: 

(1) Sole source services that are not available through any other source (eg: 
Engineer of Record and Proprietary software). 

(2) Delays in the procurement of new replacement contract. 

(3) Project delays. 

(4) Extended project closeout activities. 

Staff recommends that the Commission authorize the Executive Director of Alameda CTC 
to amend the listed agreements as shown in Attachment A. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  

Page 169Page 169Page 169Page 169



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.17_Time_Extension_Amendments\7.17_Time_Ext_Amend_Memo_201312.docx 

 

 

Attachments 

A. Table A:  Contract Time Extension Summary 
 

Staff Contact  

Trinity Nguyen, Sr. Transportation Engineer 

Page 170Page 170Page 170Page 170

mailto:Tnguyenl@AlamedaCTC.org


In
de

x 
N

o.
 

C
on

tra
ct

 
N

o.
 

Fi
rm

/A
ge

nc
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t/

Se
rv

ic
es

 
C

on
tra

ct
 A

m
en

dm
en

t H
is

to
ry

 
Tim

e 
Re

qu
es

t 
Re

as
on

 
C

od
e 

Fi
sc

al
 

Im
pa

ct
 

1 
A

09
-0

06
 

TJ
KM

 
W

eb
st

er
 S

tr
ee

t S
M

A
RT

 C
or

rid
or

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
A

1:
  A

d
d

iti
on

a
l t

im
e 

a
nd

 s
co

p
e 

A
2:

  A
d

d
iti

on
a

l t
im

e 
a

nd
 s

co
p

e 
A

3:
  A

d
d

iti
on

a
l t

im
e 

 

6 
m

on
th

s 
4 

N
on

e 

2 
A

12
-0

00
4 

St
. M

in
i C

a
b

 
Sa

m
e 

d
a

y 
ta

xi
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r s

en
io

rs
 

a
nd

 d
isa

b
le

d
 o

rig
in

a
tin

g
 in

 T
ri-

C
ity

 a
re

a
 

A
1:

  A
d

d
iti

on
a

l t
im

e 
 

 
3 

m
on

th
s 

2 
N

on
e 

(1
) 

So
le

 s
ou

rc
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
a

t a
re

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
b

le
 th

ro
ug

h 
a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
e.

 
(2

) 
D

el
a

ys
 in

 th
e 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t o
f n

ew
 re

p
la

ce
m

en
t c

on
tr

a
ct

. 
(3

) 
Pr

oj
ec

t d
el

a
ys

. 
(4

) 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

lo
se

ou
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
 

7.17A

Page 171Page 171Page 171Page 171



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 172Page 172Page 172Page 172



 
   

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.18_Admin_Contracts_Plan 

Memorandum 7.18 

 
DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: FY2014-15 Administrative Support Professional Services Contracts Plan  

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Commission approve the Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 Administration Support Professional Services Contracts Plan.  
Specifically, the Commission is requested to approve the following 
recommendations:  

A. Authorize the Executive Director to issue Request for Proposals 
(RFP) or solicit quotations for Paratransit Coordination Services, 
enter into negotiation with the top-ranked firm, and execute a 
contract; and  

B. Authorize the Executive Director to enter into negotiations with 
existing professional consultant firms and execute contracts for 
the following services: 

1. Federal Legislative Advocacy Services 
2. General Counsel Services 
3. Information Technology (IT) Services 
4. Media and Public Relations Services 
5. Project Management and Project Controls Services 
6. State Legislative Advocacy Services 

 
Summary  

The Alameda CTC contracts on a periodic basis with a number of professional services 
consultant firms to assist staff in providing a range of general administrative services, 
including, but not limited to, general counsel services, legislative advocacy, planning 
development, outreach, technical assistance, project and program-wide management, 
and administrative support services. Involvement of the private sector is critical to the 
success of Alameda CTC and its work in delivering effective, high quality transportation 
programs and projects in Alameda County. 

Staff recommends issuing one RFP and/or solicitation and renewing six contracts with 
existing professional services consultant firms.  The terms and conditions for each of the 
administration support professional services contracts will be negotiated, and all contracts 
are anticipated to commence on July 1, 2014. 

Page 173Page 173Page 173Page 173



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.18_Admin_Contracts_Plan 

Background 

The background and recommendations for each of the administration support professional 
services contracts are discussed below and summarized in Table 1 that follows. 

1. Federal Legislative Advocacy Services – Federal legislative advocacy services include 
providing monthly updates to staff on policy and legislative actions at the federal level 
and access to federal legislators and their staff when necessary to support 
implementation efforts for Alameda CTC’s capital projects and programs.  CJ Lake, LLC 
was awarded a contract in 2012 to provide these services. The value of the current 
contract, which covers the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, is $63,000. 

Staff recommends continuation of the Federal Legislative Advocacy Services contract 
with CJ Lake, LLC. 

2. General Counsel Services – General counsel services for Alameda CTC include 
representation at Committee and Commission meetings, review of contracts and 
agreements, counseling on personnel related matters, guidance on ongoing eminent 
domain activities, as well as other general counsel services.  Wendel, Rosen, Black & 
Dean, LLP, an Alameda CTC certified Local Business Enterprise (LBE) firm with offices in 
Oakland, California, was awarded a contract in 2012 to provide these services. The 
value of the current contract, which covers the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 
2014, is $780,058 and approximately 51% of the contract value is allocated to cover 
potential litigation matters and eminent domain actions. 

Staff recommends continuation of the Legal Counsel Services contract with Wendel, 
Rosen, Black & Dean, LLP. 

3. Information Technology (IT) Services – Information technology services include remote 
network hosting and management of the local area network, upgrade and 
maintenance of the central servers and workstations, and on-call IT support services.  
Novani, LLC was awarded a contract in 2011. The value of the current contract, which 
covers the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, is $139,100, of which approximately 
35% of the contract value is to cover “hard” costs for equipment upgrades and one-
time costs related to office relocation. 

Staff recommends continuation of the Information Technology Services contract with 
Novani, LLC. 

4. Media and Public Relations Services – Media and Public Relations Services include 
communications and public relations services, hosting and maintaining of the Alameda 
CTC website, preparing press and other public materials, assisting staff at public 
meetings and events, providing staff training, and supporting the implementation of the 
Alameda CTC Strategic Communications Plan.  Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., an 
Alameda CTC certified LBE firm with offices in Berkeley, California, was awarded a 

Page 174Page 174Page 174Page 174



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.18_Admin_Contracts_Plan 

contract in 2011. The value of the current contract, which covers the period from July 1, 
2013 to June 30, 2014, is $336,409. 

Staff recommends continuation of the Media and Public Relations Services contract 
with Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. 

5. Paratransit Coordination Services – Paratransit coordination services include meeting 
facilitation and coordination, administration and coordination of Measure B and 
Federal grants funding, outreach services, coordination of Alameda CTC’s Mobility 
Management Planning Pilot Program, and general technical assistance. 
Nelson/Nygaard Consulting Associates, an Alameda CTC certified LBE firm with an 
office in Oakland, California, has provided these services since 2009. The value of the 
current contract, which covers the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, is $363,771. 

Staff recommends issuing an RFP for these services. 

6. Project Management and Project Controls Services – Project Management and Project 
Controls team’s function is to provide project management, monitoring, and controls to 
ensure the efficient, effective, and successful delivery of Alameda CTC’s programs and 
capital projects.  These services also include, but are not limited to, utility and right-of-
way coordination, programming and grant management, and other related 
management activities.  Hatch Mott MacDonald, an Alameda CTC certified LBE firm 
with offices in Pleasanton, California, was awarded a contract in 2012 to provide these 
services. The current contract covers a period of 18 months ending June 30, 2014, and is 
for $4,359,657.  

Staff recommends continuation of the Project Management and Project Controls 
Services contract with Hatch Mott MacDonald. 

7. State Legislative Advocacy Services – State legislative advocacy services include 
providing monthly updates to the Commission and staff on policy and legislative 
actions at the state level and access to state legislators and their staff when necessary 
to support implementation efforts for Alameda CTC’s capital projects and programs.  
Platinum Advisors, LLC was awarded a contract in 2012 to provide these services. The 
value of the current contract, which covers the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 
2014, is $60,000. 

Staff recommends continuation of the State Legislative Advocacy Services contract 
with Platinum Advisors, LLC. 

Fiscal Impact 

Contracts recommended for continuation and/or an RFP process under this Administrative 
Support Professional Services Contracts Plan will be negotiated and the final budget will be 

Page 175Page 175Page 175Page 175



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.18_Admin_Contracts_Plan 

included in the Alameda CTC’s consolidated fiscal year 2014-2015 proposed budget for 
Commission approval. 

Attachment 

A. Table 1 – Summary of Administration Support Professional Services Contracts Plan 

Staff Contact  

Seung Cho, Contracting, Administration and Fiscal Resource Manager 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

Page 176Page 176Page 176Page 176

mailto:scho@alamedactc.org
mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


TA
BL

E 
1 

– 
SU

M
M

A
RY

 O
F 

A
DM

IN
IS

TR
A

TIO
N

 S
UP

PO
RT

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS
 P

LA
N

 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
C

ur
re

nt
 F

irm
 

C
on

tra
ct

 
Bu

dg
et

 fo
r F

Y 
20

13
-1

4 

Ye
ar

 o
f L

as
t 

RF
P 

Is
su

an
ce

 
Re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

A
ct

io
n 

Le
ga

l C
ou

ns
el

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
W

en
d

el
, R

os
en

, B
la

ck
 &

 D
ea

n,
 L

LP
 

$7
80

,0
58

 
20

12
 

1 
Ye

a
r R

en
ew

al
 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

a
na

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tro

ls 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

H
a

tc
h 

M
ot

t M
a

cD
on

al
d 

$4
,3

59
,6

57
 

20
12

 
1 

Ye
a

r R
en

ew
al

 

St
a

te
 L

eg
isl

a
tiv

e 
A

d
vo

ca
cy

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Pl
a

tin
um

 A
d

vi
so

rs
, L

LC
 

$6
0,

00
0 

20
12

 
1 

Ye
a

r R
en

ew
al

 

Fe
de

ra
l L

eg
isl

a
tiv

e 
A

d
vo

ca
cy

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
J 

La
ke

, L
LC

 
$6

3,
00

0 
20

12
 

1 
Ye

a
r R

en
ew

al
 

M
ed

ia
 a

nd
 P

ub
lic

 R
el

at
io

ns
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
M

oo
re

 Ia
co

fa
no

 G
ol

ts
m

a
n,

 In
c.

 
$3

36
,4

09
 

20
11

 
1 

Ye
a

r R
en

ew
al

 

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
C

oo
rd

in
a

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
N

el
so

n\
N

yg
a

ar
d

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

$3
63

,7
71

 
20

09
 

Iss
ue

 R
FP

 

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
N

ov
a

ni
, L

LC
 

$1
39

,1
00

 
20

11
 

1 
Ye

a
r R

en
ew

al
 

7.18A

Page 177Page 177Page 177Page 177



This page intentionally left blank 

Page 178Page 178Page 178Page 178



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.19_Results_on_Bond_Ratings\7.19_Staff_Report_Bond_Ratings.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.19 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Results of Solicitation of Ratings for Debt Issuance   

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on the results of the solicitation for ratings from 
Standard and Poor’s Rating Services and Fitch Ratings

 

Summary  

This is an informational item only.   

Since the Alameda CTC’s debt issuance planned for February 2014 is an inaugural 
issuance, one of the key steps in the process was to approach rating agencies to receive 
a rating for the Alameda CTC bond.  The financing team decided that the best 
approach would be to solicit two ratings and selected Standard and Poor’s Rating Services 
and Fitch Ratings with the expectation that the Alameda CTC would receive the best ratings 
possible from these agencies based on historical results and the rating agencies defined 
rating criteria.   Last week the Alameda CTC received the results of the extensive effort put 
towards the rating process from Standard and Poor’s Rating Services and Fitch Ratings.  The 
Alameda CTC’s inaugural bond issuance received a rating of AAA (the highest possible 
rating) from both Standard and Poor’s Rating Services and Fitch Ratings.  This is a tremendous 
accomplishment for the financing team which reflects very positively on the Alameda CTC.  
Rating agencies base their ratings of a sales tax revenue bond on the planned structure and 
security of a bond issuance, local economics which reflect the agency’s ability to repay the 
debt and the leadership of the agency.  The Alameda CTC is now the first and only self-help 
county in the State of California with a sales tax revenue bond rating of AAA from Fitch 
Ratings. 

Background 

In the effort to approach rating agencies for a rating, the financing team prepared an 
extensive presentation which included information related to all aspects of the Alameda 
CTC, the successes of Measure B, information on the local economy and demographics, 
the planned structure and security of the upcoming bond issuance and biographies of 
the executive team.  In the presentation, the financing team made it clear to the rating 
agencies that our expectation was the Alameda CTC deserved a rating of AAA based on 
the structure and security of the bond and the economics.  This was an important strategy 
because Fitch Ratings had never previously delivered a AAA rating to a self-help county in 

Page 179Page 179Page 179Page 179



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.19_Results_on_Bond_Ratings\7.19_Staff_Report_Bond_Ratings.docx 

 

 

the State of California on a sales tax revenue bond.  The presentations were delivered in 
person in the Alameda CTC’s new offices by the Alameda CTC Chair, Scott Haggerty, 
Executive Director, Art Dao, Director of Finance, Patricia Reavey, Deputy Director, Stewart 
Ng and Accounting Manager, Lily Balinton on December 6.  Over the next month, the 
rating agency representatives spent a significant amount of time becoming comfortable 
with the financing team’s suggested rating, engaging in multiple follow up conference 
calls with members of the financing team.  The financing team prepared a significant 
amount of the credit work and presentation information necessary for the representatives 
to utilize when presenting to their ratings committees for the final ratings.  The financing 
team and staff are very pleased with the results of this rating effort and believe it will save 
money on the sale of the bonds as well as reflect very well on the Alameda CTC as it 
again goes before the voters of Alameda County.  These ratings demonstrate the rating 
agencies confidence in the Alameda CTC’s leadership, financial strength, sales tax 
revenues, structure and security of the bonds and economics of the local economy.   

Fiscal Impact:   There is no immediate fiscal impact for this informational item; however 
receiving these AAA ratings has the potential to significantly reduce the cost of interest over 
the life of the bonds. 

Attachments 

A. Standard and Poor’s Report – Alameda County Transportation Commission, 
California; Sales Tax; AAA/Stable (hyperlinked to the website) 

B. Fitch Ratings Report – Fitch Rates Alameda County Trans Commission, CA Sales Tax 
Rev ‘AAA’; Outlook Stable 

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

Page 180Page 180Page 180Page 180

http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12714/4.2_Attachment_A_S%26P_Alameda_CTC_credit_article_2014-01-02.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12714/4.2_Attachment_A_S%26P_Alameda_CTC_credit_article_2014-01-02.pdf
mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


FITCH RATES ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANS COMMISSION,
CA SALES TAX REV 'AAA'; OUTLOOK STABLE

 
Fitch Ratings-San Francisco-03 January 2014: Fitch Ratings has assigned a 'AAA' rating to the
 following bonds issued by the Alameda County Transportation Commission, CA (the commission): 
 
--$145.9 million sales tax revenue bonds (limited tax bonds), series 2014.  
 
The bonds are expected to sell via negotiation on or about the week of Feb. 10, 2014. Proceeds will be
 used to fund various projects, including the BART Warm Springs Extension, Bart Oakland Airport
 Connector, Route 84 Interchange, and the I-580 Corridor Improvement projects.  
 
The Rating Outlook is Stable. 
 
SECURITY  
 
The bonds are secured by a first lien on the commission's one-half-cent sales tax collected in the
 County of Alameda.  
 
KEY RATING DRIVERS 
 
STRONG COVERAGE, CLOSED LIEN: The 'AAA' rating reflects robust coverage on the proposed
 sales tax revenue bonds, the closed lien structure, and short maturity limiting the exposure to
 collection volatility. 
 
HEALTHY SALES TAX BASE: Pledged revenues are an existing county-wide voter-approved sales
 tax supported by a healthy economy. Receipts have renewed growth and surpassed prior highs after
 a large recessionary decline. 
 
LIMITED OPERATING PRESSURES: Sales tax revenues are dedicated to specific capital projects
 and programs, and face minimal pressure from transportation operations or other potential uses. 
 
LARGE AND DIVERSE ECONOMY: Alameda County (implied GO rated 'AA+') is part of the large
 and diverse bay area economy that has proven resilient in the wake of the economic downturn. 
 
RATING SENSITIVITIES 
 
The rating is sensitive to shifts in fundamental credit characteristics including the strong debt service
 coverage. The Stable Outlook reflects Fitch's expectation that such shifts are highly unlikely. 
 
CREDIT PROFILE 
 
The commission is a joint powers authority formed to plan, fund and deliver significant transportation
 projects and programs throughout the county. It functions solely as a capital financing agency,
 with minimal operating responsibilities. Funding priorities include major capital projects, such
 as Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) extensions and stations, highway infrastructure, and street
 improvements.  
 
The commission is governed by 22 elected members representing all county supervisorial districts,
 cities, BART, and Alameda -Contra Costa (AC) Transit. It was established in 2010 by a merger of the7

7.19B

Page 181Page 181Page 181Page 181



 Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority (ACTIA), itself a successor to the Alameda
 County Transportation Authority (ACTA), and the Alameda County Congestion Management
 Agency (ACCMA). 
 
STRONG COVERAGE/CLOSED LIEN 
 
Debt service coverage on the sales tax bonds, which have an eight-year maturity, is strong at 4.3x
 maximum annual debt service (MADS). Coverage remains healthy under various stress scenarios,
 including a decline in sales tax revenues of 76.6% - nearly four times the largest historical decline -
 to equal 1.0x MADS. The indenture prohibits the commission from issuing any additional parity debt
 apart from refunding bonds (without extension of final maturity), which significantly strengthens the
 credit quality.  
 
HEALTHY SALES TAX BASE 
 
Pledged sales taxes exhibit an overall positive trend. Tax receipts increased a combined 28% over the
 last three years to a peak of $121 million in fiscal 2013 following a decline during the recession of
 12.9% and 6.8% in fiscals 2009 and 2010, respectively. For the first quarter for fiscal 2014, receipts
 increased 2.5% over the same period the prior year. 
Collection of the tax began in 1987 with voter approval of Measure B, a county-wide one-half-cent
 sales tax. In 2000, voters approved a 20-year extension of Measure B with an approval rate of 81.5%.
 A 2012 ballot measure that would have added a half-cent and extended the tax in perpetuity received
 66.53% of the vote, just under the two-thirds majority necessary to pass (66.67%). The commission
 intends to place a measure on the November 2014 ballot to increase the tax by a half-cent for a period
 of 30 years. However, payment of debt service on these bonds is solely secured by the 2000 Measure
 B sales tax revenues.  
 
The commission's funding requirements to date have been met on a pay as you go basis. As of
 June 2013 the commission reported approximately $204 million in cash available for capital and
 programmatic expenses. These funds are also available to pay debt service on commission debt, but
 are not pledged to bondholders.  
 
SOUND LEGAL PROTECTIONS 
 
Measure B collection of the sales tax sunsets March 31, 2022, which is the same month as the
 scheduled final maturity date of the series 2014 bonds. The tax is collected by the Board of
 Equalization and remitted directly to the Trustee. No additional parity bonds are permitted apart from
 refunding bonds. The Commission may issue subordinate bonds. There is no debt service reserve
 associated with this series.  
 
MINIMAL OPERATING PRESSURES 
 
The commission's funding commitments associated with the sales tax receipts are restricted to those
 specified in Measure B, and typically provide only a portion of project costs limiting its exposure to
 potential project cost overruns. In addition, the commission is restricted by the 20-year Transportation
 Expenditure Plan established by ordinance to allocating no more than 38.3% of Measure B sales
 tax revenues to capital projects with the remaining revenues allocated to various programmatic
 expenditures allocated on a formula basis and through competitive grants to local jurisdictions,
 including mass transit, local streets and roads, and bike and pedestrian safety. These features protect
 the commission's sales tax revenues from excess commitments or diversion. 
 
STABLE, DIVERSE ECONOMY  
 

Page 182Page 182Page 182Page 182



The county is one of five making up the San Francisco metropolitan statistical area (the MSA), and
 benefits from a strong regional economy and employment gains in neighboring San Francisco and
 Silicon Valley, with broad-based gains in nearly all industries led by the volatile technology sector.
 The largest county employers are governmental, led by the University of California, Berkeley, as
 well as medical centers, though many residents commute across the bay area for employment. The
 county's unemployment rate of 6.8% as of November 2013 bettered the state and national averages.
 County incomes are above state and well above national averages, although notably lower than the
 MSA.  
 
The county's taxable assessed value declined only 4% during the downturn and is currently at its
 historic peak after increasing a combined 7.7% in the three years ending fiscal 2014. Home values
 reported by Zillow, though still 13.75% below their prerecession peak, increased 27.5% year-over-
year as of October 2013.  
 
Contact: 
 
Primary Analyst 
Shannon Groff 
Director 
+1-415-732-5628 
Fitch Ratings, Inc. 
650 California Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94108 
 
Secondary Analyst 
Stephen Walsh 
Director 
+1-415-732-7573 
 
Committee Chairperson 
Michael Rinaldi 
Senior Director 
+1-212-908-0833 
 
 
Media Relations: Elizabeth Fogerty, New York, Tel: +1 (212) 908 0526, Email:
 elizabeth.fogerty@fitchratings.com. 
 
Additional information is available at 'www.fitchratings.com'. 
 
In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's Tax-Supported Rating Criteria, this
 action was additionally informed by information from Creditscope.  
 
Applicable Criteria and Related Research:  
--'Tax-Supported Rating Criteria' (Aug. 14, 2012); 
--'U.S. Local Government Tax-Supported Rating Criteria' (Aug. 14, 2012). 
 
Applicable Criteria and Related Research:  
Tax-Supported Rating Criteria  
http://www.fitchratings.com/creditdesk/reports/report_frame.cfm?rpt_id=686015 
U.S. Local Government Tax-Supported Rating Criteria 
http://www.fitchratings.com/creditdesk/reports/report_frame.cfm?rpt_id=685314 
 

Page 183Page 183Page 183Page 183



ALL FITCH CREDIT RATINGS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN LIMITATIONS
 AND DISCLAIMERS. PLEASE READ THESE LIMITATIONS AND
 DISCLAIMERS BY FOLLOWING THIS LINK: HTTP://FITCHRATINGS.COM/
UNDERSTANDINGCREDITRATINGS. IN ADDITION, RATING DEFINITIONS AND THE
 TERMS OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE AGENCY'S
 PUBLIC WEBSITE 'WWW.FITCHRATINGS.COM'. PUBLISHED RATINGS, CRITERIA AND
 METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT ALL TIMES. FITCH'S CODE
 OF CONDUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, AFFILIATE FIREWALL,
 COMPLIANCE AND OTHER RELEVANT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ARE ALSO
 AVAILABLE FROM THE 'CODE OF CONDUCT' SECTION OF THIS SITE. FITCH MAY HAVE
 PROVIDED ANOTHER PERMISSIBLE SERVICE TO THE RATED ENTITY OR ITS RELATED
 THIRD PARTIES. DETAILS OF THIS SERVICE FOR RATINGS FOR WHICH THE LEAD
 ANALYST IS BASED IN AN EU-REGISTERED ENTITY CAN BE FOUND ON THE ENTITY
 SUMMARY PAGE FOR THIS ISSUER ON THE FITCH WEBSITE. 
 

Page 184Page 184Page 184Page 184



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.20_ACTC_HRA_Retiree_Benefit_2014.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.20 

 

 

Summary  

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (Alameda CTC) Retiree Benefit Amount for 
the 2014 calendar year is reimbursed to retirees through the Health Reimbursement 
Arrangement (HRA) Plan.  The HRA Plan is a premium reimbursement plan for retiree health 
care premiums.  The Alameda CTC will contribute only the required minimum contribution 
amount directly to CalPERS for retirees ($119 per month in 2014).  CalPERS requires that the 
remaining premium costs be deducted directly from the retiree’s monthly retirement check 
under the CalPERS pension plan.  Once CalPERS takes this deduction, the Alameda CTC’s 
HRA will reimburse each retiree for the deduction, up to the annually determined amount.  
The HRA contribution amount recommended for 2014 is $1,367 per retiree per month 
($1,485.44 Kaiser Bay Area Employee [Retiree] Plus One Rate, less $119 PEMHCA-required 
minimum contribution).  Similar to active employees, if a retiree’s elected health coverage 
costs exceed the amount approved by the Commission, the retiree will be required to pay 
for the additional amount from his or her own funds. 

Background 

In December 2013, the Commission approved the comprehensive benefits program for 
employees of the Alameda CTC. This benefits program included CalPERS retirement benefits, 
health benefits for active employees, vacation and sick leave, holiday allowance and other 
benefits, but it did not include the amount to be reimbursed to retirees through the HRA plan.   

Fiscal Impact 

The 2014 retiree HRA contribution amount will be included in the FY13-14 mid-year budget 
update and in the FY14-15 proposed budget.   

 

Staff Contact 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC HRA Retiree Health Benefit for the 2014 Calendar Year 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the Alameda CTC Retiree Health Benefit for the 2014 
Calendar Year 

Page 185Page 185Page 185Page 185

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 186Page 186Page 186Page 186



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.21__General_Fund_Reserve_Policy.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.21 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC General Fund Balance Reserve Policy 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC General Fund Balance Reserve Policy 

 

Summary  

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that governments 
establish a formal policy on the level of unrestricted fund balance that should be 
maintained in the general fund.  It is essential that governments maintain adequate levels 
of general fund balance to mitigate current and future risks and sufficient liquidity in all 
funds.  Another objective in establishing a general fund balance reserve policy is to 
maintain credit worthiness.  Rating agencies monitor levels of fund balance and 
unrestricted fund balance in governmental general funds to evaluate creditworthiness. 

The Alameda CTC has an unrestricted fund balance in the general fund of $20.4 million as 
of June 30, 2013, $19.5 million of which is related to unused Measure B administrative 
funds which have accumulated over the years since the beginning of sales tax 
collections in 2002.  The accumulation of the administrative fund balance is the result of 
the agency’s ability to manage and administer the sales tax program efficiently and 
effectively over the years.  The Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) allows up to 4.5 
percent of the sales taxes collected to be spent on administrative costs.  Each year that 
administrative costs were less than the 4.5 percent allowed since 2002; there was an 
increase in the fund balance.   

The general fund reserve policy recommendation is to continue to accumulate excess 
administrative funds not utilized for one-time costs throughout the life of the Measure with 
the goal of reaching two months’ worth of expenditures for the general fund based on 
the adopted budget and one months’ worth of expenditures for the all other funds.  
Based on the budget adopted for FY13-14 this amount would be $35.5 million.  This policy 
will help to ensure that Alameda CTC is able to deliver all of its programs and projects, in 
particular those approved in the TEP.   

Programming of general fund reserves will be limited to one time costs such as disasters, 
unforeseen circumstances, immediate capital needs, shortfalls in projects or programs, 
shortfalls in the budget, or election costs for a new transportation measure.  Paying for 

Page 187Page 187Page 187Page 187



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.21__General_Fund_Reserve_Policy.docx 

 

 

election costs for a new measure out of these funds would not harm any of the projects or 
programs within the TEP, would help transportation within Alameda County, is permitted 
by Measure B and has been approved by the Commission. 

Background 

In accounting, the term “fund balance” is used to describe the net position of governmental 
funds calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  
Fund balance is intended to serve as a measure of the financial resources available in a 
governmental fund.  There are five categories of fund balance including: 

• Nonspendable fund balance, 
• Restricted fund balance, 
• Committed fund balance, 
• Assigned fund balance, and 
• Unassigned fund balance. 

The total of the last three categories, which include only resources without a constraint on 
spending, is considered unrestricted fund balance. 

In most cases, discussions of fund balance focus on a government’s general fund.  However, 
financial resources available in other funds should also be considered in assessing the 
adequacy of unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact.  

Staff Contact  

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

 

 

  

Page 188Page 188Page 188Page 188

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\Consent 
Items\7.22_Meeting_Calendar_2014\7.22_Meeting Schedule_CalendarYR_2014.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 7.22 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC 2014 Meeting Schedule  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Alameda CTC meeting schedule for the 2014 Calendar 
year 

 

Summary  

The Alameda County Transportation Commission adopts its meeting calendar at its 
annual organization meeting in January. The calendar outlines the meeting schedule for 
the full Commission in addition to standing committee meetings which include the 
following: I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee (I-580 PC), Planning, Policy and Legislation 
Committee (PPLC), Programs and Policy Committee (PPC) and, Finance and 
Administration Committee (FAC). Any Ad-hoc or steering committee meeting schedules 
are developed at the discretion of the Commission and will be noticed in accordance to 
Government Code Section 54950.  

Background 

Pursuant to Section 4.2.10 of the Alameda CTC Administrative Code, the Commission shall 
adopt the schedule of regular meetings of the Commission and the Standing Committees 
for the upcoming year at its January organizational meeting. The Commission and each 
Standing Committee may change the date for a regular meeting of such body to 
another business day if the regular date is a holiday or as otherwise determined by the 
Commission or such Standing Committee. 

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 
A. Alameda CTC 2014 Meeting Schedule 

Staff Contact  

Art Dao, Executive Director  

Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission 

Page 189Page 189Page 189Page 189

mailto:adao@alamedactc.org
mailto:vlee@alamedactc.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 190Page 190Page 190Page 190



(Second Monday of the Month)

                      I-680 JPA    
                     I-580 PC        
                        PPLC          
                         PPC            
                         FAC            

 January 13, 2014 
February 3, 2014
March 10, 2014
April 14, 2014
May 12, 2014
June 9, 2014
July 14, 2014

August Summer Recess

 September 8, 2014
October 13, 2014

November 10, 2014
No December Committee Meeting

Meeting Acronyms: Meeting Time

I-680 JPA Board
I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane Joint Powers 
Authority Board 9:30 AM

I-580 PC I-580 Policy Committee 10:00 AM
PPLC Planning, Policy & Legislation Committee 10:30 AM
PPC Programs and Projects Committee 12:00 PM
FAC Finance and Administration Committee 1:30 PM
ACTC Commission Alameda County Transportation Commission 2:00 PM

January 23, 2014

(Fourth Thursday of the Month)

ACTC COMMISSION 

February 27, 2014
March 27, 2014

September 25, 2014
October 23, 2014

No November Commission Meeting
December 4, 2014

  April 24, 2014
May 22, 2014
June 26, 2014
July 24, 2014

August Summer Recess

Alameda CTC Meeting Calendar 
2014 Calendar Year 7.22A

Page 191Page 191Page 191Page 191



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 192Page 192Page 192Page 192



7.23

Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Immediate Past President 
STEPHEN H. CASSIDY 
Mayor of San Leandro 

 President 
JOHN MARCHAND 
Mayor of Livermore 

 Vice President 
MARIE GILMORE 
Mayor of Alameda 

Alameda County Mayors’ Conference 
  

 
 
 
 

December 16, 2013 
 
 

Ms. Angie Ayers 
ACTC 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, CA  94607 

 
Dear Ms. Ayers: 

 
At its regular meeting of December 11th, the Alameda County 
Mayors’ Conference appointed Cynthia Dorsey to represent 
District 5 on the Alameda County Citizens' Watchdog 
Committee.  She will serve a two-year term.. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

                  Nancy Ortenblad 

 

Nancy Ortenblad 
Executive Director 

 

 

 

Alameda 
Marie Gilmore 
 
Albany 
Peggy Thomsen 
 
Berkeley 
Tom Bates 
 
Dublin 
Tim Sbranti 
 
Emeryville 
Jac Asher 
 
Fremont 
Bill Harrison 
 
Hayward 
Mike Sweeney 
 
Livermore 
John Marchand 
 
Newark 
Al Nagy 
 
Oakland 
Jean Quan 
 
Piedmont 
John Chiang 
 
Pleasanton 
Jerry Thorne 
 
San Leandro 
Stephen H. Cassidy 
 
Union City 
Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
Executive Director  
Nancy Ortenblad 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Executive Director * 835 East 14th Street * San Leandro CA 94577 * (925) 516-8389  
Mailing Address * 502 Apple Hill Drive, Brentwood, CA 94513 * E-Mail: nortenblad@comcast.net 

 

 Page 203

mailto:nortenblad@comcast.net


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20140109\3.0_BPAC_MeetingMinutes\3.1_Minutes_20131017.docx  

 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, October 17, 2013, 5:30 p.m.  

MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 
 P  Midori Tabata, Chair 

 A  Ann Welsh, Vice Chair 

 P  Mike Ansell 

 A  Mike Bucci 

 P  Alex Chen 

 A  Lucy Gigli 

 P  Jeremy Johansen 

 P  Preston Jordan 

 A  Heath Maddox 

 P  Ben Schweng 

 P  Sara Zimmerman

Staff: 
 P  Tess Lengyel, Deputy 

Director of Planning  

and Policy 

 P  Vivek Bhat, Senior 

Transportation Engineer 

 P  Matt Bomberg, Bicycle and Pedestrian Coordinator 

 P  Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

 P  Angie Ayers, Public Meeting Coordinator 

 

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Midori Tabata, BPAC Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. The meeting began 

with introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Approval of May 7, 2013 and June 6, 2013 Minutes 

Jeremy Johansen stated that a statement made in the public comment section of the 

May 7, 2013 minutes was ambiguous. Staff stated that the minutes will be reviewed and 

make changes accordingly. 

 

Preston Jordan moved to approve the May 7, 2013 and June 6, 2013 meeting minutes. 

Alex Chen seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 

4. Measure B Bicycle and Pedestrian Countywide Discretionary Fund Grant Projects 

Shawn Fong, program manager at the City of Fremont, gave a presentation on the results 

of the Cycle 4 grant for the Tri-City Senior Walk Clubs project. She stated that the program 

is called “Walk This Way” and was launched in July 2009 and ended June 2013. Shawn 

stated that the program provides a safe and comprehensive way to engage seniors in 

fitness, healthy living, pedestrian safety, accessing public transit, and addressing 

community mobility issues.  

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Alameda CTC staff and the BPAC thanked Shawn for a very successful program. It 

was noted that the work done for the community in Fremont was thoughtful and 

effective. 

8.1

Page 211Page 211Page 211Page 211



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20140109\3.0_BPAC_MeetingMinutes\3.1_Minutes_20131017.docx  

 

 Are there plans to continue the program? Shawn stated that it would be nice to 

continue; however, she does not have staffing capacity to continue the formal 16-

week program. 

 Did you find out if people changed their modes of transportation during this 

program? No, this type of measurement was not done. However, when you think 

about what it means for older adults to live in a community where transit access is 

not great, it’s difficult to get them out of their cars. It’s more difficult to change 

modes of transportation in a suburban area such as the City of Fremont.  

 Will you keep records and statistics now that you are not in the formal stage of the 

program? Shawn said at this point tracking is not being done. 

 

Jim Townsend, program manager at the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) and Ferd 

Del Rosario of the City of Dublin, gave a presentation on the results of the Cycle 4 grant 

for the Alamo Canal Regional Trail I-580 Undercrossing Project. Jim noted that the project 

was a joint effort between Alameda CTC, City of Dublin, City of Pleasanton, and EBRPD. 

Jim noted that early project development phases had also received Measure B bicycle 

and pedestrian grant funding.  Jim stated that the project was done under budget and 

on time. 

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Do you have comments on the utilization data of the undercrossing structure 

displayed in the Fehr & Peers Report?  

 

Jim noted that the manual count data presented in the project closeout report was for 

sites near the project and does not directly reflect usage of the project because the 

project closed a gap that was previously not traversable and prior to the structure the 

counts were zero. He noted that EBRPD has installed automated counters as part of the 

project and that those counters show increased levels of usage of the project.  

 

Mohammed Aloui and Ade Oluwasogo of the City of Oakland gave a presentation on 

the Lakeshore/Lake Park Avenue Complete Streets Project. Mohammed mentioned that 

the goal of this project was to improve safety and provide convenience for pedestrians, 

bicyclists, and commuters by improving the crossing underneath the I-580 Freeway from 

Lake Merritt to the shopping district. He noted that this project was done in partnership 

with the City of Oakland, AC Transit, and the community.  He noted that the project 

improves safety for pedestrians by relocating crosswalks so that drivers better see crossing 

pedestrians and are not faced with simultaneous decisions. 

 

5. Alameda CTC Workshop on Implementing Complete Streets Policies 

Matt Bomberg provided an update on the July 24, 2013 Complete Streets Workshop. He 

noted that 57 people attended including 45 local jurisdiction staff, seven other agency 

staff, and five members of advocacy organizations. All materials are online, and the link is 

in the agenda packet. 

 

6. Implementation of Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans Update 

Matt Bomberg gave an update on the implementation of Countywide Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Plans. He noted that the implementation actions include funding, technical 

tools and assistance, and countywide initiatives. Matt stated that most of the actions (47 

Page 212Page 212Page 212Page 212



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20140109\3.0_BPAC_MeetingMinutes\3.1_Minutes_20131017.docx  

 

of them) are scheduled to take place in 2013. He encouraged the BPAC members to 

email their comments to him. 

 

7. Organizational Meeting: 

7.1 BPAC Meeting Calendar FY 13-14 

Matt Bomberg reviewed the fiscal year 2013-2014 meeting calendar and requested 

input from the committee on the best recurring day of the month for the meeting. The 

BPAC agreed by consensus to continue to meet on the second Thursday of the 

month.  
 

7.2 BPAC Bylaws 

Tess Lengyel gave an overview of the proposed BPAC bylaws.  She mentioned that 

the greatest change involves a proposed shift from providing recommendations on 

projects to be funded through the Countywide Discretionary Fund bicycle and 

pedestrian grant program to a new role providing input to project sponsors in the early 

scoping and environmental phases of projects.  Tess also mentioned that BPAC would 

continue to review and provide input on Measure B and Vehicle Registration Fee 

discretionary funding guidelines as appropriate. Tess mentioned that staff plans to 

create a guidelines document to clearly spell out the proposed new role. 

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Members noted that the proposed changes are “substantial.”  Members noted 

that the BPAC role in the most recent coordinated funding program had been 

unclear and that a more clearly defined role would be an improvement.   

 Members asked for clarification as to whether BPAC would give input on projects 

prior to receiving funding.  Staff clarified that input would come after funding had 

already been awarded.  Members wondered if this would be too late. 

 Members asked if the proposed project-level review was a function currently 

performed by staff.  Staff responded that this is not a sort of review that currently is 

conducted. 

 Members asked if the BPAC’s skill set was considered in developing the proposed 

new role.  Staff responded that in fact the BPAC was considered a good match for 

conducting project-level review and that in the past, BPAC had often displayed a 

desire to give detailed feedback on project designs. 

 

Overall members expressed that the proposed new role could be a positive shift but 

that more information regarding specifics of how the new input would work was 

needed. 

 

Sara Zimmerman made a motion to table a decision regarding the bylaws until the 

next meeting. Jeremy Johansen seconded the motion. The motion passed 

unanimously (7-0). 

 

7.3 Election of BPAC Officers for FY13-14 

Preston Jordan nominated Midori Tabata for chair. Jeremy Johansen seconded the 

motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

 

Midori Tabata nominated Sara Zimmerman for vice chair. Preston Jordan seconded 

the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 

Page 213Page 213Page 213Page 213



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\BPAC\20140109\3.0_BPAC_MeetingMinutes\3.1_Minutes_20131017.docx  

 

 

8 Commission Actions and Staff Reports 

Tess Lengyel gave an update on the Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP). She stated 

that the TEP Ad Hoc Committee met in September and discussed focus groups and 

polling. She stated that a recommendation was made and approved at the 

September 24, 2013 Commission meeting to have a 30-year sunset date and to create a 

TEP Steering Committee to determine if it is feasible to place the TEP on the November 

2014 ballot and to review the 2012 TEP. Tess mentioned that we are looking forward to 

moving ahead with minimal updates to the TEP. 

 

Tess also gave an update on Alameda CTC Goods Movement Collaborative and Plan 

Development. She mentioned that Alameda CTC released a request for proposals in July 

and is currently negotiating with the top-ranked firm. Tess informed the committee that 

Alameda CTC is also working on a Countywide Multimodal Arterial Plan and a 

Countywide Transit Plan.  

 

In addition, Tess informed the committee that Beth Walukas is retiring at the end of the 

year, and Tess will again become the staff liaison for BPAC. Tess mentioned that the 

agency will have festivities in Beth’s honor, and Alameda CTC will notify the committee. 

Tess announced that Alameda CTC will host its annual open house on December 5, 2013, 

and BPAC members will receive an invitation via email. 

 

Matt Bomberg gave an update on the Sustainable Communities Technical Assistance 

Program. He stated that Alameda CTC received 22 applications totaling $6 million from 

10 jurisdictions, AC Transit, and the Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority. Currently, 

staff from Alameda CTC, MTC, and the Association of Bay Area Governments is reviewing 

the projects. A final list of projects recommended for funding is expected to go to the 

Commission for approval in January 2014. 

 

9. BPAC Members Reports 

Preston Jordan gave an update on the Caltrans project to add cycle tracks along San 

Pablo Avenue.  

 

Sara Zimmerman informed the committee that she is leaving ChangeLab Solutions. She 

accepted a position with the Safe Routes to School National Partnership. 

 

Midori Tabata said she’s been working with the City of Dublin regarding changes on 

Dublin Boulevard. Dave Campbell is working with the City of Dublin to put in bike lanes. 

Midori also attended the groundbreaking ceremony. 

 

Jeremy Johansen stated that the City of San Leandro is redoing San Leandro Boulevard 

to be pedestrian friendly. He noted that the project will be complete this year. 

 

10. Meeting Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8 p.m. 

Page 214Page 214Page 214Page 214



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
A

dv
iso

ry
 C

om
m

itt
ee

Ro
st

er
 a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
3-

20
14

R:
\A

la
C

TC
_M

ee
tin

gs
\C

om
m

un
ity

_T
A

C
s\

BP
A

C
\R

ec
or

ds
_A

dm
in

\M
em

be
rs

\M
em

be
rR

os
te

r\
BP

A
C

_R
os

te
r a

nd
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

_F
Y

13
-1

4_
20

13
10

21

Su
ffi

x
La

st
 N

am
e

Fi
rs

t N
am

e
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 
Be

ga
n

Re
-

ap
pt

m
t.

Te
rm

 
Ex

pi
re

s
M

tg
s 

M
iss

ed
  

Si
nc

e 
Ju

l '
13

*

1
M

s.
Ta

ba
ta

, C
ha

ir
M

id
or

i
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-4

Ju
l-0

6
Se

p-
13

Se
p-

15
0

2
M

s.
Zi

m
m

er
m

an
,

Vi
ce

-C
ha

ir
Sa

ra
Be

rk
el

ey
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-5

Fe
b-

12
Fe

b-
14

0

3
M

r.
A

ns
el

l 
M

ik
e

Liv
er

m
or

e
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-1

Se
p-

12
Se

p-
14

0

4
M

r.
Bu

cc
i 

M
ik

e
N

ew
ar

k
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r R
ic

ha
rd

 V
al

le
, D

ist
ric

t 2
Se

p-
12

Se
p-

14
1

5
M

r.
C

he
n

A
le

xa
nd

er
Fr

em
on

t
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r S
co

tt 
Ha

gg
er

ty
, D

ist
ric

t 1
O

ct
-0

9
Ja

n-
12

Ja
n-

14
1

6
M

s.
G

ig
li

Lu
cy

A
la

m
ed

a
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r W
ilm

a 
C

ha
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 3

Ja
n-

07
O

ct
-1

2
O

ct
-1

4
2

7
M

r.
Jo

ha
ns

en
Je

re
m

y
Sa

n 
Le

an
dr

o
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-3

Se
p-

10
Se

p-
13

Se
p-

15
0

8
M

r.
Jo

rd
an

Pr
es

to
n

A
lb

an
y

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r K

ei
th

 C
ar

so
n,

 D
ist

ric
t 5

O
ct

-0
8

Se
p-

12
Se

p-
14

0

9
M

r.
M

ad
do

x 
He

at
h

Be
rk

el
ey

Tr
an

sit
 A

ge
nc

y 
(A

la
m

ed
a 

C
TC

)
Se

p-
12

Se
p-

14
2

10
M

r.
Sc

hw
en

g
Be

n
A

la
m

ed
a

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

ay
or

s' 
C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-2
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

15
0

11
M

s.
W

el
sh

A
nn

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r N
at

e 
M

ile
y,

 D
ist

ric
t 4

O
ct

-0
9

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

2

Page 215Page 215Page 215Page 215



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 216Page 216Page 216Page 216



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\CWC\20140113\5.0_Minutes\5.1_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_20131104.docx  

 

Citizens Watchdog Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, November 4, 2013, 6:30 p.m.  

MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 
__P__ James Paxson, Chair 

__P__ Harriette Saunders,  

Vice Chair 

__P__ Mike Dubinsky 

__A__ Arthur Geen 

__P__ Sandra Hamlat 

__A__ James Haussener 

__P__ Steve Jones 

__A__ Bill Klinke 

__P__ Brian Lester 

__P__ Jo Ann Lew 

__P__ Deborah Taylor 

__P__ Hale Zukas 

 

Staff: 
__P__ Arthur L. Dao, Executive 

Director 

__P__ John Hemiup, Senior 

Transportation Engineer 

__P__ Tess Lengyel, Deputy 

Director of Planning  

and Policy 

__P__ Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 

__P__ Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

__P__ Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

__P__ Angie Ayers, Public Meeting Coordinator 

__P__ John Nguyen, Hatch Mott MacDonald 

 

 
 

 

Meeting Minutes 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

James Paxson, CWC Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The meeting began 

with introductions and meeting outcomes. James welcomed new member Brian Lester to 

the committee. 

 

2. Public Comment 

Charles Cameron, a resident of Union City, expressed his displeasure with the changes 

made at the Union City BART Station as part of the Union City Intermodal Station project. 

He stated that the changes made are a disadvantage to seniors and people with 

disabilities. Charles noted that AC Transit is also changing their routes to the Union City 

BART station, which will further impact the ability of seniors and people with disabilities to 

get to the entrance of the station. CWC members mentioned that the current situation 

was created as part of phase one of the project and phase two of the project should 

address the access problems. 

 

3. Approval of July 8, 2013 Minutes 

Deborah Taylor moved to approve the minutes as written. Mike Dubinsky seconded the 

motion. The motion passed unanimously (9-0). 

 

4. CWC Annual Report Outreach Summary 

4.1. Update on Outreach and Costs 

Tess Lengyel gave an update on the publishing and outreach efforts for the 11th 

CWC Annual Report to the Public. She summarized the work Alameda CTC did, 

which was based on the direction of the CWC, to produce and distribute the 

8.2

Page 217Page 217Page 217Page 217



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\CWC\20140113\5.0_Minutes\5.1_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_20131104.docx  

 

report, as well as to place print and online banner advertisements in the media. 

Placing the report in Bay Area publications and the banner advertisements on 

various websites required creating many different layouts to fulfill the space 

requirements. Tess stated that Alameda CTC continues to do information sharing 

through the E-newsletter and the Executive Director’s report. She informed the 

committee that staff will bring the final outreach summary to the January meeting. 

 

James Paxson mentioned that Mike Dubinsky brought forth proposed outreach 

objectives for the CWC Annual Report at the July meeting. The document 

submitted was intended as a policy statement. James informed the committee 

that the document will be included in the January agenda packet. 

 

4.2. CWC Report on Outreach Summary 

Comments on members outreach efforts: 

 Harriette Saunders commented that she distributed the CWC Annual Report 

and the flyers in English, Chinese and Spanish at various senior centers in 

Alameda County. 

 

 Mike Dubinsky stated that as the representative appointed by District 2 he 

contacted the major jurisdictions and the Sunol Citizens Advisory Committee 

in District 2. He requested the cities post a link to the CWC Annual Report 

and/or a press release about the CWC Report on their public webpage. All 

cities except Union City adhered to the request. The cities placed the report 

on the page that shows their accomplishments on Measure B. Mike stated 

that Sunol placed it on their meeting agenda as an information item.  

 

 Deborah Taylor stated that she took the report and flyers to the Grand Lake 

Farmers Market. She mentioned that Mayor Jean Quan allowed her to 

place the report and flyers on her information table. Deborah also 

distributed the report and flyers at the Environmental Award dinner for the 

League of Conservation Voters in the East Bay and the Neighborhood Crime 

Prevention Council. She commented that it would be great if the CWC 

committee members’ names were on the one-page flyer. 

 

 Steve Jones commented that the City of Dublin had the report and flyer at 

City Hall. He distributed the report and flyer at the Lyons Club meetings in 

Dublin. Steve also distributed the flyers in Chinese and Spanish to his  

co-workers.  

 

 James Paxson stated that he performed outreach in the Tri-Valley areas. He 

gave the flyers to Supervisor Nate Miley and Supervisor Scott Haggerty and 

their staff. Supervisor Miley included the information in his newsletter. James 

also gave presentations to the Dublin and Pleasanton city councils.  

 

 Sandra Hamlat distributed the report through the East Bay Bicycle Coalition. 

 

James requested that staff provide the CWC with a list of the organizations in the 

Constant Contact database that received information on the CWC 11th Annual 

Report to the Public. 

Page 218Page 218Page 218Page 218



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\CWC\20140113\5.0_Minutes\5.1_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_20131104.docx  

 

 

5. Program Compliance Workshop Update 

Matt Todd gave a presentation on the Alameda CTC annual compliance reporting 

process that documents 2000 Measure B expenditures for four program areas. The CWC 

reviews the expenditures related to the programs. 

 

Matt discussed the annual audit and compliance reporting requirements, the new 

compliance policies that were effective this year, and the dates for the CWC compliance 

review process. Matt discussed the Master Programs Funding Agreements (MPFAs) and 

how it addresses: 

 Timely use of funds 

 Reserve funds 

 Rescission of funds 

 Complete Streets 

 

Matt informed the committee that 39 people attended the September compliance 

workshop. 

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Does the MPFA outline the requirements for the Compliance Report Reserve 

policies? Matt stated that the reserve policies and monitoring procedures are on 

pages 39-47 in the agenda packet. He noted that the Commission approved the 

Compliance Report Reserve Policy at its October 24, 2013 meeting. Matt informed 

the committee that the jurisdictions were presented a draft of the policy at the 

September workshop. 

 How can the process be simplified for ease of viewing and understanding? It was 

mentioned that the spreadsheet is tracking much more data than in the past, and 

that we will have a chance to review completed reports in January. 

 How will the jurisdictions illustrate that they have done what they committed to do? 

Matt stated that two tabs exist on the spreadsheet that will assist in evaluating 

proposed and actual expenses. 

 

It was noted that the Compliance Reports are submitted at the end of December and 

Alameda CTC and CWC will review them concurrently. In January staff will walk through 

the report with the committee. The January CWC meeting will start an hour earlier for the 

Audit and Compliance Report review. 

 

6. Report on the CWC Post-Audit Subcommittee Meeting 

6.1. CWC Post-Audit Subcommittee Minutes 

The minutes were distributed separately and there were no comments from the 

committee. 

 

  

Page 219Page 219Page 219Page 219



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\CWC\20140113\5.0_Minutes\5.1_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_20131104.docx  

 

6.2. Confirm CWC Process on Audit Reviews 

James Paxson led the discussion on possible modifications to the process for the 

Pre- and Post-Audit Subcommittee meetings. He mentioned that last year the CWC 

Audit Subcommittee met jointly with the Commission Audit Committee. This year, 

the joint meeting did not occur, because it was brought to the Audit 

Subcommittee’s attention that autonomy should be retained by the CWC 

regarding Measure B funds. James requested members’ feedback on:  

 Should the CWC Audit Subcommittee meet jointly or separately with the 

Commission Audit Committee?  

 

The general consensus among the members was a preference to meet separately 

from the Commission and provide comments to the Finance and Administration 

Committee (FAC). The members requested the CWC look at the Alameda CTC 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) before the FAC in order to provide 

comments. Staff noted that the CAFR must be submitted to the FAC in November 

and the full Commission in December. Currently, the CWC and FAC meetings are 

on the same day in November. The CWC Audit Subcommittee meeting schedule is: 

 CWC Pre-Audit Subcommittee meets in June before the audit begins. 

 CWC Post-Audit Subcommittee meets in October after the audit is complete. 

 CWC will meet before the November FAC meeting to review the 

independent audit reports and provide comments to the FAC in a timely 

manner. 

 

7. Presentation of Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Ahmad Gharaibeh with Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (VTD) presented the CAFR. He 

informed the committee that this report contains more information and analysis than prior 

years. He mentioned that the Alameda CTC will apply for the Government Finance 

Officers Association (GFOA) award for excellence in financial reporting for this CAFR, 

which requires a greater level of detail than the financial reports prepared in prior years. 

 

Highlights of the presentation include the following: 

 Regarding the auditor’s report on the financial statements, VTD issued a clean, or 

unmodified, audit opinion for the year ended June 30, 2013. VTD also reported a 

clean, or unmodified, opinion on the audit of the ACTIA Limitations Worksheet. 

 Regarding the CWC’s audit concerns, Ahmad provided information that showed 

the audit testing performed and other procedures used to address the concerns 

discussed at the CWC pre- and post-audit subcommittee meetings. 

 Ahmad reviewed the Alameda CTC’s Financial Highlights, which included the 

statement of net position, ACTIA funds balance sheet, Alameda CTC statement of 

activities, and ACTIA revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. 

 

Questions/feedback from members: 

 Do salaries and benefits include contract employees? No, salaries and benefits 

expense only includes staff. Consultant’s time is charged to the task or projects 

they work on directly, such as the bicycle and pedestrian program, the paratransit 

program or individual committee support.   

 How are contract resources handled? Consultants bill their time via invoices.  The 

auditors have audited a sampling of invoices.  It is most likely that the Acumen 

Page 220Page 220Page 220Page 220



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\CWC\20140113\5.0_Minutes\5.1_CWC_Meeting_Minutes_20131104.docx  

 

invoices which is the vendor that many of our in house consultants are contracted 

through were part of the sample audited by VTD because they are larger invoices.  

 What are administrative costs referring to under the Limitations Worksheet? Are 

consultant fees included in the 4.5 percent administrative costs? It was noted that 

4.5 percent of net sales tax revenues is budgeted for administrative costs for the 

Measure B sales tax program. Administrative costs paid for out of the 4.5 percent 

administrative allowance include items such as administrative salaries (limited to 

1 percent of sales tax revenues), rent, office supplies, legal fees, phone expense, 

insurance, program management (which includes administrative consultant costs), 

audit fees and other related items funded by the general fund.  

 

8. Year-end Investment Report FY 12-13 

Patricia Reavey reviewed the Alameda CTC Year-end Investment Report for FY 12-13 with 

the committee. 

 

9. Quarterly Investment Report: FY 13-14 

Patricia Reavey reviewed the Alameda CTC Consolidated FY13-14 First Quarter 

Investment Report with the committee. 

 

10. Responses to CWC Requests for Information 

The CWC members did not request any additional information for this meeting. For the 

next meeting the committee requested that staff discuss the changes to the Measure B 

Dumbarton Corridor Capital project. 

 

11. CWC Member Reports/Issues Identification (Verbal) 

11.1. CWC Issues Identification Process and Form 

James Paxson explained the Issues Identification Process and form for the new 

members. Jo Ann Lew stated that she will submit an Issues Form for the debt policy. 

James requested JoAnn to complete the form and email it to staff before the next 

meeting. 

 

James requested that staff bring a report on the FY2012-13 Local Business Contract Equity 

and Contract Utilization Reports to the January meeting.  

 

12. Staff Reports/Board Actions 

None 

 

13. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for January 13, 2014 at 

Alameda CTC offices. 

Page 221Page 221Page 221Page 221



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 222Page 222Page 222Page 222



 
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
C

om
m

iss
io

n
C

iti
ze

ns
 W

at
ch

do
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 B
eg

an
Re

-a
pp

tm
t.

Te
rm

 E
xp

ire
s

M
tg

s M
iss

ed
  

Si
nc

e 
Ju

ly
 '1

3*

1
M

r.
Pa

xs
on

, C
ha

ir
Ja

m
es

 
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

Ea
st

 B
ay

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

lli
an

ce
A

pr
-0

1
N

/A
0

2
M

s.
Sa

un
de

rs
, 

Vi
ce

-C
ha

ir
Ha

rri
et

te
 

A
la

m
ed

a
Pa

ra
tra

ns
it 

A
dv

iso
ry

 a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

Ju
l-0

9
N

/A
1

3
M

r.
D

ub
in

sk
y

Pe
te

r "
M

ik
e"

Fr
em

on
t

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y
Su

p
er

vi
so

r R
ic

ha
rd

 V
a

lle
, D

-2
O

ct
-1

0
M

a
r-1

3
M

ar
-1

5
0

4
M

r.
G

ee
n

Ar
th

ur
 B

. 
O

a
kl

a
nd

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y 
Ta

xp
a

ye
rs

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

Ja
n-

01
N

/A
3

5
M

s.
H

a
m

la
t

Sa
nd

ra
O

a
kl

a
nd

Ea
st

 B
a

y 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
C

oa
lit

io
n

Ap
r-1

3
N

/A
0

6
M

r.
H

a
us

se
ne

r
Ja

m
es

C
a

st
ro

 V
a

lle
y

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y
Su

p
er

vi
so

r N
a

te
 M

ile
y,

 D
-4

Fe
b

-1
0

Se
p

-1
2

Se
p-

14
2

7
M

r.
Jo

ne
s

St
ev

en
D

ub
lin

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

a
yo

rs
' C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

-1
D

ec
-1

2
De

c-
14

0

8
M

r.
Kl

in
ke

W
illi

a
m

Be
rk

el
ey

Al
a

m
ed

a
 L

a
b

or
 C

ou
nc

il 
AF

L-
C

IO
Fe

b
-1

3
N

/A
1

9
M

r.
Le

st
er

Br
ia

n
Pl

ea
sa

nt
on

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y
Su

p
er

vi
so

r S
co

tt 
H

a
gg

er
ty

, D
-1

Se
p

-1
3

Se
p-

15
1

10
M

s.
Le

w
Jo

 A
nn

Un
io

n 
C

ity
Al

a
m

ed
a

 C
ou

nt
y 

M
a

yo
rs

' C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-2

O
ct

-0
7

Se
p

-1
3

Se
p-

15
0

11
M

s.
Ta

yl
or

D
eb

or
a

h
O

a
kl

a
nd

Al
a

m
ed

a
 C

ou
nt

y
Su

p
er

vi
so

r W
ilm

a
 C

ha
n,

 D
-3

Ja
n-

13
Ja

n-
15

0

12
M

r. 
Zu

ka
s

H
a

le
Be

rk
el

ey
Al

a
m

ed
a

 C
ou

nt
y

Su
p

er
vi

so
r K

ei
th

 C
a

rs
on

, D
-5

Ju
n-

09
Ap

r-1
2

A
pr

-1
4

1

13
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-3

14
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-4

15
Va

ca
nc

y
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

M
ay

or
s' 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e,

 D
-5

16
Va

ca
nc

y
Le

ag
ue

 o
f W

om
en

 V
ot

er
s

17
Va

ca
nc

y
Si

er
ra

 C
lu

b

Page 223Page 223Page 223Page 223



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 224Page 224Page 224Page 224



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning 
Committee Meeting Minutes 

Monday, October 28, 2013, 1 p.m.  

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_A_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Aydan Aysoy 

_A_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_A_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Gaye Lenahan 

_A Jane Lewis 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_P Suzanne Ortt 

_P Sharon Powers 

_A Vanessa Proee 

 

 

_A Dianne Richards-

Reiss 

_P Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Margaret Walker 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

Staff:  

_P_ Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

_P_ John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Project/Program Team 

 

Guests:  

Dana Bailey, City of Hayward Paratransit; Billy Chan, On Lok Lifeways; 

Sarah Dawn-Smith, Bay Area Outreach and Recreation Program; Pam 

Deaton, City of Pleasanton Paratransit; Shawn Fong, City of Fremont 

Paratransit 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Will Scott, PAPCO Vice Chair, called the meeting to order at 1:10 p.m. 

The meeting began with introductions and a review of the meeting 

outcomes. 

8.3

Page 225Page 225Page 225Page 225



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Approval of September 23, 2013 Meeting Minutes 

Herb Hastings moved to approve the September 23, 2013 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes. Michelle Rousey seconded the motion. The motion 

passed (15-0-0). 

 

4. East Bay Paratransit Report 

This report was postponed. 

 

5. Gap Grant Cycle 4 Summary Report 

John Hemiup and Naomi Armenta gave a summary report on Gap 

Grant Cycle 4. John noted that this presentation is part of a larger 

update on direct local program distributions as well as grant program 

funding in the last cycle. John reviewed the Measure B distributions 

and noted that Programs receives 60% and Capital Projects receives 

40% of overall Measure B sales tax revenue. The 60% of annual 

Measure B revenues supports five types of programs including local 

streets and roads (22.34%), mass transit (21.92%), paratransit (10.45%), 

bicycle and pedestrian safety (5%) and transit center development 

(0.19%). The funding that is allocated to special transportation for 

seniors and people with disabilities is the highest amount given to 

paratransit in the Bay Area.  

 

In FY12-13, Alameda CTC distributed $64.8 million in direct local 

program distributions. Similarly, since 2004, Alameda CTC has awarded 

approximately 140 grant funded projects in the amount of $38 million. 

The grant program funds four types of programs including bicycle and 

pedestrian safety, paratransit, express bus and transit center 

development. Since April 2002, Alameda CTC has allocated $677.5 

million to direct local programs distributions as well as grant funds. 

Paratransit has received approximately $14.4 million in grant funding.  

 

The projects funded through the Coordinated Funding Program and 

Paratransit Gap Grant Cycle 5 program are currently underway and 

are funded through FY14-15. These Measure B grant projects undergo 

Page 226Page 226Page 226Page 226



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

a competitive process similar to VRF. These projects help improve 

transportation access for the diverse population in Alameda County 

and provide improvements that encourage Alameda County 

residents to walk, bike, take public transportation and live in transit 

oriented developments. 

 

As previously mentioned, the funding allocated to paratransit is the 

largest allocation of any Bay Area sales tax measure. This funding 

supports approximately one million rides annually including those of 

the Wheelchair Scooter Breakdown Transportation Service, the 

Hospital Discharge Transportation Service, the ADA paratransit 

programs, and the city based programs. 

 

Naomi reviewed the paratransit Gap Grant Cycle 4 projects that were 

originally funded in 2008. The types of projects that were funded 

included grants for capital, mobility management, travel training, 

volunteer driver programs, specialized service provision, and other 

miscellaneous projects. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Although 10.45% may be the highest amount of funding given to 

paratransit in the Bay Area, it is important to think about the 

denominator i.e. the actual need for services in the respective 

areas. Staff noted that need is pretty steady in the Bay Area as 

funding is allocated with respect to population and age. 

 What are the 20 jurisdictions that are mentioned on slide 4? These 

jurisdictions include the city agencies, LAVTA, BART, AC Transit, 

WETA, and Alameda County. 

 How much funding was given to the Center for Independent 

Living for travel training as it is noted on slide 10? Also, the current 

Mobility Matters! grant funding has not been allocated. Is there 

an update on that? Staff will follow up with the amount that was 

allocated to CIL for travel training for Cycle 4. Staff also noted 

that if there are any issues that CIL would like to address 

regarding their Gap Grant Cycle 5 funding (reimbursements, 

reporting process, etc.), they should contact staff directly.  

 Why does Express Bus receive $9.6 million, as stated on slide 6, 

when the AC Transit buses do not run on schedule? Staff replied 

Page 227Page 227Page 227Page 227



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

that this discretionary funding is dictated by the 2000 TEP and is 

to improve regional connectivity. 

 Staff noted that the funding formulas that determine how much 

funding each type of program receives were established in the 

2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan. These formulas are fixed 

until they are amended.  

 With regards to the Hospital Discharge Transportation Service 

and the Affordable Care Act now in full effect, what is Alameda 

CTC’s role in decreasing the recidivism of patients reentering a 

medical facility? Staff noted that the funding that Alameda CTC 

allocates is primarily focused on transportation projects and 

programs. This issue is more relevant to social services and public 

health but Alameda CTC will continue to improve our HDTS 

program and transportation services overall. Staff also noted that 

information regarding the Avoid Readmissions through 

Collaboration (ARC) will be distributed at the next PAPCO 

meeting for individuals who would like to get more involved with 

this issue. 

 The presentation was well organized. 

 The Wheelchair Scooter Breakdown Transportation Service works 

really well. I experienced a breakdown recently and the service 

was very responsive to my needs. 

 

6. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Harriette Saunders attended a festival with Oakland Mayor Jean 

Quan as an ambassador. She also attended the Black Cowboys 

parade.  

 

Sandra Johnson-Simon attended the CARA conference in 

Sacramento and was elected as one of their Vice Presidents. 

 

Margaret Walker participated in the Easter Seals’ Partnerships with 

Transit online course. 

 

Michelle Rousey was asked to speak at a conference in Sacramento 

on Nov. 12th regarding the Coordinated Care Initiative. The California 

Olmstead meeting is also on Nov. 12th and she will also be discussing 

Page 228Page 228Page 228Page 228



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

the Coordinated Care Initiative at that meeting as well. Also on Oct. 

13th, Michelle was interviewed by Channel 7 news regarding the 

pending BART strike. 

 

Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson is now a part of the Railroad Accessibility 

Taskforce as an ADA consumer. She also notified the committee of 

accidents that have taken place on WHEELS buses as well as a 

platform that was put in place to improve a bus stop by the city within 

a week of a complaint. 

 

Shawn Costello has been working with the City of Dublin to improve 

the potholes on local streets and roads and he has also done work 

around the Iron Horse Trail. Shawn also noted that a police officer on a 

motorcycle almost got into an accident with him and did not check 

to see if he was okay after the incident. Shawn also noted that if 

anyone is going to be transported without their wheelchair or mobility 

device for repairs, make sure to place it in a visible location so the 

transportation service can easily locate the mobility device. 

 

Will Scott attended the Berkeley Sunday Streets event on Oct. 13th but 

was not able to connect with Krystle and the Alameda CTC table. Will 

also reported that he was able to assist Sharon Moret as an advocate 

for her paratransit hearing with East Bay Paratransit. The issue was 

resolved and Sharon was satisfied with the outcome. 

 

Jonah Markowitz helped distribute emergency contact cards at the 

North Berkeley Senior Center. He also noted that the Berkeley/Albany 

Mental Health Commission is starting to discuss alternatives to Laura’s 

law which forces individuals who need mental help rather than 

physical help to be admitted into an institution in order to prevent a 

5150. If anyone is interested in more information, Carol Patterson is a 

good resource. 

 

Sharon Powers attended the Newark Senior Center Health Faire at the 

Newark Community Center. She noted there were a lot of great 

vendors and health screenings available at the faire. She also noted 

that the space was very inaccessible for people in mobility devices 

and that the event will be taking place at another location as a result. 

Page 229Page 229Page 229Page 229



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

 

7. Committee Reports 

 

7.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

Sharon Powers reported that at the last SRAC Meeting, officer 

elections took place. East Bay Paratransit also notified the public 

that the sedan vehicles will no longer be in service. Many people 

noted that they do not want to see the sedans go away as the 

larger cutaway vehicles are uncomfortable. Members suggested 

sitting closer to the driver when riding in a cutaway vehicle as the 

vibration is much less intense (although riders do not always get to 

determine where they sit in the vehicle). The next SRAC meeting 

will take place on Tuesday, Nov. 5th.  

 

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

Harriette Saunders reported that the next meeting is on Monday, 

Nov. 4th at 6:30 p.m. at the new Alameda CTC offices. Also, the 

CWC Annual Report is now out and it looks really nice. The report is 

also available in Spanish and Chinese. Lastly, the CWC is now 

meeting with the auditors to learn how the process will work for this 

fiscal year. 

 

8. Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review these items in their packets.  

 

9. Information Items 

 

9.1. Mobility Management – Mobility Options for the Community 

Naomi reviewed the Easter Seals Project Action mobility 

management handout in the agenda packet. She noted that the 

Mobility Options for the Community handout is a tool that will help 

individuals think about the various transportation options that 

might be available in their community. It includes a chart that 

individuals can document information about transportation 

services. Naomi noted that this information can be included in the 

mobility management inventory that AC Transit and 

Nelson\Nygaard is currently conducting. 

 

Page 230Page 230Page 230Page 230



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

Naomi also gave an update on the mobility management grant 

and reminded the Committee that the inventory is currently 

underway. She noted that staff is currently looking for a place in 

which the information will be stored. The Committee will also be 

discussing the updates to the Access Alameda booklet and 

website at the next PAPCO meeting. 

 

9.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach events: 

 10/4/13 – Healthy Lifestyle and Fitness Faire, Newark 

Community Center from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 10/5/13 – Senior Info Fair, Dublin Senior Center from 10:00 

a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 10/7/13 – Alameda CTC Annual Mobility Workshop, Ed 

Roberts Campus from 9:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. 

 10/10/13 – Annual Senior Health Fair, St. Regis Retirement 

Center from 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 10/13/13 – Berkeley Sunday Streets, Downtown Berkeley from 

11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 

 10/17/13 – Family Bridges Health Fair, Hotel Oakland from 

10:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 10/19/13 – Wheels for Meals Ride, Shadow Cliffs Regional 

Park from 10:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 

 

9.3. Other Staff Updates  

CWC Annual reports are now available in Spanish and Chinese. If 

you would like additional copies for distribution, please notify staff. 
 

10. Draft Agenda Items for November 25, 2013 PAPCO Meeting 

10.1. Review Implementation Guidelines 

10.2. Initial Revision to Access Alameda Guide/Website Discussion 

10.3. Convene Joint Access Alameda Revision Subcommittee 

10.4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program Report – Bay Area Outreach and 

Recreation Program 

 

  

Page 231Page 231Page 231Page 231



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_M

inutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

11. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 2:35 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled 

for November 25, 2013 at Alameda CTC’s new offices located at 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

 

Page 232Page 232Page 232Page 232



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_
Minutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

Joint Paratransit Advisory and Planning 
Committee and Paratransit Technical 
Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 

Monday, October 28, 2013, 2:45 p.m.  

MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

PAPCO Members: 

_A_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_P_ Aydan Aysoy 

_A_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_A_ Joyce Jacobson 

 

_P_ Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P_ Gaye Lenahan 

_A_ Jane Lewis 

_P_ Jonah Markowitz 

_P_ Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_P_ Suzanne Ortt 

_P_ Sharon Powers 

 

 

_A_ Vanessa Proee 

_P_ Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P_ Michelle Rousey 

_P_ Harriette 

Saunders 

_P_ Margaret Walker 

_P_ Esther Waltz 

_P_ Hale Zukas 

ParaTAC Members: 

_P_ Dana Bailey 

_A_ Beverly Bolden 

_A_ Melinda Chinn 

_P_ Pam Deaton 

_P_ Shawn Fong 

_A_ Marisa Hackett 

_A_ Heather Hafer 

_A_ Brad 

Helfenberger 

_A_ Karen Hemphill 

_A_ Drew King 

_A_ Jackie Krause 

_P_ Kadri Külm 

_A_ Kevin Laven 

_A_ Isabelle Leduc 

_A_ Wilson Lee 

_P_ Hakeim McGee 

_A_ Cindy Montero 

_A_ Mallory Nestor 

_A_ Gail Payne 

_A_ Kim Ridgeway 

_A_ Mary Rowlands 

_A_ Michelle Silva 

_A_ Leah Talley 

_A_ Laura Timothy 

_A_ Mark Weinstein 

_A_ Jeff Weiss 

_A_ David Zehnder 

 

Staff:  

_P_ Matt Todd, Principal Transportation Engineer 

_P_ John Hemiup, Senior Transportation Engineer 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Project/Program Team 

 

Page 233Page 233Page 233Page 233



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_
Minutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

Guests:  

Billy Chan, On Lok Lifeways; Dawn Jaeger, City of Hayward Paratransit  

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Paratransit Coordinator Naomi Armenta called the meeting to order 

at 2:45 p.m. The meeting began with introductions and a review of the 

meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Updated Funding Formula Data Discussion 

Naomi Armenta gave a presentation on the funding formula update 

and reminded the Committees that 10.45% of the Measure B overall 

revenue goes to specialized transportation for seniors and people with 

disabilities. Of that funding, 5.63% goes to mandated paratransit 

services, 3.39% goes to non-mandated paratransit services, and 1.43% 

goes to the Gap Grant Program. The 3.39% that is allocated to non-

mandated paratransit services is further allocated to each planning 

area. 1.24% goes to North County, 0.88% goes to Central County, 

1.06% goes to South County, and 0.21% goes to East County.  

 

The funds from each planning area may not be transferred into 

another area. Furthermore, the formula created by PAPCO allocates 

funding only within each planning area. The current formula that was 

adopted in 2011 is based on seniors age 70-79 (Census 2010), seniors 

age 80+ (weighted times 1.5), low income households earning equal 

to or less than 30% of the area median income (ACS), and age (as a 

proxy for disability). This formula is effective until June 30, 2017 and 

disability data will be incorporated once it becomes available. 

 

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) data is updated 

annually, there is no disability information available for Albany, 

Cherryland, Emeryville, Fairview, Piedmont, and Sunol. These 

communities are pertinent in determining the funding that is allocated 

Page 234Page 234Page 234Page 234



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_
Minutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

to the respective planning areas. As a result, staff does not 

recommend attempting to incorporate a disability factor at this time. 

 

Lastly, Naomi reviewed the updated income data, the resulting 

funding formula for FY14-15 and some sample projections that 

incorporate the new information.  

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 Where is Cherryland? Cherryland is an unincorporated area in 

Hayward. 

 Are these the numbers that ParaTAC members should use for FY 

13-14? The numbers in the presentation are from the Alameda 

CTC website and are just projections. Staff is working on 

gathering information on the actual numbers that ParaTAC 

members can use for FY13-14 and FY14-15. These numbers should 

not be used. 

 The City of Berkeley has the largest increase and the City of 

Oakland has the largest decrease in funding according to the 

updated funding formula projections. 

 The changes do not seem to generate that big of a difference in 

funding. 

 When does the funding formula expire? The current funding 

formula expires in 2017. However, if the disability data becomes 

available and the Committees would like to update the funding 

formula before 2017, the Committees have the option of 

amending the formula. 

 

4. Mobility Workshop Outcomes Report 

Cathleen Sullivan gave an outcomes report from the Alameda CTC 

Annual Mobility Workshop. She provided highlights from the online 

survey that was sent to attendees immediately after the Workshop. Of 

the 85 participants at the Workshop, 77 were sent the post-workshop 

survey, and 35 responded. She noted that the largest number of 

attendees represented Northern Alameda County. Cathleen provided 

other highlights regarding the morning session, lunchtime self-guided 

tour, resource fair, and the afternoon session.  

 

Page 235Page 235Page 235Page 235



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_
Minutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

Overall a great majority of respondents, approximately 93.8%, felt that 

the length of both the workshop and the lunch break were “just right.” 

Respondents also found the interaction with other participants, 

speakers, and presentations were most helpful. Generally, the 

Workshop was well received by attendees and it appears that the 

Workshop continues to serve an important role in sharing information, 

providing networking opportunities, and inspiring coordination and 

better service provision. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 The Youtube video on the Google driverless car was interesting 

but I felt that it was not suitable for all people with disabilities. This 

technology is currently not available for sale and does not 

address all other issues of accessible transportation. It was meant 

as an example of new developments in accessible technology. 

 I was able to bring two of our paratransit task force members to 

the Workshop and they had a really good time learning about 

other transportation issues. 

 The self-guided tour was great but I do not think I would have 

done the activity if it were not for the presentation that took 

place before the allotted time for the tour. We are excited about 

next year and I think it is a great idea to bring different users to 

the table for next year. 

 The Workshop was fun and I had a great time. 

 According to the outcomes report, 40% of the respondents were 

coming from Northern Alameda County. Did anyone mention 

any barriers in getting to the Workshop location? The outcomes 

report is not necessarily representative of the entire population 

that attended the Workshop but there were no comments about 

any difficulties getting to Ed Roberts Campus. 

 How would one know about the Workshop if they were not a 

member of PAPCO? Staff distributed the Workshop flyer to senior 

centers, other Paratransit coordinators in other counties as well 

as a wide email distribution to Alameda CTC partners, social 

service agencies and nonprofits. 

 Perhaps the rescheduling of the Workshop affected the 

attendance. Staff noted that there were no issues with 

Page 236Page 236Page 236Page 236



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\Prior_Meetings\2013\20131125\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_
Minutes_20131028.docx 

 

 

attendance as the Workshop was well attended and that was 

evident through the RSVPs prior to the Workshop. 

 The San Francisco accessible parking presentation was also well 

received at the Workshop. Survey respondents wanted to 

continue with the conversation after the Workshop. 

 I would like to see a presentation or information on trails-to-transit 

or recreation at next year’s Workshop. 

 

5. ParaTAC and PAPCO Discussion 

Naomi Armenta introduced the topic of the joint ParaTAC and PAPCO 

discussion and noted that the idea around these discussions was to 

share ideas and address issues regarding accessible transportation 

amongst the two committees. Since there was limited time for 

discussion, she instead asked committee members to brainstorm good 

discussion topics. 

 

Suggested joint ParaTAC and PAPCO discussion topics: 

 Standing order policy 

 Testimonies on disability and sensitivity, overcoming obstacles 

and outreach efforts 

 Notification of service changes to paratransit riders in accessible 

formats; standards for communication for that purpose 

 

6. Draft Agenda Items for November 12, 2013 ParaTAC Meeting 

6.1. Review Implementation Guidelines 

6.2. Initial Revision to Access Alameda Guide/Website Discussion 

6.3. Community Based Transportation Provider Presentation 

6.4. Technical Exchange – Recurring  Items 

 

7. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. The next PAPCO meeting is 

scheduled for November 25, 2013 and the next ParaTAC meeting is 

scheduled for November 12, 2013. These meetings will take place at 

Alameda CTC’s new offices located at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in 

Oakland. 

 

Page 237Page 237Page 237Page 237



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 238Page 238Page 238Page 238



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
A

dv
iso

ry
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 
Be

ga
n

Re
-a

pp
tm

t.
Te

rm
 

Ex
pi

re
s

M
tg

s 
M

iss
ed

 
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

-1
3

1
M

s.
St

ad
m

ire
, C

ha
ir

Sy
lv

ia
 J

.
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r W
ilm

a 
C

ha
n,

 D
-3

Se
p-

07
Ja

n-
13

Ja
n-

15
1

2
M

r.
Sc

ot
t, 

Vi
ce

 C
ha

ir
W

ill
O

ak
la

nd
A

la
m

ed
a 

C
ou

nt
y

Su
pe

rv
iso

r K
ei

th
 C

ar
so

n,
 D

-5
M

ar
-1

0
A

pr
-1

2
A

pr
-1

4
0

3
M

s.
A

ys
oy

A
yd

an
Be

rk
el

ey
C

ity
 o

f B
er

ke
le

y
C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r L

au
rie

 C
ap

ite
lli

Ju
l-0

9
Ja

n-
12

Ja
n-

14
0

4
M

r.
Bu

nn
La

rry
Un

io
n 

C
ity

Un
io

n 
C

ity
 T

ra
ns

it
W

ils
on

 L
ee

, T
ra

ns
it 

M
an

ag
er

Ju
n-

06
D

ec
-1

3
De

c-
15

2

5
M

r.
C

os
te

llo
Sh

aw
n

D
ub

lin
C

ity
 o

f D
ub

lin
M

ay
or

 T
im

 S
ab

ra
nt

i
Se

p-
08

A
pr

-1
2

A
pr

-1
4

0

6
M

r.
Ha

st
in

gs
He

rb
D

ub
lin

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r S

co
tt 

Ha
gg

er
ty

, D
-1

M
ar

-0
7

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

0

7
M

s.
Ja

co
bs

on
Jo

yc
e

Em
er

yv
ille

C
ity

 o
f E

m
er

yv
ille

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r R
ut

h 
A

tk
in

M
ar

-0
7

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

1

8
M

s.
Jo

hn
so

n-
Si

m
on

Sa
nd

ra
 

Sa
n 

Le
an

d
ro

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r N

at
e 

M
ile

y,
 D

-4
Se

p-
10

D
ec

-1
3

De
c-

15
0

9
M

s.
Le

na
ha

n
G

ay
e

Pi
ed

m
on

t
C

ity
 o

f P
ie

d
m

on
t

M
ay

or
 J

oh
n 

C
hi

an
g

M
ay

-1
1

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

0

10
M

s.
Le

w
is

Ja
ne

D
ub

lin
C

ity
 o

f L
iv

er
m

or
e

M
ay

or
 J

oh
n 

M
ar

ch
an

d
Se

p-
09

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

1

11
M

r.
M

ar
ko

w
itz

Jo
na

h
Be

rk
el

ey
C

ity
 o

f A
lb

an
y

M
ay

or
 P

eg
gy

 T
ho

m
se

n
D

ec
-0

4
O

ct
-1

2
O

ct
-1

4
0

12
Re

v.
O

rr
C

ar
ol

yn
 M

.
O

ak
la

nd
C

ity
 o

f O
ak

la
nd

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r R
eb

ec
ca

 K
ap

la
n

O
ct

-0
5

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

0

13
M

s.
O

rtt
Su

za
nn

e
Un

io
n 

C
ity

C
ity

 o
f U

ni
on

 C
ity

M
ay

or
 C

ar
ol

 D
ut

ra
-V

er
na

ci
Se

p-
12

Se
p-

14
1

14
M

s.
Po

w
er

s
Sh

ar
on

Fr
em

on
t

C
ity

 o
f F

re
m

on
t

M
ay

or
 W

illi
am

 H
ar

ris
on

D
ec

-0
7

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

1

Page 239Page 239Page 239Page 239



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
A

dv
iso

ry
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
Ro

st
er

 - 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

3-
20

14

Tit
le

La
st

Fi
rs

t
C

ity
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 B
y

Te
rm

 
Be

ga
n

Re
-a

pp
tm

t.
Te

rm
 

Ex
pi

re
s

M
tg

s 
M

iss
ed

 
Si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

-1
3

15
M

s.
Pr

oe
e

V
an

es
sa

Ha
yw

ar
d

C
ity

 o
f H

ay
w

ar
d

C
ou

nc
ilm

em
be

r M
ar

vi
n 

Pe
ixo

to
M

ar
-1

0
Ja

n-
12

Ja
n-

14
2

16
M

s.
Ri

ch
ar

d
s-

Re
iss

D
ia

nn
e

N
ew

ar
k

C
ity

 o
f N

ew
ar

k
C

ou
nc

ilm
em

be
r L

ui
s F

re
ita

s
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

15
3

17
M

s.
Ri

ve
ra

-H
en

d
ric

ks
on

C
ar

m
en

Pl
ea

sa
nt

on
C

ity
 o

f P
le

as
an

to
n

M
ay

or
 J

er
ry

 T
ho

rn
e

Se
p-

09
Ja

n-
12

Ja
n-

14
0

18
M

s.
Ro

us
ey

M
ic

he
lle

O
ak

la
nd

A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y
Su

pe
rv

iso
r R

ic
ha

rd
 V

al
le

, D
-2

M
ay

-1
0

 
Ja

n-
16

0

19
M

s.
Sa

un
d

er
s

Ha
rri

et
te

A
la

m
ed

a
C

ity
 o

f A
la

m
ed

a
M

ay
or

 M
ar

ie
 G

ilm
or

e
Ju

n-
08

O
ct

-1
2

O
ct

-1
4

0

20
M

s.
W

al
ke

r
M

ar
ga

re
t

Sa
n 

Le
an

d
ro

C
ity

 o
f S

an
 L

ea
nd

ro
V

ic
e 

M
ay

or
 M

ic
ha

el
 G

re
go

ry
Ju

l-1
3

Ju
l-1

5
0

21
M

s.
W

al
tz

Es
th

er
 A

nn
Liv

er
m

or
e

LA
V

TA
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 P
au

l M
at

su
ok

a
Fe

b-
11

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
14

0

22
M

r.
Zu

ka
s

Ha
le

Be
rk

el
ey

A
. C

. T
ra

ns
it

D
ire

ct
or

 E
lsa

 O
rti

z
A

ug
-0

2
Ja

n-
12

Ja
n-

14
0

23
Va

ca
nc

y
BA

RT
Di

re
ct

or
 To

m
 B

la
lo

ck

 

Page 240Page 240Page 240Page 240



 
 
 

 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx 

 

Memorandum  9.1 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive an update on state and federal legislative activities  

 

Summary  

This memo provides an update on federal, state and local legislative activities including 
an update on the federal budget, federal transportation issues, legislative activities and 
policies at the state level, as well as an update on local legislative activities.   

Alameda CTC’s legislative program was approved in December 2014 establishing 
legislative priorities for 2014 and is included in summary format in Attachment A.  The 2014 
Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding, Project Delivery, 
Multi-Modal Transportation and Land Use, Climate Change, Goods Movement and 
Partnerships. The program was designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC 
the opportunity to pursue legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise 
during the year, and to respond to political processes in Sacramento and Washington, 
DC.  Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 
the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well as 
legislative updates.   

Background 

Federal Update 

The following updates provide information on activities and issues at the federal level and 
include information contributed from Alameda CTC’s lobbyist team (CJ Lake/Len Simon). 

Overview 

A brief retrospective of 2013: 

• Barack Obama was re-elected as President of the United States and the 
Democrats and Republicans retained control of the Senate and House 
respectively.   

Page 241Page 241Page 241Page 241



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

• The first session of the 113th Congress began with the seating of 84 freshmen in the 
House (including 14 from California) and 12 freshmen in the Senate on January 3, 
2013.  

• In early January, Congress addresses short-term agreement to deal with the “fiscal 
cliff.”  

• In March 2013, sequestration went into effect because Congress was unable to 
reach an agreement on how to avert it.  This resulted in across the board cuts to 
defense and non-defense programs. 

• In April 2013, President’s budget released three month after regular release since 
the Office of Management and Budget was waiting for deals to be made on fiscal 
cliff issues.   

• In the ensuing months, the House and Senate passed very different budgets, over 
$90 billion apart. 

• In October 2013, the government shuts down for 17 days due to lack of a budget.  
• In December 2013, a special Budget Conference Committee approved a small 

deal that set a budget for both FY14 and FY15. 

More detail is included below, including some prospective actions on transportation in 
2014. 

Budget 
In October of 2013, the Congress could not reach agreement on spending levels for FY 
2014 and a partial federal government shutdown resulted.  The shutdown lasted from 
October 1-16, 2013.  On October 16, the Congress passed, and the President signed, a 
continuing resolution to fund the government at sequestration levels through January 15, 
2014.  In addition, the agreement produced a budget conference committee with a self-
imposed deadline of December 13, 2014 to produce a budget deal of some kind.  Part of 
the support for this shutdown came from Republicans who wanted to stop the 
implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) which went 
into effect on October 1, 2013. 

In the second week of December, the House and Senate budget conference produced 
an agreement on federal government spending levels for FY14-15.  The agreement 
produced total spending levels of $1.012 trillion for FY 14 and $1.0136 trillion for FY15.  The 
House and Senate Appropriations Committees will use these top-line numbers and new 
budget caps to draft the 12 different appropriations bills that will ultimately assign funding 
to departments and agencies of the federal government.  Staff will present an update on 
the omnibus bill for appropriations at the Commission meeting.  

Transportation 
In the past year, the House and Senate Committees with jurisdiction over transportation 
policy have held a variety of hearings and special panel meetings on the future of the 
Highway Trust Fund; the implementation of MAP-21, transportation financing (gas tax 

Page 242Page 242Page 242Page 242



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

reform, Public-Private Partnerships); and WRDA authorization.  The House Special Panel on 
21st Century Freight Transportation produced its recommendations on the new surface 
transportation bill when MAP-21 expires on September 30, 2014.  This year also saw a 
change in the Secretary of Transportation from Ray LaHood (R-IL) to Anthony Foxx (D-NC).  
Below is the summary of activity for the year. 

House Transportation and Infrastructure Special Panel on 21st Century Freight 
Transportation Recommendations (October 2013) 

• Direct the Secretary of Transportation, in coordination with the Secretary of the 
Army and the Commandant of the U.S. Coast Guard, to establish a comprehensive 
national freight transportation policy and designate a national, multimodal freight 
network;  

• Ensure robust public investment in all modes of transportation on which freight 
movement relies, and incentivize additional private investment in freight 
transportation facilities, to maintain and improve the condition and performance 
of the freight transportation network;  

• Promote and expedite the development and delivery of projects and activities 
that improve and facilitate the efficient movement of goods;  

• Authorize dedicated, sustainable funding for multimodal freight Projects of National 
and Regional Significance through a grant process and establish clear benchmarks 
for project selection.  Projects eligible for such funding would have a regional or 
national impact on the overall performance of the multimodal freight network 
identified by the Secretary of Transportation;  

• Direct the Secretary of Transportation, in coordination with the Secretary of the 
Treasury and the Secretary of the Army, to identify and recommend sustainable 
sources of revenue across all modes of transportation that would provide the 
necessary investment in the Nation’s multimodal freight network and align 
contributions with use of, and expected benefit of increased investment in, such 
network; and  

• Review, working through the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure and 
the Committee on Ways and Means, the Secretary’s freight funding and revenue 
recommendations and develop specific funding and revenue options for freight 
transportation projects prior to Congress’ consideration of the surface 
transportation reauthorization bill in 2014.  

Highway Trust Fund Sustainability 
Discussions among Senate Environment and Public Works (EPW) Committee Chairman 
Barbara Boxer and Senator Patty Murray have focused on the need for any budget 

Page 243Page 243Page 243Page 243



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

negotiations to provide full funding for the Highway Trust Fund (HTF).  It is expected that 
the EPW Committee will be looking to the Senate Finance Committee and the House 
Ways and Means Committee to address solvency of the HTF, including potentially 
considering changing the current tax system from a retail tax on gasoline (tax at the 
pump) to a wholesale tax on gasoline (sales tax on refineries). Senator Boxer has noted 
that she would like to wait until the Finance Committee resolves the issue of transportation 
funding before marking up any MAP-21 reauthorization legislation.   

Gas Tax Bills  
On December 4, Congressman Earl Blumenauer (D-OR) introduced two bills H.R. 3636, the 
Update, Promote, and Develop America’s Transportation Essentials (UPDATE) Act; and 
H.R. 3638, the Road Usage Fee Pilot Program Act of 2013 which would reform 
transportation funding.  H.R. 3636 would raise the gas tax to 33.4 cents per gallon, nearly 
double the current rate of 18.4 cents, over the next few years. H.R. 3636 would also peg 
the tax rate to inflation so that its purchasing power doesn’t decline over time. 

The other bill, H.R. 3638, would let states look into charging drivers by the mile (vehicle 
miles travelled, VMT) by expanding a pilot program started in Blumenauer’s home state of 
Oregon. The program would be voluntary and allow states to choose how exactly to test 
the concept of charging for road use. 

Currently there are no co-sponsors on either bill (Democrat or Republican) but there is 
tacit support from some Republican members suggesting that there is more support for 
the measures than is widely reported.  There has been no mention of a hearing on either 
bill yet, however, this may be considered as part of tax reform in the next session of 
Congress. 

Pre Tax Transit Benefit 
The transit commuter benefit is an employer-provided federal tax benefit that allows 
employees to save money on their daily commute by paying for their transit expenses 
with pre-tax dollars. 

On January 1, 2013 when the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was signed into law, 
the maximum monthly excludable amount (“cap”) of the transit portion of the commuter 
benefit was restored to the same level as the benefit for parking, to $245 per month. 

The increase in the transit portion of the commuter benefit is only temporary - it reverted 
to $130 on January 1, 2014, because Congress was not able to enact new legislation to 
make the increase permanent or extend it for an additional period of time. In 
comparison, the monthly limit for the parking portion of the commuter benefit, which also 
increased to $245, is a permanent part of the tax code and increased on January 1, 2014 
to $250. The disparity between the two benefits is higher than any previous years. It is 
expected that some type of temporary fix could be included in a larger tax extenders 
package next year, as has happened in previous years. 

Page 244Page 244Page 244Page 244



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

Legislation was introduced earlier this year that would create permanent parity between 
the parking and transit/vanpool portions of the commuter benefit. In the House, 
Congressman Michael Grimm (R-NY) was joined by Congressman Jim McGovern (D-MA), 
Congressman Peter King (R-NY) and Congressman Earl Blumenauer (D-OR) in introducing 
H.R. 2288, the Commuter Parity Act. The Senate bill, S. 1116, the Commuter Benefits Equity 
Act, was introduced by Senator Charles Schumer (D-NY).   

Further, current transportation policy (MAP-21) expires on September 30, 2014.  While both 
the House and Senate are looking at re-authorization and issues with respect to financing 
moving forward they are at odds over the scope of a transportation policy re-
authorization.  The House would like to see a more expansive bill with policy changes 
while the Senate is interested in a simple bill that addresses financing, arguing that there is 
not a need for further policy changes.   

State Update 
The following update provides information on activities and issues at the state level and 
includes information contributed from Alameda CTC’s state lobbyist, Platinum Advisors. 

The State Legislature finished the first year of the 2013-14 session in mid-September and 
returned to Sacramento on January 6th.  

Budget 
The Governor released the proposed Fiscal Year 14-15 Budget on January 9th.  See 
Attachment B for an update on the budget. 

Transportation Funding 
The California Alliance for Jobs and Transportation California submitted an initiative 
proposal aimed at creating a new funding program for transportation projects in 
California.  Title and summary of the proposed initiative is expected to be completed by 
January 10th.  This initiative would be placed on the November 2014 ballot; however, the 
sponsors have not made any decisions on whether to move forward with signature 
gathering.  They submitted this proposal in order to keep their options open. 

The California Road Repair Act would phase in a 1% fee based on the value of each 
vehicle registered in California.  The fee would not apply to commercial trucks over 10,000 
pounds if the excise tax on diesel fuel is increased by at least 3 cents per gallon by July 1, 
2016.   

The 1% fee would be phased in over four years at which point it is estimated to generate 
$2.9 billion annually.  In addition, the revenue cannot be used make any interest or 
principle payments on bonds, therefore it creates a pay as you go program.  As specified, 
the revenue would be allocated as follows. 

Page 245Page 245Page 245Page 245



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

• 25% of all new revenue to all cities in California distributed on a formula allocation 
based on population for local street and road projects. 

• 25% of all new revenue to all counties in California based on a formula allocation 
equal to 75% of fee-paying vehicle and 25% road miles for local street and road 
projects. 

• 40% of all new revenue for maintenance and rehabilitation of the State Highway 
System.  Half of these funds would be programmed for projects based on the 
North-South split formula, where 60% is allocated to Southern California projects, 
and 40% to Northern California projects.  The remaining 50% would be programed 
for projects based on the “highest need” statewide. 

• 10% of all new revenue to public transit operators for system maintenance, 
rehabilitation and vehicle replacement.  The funds cannot be used for operations, 
and the revenue would be allocated based on the current State Transit Assistance 
Program formula. 

Polling will be conducted to determine if this effort moves forward.   

Policy 

AB 32 Scoping Plan 
On October 1, 2013, California Air Resources Board released its Discussion Draft update of 
the AB 32 Scoping Plan.  The existing AB 32 Scoping Plan was adopted in 2008 and 
focused on 2020 reduction goals.  The updated plan will set the path to achieve 2050 
reduction goals.   

The update to the AB 32 Scoping Plan allowed CARB to review and revise the 2008 
Scoping Plan, and address near and long term goals for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions.  The update focused on the following six sectors for post-2020 GHG emission 
reduction strategies:  

• Energy 
• Transportation, Land Use, Fuels, and Infrastructure 
• Agriculture  
• Water 
• Waste Management  
• Natural and Working Lands 

The updated Scoping Plan will be finalized in spring 2014  Alameda CTC and its partners 
reviewed the updated Scoping Plan and submitted a letter commenting on the draft 
plan which is included in Attachment B.   

 

Page 246Page 246Page 246Page 246



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.1_Legislation\9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231.docx  

 

Cap & Trade Lawsuits 
The Sacramento Superior Court has rejected two lawsuits challenging the legality of 
California’s Cap & Trade auction.  The lawsuits filed by the California Chamber of 
Commerce and Morning Star Packaging Company claimed AB 32 did not authorize CARB 
to collect auction revenues in excess of the cost to administer AB 32 programs, and the 
auction is an illegal tax because AB 32 was not approved by a 2/3 vote of the Legislature.  
The Court found that CARB does have the authority to auction emission allowances and it 
is not an illegal tax that violates Prop 13.  CalChamber plans to appeal this decision, so 
continued uncertainty around how Cap & Trade funds will flow continues. 

The findings in this case may put pressure on the state to repay the $500 million in Cap & 
Trade auction revenue loaned to the general fund in the 2013-14 budget, and 
appropriate Cap & Trade funds to AB 32 programs.  To determine if it is a fee and not a 
tax, the Court opined that the auction revenue must be used to regulate and further the 
goals of AB 32, and not be used as a revenue raising effort.  If the state does not repay 
the loan and use the funds to further AB 32 then the Appeal Court may reconsider 
whether it is a regulatory fee.  As for determining the nexus on how the auction revenue is 
used, the Superior Court found that “all that is required is a reasonable relationship 
between the charges and the covered entities’ responsibility for the harmful effects of 
GHG emissions.”  The appeal will likely challenge whether this is too broad of a test. 

Legislation 
Legislative coordination efforts:  Alameda CTC is leading and participating in many 
legislative efforts at the local, regional, state and federal levels, including coordinating 
with other agencies and partners as well as seeking grant opportunities to support 
transportation investments in Alameda County.   

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachments 

A. Alameda CTC 2014 Legislation Program 
B. Governor’s Budget Update 
C. AB 32 Scoping Plan Comment Letter 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 247Page 247Page 247Page 247

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 248Page 248Page 248Page 248



 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

\
P

P
LC

\
2

0
1

4
0

1
1
3

\
5

.1
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
\

5
.1

A
_
2

0
1

4
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
v
e

_
P

la
tf

o
rm

_
Ta

b
le

.d
o

c
x
 

2
0
1
4

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 L

e
g

is
la

ti
v

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 
Th

e
 le

g
is

la
ti
v

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 h
e

re
in

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
’s

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 v

is
io

n
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

2
 C

o
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 d
e

sc
ri
b

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 
  

“
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

rv
e

d
 b

y
 a

 p
re

m
ie

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

a
n

d
 li

v
a

b
le

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 c
o

n
n

e
c

te
d

 a
n

d
 in

te
g

ra
te

d
 m

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

ili
ty

, 
a

c
c

e
ss

, 
tr

a
n

si
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s,

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s.
 O

u
r 

v
is

io
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

iz
e

s 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
te

 

o
u

r 
e

xi
st

in
g

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 in

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
h

ile
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 n

e
w

 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
, 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

lly
 s

o
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 la

n
d

 u
se

s.
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 

in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 w
ill

 b
e

 g
u

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

ra
n

sp
a

re
n

t 
d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
su

re
a

b
le

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

O
u

r 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 w
ill

 b
e

: 
M

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l; 

A
c

c
e

ss
ib

le
, 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 

E
q

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s,

 in
c

o
m

e
s,

 a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ie

s;
 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 la
n

d
 u

se
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s 
a

n
d

 lo
c

a
l d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
; 

C
o

n
n

e
c

te
d

 a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

, 
w

it
h

in
 a

n
d

 a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
st

re
e

ts
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

a
n

d
 t

ra
n

si
t,

 b
ic

y
c

le
 a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 r

o
u

te
s;

 R
e

lia
b

le
 a

n
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
t;

 C
o

st
 E

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
; 

W
e

ll 
M

a
in

ta
in

e
d

; 
S
a

fe
; 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 o
f 

a
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 a

n
d

 C
le

a
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
” 

 

Is
su

e
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 C
o

n
c

e
p

ts
 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

In
c

re
a

se
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 lo

w
e

r 
th

e
 t

w
o

-t
h

ir
d

s-
v

o
te

r 
th

re
sh

o
ld

 f
o

r 
v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a

su
re

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
y
in

g
 p

o
w

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 g
a

s 
ta

x
 a

n
d

/o
r 

in
c

re
a

si
n

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
v

e
n

u
e

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 v
e

h
ic

le
 l
ic

e
n

se
 f

e
e

s,
 

v
e

h
ic

le
 m

ile
s 

tr
a

v
e

le
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
lia

b
le

 m
e

a
n

s.
 

P
ro

te
c

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c

e
 v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 a

n
d

/o
r 

fl
e

xi
b

le
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s 
to

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
 f

o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

, 
re

st
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 in

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
te

c
ts

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
re

a
se

s 
in

 f
e

d
e

ra
l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 e
xp

e
d

it
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
g

iv
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 v
o

te
r-

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

se
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
g

a
ti
v

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c

t 
th

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
v

o
te

r-
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 m
e

a
su

re
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
w

a
rd

in
g

 S
e

lf
-H

e
lp

 C
o

u
n

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
ta

te
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 in

to
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
st

e
m

s.
 


 S

e
e

k
, 
a

c
q

u
ir
e

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
s 

th
e

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

t 
o

f 
fu

n
d

s 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
ilo

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 

A
d

v
a

n
c

e
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l s

tr
e

a
m

lin
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
d

it
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ti
n

g
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 H

O
T 

la
n

e
 e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

 in
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 B
a

y
 A

re
a

, 
a

n
d

 e
ff

o
rt

s 
th

a
t 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 lo
c

a
l a

g
e

n
c

ie
s 

to
 a

d
v

e
rt

is
e

, 
a

w
a

rd
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

r 
st

a
te

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 s

y
st

e
m

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 la

rg
e

ly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

lo
c

a
ls

 

E
n

su
re

 c
o

st
-e

ff
e

c
ti
v

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
re

d
u

c
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

s 
b

y
 r

e
d

u
c

in
g

 o
r 

e
lim

in
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
st

a
te

 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 r

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 o

n
 s

ta
te

/r
e

g
io

n
a

l s
y
st

e
m

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
c

e
le

ra
ti
n

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h

a
t 

c
re

a
te

 j
o

b
s 

a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

  

M
u

lt
im

o
d

a
l 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

La
n

d
 U

se
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 la
n

d
 u

se
 i
n

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
re

a
se

s 
fl
e

xi
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c

e
s 

te
c

h
n

ic
a

l a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 in
v

e
st

m
e

n
ts

 li
n

k
in

g
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 jo

b
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 lo

c
a

l f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 la

n
d

-u
se

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

si
t 

o
ri
e

n
te

d
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
s.

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 f

in
a

n
c

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
to

 f
u

n
d

 T
O

D
 a

n
d

 P
D

A
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
  

E
x
p

a
n

d
 m

u
lt
im

o
d

a
l 
sy

st
e

m
s 

a
n

d
 f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

c
re

a
se

d
 f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
, 
fl
e

x
ib

le
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

a
t 

a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
c

o
m

m
u

te
rs

, 
y
o

u
th

, 
se

n
io

rs
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 lo
w

-i
n

c
o

m
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
c

re
a

te
 u

n
fu

n
d

e
d

 

m
a

n
d

a
te

s.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

v
e

st
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
si

t-
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 a

c
c

e
ss

 t
o

 g
o

o
d

s,
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 

jo
b

s 
a

n
d

 e
d

u
c

a
ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
ri
ty

 in
 p

re
-t

a
x
 f

ri
n

g
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

si
t/

v
a

n
p

o
o

lin
g

 a
n

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

. 

1
1

1
1

 B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
, 
S
u

it
e

s 
8

0
0

 

O
a

k
la

n
d

, 
C

A
  

9
4
6
0
7

 

(5
1
0

) 
2

0
8

-7
4

0
0

 

w
w

w
.A

la
m

e
d

a
C

TC
.o

rg
  

 

9.1A

Page 249Page 249Page 249Page 249

http://www.alamedactc.org/


 R
:\

A
la

C
TC

_
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s\

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

\
P

P
LC

\
2

0
1

4
0

1
1
3

\
5

.1
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
\

5
.1

A
_
2

0
1

4
_
Le

g
is

la
ti
v
e

_
P

la
tf

o
rm

_
Ta

b
le

.d
o

c
x
 

Is
su

e
 

P
ri
o

ri
ty

 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 C
o

n
c

e
p

ts
 

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

in
n

o
v

a
ti
v

e
 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
, 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

a
t 

re
lie

v
e

 c
o

n
g

e
st

io
n

, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 
re

d
u

c
e

 

e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

a
n

si
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a

p
-a

n
d

-t
ra

d
e

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 p

la
n

 

 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

a
p

 a
n

d
 t

ra
d

e
 f

u
n

d
s 

d
e

ri
v

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 f

u
e

ls
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 in

c
e

n
ti
v

e
s 

fo
r 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s,

 s
u

c
h

 a
s 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 f

u
e

ls
 a

n
d

 f
u

e
lin

g
 t

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y
, 
a

n
d

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 

G
o

o
d

s 
M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
E
x
p

a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 

p
o

lic
y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 m

u
lt

i-
m

o
d

a
l 
g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

sy
st

e
m

 a
n

d
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

lo
c

a
l 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

. 


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 d

e
si

g
n

a
te

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 s

tr
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
g

o
o

d
s 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  


 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
o

o
d

s 
m

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 B
a

y
 A

re
a

 g
o

o
d

s 
m

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

fu
n

d
in

g
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

a
n

d
 a

d
v

o
c

a
c

y
. 


 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

B
a

y
 A

re
a

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 s
y
st

e
m

s 
a

re
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

ze
d

 i
n

 s
ta

te
 a

n
d

 f
e

d
e

ra
l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

p
ro

c
e

ss
e

s.
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
E
x
p

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s 

a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l, 
re

g
io

n
a

l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 f
e

d
e

ra
l l

e
v

e
ls

 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s 

to
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
ta

l e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

ie
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
st

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

in
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
t 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
, 

re
g

io
n

a
l, 

st
a

te
 a

n
d

 

fe
d

e
ra

l l
e

v
e

ls
. 


 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 e

xp
a

n
d

 lo
c

a
l-
, 
w

o
m

e
n

-,
 m

in
o

ri
ty

- 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll-

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 in

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
. 

 

Page 250Page 250Page 250Page 250



Governor Brown Budget Summary – Platinum Advisors Contribution 
 
 

 1 

The Governor’s proposal outlines a general fund spending plan for 2014-15 of 
$107 billion -- an $8 billion increase over the 2013-14 budget.  The budget 
proposes reducing the wall of debt by $11 billion by paying off the economic 
recovery bonds ($3.9 billion payment), eliminating the debt to schools for 
deferred payments ($6.1 billion payment), and repaying various internal loans 
from special funds. The budget also proposes creating a new rainy day fund, 
spending Cap & Trade auction revenue, and expanding the use Infrastructure 
Financing Districts by cities and counties. 
 
Cap & Trade Appropriations:  The budget proposes appropriating $850 million 
in auction revenue to various programs.  This amount includes a $100 million 
repayment of the $500 million in auction revenue loaned to the general 
funding in the current fiscal year.  The proposal appropriates funds for projects 
in each of the issue areas identified in the expenditure plan developed last 
year.  This includes $80 million for energy efficiency and renewable energy 
projects, $20 million for green state buildings, $20 million for agricultural 
projects, and $20 million water energy efficiency.  In keeping with the 
expenditure, the bulk of the funds are dedicated to transportation related 
projects, as follows: 

• Rail Modernization $300 million — The budget allocates $250 million of 
these funds to the High Speed Rail Authority.  This is expected to be an 
annual allocation for the next several years.  For the 2014-15 fiscal years 
these funds will be used for Phase 1 of the project with $58.6 million 
dedicated to project planning and $191.4 million for right of way 
acquisition and construction.   
 
Integration of Rail Systems $50 million — Caltrans will administer this 
program which provide grants to existing rail operators for projects that 
integrate rail systems and provide connectivity to the high speed rail 
system.   

 
• Sustainable Communities $100 million — The Strategic Growth Council 

will administer this program in coordination with various departments to 
implement Sustainable Communities Strategies that improve transit 
ridership, increase active transportation, provide affordable housing 
near transit, as well as preserves agricultural lands and supports local 
planning efforts that promote infill development.  A priority will be given 
to projects in disadvantaged communities.  The SGC is made up of 
Office of Planning and Research, Cal STA, CalEPA, California Health and 
Human Services, and a public member. 

 
• Low Carbon Transportation $200 million —The Air Board will use these 

funds to accelerate the transition to low carbon freight and passenger 
transportation, with a priority for disadvantaged communities. These 
funds will be used to augment the Air Board’s existing programs that 

9.1B

Page 251Page 251Page 251Page 251



Governor Brown Budget Summary – Platinum Advisors Contribution 
 
 

 2 

provide rebates for zero-emission cars and vouchers for hybrid and 
zero-emission trucks and buses.  
 

 
Loan Repayment. The budget includes a $351 million payment of a loan made 
from the State Highway Account to the general fund.  This represents most of 
the outstanding debt.  The payment terms of this loan have been pushed back 
several times, so this “early” payment is a pleasant and much needed surprise.  
Based on the priorities developed by the Transportation Stakeholder Working 
Group these funds will be used for the following maintenance, preservation 
and improvement projects:   

• $110 million to fund pavement rehabilitation projects on state 
highways. 

• $100 million to cities and counties for preservation of local streets and 
roads. 

• $100 million for traffic management mobility projects. 
• $27 million for highway pavement maintenance. 
• $9 million for active transportation projects. 
• $5 million for environmental mitigation. 

 
Proposition 1B Bond Funds — The Budget appropriates $1.1 billion in Prop 1B 
funds.  The budget includes $793 million to support local transit operators, $160 
million for intercity rail, and $113 million for additional state highway projects.  
Capital Outlay Support:  The budget includes a proposal to improve the 
Capital Outlay Support budgeting process based on recommendations made 
by a workgroup consisting of Caltrans, DOF, and the LAO.  The changes 
include improving project budgets through the development of a predictive 
tool to help establish initial project budgets, creating a methodology for the 
use of flexible resources to meet overall staffing needs, increasing 
accountability and transparency, and consolidating and streamlining 
statewide program management manuals and directives across all 12 districts. 
 

Page 252Page 252Page 252Page 252



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 
 
November 1, 2013 
 
Mary Nichols 
California Air Resources Board 
Address 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Re:  Bay Area Congestion Management Association Comments on Draft 
Scoping Plan Update (2013) 
 
Dear Ms. Nichols 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on CARB’s first update of the AB 32 
Scoping Plan, Discussion Draft Scoping Plan Update (“Plan Update”).  The Bay 
Area Congestion Management Agency (CMA) Association represents the nine 
county transportation agencies (sales tax authorities and congestion 
management agencies) that are investing in projects and programs that create 
accessible, convenient, equitable and sustainable transportation to move people 
and goods, spur economic growth and enrich communities.  The nine Bay Area 
CMAs plan, fund and deliver almost $1 billion each year for projects and 
programs that support the Bay Area’s economy and help move over 7 million 
people each day.  We are also responsible for assisting with the implementation 
of the Bay Area’s Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) that supports 
implementation of SB 375.   
 
The Bay Area CMA Association supports the discussion draft recommendations 
for a plan that supports multimodal investments and advanced technologies in 
passenger and freight systems.  Our long-range plans similarly support 
multimodal systems to address the transportation needs of Bay Area travelers 
and we are embarking on efforts to address regional goods movement needs 
and priorities.  Toward these efforts, the Bay Area CMA Association makes the 
following overall comments on the Plan Update with the goal of reducing GHG 
emissions from transportation: 
 
Ensure that there is significant funding that can be used now to 
implement transportation investments that reduce GHG emissions.  
The Plan Update’s key recommendations for transportation focus on planning, 
changes to funding and market strategies and new regulations.  These priorities 
support investments that expand clean passenger and freight technologies and 
equipment, low carbon fuels, and implementation of adopted SCSs.  As the 
largest contributor to GHG emissions, the transportation sector has the highest 
requirement for GHG reductions, per Governor Brown’s Executive Order 
Executive Order B-16-2012, which specifically requires an 80 percent GHG 
reduction.   
 
For the transportation industry to achieve its GHG reduction target, significant 
and reliable funding sources are needed now to move the Bay Area SCS from a 
plan into implementation.  The strategies included in the SCS will result in 
long-term shifts in travel and land use patterns, but require an up-front 
investment in infrastructure and development incentives to realize their GHG 
emission reductions.  

 

9.1C

Page 253Page 253Page 253Page 253

http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=17472


 
 

Without a significant commitment of funds this work cannot be implemented in a timely 
way to support the GHG reduction timelines and targets.   
 
Direct significant Cap and Trade revenues to transportation investments that 
reduce GHG emissions 
The State’s new Cap and Trade program represents one of the most promising opportunities 
for investing in transportation strategies that support GHG reductions.  Although the State 
has not yet allocated Cap and Trade funds, efforts are underway to define the program’s 
allocation plan.  While several sales have already been conducted, generating around $1 
billion to date, overall Cap and Trade revenues are expected to significantly increase in 2015 
when transportation fuels are included in the program.   
 
Given that the transportation sector accounts for 40% of State GHG emissions, the Bay Area 
CMA Association supports directing at least 40% of Cap and Trade revenues to 
transportation investments.  Additionally, starting in 2015 the Bay Area CMA Association 
supports CARB working with the California State Transportation Agency and other regional 
and local transportation agencies to direct the additional revenues generated from 
transportation fuels to investments in the transportation sector. Directing fuel-based 
revenue to transportation programs that achieve GHG reductions will fulfill AB 32 goals and 
provide a “user fee” link between increased fuel prices and transportation investments that 
benefit those paying. 
 
Support the successful planning and investment strategies developed and 
delivered by the regions and local agencies.  
The nine Bay Area CMAs deliver almost $1 billion each year for projects and programs that 
support the Bay Area’s economy and mobility and reduce GHG emissions through cutting-
edge transportation efforts such as:  

• Bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure and programs 
• Clean fuels and new technologies 
• Express bus service 
• Highway/roadway improvements to reduce congestion and support goods movement 
• Mass transit operations and capital investments 
• Transportation Demand Management programs 
• Transit oriented development 
• Senior and disabled transportation 

 
Bay Area voters have approved local transportation measures that fund these investments.  
We are held accountable to strict delivery timelines through open and public processes and 
we report regularly to the public on how funds are expended.  This accountability has 
resulted in significant investments that reduce congestion, improve access and efficiencies, 
and create safe, efficient and clean transportation systems.  Recognizing and rewarding the 
efficiency and effectiveness of our delivery processes by directing funds and administration 
authority to regions and local agencies will enable the State to advance its GHG reduction 
goals. 
 
In addition, the Bay Area CMA Association appreciates your acknowledgement of the local 
leadership needed in cities and counties to make the land use, infrastructure, and operations 
decisions that change the planning and implementation of our transportation systems.  A 
continued recognition of local agencies’ hard work and ongoing engagement in the GHG 
reduction efforts are essential for the State meet its goals.   
 
 
 
 

Page 254Page 254Page 254Page 254



 
 
 
Administer funding for transportation’s GHG reduction program at the 
regional level.  
The Bay Area CMA Association appreciates CARB’s recognition of regional planning and 
local leadership in development of SCSs and the importance of supporting efforts both 
locally and regionally to implement these plans.  In keeping with this key recommendation 
in the Plan Update, we recommend that CARB support that state funding for GHG 
reductions related to SCS implementation be administered at the regional level.   
 
The Bay Area CMA Association appreciates your efforts on the AB 32 Scoping Plan Update, 
which will greatly influence transportation, fuels, and infrastructure in California and 
change the way we perceive and address energy efficiency, waste, water, and agriculture, as 
well as protect our natural resources and enrich communities throughout California.  We see 
investment in the transportation sector as a key strategy to meet the State’s ambitious GHG 
reduction goals. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Scoping Plan Update.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Daryl Halls 
Bay Area CMA Association Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
cc. 
Bay Area CMA Executive Directors 
Steve Heminger, MTC Executive Director 
Ezra Rapport, ABAG Executive Director 

 
 
 
 

Page 255Page 255Page 255Page 255



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 256Page 256Page 256Page 256



 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.2_2014_TEP\9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116.docx  
 

Memorandum  9.2 

 
DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan, direct staff to seek 
approval of the Plan from Alameda County City Councils and the 
Board of Supervisors to place on the November 4, 2014 ballot, and 
authorize future polling services for the 2014 TEP. 

 

Summary  

Prior to the December 2013 Commission meeting, Alameda CTC updated the 2012 
Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) to include a 30-year sunset date, modify one 
project description due to the loss of external funding sources, and modify language so it 
is more understandable to the public, based upon a public opinion survey and focus 
groups conducted in fall 2013. The TEP Ad Hoc Committee made additional updates in 
January 2014 in response to Commission input to make the language easier to 
understand and to respond to stakeholder input.  The Steering Committee recommends 
Commission approval of the revised 2014 TEP and to direct staff to seek approvals from 
Alameda County city councils and the Board of Supervisors by no later than July 2014 for 
placement on the November 4, 2014 ballot.  This recommendation also includes approval 
of polling services for the 2014 TEP within the Executive Director’s contracting authority. 

Background 

Alameda County’s existing sales tax, Measure B, was first approved by voters in 1986, and 
reauthorized in 2000 with the support of 81.5 percent of Alameda County voters. 

On November 6, 2012, the Alameda County ballot included Measure B1, a measure to 
increase the existing half-cent county transaction and use tax for transportation by an 
additional half-cent cent, and maintain it in perpetuity. The measure received 66.53 percent 
of voter support, not enough to surpass the state’s two-thirds requirement for passage of 
voter-approved taxes.  

Alameda County has benefited from more than 25 years of local transportation sales tax 
funding, which far exceeds annual amounts from either state or federal funds. Because the 
measure lost by a very small margin, 721 votes, the Alameda CTC intends to return to the 

Page 257



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.2_2014_TEP\9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116.docx 

 

 

voters for approval of an extension of the current Measure B, which expires on March 31, 
2022. 

TEP Steering and Ad Hoc Committees Activities 

The Commission formed an Ad Hoc Committee in June 2013, a Steering Committee in 
September 2013, and a second Ad Hoc Committee in December 2013 to review and update 
the Transportation Expenditure Plan in preparation for reauthorization of Measure B. 
Alameda CTC also worked with a consultant to conduct polling. Activities were as follows. 

July 2013: The Ad Hoc Committee of Alameda CTC Commissioners met to address next steps 
for moving forward with a TEP on the ballot, including focus groups in each area of the 
county as well as performing a public opinion survey to identify issues and evaluate support 
for the transportation elements included in the 2012 TEP, test a sunset date, and assess overall 
support for another transportation measure on the ballot.  

August 2013: Four focus groups representing each area of the county provided input on the 
transportation sales tax measure and ballot language. 

September 2013: A public opinion survey of registered voters was conducted throughout 
Alameda County in September. Alameda CTC staff and consultants presented results of the 
focus groups and polling questions to the Steering Committee and the full Commission.  

The Steering Committee and Commissioners requested additional information on addressing 
the importance of different types of transportation investments in the different areas of the 
county, as well as more information on the demographics and propensity of voter support for 
transportation investments in each area.   

Commission members approved establishing a sunset date for inclusion in a future TEP and a 
recommendation to not open up the TEP for major negotiations. The only changes to the TEP 
requested were to:  

1. Address inclusion of the sunset date; and 
2. Update the project description for the Dumbarton Rail Corridor, which lost external 

funds, and reflect the agreement of the Tri-cities (Fremont, Newark and Union City) for 
transportation improvements in the Dumbarton Corridor area. 

October 2013: The Steering Committee and Commission received a presentation on area-
specific information from polling. Based upon the polling results that showed overall support 
above the two-thirds voter threshold needed to pass a measure, the Steering Committee 
recommended the following, and the Commission gave approval to: 

• Place a measure on the ballot in 2014. 
• Conduct an economic analysis of TEP working with the Bay Area Council and East Bay 

Economic Development Agency (see item 3B of the December 5, 2013 Steering 

Page 258



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.2_2014_TEP\9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116.docx 

 

 

Committee meeting agenda packet for a summary of the purpose and approach to 
this effort). 

• Finalize a 2014 TEP with redline markups and bring it to the Steering Committee and 
Commission for approval at their December meetings. 

December 2013: The Steering Committee and Commissioners discussed the changes to the 
TEP, and agreed that further modifications to the TEP were required to make it more 
understandable to the public, based upon a public opinion survey and focus groups 
conducted in fall 2013.  In addition, staff was directed to reach out to stakeholder 
organizations such as the League of Women Voters and the Sierra Club to address their 
concerns before the Commission adopts the final TEP. The Steering Committee formed an Ad 
Hoc Committee of four Commissioners to work with staff to review and further update the 
TEP. The Commission postponed adoption of the TEP and implementation schedule until 
January 2014. 

December through January 2014: Meetings were held with the League of Women Voters and 
Sierra Club members, and the Ad Hoc Committee addressed changes in the TEP. 

Primary Changes to the TEP 

The changes in the 2014 TEP reflect priorities previously identified in the polling and include 
changes described below. There were no changes to project or program funding amounts. 

• General changes: The revised TEP brings up key points earlier and more clearly, 
and highlights the accountability measures and benefits of the plan. The 
revisions also: 

o Summarize and reorder bulleted lists to more clearly articulate the intent 
of the expenditures. 

o Eliminate references to the merger since that occurred almost four years 
ago. 

o Reduce the description of the plan development in relation to the long-
range Countywide Transportation Plan that is a few years old. 

• Executive Summary: A new summary highlights the priority investments and 
brings to the front of the document the accountability measures. 

o A new summary table highlights the investments.  

o The former Appendix A table, which includes more detail on projects, 
moved into the Executive Summary. 

• Transportation Investment chapter changes: 

Page 259



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.2_2014_TEP\9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116.docx 

 

 

o Staff modified the titles of the funding categories to reflect polling results, 
make them easier to understand and more meaningful to the public. 
Titles of funding categories are now as follows: 

− BART, Bus, Senior and Youth Transit (formerly Mass Transit) 

− Local Streets Maintenance and Safety (formerly Local Streets and 
Roads) 

− Traffic Relief on Highways (formerly Highways Efficiency, Freight 
and Economic Development) 

− Bicycle and Pedestrian Paths and Safety(formerly Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Infrastructure) 

− Community Development Investments (formerly Sustainable 
Transportation and Land Use Linkages) 

− Technology and Innovation (remained the same) 

o A new paragraph in the introduction clarifies the use of express lane 
funds for reinvestment in the corridor to fund transit projects and 
operations. 

o In the “BART, Bus, Senior and Youth Transit” section, the project 
description for the “Dumbarton Rail Corridor Implementation project” 
was changed to “Dumbarton Corridor Area Transportation Improvement 
projects.” It was revised to remove rail and to add transit operations 
across the Dumbarton Bridge, transit oriented development and priority 
development area, local streets, and bicycle/pedestrian infrastructure 
investments within the cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City.  

o Detail in the “Traffic Relief on Highways” section articulates how net 
revenues from the  express lane projects will also fund transit projects 
and operations. 

o A new paragraph in the “Community Development Investments” section  
addresses non-displacement 

o The addition of shuttles to the “Technology and Innovation” section was 
in response to Commissioners’ requests to include shuttles. 

• Implementing Guidelines chapter changes: A new paragraph identifies 
performance measures and cost effectiveness that the Independent 
Watchdog Committee will review and report to the public annually. 

 

Page 260



 
R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\9.2_2014_TEP\9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116.docx 

 

 

Previous Changes to the TEP Included in the Final Draft 

• Sunset date: Insertion of a 30-year sunset date reflects sales tax collection from 2015 
through 2045, based on voter approval of a measure in November 2014. All dates  
and associated language were changed throughout to reflect the inclusion of the 
sunset date. 

• General changes: Alameda CTC eliminated the term “pass-through” funding because 
it was confusing to the public; included “good jobs” to reflect the polling results that 
showed support for economic development and jobs; and made minor text 
corrections throughout. 

Next Steps 

Based on approval of this recommendation,  staff will seek approvals of the 2014 TEP from 
cities and the Board of Supervisors by no later than July 2014 to place a measure on the 
November 4, 2014 ballot. Once the plan is approved by the Commission, Alameda CTC 
will develop public educational materials for each type of investment to clearly convey in 
easy-to-understand terms its purpose, need, and benefit.  

Fiscal Impact: Funding for future polling services within the Executive Directors authority will 
be authorized.  The Executive Director has contracting authority up to and including $75,000.  

Attachments 

A. 2014 Alameda County Transportation Expenditure Plan (hyperlinked to web) 
B. 2014 Alameda County Transportation Expenditure Plan Schedule 

Staff Contact  

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Page 261

mailto:TLengyel@AlamedaCTC.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 262



 

R:
\A

la
C

TC
_M

ee
tin

g
s\

C
om

m
iss

io
n\

C
om

m
iss

io
n\

20
14

01
23

\9
.2

_2
01

4_
TE

P\
9.

2_
B_

TE
P_

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

tio
n_

Sc
he

d
ul

e_
FY

13
-1

4_
20

14
01

15
.x

lsx

Ta
sk

Pl
a

nn
ed

 
D

ue
 D

a
te

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

Ja
nu

a
ry

Fe
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h
A

p
ril

 
M

a
y

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
b

er
N

ot
es

Ap
pr

ov
e 

Tim
in

g 
of

 B
al

lo
t M

ea
su

re
 P

la
ce

m
en

t
10

/2
4/

13

A
pp

ro
ve

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

 b
al

lo
t 

pl
ac

em
en

t

D
et

er
m

in
e 

Le
ng

th
 o

f P
la

n
N

ov
-1

3

Re
vi

se
 E

xi
st

in
g 

TE
P 

an
d 

M
ee

t w
ith

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

N
ov

-1
3

Ad
op

t F
in

al
 2

01
4 

TE
P

Ja
n-

14
Ad

op
t F

in
al

 
20

14
 T

EP

Se
ek

 T
EP

 A
pp

ro
va

ls 
fro

m
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 S
up

er
vi

so
rs

Ju
l-1

4

Pe
rfo

rm
 P

ol
lin

g
Pe

rfo
rm

 
po

llin
g

Re
vi

ew
 

po
llin

g 
ou

tc
om

es

Pe
rfo

rm
 

po
llin

g

Re
vi

ew
 

po
llin

g 
ou

tc
om

es

Ap
pr

ov
e 

Pl
ac

em
en

t o
f M

ea
su

re
 o

n 
Ba

llo
t; 

Pe
rfo

rm
 O

ng
oi

ng
 A

ge
nc

y 
O

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

n
N

ov
-1

4

Re
qu

es
t s

al
es

 
ta

x 
m

ea
su

re
 

an
d 

TE
P 

on
 

ba
llo

t; 
pe

rfo
rm

 
ou

tre
ac

h

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

N
ov

-1
4

N
ov

. 4
, 2

01
4 

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

Se
ek

 T
EP

 a
pp

ro
va

l f
ro

m
 c

ity
 c

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 B

oa
rd

 o
f S

up
er

vi
so

rs

Pe
rfo

rm
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n

Tr
a

ns
p

or
ta

tio
n 

Ex
p

en
d

itu
re

 P
la

n 
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
tio

n 
Pl

a
n 

fo
r F

isc
a

l Y
ea

rs
 2

01
3-

20
15

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
3-

20
14

D
et

er
m

in
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f s
al

es
 

ta
x 

m
ea

su
re

; d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
da

te
 st

ar
t

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
r 2

01
4-

20
15

M
ak

e 
m

in
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 

ex
ist

in
g 

TE
P 

an
d 

m
ee

t w
ith

 st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
to

 g
et

 b
uy

-in

9.2B

Page 263



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 264



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

Memorandum 10.1 

 

DATE: January 16, 2014 

SUBJECT: Debt Issuance for the 2000 Measure B Capital Program  

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Commission approve the:  

1. Structure and Issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax 
Bonds), Series 2014 for the delivery of the 2000 Measure B 
Capital Program for a Par Amount Not to Exceed $165 Million;  

2. The Bond Documents and Bond Authorizing Resolution, in their 
substantially final form; 

3. The State Board of Equalization (SBOE) Amended and Restated 
Agreement and SBOE Authorizing Resolution;  

Adopt Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures for Tax-Exempt 
Bonds; and 

Authorize the Chair, the Executive Director and/or the Director of 
Finance to Execute all Documents Required for the Issuance of the 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014. 

 

Summary  

Per the Public Utilities Code, the Alameda CTC is authorized to issue limited tax bonds to 
finance capital expenditures as provided for in the transportation expenditure plan which 
are to be payable from the proceeds of the sales tax measure.  The Sales Tax Revenue 
Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (Series 2014 Bonds), to be issued in a par amount not 
to exceed $165 million, will provide funding on a programmatic basis for the Measure B 
capital projects program.  The projects with the largest draw on Measure B capital project 
funds over the next few years include the BART Warm Springs Extension, the BART Oakland 
Airport Connector, the Route 84 Expressway, and the I-580 Corridor Improvements 
projects, which together account for most of the debt financing need.  The issuance of 
the Series 2014 Bonds will ensure that the ACTIA capital projects fund will be able to 
continue to meet the cash flow requirements of these and other projects, as well as pay 
debt service, both in the near term and throughout the life of the measure.   

Approval of the requested action will allow for the bond issuance process to proceed 
expeditiously, taking advantage of the currently low interest rate environment and strong 
bond market.  In addition, the most current revenue projections and cash flow analysis for 

Page 265Page 265Page 265Page 265



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

the Measure B capital program indicates that there will be more than adequate funding 
available to repay the associated debt service. 

The financing team has completed the following steps in the bond issuance process: 

• Drafted forms of documents to meet objectives 
• Created and presented a comprehensive overview of Alameda CTC, the regional 

economy, and the security and structure for the Series 2014 Bonds to Standard and 
Poor’s and Fitch 

• Received ratings 

Once the Commission has approved the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds and 
associated documents, the next steps in the bond issuance process will be to (with 
approximate timing):  

• Print and distribute the Preliminary Official Statement (end of January),  
• Market the Series 2014 Bonds to investors through conference calls, investor 

meetings and a web-based audio-visual presentation (last week of January 
through the 2nd week of February), 

• Price the Series 2014 Bonds (2nd week of February), 
• Sign the Bond Purchase Agreement (2nd week of February), 
• Print the final Official Statement (3rd week of February),  
• Sign all final financing and bond documents (3rd week of February), and 
• Close the Series 2014 Bond sale (last week of February). 

In order to comply with covenants in the bond documents and to maintain positive investor 
relations, staff will set up procedures to ensure that once bonds are issued, debt service is 
paid accurately and timely and that continuing disclosure requirements are met.  Continuing 
disclosure information should reflect the changes in sales tax revenues over time and 
includes specific events that can have an impact on key features of the bonds.  This 
information is loaded on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s (MSRB) Electronic 
Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website at www.EMMA.MSRB.org. 

Background 

Objectives in Structuring the Series 2014 Bonds 

In designing the structure of the Series 2014 Bonds, the financing team had the following 
objectives: 

• Design a financing structure that can be executed quickly to take advantage of 
the current low interest rate environment, 

• Ensure that cash flow demands were met to fund the Measure B capital program, 
• Utilize a traditional fixed-rate structure, and  
• Secure a strong credit rating from both Standard & Poor’s and Fitch. 

Page 266Page 266Page 266Page 266

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

Series 2014 Bonds: Security and Preliminary Structure 

The financing team reviewed several options for how the Series 2014 Bonds should be 
structured utilizing a traditional fixed-rate approach.  The recommended security and 
structure includes the following elements: 

• Gross pledge of Measure B sales tax revenues 
• Issuance of premium-bonds with a not to exceed amount of $165 million par value 
• Interest only debt service through 2016 (deferred principal payments during period 

of maximum project construction draws) 
• First principal payment is expected to be March 1, 2017 
• Level debt service from 2017 - 2022 
• Final maturity of the Series 2014 Bonds is expected to be March 1, 2022 
• Closed senior lien (refunding bonds and subordinate obligations are permitted by 

the Indenture, but staff does not expect to recommend the issuance of any 
additional financing mechanism for Measure B) 

• No debt service reserve fund 
• Non-callable structure 
• Estimated Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) coverage of 4.52x (based on 

FY2013 sales tax revenues and a preliminary bond par amount of $138.09 million) 

Please note that some of these structural features may change based on changes in 
market conditions between now and the time the Series 2014 Bonds are sold/priced, 
which is expected to be early to mid-February. 

Overview of Bond Documents 

The recommendation is for the Commission to approve the substantially final form of 
several financing and bond documents that are required to execute the Series 2014 
Bonds and to adopt post-issuance tax compliance policies and procedures to comply 
with requirements established by the Internal Revenue Service applicable to issuers of tax-
exempt bonds.  Each of these documents has either been prepared or reviewed by bond 
counsel or bond disclosure counsel, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP or Fulbright & 
Jaworski LLP, respectively.  All financing documents also have been reviewed by the 
Alameda CTC’s general counsel and the financing team, which includes staff, PFM as 
financial advisor, Citigroup as senior managing underwriter and Barclays as co-managing 
underwriter. 

Master Indenture – The master indenture is the agreement between the Alameda CTC 
and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee acting on behalf of the bond holders, which sets forth the 
basic terms and conditions for the transaction, creates the sales tax revenue pledge and 
security features, establishes the flow of funds and the duties of the bond trustee. 

First Supplemental Indenture – The first supplemental indenture is the agreement between 
the Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee acting on behalf of the bond holders, 

Page 267Page 267Page 267Page 267



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

which sets forth the terms of the Series 2014 Bonds, including interest rates and maturity 
dates. 

Preliminary Official Statement – The preliminary official statement (POS) is the document 
that is distributed to potential investors to solicit their interest in purchasing the Series 2014 
Bonds.  It provides information concerning the bond issue and background information 
concerning the Alameda CTC.  As required by the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
the document must be true and correct in all material respects, and may not have any 
misleading omissions.  Subsequent to pricing the Series 2014 Bonds, the pricing information 
will be inserted.  After the pricing information is inserted, the preliminary designation is 
deleted from the document and the document is identified as the Official Statement 
which will be distributed to all purchasers of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Bond Purchase Agreement – The bond purchase agreement is a contract between the 
Alameda CTC and the underwriting syndicate, which is represented by Citigroup, as 
senior managing underwriter of the Series 2014 Bonds, under which the underwriter will 
purchase the Series 2014 Bonds from Alameda CTC and resell them to investors.  Under 
this agreement, the underwriter would receive compensation based on a formula of $1 
per $1,000 of bonds issued, plus actual expenses for the underwriters’ legal counsel and 
other costs directly related to the transaction.  The level of compensation is favorable as 
compared with other comparably-sized bond transactions that have recently been 
completed.  For a $165 million bond issue, based on this formula, the underwriter’s 
discount would be approximately $165,000, excluding expenses.  The compensation and 
expense reimbursement is contingent on the closing of the transaction. 

Continuing Disclosure Agreement – The continuing disclosure agreement is an agreement 
between the Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., serving as Dissemination Agent, under 
which the Alameda CTC agrees to provide certain information related to the sales tax 
revenues on an annual basis and to provide notices of certain specified events to the 
marketplace for the life of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

State Board of Equalization Amended and Restated Agreement – This agreement 
between Alameda CTC and the State Board of Equalization (SBOE) amends and restates 
the agreement effective January 1, 2002 when Measure B originally was initiated.  This 
amended and restated agreement provides for the SBOE to transmit sales tax revenues 
directly to Union Bank, N.A. as trustee who will withhold the portion related to debt service 
and forward the balance on to Alameda CTC.  This structure provides additional security 
for the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds and is usual and customary for sales tax revenue 
financings. 

Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures for Tax-Exempt Bonds – These policies and 
procedures are required to be established and adopted by issuers of tax-exempt bonds 
to ensure compliance with the requirements of federal tax law which preserve the tax-
exempt status of interest on the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Page 268Page 268Page 268Page 268



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

Not to Exceed Bond Authorization 

The recommended not to exceed amount of bond authorization for the Series 2014 Bonds 
is $165 million.  At this time, staff anticipates issuing approximately $138.09 million in bonds.  
However, the maximum authorization level has been set higher in order to provide 
flexibility in structuring the bonds themselves, in relation to premium or discount.  This 
flexibility will allow the Alameda CTC financing team to respond appropriately to any 
changes in market conditions and investor demand that may occur between now and 
the date of the bond sale.   

Cost of Issuance  

The Alameda CTC will incur up to an estimated $647,500 in costs associated with the 
Series 2014 Bond issuance, referred to as “costs of issuance”.  These costs will be paid from 
the proceeds of the bond issuance and they include: 

• Up to $68,000 for PFM for acting as financial advisor on this transaction.  This 
amount is contingent on the closing of the transaction. 

• Up to $79,500 for Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, to serve as bond counsel for this 
transaction.  This amount is contingent on the closing of the transaction. 

• Up to $80,000 for Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, to serve as bond disclosure counsel for 
this transaction.  This amount is contingent on the closing of the transaction. 

• Up to an estimated $255,000 for Citigroup/Barclays for acting as underwriter on this 
transaction.  This amount is contingent on the closing of the transaction. 

• An estimated $165,000 will be needed for rating agency fees, trustee fees, bond 
printer and other miscellaneous costs. 

Remaining Steps in Series 2014 Bond Issuance 

If the Commission approves the recommendation, the financing team will proceed to take 
the financing to market.  The following steps will occur prior to the closing of the Series 2014 
Bond issuance, which is currently scheduled for the week of February 24, 2014 (subject to 
change based on market conditions): 

• Finalize the Preliminary Official Statement, print and distribute to potential investors, 
• Market the Series 2014 Bonds to investors through conference calls, investor 

meetings and a web-based audio-visual presentation, 
• Price the Series 2014 Bonds,  
• Sign the Bond Purchase Agreement, 
• Print the final Official Statement, 
• Sign all final financing and bond documents, and 
• Close the Series 2014 Bond sale.  

During the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, Alameda County residents will be given priority on 
bond purchase orders (meaning orders received from Alameda County residents will be filled 

Page 269Page 269Page 269Page 269



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Commission\Commission\20140123\10.1_Debt_Issuance_Measure_B\
10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval.docx 

 

 

at the final yield before others).  Staff expects to report back to the Commission on the final 
results of the Series 2014 Bond issuance at the March 2014 meeting. 

Fiscal Impact:   The fiscal impact for approving this item is up to an estimated $2.68 million of 
expenses for FY2013-14.  Cost of issuance expenses of up to $647,500 will be paid out of bond 
proceeds and debt service costs of approximately $2.04 million will be accrued for March 
through June of this fiscal year and paid out of Measure B sales tax revenues next fiscal year 
on September 1, 2014.  All of these costs will be included in a new debt fund in the mid-year 
budget update for FY2013-14. 

Attachments 

A. Authorizing Resolution – Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Not to Exceed $165 
million Aggregate Principal Amount of Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 

B. Indenture Between Alameda County Transportation Commission and Union Bank, 
N.A., as Trustee Relating to Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds) 

C. First Supplemental Indenture Between Alameda County Transportation Commission 
and Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee Relating to Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 

D. Preliminary Official Statement for Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales 
Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 

E. Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax 
Bonds), Series 2014 Bond Purchase Agreement 

F. Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and between Alameda County Transportation 
Commission and Union Bank, N.A., as Dissemination Agent  

G. Amended and Restated Agreement for Administration of District Transaction and Use 
Taxes between the Alameda County Transportation Commission and the California 
State Board of Equalization 

H. California State Board of Equalization Authorizing Resolution Authorizing an Amended 
and Restated Agreement for the Administration of District Transaction and Use Taxes 
between the Alameda County Transportation Commission and the California State 
Board of Equalization 

I. Post Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures for Tax-Exempt Bonds  

Staff Contact  
Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

Page 270Page 270Page 270Page 270

mailto:preavey@alamedactc.org


 
 
 

     ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

                       RESOLUTION 14-002 

  
Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Not To Exceed $165,000,000 
Aggregate Principal Amount of Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds) to be Issued in 
One or More Series, the Execution and Delivery of an Indenture and a 
Supplemental Indenture Providing for the Terms and Provisions of Said 
Bonds, the Distribution of an Official Statement Describing Said Bonds, the 
Execution and Delivery of a Bond Purchase Agreement Providing for the 
Sale of Said Bonds and Certain Other Agreements and Documents 
Required in Connection with the Issuance and Sale of Said Bonds, 
Including a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and the Taking of Other 
Actions Necessary in Connection with the Issuance and Sale of Said Bonds 

WHEREAS, the Alameda County Transportation Commission (the 
"Alameda CTC") is a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity 
organized under the laws of the State of California; 

WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC is the successor agency to the 
Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority ("ACTIA"), a local 
transportation authority duly established under and pursuant to the Local 
Transportation Authority and Improvement Act (constituting Division 19 of 
the Public Utilities Code of the State of California) (the "Act"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, ACTIA adopted 
Ordinance No. 2000-1 (hereinafter referred to as the "Measure B 
Ordinance") on July 25, 2000, which provided for continuation of an 
existing retail transactions and use tax which expired pursuant to its terms 
as of March 31, 2002; 

WHEREAS, the Measure B Ordinance provided for the imposition of a 
retail transactions and use tax (hereinafter referred to as the "Measure B 
Sales Tax") at the rate of one-half of one percent (1/2%) for a period not to 
exceed twenty (20) years, commencing April 1, 2002, such Measure B Sales 
Tax to be applicable in the incorporated and unincorporated territory of 
the County of Alameda (the "County"); 

WHEREAS, in addition to authorizing the Measure B Sales Tax, the 
Measure B Ordinance authorized ACTIA to issue limited tax bonds to 
finance transportation improvements, including transit and road 
improvement, set forth in the Alameda County 20-Year Transportation 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Mayor Peggy Thomsen 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor William Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor John Chiang 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Councilmember Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

10.1A

Page 271Page 271Page 271Page 271



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-002 
Page 2 

Expenditure Plan (such expenditure plan, as supplemented and amended from time to time pursuant 
to its terms, being hereinafter referred to as the "Measure B Expenditure Plan") adopted in July 2000; 

WHEREAS, the Measure B Ordinance was approved by more than two-thirds of the voters of 
the County voting on the Measure B Ordinance at the general election held in the County on 
November 7, 2000; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its terms, the Measure B Ordinance became effective on April 1, 2002 
and collection of the Measure B Sales Tax commenced April 1, 2002 and will expire on March 31, 
2022; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Measure B Ordinance, as successor 
agency to ACTIA, the Alameda CTC is authorized to issue limited tax bonds secured by and payable 
from the proceeds of the Measure B Sales Tax; 

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to finance or reimburse the Alameda CTC for its prior 
payment of the costs of certain transit and road improvements identified in the Measure B 
Expenditure Plan (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Project"), the Authority hereby 
determines to issue certain limited tax bonds, such limited tax bonds to be designated as the 
Alameda County  Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), and to 
be issued in one or more series (each, a "Series of Bonds," and, hereinafter collectively referred to as 
the "Bonds"), in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed one hundred sixty five million dollars 
($165,000,000), which is the estimated cost of accomplishing the purposes for which such limited tax 
bonds are being issued and which amount does not exceed the amount of limited tax bonds which 
the Alameda CTC is authorized to issue pursuant to the Act; 

WHEREAS, the Bonds shall be issued pursuant to an Indenture (the "Master Indenture") and a 
First Supplemental Indenture thereto (the "Supplemental Indenture"), each of which is proposed to be 
entered into between the Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A. ("Union Bank"), as trustee (the 
"Trustee"); 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the governing board of the Alameda CTC (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Commission") a proposed form of the Master Indenture and a proposed form of 
Supplemental Indenture (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indenture"); 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Bonds will be applied pursuant to the provisions of the 
Indenture as finally executed and delivered (i) to finance or reimburse the Alameda CTC for its prior 
payment of the costs of the Project, (ii) to fund capitalized interest, and (iii) to pay costs incurred in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds;  

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the offering of the Bonds, the Alameda CTC proposes to 
approve, execute and deliver an Official Statement (the "Official Statement") describing the Bonds 
and certain related matters; 

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and presented to the Commission a proposed form of 
Official Statement describing the Bonds and certain related matters; 

WHEREAS, in order to provide for a negotiated sale and public offering of the Bonds, the 
Alameda CTC proposes to enter into a bond purchase agreement (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Bond Purchase Agreement") with Citigroup Global Markets Inc. ("Citi"), acting on behalf of itself and 

Page 272Page 272Page 272Page 272



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-002 
Page 3 

Barclays Capital Inc. ("Barclays," and, together with Citi, hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Underwriters"); 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Commission a proposed form of Bond Purchase 
Agreement;  

WHEREAS, in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Securities and Exchange 
Commission Rule 15c2-12, the Alameda CTC proposes to enter into a Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement") with Union Bank, acting as dissemination agent 
(the "Dissemination Agent"); 

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and presented to the Commission a proposed form of 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement; 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with requirements established by the Internal Revenue Service 
applicable to issuers of tax-exempt bonds, the Alameda CTC proposes to adopt post-issuance tax 
compliance policies and procedures (hereinafter referred to as the "Post-Issuance Compliance 
Procedures"); 

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and presented to the Commission a proposed form of 
Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures; 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the Commission to approve the forms of and to authorize the 
execution of and delivery of the Master Indenture, the Supplemental Indenture, the Bond Purchase 
Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and to approve the form of and to authorize 
the execution and distribution of the Official Statement, to authorize the issuance and sale of the 
Bonds pursuant to the Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement, to authorize, approve and ratify 
the taking of various actions in connection therewith and to approve and adopt the Post-Issuance 
Compliance Procedures; 

WHEREAS, the Commission has been presented with forms of the Master Indenture, the 
Supplemental Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Official Statement and the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Financing Documents"), each of 
such documents relating to the financing described herein (the "Financing"), and the Commission 
desires to authorize and direct the execution and delivery of each of the Financing Documents and 
such other documents as shall be necessary or advisable in connection with the Financing 
contemplated by this Resolution and described herein;  

WHEREAS, the Commission has been presented with a proposed form of Post-Issuance 
Compliance Procedures and the Commission desires to approve and adopt the Post-Issuance 
Compliance Procedures; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Act and the Constitution and laws of 
the State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in 
connection with the consummation of the transactions authorized hereby do exist, have happened 
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the 
Alameda CTC is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of 
law, to authorize the Financing, to authorize the execution and delivery of each of the Financing 
Documents, to issue the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and to sell the Bonds pursuant to the Bond 
Purchase Agreement, for the purposes, in the manner and upon the terms provided in this Resolution; 

Page 273Page 273Page 273Page 273



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-002 
Page 4 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Alameda County Transportation Commission as 
follows: 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and the Commission so finds and 
determines. 

Section 2. Approval of Bonds.  The issuance by the Alameda CTC of not to exceed $165,000,000 
aggregate principal amount of Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue 
Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), in one or more Series, is hereby authorized and approved. 

Section 3. Approval of Master Indenture and Supplemental Indenture.  The proposed form of 
Master Indenture and the proposed form of Supplemental Indenture, each between the Alameda 
CTC and the Trustee, presented to the Commission, and the terms and provisions thereof, which are 
hereby incorporated by reference, are hereby approved.  The dates, maturity dates (which shall not 
extend beyond the expiration date of the Measure B Sales Tax), interest rate or rates (which shall not 
exceed 5.0% per annum), interest payment dates, denominations (which shall not be less than 
$5,000), form of the Bonds, registration and exchange privileges, place or places of payment, terms 
of redemption, if any, the time when all of, or any part of, the principal becomes due and payable, 
and other terms of the Bonds shall be as provided in the Indenture, as finally executed and delivered. 

The Clerk of the Alameda CTC (the "Clerk") is directed to file a copy of said form of Master Indenture 
and said form of Supplemental Indenture with the minutes of this meeting, and the Chair of the 
Commission (the "Chair"), the Vice Chair of the Commission (the "Vice Chair"), the Executive Director 
of the Alameda CTC (the "Executive Director") or the Director of Finance of the Alameda CTC (the 
"Director of Finance"), each acting alone, is authorized and directed, for and in the name and on 
behalf of the Alameda CTC, to execute and deliver the Master Indenture and the Supplemental 
Indenture, each in substantially such form, with such additions thereto or changes therein as such 
officer of the Alameda CTC executing the same, with the advice of counsel to the Alameda CTC 
(the "Alameda CTC Counsel"), may require or approve, the approval of such additions or changes to 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Master Indenture and the 
Supplemental Indenture. 

Section 4. Application of Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be applied to finance costs 
of the Project, to fund capitalized interest and to pay certain costs incurred by the Alameda CTC in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds, all in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution 
and the Indenture as finally executed and delivered. 

Section 5. Approval of Official Statement.  The proposed form of Official Statement, presented to 
the Commission, describing the Bonds and related matters, and the terms and provisions thereof, 
which are hereby incorporated by reference, are hereby approved.  The Clerk is directed to file a 
copy of said form of Official Statement with the minutes of this meeting.  The Official Statement in 
preliminary form may be deemed final by the Executive Director or the Director of Finance, acting on 
behalf of the Alameda CTC for purposes of compliance with Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15c2-12 and the distribution of the Official Statement in such preliminary form as is deemed final 
by the Executive Director or Director of Finance is hereby authorized. 

The Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director or the Director of Finance is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver a final Official Statement in substantially the form of the Official 
Statement presented to this meeting, with such additions thereto or changes therein as the Chair, the 
Vice Chair, the Executive Director or the Director of Finance, with the advice of Alameda CTC 

Page 274Page 274Page 274Page 274



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-002 
Page 5 

Counsel, may require or approve, the approval of such additions or changes to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Official Statement. 

The Underwriters are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of the Official Statement to 
persons purchasing the Bonds. 

Section 6. Approval of Bond Purchase Agreement.  The proposed form of Bond Purchase 
Agreement providing for a sale of the Bonds to the Underwriters, presented to the Commission, and 
the terms and provisions thereof, which are hereby incorporated by reference, are hereby approved.  
The Clerk is directed to file a copy of said form of Bond Purchase Agreement with the minutes of this 
meeting.  The sale of the Bonds to the Underwriters (i) at the principal amount thereof, less an 
underwriters' discount of not to exceed 0.165% of such principal amount in accordance with the 
Bond Purchase Agreement and (ii) at a true interest cost not to exceed three percent (3.0%) is 
hereby authorized and approved.  The Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director or the Director of 
Finance, each acting alone, for and in the name and on behalf of the Alameda CTC, is authorized 
and directed to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement in substantially the form of Bond 
Purchase Agreement presented to this meeting, with such additions thereto or changes therein as 
such officer of the Alameda CTC executing the same, with the advice of Alameda CTC Counsel, 
may require or approve, the approval of such additions or changes to be conclusively evidenced by 
the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

Section 7. Approval of Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The proposed form of Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, between the Alameda CTC and the Dissemination Agent, presented to the 
Commission, and the terms and conditions thereof, which are hereby incorporated by reference, are 
hereby approved.  The Clerk is directed to file a copy of said form of Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement with the minutes of this meeting, and the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director or 
the Director of Finance is authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement to the Dissemination Agent, in substantially the form of the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement presented to this meeting, with such additions thereto or changes therein, as such officer 
executing the same, with the advice of Alameda CTC Counsel, may require or approve, the 
approval of such additions or changes to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery 
of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 8. Approval and Adoption of Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures.  The proposed form 
of Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures presented to this meeting are hereby approved and 
adopted. 

Section 9. Authorized Representatives.  The Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director or the 
Director of Finance (each, an "Authorized Representative of the Alameda CTC"), acting singly, is, and 
each of them hereby is, authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Alameda 
CTC, to execute and deliver any and all agreements, certificates, documents, instructions and 
instruments, including, without limitation, agreements necessary to amend the agreement with the 
State Board of Equalization relating to administration of the Measure B Sales Tax (hereinafter referred 
to as the "SBOE Agreement"), tax certificates, documents or instructions necessary in connection with 
the investment of proceeds of the Bonds, and certificates concerning representations and warranties 
set forth in the Financing Documents, necessary or advisable to carry out the purposes of this 
Resolution and the transactions contemplated hereby and to do and cause to be done any and all 
acts and things necessary or advisable to carry out the purposes of this Resolution and the 
transactions contemplated hereby and to do any and all things and take any and all actions which 
may be necessary or advisable, in such officer's discretion, to effectuate the actions which the 
Commission has approved in this Resolution and the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Page 275Page 275Page 275Page 275



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Resolution No. 14-002 
Page 6 

Section 10. Ratification of Actions.  All actions heretofore taken by the members of the Commission, 
committees of the Commission, each Authorized Representative of the Alameda CTC and officers 
and agents of the Alameda CTC with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Resolution 
and described herein, including, without limitation, execution and delivery of agreements or letters of 
representation required by The Depository Trust Company to qualify the Bonds as book-entry bonds, 
are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 11. Completion of Financing; Subsequent Actions.  All approvals, consents, directions, 
notices, orders, requests and other actions permitted or required by the Indenture, authorized by this 
Resolution or any of the other documents authorized by this Resolution, including, without limitation, 
any of the foregoing which may be necessary or desirable in connection with any amendment of 
the Indenture, the SBOE Agreement, any of the other documents authorized by this Resolution or the 
Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures and any redemption, refunding or defeasance of the Bonds, 
may be given or taken by any Authorized Representative of the Alameda CTC without further 
authorization by the Commission, and each Authorized Representative of the Alameda CTC is hereby 
authorized and directed to give any such approval, consent, direction, notice, order or request and 
to take any such action which such Authorized Representative of the Alameda CTC, with the advice 
of Alameda CTC Counsel, may deem necessary or desirable to further the purposes of this Resolution 
and the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Section 12. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, 
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution which 
shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 13. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 

Duly passed and adopted by the Alameda County Transportation Commission at the regular 
meeting of the Commission held on Thursday, January 23, 2014 in Oakland, California by the 
following votes: 

 
AYES:  NOES:  ABSTAIN: ABSENT: 

 
 
SIGNED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________   ____________________________ 
Scott Haggerty, Chairperson  Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 276Page 276Page 276Page 276



 
 

INDENTURE 

between 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

and 

UNION BANK, N.A., 
as Trustee 

________________________________ 

Dated as of February 1, 2014 

________________________________ 

Relating to 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 

(LIMITED TAX BONDS) 

 
 
 

10.1B

Page 277Page 277Page 277Page 277



Table of Contents 
 

Page 

 

 -i-  
 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

ARTICLE I 
EQUALITY OF SECURITY; DEFINITIONS; CONTENT OF CERTIFICATES 

SECTION 1.01 Equality of Security ................................................................................... 2 
SECTION 1.02 Definitions.................................................................................................. 3 
SECTION 1.03 Content of Certificates ............................................................................. 20 

ARTICLE II 
THE BONDS 

SECTION 2.01 Authorization of Bonds ............................................................................ 21 
SECTION 2.02 Terms of the Bonds .................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 2.03 Form of Bonds ......................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 2.04 Execution of Bonds .................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 2.05 Transfer of Bonds .................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 2.06 Exchange of Bonds .................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 2.07 Bond Register........................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 2.08 Temporary Bonds..................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 2.09 Bonds Mutilated; Lost; Destroyed or Stolen ........................................... 23 
SECTION 2.10 Use of Securities Depository ................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE III 
ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

SECTION 3.01 Issuance of Bonds .................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 3.02 Issuance of Refunding Bonds .................................................................. 25 
SECTION 3.03 Proceedings for Issuance of Refunding Bonds ........................................ 26 
SECTION 3.04 Utilization of Proceeds of Refunding Bonds ........................................... 27 
SECTION 3.05 Limitations on the Issuance of Obligations Payable from Sales Tax 

Revenues; Parity Obligations; Subordinate Obligations; Fee and 
Expense Obligations ................................................................................ 28 

SECTION 3.06 Calculation of Maximum Annual Debt Service with Respect to 
Bonds, Parity Obligations and Subordinate Obligations ......................... 29 

SECTION 3.07 Designation of Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and 
Fee and Expense Obligations ................................................................... 29 

SECTION 3.08 Application of Proceeds ........................................................................... 29 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION, TENDER AND PURCHASE OF BONDS 

SECTION 4.01 Terms of Redemption, Tender and Purchase ........................................... 29 
SECTION 4.02 Notice of Redemption .............................................................................. 30 
SECTION 4.03 Selection of Bonds for Optional Redemption; Partial Redemption 

of Bonds ................................................................................................... 31 
SECTION 4.04 Effect of Redemption ............................................................................... 31 

Page 278Page 278Page 278Page 278



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -ii-  
 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

ARTICLE V 
SALES TAX REVENUES 

SECTION 5.01 Pledge of Revenues; Revenue Fund ........................................................ 32 
SECTION 5.02 Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues ........................................................... 33 
SECTION 5.03 Application of Interest Fund .................................................................... 36 
SECTION 5.04 Application of Principal Fund .................................................................. 37 
SECTION 5.05 Establishment, Funding and Application of Bond Reserve Funds .......... 38 
SECTION 5.06 Application of Subordinate Obligations Fund ......................................... 40 
SECTION 5.07 Application of Fees and Expenses Fund .................................................. 41 
SECTION 5.08 Application of Redemption Fund............................................................. 41 
SECTION 5.09 Rebate Fund ............................................................................................. 41 
SECTION 5.10 Payment Provisions Applicable to Interest Rate Swap Agreements ....... 42 
SECTION 5.11 Investment in Funds and Accounts .......................................................... 43 

ARTICLE VI 
COVENANTS OF THE ALAMEDA CTC 

SECTION 6.01 Punctual Payments ................................................................................... 44 
SECTION 6.02 Extension of Payment of Bonds ............................................................... 45 
SECTION 6.03 Waiver of Laws ........................................................................................ 45 
SECTION 6.04 Further Assurances................................................................................... 45 
SECTION 6.05 Against Encumbrances............................................................................. 45 
SECTION 6.06 Accounting Records and Financial Statements........................................ 45 
SECTION 6.07 Collection of Sales Tax Revenues ........................................................... 46 
SECTION 6.08 Tax Covenants ......................................................................................... 46 
SECTION 6.09 Continuing Disclosure ............................................................................. 47 

ARTICLE VII 
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

SECTION 7.01 Events of Default ..................................................................................... 48 
SECTION 7.02 Application of the Revenues and Other Funds After Default; No  

Acceleration ............................................................................................. 49 
SECTION 7.03 Trustee to Represent Bondholders ........................................................... 50 
SECTION 7.04 Bondholders' Direction of Proceedings ................................................... 50 
SECTION 7.05 Limitation on Bondholders' Right to Sue ................................................ 51 
SECTION 7.06 Absolute Obligation of the Alameda CTC............................................... 51 
SECTION 7.07 Termination of Proceedings ..................................................................... 51 
SECTION 7.08 Remedies Not Exclusive .......................................................................... 52 
SECTION 7.09 No Waiver of Default............................................................................... 52 
SECTION 7.10 Credit Provider Directs Remedies Upon Event of Default ...................... 52 

ARTICLE VIII 
THE TRUSTEE 

SECTION 8.01 Appointment, Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee ................... 52 

Page 279Page 279Page 279Page 279



Table of Contents 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -iii-  
 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 8.02 Accounting Records and Monthly Statements ......................................... 54 
SECTION 8.03 Merger or Consolidation .......................................................................... 54 
SECTION 8.04 Liability of Trustee .................................................................................. 55 
SECTION 8.05 Right of Trustee to Rely on Documents and Opinions ............................ 57 
SECTION 8.06 Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee ........................................ 58 

ARTICLE IX 
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THIS INDENTURE 

SECTION 9.01 Amendments Permitted ............................................................................ 58 
SECTION 9.02 Effect of Supplemental Indenture ............................................................ 61 
SECTION 9.03 Endorsement of Bonds; Preparation of New Bonds ................................ 61 
SECTION 9.04 Amendment of Particular Bonds .............................................................. 61 

ARTICLE X 
DEFEASANCE 

SECTION 10.01 Discharge of Indenture ............................................................................. 62 
SECTION 10.02 Discharge of Liability on Bonds .............................................................. 62 
SECTION 10.03 Deposit of Money or Securities ............................................................... 63 
SECTION 10.04 Payment of Bonds After Discharge of Indenture ..................................... 64 

ARTICLE XI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 11.01 Liability of Alameda CTC Limited to Sales Tax Revenues .................... 64 
SECTION 11.02 Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to Predecessor ........... 64 
SECTION 11.03 Limitation of Rights ................................................................................. 65 
SECTION 11.04 Waiver of Notice ...................................................................................... 65 
SECTION 11.05 Destruction or Delivery of Canceled Bonds ............................................ 65 
SECTION 11.06 Severability of Invalid Provisions ............................................................ 65 
SECTION 11.07 Notice to Alameda CTC and Trustee ....................................................... 65 
SECTION 11.08 Notices to Rating Agencies ...................................................................... 66 
SECTION 11.09 Evidence of Rights of Bondholders ......................................................... 66 
SECTION 11.10 Disqualified Bonds................................................................................... 67 
SECTION 11.11 Money Held for Particular Bonds ............................................................ 67 
SECTION 11.12 Funds and Accounts ................................................................................. 67 
SECTION 11.13 Limitations on Rights of Credit Providers, Liquidity Providers, 

Reserve Facility Providers ....................................................................... 68 
SECTION 11.14 Article and Section Headings and References ......................................... 68 
SECTION 11.15 Waiver of Personal Liability .................................................................... 68 
SECTION 11.16 Governing Law ........................................................................................ 68 
SECTION 11.17 Business Day ............................................................................................ 69 
SECTION 11.18 Effective Date of Indenture ...................................................................... 69 
SECTION 11.19 Execution in Counterparts........................................................................ 69 

Page 280Page 280Page 280Page 280



 

 1 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

INDENTURE 

This INDENTURE, dated as of February 1, 2014 (as more fully defined in Section 1.02 
hereof, the "Indenture"), between the ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION, a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws 
of the State of California (the "Alameda CTC"), and UNION BANK, N.A., a national banking 
association duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of 
America, as trustee (the "Trustee"); 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC is the successor agency to the Alameda County 
Transportation Improvement Authority ("ACTIA"), a public instrumentality duly established 
pursuant to the Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act (as more fully defined in 
Section 1.02 hereof, the "Act"), being Division 19 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of 
California (Section 180000 et seq.);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, ACTIA adopted Ordinance No. 2000-
01 (as more fully defined in Section 1.02 hereof, the "Ordinance") on July 25, 2000; 

WHEREAS, the Ordinance provided for the continuation of a retail transactions and use 
tax (the "Sales Tax") at the rate of one-half of one percent (1/2%) for a period not to exceed 
twenty (20) years, such Sales Tax to commence April 1, 2002 and to be applicable in the 
incorporated and unincorporated territory of the County of Alameda (the "County") in 
accordance with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of 
the State of California; 

WHEREAS, the Ordinance was approved by more than two-thirds of the voters of the 
County voting on the Ordinance at the general election held in the County on November 7, 2000; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its terms, the Ordinance became effective on April 1, 2002 and 
collection of the Sales Tax commenced April 1, 2002 and will expire on March 31, 2022; 

WHEREAS, ACTIA was authorized by Chapter 6 of the Act and by the Ordinance to 
issue bonds to finance transportation improvements set forth in the Alameda County 20-Year 
Transportation Expenditure Plan (as more fully defined in Section 1.02 hereof, the "Expenditure 
Plan") approved in July 2000; 

WHEREAS, as successor agency to ACTIA, the Alameda CTC is authorized to issue 
bonds from time to time to finance transportation improvements set forth in the Expenditure Plan, 
which bonds shall be referred to as limited tax bonds and shall be secured by, and payable from, 
revenues of the Sales Tax (as more fully defined in Section 1.02 hereof, the "Sales Tax 
Revenues"), all as authorized by, and provided in, Chapter 6 of the Act and the Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC has determined to enter into this Indenture in order (i) to 
provide for the issuance, authentication and delivery of certain limited tax bonds, which limited 
tax bonds may be in the form of either bonds or notes and which limited tax bonds shall be 

Page 281Page 281Page 281Page 281



 

 2 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

referred to herein as the "Bonds," (ii) to establish and declare the terms and conditions upon 
which the Bonds shall be issued and secured, (iii) to establish and declare the terms and 
conditions upon which obligations secured on a parity with the Bonds (as more fully defined in 
Section 1.02 hereof, "Parity Obligations") shall be incurred and secured, (iv) to secure the 
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and Parity Obligations, 
(v) to establish and declare the terms and conditions upon which obligations secured by the Sales 
Tax on a basis subordinate to the Bonds and Parity Obligations (as more fully defined in Section 
1.02 hereof, "Subordinate Obligations") shall be incurred and secured and to secure the payment 
of such Subordinate Obligations, and (vi) to establish and declare the terms and conditions upon 
which obligations secured by the Sales Tax on a basis subordinate to the Subordinate Obligations 
(as more fully defined in Section 1.02 hereof, "Fee and Expense Obligations") shall be incurred 
and secured and to secure the payment of such Fee and Expense Obligations; 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Indenture has in all respects been duly and 
validly authorized by a resolution duly adopted by a two-thirds vote of the governing body of the 
Alameda CTC in accordance with Section 180252 of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened 
and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution and the entering 
into of this Indenture do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, 
form and manner as required by law, and the parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute 
and enter into this Indenture; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH, that in order to secure the 
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on all Bonds at any time issued, 
authenticated and delivered hereunder, to secure the payment of Parity Obligations, Subordinate 
Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations in accordance with terms hereof and to provide the 
terms and conditions under which all property, rights and interests hereby assigned and pledged 
are to be dealt with and disposed of, and to secure performance and observance of the terms, 
conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes hereinafter expressed, 
and in consideration of the premises and of the material covenants herein contained and of the 
purchase and acceptance of the Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and 
Expense Obligations by the owners or holders thereof, and for other valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Alameda CTC does hereby agree 
and covenant with the Trustee for the benefit of the respective owners, from time to time, of the 
Bonds, or any part thereof, and for the benefit of the holders of Parity Obligations, Subordinate 
Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations, in accordance with terms hereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 

EQUALITY OF SECURITY; DEFINITIONS; 
CONTENT OF CERTIFICATES 

SECTION 1.01 Equality of Security.  In consideration of the acceptance of the 
Bonds by the owners thereof from time to time, this Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall 
constitute a contract among the Alameda CTC, the Trustee and the owners from time to time of 

Page 282Page 282Page 282Page 282



 

 3 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

the Bonds and the owners and holders from time to time of Parity Obligations and the covenants 
and agreements herein set forth to be performed by or on behalf of the Alameda CTC or the 
Trustee shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all owners of 
the Bonds and the owners and holders from time to time of Parity Obligations, without 
preference, priority or distinction as to security or otherwise of any of the Bonds or any of the 
Parity Obligations over any of the others by reasons of the Series, time of issue, sale or 
negotiation thereof or for any cause whatsoever, except as expressly provided therein or herein.  
Nothing herein shall prevent additional security being provided for the benefit of a particular 
Series of Bonds or Parity Obligations under any supplement to this Indenture. 

SECTION 1.02 Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms 
defined in this Section shall, for all purposes of this Indenture and of any Supplemental Indenture 
and of any certificate, opinion or other document herein mentioned, have the meanings herein 
specified, to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of any of the terms 
herein defined. 

Accreted Value means, with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the principal 
amount thereof plus the interest accrued thereon, compounded at the approximate interest rate 
thereon on each date specified therein.  The Accreted Value at any date shall be the amounts set 
forth in the Accreted Value Table as of such date, if such date is a compounding date, and if not, 
as of the immediately preceding compounding date.  In the event that Capital Appreciation 
Bonds are issued, as and to the extent applicable, references to "principal of" set forth in this 
Indenture shall be read as references to "Accreted Value of." 

Accreted Value Table means the table denominated as such which appears as an exhibit 
to, and to which reference is made in, a Supplemental Indenture providing for a Series of Capital 
Appreciation Bonds issued pursuant to such Supplemental Indenture. 

Act means the Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act, Division 19 
(Section 180000 et seq.) of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California, as now in effect 
and as it may from time to time hereafter be amended or supplemented. 

Alameda CTC means the Alameda County Transportation Commission, a joint exercise 
of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws of the State, and any successor 
thereto. 

Alternate Credit Enhancement means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, any Insurance, 
letter of credit, line of credit, surety bond or other instrument, if any, which secures or guarantees 
the payment of principal of and interest on a Series of Bonds, issued by a Credit Provider, and 
delivered or made available to the Trustee, as a replacement or substitution for any Credit 
Enhancement then in effect. 

Alternate Liquidity Facility means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a line of credit, 
letter of credit, standby purchase agreement or similar liquidity facility, issued by a Liquidity 
Provider, and delivered or made available to the Trustee, as a replacement or substitute for any 
Liquidity Facility then in effect. 

Page 283Page 283Page 283Page 283



 

 4 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Annual Debt Service means, for any Fiscal Year, the aggregate amount (without 
duplication) of principal and interest on all Bonds and Parity Obligations becoming due and 
payable during such Fiscal Year calculated using the principles and assumptions set forth under 
the definition of Debt Service. 

Assumed Debt Service means for any Fiscal Year the aggregate amount of principal and 
interest which would be payable on all Bonds if each Excluded Principal Payment were 
amortized on a substantially level debt service basis or other amortization schedule provided by 
the Alameda CTC for a period commencing on the date of calculation of such Assumed Debt 
Service and ending on the earlier of (i) the date specified by the Alameda CTC not exceeding 
thirty (30) years from the date of calculation, or (ii) the Tax Expiration Date, such Assumed Debt 
Service to be calculated on a level debt service basis or other amortization schedule provided by 
the Alameda CTC, based on a fixed interest rate equal to the rate at which the Alameda CTC 
could borrow for such period, as set forth in a certificate of a financial advisor or investment 
banker, delivered to the Trustee, who may rely conclusively on such certificate, such certificate 
to be delivered within thirty (30) days of the date of calculation. 

Auditor-Controller of the Alameda CTC means the Director of Finance of the 
Alameda CTC. 

Authorized Representative means the Executive Director or the Director of Finance or 
any other person designated to act on behalf of the Alameda CTC by a written certificate 
furnished to the Trustee containing the specimen signature of such person and signed on behalf 
of the Alameda CTC by an Authorized Representative. 

Beneficial Owner means any Person who has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or 
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of any Bond, including, without limitation, 
any Person holding Bonds through nominees or depositories, including the Securities Depository. 

Bond Obligation means, as of any given date of calculation, (1) with respect to any 
Outstanding Current Interest Bond, the principal amount of such Bond, and (2) with respect to 
any Outstanding Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted Value thereof. 

Bond Register has the meaning given to such term in Section 2.07. 

Bond Reserve Fund means any fund by that name established with respect to one or 
more Series of Bonds pursuant to one or more Supplemental Indentures establishing the terms 
and provisions of such Series of Bonds. 

Bond Reserve Requirement with respect to one or more Series of Bonds for which the 
Alameda CTC shall have established a Bond Reserve Fund shall have the meaning specified in 
the Supplemental Indenture or Supplemental Indentures establishing the terms and provisions of 
such Series of Bonds. 

Bondholder or Holder, whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person 
in whose name such Bond is registered. 

Page 284Page 284Page 284Page 284



 

 5 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Bonds means the Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue 
Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds) authorized by, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, this 
Indenture. 

Business Day means, except as is otherwise provided in the Supplemental Indenture 
pursuant to which a Series of Bonds are issued, any day other than (1) a Saturday, Sunday, or a 
day on which banking institutions in the State, the State of New York or the jurisdiction in which 
the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee is located are authorized or obligated by law or 
executive order to be closed, (2) for purposes of payments and other actions relating to Bonds 
secured by a Credit Enhancement or supported by a Liquidity Facility, a day upon which 
commercial banks in the city in which the office of the issuing bank at which demands for 
payment under the Credit Enhancement or Liquidity Facility is located, as applicable, are to be 
presented are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be closed, (3) a day on which 
the New York Stock Exchange is closed or (4) a day on which the payment system of the Federal 
Reserve System is not operational. 

Capital Appreciation Bonds means the Bonds of any Series designated as Capital 
Appreciation Bonds in the Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of 
Bonds and on which interest is compounded and paid at maturity or upon prior redemption. 

Certificate, Statement, Request, Requisition and Order of the Alameda CTC mean, 
respectively, a written certificate, statement, request, requisition or order signed in the name of 
the Alameda CTC by an Authorized Representative.  If and to the extent required by Section 
1.03, each such instrument shall include the statements provided for in Section 1.03. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and the regulations applicable thereto or 
issued thereunder, or any successor to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.  Reference to any 
particular Code section shall, in the event of such a successor Code, be deemed to be reference to 
the successor to such Code section. 

Commission means the governing body of the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission, a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws of 
the State, and any successor thereto. 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking means, with respect to each Series of Bonds 
requiring an undertaking regarding disclosure under Rule 15c2-12, the continuing disclosure 
agreement or continuing disclosure certificate, as applicable, executed by the Alameda CTC and, 
as and to the extent applicable, a dissemination agent, as the same may be supplemented, 
modified or amended in accordance with its terms. 

Corporate Trust Office or corporate trust office means the corporate trust office of the 
Trustee at 350 California Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, California 94104, Attention: 
Corporate Trust, except that with respect to presentation of Bonds for payment or for registration 
of transfer and exchange such term shall mean the office or agency of the Trustee at which, at 
any particular time, its corporate trust agency business shall be conducted, or such other or 
additional offices as may be designated by the Trustee from time to time. 

Page 285Page 285Page 285Page 285



 

 6 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Costs of Issuance means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or 
reimbursable to the Alameda CTC and related to the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of 
a Series of Bonds, including but not limited to advertising and printing costs, costs of preparation 
and reproduction of documents, filing and recording fees, travel expenses and costs relating to 
rating agency meetings and other meetings concerning such Series of Bonds, initial fees, 
expenses and charges of the Trustee, legal fees and charges, fees and disbursements of 
consultants and professionals, financial advisor fees and expenses, rating agency fees, fees and 
charges for preparation, execution, transportation and safekeeping of Bonds, surety, insurance, 
credit enhancement and liquidity costs, termination fees payable in connection with the 
termination of an Interest Rate Swap Agreement in connection with the issuance of such Series 
of Bonds, and any other cost, charge or fee in connection with the initial issuance of a Series of 
Bonds or any Parity Obligations delivered in connection with a Series of Bonds. 

Costs of Issuance Fund means a fund by that name established pursuant to the 
provisions of a Supplemental Indenture to pay Costs of Issuance with respect to a Series of 
Bonds being issued pursuant to such Supplemental Indenture. 

Costs of the Project means all items of expense related to the Project and directly or 
indirectly payable by or reimbursable to the Alameda CTC in accordance with the Act and the 
Ordinance. 

Counterparty means an entity which has entered into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement 
with the Alameda CTC. 

County means the County of Alameda, California. 

Credit Enhancement means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, any Insurance, letter of 
credit, line of credit, surety bond or other instrument, if any, which secures or guarantees the 
payment of principal of and interest on a Series of Bonds, issued by a Credit Provider, and 
delivered or made available to the Trustee, as from time to time supplemented or amended 
pursuant to its terms, or, in the event of the delivery or availability of an Alternate Credit 
Enhancement, such Alternate Credit Enhancement. 

Credit Provider means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the Insurer, commercial bank, 
insurance company, pension fund or other financial institution issuing (or having primary 
obligation, or acting as agent for the institutions obligated, under) a Credit Enhancement then in 
effect with respect to such Series of Bonds. 

Current Interest Bonds means the Bonds of any Series designated as Current Interest 
Bonds in the Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of Bonds and that 
pay interest to the Holders thereof on a periodic basis prior to maturity. 

Debt Service, when used with respect to any Bonds or Parity Obligations (for purposes 
of this definition of Debt Service, herein collectively referred to as "Obligations"), means, as of 
any date of calculation and with respect to any Fiscal Year, the sum of (1) the interest falling due 
on such Obligations during such Fiscal Year and (2) the principal or Mandatory Sinking Account 
Payments required with respect to such Obligations during such Fiscal Year; computed on the 

Page 286Page 286Page 286Page 286



 

 7 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

assumption that no portion of such Obligations shall cease to be Outstanding during such Fiscal 
Year except by reason of the application of such scheduled payments; provided, however, that 
for purposes of such computation: 

(A) Excluded Principal Payments (and the interest related thereto provided such 
interest is being paid from the same source as the Excluded Principal Payments) shall be 
excluded from such calculation and Assumed Debt Service shall be included in such calculation; 

(B) in determining the principal amount due in each Fiscal Year, payment shall 
(unless a different subsection of this definition applies for purposes of determining principal 
maturities or amortization) be assumed to be made in accordance with any amortization schedule 
established for such Obligations, including any Mandatory Sinking Account Payments or any 
scheduled redemption or payment of Obligations on the basis of Accreted Value, and for such 
purpose, the redemption payment or payment of Accreted Value shall be deemed a principal 
payment and interest that is compounded and paid as Accreted Value shall be deemed due on the 
scheduled redemption or payment date of such Capital Appreciation Bond; 

(C) if any Obligations bear, or if any Obligations proposed to be issued will bear, 
interest at a variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is not in place and 
the interest on which is excluded or expected to be excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, the interest rate on such Obligations for periods when the actual interest 
rate cannot yet be determined shall be assumed to be equal to the average of the SIFMA Swap 
Index for the five (5) years preceding such date of calculation (provided, however, that if such 
index is no longer published, the interest rate on such Obligations shall be calculated based upon 
such similar index as the Alameda CTC shall designate in writing to the Trustee); 

(D) if any Obligations bear, or if any Obligations proposed to be issued will bear, 
interest at a variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is not in place and 
the interest on which is included or expected to be included in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes, the interest rate on such Obligations shall be calculated at an interest rate equal to 
100% of the average One Month USD LIBOR Rate during the five (5) years preceding such date 
of calculation or such higher rate as shall be specified in a Certificate of the Alameda CTC 
delivered to the Trustee (provided, however, that if such index is no longer published, the interest 
rate on such Obligations shall be calculated based upon such similar index as the Alameda CTC 
shall designate in writing to the Trustee); 

(E) with respect to any Obligations bearing interest, or expected to bear interest, at a 
variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is in place providing for a fixed 
rate of interest to maturity or for a specific term with respect to such Obligations, the interest rate 
on such Obligations shall be assumed to be the synthetic fixed interest rate specified in such 
Interest Rate Swap Agreement for such term; provided that if, pursuant to a Certificate of the 
Alameda CTC filed with the Trustee, the sum of (i) interest payable on such Obligations, plus (ii) 
amounts payable by the Alameda CTC under such Interest Rate Swap Agreement, less (iii) 
amounts receivable by the Alameda CTC under such Interest Rate Swap Agreement, is expected 
to be greater than the interest payable on the Obligations to which such Interest Rate Swap 
Agreement relates (i.e., if such Interest Rate Swap Agreement is an "off-market" Interest Rate 

Page 287Page 287Page 287Page 287



 

 8 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Swap Agreement), then, in such instance, such excess amounts expected to be payable by the 
Alameda CTC under such Interest Rate Swap Agreement or in connection with such Obligations 
shall be included in the calculation of Debt Service; 

(F) with respect to any Obligations bearing interest, or expected to bear interest, at a 
fixed interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is in place providing for a net 
variable interest rate with respect to such Obligations for a specific term, the interest rate on such 
Obligations shall be assumed to be equal for such term to the sum of (i) the fixed interest rate or 
rates to be paid on the Obligations, minus (ii) the fixed interest rate receivable by the Alameda 
CTC under such Interest Rate Swap Agreement, plus (iii) the average interest rate of the index 
on which the Interest Rate Swap Agreement is based, as identified in a Certificate of the 
Alameda CTC filed with the Trustee, or, if not based on an identifiable index, then the SIFMA 
Swap Index, in each case, over the five (5) years preceding the date of calculation or such higher 
rate as shall be specified in a Certificate of the Alameda CTC filed with the Trustee; 

(G) if any Obligations feature an option, on the part of the owners or an obligation 
under the terms of such Obligations, to tender all or a portion of such Obligations to the Alameda 
CTC, the Trustee or other fiduciary or agent, and requires that such Obligations or portion 
thereof be purchased if properly presented, then for purposes of determining the amounts of 
principal and interest due in any Fiscal Year on such Obligations, the options or obligations of 
the owners of such Obligations to tender the same for purchase or payment prior to the stated 
maturity or maturities shall be ignored and not treated as a principal maturity; and 

(H) principal and interest payments on Obligations shall be excluded to the extent 
such payments are to be paid from Revenues then held on deposit by the Trustee or from other 
amounts on deposit, including Investment Securities and interest to be payable thereon, with the 
Trustee or other fiduciary in escrow specifically therefor and interest payments shall be excluded 
to the extent that such interest payments are to be paid from the proceeds of Obligations, 
including Investment Securities and interest to be payable thereon, held by the Trustee or other 
fiduciary as capitalized interest specifically to pay such interest or from pledged Subsidy 
Payments the Alameda CTC expects to receive. 

Defeasance Securities means: (i) direct, non-callable obligations of the United States 
Treasury; (ii) direct non-callable and non-prepayable obligations which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by the United States of America as to full and timely payment of principal and 
interest; (iii) non-callable, non-prepayable coupons from the above securities which are stripped 
pursuant to United States Treasury programs; (iv) non-callable and non-prepayable refunded 
bonds that are obligations of the United States of America; (v) Resolution Funding Corporation 
(REFCORP) bonds and strips; (vi) non-callable, and non-prepayable fixed rate Israel Notes 
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America through the United 
Agency for International Development (provided that, such notes mature at least four business 
days before funds are needed for refunded bond debt service payments); (vii) United States State 
and Local Government Series securities (SLGS); (viii) the following non-callable, non-
prepayable obligations of federal government-sponsored agencies that are not backed by the full 
faith and credit of the U.S. Government:  Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage 
Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Tennessee Valley Authority, Farm 

Page 288Page 288Page 288Page 288



 

 9 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Credit System, United States Import-Export Bank, United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, Farmers Home Administration, General Services Administration and 
United States Maritime Administration; and (ix) any pre-refunded municipal security that is non-
callable or has been irrevocably called for redemption, carries a fixed interest rate and matures or 
is to be redeemed on a date certain and is secured by an escrow containing securities listed in (i) 
through (viii) above. 

Dissemination Agent means, with respect to each Series of Bonds requiring an 
undertaking regarding disclosure under Rule 15c2-12(b)(5), the dissemination agent under the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking delivered in connection with such Series of Bonds, or any 
successor dissemination agent designated in writing by the Alameda CTC and which has entered 
into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking with the Alameda CTC. 

DTC means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or any successor 
thereto. 

Electronic Means means facsimile transmission, unsecured email transmission or other 
similar electronic means of communication providing evidence of transmission, including a 
telephone communication confirmed by any other method set forth in this definition, to which is 
attached the applicable Certificate, Statement, Request, Requisition, Order, directions, 
instructions or notice, as provided in Section 8.04(K). 

Event of Default means any of the events specified in Section 7.01. 

Excluded Principal Payment means each payment of principal of Bonds or Parity 
Obligations which the Alameda CTC determines (in a Certificate of the Alameda CTC filed with 
the Trustee) that the Alameda CTC intends to pay with moneys that are not Sales Tax Revenues 
(such as commercial paper, balloon indebtedness or bond anticipation notes) but from future debt 
obligations of the Alameda CTC, grants from the State or federal government, or any agency or 
instrumentality thereof, or any other source of funds of the Alameda CTC, upon which 
determination of the Alameda CTC the Trustee may conclusively rely.  No such determination 
shall affect the security for such Bonds or the obligation of the Alameda CTC to pay such 
payments from Sales Tax Revenues or amounts on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund, if any.  No 
payment of principal of Bonds may be determined to be an Excluded Principal Payment unless it 
is due on or prior to the Tax Expiration Date. 

Expenditure Plan means the 20-Year Transportation Expenditure Plan approved in July 
2000 and identified in the Ordinance, as in effect on the date of execution and delivery of this 
Indenture, and as such Expenditure Plan may be amended from time to time pursuant to its terms. 

Fees and Expenses Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to 
Section 5.02. 

Fee and Expense Obligations means any obligations of the Alameda CTC which 
constitute fees, expenses and similar charges in connection with any Bonds, Parity Obligations or 
Subordinate Obligations (including fees and expenses and termination payments on Interest Rate 
Swap Agreements), which obligations are secured hereunder by a lien and charge upon the Sales 

Page 289Page 289Page 289Page 289



 

 10 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Tax Revenues on a basis directly subordinate to the Bonds, Parity Obligations and Subordinate 
Obligations. 

Fiscal Year means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the next 
succeeding June 30, or any other 12-month period hereafter selected and designated as the 
official fiscal year period of the Alameda CTC, which designation shall be provided to the 
Trustee in a Certificate delivered by the Alameda CTC. 

Fitch means Fitch Inc., and its successors and assigns, except that if such corporation 
shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating 
agency, then the term "Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized 
securities rating agency selected by the Alameda CTC. 

Holder or Bondholder, whenever used herein with respect to a Bond, means the person 
in whose name such Bond is registered. 

Indenture means this Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, between the Trustee and 
the Alameda CTC, as originally executed or as it may from time to time be supplemented or 
amended by any Supplemental Indenture delivered pursuant to the provisions hereof. 

Insurance means any financial guaranty insurance policy or municipal bond insurance 
policy issued by an Insurer insuring the payment when due of principal of and interest on a 
Series of Bonds as provided in such financial guaranty insurance policy or municipal bond 
insurance policy. 

Insurer means any provider of Insurance with respect to a Series of Bonds. 

Interest Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 5.02. 

Interest Payment Date, with respect to each Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning 
specified in the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of 
Bonds. 

Interest Rate Swap Agreement means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, option, floor, 
forward, derivative, or other hedging agreement, arrangement or security, however denominated, 
entered into between the Alameda CTC and a Counterparty, in connection with or incidental to, 
the issuance or carrying of Bonds, including, without limitation, an interest rate swap, cap, collar, 
option, floor, forward, derivative, or other hedging agreement, arrangement or security entered 
into in advance of the issuance of Bonds. 

Investment Securities means the following: 

(1) any bonds or other obligations which as to principal and interest constitute 
direct obligations of, or are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, 
including obligations of any of the federal agencies and federally sponsored entities set 
forth in clause (3) below to the extent unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 
America; 

Page 290Page 290Page 290Page 290



 

 11 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(2) any certificates, receipts, securities or other obligations evidencing 
ownership of, or the right to receive, a specified portion of one or more interest payments 
or principal payments, or any combination thereof, to be made on any bond, note, or 
other obligation described above in clause (1); 

(3) obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the 
Government National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Banks, Farmers Home 
Administration and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; 

(4) housing authority bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities and 
fully secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a pledge of annual 
contributions under an annual contributions contract or contracts with the United States 
of America; or project notes issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully secured 
as to the payment of both principal and interest by a requisition or payment agreement 
with the United States of America; 

(5) obligations of any state, territory or commonwealth of the United States of 
America or any political subdivision thereof or any agency or department of the 
foregoing; provided that, except with respect to direct obligations of the State, at the time 
of their purchase such obligations are rated at least "A" or higher by either Moody's or 
Standard & Poor's; 

(6) any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America 
or any political subdivision thereof (a) which are not callable prior to maturity or as to 
which irrevocable instructions have been given to the trustee of such bonds or other 
obligations by the obligor to give due notice of redemption and to call such bonds for 
redemption on the date or dates specified in such instructions, (b) which are secured as to 
principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash 
or bonds or other obligations of the character described above in clause (1) or (2) which 
fund may be applied only to the payment of such principal of and interest and redemption 
premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the interest payment dates and the 
maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such 
irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, (c) as to which the principal of and interest on the 
bonds and obligations of the character described above in clause (1) or (2) which have 
been deposited in such fund along with any cash on deposit in such fund are sufficient to 
pay the principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other 
obligations described in this clause (6) on the interest payment dates and the maturity 
date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the irrevocable 
instructions referred to in subclause (a) of this clause (6), as appropriate, and (d) which 
have been rated in one of the two highest long-term Rating Categories by Moody's and 
Standard & Poor's; 

(7) bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness issued or 
guaranteed by any corporation which are, at the time of purchase, rated by both Moody's 
and Standard & Poor's at least "A1/P1" for money market instruments and at least "A" for 
all other instruments; 

Page 291Page 291Page 291Page 291



 

 12 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(8) demand or time deposits or certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or 
nonnegotiable, issued by any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state 
of the United States of America or any national banking association (including the 
Trustee and its affiliates), provided that such certificates of deposit shall be either (a) 
continuously and fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, (b) 
continuously and fully secured by such securities and obligations as are described above 
in clauses (1) through (5), inclusive, which shall have a market value (exclusive of 
accrued interest) at all times at least equal to the principal amount of such certificates of 
deposit and shall be lodged with the Trustee, as custodian, by the bank, trust company or 
national banking association issuing such certificates of deposit, and the bank, trust 
company or national banking association issuing each such certificate of deposit required 
to be so secured shall furnish the Trustee with an undertaking satisfactory to it that the 
aggregate market value of all such obligations securing each such certificate of deposit 
will at all times be an amount equal to the principal amount of each such certificate of 
deposit and the Trustee shall be entitled to rely on each such undertaking, or (c) be issued 
by an institution the senior debt obligations of which are rated "AA-" or higher by 
Standard & Poor's or "Aa" or higher by Moody's; 

(9) taxable commercial paper, other than that issued by bank holding 
companies, or tax-exempt commercial paper rated at least "A1/P1" by both Moody's and 
Standard & Poor's; 

(10) any repurchase agreement with any bank or trust company organized 
under the laws of any state of the United States or any national banking association 
(including the Trustee) having a minimum permanent capital of one hundred million 
dollars ($100,000,000) or government bond dealer reporting to, trading with, and 
recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, which 
agreement is secured by any one or more of the securities and obligations described in 
clauses (1), (2), (3) or (4) above, which shall have a market value (exclusive of accrued 
interest and valued at least monthly) at least equal to 102% of the principal amount of 
such investment and shall be lodged with the Trustee or other fiduciary, as custodian for 
the Trustee, by the bank, trust company, national banking association or bond dealer 
executing such repurchase agreement, and the entity executing each such repurchase 
agreement required to be so secured shall furnish the Trustee with an undertaking 
satisfactory to it that the aggregate market value of all such obligations securing each 
such repurchase agreement (as valued at least monthly) will be an amount equal to 102% 
of the principal amount of each such repurchase agreement and the Trustee shall be 
entitled to rely on each such undertaking; 

(11) any cash sweep or similar account arrangement of or available to the 
Trustee, and which may include funds for which the Trustee, its parent holding company, 
if any, or any affiliates or subsidiaries of the Trustee provide investment advisory or other 
management services, the investments of which are limited to investments described in 
clauses (1), (2), (3), (4), (5) and (10) of this definition of Investment Securities and any 
money market fund, the entire investments of which are limited to investments described 
in clauses (1), (2), (3), (4), (5) and (10) of this definition of Investment Securities; 

Page 292Page 292Page 292Page 292



 

 13 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

provided that as used in this clause (11) and clause (12) investments will be deemed to 
satisfy the requirements of clause (10) if they meet the requirements set forth in clause 
(10) ending with the words "clauses (1), (2), (3) or (4) above" and without regard to the 
remainder of such clause (10); 

(12) any investment agreement with a financial institution or insurance 
company or whose obligations are guaranteed by a financial institution or insurance 
company which: (a) has at the date of execution thereof an outstanding issue of 
unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed debt obligations or a claims paying ability rated 
in either of the two highest long-term Rating Categories by both Moody's and Standard & 
Poor's; or (b) is fully secured by obligations described in items (1), (2), (3) or (4) of the 
definition of Investment Securities which are (A) valued not less frequently than monthly 
and have a fair market value, exclusive of accrued interest, at all times at least equal to 
the principal amount of the investment, (B) held by the Trustee or other custodian 
acceptable to the Trustee, (C) subject to a perfected first lien in the Trustee, and (D) free 
and clear from all third party liens; 

(13) shares of beneficial interest in diversified management companies 
investing exclusively in securities and obligations described in clauses (1) through (12) of 
this definition of Investment Securities and which companies have either the highest 
rating by both Moody's and Standard & Poor's or have an investment advisor registered 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission with not less than five (5) years 
experience investing in such securities and obligations and with assets under management 
in excess of $500,000,000; 

(14) shares in a common law trust established pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, 
Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State which invests exclusively in investments 
permitted by Section 53635 of Title 5, Division 2, Chapter 4 of the Government Code of 
the State, as it may be amended; 

(15) bankers' acceptances issued by domestic or foreign banks, which may 
include the Trustee and its affiliates, that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve 
System, the short-term paper of which is rated in the highest category by both Moody's 
and Standard & Poor's, which purchases may not exceed two hundred seventy (270) days 
maturity; 

(16) the Local Agency Investment Fund or similar pooled fund operated by or 
on behalf of the State of California and which is authorized to accept investments of 
moneys held in any of the funds or accounts established pursuant to this Indenture;  

(17) general obligation bonds of the State; and 

(18) Defeasance Securities. 

Letter of Credit Account means an account by that name established to hold funds that 
are drawn on Credit Enhancement provided in the form of a letter of credit and that are to be 
applied to pay the principal of or interest on a Series of Bonds, which account shall be 

Page 293Page 293Page 293Page 293



 

 14 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

established pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such 
Series of Bonds. 

LIBOR means London Interbank Offered Rate. 

Liquidity Facility means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a line of credit, letter of 
credit, standby purchase agreement or similar liquidity facility securing or guaranteeing the 
payment of purchase price of such Series of Bonds and issued by a Liquidity Provider, and 
delivered or made available to the Trustee, as from time to time supplemented or amended 
pursuant to its terms, or, in the event of the delivery or availability of an Alternate Liquidity 
Facility, such Alternate Liquidity Facility. 

Liquidity Facility Bonds means any Bonds purchased with moneys drawn under (or 
otherwise obtained pursuant to the terms of) a Liquidity Facility, but excluding any Bonds no 
longer considered to be Liquidity Facility Bonds in accordance with the terms of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility. 

Liquidity Facility Rate means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the interest rate per 
annum, if any, specified as applicable to Liquidity Facility Bonds in the Liquidity Facility 
delivered in connection with such Series of Bonds. 

Liquidity Provider means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the commercial bank, 
insurance company, pension fund or other financial institution issuing (or having primary 
obligation, or acting as agent for the institutions obligated, under) a Liquidity Facility then in 
effect with respect to such Series of Bonds. 

Mandatory Sinking Account Payment means, with respect to Bonds of any Series and 
maturity, the amount required by the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and 
provisions of such Series of Bonds to be deposited by the Alameda CTC in a Sinking Account 
for the payment of Term Bonds of such Series and maturity. 

Maturity Date means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the date of maturity or 
maturities specified in the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such 
Series of Bonds. 

Maximum Annual Debt Service means the maximum amount of Annual Debt Service 
becoming due and payable on all Bonds Outstanding and all Parity Obligations (and all 
Subordinate Obligations, if applicable) outstanding during the period from the date of such 
calculation through the final maturity date of the Bonds and Parity Obligations (and all 
Subordinate Obligations, if applicable), calculated utilizing the assumptions set forth under the 
definition of "Debt Service." 

Maximum Interest Rate means, with respect to all Bonds other than Liquidity Facility 
Bonds, the lesser of (i) twelve percent (12%) and (ii) the maximum rate of interest that may 
legally be paid on the Bonds from time to time, and means, with respect to Liquidity Facility 
Bonds, the lesser of (x) the Liquidity Facility Rate and (ii) the maximum rate of interest that may 
legally be paid on the Liquidity Facility Bonds from time to time. 

Page 294Page 294Page 294Page 294



 

 15 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Moody's means Moody's Investors Service, a corporation duly organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors and assigns, except that if such 
corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a 
securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally 
recognized securities rating agency selected by the Alameda CTC. 

Notice Parties means, as and to the extent applicable, the Alameda CTC, the Trustee, the 
Credit Provider, if any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, the 
auction agent, if any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, the broker-
dealer, if any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, the calculation 
agent, if any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, the index agent, if 
any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, the Liquidity Provider, if 
any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates, and the remarketing agent, if 
any, for the Series of Bonds to which the notice being given relates. 

Obligations has the meaning given to such term in the definition of "Debt Service." 

One Month USD LIBOR Rate means the rate for deposits in U.S. dollars for a one-
month maturity that appears on Reuters Screen LIBOR01 Page (or such other page as may 
replace that page on that service, or such other service as may be nominated by the British 
Bankers Association, for the purpose of displaying London interbank offered rates for U.S. dollar 
deposits) as of 11:00 a.m., London time, on the date of determination of such rate, except that, if 
such rate does not appear on such page on such date, the One Month USD LIBOR Rate means a 
rate determined on the basis of the rates at which deposits in U.S. dollars for a one-month 
maturity and in a principal amount of at least U.S. $1,000,000 are offered at approximately 
11:00 a.m., London time, on such date, to prime banks in the London interbank market by three 
major banks in the London interbank market (herein referred to as the "Reference Banks") 
selected by either (i) the Trustee or, if requested by the Trustee, (ii) an agent appointed by the 
Alameda CTC to identify such Reference Banks).  The Trustee or such agent shall request the 
principal London office of each of such Reference Banks to provide a quotation of its rate.  If at 
least two such quotations are provided, the One Month LIBOR Rate will be the arithmetic mean 
of such quotations.  If fewer than two quotations are provided, the One Month LIBOR Rate will 
be the arithmetic mean of the rates quoted by three (if three quotations are not provided, two or 
one, as applicable) major banks in New York City, selected by the Trustee or such agent, at 
approximately 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on such date for loans in U.S. dollars to leading 
European banks in a principal amount of at least U.S. $1,000,000 having a one-month maturity.  
If none of the banks in New York City selected by the Trustee or such agent is then quoting rates 
for such loans, then the One Month LIBOR Rate for the ensuing interest period will mean the 
One Month LIBOR Rate most recently in effect. 

Opinion of Bond Counsel means a written opinion of a law firm of national standing in 
the field of public finance selected by the Alameda CTC. 

Ordinance means Ordinance No. 2001-1, adopted by the Alameda County 
Transportation Improvement Authority on July 25, 2000, pursuant to the provisions of Section 

Page 295Page 295Page 295Page 295



 

 16 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

180000 through Section 180264, inclusive, of the Act, as now in effect and as it may from time 
to time hereafter be amended or supplemented pursuant to its terms. 

Outstanding, when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means 
(subject to the provisions of Section 11.10) all Bonds theretofore, or thereupon being, 
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under this Indenture except:  (1) Bonds theretofore 
canceled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation; (2) Bonds with respect to 
which all liability of the Alameda CTC shall have been discharged in accordance with Section 
10.02, including Bonds (or portions of Bonds) referred to in Section 11.11; and (3) Bonds for the 
transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been 
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture; provided, however, that in 
the event the principal of or interest due on any Bonds shall be paid by the Credit Provider 
pursuant to the Credit Enhancement issued in connection with such Bonds, such Bonds shall 
remain Outstanding for all purposes and shall not be considered defeased or otherwise satisfied 
or paid by the Alameda CTC and the pledge of Revenues and all covenants, agreements and 
other obligations of the Alameda CTC to the Holders shall continue to exist and shall run to the 
benefit of such Credit Provider and such Credit Provider shall be subrogated to the rights of such 
Holders. 

Parity Obligations means (i) any indebtedness, installment sale obligation, lease 
obligation or other obligation of the Alameda CTC for borrowed money, (ii) any obligation to 
pay the Rebate Requirement, or (iii) any Interest Rate Swap Agreement (excluding fees and 
expenses and termination payments on Interest Rate Swap Agreements, which fees and expenses 
and termination payments shall constitute Fee and Expense Obligations and shall be secured by a 
lien and charge on the Sales Tax Revenues subordinate to the lien and charge upon Sales Tax 
Revenues that secures the Bonds, Parity Obligations and payment of principal of and interest on 
Subordinate Obligation) entered into in connection with a Series of Bonds, in each case incurred 
in accordance with Section 3.05(C), and in each case having an equal lien and charge upon the 
Sales Tax Revenues and therefore being payable on a parity with the Bonds (whether or not any 
Bonds are Outstanding). 

Participating Underwriter means any of the original underwriters of a Series of Bonds 
required to comply with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from 
time to time. 

Person means an association, corporation, firm, partnership, trust, or other legal entity or 
group of entities, including a governmental entity or any agency or political subdivision thereof. 

Principal Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 5.02. 

Principal Office means, with respect to a Credit Provider or a Liquidity Provider, the 
office designated as such in writing by such party in a notice delivered to the Trustee and the 
Alameda CTC. 

Project means the transportation improvements consisting of the capital projects outlined 
in the Expenditure Plan. 

Page 296Page 296Page 296Page 296



 

 17 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Project Fund means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, a fund by that name 
established pursuant to the provisions of a Supplemental Indenture to hold the proceeds of a 
Series of Bonds or a portion thereof prior to expenditure on the portion of the Project being 
financed with the proceeds of such Series of Bonds. 

Proportionate Basis, when used with respect to the redemption of Bonds, means that the 
amount of Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed shall be determined as nearly as practicable by 
multiplying the total amount of funds available for redemption by the ratio which the amount of 
Bond Obligation of Bonds of such maturity bears to the amount of all Bond Obligation of Bonds 
to be redeemed, provided, however that, any Bond may only be redeemed in an authorized 
denomination.  For purposes of the foregoing, Term Bonds shall be deemed to mature in the 
years and in the amounts of the Mandatory Sinking Account Payments, and Capital Appreciation 
Bonds and Current Interest Bonds maturing or subject to Mandatory Sinking Account Payments 
in the same year shall be treated as separate maturities.  When used with respect to the payment 
or purchase of a portion of Bonds, "Proportionate Basis" shall have the same meaning set forth 
above except that "pay" or purchase" shall be substituted for "redeem" or "redemption" and 
"paid" or "purchased" shall be substituted for "redeemed." 

Purchase Fund means a fund by that name established to hold funds to be applied to pay 
the purchase price of a Series of Bonds, which fund shall be established pursuant to the 
Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds. 

Rating Agency means, as and to the extent applicable to a Series of Bonds, each of Fitch, 
Moody's and Standard & Poor's, but, in each instance, only so long as each such Rating Agency 
then maintains a rating on such Series of Bonds at the request of the Alameda CTC. 

Rating Category means:  (i) with respect to any long-term rating category, all ratings 
designated by a particular letter or combination of letters, without regard to any numerical 
modifier, plus or minus sign or other modifier; and (ii) with respect to any short-term or 
commercial paper rating category, all ratings designated by a particular letter or combination of 
letters and taking into account any numerical modifier, but not any plus or minus sign or other 
modifier. 

Rebate Fund means that fund by that name established pursuant to Section 5.09. 

Rebate Instructions means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, those calculations and 
directions required to be delivered to the Trustee by the Alameda CTC pursuant to the Tax 
Certificate delivered in connection with such Series of Bonds. 

Rebate Requirement means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, the Rebate 
Requirement determined in accordance with the Tax Certificate delivered in connection with 
such Series of Bonds. 

Record Date, with respect to each Series of Bonds, shall have the meaning specified in 
the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds. 

Redemption Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 5.08. 

Page 297Page 297Page 297Page 297



 

 18 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Redemption Price means, with respect to any Bond (or portion thereof) the Bond 
Obligation of such Bond (or portion thereof) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 
redemption thereof pursuant to the provisions of such Bond and this Indenture. 

Refunding Bonds means a Series of Bonds issued pursuant to the provisions set forth in 
Article III. 

Repository means each public or private entity designated as a Repository in a 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking entered into in connection with a Series of Bonds. 

Reserve Facility means any insurance policy, letter of credit or surety bond issued by a 
Reserve Facility Provider, meeting the requirements set forth in Section 5.05, and delivered to 
the Trustee in satisfaction of all or a portion of the Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to one 
or more Series of Bonds. 

Reserve Facility Provider means any issuer of a Reserve Facility. 

Revenue Fund means the Revenue Fund established pursuant to Section 5.01. 

Revenues means:  (i) all Sales Tax Revenues; and (ii) all Swap Revenues.  In accordance 
with the provisions set forth in Section 3.02, the Alameda CTC by Supplemental Indenture may 
provide for additional revenues or assets of the Alameda CTC to be included in the definition of 
Revenues hereunder. 

Rule 15c2-12 means Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, as 
supplemented and amended from time to time. 

Sales Tax means the retail transactions and use tax applicable in the incorporated and 
unincorporated territory of the County levied at the rate of one-half of one percent (1/2%) and 
imposed pursuant to the provisions of the Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of 
Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code commencing April 1, 2002. 

Sales Tax Revenues means the amounts collected on account of the retail transactions 
and use tax imposed in the County pursuant to the Act and the Ordinance on and after April 1, 
2002, after deducting amounts payable by the Alameda CTC to the State Board of Equalization 
for costs and expenses for its services in connection with the Sales Tax levied pursuant to the 
Ordinance and collected pursuant to the Act. 

Securities Depository means DTC, or, in accordance with then-current guidelines of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, such other securities depository, or no such depositories, 
as the Alameda CTC may designate in a Certificate of the Alameda CTC delivered to the Trustee. 

Serial Bonds means Bonds, maturing in specified years, for which no Mandatory Sinking 
Account Payments are provided. 

Series, whenever used herein with respect to Bonds, means all of the Bonds designated as 
being of the same series, authenticated and delivered in a simultaneous transaction regardless of 

Page 298Page 298Page 298Page 298



 

 19 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

variations in maturity, interest rate, redemption and other provisions, and any Bonds thereafter 
authenticated and delivered upon transfer or exchange or in lieu of or in substitution for (but not 
to refund) such Bonds as herein provided. 

Series 2014 Bonds means the Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 authorized by, and at any time Outstanding 
pursuant to, this Indenture. 

SIFMA means the Securities Industry & Financial Markets Association. 

SIFMA Swap Index means, on any date, a rate determined on the basis of the seven-day 
high grade market index of tax-exempt variable rate demand obligations, as produced by 
Municipal Market Data and published or made available by SIFMA (formerly the Bond Market 
Association) or by any Person acting in cooperation with or under the sponsorship of SIFMA and 
acceptable to the Trustee and effective from such date. 

Sinking Account means an account by that name established in the Principal Fund 
pursuant to Section 5.04 for the payment of Term Bonds. 

Standard & Poor's or S&P means Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC business, 
which is a subsidiary of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a corporation duly organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns, 
except that if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the 
functions of a securities rating agency, then the term "Standard & Poor's" or "S&P" shall be 
deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency selected by the 
Alameda CTC. 

State means the State of California. 

State Board of Equalization means the California State Board of Equalization. 

 Subordinate Obligations means any obligations of the Alameda CTC issued or incurred 
in accordance with Section 3.05(C). 

Subordinate Obligations Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to 
Section 5.02. 

Subsidy Payments means payments to be made by the United States Treasury to the 
Trustee, for credit to the accounts held by the Trustee on behalf of the Alameda CTC, with 
respect to the interest due on a Series of Bonds that qualify for one or more direct subsidy 
payments or other form of credits or payments pursuant to the Code, including, without 
limitation, pursuant to Section 54AA or Section 6431 of the Code or any successor to either such 
provision. 

Supplemental Indenture means any indenture hereafter duly executed and delivered, 
supplementing, modifying or amending this Indenture, but only if and to the extent that such 
supplemental indenture is authorized specifically hereunder. 

Page 299Page 299Page 299Page 299



 

 20 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Swap Revenues means all regularly-scheduled amounts (but not termination payments) 
owed or paid to the Alameda CTC by any Counterparty under any Interest Rate Swap Agreement 
after offset for the regularly-scheduled amounts (but not termination payments) owed or paid by 
the Alameda CTC to such Counterparty under such Interest Rate Swap Agreement. 

Tax Certificate means each Tax Certificate delivered by the Alameda CTC at the time of 
issuance and delivery of a Series of Bonds, as the same may be amended or supplemented in 
accordance with its terms. 

Tax Expiration Date means March 31, 2022, or such later date to which the levy of the 
Sales Tax is extended in accordance with the Act. 

Term Bonds means Bonds payable at or before their specified maturity date or dates 
from Mandatory Sinking Account Payments established for that purpose and calculated to retire 
such Bonds on or before their specified maturity date or dates. 

Trustee means Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association duly organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, or its successor, as 
Trustee as provided in Section 8.01. 

Variable Rate Indebtedness means any indebtedness, including Bonds, Parity 
Obligations, and Subordinate Obligations, the interest rate on which is not fixed at the time of 
incurrence of such indebtedness, and has not at some subsequent date been fixed, at a numerical 
rate or rates for the entire term of such indebtedness. 

SECTION 1.03 Content of Certificates.  Every certificate provided for in this 
Indenture with respect to compliance with any provision hereof shall include:  (1) a statement 
that the person making or giving such certificate has read such provision and the definitions 
herein relating thereto; (2) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or 
investigation upon which the certificate is based; (3) a statement that, in the opinion of such 
person, he or she has made or caused to be made such examination or investigation as is 
necessary to enable him to express an informed opinion with respect to the subject matter 
referred to in the instrument to which his signature is affixed; and (4) a statement as to whether, 
in the opinion of such person, such provision has been complied with. 

Any such certificate given by an officer of the Alameda CTC may be based, insofar as it 
relates to legal or accounting matters, upon a certificate or opinion of or representation by 
counsel, an accountant, a financial advisor, an investment banker or an independent consultant, 
unless such officer knows, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the 
certificate, opinion or representation with respect to the matters upon which such certificate or 
statement may be based, as aforesaid, is erroneous.  Any such certificate or opinion made or 
given by counsel, an accountant, a financial advisor, an investment banker or an independent 
consultant may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters (with respect to which 
information is in the possession of the Alameda CTC) upon a certificate or opinion of or 
representation by an officer of the Alameda CTC, unless such counsel, accountant, financial 
advisor, investment banker or independent consultant knows, or in the exercise of reasonable 
care should have known, that the certificate or opinion or representation with respect to the 

Page 300Page 300Page 300Page 300



 

 21 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

matters upon which such person's certificate or opinion or representation may be based, as 
aforesaid, is erroneous.  The same officer of the Alameda CTC, or the same counsel, accountant, 
financial advisor, investment banker or independent consultant, as the case may be, need not 
certify to all of the matters required to be certified under any provision of this Indenture, but 
different officers, counsel, accountants, financial advisors, investment bankers or independent 
consultants may certify to different matters, respectively. 

ARTICLE II 
 

THE BONDS 

SECTION 2.01 Authorization of Bonds.  Bonds may be issued hereunder as fully 
registered bonds without coupons, in book-entry form or otherwise, from time to time as the 
issuance thereof is approved by the Alameda CTC.  The maximum principal amount of Bonds 
which may be issued hereunder is not limited; subject, however, to any limitations contained in 
the Act and the Ordinance and to the right of the Alameda CTC, which is hereby reserved, to 
limit the aggregate principal amount of Bonds which may be issued or Outstanding hereunder.  
The Bonds are designated generally as "Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds" and shall include in the name "Limited Tax Bonds" as required by the Act, each 
Series thereof to bear such additional designation as may be necessary or appropriate to 
distinguish such Series from every other Series of Bonds.  The Bonds may be issued in such 
Series as from time to time shall be established and authorized by the Alameda CTC, subject to 
the covenants, provisions and conditions herein contained. 

SECTION 2.02 Terms of the Bonds.  The Bonds of each Series shall bear interest, 
if any, at such rate or rates or determined in such manner and payable at such intervals as may be 
determined by the Alameda CTC at the time of issuance thereof pursuant to the Supplemental 
Indenture under which issued, not to exceed the Maximum Interest Rate, and shall mature and 
become payable on such date or dates and in such year or years as the Alameda CTC may 
determine by the Supplemental Indenture creating such Series.  Principal of and interest on such 
Bonds shall be payable in such manner as may be specified in the Supplemental Indenture 
creating such Series.  The Bonds of each Series shall be issued in such denominations as may be 
authorized by the Supplemental Indenture creating such Series. 

Unless otherwise provided in the Supplemental Indenture delivered in connection with 
such Series of Bonds, the Bonds of each Series shall be initially registered in the name of "Cede 
& Co.," as nominee of the Securities Depository and shall be evidenced by one bond certificate 
for each maturity of each Series of Bonds.  Registered ownership of any Series of Bonds, or any 
portion thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except as set forth in Section 2.10, or in the 
event the use of the Securities Depository is discontinued, in accordance with the provisions set 
forth in Section 2.05. 

SECTION 2.03 Form of Bonds.  The Bonds of any Series shall be in such form or 
forms as may be specified in the Supplemental Indenture creating such Series, which form or 
forms may be modified as necessary in connection with any interest rate conversion with respect 
to a Series of Bonds. 

Page 301Page 301Page 301Page 301



 

 22 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 2.04 Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name 
and on behalf of the Alameda CTC by the facsimile or manual signature of the Chair of the 
Commission or any Vice Chair of the Commission and shall be countersigned by the facsimile or 
manual signature of the Auditor-Controller of the Alameda CTC in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.  Unless otherwise provided in any Supplemental Indenture, the Bonds 
shall then be delivered to the Trustee for authentication by the Trustee.  In case any of the 
officers who shall have signed or attested any of the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or 
officers of the Alameda CTC before the Bonds so signed or attested shall have been 
authenticated or delivered by the Trustee or issued by the Alameda CTC, such Bonds may 
nevertheless be authenticated, delivered and issued and, upon such authentication, delivery and 
issue, shall be as binding upon the Alameda CTC as though those who signed and attested the 
same had continued to be such officers of the Alameda CTC, and also any Bond may be signed 
and attested on behalf of the Alameda CTC by such persons as at the actual date of execution of 
such Bond shall be the proper officers of the Alameda CTC although at the nominal date of such 
Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of the Alameda CTC. 

Except as may be otherwise be provided in a Supplemental Indenture establishing the 
terms and provisions of a Series of Bonds, only such of the Bonds as shall bear thereon a 
certificate of authentication substantially in the form recited in the Supplemental Indenture 
creating such Series of Bonds, manually executed by the Trustee, shall be valid or obligatory for 
any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this Indenture, and such certificate of authentication 
when manually executed by the Trustee shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so 
authenticated have been duly executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled to 
the benefits of this Indenture. 

SECTION 2.05 Transfer of Bonds.  Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, 
be transferred, upon the register required to be kept pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07, by 
the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly authorized attorney, upon 
surrender of such Bond for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of 
transfer, duly executed in a form acceptable to the Trustee. 

Whenever any Bond or Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer, the Alameda CTC shall 
execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds, of the same Series, 
tenor, maturity and interest rate and a like aggregate principal amount; provided that, unless 
otherwise provided in any Supplemental Indenture, no registration of transfer may occur during 
the period established by the Trustee for selection of Bonds for redemption, or of any Bond or 
portion of a Bond so selected for redemption.  The Trustee shall require the Bondholder 
requesting such transfer to pay any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to such transfer. 

SECTION 2.06 Exchange of Bonds.  Bonds may be exchanged at the Corporate 
Trust Office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized 
denominations of the same Series, tenor, maturity and interest rate; provided that, unless 
otherwise provided in any Supplemental Indenture, no exchange may occur during the period 
established by the Trustee for selection of Bonds for redemption, or of any Bond or portion of a 
Bond so selected for redemption.  The Trustee shall require the Bondholder requesting such 

Page 302Page 302Page 302Page 302



 

 23 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

exchange to pay any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
exchange. 

SECTION 2.07 Bond Register.  Unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental 
Indenture delivered in connection with a Series of Bonds, the Trustee will keep or cause to be 
kept, at its Corporate Trust Office sufficient books for the registration and transfer of each Series 
of Bonds (the "Bond Register"), which shall at all times be open to inspection during normal 
business hours by the Alameda CTC and each Credit Provider upon reasonable prior notice; and, 
upon presentation for such purpose, the Trustee shall, under such reasonable regulations as it 
may prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be registered or transferred, on such books, Bonds 
as hereinbefore provided. 

SECTION 2.08 Temporary Bonds.  The Bonds may be issued in temporary form 
exchangeable for definitive Bonds when ready for delivery.  Any temporary Bond may be 
printed, lithographed or typewritten, shall be of such denomination as may be determined by the 
Alameda CTC, shall be in registered form and may contain such reference to any of the 
provisions of this Indenture as may be appropriate.  A temporary Bond may be in the form of a 
single Bond payable in installments, each on the date, in the amount and at the rate of interest 
established for the Bonds maturing on such date.  Every temporary Bond shall be executed by 
the Alameda CTC and authenticated by the Trustee upon the same conditions and in substantially 
the same manner as the definitive Bonds.  If the Alameda CTC issues temporary Bonds the 
Alameda CTC will execute and deliver definitive Bonds as promptly thereafter as practicable, 
and thereupon the temporary Bonds may be surrendered, for cancellation, in exchange therefor at 
the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in 
exchange for such temporary Bonds an equal aggregate principal amount of definitive Bonds of 
authorized denominations of the same Series, tenor and maturity or maturities.  Until so 
exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Indenture as 
definitive Bonds authenticated and delivered hereunder. 

SECTION 2.09 Bonds Mutilated; Lost; Destroyed or Stolen.  If any Bond shall 
become mutilated, the Alameda CTC, at the expense of the Holder of said Bond, shall execute, 
and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like Series, tenor, 
maturity and interest rate in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but only upon 
surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated.  Every mutilated Bond so surrendered to the 
Trustee shall be canceled by the Trustee and delivered to, or upon the Order of, the Alameda 
CTC.  If any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft 
may be submitted to the Alameda CTC and to the Trustee and, if such evidence be satisfactory to 
both and indemnity satisfactory to both shall be given, the Alameda CTC, at the expense of the 
Holder, shall execute, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of 
like Series, tenor, maturity and interest rate in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, 
destroyed or stolen (or if any such Bond shall have matured or shall have been called for 
redemption, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Trustee may pay the same without surrender 
thereof upon receipt of the aforementioned indemnity).  The Alameda CTC may require payment 
of a sum not exceeding the actual cost of preparing each new Bond issued under this Section and 
of the expenses which may be incurred by the Alameda CTC and the Trustee in the premises.  
Any Bond issued under the provisions of this Section in lieu of any Bond alleged to be lost, 

Page 303Page 303Page 303Page 303



 

 24 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

destroyed or stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation on the part of the 
Alameda CTC whether or not the Bond so alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen be at any time 
enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to the benefits of this Indenture with all other Bonds 
secured by this Indenture.  Neither the Alameda CTC nor the Trustee shall be required to treat 
both the original Bond and any replacement Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of 
determining the principal amount of Bonds which may be issued hereunder or for the purpose of 
determining any percentage of Bonds Outstanding hereunder, but both the original and 
replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same. 

SECTION 2.10 Use of Securities Depository.  Unless otherwise provided in a 
Supplemental Indenture delivered in connection with a Series of Bonds, notwithstanding any 
provision of this Indenture to the contrary: 

(A) The Bonds shall be delivered and registered as provided in Section 2.02.  
Registered ownership of any Series of Bonds, or any portion thereof, may not thereafter be 
transferred except: 

(1) To any successor of the Securities Depository or its nominee, or to any 
substitute depository designated pursuant to clause (2) of this subsection (A) (each, a 
"substitute depository"); provided that any successor of the Securities Depository or 
substitute depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the service 
proposed to be provided by it; 

(2) To any substitute depository designated by the Alameda CTC upon (a) the 
resignation of the Securities Depository or its successor (or any substitute depository or 
its successor) from its functions as depository or (b) a determination by the Alameda 
CTC that the Securities Depository or its successor (or any substitute depository or its 
successor) is no longer able to carry out its functions as depository; provided that any 
such substitute depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the 
services proposed to be provided by it; or 

(3) To any Person as provided below, upon (a) the resignation of the 
Securities Depository or its successor (or substitute depository or its successor) from its 
functions as depository; provided that no substitute depository can be obtained or (b) a 
determination by the Alameda CTC that it is in the best interests of the Alameda CTC to 
remove the Securities Depository or its successor (or any substitute depository or its 
successor) from its functions as depository. 

(B) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (1) or clause (2) of subsection (A) 
above, upon receipt of the Outstanding Bonds by the Trustee, together with a Statement of the 
Alameda CTC to the Trustee, a single new Bond for each maturity of each Series of Bonds then 
Outstanding shall be executed and delivered in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of 
such Series then Outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or such substitute 
depository, or their nominees, as the case may be, all as specified in such Statement of the 
Alameda CTC.  In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (3) of subsection (A) hereof, upon 
receipt of the Outstanding Bonds by the Trustee together with the Statement of the Alameda 

Page 304Page 304Page 304Page 304



 

 25 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

CTC to the Trustee, new Bonds of each Series then Outstanding shall be authorized and prepared 
by the Alameda CTC and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee in such authorized 
denominations and registered in the names of such Persons as are requested in such a Statement 
of the Alameda CTC, numbered in such manner as the Trustee shall determine, subject to the 
limitations of Section 2.02. 

(C) In the case of partial redemption or an advance refunding of any Series of the 
Bonds evidencing all or a portion of such amount Outstanding, the Securities Depository shall 
make an appropriate notation on such Bonds indicating the date and amounts of such reduction 
in principal, in form acceptable to the Trustee. 

(D) The Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall be entitled to treat the Person in whose 
name any Bond is registered as the Bondholder thereof for all purposes of the Indenture and any 
applicable laws, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by the Trustee or the 
Alameda CTC; and the Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall have no responsibility for 
transmitting payments to, communicating with, notifying or otherwise dealing with any 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  Neither the Alameda CTC nor the Trustee will have any 
responsibility or obligations, legal or otherwise, to the Beneficial Owners or to any other party 
including the Securities Depository or its successor (or substitute depository or its successor), 
except for the Holder of any Bond. 

(E) So long as the Outstanding Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. or its 
registered assign, the Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall cooperate with Cede & Co., as sole 
registered Bondholder, and its registered assigns in effecting payment of the principal of, 
redemption premium, if any, purchase price and interest on the Bonds by arranging for payment 
in such manner that funds for such payments are properly identified and are made immediately 
available on the date they are due. 

ARTICLE III 
 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

SECTION 3.01 Issuance of Bonds.  Whenever the Alameda CTC shall determine 
to issue a Series of Bonds hereunder, the Alameda CTC (i) shall authorize the execution of a 
Supplemental Indenture specifying the principal amount, and prescribing the forms of Bonds of 
such Series and providing the terms, conditions, distinctive designation, denominations, date, 
maturity date or dates, interest rate or rates (or the manner of determining the same), redemption 
provisions, tender provisions, if any, and place or places of payment of principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on such Bonds, and any other provisions respecting the Bonds of 
such Series not inconsistent with the terms of this Indenture, (ii) shall execute such Supplemental 
Indenture and (iii) shall deliver such Supplemental Indenture to the Trustee for execution. 

SECTION 3.02 Issuance of Refunding Bonds.  Subsequent to the issuance of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC may only issue additional Bonds in order to refund all or 
any portion of any Bonds or Parity Obligations then outstanding.  Any such additional Series of 
Bonds shall be payable from Sales Tax Revenues and secured by the pledge made under this 

Page 305Page 305Page 305Page 305



 

 26 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Indenture equally and ratably with the Series 2014 Bonds and shall be established by 
Supplemental Indenture.  The Trustee may authenticate and deliver to the purchasers thereof any 
additional Series of Bonds so established by Supplemental Indenture upon compliance by the 
Alameda CTC with (i) the provisions of Section 3.01, Section 3.03 and Section 3.04, (ii) any 
additional requirements set forth in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such 
additional Series of Bonds are being issued and (iii) subject to the specific conditions set forth 
below, each of which is hereby made a condition precedent to the issuance of any additional 
Series of Bonds. 

(A) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing. 

(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 5.05, in the event a Supplemental Indenture 
providing for the issuance of such Series of Bonds shall require either (i) the establishment of a 
Bond Reserve Fund to provide additional security for such Series of Bonds or (ii) that the 
balance on deposit in an existing Bond Reserve Fund be increased, forthwith upon the receipt of 
the proceeds of the sale of such Series, to an amount at least equal to the Bond Reserve 
Requirement with respect to such Series of Bonds and all other Bonds secured by such Bond 
Reserve Fund to be considered Outstanding upon the issuance of such additional Series of 
Bonds, the Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such additional Series of Bonds 
shall require deposit of the amount necessary.  Said deposit shall be made as provided in the 
Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such additional Series of Bonds and may 
be made from the proceeds of the sale of such Series of Bonds or from other funds of the 
Alameda CTC or from both such sources or may be made in the form of a Reserve Facility. 

(C) The aggregate principal amount of Bonds issued hereunder shall not exceed any 
limitation imposed by the Act, the Ordinance or any other law or by any Supplemental Indenture. 

(D) Principal payments of each additional Series of Bonds shall be due on March 1 or 
September 1 in each year in which principal is to be paid if and to the extent deemed practical in 
the reasonable judgment of the Alameda CTC with regard to the type of Bond to be issued, and, 
if the interest on such Series of Bonds is to be paid semiannually, such interest payments shall be 
due on March 1 and September 1 in each year to the extent deemed practical in the reasonable 
judgment of the Alameda CTC with regard to the type of Bond to be issued. 

Nothing in this Section or in this Indenture contained shall prevent or be construed to 
prevent the Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of an additional Series of Bonds 
from pledging or otherwise providing, in addition to the security given or intended to be given by 
this Indenture, additional security for the benefit of such additional Series of Bonds or any 
portion thereof. 

SECTION 3.03 Proceedings for Issuance of Refunding Bonds.  Subsequent to 
the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, before any additional Series of Bonds shall be issued and 
delivered, the Alameda CTC shall file each of the documents identified below with the Trustee 
(upon which documents the Trustee may conclusively rely in determining whether the conditions 
precedent to the issuance of such Series of Bonds have been satisfied). 

(A) A Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series executed by the Alameda CTC. 

Page 306Page 306Page 306Page 306



 

 27 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(B) A Certificate of the Alameda CTC certifying:  (i) that no Event of Default has 
occurred and is then continuing; and (ii) that the requirement specified in Section 3.02(B) hereof 
has been satisfied by the Alameda CTC. 

(C) A Certificate of the Alameda CTC certifying that Maximum Annual Debt Service 
on all Bonds Outstanding and all Parity Obligations outstanding following the issuance of such 
Refunding Bonds is less than or equal to Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Bonds 
Outstanding and all Parity Obligations outstanding prior to the issuance of such Refunding 
Bonds. 

(D) An Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the Supplemental Indenture is 
being entered into in accordance with this Indenture and that such Series of Bonds, when duly 
executed by the Alameda CTC and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, will be valid and 
binding obligations of the Alameda CTC.   

(E) If any of the Bonds to be refunded are to be redeemed prior to their stated 
maturity dates, irrevocable instructions to the Trustee to give the applicable notice of redemption 
or a waiver of the notice of redemption signed by the Holders of all or the portion of the Bonds 
or Parity Obligations to be redeemed, or proof that such notice has been given by the Alameda 
CTC; provided, however, that in lieu of such instructions or waiver or proof of notice of 
redemption, the Alameda CTC may cause to be deposited with the Trustee all of the Bonds and 
Parity Obligations proposed to be redeemed (whether canceled or uncanceled) with irrevocable 
instructions to the Trustee to cancel said Bonds or Parity Obligations so to be redeemed upon the 
exchange and delivery of said Refunding Bonds; and provided further that no provision of this 
Indenture shall be construed to require the redemption of Bonds prior to their respective maturity 
dates in connection with the refunding thereof. 

SECTION 3.04 Utilization of Proceeds of Refunding Bonds.  Refunding Bonds 
may be issued in an aggregate principal amount sufficient (together with any additional funds 
available or to become available) to provide funds for the payment of all or a portion of the 
following:  (i) the principal or Redemption Price of the Outstanding Bonds or outstanding Parity 
Obligations to be refunded; (ii) all expenses incident to the calling, retiring or paying of such 
Outstanding Bonds or outstanding Parity Obligations and the Costs of Issuance of such 
Refunding Bonds; (iii) any termination payment owed by the Alameda CTC to a Counterparty 
after offset for any payments made to the Alameda CTC from such Counterparty under any 
Interest Rate Swap Agreement that was entered into in connection with the Bonds or Parity 
Obligations to be refunded; (iv) interest on all Outstanding Bonds or outstanding Parity 
Obligations to be refunded to the date such Bonds or Parity Obligations will be called for 
redemption or paid at maturity; (v) interest on the Refunding Bonds from the date thereof to the 
date of payment or redemption of the Bonds or Parity Obligations to be refunded; and (vi) 
funding a Bond Reserve Fund for the Refunding Bonds, if required. 

The proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee 
according to the written direction of the Alameda CTC to the retirement of the Outstanding 
Bonds or Parity Obligations for the refunding of which said Refunding Bonds are to be issued.  
All Bonds or Parity Obligations purchased, redeemed or retired by use of funds received from 

Page 307Page 307Page 307Page 307



 

 28 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

the sale of Refunding Bonds, and all Bonds surrendered to the Trustee against the issuance of 
Refunding Bonds, shall be forthwith canceled and shall not be reissued. 

SECTION 3.05 Limitations on the Issuance of Obligations Payable from Sales 
Tax Revenues; Parity Obligations; Subordinate Obligations; Fee and Expense Obligations.  
Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC will not, so long as any 
Bonds are Outstanding, issue any obligations or securities, howsoever denominated, payable in 
whole or in part from Sales Tax Revenues except as set forth below. 

(A) Bonds authorized in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 3.01 and 
in compliance with the provisions set forth in Section 3.02. 

(B) Parity Obligations, provided that the following conditions to the issuance or 
incurrence of such Parity Obligations are satisfied: 

(1) Such Parity Obligations have been duly and legally authorized by the 
Alameda CTC; 

(2) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, as 
evidenced by the delivery of a Certificate of the Alameda CTC to that effect, which 
Certificate of the Alameda CTC shall be filed with the Trustee; 

(3) Such Parity Obligations are being issued or incurred in connection with 
the issuance of Refunding Bonds; and 

(4) As and to the extent applicable, the Trustee shall be designated as paying 
agent or trustee for such Parity Obligations and the Alameda CTC shall deliver to the 
Trustee a transcript of the proceedings providing for the issuance of such Parity 
Obligations (but the Trustee shall not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of 
such proceedings or such Parity Obligations). 

(C) Subordinate Obligations that are payable as to principal, premium, interest and 
reserve fund requirements, if any, only out of Sales Tax Revenues after the prior payment of all 
amounts then required to be paid hereunder from Sales Tax Revenues for principal, premium, 
interest and reserve fund requirements, if any, for all Bonds Outstanding, and all Parity 
Obligations outstanding, as the same become due and payable, and at the times and in the 
amounts as required in this Indenture and in the instrument or instruments pursuant to which any 
Parity Obligations were issued or incurred, provided that the following conditions to issuance or 
incurrence of such Subordinate Obligations are satisfied: 

(1) Such Subordinate Obligations have been duly and legally authorized by 
the Alameda CTC for any lawful purpose; 

(2) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, as 
evidenced by the delivery to the Trustee of a Certificate of the Alameda CTC to that 
effect; and 

Page 308Page 308Page 308Page 308



 

 29 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(3) As and to the extent applicable, the Trustee shall be designated as paying 
agent or trustee for such Subordinate Obligations and the Alameda CTC shall deliver to 
the Trustee a transcript of the proceedings providing for the issuance of such Subordinate 
Obligations (but the Trustee shall not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of 
such proceedings or such Subordinate Obligations). 

(D) Fee and Expense Obligations. 

SECTION 3.06 Calculation of Maximum Annual Debt Service with Respect to 
Bonds, Parity Obligations and Subordinate Obligations.  For purposes of this Article III, 
Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect to Bonds shall be determined no later than the date 
of delivery of such Bonds, and no earlier than the sixtieth (60th) day preceding the date of 
pricing or sale of such Bonds, utilizing the assumptions set forth in the definition of Debt 
Service.  For purposes of this Article III, Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect to Parity 
Obligations shall be determined no later than the date of incurrence of such Parity Obligations 
utilizing the assumptions set forth in the definition of Debt Service; provided, however, that if a 
Parity Obligation is contingent upon funds being provided pursuant to such Parity Obligation to 
pay principal, or purchase price of, or interest on a Bond, such Parity Obligations shall not be 
considered outstanding until such payment is made thereunder.  For purposes of this Article III, 
Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect to Subordinate Obligations shall be determined no 
later than the date of incurrence of such Subordinate Obligations utilizing the assumptions set 
forth in the definition of Debt Service; provided, however, that if a Subordinate Obligation is 
contingent (such Subordinate Obligation being referred to in this Section 3.06 as a "Contingent 
Subordinate Obligation") upon funds being provided pursuant to such Contingent Subordinate 
Obligation to pay principal, or purchase price of, or interest on another Subordinate Obligation, 
such Contingent Subordinate Obligation shall not be considered outstanding until such payment 
is made under such Contingent Subordinate Obligation. 

SECTION 3.07 Designation of Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations 
and Fee and Expense Obligations.  Upon the issuance or incurrence of any obligations which 
constitute Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations, the 
Alameda CTC shall file a Certificate of the Alameda CTC with the Trustee identifying such 
obligations as Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations, as 
applicable, such Certificate of the Alameda CTC to be filed with the Trustee concurrently with 
the issuance or incurrence of such obligations. 

SECTION 3.08 Application of Proceeds.  Proceeds of each Series of Bonds shall 
be applied as specified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such Series of Bonds is 
issued.   

ARTICLE IV 
 

REDEMPTION, TENDER AND PURCHASE OF BONDS 

SECTION 4.01 Terms of Redemption, Tender and Purchase.  Each Series of 
Bonds may be made subject to redemption or mandatory or optional tender and purchase prior to 

Page 309Page 309Page 309Page 309



 

 30 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

their respective stated maturities, as a whole or in part, at such time or times, upon such terms 
and conditions and upon such notice and with such effect as may be provided in the 
Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds. 

SECTION 4.02 Notice of Redemption.  Unless otherwise specified in a 
Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of a Series of Bonds, written 
notice of redemption shall be given by the Alameda CTC to the Trustee at least twenty-five (25) 
days prior to the date of redemption (unless a shorter time shall be acceptable to the Trustee) and 
each notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Trustee not less than twenty (20) nor more than 
ninety (90) days prior to the redemption date, to each Holder and each Repository; provided, 
however, that such notice may be mailed not less than ten (10) days prior to the redemption date 
if such shorter notice period is permitted under the then-current guidelines of the Securities 
Depository or if the Bonds of such Series are no longer held pursuant to a book-entry registration 
system.  A copy of such notice shall also be provided to each of the Notice Parties with respect to 
Series of Bonds to which such notice relates.  Notice of redemption to the Holders, each 
Repository and the applicable Notice Parties shall be given by first class mail.  Each notice of 
redemption shall state the date of such notice, the date of issue of the Series of Bonds to which 
such notice relates, the redemption date, the Redemption Price, the place or places of redemption 
(including the name and appropriate address or addresses of the Trustee), the CUSIP number (if 
any) of the maturity or maturities, and, if less than all of any such maturity, the distinctive 
certificate numbers of the Bonds of such maturity, if any, to be redeemed and, in the case of 
Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed.  Each such notice shall also state that on said date there will become due and payable 
on each of said Bonds the Redemption Price thereof or of said specified portion of the principal 
amount thereof in the case of a Bond to be redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, and that from and after such redemption date interest 
thereon shall cease to accrue, and shall require that such Bonds be then surrendered at the 
address or addresses of the Trustee specified in the redemption notice.  Neither the Alameda 
CTC nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility for any defect in the CUSIP number that 
appears on any Bond or in any redemption notice with respect thereto, and any such redemption 
notice may contain a statement to the effect that CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an 
independent service for convenience of reference and that neither the Alameda CTC nor the 
Trustee shall be liable for any inaccuracy in such CUSIP numbers. 

Failure by the Trustee to give notice to any Notice Party or any Repository or failure of 
any Holder, any Notice Party or any Repository to receive notice or any defect in any such notice 
shall not affect the sufficiency or validity of the proceedings for redemption. 

With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds delivered pursuant to this 
Section 4.02 or any provision of any Supplemental Indenture, unless, upon the giving of such 
notice, such Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Article X hereof, 
such notice shall state that such redemption shall be conditional upon the receipt by the Trustee 
on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption of amounts sufficient to pay the principal of, 
and premium, if any, and interest on, such Bonds to be redeemed, and that if such amounts shall 
not have been so received said notice shall be of no force and effect and the Alameda CTC shall 
not be required to redeem such Bonds.  In the event that such notice of redemption contains such 

Page 310Page 310Page 310Page 310



 

 31 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

a condition and such amounts are not so received, the redemption shall not be made and the 
Trustee shall within a reasonable time thereafter give notice to the Holders to the effect that such 
amounts were not so received and such redemption was not made, such notice to be given by the 
Trustee in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given. 

Any notice given pursuant to this Section 4.02 may be rescinded by written notice given 
to the Trustee by the Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall give notice of such rescission as soon 
thereafter as practicable in the same manner, and to the same Persons, as notice of such 
redemption was given pursuant to this Section 4.02. 

SECTION 4.03 Selection of Bonds for Optional Redemption; Partial 
Redemption of Bonds.  Unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to 
which a Series of Bonds is issued, in the event of a partial optional redemption, the Alameda 
CTC shall designate the maturities of such Series of Bonds which are to be called for optional 
redemption.  If less than all of a Series of Bonds maturing by their terms on the same maturity 
date are to be called for optional redemption on the same redemption date, the Trustee shall 
select the Bonds of such maturity date to be redeemed by lot.  In the event that the Bonds 
designated for optional redemption are Term Bonds, the Alameda CTC shall designate the 
Mandatory Sinking Account Payments or portions thereof that are to be allocated to such 
optional redemption. 

Upon surrender of any Bond redeemed in part only, the Alameda CTC shall execute (but 
need not prepare) and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Holder thereof, at the 
expense of the Alameda CTC, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations, and of the 
same Series, maturity and interest rate, equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed 
portion of the Bond surrendered. 

SECTION 4.04 Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been duly 
given as aforesaid, and moneys for payment of the Redemption Price of, together with interest 
accrued to the redemption date on, the Bonds (or portions thereof) so called for redemption being 
held by the Trustee, on the redemption date designated in such notice, the Bonds (or portions 
thereof) so called for redemption shall become due and payable at the Redemption Price 
specified in such notice together with interest accrued thereon to the redemption date, interest on 
the Bonds so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, said Bonds (or portions thereof) shall 
cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under this Indenture and the Holders of said Bonds 
shall have no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of said Redemption Price and 
accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption from funds held by the Trustee for such 
payment and such funds are hereby pledged to such payment.  All Bonds redeemed pursuant to 
the provisions of this Article shall be canceled upon surrender thereof. 

Page 311Page 311Page 311Page 311



 

 32 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

ARTICLE V 
 

SALES TAX REVENUES 

SECTION 5.01 Pledge of Revenues; Revenue Fund. 

(A) As security for the payment of all amounts owing on the Bonds, Parity 
Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth herein, there are irrevocably pledged to the Trustee:  (i) all Revenues; and (ii) 
all amounts, including proceeds of the Bonds, held on deposit in the funds and accounts 
established hereunder (except for amounts held in the Rebate Fund, any Letter of Credit Account 
and any Purchase Fund), subject to the provisions of this Indenture permitting the application 
thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture.  The 
collateral identified above shall immediately be subject to this pledge, and this pledge shall 
constitute a first lien on and security interest in such collateral which shall immediately attach to 
the collateral and be effective, binding and enforceable against the Alameda CTC and all others 
asserting the rights therein, to the extent set forth, and in accordance with, this Indenture 
irrespective of whether those parties have notice of this pledge and without the need for any 
physical delivery, recordation, filing or further act.  The pledge of Revenues and all amounts 
held on deposit in the funds and accounts established hereunder (except for amounts held in the 
Rebate Fund, any Letter of Credit Account and any Purchase Fund) herein made shall be 
irrevocable until all of the Bonds are no longer Outstanding and all Parity Obligations, 
Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations and amounts owed in connection with 
the Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations have 
been paid. 

All Bonds and Parity Obligations shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or 
distinction of any Bonds and Parity Obligations over any other Bonds and Parity Obligations.  
All Subordinate Obligations shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of 
any Subordinate Obligations over any other Subordinate Obligations.  All Fee and Expense 
Obligations shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any Fee and 
Expense Obligations over any other Fee and Expense Obligations. 

(B) As long as any Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity Obligations, Subordinate 
Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid, the Alameda CTC assigns and shall 
cause Sales Tax Revenues to be transmitted by the State Board of Equalization directly to the 
Trustee.  The Trustee shall forthwith deposit in a trust fund, designated as the "Revenue Fund," 
which fund the Trustee shall establish and maintain, all Sales Tax Revenues, when and as 
received by the Trustee.  The Sales Tax Revenues and all other amounts deposited into the 
Revenue Fund pursuant to this Section 5.01(B), shall be received and held in trust by the Trustee 
for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and any Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations 
and Fee and Expense Obligations and shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely for the uses 
and purposes set forth in this Indenture.  Investment income on amounts held by the Trustee 
hereunder (other than amounts held in the Rebate Fund or for which particular instructions, such 
as with respect to a Project Fund, a Letter of Credit Account or a Purchase Fund, are provided in 
a Supplemental Indenture), shall also be deposited in the Revenue Fund.  All moneys at any time 

Page 312Page 312Page 312Page 312



 

 33 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

held in the Revenue Fund shall be held in trust for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and 
the holders of Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations as 
their interests may appear hereunder and shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely for the 
uses and purposes set forth in this Indenture. 

(C) The Bonds are limited obligations of the Alameda CTC and are payable as to both 
principal and interest, and any premium upon redemption thereof, exclusively from the Revenues 
and other funds pledged hereunder. 

SECTION 5.02 Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues. 

(A) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding and Parity Obligations, Subordinate 
Obligations, Fee and Expense Obligations and other amounts payable hereunder remain unpaid, 
the Trustee shall set aside in each month following receipt of the Sales Tax Revenues the moneys 
in the Revenue Fund in the following respective funds (each of which the Trustee shall establish, 
maintain and hold in trust for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and, as and to the extent 
applicable, the holders of Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense 
Obligations) in the following amounts, in the following order of priority, the requirements of 
each such fund (including the making up of any deficiencies in any such fund resulting from lack 
of Revenues sufficient to make any earlier required deposit) at the time of deposit to be satisfied 
before any deposit is made to any fund subsequent in priority; provided that on a parity with such 
deposits the Trustee may set aside or transfer amounts with respect to any outstanding Parity 
Obligations as provided in the proceedings for such Parity Obligations delivered to the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 3.05 (which shall be proportionate in the event such amounts are insufficient 
to provide for all deposits required as of any date to be made with respect to the Bonds and such 
Parity Obligations); provided further that payments on Interest Rate Swap Agreements that are 
payable on a parity with the Bonds shall be payable from the Interest Fund and the required 
deposits below shall be adjusted to include payments on such Interest Rate Swap Agreements in 
accordance with Section 5.10: 

(1) Interest Fund.  Following receipt of the Sales Tax Revenues in each 
month, the Trustee shall set aside in the Interest Fund as soon as practicable in such 
month an amount equal to (a) one-sixth of the aggregate half-yearly amount of interest 
becoming due and payable on the Outstanding Current Interest Bonds (except for Bonds 
constituting Variable Rate Indebtedness which shall be governed by subparagraph (b) 
below) during the next ensuing six (6) months (excluding any interest for which there are 
moneys deposited in the Interest Fund from the proceeds of any Series of Bonds or other 
source and reserved as capitalized interest to pay such interest during said next ensuing 
six (6) months), until the requisite half-yearly amount of interest on all such Outstanding 
Current Interest Bonds (except for Bonds constituting Variable Rate Indebtedness which 
shall be governed by subparagraph (b) below) is on deposit in such fund; provided that 
from the date of delivery of a Series of Current Interest Bonds until the first Interest 
Payment Date with respect to such Series of Bonds the amounts set aside in such fund 
with respect to such Series of Bonds shall be sufficient on a monthly pro rata basis to pay 
the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on said Interest Payment 
Date with respect to such Series of Bonds, plus (b) the aggregate amount of interest to 

Page 313Page 313Page 313Page 313



 

 34 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

accrue during that month on Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness, calculated, if the 
actual rate of interest is not known, at the interest rate specified in writing by the 
Alameda CTC, or if the Alameda CTC shall not have specified an interest rate in writing, 
calculated at the maximum interest rate borne by such Variable Rate Indebtedness during 
the month prior to the month of deposit plus one hundred (100) basis points (provided, 
however, that the amount of such deposit into the Interest Fund for any month may be 
reduced by the amount by which the deposit in the prior month exceeded the actual 
amount of interest accrued and paid during that month on said Outstanding Variable Rate 
Indebtedness and provided further that the amount of such deposit into the Interest Fund 
for any month shall be increased by the amount by which the deposit in the prior month 
was less than the actual amount of interest accruing during that month on said 
Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness).  No deposit need be made into the Interest 
Fund if the amount contained therein is at least equal to the interest to become due and 
payable on the Interest Payment Dates falling within the next six (6) months upon all of 
the Bonds issued hereunder and then Outstanding, and on March 1 and September 1 of 
each year any excess amounts in the Interest Fund not needed to pay interest on such date 
(and not held to pay interest on Bonds having Interest Payment Dates other than March 1 
and September 1) shall be transferred to the Alameda CTC (but excluding, in each case, 
any moneys on deposit in the Interest Fund from the proceeds of any Series of Bonds or 
other source and reserved as capitalized interest to pay interest on any future Interest 
Payment Dates following such Interest Payment Dates).  All Swap Revenues received 
with respect to Interest Rate Swap Agreements that are Parity Obligations shall be 
deposited in the Interest Fund and credited to the above required deposits. 

(2) Principal Fund; Sinking Accounts.  Following receipt of the Sales Tax 
Revenues in each month, the Trustee shall deposit in the Principal Fund as soon as 
practicable in such month an amount equal to at least (a) one-sixth of the aggregate 
semiannual amount of Bond Obligation becoming due and payable on the Outstanding 
Serial Bonds of all Series having semiannual maturity dates within the next six (6) 
months, plus (b) one-twelfth of the aggregate yearly amount of Bond Obligation 
becoming due and payable on the Outstanding Serial Bonds of all Series having annual 
maturity dates within the next twelve (12) months, plus (c) one-sixth of the aggregate of 
the Mandatory Sinking Account Payments to be paid during the next six-month period 
into the respective Sinking Accounts for the Term Bonds of all Series for which Sinking 
Accounts have been created and for which semiannual mandatory redemption is required 
from said Sinking Accounts, plus (d) one-twelfth of the aggregate of the Mandatory 
Sinking Account Payments to be paid during the next 12-month period into the respective 
Sinking Accounts for the Term Bonds of all Series for which Sinking Accounts shall 
have been created and for which annual mandatory redemption is required from such 
Sinking Accounts; provided that if the Alameda CTC certifies to the Trustee that any 
principal payments are expected to be refunded on or prior to their respective due dates or 
paid from amounts on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund that would be in excess of the 
Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to such Bond Reserve Fund upon such payment, 
no amounts need be set aside towards such principal to be so refunded or paid.  All of the 
aforesaid deposits made in connection with future Mandatory Sinking Account Payments 

Page 314Page 314Page 314Page 314



 

 35 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

shall be made without priority of any payment into any one such Sinking Account over 
any other such payment. 

In the event that the Sales Tax Revenues shall not be sufficient to make the 
required deposits so that moneys in the Principal Fund on any principal or mandatory 
redemption date are equal to the amount of Bond Obligation to become due and payable 
on the Outstanding Serial Bonds of all Series plus the Bond Obligation amount of and 
redemption premium on the Outstanding Term Bonds required to be redeemed or paid at 
maturity on such date, then such moneys shall be applied on a Proportionate Basis and in 
such proportion as said Serial Bonds and said Term Bonds shall bear to each other, after 
first deducting for such purposes from said Term Bonds any of said Term Bonds required 
to be redeemed annually as shall have been redeemed or purchased during the preceding 
12-month period and any of said Term Bonds required to be redeemed semiannually as 
shall have been redeemed or purchased during the six-month period ending on such date 
or the immediately preceding six month period.  In the event that the Sales Tax Revenues 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full all Mandatory Sinking Account Payments required to 
be paid at any one time into all such Sinking Accounts, then payments into all such 
Sinking Accounts shall be made on a Proportionate Basis, in proportion that the 
respective Mandatory Sinking Account Payments required to be made into each Sinking 
Account during the then current 12-month period bear to the aggregate of all of the 
Mandatory Sinking Account Payments required to be made into all such Sinking 
Accounts during such 12-month period. 

No deposit need be made into the Principal Fund so long as there shall be in such 
fund (i) moneys sufficient to pay the Bond Obligations of all Serial Bonds issued 
hereunder and then Outstanding and maturing by their terms within the next twelve (12) 
months plus (ii) the aggregate of all Mandatory Sinking Account Payments required to be 
made in such 12-month period, but less any amounts deposited into the Principal Fund 
during such 12-month period and theretofore paid from the Principal Fund to redeem or 
purchase Term Bonds during such 12-month period; provided that if the Alameda CTC 
certifies to the Trustee that any principal payments are expected to be refunded on or 
prior to their respective due dates or paid from amounts on deposit in a Bond Reserve 
Fund that would be in excess of the Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to such Bond 
Reserve Fund upon such payment, no amounts need be on deposit with respect to such 
principal payments.  At the beginning of each Fiscal Year and in any event not later than 
March 1 of each year, the Trustee shall request from the Alameda CTC a Certificate of 
the Alameda CTC setting forth the principal payments for which deposits will not be 
necessary pursuant to the preceding sentence and the reason therefor.  On March 1 of 
each year or as soon as practicable thereafter any excess amounts in the Principal Fund 
not needed to pay principal on such date (and not held to pay principal on Bonds having 
principal payment dates other than March 1) shall be transferred to the Alameda CTC. 

(3) Bond Reserve Fund.  Upon the occurrence of any deficiency in any Bond 
Reserve Fund, the Trustee shall make such deposit to such Bond Reserve Fund as is 
required pursuant to Section 5.05(D), each such deposit to be made as soon as possible in 

Page 315Page 315Page 315Page 315



 

 36 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

each month, until the balance therein is at least equal to the applicable Bond Reserve 
Requirement. 

(4) Subordinate Obligations Fund.  In the event that the Alameda CTC issues 
or incurs Subordinate Obligations, the  Trustee shall establish, maintain and hold in trust 
a separate fund designated as the "Subordinate Obligations Fund."  After the transfers 
described in (1), (2) and (3) above have been made, the Trustee shall deposit in the 
Subordinate Obligations Fund in each month such amount as the Alameda CTC shall 
specify in writing is necessary to make payments due and payable during the following 
month with respect to Subordinate Obligations then outstanding. 

(5) Fees and Expenses Fund.  In the event that the Alameda CTC incurs Fee 
and Expense Obligations, the Trustee shall establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate 
fund designated as the "Fees and Expenses Fund."  After the transfers described in (1), 
(2), (3) and (4) above have been made, the Trustee shall deposit in the Fees and Expenses 
Fund in each month the amounts necessary for payment of Fee and Expense Obligations 
owing in such month or owing in the following month by the Alameda CTC.  The 
Alameda CTC shall inform the Trustee of such amounts, in writing, such notification to 
be provided no later than the tenth calendar day of each month. 

(B) Any Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after the foregoing transfers 
described in (1), (2), (3), (4) and (5) of subsection (A) above, except as the Alameda CTC shall 
otherwise direct in writing or as is otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture, shall be 
transferred to the Alameda CTC on the same Business Day or as soon as practicable thereafter.  
The Alameda CTC may use and apply the Revenues when received by it for any lawful purpose 
of the Alameda CTC, including the redemption of Bonds upon the terms and conditions set forth 
in the Supplemental Indenture relating to such Bonds and the purchase of Bonds as and when 
and at such prices as it may determine. 

(C) If, five (5) Business Days prior to any principal payment date, Interest Payment 
Date or mandatory redemption date, the amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the Interest 
Fund, the Principal Fund, including the Sinking Accounts therein, and, as and to the extent not 
required to satisfy the Bond Reserve Requirement, any Bond Reserve Fund established in 
connection with a Series of Bonds with respect to the payments to be made on such upcoming 
date are insufficient to make such payments, the Trustee shall immediately notify the Alameda 
CTC, in writing, of such deficiency and direct that the Alameda CTC transfer the amount of such 
deficiency to the Trustee on or prior to such payment date.  The Alameda CTC hereby covenants 
and agrees to transfer to the Trustee from any Revenues in its possession the amount of such 
deficiency on or prior to the principal, interest or mandatory redemption date referenced in such 
notice. 

SECTION 5.03 Application of Interest Fund.  All amounts in the Interest Fund 
shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purposes of:  (a) paying interest on the 
Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued interest on any Bonds purchased or 
redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to this Indenture), or for reimbursing the Credit Provider for 
a drawing for such purposes made on Credit Enhancement provided in the form of an 

Page 316Page 316Page 316Page 316



 

 37 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

irrevocable, direct-pay letter of credit, and (b)  making periodic payments on Interest Rate Swap 
Agreements, as provided in Section 5.10. 

SECTION 5.04 Application of Principal Fund. 

(A) All amounts in the Principal Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee 
solely for the purposes of paying the Bond Obligation of the Bonds when due and payable, 
except that all amounts in the Sinking Accounts shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee 
solely to purchase or redeem or pay at maturity Term Bonds, as provided herein, or for 
reimbursing the Credit Provider for a drawing for such purposes made on Credit Enhancement 
provided in the form of an irrevocable, direct-pay letter of credit. 

(B) The Trustee shall establish and maintain within the Principal Fund a separate 
account for the Term Bonds of each Series and maturity, designated as the "_____ Sinking 
Account," inserting therein the Series and maturity designation of such Bonds.  On or before the 
Business Day prior to any date upon which a Mandatory Sinking Account Payment is due, the 
Trustee shall transfer the amount of such Mandatory Sinking Account Payment (being the 
principal thereof, in the case of Current Interest Bonds, and the Accreted Value, in the case of 
Capital Appreciation Bonds) from the Principal Fund to the applicable Sinking Account.  With 
respect to each Sinking Account, on each Mandatory Sinking Account Payment date established 
for such Sinking Account, the Trustee shall apply the Mandatory Sinking Account Payment 
required on that date to the redemption (or payment at maturity, as the case may be) of Term 
Bonds of such Series and maturity for which such Sinking Account was established, in the 
manner provided in this Indenture or the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such Series 
of Bonds was created; provided that, at any time prior to giving such notice of such redemption, 
the Trustee shall, upon receipt of a Request of the Alameda CTC, apply moneys in such Sinking 
Account to the purchase of Term Bonds of such Series and maturity at public or private sale, as 
and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other charges, but excluding accrued 
interest, which is payable from the Interest Fund) as is directed by the Alameda CTC, except that 
the purchase price (excluding accrued interest, in the case of Current Interest Bonds) shall not 
exceed the principal amount or Accreted Value thereof.  If, during the 12-month period (or six-
month period with respect to Bonds having semi-annual Mandatory Sinking Account Payments) 
immediately preceding said Mandatory Sinking Account Payment date, the Trustee has 
purchased Term Bonds of such Series and maturity with moneys in such Sinking Account, or, 
during said period and prior to giving said notice of redemption, the Alameda CTC has deposited 
Term Bonds of such Series and maturity with the Trustee, or Term Bonds of such Series and 
maturity were at any time purchased or redeemed by the Trustee from the Redemption Fund and 
allocable to said Mandatory Sinking Account Payment, such Term Bonds so purchased or 
deposited or redeemed shall be applied, to the extent of the full principal amount thereof, to 
reduce said Mandatory Sinking Account Payment.  All Term Bonds purchased or deposited 
pursuant to this subsection shall be cancelled by the Trustee and destroyed by the Trustee and a 
certificate of destruction shall be delivered to the Alameda CTC by the Trustee.  Any amounts 
remaining in a Sinking Account on March 1 of each year following the redemption as of such 
date of the Term Bonds for which such account was established shall be withdrawn by the 
Trustee and transferred as soon as practicable to the Alameda CTC to be used for any lawful 
purpose.  All Term Bonds purchased from a Sinking Account or deposited by the Alameda CTC 

Page 317Page 317Page 317Page 317



 

 38 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

with the Trustee in a twelve month period ending the last day in February (or in a six-month 
period ending the last day in February or August 31 with respect to Bonds having semi-annual 
Mandatory Sinking Account Payments) and prior to the giving of notice by the Trustee for 
redemption from Mandatory Sinking Account Payments for such period shall be allocated first to 
the next succeeding Mandatory Sinking Account Payment for such Series and maturity of Term 
Bonds, if any, occurring on the next March 1 or September 1, then as a credit against such future 
Mandatory Sinking Account Payments for such Series and maturity of Term Bonds as may be 
specified in a Request of the Alameda CTC.  All Term Bonds redeemed by the Trustee from the 
Redemption Fund shall be credited to such future Mandatory Sinking Account Payments for 
such Series and maturity of Term Bonds as may be specified in a Request of the Alameda CTC. 

SECTION 5.05 Establishment, Funding and Application of Bond Reserve 
Funds.  The Alameda CTC may at its sole discretion at the time of issuance of any Series of 
Bonds or at any time thereafter by Supplemental Indenture provide for the establishment of a 
Bond Reserve Fund as additional security for a Series of Bonds.  Any Bond Reserve Fund so 
established by the Alameda CTC shall be available to secure one or more Series of Bonds as the 
Alameda CTC shall determine and shall specify in the Supplemental Indenture establishing such 
Bond Reserve Fund.  Any Bond Reserve Fund established by the Alameda CTC shall be held by 
the Trustee and shall comply with the requirements set forth in this Section 5.05. 

(A) In lieu of making the Bond Reserve Requirement deposit applicable to one or 
more Series of Bonds in cash or in replacement of moneys then on deposit in any Bond Reserve 
Fund (which shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Alameda CTC), or in substitution of any 
Reserve Facility comprising part of the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to one or more 
Series of Bonds, the Alameda CTC may, at any time and from time to time, deliver to the 
Trustee an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial institution having unsecured debt 
obligations rated at the time of delivery of such letter of credit in one of the two highest Rating 
Categories of Fitch, Moody's or Standard & Poor's, in an amount, which, together with cash, 
Investment Securities or other Reserve Facilities, as described in Section 5.05(B), then on 
deposit in such Bond Reserve Fund, will equal the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the 
Bonds to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates.  Such letter of credit shall have a term no less 
than three (3) years or, if less, the final maturity of the Bonds in connection with which such 
letter of credit was obtained and shall provide by its terms that it may be drawn upon as provided 
in this Section 5.05.  At least one (1) year prior to the stated expiration of such letter of credit, 
the Alameda CTC shall either (i) deliver a replacement letter of credit, (ii) deliver an extension 
of the letter of credit for at least one (1) additional year or, if less, the final maturity of the Bonds 
in connection with which such letter of credit was obtained, or (iii) deliver to the Trustee a 
Reserve Facility satisfying the requirements of Section 5.05(B).  Upon delivery of such 
replacement Reserve Facility, the Trustee shall deliver the then-effective letter of credit to or 
upon the order of the Alameda CTC.  If the Alameda CTC shall fail to deposit a replacement 
Reserve Facility with the Trustee, the Alameda CTC shall immediately commence to make 
monthly deposits with the Trustee so that an amount equal to the Bond Reserve Requirement 
relating to the Bonds to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates will be on deposit in such Bond 
Reserve Fund no later than the stated expiration date of the letter of credit.  If an amount equal to 
the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates 
as of the date following the expiration of the letter of credit is not on deposit in such Bond 

Page 318Page 318Page 318Page 318



 

 39 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Reserve Fund one (1) week prior to the expiration date of the letter of credit (excluding from 
such determination the letter of credit), the Trustee shall draw on the letter of credit to fund the 
deficiency resulting therefrom in such Bond Reserve Fund. 

(B) In lieu of making a Bond Reserve Requirement deposit in cash or in replacement 
of moneys then on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund (which shall be transferred by the Trustee to 
the Alameda CTC) or in substitution of any Reserve Facility comprising part of a Bond Reserve 
Requirement for any Bonds, the Alameda CTC may, at any time and from time to time, deliver 
to the Trustee a surety bond or an insurance policy securing an amount which, together with 
moneys, Investment Securities, or other Reserve Facilities then on deposit in a Bond Reserve 
Fund, is no less than the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds to which such Bond 
Reserve Fund relates.  Such surety bond or insurance policy shall be issued by an insurance 
company whose unsecured debt obligations (or for which obligations secured by such insurance 
company's insurance policies) are rated at the time of delivery in one of the two highest Rating 
Categories of Fitch, Moody's or Standard & Poor's.  Such surety bond or insurance policy shall 
have a term of no less than the final maturity of the Bonds in connection with which such surety 
bond or insurance policy is obtained.  In the event that such surety bond or insurance policy for 
any reason lapses or expires, the Alameda CTC shall immediately implement (i) or (iii) of the 
preceding paragraph or make twelve equal monthly deposits to such Bond Reserve Fund so that 
the Bond Reserve Fund is replenished to the required level after a year. 

(C) Subject to Section 5.05(E), all amounts in any Bond Reserve Fund (including all 
amounts which may be obtained from a Reserve Facility on deposit in such Bond Reserve Fund) 
shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee, as hereinafter provided:  (i) for the purpose of 
making up any deficiency in the Interest Fund or the Principal Fund relating to the Bonds of the 
Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates; or (ii) together with any other moneys available 
therefor, (x) for the payment or redemption of all Bonds then Outstanding of the Series to which 
such Bond Reserve Fund relates, (y) for the defeasance or redemption of all or a portion of the 
Bonds then Outstanding of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates, provided, 
however, that if funds on deposit in any Bond Reserve Fund are applied to the defeasance or 
redemption of a portion of the Series of Bonds to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates, the 
amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve Fund immediately subsequent to such partial defeasance 
or redemption shall equal the Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to all Bonds of such Series 
Outstanding immediately subsequent to such partial defeasance or redemption, or (z) for the 
payment of the final principal and interest payment of the Bonds of such Series.  Unless 
otherwise directed in a Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of a Series 
of Bonds, the Trustee shall apply amounts held in cash or Investment Securities in any Bond 
Reserve Fund prior to applying amounts held in the form of Reserve Facilities in any Bond 
Reserve Fund, and if there is more than one Reserve Facility being held on deposit in any Bond 
Reserve Fund, shall, on a pro rata basis with respect to the portion of a Bond Reserve Fund held 
in the form of a Reserve Facility (calculated by reference to the maximum amount of such 
Reserve Facility), draw under each Reserve Facility issued with respect to such Bond Reserve 
Fund, in a timely manner and pursuant to the terms of such Reserve Facility to the extent 
necessary in order to obtain sufficient funds on or prior to the date such funds are needed to pay 
the Bond Obligation of, Mandatory Sinking Account Payments with respect to, and interest on 
the Bonds of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates when due.  In the event that the 

Page 319Page 319Page 319Page 319



 

 40 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on a Bond has been recovered 
from a Holder pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in 
accordance with the final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction, the 
Trustee, pursuant to the terms of, and if so provided by, the terms of the Reserve Facility, if any, 
securing the Bonds of such Series, shall so notify the issuer thereof and draw on such Reserve 
Facility to the lesser of the extent required or the maximum amount of such Reserve Facility in 
order to pay to such Holders the principal and interest so recovered. 

(D) The Trustee shall notify the Alameda CTC of any deficiency in any Bond Reserve 
Fund (i) due to a withdrawal from such Bond Reserve Fund for purposes of making up any 
deficiency in the Interest Fund or the Principal Fund relating to the Bonds of the Series to which 
such Bond Reserve Fund relates or (ii) resulting from a valuation of Investment Securities held 
on deposit in such Bond Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 5.11 and shall request that the 
Alameda CTC replenish such deficiency or repay any and all obligations due and payable under 
the terms of any Reserve Facility comprising part of any Bond Reserve Requirement.  Upon 
receipt of such notification from the Trustee, the Alameda CTC shall instruct the Trustee to 
commence setting aside in each month following receipt of Sales Tax Revenues for deposit in 
the applicable Bond Reserve Fund an amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12th) of the aggregate 
amount of each unreplenished prior withdrawal from such Bond Reserve Fund or decrease 
resulting from a valuation pursuant to Section 5.11 and shall further instruct the Trustee to 
transfer to each Reserve Facility Provider providing a Reserve Facility satisfying a portion of the 
Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund 
relates, an amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12th) of the aggregate amount of any unreplenished 
prior withdrawal on such Reserve Facility, such amount to be transferred by the Trustee as 
promptly as possible after receipt of the Sales Tax Revenues each month, commencing with the 
month following the Alameda CTC's receipt of notification from the Trustee of withdrawal or 
decrease resulting from a valuation, as applicable, until the balance on deposit in such Bond 
Reserve Fund is at least equal to the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds of the 
Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates. 

(E) Unless the Alameda CTC shall otherwise direct in writing, any amounts in any 
Bond Reserve Fund in excess of the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds of the 
Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates shall be transferred by the Trustee to the 
Alameda CTC on the Business Day following March 1 of each year; provided that such amounts 
shall be transferred only from the portion of such Bond Reserve Fund held in the form of cash or 
Investment Securities.  In addition, amounts on deposit in any Bond Reserve Fund shall be 
transferred by the Trustee to the Alameda CTC (i) upon the defeasance, retirement or refunding 
of all or a portion of the Bonds of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates, provided 
that such transfer shall not be made unless (a) immediately thereafter all of the Bonds to which 
the Bond Reserve Fund relates shall be deemed to have been paid pursuant to Article X, or (b) 
the amount remaining in such Bond Reserve Fund after such transfer shall not be less than the 
Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to Bonds of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund 
relates or (ii) upon the replacement of cash on deposit in any Bond Reserve Fund with one or 
more Reserve Facilities in accordance with Section 5.05(A) or Section 5.05(B), each such 
transfer to be subject to compliance with the requirements of the applicable Tax Certificate. 

Page 320Page 320Page 320Page 320



 

 41 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 5.06 Application of Subordinate Obligations Fund.  All moneys in 
the Subordinate Obligations Fund shall be applied to the payment of principal of and interest on 
Subordinate Obligations in accordance with Section 5.02(A)(4). 

SECTION 5.07 Application of Fees and Expenses Fund.  All amounts in the 
Fees and Expenses Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of 
paying fees, expenses and similar charges owed by the Alameda CTC in connection with the 
Bonds or any Parity Obligations or Subordinate Obligations as such amounts shall become due 
and payable. 

SECTION 5.08 Application of Redemption Fund.  The Trustee shall establish, 
maintain and hold in trust a special fund designated as the "Redemption Fund."  All moneys 
deposited by the Alameda CTC with the Trustee for the purpose of optionally redeeming Bonds 
of any Series shall, unless otherwise directed by the Alameda CTC, be deposited in the 
Redemption Fund.  All amounts deposited in the Redemption Fund shall be used and withdrawn 
by the Trustee solely for the purpose of redeeming Bonds of such Series and maturity as shall be 
specified by the Alameda CTC in a Request to the Trustee, in the manner, at the times and upon 
the terms and conditions specified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which the Series of 
Bonds was created; provided that, at any time prior to giving such notice of redemption, the 
Trustee shall, upon receipt of a Request of the Alameda CTC, apply such amounts to the 
purchase of Bonds at public or private sale, as and when and at such prices (including brokerage 
and other charges, but excluding, in the case of Current Interest Bonds, accrued interest, which is 
payable from the Interest Fund) as is directed by the Alameda CTC, except that the purchase 
price (exclusive of any accrued interest) may not exceed the Redemption Price or Accreted 
Value then applicable to such Bonds.  All Term Bonds purchased or redeemed from the 
Redemption Fund shall be allocated to Mandatory Sinking Account Payments applicable to such 
Series and maturity of Term Bonds as may be specified in a Request of the Alameda CTC. 

SECTION 5.09 Rebate Fund. 

(A) Upon receipt of funds to be applied to the Rebate Requirement, the Trustee shall 
establish and maintain a fund separate from any other fund established and maintained hereunder 
designated as the Rebate Fund.  Within the Rebate Fund, the Trustee shall maintain such 
accounts as shall be necessary in order to comply with the terms and requirements of each Tax 
Certificate as directed in writing by the Alameda CTC.  Subject to the transfer provisions 
provided in paragraph (C) below, all money at any time deposited in the Rebate Fund shall be 
held by the Trustee in trust, to the extent required to satisfy the Rebate Requirement, for payment 
to the federal government of the United States of America, and neither the Trustee nor any 
Holder nor any other Person shall have any rights in or claim to such money.  All amounts 
deposited into or on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be governed by this Indenture and by the 
applicable Tax Certificates.  The Alameda CTC hereby covenants to comply with the directions 
contained in each Tax Certificate and the Trustee hereby covenants to comply with all written 
instructions of the Alameda CTC delivered to the Trustee pursuant to each Tax Certificate 
(which instructions shall state the actual amounts to be deposited in or withdrawn from the 
Rebate Fund and shall not require the Trustee to make any calculations with respect thereto).  
The Trustee shall be deemed conclusively to have complied with the provisions of this Section 

Page 321Page 321Page 321Page 321



 

 42 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

5.09(A) if it follows such instructions of the Alameda CTC, and the Trustee shall have no 
liability or responsibility to enforce compliance by the Alameda CTC with the terms of any Tax 
Certificate nor to make computations in connection therewith. 

(B) Pursuant to each Tax Certificate, an amount shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund 
by the Alameda CTC so that the balance of the amount on deposit thereto shall be equal to the 
Rebate Requirement applicable to the Series of Bonds to which such Tax Certificate relates.  
Computations of each Rebate Requirement shall be furnished by or on behalf of the Alameda 
CTC to the Trustee in accordance with the applicable Tax Certificate. 

(C) The Trustee shall invest all amounts held in the Rebate Fund, pursuant to written 
instructions of the Alameda CTC, in Investment Securities, subject to the restrictions set forth in 
the applicable Tax Certificate.  Money shall not be transferred from the Rebate Fund except as 
provided in paragraph (D) below. 

(D) Upon receipt of Rebate Instructions, the Trustee shall remit part or all of the 
balances in the Rebate Fund to the United States of America, as so directed.  In addition, if the 
Rebate Instructions so direct, the Trustee will deposit moneys into or transfer moneys out of the 
Rebate Fund from or into such accounts or funds as directed by the Rebate Instructions.  Any 
funds remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption and payment of all of a Series of Bonds 
and payment and satisfaction of any Rebate Requirement applicable to such Series of Bonds, 
shall be withdrawn and remitted to the Alameda CTC in accordance with a Request of the 
Alameda CTC. 

(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, including in particular 
Article X thereof, the obligation to remit the Rebate Requirement applicable to each Series of 
Bonds to the federal government of the United States of America and to comply with all other 
requirements of this Section and each Tax Certificate shall survive the defeasance or payment in 
full of the Bonds. 

SECTION 5.10 Payment Provisions Applicable to Interest Rate Swap 
Agreements.  In the event the Alameda CTC shall enter into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement 
in connection with a Series of Bonds, the amounts received by the Alameda CTC, if any, 
pursuant to such Interest Rate Swap Agreement shall also be applied to the deposits required 
hereunder.  If the Alameda CTC so designates in a Supplemental Indenture establishing the 
terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds (or if such Interest Rate Swap Agreement is 
entered into subsequent to the issuance of such Series of Bonds, if the Alameda CTC so 
designates in a Certificate of the Alameda CTC delivered to the Trustee concurrently with the 
execution of such Interest Rate Swap Agreement), amounts payable under such Interest Rate 
Swap Agreement (excluding termination payments and payments of fees and expenses incurred 
in connection with Interest Rate Swap Agreements which (i) shall constitute Fee and Expense 
Obligations and (ii) shall in all cases be payable from, and secured by, Sales Tax Revenues on a 
subordinate basis to Bonds, Parity Obligations and payment of principal of and interest on 
Subordinate Obligations) shall constitute Parity Obligations under this Indenture, and, in such 
event, the Alameda CTC shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee for deposit in the Interest 
Fund, at the times and in the manner provided by Section 5.02, the amounts to be paid pursuant 

Page 322Page 322Page 322Page 322



 

 43 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

to such Interest Rate Swap Agreement, as if such amounts were additional interest due on the 
Series of Bonds to which such Interest Rate Swap Agreement relates, and the Trustee shall pay 
to the Counterparty to such Interest Rate Swap Agreement, to the extent required thereunder, 
from amounts deposited in the Interest Fund for the payment of interest on the Series of Bonds 
with respect to which such Interest Rate Swap Agreement was entered into. 

SECTION 5.11 Investment in Funds and Accounts.  All moneys in any of the 
funds and accounts held by the Trustee and established pursuant to this Indenture shall be 
invested, as directed by the Alameda CTC, solely in Investment Securities.  All Investment 
Securities shall, as directed by the Alameda CTC in writing or by telephone, promptly confirmed 
in writing, be acquired subject to the limitations set forth in Section 6.08, the limitations as to 
maturities hereinafter in this Section set forth and such additional limitations or requirements 
consistent with the foregoing as may be established by Request of the Alameda CTC.  Ratings of 
Investment Securities shall be determined at the time of purchase of such Investment Securities 
and without regard to ratings subcategories.  The Trustee may make any and all such investments 
through its own investment department or that of its affiliates or subsidiaries, and may charge its 
ordinary and customary fees for such trades, including cash sweep account fees.  If and to the 
extent the Trustee does not receive investment instructions from the Alameda CTC with respect 
to the moneys in the funds and accounts held by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture, such 
moneys shall be invested in Investment Securities described in clause (11) of the definition 
thereof and  the Trustee shall promptly thereafter request investment instructions from the 
Alameda CTC for such moneys. 

Moneys in any Bond Reserve Fund shall be invested in Investment Securities maturing in 
not more than five (5) years, or having a put option or demand option providing funds upon 
request for the purpose of payment of the Bonds to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates as 
provided herein.  Moneys in the remaining funds and accounts shall be invested in Investment 
Securities maturing or available on demand not later than the date on which it is estimated that 
such moneys will be required by the Trustee. 

Unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and 
provisions of a Series of Bonds or a Request of the Alameda CTC:  (i) all interest, profits and 
other income received from the investment of moneys in the Interest Fund representing accrued 
interest or capitalized interest shall be retained in the Interest Fund; (ii) all interest, profits and 
other income received from the investment of moneys in a Bond Reserve Fund shall be retained 
in such Bond Reserve Fund to the extent of any deficiency therein, and otherwise shall be 
transferred to the Revenue Fund; (iii) all interest, profits and other income received from the 
investment of moneys in a Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund; (iv) 
all interest, profits and other income received from the investment of moneys in a Project Fund 
shall be retained in such Project Fund, unless the Alameda CTC shall direct that such earnings be 
transferred to the Rebate Fund; (v) all interest, profits and other income received from the 
investment of moneys in the Rebate Fund shall be retained in the Rebate Fund, except as 
otherwise provided in Section 5.09, (vi) all interest, profits and other income received from the 
investment of moneys in any Purchase Fund shall be retained in such Purchase Fund; and (vii) all 
interest, profits and other income received from the investment of moneys in any other fund or 
account shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

Page 323Page 323Page 323Page 323



 

 44 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

contained in this paragraph, an amount of interest received with respect to any Investment 
Security equal to the amount of accrued interest, if any, paid as part of the purchase price of such 
Investment Security shall be credited to the fund or account from which such accrued interest 
was paid. 

All Investment Securities credited to any Bond Reserve Fund shall be valued (at market 
value) as of March 1 and September 1 of each year (or the next succeeding Business Day if such 
day is not a Business Day), such market value to be determined by the Trustee in the manner 
then currently employed by the Trustee or in any other manner consistent with corporate trust 
industry standards.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in making any valuations of 
investments hereunder, the Trustee may utilize and rely on computerized securities pricing 
services that may be available to it, including those available through its regular accounting 
system. 

The Trustee may commingle any of the funds or accounts established pursuant to this 
Indenture (except the Rebate Fund, any Letter of Credit Account and any Purchase Fund) into a 
separate fund or funds for investment purposes only, provided that all funds or accounts held by 
the Trustee hereunder shall be accounted for separately as required by this Indenture.  The 
Trustee may act as principal or agent in the making or disposing of any investment and, with the 
prior written consent of the Alameda CTC may impose its customary charge therefor.  The 
Trustee may sell at the best price obtainable consistent with the Trustee's customary trading 
practices or present for redemption, any Investment Securities so purchased whenever it shall be 
necessary to provide moneys to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement 
from the fund or account to which such Investment Security is credited.  The Trustee shall not be 
liable or responsible for any loss resulting from any investment made in accordance herewith.   

The Trustee shall furnish the Alameda CTC periodic cash transaction statements, as 
specified in Section 8.02 hereof, which include detail for all investment transactions effected by 
the Trustee or brokers selected by the Alameda CTC.  Upon the Alameda CTC's election, such 
statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online service and upon electing such service, 
paper statements will be provided only upon request.  The Alameda CTC waives the right to 
receive brokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by the Trustee as they occur, to 
the extent permitted by law.  The Alameda CTC further understands that trade confirmations for 
securities transactions effected by the Trustee will be available upon request and at no additional 
cost and other trade confirmations may be obtained from the applicable broker. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

COVENANTS OF THE ALAMEDA CTC 

SECTION 6.01 Punctual Payments.  The Alameda CTC will punctually pay or 
cause to be paid the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on all the Bonds, in strict 
conformity with the terms of the Bonds and of this Indenture, according to the true intent and 
meaning thereof, and shall punctually pay or cause to be paid all Mandatory Sinking Account 
Payments, but in each case only out of Revenues as provided in this Indenture. 

Page 324Page 324Page 324Page 324



 

 45 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 6.02 Extension of Payment of Bonds.  The Alameda CTC will not 
directly or indirectly extend or assent to the extension of the maturity of any of the Bonds or the 
time of payment of any Bonds or claims for interest by the purchase or funding of such Bonds or 
claims for interest or by any other arrangement and in case the maturity of any of the Bonds or 
the time of payment of any such claims for interest shall be extended, such Bonds or claims for 
interest shall not be entitled, in case of any default hereunder, to the benefits of this Indenture, 
except subject to the prior payment in full of the principal of all of the Bonds then Outstanding 
and of all claims for interest thereon which shall not have been so extended.  Nothing in this 
Section shall be deemed to limit the right of the Alameda CTC to issue bonds for the purpose of 
refunding any Outstanding Bonds, and such issuance shall not be deemed to constitute an 
extension of maturity of Bonds. 

SECTION 6.03 Waiver of Laws.  The Alameda CTC will not at any time insist 
upon or plead in any manner whatsoever, or claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay or 
extension of law now or at any time hereafter in force that may affect the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds, and all benefit or advantage of any such 
law or laws is hereby expressly waived by the Alameda CTC to the extent permitted by law. 

SECTION 6.04 Further Assurances.  The Alameda CTC will make, execute and 
deliver any and all such instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or proper to 
carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Indenture and for the better 
assuring and confirming unto the Holders of the Bonds and the holders of any Parity Obligations, 
Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations of the rights and benefits provided in 
this Indenture. 

SECTION 6.05 Against Encumbrances.  The Alameda CTC will not create any 
pledge, lien or charge upon any of the Sales Tax Revenues having priority over or having parity 
with the lien of the Bonds, the Parity Obligations, the Subordinate Obligations and the Fee and 
Expense Obligations except only as permitted in Section 3.05. 

SECTION 6.06 Accounting Records and Financial Statements. 

(A) The Alameda CTC will at all times keep, or cause to be kept, proper books of 
record and account, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, in 
which complete and accurate entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Revenues.  
Such books of record and account shall be available for inspection by the Trustee at reasonable 
hours and under reasonable circumstances. 

(B) The Alameda CTC will furnish the Trustee, with copies to each Credit Provider 
and each Liquidity Provider, within one hundred ninety-five (195) days after the end of each 
Fiscal Year or as soon thereafter as they can practically be furnished, the financial statements of 
the Alameda CTC for such Fiscal Year, together with the report and opinion of an independent 
certified public accountant stating that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and that such accountant's examination of the 
financial statements was performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
a Certificate of an Authorized Representative stating that no event which constitutes an Event of 

Page 325Page 325Page 325Page 325



 

 46 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Default or which with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both would constitute an 
Event of Default has occurred and is continuing as of the end of such Fiscal Year, or specifying 
the nature of such event and the actions taken and proposed to be taken by the Alameda CTC to 
cure such default.  Thereafter, a copy of such financial statements will be furnished to any 
Holder upon written request to the Alameda CTC, which copy of the financial statements may, at 
the sole discretion of the Alameda CTC, be provided by means of posting such financial 
statements on an internet site that provides access to the Holders.  The Trustee shall have no duty 
to review or analyze such financial statements and shall hold such financial statements solely as 
a repository for the benefit of the Holders. 

SECTION 6.07 Collection of Sales Tax Revenues. 

(A) The Alameda CTC covenants and agrees that the Sales Tax was duly levied by 
ACTIA in accordance with the Act, pursuant to and in accordance with the Ordinance, duly 
passed and adopted by ACTIA and the electorate of the County.  The Ordinance will not be 
amended, modified or altered so long as any of the Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity 
Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid in any 
manner which would reduce the amount of or timing of receipt of Sales Tax Revenues, and the 
Alameda CTC will continue to levy and collect the Sales Tax to the full amount permitted by 
law.  The Alameda CTC covenants that it has entered into an agreement with the State Board of 
Equalization, under and pursuant to which the State Board of Equalization processes and 
supervises collection of the Sales Tax and will transmit the receipts of the Sales Tax directly to 
the Trustee.  Said agreement will be continued in effect so long as any Bonds are Outstanding 
and shall not be amended, modified or altered without the written consent of the Trustee so long 
as any of the Bonds are Outstanding.  The Alameda CTC will receive and hold in trust for (and 
remit immediately to) the Trustee any Sales Tax Revenues paid to the Alameda CTC by the State 
Board of Equalization. 

(B) Sales Tax Revenues received by the Trustee shall be transmitted to the Alameda 
CTC pursuant to Section 5.02; provided that, during the continuance of an Event of Default, any 
Sales Tax Revenues received by the Trustee shall be applied as set forth in Section 7.02. 

(C) The Alameda CTC covenants and agrees to separately account for all Revenues 
and to provide to the Trustee access to such accounting records at reasonable hours and under 
reasonable circumstances. 

(D) The Alameda CTC covenants that so long as the Bonds are Outstanding, it will 
not, to the best of its ability, suffer or permit any change, modification or alteration to be made to 
the Act which would materially and adversely affect the rights of Bondholders. 

SECTION 6.08 Tax Covenants.  The Alameda CTC covenants that it will not take 
any action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely 
affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds under Section 103 of the 
Code; provided that, prior to the issuance of any Series of Bonds, the Alameda CTC may exclude 
the application of the covenants contained in this Section 6.08 and Section 5.09 to such Series of 
Bonds.  The Alameda CTC will not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of 

Page 326Page 326Page 326Page 326



 

 47 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

the Bonds or any other funds of the Alameda CTC, or take or omit to take any action that would 
cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code.  To 
that end, the Alameda CTC will comply with all requirements of the Tax Certificate relating to 
each Series of the Bonds. In the event that at any time the Alameda CTC is of the opinion that 
for purposes of this Section 6.08 it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of 
any moneys held by the Trustee under this Indenture, the Alameda CTC shall so instruct the 
Trustee in writing, and the Trustee shall take such action as may be necessary in accordance with 
such instructions. 

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Alameda CTC agrees that there shall 
be paid from time to time all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government of the 
United States of America pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code and any temporary, proposed or 
final Treasury Regulations as may be applicable to the Bonds from time to time.  The Alameda 
CTC specifically covenants to pay or cause to be paid to the federal government of the United 
States of America the Rebate Requirement with respect to each Series of Bonds at the times and 
in the amounts determined under and as described in the Tax Certificate executed and delivered 
in connection with such Series of Bonds. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 6.08, Section 5.09 and any Tax Certificate, 
if the Alameda CTC shall receive an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that any action 
required under this Section 6.08, Section 5.09 or any Tax Certificate is no longer required, or to 
the effect that some further action is required, to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the 
interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, the Alameda CTC and the Trustee 
may rely conclusively on such opinion in complying with the provisions hereof, and the 
covenants hereunder shall be deemed to be modified to that extent. 

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Indenture, including particularly Article X, the 
covenants and obligations set forth in this Section 6.08 shall survive the defeasance of the Bonds 
or any Series thereof. 

SECTION 6.09 Continuing Disclosure.  Upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds 
requiring an undertaking regarding continuing disclosure under Rule 15c2-12, the Alameda CTC 
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking executed and delivered in connection with such Series of 
Bonds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, failure of the Alameda CTC to 
comply with the provisions of any Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an 
Event of Default; however, the Trustee shall, at the written request of any Participating 
Underwriter or of the Holders of at least twenty-five percent (25%) aggregate principal amount 
of any Series of Bonds then Outstanding (but only to the extent funds in an amount satisfactory 
to the Trustee have been provided to it or it has been otherwise indemnified to its satisfaction 
from any cost, liability, expense or additional charges and fees of the Trustee whatsoever, 
including, without limitation, reasonable fees and expenses of its attorneys), or any Holder or 
beneficial owner may, take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking 
mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Alameda CTC to comply with its 
obligations under this Section 6.09. 

Page 327Page 327Page 327Page 327



 

 48 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

SECTION 7.01 Events of Default.  The following events shall be Events of 
Default: 

(A) default in the due and punctual payment of the principal or Redemption Price of 
any Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as therein 
expressed, by proceedings for redemption, by declaration or otherwise, or default in the 
redemption from any Sinking Account of any Bonds in the amounts and at the times provided 
therefor; 

(B) default in the due and punctual payment of any installment of interest on any 
Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due and payable; 

(C) if the Alameda CTC shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition, 
agreement or provision in this Indenture on its part to be observed or performed, other than as 
referred to in subsection (A) or (B) of this Section, for a period of sixty (60) days after written 
notice, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, has been given to the Alameda 
CTC by the Trustee or by any Credit Provider; except that, if such failure can be remedied but 
not within such sixty (60) day period and if the Alameda CTC has taken all action reasonably 
possible to remedy such failure within such sixty (60) day period, such failure shall not become 
an Event of Default for so long as the Alameda CTC shall diligently proceed to remedy the same 
in accordance with and subject to any directions or limitations of time established by the Trustee; 

(D) if any payment default shall exist under any agreement governing any Parity 
Obligations and such default shall continue beyond the grace period, if any, provided for with 
respect to such default; 

(E) if the Alameda CTC files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy for the composition 
of its affairs or for its corporate reorganization under any state or federal bankruptcy or 
insolvency law, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or admits in writing to its 
insolvency or inability to pay debts as they mature, or consents in writing to the appointment of a 
trustee or receiver for itself; 

(F) if a court of competent jurisdiction shall enter an order, judgment or decree 
declaring the Alameda CTC insolvent, or adjudging it bankrupt, or appointing a trustee or 
receiver of the Alameda CTC, or approving a petition filed against the Alameda CTC seeking 
reorganization of the Alameda CTC under any applicable law or statute of the United States of 
America or any state thereof, and such order, judgment or decree shall not be vacated or set aside 
or stayed within sixty (60) days from the date of the entry thereof; 

(G) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court 
of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Alameda CTC or of the 
Revenues, and such custody or control shall not be terminated within sixty (60) days from the 
date of assumption of such custody or control; or 

Page 328Page 328Page 328Page 328



 

 49 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(H) if the Legislature of the State shall repeal or amend all or any portion of the 
provisions of the Act relating to the retail transactions and use tax, being Sections 180200 to 
180207, inclusive, of the Public Utilities Code of the State unless the Alameda CTC has 
reasonably determined that said repeal or amendment does not materially and adversely affect 
the rights of Bondholders. 

SECTION 7.02 Application of the Revenues and Other Funds After Default; 
No Acceleration.  If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the Alameda CTC shall 
immediately transfer to the Trustee all Revenues held by it and the Trustee shall apply all 
Revenues and any other funds then held or thereafter received by the Trustee under any of the 
provisions of this Indenture (excluding the Rebate Fund, any Letter of Credit Account and any 
Purchase Fund and except as otherwise provided in this Indenture) as follows and in the 
following order: 

(1) to the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to 
protect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds and Parity Obligations, including the 
costs and expenses of the Trustee and the Bondholders in declaring such Event of 
Default, and payment of reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee (including 
reasonable fees and disbursements of its counsel and other agents) incurred in and about 
the performance of its powers and duties under this Indenture; 

(2) to the payment of the whole amount of Bond Obligation then due on the 
Bonds and Parity Obligations (upon presentation of the Bonds and Parity Obligations to 
be paid, and stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or surrender thereof 
if fully paid) subject to the provisions of this Indenture (including Section 9.02), with 
interest on such Bond Obligation, at the rate or rates of interest borne by the respective 
Bonds and on Parity Obligations, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all 
installments of interest then due and the unpaid principal or Redemption Price of any 
Bonds and Parity Obligations which shall have become due, whether at maturity, by call 
for redemption or otherwise, in the order of their due dates, with interest on the overdue 
Bond Obligation and Parity Obligations at the rate borne by the respective Bonds and 
Parity Obligations, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the 
Bonds and Parity Obligations due on any date, together with such interest, then to the 
payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal or Accreted Value (plus 
accrued interest) due on such date to the persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference; 

(3) to the extent Revenues are available therefor, to the payment of 
Subordinate Obligations,  provided that if the amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full all Subordinate Obligations, then to the payment thereof ratably; 

(4) to the extent Revenues are available therefor, to the payment of Fee and 
Expense Obligations, provided that if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay 
in full all Fee and Expense Obligations, then to the payment thereof ratably; and 

(5) to the payment of all other obligations payable hereunder. 

Page 329Page 329Page 329Page 329



 

 50 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Notwithstanding anything in this Indenture to the contrary, in no event are the Bonds 
(excluding Liquidity Facility Bonds which may be subject to acceleration as set forth in the 
applicable Liquidity Facility) subject to acceleration if an Event of Default occurs and is 
continuing. 

SECTION 7.03 Trustee to Represent Bondholders.  The Trustee is hereby 
irrevocably appointed (and the successive respective Holders of the Bonds, by taking and 
holding the same, shall be conclusively deemed to have so appointed the Trustee) as trustee and 
true and lawful attorney-in-fact of the Holders of the Bonds for the purpose of exercising and 
prosecuting on their behalf such rights and remedies as may be available to such Holders under 
the provisions of the Bonds, this Indenture, the Act and applicable provisions of any other law.  
Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default or other occasion giving rise to a 
right in the Trustee to represent the Bondholders, the Trustee in its discretion may, and, with 
respect to any Series of Bonds for which a Credit Enhancement has been provided, upon the 
written request of the Credit Provider providing such Credit Enhancement, or if such Credit 
Provider is then failing to make a payment required pursuant to such Credit Enhancement, upon 
the written request of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate amount of Bond 
Obligation of the Bonds then Outstanding, and upon being indemnified to its satisfaction 
therefor, shall proceed to protect or enforce its rights or the rights of such Holders by such 
appropriate action, suit, mandamus or other proceedings as it shall deem most effectual to protect 
and enforce any such right, at law or in equity, either for the specific performance of any 
covenant or agreement contained herein, or in aid of the execution of any power herein granted, 
or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable right or remedy vested in the 
Trustee or in such Holders under this Indenture, the Act or any other law; and upon instituting 
such proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a 
receiver of the Sales Tax Revenues and other assets pledged under this Indenture, pending such 
proceedings; provided, however, that, with respect to any Series of Bonds for which a Credit 
Enhancement has been provided, the Trustee may only act with the consent of the Credit 
Provider providing such Credit Enhancement.  All rights of action under this Indenture or the 
Bonds or otherwise may be prosecuted and enforced by the Trustee without the possession of 
any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any proceeding relating thereto, and any such suit, 
action or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in the name of the Trustee for the 
benefit and protection of all the Holders of such Bonds, subject to the provisions of this 
Indenture (including Section 7.05). 

SECTION 7.04 Bondholders' Direction of Proceedings.  Anything in this 
Indenture to the contrary (except provisions relating to the rights of a Credit Provider to direct 
proceedings as set forth in Section 7.10) notwithstanding, the Holders of a majority in aggregate 
amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee and upon furnishing 
the Trustee with indemnification satisfactory to it, to direct the method of conducting all 
remedial proceedings taken by the Trustee hereunder, provided that such direction shall not be 
otherwise than in accordance with law and the provisions of this Indenture, that the Trustee may 
take any other action deemed proper by the Trustee which is not inconsistent with such direction, 
and that the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction which in the 

Page 330Page 330Page 330Page 330



 

 51 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly prejudicial to Bondholders or holders of Parity 
Obligations not parties to such direction. 

SECTION 7.05 Limitation on Bondholders' Right to Sue.  No Holder of any 
Bond shall have the right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, for the 
protection or enforcement of any right or remedy under this Indenture, the Act or any other 
applicable law with respect to such Bond, unless:  (1) such Holder shall have given to the Trustee 
written notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default; (2) the Holders of not less than a 
majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have made 
written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted or to institute such 
suit, action or proceeding in its own name; (3) such Holder or said Holders shall have tendered to 
the Trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in 
compliance with such request; and (4) the Trustee shall have refused or omitted to comply with 
such request for a period of sixty (60) days after such written request shall have been received 
by, and said tender of indemnity shall have been made to, the Trustee; provided, however, that 
the written consent of a Credit Provider providing a Credit Enhancement with respect to a Series 
of Bonds shall be required if the Credit Enhancement with respect to such Series of Bonds is in 
full force and effect and if the Credit Provider providing such Credit Enhancement is not then 
failing to make a payment as required in connection therewith. 

Such notification, request, tender of indemnity and refusal or omission are hereby 
declared, in every case, to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Holder of Bonds of any 
remedy hereunder or under law; it being understood and intended that no one or more Holders of 
Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or 
prejudice the security of this Indenture or the rights of any other Holders of Bonds, or to enforce 
any right under this Indenture, the Act or other applicable law with respect to the Bonds, except 
in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or in equity to enforce any such 
right shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the benefit 
and protection of all Holders of the Outstanding Bonds, subject to the provisions of this 
Indenture. 

SECTION 7.06 Absolute Obligation of the Alameda CTC.  Nothing in Section 
7.05 or in any other provision of this Indenture, or in the Bonds, contained shall affect or impair 
the obligation of the Alameda CTC, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds to the respective Holders of the Bonds at their 
respective dates of maturity, or upon call for redemption, as herein provided, but only out of the 
Revenues and other assets herein pledged therefor, or affect or impair the right of such Holders, 
which is also absolute and unconditional, to enforce such payment by virtue of the contract 
embodied in the Bonds.  Nor shall any provision of this Indenture affect or impair the obligation 
of the Alameda CTC, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay other amounts payable under 
this Indenture, as herein provided, but only out of the Revenues and other assets herein pledged 
therefor. 

SECTION 7.07 Termination of Proceedings.  In case any proceedings taken by 
the Trustee, any Credit Provider or any one or more Bondholders on account of any Event of 
Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or shall have been determined 

Page 331Page 331Page 331Page 331



 

 52 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

adversely to the Trustee, any Credit Provider or the Bondholders, then in every such case the 
Alameda CTC, the Trustee, each Credit Provider and the Bondholders, subject to any 
determination in such proceedings, shall be restored to their former positions and rights 
hereunder, severally and respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Alameda 
CTC, the Trustee, each Credit Provider and the Bondholders shall continue as though no such 
proceedings had been taken. 

SECTION 7.08 Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or 
reserved to the Trustee, to any Credit Provider or to the Holders of the Bonds is intended to be 
exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy, to the extent 
permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy given hereunder or 
now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise. 

SECTION 7.09 No Waiver of Default.  No delay or omission of the Trustee, any 
Credit Provider or of any Holder of the Bonds to exercise any right or power arising upon the 
occurrence of any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a 
waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given by this 
Indenture to the Trustee, to any Credit Provider or to the Holders of the Bonds may be exercised 
from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  No waiver of any Event of Default 
hereunder, whether by Trustee or by any Credit Provider or by the Bondholders, shall extend to 
or shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or shall impair any rights or remedies consequent 
thereon. 

SECTION 7.10 Credit Provider Directs Remedies Upon Event of Default.  
Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence and continuance 
of an Event of Default as defined herein, the Credit Provider then providing Credit Enhancement 
for any Series of Bonds shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement of all rights and 
remedies granted to the Holders of the Bonds secured by such Credit Enhancement or granted to 
the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds secured by such Credit Enhancement, 
provided that the Credit Provider's consent shall not be required as otherwise provided herein if 
such Credit Provider is in default of any of its payment obligations as set forth in the Credit 
Enhancement provided by such Credit Provider. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

THE TRUSTEE 

SECTION 8.01 Appointment, Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee. 

(A) Union Bank, N.A., is hereby appointed as Trustee under this Indenture and hereby 
accepts the trust imposed upon it as Trustee hereunder and to perform all the functions and duties 
of the Trustee hereunder, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture.  The 
Trustee shall, prior to an Event of Default, and after the curing of all Events of Default which 
may have occurred, perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this 
Indenture and no implied covenants shall be read into this Indenture against the Trustee.  The 
Trustee shall, during the existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured), exercise 

Page 332Page 332Page 332Page 332



 

 53 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

such of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and 
skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the 
conduct of his or her own affairs. 

(B) The Alameda CTC may remove the Trustee at any time unless an Event of 
Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, and shall remove the Trustee if at any time 
requested to do so by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by the Holders of 
not less than a majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the Bonds then Outstanding 
(or their attorneys duly authorized in writing) or if at any time the Trustee shall cease to be 
eligible in accordance with subsection (E) of this Section, or shall become incapable of acting, or 
shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver of the Trustee or its property shall be 
appointed, or any public officer shall take control or charge of the Trustee or of its property or 
affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation, in each case by giving 
written notice of such removal to the Trustee and each Credit Provider then providing a Credit 
Enhancement for any Series of Bonds, and thereupon shall appoint a successor Trustee by an 
instrument in writing. 

(C) The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice of such resignation to 
the Alameda CTC and each Credit Provider then insuring any Series of Bonds and by giving the 
Bondholders notice of such resignation by mail at the addresses shown on the registration books 
maintained by the Trustee.  Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Alameda CTC shall 
promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing. 

(D) Any removal or resignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee 
shall become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.  If no 
successor Trustee shall have been appointed and have accepted appointment within forty-five 
(45) days of giving notice of removal or notice of resignation as aforesaid, the resigning Trustee 
or any Bondholder (on behalf of himself and all other Bondholders) may petition any court of 
competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may 
thereupon, after such notice (if any) as it may deem proper, appoint such successor Trustee.  Any 
successor Trustee appointed under this Indenture, shall signify its acceptance of such 
appointment by executing and delivering to the Alameda CTC, each Credit Provider then 
insuring any Series of Bonds and to its predecessor Trustee a written acceptance thereof, and 
thereupon such successor Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become 
vested with all the moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts,  duties and obligations of 
such predecessor Trustee, with like effect as if originally named Trustee herein; but, nevertheless 
at the Request of the Alameda CTC or the request of the successor Trustee, such predecessor 
Trustee shall execute and deliver any and all instruments of conveyance or further assurance and 
do such other things as may reasonably be required for more fully and certainly vesting in and 
confirming to such successor Trustee all the right, title and interest of such predecessor Trustee 
in and to any property held by it under this Indenture and shall pay over, transfer, assign and 
deliver to the successor Trustee any money or other property subject to the trusts and conditions 
herein set forth.  Upon request of the successor Trustee, the Alameda CTC shall execute and 
deliver any and all instruments as may be reasonably required for more fully and certainly 
vesting in and confirming to such successor Trustee all such moneys, estates, properties, rights, 
powers, trusts, duties and obligations.  Upon acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee 

Page 333Page 333Page 333Page 333



 

 54 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

as provided in this subsection, the Alameda CTC shall give notice of the succession of such 
Trustee to the trusts hereunder by mail to the Bondholders at the addresses shown on the 
registration books maintained by the Trustee.  If the Alameda CTC fails to mail such notice 
within fifteen (15) days after acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee, the successor 
Trustee shall cause such notice to be mailed at the expense of the Alameda CTC. 

(E) Any Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section in succession to the 
Trustee shall be a trust company, or national banking association or bank having the powers of a 
trust company, having (or, if such trust company, national banking association or bank is a 
member of a bank holding company system, the related bank holding company shall have) a 
combined capital and surplus of at least one hundred million dollars ($100,000,000), and subject 
to supervision or examination by federal or state authority.  If such national banking association, 
bank, trust company or bank holding company publishes a report of condition at least annually, 
pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred 
to, then for the purpose of this subsection the combined capital and surplus of such national 
banking association, bank, or trust company shall be deemed to be its combined capital and 
surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so published.  In case at any time the 
Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of this subsection (E), the 
Trustee shall resign immediately in the manner and with the effect specified in this Section. 

SECTION 8.02 Accounting Records and Monthly Statements.  The Trustee 
shall keep proper books of record and accounts containing complete and correct entries of all 
transactions relating to the receipt, investment, disbursement, allocation and application of the 
moneys related to the Bonds, including proceeds of each Series of Bonds and moneys derived 
from, pledged to, or to be used to make payments on each Series of Bonds.  Such records shall 
specify the account or fund to which each deposit and each investment (or  portion thereof) held 
by the Trustee is allocated and shall set forth, in the case of each investment security, (a) its 
purchase price, (b) identifying information, including par amount, coupon rate, and payment 
dates, (c) the amount received at maturity or its sale price, as the case may be, including accrued 
interest, (d) the amounts and dates of any payments made with respect thereto, and (e) the dates 
of acquisition and disposition or maturity.  The Trustee shall furnish the Alameda CTC with a 
monthly statement which shall include a summary of all deposits and all investment transactions 
related to each Series of Bonds then Outstanding, such statement to be provided to the Alameda 
CTC no later than the tenth (10th) Business Day of the month following the month to which such 
statement relates, the first such monthly statement to be provided by the tenth (10th) Business 
Day of the month immediately following the month in which the Bonds are delivered by the 
Trustee pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture. 

SECTION 8.03 Merger or Consolidation.  Any company into which the Trustee 
may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting 
from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to 
which the Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, 
provided such company shall be eligible under subsection (E) of Section 8.01, shall be the 
successor to such Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act, 
anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding. 

Page 334Page 334Page 334Page 334



 

 55 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 8.04 Liability of Trustee. 

(A) The recitals of facts herein and in the Bonds contained shall be taken as 
statements of the Alameda CTC, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of 
the same (other than the certificate of authentication of the Trustee on each Bond), and makes no 
representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this Indenture, or of the Bonds, as to the 
sufficiency of the Revenues or the priority of the lien of this Indenture thereon, or as to the 
financial or technical feasibility of any portion of the Project and shall not incur any 
responsibility in respect of any such matter, other than in connection with the duties or 
obligations expressly set forth herein or in the Bonds which are assigned to or imposed upon it.  
The Trustee shall, however, be responsible for its representations contained in its certificate of 
authentication on the Bonds.  The Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the performance 
of its duties hereunder, except for its own negligence, willful misconduct or breach of the 
express terms and conditions hereof.  The Trustee and its directors, officers, employees or agents 
may in good faith buy, sell, own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds and may join in any action 
which any Holder of a Bond may be entitled to take, with like effect as if the Trustee was not the 
Trustee under this Indenture.  The Trustee may in good faith hold any other form of indebtedness 
of the Alameda CTC, own, accept or negotiate any drafts, bills of exchange, acceptances or 
obligations of the Alameda CTC and make disbursements for the Alameda CTC and enter into 
any commercial or business arrangement therewith, without limitation. 

(B) The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a 
responsible officer unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the 
pertinent facts.  The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform the 
duties required of it hereunder by or through attorneys, agents, or receivers, and shall be entitled 
to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trust and its duty hereunder. 

(C) The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be 
taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding relating to the time, 
method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or 
exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee under this Indenture. 

(D) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by this Indenture at the request, order or direction of any Credit Provider or any of 
the Bondholders pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture, including, without limitation, the 
provisions of Article VII hereof, unless such Credit Provider or such Bondholders shall have 
offered to the Trustee security or indemnity satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby; provided, however, that no security or 
indemnity shall be requested or required for the Trustee to deliver a notice to obtain funds under 
the Credit Enhancement delivered in connection with any Series of Bonds in order to pay 
principal of and interest on such Series of Bonds. 

(E) No provision of this Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own 
funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance or exercise of any of its duties 
hereunder or in the exercise of its rights or powers. 

Page 335Page 335Page 335Page 335



 

 56 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(F) The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of, and shall not be required 
to take any action with respect to, any Event of Default (other than an Event of Default described 
in subsections (A) or (B) of Section 7.01) or event that would, with the giving of notice, the 
passage of time or both, constitute an Event of Default, unless the Trustee shall have actual 
knowledge of such event or shall have been notified of such event by the Alameda CTC, any 
Credit Provider then providing a Credit Enhancement for a Series of Bonds or the Holders of 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the Bond Obligation Outstanding.  Without limiting the generality 
of the foregoing, the Trustee shall not be required to ascertain, monitor or inquire as to the 
performance or observance by the Alameda CTC of the terms, conditions, covenants or 
agreements set forth in Article VI hereof (including, without limitation, the covenants of the 
Alameda CTC set forth in Section 5.09 and 6.08 hereof, other than the covenants of the Alameda 
CTC to make payments with respect to the Bonds when due as set forth in Section 6.01 and to 
file with the Trustee when due, such reports and certifications as the Alameda CTC is required to 
file with the Trustee hereunder. 

(G) No permissive power, right or remedy conferred upon the Trustee hereunder shall 
be construed to impose a duty to exercise such power, right or remedy. 

(H) The Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters 
stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, 
direction, consent, order, requisition, bond, debenture, coupon or other paper or document but 
the Trustee, in its discretion, may make such further inquiry or investigation into such facts or 
matters as it may see fit, and, if the Trustee shall determine to make such further inquiry or 
investigation, it shall be entitled to examine the books, records and premises of the Alameda 
CTC, personally or by agent or attorney. 

(I) The Trustee shall not be responsible for: 

(1) the application or handling by the Alameda CTC of any Revenues or other 
moneys transferred to or pursuant to any Requisition or Request of the Alameda CTC in 
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof; 

(2) the application and handling by the Alameda CTC of any other fund or 
account designated to be held by the Alameda CTC hereunder; 

(3) any error or omission by the Alameda CTC in making any computation or 
giving any instruction pursuant to Section 5.09 and Section 6.08 and may rely 
conclusively on the Rebate Instructions and any computations or instructions furnished to 
it by the Alameda CTC in connection with the requirements of Section 5.09, Section 6.08 
and each Tax Certificate; 

(4) the construction, operation or maintenance of any portion of the Project by 
the Alameda CTC. 

(J) Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every provision of this Indenture 
relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or affording protection to the Trustee shall be 
subject to the provisions of this Article VIII. 

Page 336Page 336Page 336Page 336



 

 57 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(K) The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon instructions or directions pursuant to 
this Indenture sent by unsecured e-mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured 
electronic methods to which is attached the applicable Certificate, Statement, Request 
Requisition, Order, directions, instructions or notice, provided, however, that (i) for purposes of 
this Indenture, the applicable Certificate, Statement, Request, Requisition, Order, directions, 
instructions or notice attached to such e-mail shall constitute the applicable communication 
hereunder rather than the e-mail to which such Certificate, Statement, Request Requisition, 
Order, directions, instructions or notice is attached and (ii) the Trustee shall have received an 
incumbency certificate listing persons designated to give such instructions or directions and 
containing specimen signatures of such designated persons, which such incumbency certificate 
shall be amended and replaced whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.  If 
the Alameda CTC elects to give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile instructions (or instructions by a 
similar electronic method) and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such instructions, 
the Trustee's understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling.  The Trustee shall 
not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's 
reliance upon and compliance with such instructions notwithstanding such instructions conflict 
or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction.  The Alameda CTC agrees to assume all 
risks arising out of the use of such electronic methods to submit instructions and directions to the 
Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized instructions, 
and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties. 

(L) The Trustee shall not be considered in breach of or in default in its obligations 
hereunder or progress in respect thereto in the event of enforced delay ("unavoidable delay") in 
the performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond the Trustee's control 
and without its fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, Acts of God or of the public 
enemy or terrorists, acts of a government, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, 
strikes, freight embargoes, earthquakes, explosion, mob violence, riot, inability to procure or 
general sabotage or rationing of labor, equipment, facilities, sources of energy, material or 
supplies in the open market, malicious mischief, condemnation, and unusually severe weather or 
delays of suppliers or subcontractors due to such causes or any similar event and/or occurrences 
beyond the control of the Trustee. 

(M) The Trustee shall have no responsibility or liability with respect to any 
information, statements or recital in any official statement, offering memorandum or other 
disclosure material prepared or distributed with respect to the issuance of  Bonds, except for 
statements provided by the Trustee expressly for inclusion therein. 

SECTION 8.05 Right of Trustee to Rely on Documents and Opinions.  The 
Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent, order, 
certificate, report, opinion, note or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to 
have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.  The Trustee may consult with 
counsel, including, without limitation, counsel of or to the Alameda CTC, and may request an 
opinion of counsel, with regard to legal questions, including, without limitation, legal questions 
relating to proposed modifications or amendments of this Indenture, and the opinion of such 
counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or 

Page 337Page 337Page 337Page 337



 

 58 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

suffered by it hereunder in good faith and in accordance therewith unless it shall be proved that 
the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts. 

Whenever in the administration of the trusts imposed upon it by this Indenture the 
Trustee shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking 
or suffering any action hereunder, including, without limitation, matters relating to proposed 
modifications or amendments of this Indenture, the Trustee may request a Certificate of the 
Alameda CTC and such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically 
prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by such Certificate of the 
Alameda CTC, and such Certificate shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or 
suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Indenture in reliance upon such Certificate, but 
in its discretion the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept other evidence of such matter or may 
require such additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable.  The Trustee may also rely 
conclusively on any report, statement, requisition, facsimile transmission, electronic mail or 
certification of any certified public accountant, investment banker, financial consultant, or other 
expert selected by the Alameda CTC or selected by the Trustee with due care in connection with 
matters required to be proven or ascertained in connection with its administration of the trusts 
created hereby. 

SECTION 8.06 Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee.  The Alameda 
CTC covenants to pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall be entitled to, 
reasonable compensation for all services rendered by it in the exercise and performance of any of 
the powers and duties hereunder of the Trustee, and the Alameda CTC will pay or reimburse the 
Trustee upon its request for all expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the 
Trustee in accordance with any of the provisions of this Indenture (including the reasonable 
compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and of all persons not regularly 
in its employ) except any such expense, disbursement or advance as may arise from its 
negligence, default or willful misconduct.  The Alameda CTC, to the extent permitted by law, 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Trustee against any loss, damages, liability or 
expense incurred without negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, arising out of or in 
connection with the acceptance or administration of the trusts created hereby, including costs and 
expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending itself against any claim or liability in 
connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers hereunder.  The rights of the 
Trustee and the obligations of the Alameda CTC under this Section 8.06 shall survive the 
discharge of the Bonds and this Indenture and the resignation or removal of the Trustee. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THIS INDENTURE 

SECTION 9.01 Amendments Permitted. 

(A) (1) This Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Alameda CTC, the 
Holders of the Bonds and the Trustee may be modified or amended from time to time and at any 
time by a Supplemental Indenture, which the Alameda CTC and the Trustee may enter into when 
the written consent of the Holders of a majority in aggregate amount of Bond Obligation of the 

Page 338Page 338Page 338Page 338



 

 59 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Bonds (or, if such Supplemental Indenture is only applicable to a Series of Bonds, such Series of 
Bonds) then Outstanding shall have been filed with the Trustee; provided that if such 
modification or amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so long as any Bonds of any 
particular maturity remain Outstanding, the consent of the Holders of such Bonds shall not be 
required and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding for the purpose of any 
calculation of Bonds Outstanding under this Section.  The Credit Provider for a Series of Bonds 
shall be deemed to be the Holder of such Series of Bonds for purposes of consenting to 
modifications or amendments pursuant to this Section 9.01(A). 

(2) No such modification or amendment shall (a) extend the maturity of any 
Bond, or reduce the amount of principal thereof, or extend the time of payment or reduce the 
amount of any Mandatory Sinking Account Payment provided for the payment of any Bond, or 
reduce the rate of interest thereon, or extend the time of payment of interest thereon, or reduce 
any premium payable upon the redemption thereof, without the consent of the Holder of each 
Bond so affected, or (b) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Bond Obligation the consent of the 
Holders of which is required to effect any such  modification or amendment, or permit the 
creation of any lien on the Revenues and other assets pledged under this Indenture prior to or on 
a parity with the lien created by this Indenture, or deprive the Holders of the Bonds of the lien 
created by this Indenture on such Revenues and other assets (in each case, except as expressly 
provided in this Indenture), without the consent of the Holders of all of the Bonds then 
Outstanding.  It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Bondholders to approve the 
particular form of any Supplemental Indenture, but it shall be sufficient if such consent shall 
approve the substance thereof.  Promptly after the execution and delivery by the Alameda CTC 
and the Trustee of any Supplemental Indenture pursuant to this Section 9.01(A), the Trustee shall 
mail a notice, setting forth in general terms the substance of such Supplemental Indenture to the 
Holders of the Bonds at the addresses shown on the registration books of the Trustee.  Any 
failure to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not, however, in any way impair or affect 
the validity of any such Supplemental Indenture. 

(B) This Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Alameda CTC, of the Trustee 
and of the Holders of the Bonds may also be modified or amended from time to time and at any 
time by a Supplemental Indenture, which the Alameda CTC and the Trustee may enter into 
without the consent of any Bondholders, but only to the extent permitted by Act and only for any 
one or more of the following purposes: 

(1) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Alameda CTC set forth in 
this Indenture other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, to pledge or 
assign additional security for the Bonds (or any portion thereof), or to surrender any right 
or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Alameda CTC; 

(2) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, 
inconsistency or omission, or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained 
in this Indenture, or in regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture, as the 
Alameda CTC may deem necessary or desirable, and which shall not materially and 
adversely affect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds; 

Page 339Page 339Page 339Page 339



 

 60 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

(3) to modify, amend or supplement this Indenture in such manner as to 
permit the qualification hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any 
similar federal statute hereafter in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and 
provisions as may be permitted by said act or similar federal statute, and which shall not 
materially and adversely affect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds; 

(4) to provide for the issuance of an additional Series of Bonds subsequent to 
the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Article III hereof; 

(5) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable 
to provide for the issuance or incurrence, as applicable, of Capital Appreciation Bonds, 
Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Variable Rate Indebtedness, with such 
interest rate, payment, maturity and other terms as the Alameda CTC may deem 
desirable; subject to the provisions of Section 3.02, Section 3.03 and Section 3.05; 

(6) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable 
to provide for change from one interest rate mode to another in connection with any 
Series of Bonds; 

(7) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable 
to accommodate Credit Enhancements, Liquidity Facilities and Reserve Facilities; 

(8) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable 
to provide for the appointment of an auction agent, a broker-dealer, a calculation agent, 
an index agent, a remarketing agent, a tender agent and/or a paying agent in connection 
with any Series of Bonds; 

(9) to modify the auction provisions applicable to any Series of Bonds in 
accordance with the terms and provisions set forth in the Supplemental Indenture 
establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds; 

(10) to provide for any additional covenants or agreements necessary to 
maintain the tax-exempt status of interest on any Series of Bonds; 

(11) if the Alameda CTC agrees in a Supplemental Indenture to maintain the 
exclusion of interest on a Series of Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal 
income taxation, to make such provisions as are necessary or appropriate to ensure such 
exclusion; 

(12) to provide for the issuance of Bonds in book-entry form or bearer form 
and/or to modify or eliminate the book-entry registration system for any Series of Bonds; 

(13) to modify, alter, amend or supplement this Indenture in any other respect, 
including amendments that would otherwise be described in Section 9.01(A), if the 
effective date of such amendments is a date on which all Bonds affected thereby are 
subject to mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture or if 
notice of the proposed amendments is given to Holders of the affected Bonds at least 

Page 340Page 340Page 340Page 340



 

 61 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

thirty (30) days before the proposed effective date of such amendments and, on or before 
such effective date, such Holders have the right to demand purchase of their Bonds 
pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture or if all Bonds affected thereby are in an 
auction mode and a successful auction is held following notice of such amendment; and 

(14) for any other purpose that does not materially and adversely affect the 
interests of the Holders of the Bonds. 

Any Supplemental Indenture entered into pursuant to this Section shall be deemed not to 
materially adversely affect the interest of the Holders so long as (i) all Bonds are secured by a 
Credit Enhancement and (ii) each Credit Provider shall have given its written consent to such 
Supplemental Indenture as provided in Section 9.01(A).  The Trustee may in its discretion, but 
shall not be obligated to, enter into any such Supplemental Indenture authorized by subsections 
(A) or (B) of this Section which materially adversely affects the Trustee's own rights, duties or 
immunities under this Indenture or otherwise. 

SECTION 9.02 Effect of Supplemental Indenture.  From and after the time any 
Supplemental Indenture becomes effective pursuant to this Article, this Indenture shall be 
deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, duties 
and obligations under this Indenture of the Alameda CTC, the Trustee and all Holders of Bonds 
Outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder subject in all 
respects to such modification and amendment, and all the terms and conditions of any such 
Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to be part of the terms and conditions of this Indenture 
for any and all purposes. 

SECTION 9.03 Endorsement of Bonds; Preparation of New Bonds.  Bonds 
delivered after any Supplemental Indenture becomes effective pursuant to this Article may, and 
if the Trustee so determines shall, bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved 
by the Alameda CTC and the Trustee as to any modification or amendment provided for in such 
Supplemental Indenture, and, in that case, upon demand of the Holder of any Bond Outstanding 
at the time of such execution and presentation of his Bond for such purpose at the Corporate 
Trust Office or at such additional offices as the Trustee may select and designate for that 
purpose, a suitable notation shall be made on such Bond.  If the Supplemental Indenture shall so 
provide, new Bonds so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Alameda CTC and the 
Trustee, to any modification or amendment contained in such Supplemental Indenture, shall be 
prepared and executed by the Alameda CTC and authenticated by the Trustee, and upon demand 
of the Holders of any Bonds then Outstanding shall be exchanged at the Corporate Trust Office, 
without cost to any Bondholder, for Bonds then Outstanding, upon surrender for cancellation of 
such Bonds, in equal aggregate principal amounts of the same Series, tenor and maturity. 

SECTION 9.04 Amendment of Particular Bonds.  The provisions of this Article 
shall not prevent any Bondholder from accepting any amendment as to the particular Bonds held 
by him, provided that due notation thereof is made on such Bonds. 

Page 341Page 341Page 341Page 341



 

 62 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

ARTICLE X 
 

DEFEASANCE 

SECTION 10.01 Discharge of Indenture.  Bonds of any Series or a portion thereof 
may be paid by the Alameda CTC in any of the following ways: 

(A) by paying or causing to be paid the Bond Obligations of and interest on such 
Outstanding Bonds, as and when they become due and payable; 

(B) by depositing with the Trustee, an escrow agent or other fiduciary, in trust, at or 
before maturity, money or securities in the necessary amount (as provided in Section 10.03) to 
pay or redeem such Outstanding Bonds; or 

(C) by delivering to the Trustee, for cancellation by it, such Outstanding Bonds. 

If the Alameda CTC shall pay all Series for which any Bonds are Outstanding and also 
pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Alameda CTC, including any 
amounts payable under any Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense 
Obligations, then and in that case, at the election of the Alameda CTC (evidenced by a 
Certificate of the Alameda CTC, filed with the Trustee, signifying the intention of the Alameda 
CTC to discharge all such indebtedness and this Indenture), and notwithstanding that any Bonds 
shall not have been surrendered for payment, this Indenture and the pledge of Sales Tax 
Revenues and other assets made under this Indenture and all covenants, agreements and other 
obligations of the Alameda CTC under this Indenture shall cease, terminate, become void and be 
completely discharged and satisfied.  In such event, upon Request of the Alameda CTC, the 
Trustee shall cause an accounting for such period or periods as may be requested by the Alameda 
CTC to be prepared and filed with the Alameda CTC and shall execute and deliver to the 
Alameda CTC all such instruments as may be necessary or desirable to evidence such discharge 
and satisfaction, and the Trustee shall pay over, transfer, assign or deliver to the Alameda CTC 
all moneys or securities or other property held by it pursuant to this Indenture which, as 
evidenced by a verification report, upon which the Trustee may conclusively rely, from an 
independent certified public accountant, a firm of independent certified public accountants or 
other independent consulting firm, are not required for the payment or redemption of Bonds not 
theretofore surrendered for such payment or redemption. 

SECTION 10.02 Discharge of Liability on Bonds.  Upon the deposit with the 
Trustee, escrow agent or other fiduciary, in trust, at or before maturity, of money or securities in 
the necessary amount (as provided in Section 10.03) to pay or redeem any Outstanding Bond 
(whether upon or prior to its maturity or the redemption date of such Bond), provided that, if 
such Bond is to be redeemed prior to maturity, notice of such redemption shall have been given 
as in Article IV provided or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the 
giving of such notice, then all liability of the Alameda CTC in respect of such Bond shall cease, 
terminate and be completely discharged, provided that the Holder thereof shall thereafter be 
entitled to the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, and 

Page 342Page 342Page 342Page 342



 

 63 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

the Alameda CTC shall remain liable for such payment, but only out of such money or securities 
deposited with the Trustee as aforesaid for their payment. 

If the Bonds being discharged are Variable Rate Indebtedness, (i) the Bonds shall be 
redeemed at the first possible redemption date or purchase date applicable to such Bonds and to 
the extent the rate of interest payable on such Bonds prior to such redemption or purchase date is 
not known, such rate of interest shall be assumed to be the maximum rate payable thereon or (ii) 
the Trustee shall receive a confirmation from the Rating Agency then rating the Bonds that the 
defeasance will not result in the reduction or withdrawal of the then-current ratings on the Bonds. 

The Alameda CTC may at any time surrender to the Trustee for cancellation by it any 
Bonds previously issued and delivered, which the Alameda CTC may have acquired in any 
manner whatsoever, and such Bonds, upon such surrender and cancellation, shall be deemed to 
be paid and retired. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 10.02 to the contrary, if the principal of or 
interest on a Series of Bonds shall be paid by a Credit Provider pursuant to the Credit 
Enhancement issued in connection with such Series of Bonds, the obligations of the Alameda 
CTC shall not be deemed to be satisfied or considered paid by the Alameda CTC by virtue of 
such payments, and the right, title and interest of the Alameda CTC herein and the obligations of 
the Alameda CTC hereunder shall not be discharged and shall continue to exist and to run to the 
benefit of such Credit Provider, and such Credit Provider shall be subrogated to the rights of the 
Holders of the Bonds of such Series. 

SECTION 10.03 Deposit of Money or Securities.  Whenever in this Indenture it is 
provided or permitted that there be deposited with or held in trust money or securities in the 
necessary amount to pay or redeem any Bonds, the money or securities to be deposited or held 
may include money or securities held by the Trustee in the funds and accounts established 
pursuant to this Indenture and shall be: 

(A) lawful money of the United States of America in an amount equal to the principal 
amount of such Bonds and all unpaid interest thereon to maturity, except that, in the case of 
Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to maturity and in respect of which notice of such 
redemption shall have been given as in Article IV provided or provision satisfactory to the 
Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice, the amount to be deposited or held 
shall be the principal amount or Redemption Price of such Bonds and all unpaid interest thereon 
to the redemption date; or 

(B) Defeasance Securities the principal of and interest on which when due will, in the 
opinion of an independent certified public accountant, a firm of independent certified public 
accountants or other independent consulting firm delivered to the Trustee (as confirmed by a 
verification report upon which verification report the Trustee may conclusively rely), provide 
money sufficient to pay the principal or Redemption Price of and all unpaid interest to maturity, 
or to the redemption date, as the case may be, on the Bonds to be paid or redeemed, as such 
principal or Redemption Price and interest become due, provided that, in the case of Bonds 
which are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall have 

Page 343Page 343Page 343Page 343



 

 64 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

been given as in Article IV provided or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been 
made for the giving of such notice; provided, in each case, that the Trustee shall have been 
irrevocably instructed (by the terms of this Indenture or by Request of the Alameda CTC) to 
apply such money to the payment of such principal or Redemption Price and interest with respect 
to such Bonds. 

SECTION 10.04 Payment of Bonds After Discharge of Indenture.  Any moneys 
held by the Trustee in trust for the payment of the principal, Redemption Price, or interest on any 
Bond and remaining unclaimed for one (1) year after such principal, Redemption Price, or 
interest has become due and payable (whether at maturity or upon call for redemption as 
provided in this Indenture), if such moneys were so held at such date, or one (1) year after the 
date of deposit of such principal, Redemption Price or interest on any Bond if such moneys were 
deposited after the date when such Bond became due and payable, shall be repaid to the Alameda 
CTC free from the trusts created by this Indenture, and all liability of the Trustee with respect to 
such moneys shall thereupon cease; provided, however, that before the repayment of such 
moneys to the Alameda CTC as aforesaid, the Trustee may (at the cost of the Alameda CTC) 
first mail to the Holders of any Bonds remaining unpaid at the addresses shown on the 
registration books maintained by the Trustee a notice, in such form as may be deemed 
appropriate by the Trustee, with respect to the Bonds so payable and not presented and with 
respect to the provisions relating to the repayment to the Alameda CTC of the moneys held for 
the payment thereof.  All moneys held by or on behalf of the Trustee for the payment of principal 
or Accreted Value of or interest or premium on Bonds, whether at redemption or maturity, shall 
be held in trust for the account of the Holders thereof and the Trustee shall not be required to pay 
Holders any interest on, or be liable to the Holders or any other person (other than the Alameda 
CTC) for interest earned on, moneys so held.  Any interest earned thereon shall belong to the 
Alameda CTC and shall be deposited upon receipt by the Trustee into the Revenue Fund. 

ARTICLE XI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 11.01 Liability of Alameda CTC Limited to Sales Tax Revenues.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Indenture or in the Bonds contained, the Alameda CTC shall 
not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source other than the Sales Tax 
Revenues and other assets pledged hereunder for any of the purposes in this Indenture 
mentioned, whether for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the 
Bonds or for any other purpose of this Indenture. 

SECTION 11.02 Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to 
Predecessor.  Whenever in this Indenture either the Alameda CTC or the Trustee is named or 
referred to, such reference shall be deemed to include the successors or assigns thereof, and all 
the covenants and agreements in this Indenture contained by or on behalf of the Alameda CTC or 
the Trustee shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns thereof 
whether so expressed or not. 

Page 344Page 344Page 344Page 344



 

 65 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 11.03 Limitation of Rights.  Nothing in this Indenture or in the Bonds 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to give to any Person other than the 
Alameda CTC, the Trustee, each Credit Provider, each Liquidity Provider, each Reserve Facility 
Provider, the Holders of the Bonds and the holders of any Parity Obligations, including each 
Counterparty, and the holders of Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations, any 
legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Indenture or any covenant, 
condition or provision therein or herein contained; and all such covenants, conditions and 
provisions are and shall be held to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Alameda CTC, the 
Trustee, each Credit Provider, each Liquidity Provider, each Reserve Facility Provider, the 
Holders of the Bonds, the holders of any Parity Obligations, including each Counterparty and the 
holders of Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations. Each Credit Provider and 
each Liquidity Provider is a third party beneficiary of this Indenture. 

SECTION 11.04 Waiver of Notice.  Whenever in this Indenture the giving of notice 
by mail or otherwise is required, the giving of such notice may be waived in writing by the 
person entitled to receive such notice and in any such case the giving or receipt of such notice 
shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action taken in reliance upon such 
waiver. 

SECTION 11.05 Destruction or Delivery of Canceled Bonds.  Whenever in this 
Indenture provision is made for the cancellation by the Trustee and the delivery to the Alameda 
CTC of any Bonds, the Trustee may, in its sole discretion, in lieu of such cancellation and 
delivery, destroy such Bonds, and deliver a certificate of such destruction to the Alameda CTC. 

SECTION 11.06 Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the 
provisions contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds shall for any reason be held to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or provisions shall be deemed 
severable from the remaining provisions contained in this Indenture and such invalidity, 
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Indenture, and this 
Indenture shall be construed as if such invalid or illegal or unenforceable provision had never 
been contained herein.  The Alameda CTC hereby declares that it would have adopted this 
Indenture and each and every other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase hereof and 
authorized the issuance of the Bonds pursuant thereto irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases of this Indenture may be held illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable. 

SECTION 11.07 Notice to Alameda CTC and Trustee.  Any notice to or demand 
may be served or presented, and such demand may be made and shall be deemed to have been 
sufficiently given or served for all purposes by being deposited, first-class mail postage prepaid, 
in a post office letter box, addressed, as the case may be, to the parties as listed below.  Any such 
communication may also be sent by Electronic Means, including, without limitation, email, 
receipt of which shall be confirmed. 

Trustee: Union Bank, N.A. 
 350 California Street, 11th Floor 
 San Francisco, California 94104 
 Attention:   Corporate Trust 
 Telephone: (415) 273-2514 
  

Page 345Page 345Page 345Page 345



 

 66 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

Alameda CTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission 
 1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
 Oakland, California 92401 
 Attention:   Director of Finance 
 Telephone: (510) 208-7422  
 

SECTION 11.08 Notices to Rating Agencies.  The Trustee shall provide notice of  
(i) a change in Trustee, (ii) amendment of this Indenture, (iii) optional redemption or defeasance 
of any Bonds, (iv) a change in Credit Provider with respect to any Series of Bonds, and (v) 
provision, expiration, termination, extension or substitution of any Credit Enhancement to each 
Rating Agency then maintaining a rating on a Series of Bonds at the request of the Alameda 
CTC, each such notice to be delivered to the applicable address listed below or to such other 
address as a Rating Agency shall provide to the Alameda CTC for delivery of notices from time 
to time: 

Rating Agencies: 
 

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services  
Public Finance Department 
55 Water Street, 38th Floor  
New York, New York  10041 
Telephone:  (212) 438-2000  
Fax:   (212) 438-2157 
pubfin_structured@standardandpoors.com 
 
 
Moody's Investors Service 
7 World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich Street 
New York, New York 10007 
 
Fitch Ratings 
One State Street Plaza 
New York, New York  10004 
Telephone: (212) 908-0500 
Fax:  (212) 480-4421 
pubfinserv@fitchratings.com 

 
SECTION 11.09 Evidence of Rights of Bondholders.  Any request, consent or 

other instrument required or permitted by this indenture to be signed and executed by 
Bondholders may be in any number of concurrent instruments of substantially similar tenor and 
shall be signed or executed by such Bondholders in person or by an agent or agents duly 
appointed in writing.  Proof of the execution of any such request, consent or other instrument or 
of a writing appointing any such agent, or the holding by any Person of Bonds transferable by 
delivery, shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Indenture and shall be conclusive in favor of 
the Trustee and of the Alameda CTC if made in the manner provided in this Section. 

Page 346Page 346Page 346Page 346



 

 67 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such request, consent or other 
instrument or writing may be proved by the certificate of any notary public or other officer of 
any jurisdiction, authorized by the laws thereof to take acknowledgments of deeds, certifying 
that the person signing such request, consent or other instrument acknowledged to him the 
execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such execution duly sworn to before such 
notary public or other officer. 

The ownership of Bonds shall be proved by the bond registration books held by the 
Trustee. The Trustee may establish a record date as of which to measure consent of the Holders 
in order to determine whether the requisite consents are received. 

Any request, consent, or other instrument or writing of the Holder of any Bond shall bind 
every future Holder of the same Bond and the Holder of every Bond issued in exchange therefor 
or in lieu thereof, in respect of anything done or suffered to be done by the Trustee or the 
Alameda CTC in accordance therewith or reliance thereon. 

SECTION 11.10 Disqualified Bonds.  In determining whether the Holders of the 
requisite aggregate Bond Obligation of Bonds have concurred in any demand, request, direction, 
consent or waiver under this Indenture, Bonds that are owned or held by or for the account of the 
Alameda CTC, or by any other obligor on the Bonds, or by any person directly or indirectly 
controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, the Alameda CTC 
or any other obligor on the Bonds, shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding for the 
purpose of any such determination. Bonds so owned which have been pledged in good faith may 
be regarded as Outstanding for the purposes of this Section if the pledgee shall establish to the 
satisfaction of the Trustee the pledgee's right to vote such Bonds and that the pledgee is not a 
person directly or indirectly controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, the 
Alameda CTC. In case of a dispute as to such right, any decision by the Trustee taken upon the 
advice of counsel shall be full protection to the Trustee.  Upon request of the Trustee, the 
Alameda CTC shall specify in a certificate to the Trustee those Bonds disqualified pursuant to 
this Section and the Trustee may conclusively rely on such certificate. 

SECTION 11.11 Money Held for Particular Bonds.  The money held by the 
Trustee for the payment of the interest, principal, Redemption Price or purchase price due on any 
date with respect to particular Bonds (or portions of Bonds in the case of registered Bonds 
redeemed in part only) shall, on and after such date and pending such payment, be set aside on its 
books and held in trust by it for the Holders of the Bonds entitled thereto, subject, however, to 
the provisions of Section 10.04. 

SECTION 11.12 Funds and Accounts.  Any fund required by this Indenture to be 
established and maintained by the Trustee may be established and maintained in the accounting 
records of the Trustee, either as a fund or an account, and may, for the purposes or statements 
with respect thereto, be treated either as a fund or as an account; but all such records with respect 
to all such funds shall at all times be maintained in accordance with customary standards of the 
corporate trust industry, to the extent practicable, and with due regard for the protection of the 
security of the Bonds and the rights of every holder thereof. 

Page 347Page 347Page 347Page 347



 

 68 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 11.13 Limitations on Rights of Credit Providers, Liquidity Providers, 
Reserve Facility Providers.  A Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of 
a Series of Bonds may provide that any Credit Provider, Liquidity Provider or Reserve Facility 
Provider may exercise any right under this Indenture given to the Holders of the Bonds to which 
such Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or Reserve Facility relates.  All provisions under 
this Indenture authorizing the exercise of rights by a Credit Provider, a Liquidity Provider or a 
Reserve Facility Provider with respect to consents, approvals, directions, waivers, appointments, 
requests or other actions, shall be deemed not to require or permit such consents, approvals, 
directions, waivers, appointments, requests or other actions and shall be read as if the Credit 
Provider, Liquidity Provider or Reserve Facility Provider were not mentioned therein (i) during 
any period in which there is a default by such Credit Provider, Liquidity Provider or Reserve 
Facility Provider under the applicable Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or Reserve Facility 
or (ii) after the applicable Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or Reserve Facility shall at any 
time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the provider thereof, or shall be declared to 
be null and void by final, non-appealable judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, or after 
the Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or Reserve Facility has been rescinded, repudiated by 
the provider thereof or terminated, or after a receiver, conservator or liquidator has been 
appointed for the provider thereof.  All provisions relating to the rights of a Credit Provider, 
Liquidity Provider or Reserve Facility Provider shall be of no further force and effect if all 
amounts owing to such Credit Provider, Liquidity Provider or Reserve Facility Provider shall 
have been paid pursuant to the terms of the applicable Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or 
Reserve Facility and such Credit Enhancement, Liquidity Facility or Reserve Facility shall no 
longer be in effect. 

SECTION 11.14 Article and Section Headings and References.  The headings or 
titles of the several Articles and Sections hereof, and any table of contents appended to copies 
hereof, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction 
or effect of this Indenture. 

All references herein to "Articles, "Sections" and other subdivisions are to the 
corresponding Articles, Sections or subdivisions of this Indenture; the words "herein," "hereof," 
"hereby," "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to this Indenture as a whole and 
not to any particular Article, Section or subdivision hereof; and words of the masculine gender 
shall mean and include words of the feminine and neuter genders. 

SECTION 11.15 Waiver of Personal Liability.  No Commission member, officer, 
agent or employee of the Alameda CTC or the Trustee shall be individually or personally liable 
for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the Bonds or be subject to 
any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof; but nothing herein 
contained shall relieve any such Commission member, officer, agent or employee of the 
Alameda CTC or the Trustee from the performance of any official duty provided by law or by 
this Indenture. 

SECTION 11.16 Governing Law.  This Indenture shall be construed and governed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Page 348Page 348Page 348Page 348



 

 69 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

SECTION 11.17 Business Day.  Except as specifically set forth in this Indenture or 
a Supplemental Indenture, transfers which would otherwise become due on any day which is not 
a Business Day shall become due or shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the 
same effect as if made on such prior date. 

SECTION 11.18 Effective Date of Indenture.  This Indenture shall take effect 
upon its execution and delivery. 

SECTION 11.19 Execution in Counterparts.  This Indenture may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. 

Page 349Page 349Page 349Page 349



 

 S-1 OHSUSA:755042714.4  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Indenture by their 
officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY 
  TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

By:  
Executive Director 

UNION BANK, N.A.,  
  as Trustee 

By:  
Authorized Officer 

Page 350Page 350Page 350Page 350



 

 
 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE 
 

between 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

and 
 

UNION BANK, N.A., 
as Trustee 

 
 

________________________ 
 

Dated as of February 1, 2014 
________________________ 

 
 
 

Relating to 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 

(LIMITED TAX BONDS) 
SERIES 2014 

 
 
 

(Supplementing the Indenture  
Dated as of February 1, 2014) 

 
 
 

10.1C

Page 351Page 351Page 351Page 351



Table of Contents 
Page 

 

 -i-  
 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

ARTICLE XII DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................. 2 

Section 12.01. Definitions............................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE XIII FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS ......................................................... 2 

Section 13.01. Findings and Determinations ............................................................... 2 

Section 13.02. Recital in Bonds ................................................................................... 2 

Section 13.03. Effect of Findings and Recital ............................................................. 3 

ARTICLE XIV TERMS OF SERIES 2014 BONDS ................................................................ 3 

Section 14.01. Authorization and Terms of Series 2014 Bonds; Payment 
  Provisions Applicable to the Series 2014 Bonds ............................... 3 

Section 14.02. Form of Series 2014 Bonds.................................................................. 4 

Section 14.03. Issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds....................................................... 4 

Section 14.04. Application of Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds .............................. 4 

Section 14.05. Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Costs of 
  Issuance Fund..................................................................................... 4 

Section 14.06. Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Project Fund ......... 5 

Section 14.07. Investment of Funds; Investment Earnings.......................................... 5 

Section 14.08. Series 2014 Bonds Not Subject to Optional Redemption .................... 5 

ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ................................................................ 5 

Section 15.01. Terms of Series 2014 Bonds Subject to the Indenture; 
  Ratification of the Indenture .............................................................. 5 

Section 15.02. Effective Date of Supplemental Indenture ........................................... 6 

Section 15.03. Execution in Counterparts.................................................................... 6 

EXECUTION ....................................................................................................................... S-1 

 
Schedule I Description of Series 2014 Project 

Exhibit A Form of Series 2014 Bond 
Exhibit B Form of Requisition – Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund 
Exhibit C Form of Requisition – Series 2014 Project Fund 

Page 352Page 352Page 352Page 352



 

 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE 

THIS FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of February 1, 2014 
(this "Supplemental Indenture"), between the ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION, a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws 
of the State of California (the "Alameda CTC") and UNION BANK, N.A., a national banking 
association duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of 
America, as trustee (the "Trustee"): 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, this Supplemental Indenture is supplemental to the Indenture, dated as of 
February 1, 2014 (as more fully defined in Section 1.02 hereof, the "Indenture"), between the 
Alameda CTC and the Trustee, and all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein 
shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Indenture; 

WHEREAS, the Indenture provides that the Alameda CTC may issue Bonds from time to 
time as authorized by a Supplemental Indenture, which Bonds shall be payable from Revenues 
and from such other sources as may be specified with respect to a particular Series of Bonds in 
the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series of Bonds; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Act and pursuant to Article III of the Indenture, the 
Alameda CTC has determined to issue the Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales 
Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (the "Series 2014 Bonds"), in the 
aggregate principal amount of $[Par Amount], in order to finance a portion of the costs of the 
Project (such portion of the Project being more fully described in Schedule I hereto and being 
referred to therein as the "Series 2014 Project"); 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds shall also be applied to fund interest 
and to pay Costs of Issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 
Supplemental Indenture and the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant hereto by resolution 
duly passed and adopted by a two-thirds vote of the governing body of the Alameda CTC as 
required by Section 180252 of the Act; 

WHEREAS, the Alameda CTC hereby determines that the provisions of the Indenture 
relating to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds have been complied with; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened 
and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution and the entering 
into of this Supplemental Indenture do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular 
and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the parties hereto are now duly 
authorized to execute and enter into this Supplemental Indenture; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

Page 353Page 353Page 353Page 353



 

 2 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 12.01. Definitions. 

(A) Definitions.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein to the contrary or 
unless the context otherwise requires, all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein 
shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in Section 1.02 of the Indenture. 

(B) Additional Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the following 
terms shall, for all purposes of the Series 2014 Bonds and this Supplemental Indenture, have the 
following meanings: 

Authorized Denomination means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 

Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant 
to Section 14.05 hereof. 

Series 2014 Interest Payment Date means each March 1 and September 1, commencing 
September 1, 2014. 

Series 2014 Project Fund means the fund by that name established pursuant to 
Section 14.06 hereof. 

Series 2014 Record Date means the fifteenth day of the calendar month prior to the 
calendar month in which a Series 2014 Interest Payment Date occurs, whether or not such day is 
a Business Day. 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS 

Section 13.01. Findings and Determinations.  The Alameda CTC hereby finds and 
determines that the Series 2014 Bonds shall be issued pursuant to Section 3.01 and upon the 
issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, any and all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to 
happen and to be performed, precedent to and in the issuance thereof, will exist, will have 
happened and will have been performed, in due time, form and manner, as required by the 
Constitution and statutes of the State. 

Section 13.02. Recital in Bonds.  There shall be included in each of the definitive 
Series 2014 Bonds, and in each of the temporary Series 2014 Bonds, if any are issued, a 
certification and recital to the effect that any and all acts, conditions and things required to exist, 
to happen and to be performed, precedent to and in the incurring of the indebtedness evidenced 
by that Series 2014 Bond, and in the issuing of that Series 2014 Bond, exist, have happened and 
have been performed in due time, form and manner, as required by the Constitution and statutes 
of the State and that said Series 2014 Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Alameda 

Page 354Page 354Page 354Page 354



 

 3 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

CTC payable out of Revenues, is within every debt and other limit prescribed by the Constitution 
and statutes of the State and is not in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under 
the Indenture, the Ordinance or the Act. 

Section 13.03. Effect of Findings and Recital.  From and after the issuance of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, the findings and determinations herein shall be conclusive evidence of the 
existence of the facts so found and determined in any action or proceeding in any court in which 
the validity of the Series 2014 Bonds is at issue. 

ARTICLE XIV 
 

TERMS OF SERIES 2014 BONDS 

Section 14.01. Authorization and Terms of Series 2014 Bonds; Payment 
Provisions Applicable to the Series 2014 Bonds.  (A) Pursuant to the provisions of this 
Indenture and the Act, an initial Series of Bonds entitled to the benefit, protection and security of 
such provisions is hereby authorized in the aggregate principal amount of $[Par Amount], which 
Series of Bonds shall be Current Interest Bonds.  Such Bonds shall be designated as, and shall be 
distinguished from the Bonds of all other Series by the title, "Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014." 

(B) The Series 2014 Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, in 
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (each, an "Authorized Denomination") 
and shall be initially registered in the name of "Cede & Co.," as nominee of the Securities 
Depository.  The Series 2014 Bonds shall be numbered in consecutive numerical order 
commencing with R-1.  Registered ownership of the Series 2014 Bonds, or any portion thereof, 
may not thereafter be transferred except as set forth in Section 2.10, or in the event the use of a 
Securities Depository is discontinued, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 2.05. 

The Series 2014 Bonds shall be dated as of their date of delivery, shall bear interest from 
their date of delivery at the following rates per annum and shall mature on March 1 in the 
following years in the following amounts: 

Maturity Date 
(March 1) Principal Amount Interest Rate 

   
2017 $    ________ _.__% 
2018   
2019   
2020   
2021   
2022   

 
Interest on the Series 2014 Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year 

consisting of twelve 30-day months and shall be payable on September 1, 2014 and semiannually 
thereafter on March 1 and September 1 of each year (each, a "Series 2014 Interest Payment 
Date") by check mailed by first-class mail on such Series 2014 Interest Payment Date to the 
Holder thereof as of the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the calendar month 
immediately preceding the month in which such Series 2014 Interest Payment Date occurs (each, 

Page 355Page 355Page 355Page 355



 

 4 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

a "Series 2014 Record Date") or, upon the written request of any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Series 2014 Bonds who has provided the Trustee with wire 
transfer instructions, by wire transfer to an account within the United States on each Series 2014 
Interest Payment Date, to the Holder thereof as of the close of business on the Series 2014 
Record Date. 

Principal on the Series 2014 Bonds shall be payable when due upon presentation and 
surrender thereof at the designated office of the Trustee in lawful money of the United States of 
America. 

Section 14.02. Form of Series 2014 Bonds.  The Series 2014 Bonds and the 
certificate of authentication to be executed thereon shall be in substantially such form as is set 
forth in Exhibit A to this Supplemental Indenture.  The Series 2014 Bond numbers, maturity 
dates and interest rates shall be inserted therein in conformity with Section 14.01. 

Section 14.03. Issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  At any time after the execution 
and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture, the Alameda CTC may execute and, upon the Order 
of the Alameda CTC, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver the Series 2014 Bonds in an 
aggregate principal amount of $[Par Amount] upon the Order of the Alameda CTC. 

Section 14.04. Application of Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds.  The proceeds of 
the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, $________, comprised of the aggregate principal amount of 
the Series 2014 Bonds, $[Par Amount], plus a [net] original issue premium of $________, less an 
underwriters' discount of $________, shall be deposited with the Trustee and shall be held in 
trust and set aside or transferred by the Trustee as follows: 

(A) The Trustee shall deposit in the Interest Fund, the sum of $________, 
representing capitalized interest on the Series 2014 Bonds, such amount to be applied to pay all 
interest on the Series 2014 Bonds on each Series 2014 Interest Payment Date to and including 
________ and a portion of the interest due on the Series 2014 Bonds on ________. 

(B) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund, which is 
established pursuant to Section 14.05, the sum of $________. 

(C) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2014 Project Fund, which is established 
pursuant to Section 14.06, the sum of $________. 

Section 14.05. Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Costs of 
Issuance Fund.  There is hereby established and maintained with the Trustee a fund designated 
as the "Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund."  Amounts in the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance 
Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee to pay for Costs of Issuance incurred in connection with 
issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds upon Requisition of the Alameda CTC, such Requisition to be 
in substantially such form as is set forth in Exhibit B hereto and to be executed by an Authorized 
Representative.  All payments made pursuant to a Requisition shall be made by check or wire 
transfer in accordance with the payment instructions set forth in Schedule I to such Requisition.  
Each such Requisition, including, without limitation, Schedule I attached thereto, shall be 
sufficient evidence to the Trustee of the facts stated therein and the Trustee shall have no duty to 

Page 356Page 356Page 356Page 356



 

 5 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

confirm the accuracy of such facts or to investigate or inquire as to the authenticity of the 
payment instructions set forth in Schedule I.  Any amounts remaining in the Series 2014 Costs of 
Issuance Fund one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds 
shall be transferred to the Series 2014 Project Fund, or in the event that the Series 2014 Project 
Fund shall have been closed, to the Revenue Fund, and the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund 
shall be closed. 

Section 14.06. Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Project Fund.  
(A) There is hereby established and maintained with the Trustee a fund designated as the 
"Series 2014 Project Fund."  The moneys in the Series 2014 Project Fund shall be used and 
withdrawn to pay Costs of the Project. 

(B) Before any payment from the Series 2014 Project Fund shall be made by the 
Trustee, the Alameda CTC shall file or cause to be filed with the Trustee a Requisition of the 
Alameda CTC, such Requisition to be in substantially such form as is set forth in Exhibit C 
hereto and to be executed by an Authorized Representative.  All payments made pursuant to a 
Requisition shall be made by check or wire transfer in accordance with the payment instructions 
set forth in Schedule I to such Requisition.  Each such Requisition, including, without limitation, 
Schedule I attached thereto, shall be sufficient evidence to the Trustee of the facts stated therein 
and the Trustee shall have no duty to confirm the accuracy of such facts or to investigate or 
inquire as to the authenticity of the payment instructions set forth in Schedule I. 

(C) When the Alameda CTC determines that the Series 2014 Project has been 
completed, a Certificate of the Alameda CTC shall be delivered to the Trustee by the Alameda 
CTC stating:  (i) the fact and date of such completion; (ii) that all of the costs thereof have been 
determined and paid (or that all of such costs have been paid less specified claims which are 
subject to dispute and for which a retention in the Series 2014 Project Fund is to be maintained in 
the full amount of such claims until such dispute is resolved); and (iii) that the Trustee is to 
transfer the remaining balance in the Series 2014 Project Fund, less the amount of any such 
retention, to the Revenue Fund and the Series 2014 Project Fund shall be closed. 

Section 14.07. Investment of Funds; Investment Earnings.  The Trustee shall 
invest funds on deposit in the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund and the Series 2014 Project 
Fund in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 5.11 of this Indenture.  Investment 
earnings on each such Fund shall be applied by the Trustee in accordance with the provisions set 
forth in Section 5.11 of this Indenture. 

Section 14.08. Series 2014 Bonds Not Subject to Optional Redemption.  The 
Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity 
dates. 

ARTICLE XV 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 15.01. Terms of Series 2014 Bonds Subject to the Indenture; Ratification 
of the Indenture.  Except as in this Supplemental Indenture expressly provided, every term and 

Page 357Page 357Page 357Page 357



 

 6 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

condition contained in the Indenture shall apply to this Supplemental Indenture and to the Series 
2014 Bonds with the same force and effect as if the same were herein set forth at length, with 
such omissions, variations and modifications thereof as may be appropriate to make the same 
conform to this Supplemental Indenture. 

This Supplemental Indenture and all the terms and provisions herein contained shall form 
part of the Indenture as fully and with the same effect as if all such terms and provisions had 
been set forth in the Indenture.  The Indenture is hereby ratified and confirmed and shall 
continue in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and provisions thereof, as 
supplemented and amended hereby. 

Section 15.02. Effective Date of Supplemental Indenture.  This Supplemental 
Indenture shall take effect upon the date of its execution and delivery, February __, 2014, the 
date of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Section 15.03. Execution in Counterparts.  This Supplemental Indenture may be 
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Page 358Page 358Page 358Page 358



 

 S-1 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Supplemental 
Indenture by their officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year first written above. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
  COMMISSION 

By:    
Executive Director 

UNION BANK, N.A., as Trustee 

By:    
Authorized Officer 

Page 359Page 359Page 359Page 359



 

  OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Schedule I 

Description of Series 2014 Project* 

The Series 2014 Project consists of the BART Warm Springs Extension, the BART 
Oakland Airport Connector, the Route 84 Expressway and the I-580 Corridor Improvement 
projects, or such other transportation improvements as permitted by the Act, the Ordinance, the 
Expenditure Plan and the Tax Certificate executed and delivered in connection with the Series 
2014 Bonds. 

                                                 
*All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the 
 Indenture. 

Page 360Page 360Page 360Page 360



 

 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Exhibit A 

[Form of Series 2014 Bond] 

No. R-_______ $______________ 

ALAMEDA  COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
SALES TAX REVENUE BOND (LIMITED TAX BOND), SERIES 2014 

Maturity Date 
 

Interest Rate 
Per Annum 

Dated Date 
 

CUSIP Number 
 

March 1, ____ ___%   

Registered Holder:  Cede & Co. 

Principal Amount: Dollars 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, a joint exercise of 
powers authority and public entity organized under the laws of the State of California (the 
"Alameda CTC"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to the registered holder named 
above or registered assigns, on the maturity date specified above, the principal amount specified 
above, together with interest thereon from the dated date specified above until the principal 
hereof shall have been paid, at the interest rate per annum specified above, payable on September 
 1, 2014, and semiannually thereafter on March 1 and September 1 and in each year (each, an 
"Interest Payment Date"), but only out of the Sales Tax Revenues and other assets pledged 
therefor as specified in the Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, as supplemented and 
amended from time to time pursuant to its terms, including as supplemented and amended by the 
First Supplemental Indenture thereto, dated as of February 1, 2014 (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the "Indenture"), between the Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee 
(together with any successor trustee, the "Trustee").  All capitalized terms used and not otherwise 
defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Indenture. 

Interest hereon and principal hereof is payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America by check mailed by first-class mail on each Interest Payment Date to the registered 
holder as of the close of business on the applicable Series 2014 Record Date.  The principal 
hereof is payable when due in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation 
hereof at the designated office of the Trustee.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, for so 
long as a Securities Depository is utilized, interest hereon and principal hereof shall be payable 
in accordance with the payment procedures established pursuant by such Securities Depository. 

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds) (the "Bonds") issued pursuant to 
the provisions of the Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act, constituting 
Division 19 of the California Public Utilities Code, as amended from time to time (the "Act"), 
and the Indenture.  Said authorized issue of Bonds is not limited in aggregate principal amount, 
except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, and consists or may consist of one or more Series 
of varying denominations, dates, maturities, interest rates and other provisions, as in the 

Page 361Page 361Page 361Page 361



 

 A-2 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Indenture provided, all issued or to be issued pursuant to the Indenture.  This Bond is a Current 
Interest Bond of the Series and designation indicated above (each, a "Series 2014 Bond"), which 
Series of Bonds is limited in aggregate principal amount to [Par Amount] dollars ($[Par 
Amount]). 

Certain additional Bonds may be issued and other obligations may be secured on parity 
with the Series 2014 Bonds, but only subject to the conditions and limitations set forth in the 
Indenture. 

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture and to the Act for a description of the terms on 
which the Bonds are issued and to be issued, of the nature and extent of the security for the 
Bonds, of the rights of the registered holders of the Bonds and of the rights and obligations of the 
Alameda CTC thereunder, all of the terms and provisions of which are incorporated herein and 
constitute a contract between the Alameda CTC and the registered holders from time to time of 
this Bond, and to all the provisions thereof the registered holder of this Bond, by such registered 
holder's acceptance hereof, consents and agrees. 

The Bonds and the interest thereon (to the extent set forth in the Indenture), together with 
any Parity Obligations hereafter issued or incurred by the Alameda CTC, and the interest 
thereon, are payable from, and are secured by a charge and lien on the Sales Tax Revenues and 
the Swap Revenues (as more fully defined in the Indenture, the "Revenues").  All of the Bonds 
and Parity Obligations are equally secured by a pledge of, and charge and lien upon, all of the 
Revenues, and the Revenues constitute a trust fund for the security and payment of the interest 
on and principal of the Bonds, but nevertheless out of Revenues certain amounts may be applied 
for other purposes as provided in the Indenture. 

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Alameda CTC and are payable solely, both as to 
principal and interest, from the Revenues and certain funds held by the Trustee under the 
Indenture and the Alameda CTC is not obligated to pay the Bonds except from such Revenues 
and such funds.  The general fund of the Alameda CTC is not liable, and the credit or taxing 
power (other than as described above) of the Alameda CTC is not pledged, for the payment of 
the Bonds or their interest.  The Bonds are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of, or 
charge, lien or encumbrance upon, any of the property of the Alameda CTC or any of its income 
or receipts, except the Revenues and certain funds held under the Indenture.   

The Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their respective stated 
maturity dates. 

The Series 2014 Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in Authorized 
Denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  Subject to the limitations and 
conditions and upon payment of the charges, if any, as provided herein and in the Indenture, this 
Series 2014 Bond may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Series 2014 Bonds 
of other Authorized Denominations of the same tenor, maturity and interest rate. 

This Series 2014 Bond is transferable or exchangeable for other Authorized 
Denominations by the registered holder hereof, in person or by its attorney duly authorized in 
writing, at the designated office of the Trustee, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations 

Page 362Page 362Page 362Page 362



 

 A-3 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

and upon payment of the charges provided in the Indenture, and upon surrender and cancellation 
of this Series 2014 Bond.  Upon such transfer a new fully registered Series 2014 Bond or Series 
2014 Bonds, of Authorized Denomination or Denominations, of the same Series, tenor, maturity 
and interest rate for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in 
exchange herefor. 

The Alameda CTC and the Trustee may deem and treat the registered holder hereof as the 
absolute owner hereof for all purposes and neither the Alameda CTC nor the Trustee shall be 
affected by any notice to the contrary. 

The rights and obligations of the Alameda CTC and of the registered holders of the 
Bonds may be modified or amended at any time in the manner, to the extent, and upon the terms 
provided in the Indenture, which provide, in certain circumstances, for modifications and 
amendments without the consent of, or notice to, the registered holders of Bonds. 

The Indenture and the Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. 

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all acts, conditions and things required to 
exist, to happen and to be performed, precedent to and in the incurring of the indebtedness 
evidenced by this Series 2014 Bond, and in the issuing of this Series 2014 Bond, do exist, have 
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner, as required by the 
Constitution and statutes of the State of California, and that this Series 2014 Bond, together with 
all other indebtedness of the Alameda CTC pertaining to the Revenues, is within every debt and 
other limit prescribed by the Constitution and the statutes of the State of California, and is not in 
excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture or the Act. 

This Series 2014 Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture, or become 
valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication hereon endorsed shall 
have been manually signed by the Trustee. 

Page 363Page 363Page 363Page 363



 

 A-4 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION has caused this Series 2014 Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by 
the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of the governing body of the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission and the manual or facsimile signature of the Auditor-Controller of 
the Alameda County Transportation Commission and has caused this Series 2014 Bond to be 
dated the date set forth above. 

ALAMEDA  COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
  COMMISSION 

By:    
Chair 

By:    
Auditor-Controller 

Page 364Page 364Page 364Page 364



 

 A-5 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

[Form of Certificate of Authentication] 

This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture and authenticated 
on the date set forth below. 

Dated:  _______________________. 

UNION BANK, N.A., as Trustee 

By:    
Authorized Officer 

Page 365Page 365Page 365Page 365



 

 A-6 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

[Form of DTC Legend] 

Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 
Company to the issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any 
Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an 
authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company and any payment is made to Cede & 
Co., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE 
BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL since the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has 
an interest herein. 

[Form of Assignment] 

For value received ___________________, whose taxpayer identification number is 
____________, does hereby sell, assign and transfer unto ________________ the within Bond 
and hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ___________________ attorney, to transfer the 
same on the books of the Alameda CTC at the office of the Trustee, with full power of 
substitution in the premises. 

   
NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must 

correspond with the name on the face 
of the within Registered Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change 
whatsoever. 

Dated: _________________ 
 
Signature Guaranteed by: 

   
NOTE: Signature guarantee shall be made by a 

guarantor institution participating in 
the Securities Transfer Agents 
Medallion Program or in such other 
guarantee program as shall be 
acceptable to the Trustee. 

Page 366Page 366Page 366Page 366



 

 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Exhibit B 

[Form of Requisition – Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund] 

REQUISITION NO. ____ 

Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund 

The undersigned, ____________________, hereby certifies as follows: 

1. I am _______________________ of the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission, a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws of 
the State of California (the "Alameda CTC"). 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of that certain Indenture, dated as of February 1, 
2014, as supplemented, including as supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of February 1, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indenture"), between the 
Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), I am an Authorized 
Representative (as such term is defined in the Indenture) of the Alameda CTC and I am 
delivering this Requisition on behalf of the Alameda CTC. 

3. The undersigned hereby requests that the Trustee pay from the Series 2014 
Costs of Issuance Fund (the "Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund") established pursuant to 
Section 14.05 of the Indenture the amounts specified in Schedule I hereto to the persons 
identified in Schedule I. 

4. The undersigned hereby certifies that:  (i) obligations in the amounts 
stated in Schedule I have been incurred by the Alameda CTC and are presently due and payable; 
(ii) each item is a proper charge against the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund; and (iii) each 
item has not been previously paid from the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund. 

Dated:  _________________. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
  COMMISSION 

By:    
Authorized Representative 

Page 367Page 367Page 367Page 367



 

 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Schedule I 

Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund 

To Amount Purpose 
Wire or 

Payment Instructions 
    
 $   
    
    
    
 

Page 368Page 368Page 368Page 368



 

 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Exhibit C 

[Form of Requisition – Series 2014 Project Fund] 

REQUISITION NO. ___ 

Series 2014 Project Fund 

The undersigned, _______________ hereby certifies as follows: 

1. I am the ________________ of the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission, a joint exercise of powers authority and public entity organized under the laws of 
the State of California (the "Alameda CTC"). 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of that certain Indenture, dated as of February 1, 
2014, as supplemented, including as supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of February 1, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indenture"), between the 
Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the "Trustee"), I am an Authorized 
Representative (as such term is defined in the Indenture) of the Alameda CTC and I am 
delivering this Requisition on behalf of the Alameda CTC. 

3. The undersigned, acting on behalf of the Alameda CTC, does hereby 
request disbursement of funds from the Series 2014 Project Fund (the "Series 2014 Project 
Fund"), created pursuant to Section 14.06 of the Indenture, in connection with the payment of the 
costs of the Project (as such term is defined in the Indenture). 

4. The undersigned, acting on behalf of the Alameda CTC, hereby certifies 
that:  (a) the costs of the Project in the amount set forth herein have been incurred by the 
Alameda CTC and are presently due and payable; and (b) that each item is a proper charge 
against the Series 2014 Project Fund and has not been previously paid from the Series 2014 
Project Fund. 

5. The undersigned, acting on behalf of the Alameda CTC, hereby certifies 
that there has not been filed with or served upon the Alameda CTC notice of any lien, right to 
lien, or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the amounts 
payable to any of the parties identified on Schedule I to this Requisition, which has not been 
released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment of such obligation, other than 
materialmen's or mechanics' liens accruing by mere operation of law. 

6. Payment should be made in accordance with the instructions set forth on 
Schedule I hereto. 

Page 369Page 369Page 369Page 369



 

 C-2 OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Dated:  _________________. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
  COMMISSION 

By:    
Authorized Representative 

Page 370Page 370Page 370Page 370



 

  OHSUSA:755094709.4  
 

Schedule I 

Series 2014 Project Fund 

Party  
to be Paid 

Payment  
Amount 

Nature of 
Expenditure 

Payment 
Instructions 

    
 $   
    
    
    
 

Page 371Page 371Page 371Page 371



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 372Page 372Page 372Page 372



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JANUARY __, 2014 
 
NEW ISSUE – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATINGS 

 
S&P: ____ 
Fitch: ____ 

 
In the opinion of Orrick Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to Alameda CTC, based upon an analysis of existing 

laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and 
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series 2014 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes.  
In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Series 2014 Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in 
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion 
regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, 
the Series 2014 Bonds.  See “Tax Matters” herein. 

$____________∗  
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds  
(Limited Tax Bonds)  

Series 2014 
Dated:  Date of Delivery Due:  March 1 as shown on inside cover 

 The Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 in the 
aggregate principal amount of $_________* (the “Series 2014 Bonds”) are being issued by the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission (“Alameda CTC”) pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, as supplemented by a First Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014 (together, the “Indenture”), each between Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as 
trustee (the “Trustee”). Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds will be applied (i) to finance a portion of the transportation 
improvements outlined in the Expenditure Plan (as described herein), (ii) to fund capitalized interest on the Series 2014 Bonds 
through March 1, 2017*, and (iii) to pay costs of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCE.” 

The Series 2014 Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co, as holder of the Series 2014 Bonds and nominee 
for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their 
interest in the Series 2014 Bonds purchased.  The principal of and interest on the Series 2014 Bonds are payable by wire transfer 
to DTC which, in turn, will remit such principal or interest to the DTC Participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2014 Bonds, as more fully discussed herein. 

The Series 2014 Bonds will mature in the amounts and will bear interest at the rates set forth in the inside cover page 
hereof.  Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2014.  The Series 2014 Bonds 
are being issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in the denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. 

The Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to optional or mandatory redemption prior to their maturity. 
The Series 2014 Bonds are limited obligations of Alameda CTC secured by a pledge of the Sales Tax Revenues and 

certain funds held by the Trustee.  The Sales Tax is a one-half of one percent (0.5%) retail transactions and use tax which took 
effect in the County of Alameda (the “County”) on April 1, 2002.  In November 2000 more than two-thirds of the electorate of 
the County approved Measure B imposing the Sales Tax.  The Sales Tax will expire on March 31, 2022.  The Series 2014 Bonds 
are secured by a pledge of amounts collected on account of the Sales Tax, less certain administrative fees paid to the California 
State Board of Equalization in connection with the collection and disbursement of the Sales Tax (the “Sales Tax Revenues”).  
See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS” herein. 

THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL BE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF ALAMEDA CTC AND WILL BE PAYABLE 
SOLELY, BOTH AS TO PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FROM REVENUES, PRIMARILY CONSISTING OF SALES TAX 
REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD BY THE TRUSTEE UNDER THE INDENTURE, AND ALAMEDA CTC 
WILL NOT BE OBLIGATED TO PAY THE SERIES 2014 BONDS EXCEPT FROM SUCH REVENUES AND SUCH 
FUNDS.  THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OTHER THAN ALAMEDA CTC, OR A PLEDGE OF THE FULL FAITH 
AND CREDIT OF THE STATE OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE.  THE GENERAL FUND OF 
ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE LIABLE, AND THE CREDIT OR TAXING POWER (OTHER THAN AS DESCRIBED IN 
THE INDENTURE) OF ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2014 BONDS 
OR INTEREST THEREON.  THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT BE SECURED BY A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE 
PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON, ANY OF THE PROPERTY OF ALAMEDA CTC OR ANY 
OF ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE SALES TAX REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD UNDER THE 
INDENTURE. 

∗  Preliminary, subject to change. 

Th
is

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

t. 
 U

nd
er

 n
o 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
sh

al
l t

hi
s 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r t
o 

se
ll 

or
 th

e 
so

lic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y,
 n

or
 s

ha
ll 

th
er

e 
be

 a
ny

 s
al

e 
of

 th
es

e 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

in
 a

ny
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

of
fe

r, 
so

lic
ita

tio
n 

or
 s

al
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

la
w

fu
l p

rio
r t

o 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
or

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

he
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s l
aw

s o
f s

uc
h 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n.

 

10.1D

Page 373Page 373Page 373Page 373



 

79348408.8  

This cover page contains certain information for general reference only.  It is not a summary of the security or 
terms of this issue.  Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to making an 
informed investment decision with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds. 

The Series 2014 Bonds will be offered when, as and if received by the Underwriters, subject to the approval of validity 
by Orrick Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to Alameda CTC, and certain other conditions.  Certain legal matters will 
be passed upon for Alameda CTC by its Disclosure Counsel, Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, a member of Norton Rose Fulbright, 
and by Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP, General Counsel to Alameda CTC, and for the Underwriters by their counsel, Nixon 
Peabody LLP.  It is anticipated that the Series 2014 Bonds in definitive form will be available for delivery through the facilities 
of DTC on or about February __, 2014. 

 
Citigroup Barclays 

 
Dated:  February ___, 2014

Page 374Page 374Page 374Page 374



 

79348408.8   

$__________* 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds  
(Limited Tax Bonds)  

2014 Series A 

Maturity Schedule 

Maturity Date 
(March 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest  
Rate 

 
Yield* 

 
CUSIP NO.† 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
 
 
 
 

                                                      
*   Preliminary, subject to change. 
    CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP 
Global Services, managed by Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC on behalf of The American Bankers 
Association.  This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the 
CUSIP Services.  Alameda CTC, the Financial Advisor and the Underwriters are not responsible for the selection or 
correctness of the CUSIP numbers set forth herein. 
 
 

Page 375Page 375Page 375Page 375



 

79348408.8   

 
No dealer, salesman or any other person has been authorized by the Alameda County 

Transportation Commission (“Alameda CTC”) or the underwriters of the Series 2014 Bonds listed on the 
cover page hereof (the “Underwriters”) to give any information or to make any representations, other than 
those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or 
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by Alameda CTC or the Underwriters. 

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor 
shall there be any sale of the Series 2014 Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for 
such person to make such an offer, solicitation or sale.  This Official Statement is not to be construed as a 
contract with the purchasers of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor 
the sale of any of the Series 2014 Bonds implies that the information herein is correct as of any time 
subsequent to the date hereof.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change 
without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, 
under any circumstances, create the implication that there has been no change in the matters described 
herein since the date hereof.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of securities 
referred to herein and may not be reproduced or be used, as a whole or in part, for any other purpose. 

The information set forth herein has been obtained from Alameda CTC and other sources 
believed to be reliable.  The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without 
notice and neither delivery of the Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any 
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of Alameda CTC since 
the date hereof.  All summaries contained herein of the Indenture (as defined herein) or other documents 
are made subject to the provisions of such documents and do not purport to be complete statements of any 
or all of such provisions.  All statements made herein are made as of the date of this document by 
Alameda CTC except statistical information or other statements where some other date is indicated in the 
text. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. 
The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part 
of, their responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and 
circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of 
such information. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT 
OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 
SERIES 2014 BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL ON 
THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT 
ANY TIME.  THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OFFER AND SELL THE SERIES 2014 BONDS TO 
CERTAIN DEALERS AND OTHERS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES 
STATED ON THE INSIDE COVER PAGE HEREOF AND SUCH PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES MAY 
BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITERS.   

This Official Statement, including any supplement or amendment hereto, is intended to be 
deposited with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Marketplace 
Access (“EMMA”) website.  Alameda CTC maintains a website.  However, the information presented 
therein is not part of this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in making investment decisions 
with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Page 376Page 376Page 376Page 376



 

79348408.8   

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute 
forward-looking statements. Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as 
“plan,” “project,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words.  
The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements 
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, 
performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, performance or 
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.  No assurance is given that actual 
results will meet the forecasts of Alameda CTC in any way, regardless of the level of optimism 
communicated in the information.  Alameda CTC is not obligated to issue any updates or revisions to 
forward-looking statements in any event. 

Page 377Page 377Page 377Page 377



 

79348408.8   

 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

COMMISSIONERS 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty (Alameda County, District 1), Chair  
Councilmember At-Large Rebecca Kaplan (City of Oakland), Vice Chair 

Director Elsa Ortiz (Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District) Councilmember Ruth Atkin (City of Emeryville) 
Supervisor Richard Valle (Alameda County, District 2) Mayor William Harrison (City of Fremont) 
Supervisor Wilma Chan (Alameda County, District 3) Councilmember Marvin Peixoto (City of Hayward) 
Supervisor Nate Miley (Alameda County, District 4) Mayor John Marchand (City of Livermore) 
Supervisor Keith Carson (Alameda County, District 5) Councilmember Luis Freitas (City of Newark) 
Director Tom Blalock (San Francisco Bay Area Rapid 
Transit District) 

Vice Mayor Larry Reid (City of Oakland) 

Mayor Marie Gilmore (City of Alameda) Mayor John Chiang (City of Piedmont) 
Mayor Peggy Thomsen (City of Albany) Mayor Jerry Thorne (City of Pleasanton) 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli (City of Berkeley) Councilmember Michael Gregory (City of San Leandro) 
Mayor Tim Sbranti (City of Dublin) Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci (City of Union City) 

 
MANAGEMENT 

Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director 
Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy 

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects 
Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance 

 
SPECIAL SERVICES 

Financial Advisor  
Public Financial Management, Inc.  

San Francisco, California 
 

General Counsel 
Wendel Rosen Black & Dean LLP 

Oakland, California 
 

Bond Counsel  
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP  

San Francisco, California 

Disclosure Counsel  
Fulbright & Jaworski LLP 

(a member of Norton Rose Fulbright)  
Los Angeles, California 

 
Trustee  

Union Bank, N.A.  
San Francisco, California 

Page 378Page 378Page 378Page 378



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

 

79348408.8  i 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

General ............................................................................................................................................ 1 
Authority for Issuance..................................................................................................................... 1 
Purpose and Application of Proceeds; No Additional Debt Contemplated for Expenditure 

Plan Projects ........................................................................................................................ 1 
The Series 2014 Bonds ................................................................................................................... 1 
Security for the Bonds .................................................................................................................... 2 
Limited Obligations ........................................................................................................................ 2 
No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds............................................................ 2 
No Acceleration Provision or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default ........................................... 2 
No Reserve Fund ............................................................................................................................ 3 
Continuing Disclosure .................................................................................................................... 3 
References ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

THE SERIES 2014 BONDS ........................................................................................................................ 3 

General ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
No Redemption ............................................................................................................................... 4 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS .................................... 6 

Limited Obligations ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Pledge of Sales Tax Revenues and Certain Funds and Accounts Held by Trustee ........................ 6 
Revenue Fund; Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues ......................................................................... 7 
No Bond Reserve Fund for the Series 2014 Bonds ........................................................................ 9 
No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds............................................................ 9 
Subordinate Obligations................................................................................................................ 11 

THE SALES TAX ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

General .......................................................................................................................................... 11 
Collection of Sales Tax Revenues ................................................................................................ 12 
Historical Sales Tax Revenues ...................................................................................................... 12 
Other Sales Taxes Imposed in the County .................................................................................... 13 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION ............................................................... 14 

General .......................................................................................................................................... 14 
Governance ................................................................................................................................... 15 
Executive Staff .............................................................................................................................. 15 
Expenditure Plan ........................................................................................................................... 16 
Debt Policy ................................................................................................................................... 17 

  RISK FACTORS ..................................................................................................................................... 18 

Economy of the County and the State ........................................................................................... 18 
The Sales Tax ................................................................................................................................ 18 
Increased Internet Use May Reduce Sales Tax Revenues ............................................................ 18 
Proposition 218 ............................................................................................................................. 18 
Further Initiatives .......................................................................................................................... 19 
No Acceleration or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default ......................................................... 19 
Loss of Tax Exemption ................................................................................................................. 19 
Impact of Bankruptcy of Alameda CTC ....................................................................................... 19 

Page 379Page 379Page 379Page 379



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 
 

79348408.8  ii 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................................................... 20 

LITIGATION ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

TAX MATTERS ........................................................................................................................................ 21 

LEGAL MATTERS ................................................................................................................................... 23 

RATINGS .................................................................................................................................................. 23 

UNDERWRITING .................................................................................................................................... 23 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR ........................................................................................................................... 23 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ................................................................................................................. 24 

MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................................................. 24 

 
APPENDIX A – ALAMEDA CTC AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR  

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 .............................................................. A-1 
APPENDIX B – COUNTY OF ALAMEDA DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC   

INFORMATION ..................................................................................................... B-1 
APPENDIX C – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE ..................... C-1 
APPENDIX D – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT ................................. D-1 
APPENDIX E – BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM ...................................................................................... E-1 
APPENDIX F – PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION ......................................... F-1

Page 380Page 380Page 380Page 380



 
 

79348408.8  1 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$_________∗  
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds  
(Limited Tax Bonds)  

Series 2014 

INTRODUCTION 

General 

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the appendices hereto, sets forth 
certain information in connection with the offering by the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(“Alameda CTC”) of $__________* aggregate principal amount of Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (the “Series 2014 Bonds”).  
The Series 2014 Bonds will be the first series of bonds issued by Alameda CTC secured under Measure B 
(as defined herein).  All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 
assigned to such terms in APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
INDENTURE,” or, if not defined therein, in the Indenture. 

Authority for Issuance 

The Series 2014 Bonds are being issued by Alameda CTC under and pursuant to the authority 
granted under Division 19 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California (Section 180000 et seq.) 
(the “Act”), Ordinance No. 2001-1 adopted on July 25, 2000 pursuant to the provisions of Section 180000 
through Section 180264 inclusive of the Act (“Ordinance No. 2001-1”), and the Indenture, dated as of 
February 1, 2014, as supplemented and amended from time to time pursuant to its terms, including as 
supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, (together, the 
“Indenture”), each between Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  

Purpose and Application of Proceeds; No Additional Debt Contemplated for Expenditure Plan 
Projects 

Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds will be applied: (i) to finance a portion of the transportation 
improvements consisting of the capital projects outlined in the Expenditure Plan (as described herein), (ii) 
to fund capitalized interest on the Series 2014 Bonds through March 1, 2017*, and (iii) to pay costs of 
issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein. 
Other than the Series 2014 Bonds, Alameda CTC does not currently plan to issue additional debt to 
finance projects under the Expenditure Plan. 

The Series 2014 Bonds 

Interest on the Series 2014 Bonds will be payable on each March 1 and September 1, 
commencing September 1, 2014.  The Series 2014 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without 
coupons in the denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.  The Series 2014 Bonds will be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as holder of the Series 2014 Bonds and nominee for The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). Purchasers will not receive physical certificates representing their 
interest in the Series 2014 Bonds purchased.   

                                                      
∗  Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 381Page 381Page 381Page 381



 
 

79348408.8  2 

The Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their maturity. 

Security for the Bonds 

  The Series 2014 Bonds are limited obligations of Alameda CTC payable from and secured by 
certain revenues (the “Revenues”) pledged under the Indenture, including a pledge of revenues (the 
“Sales Tax Revenues”) derived from a one-half of one percent retail transactions and use tax known as 
Measure B (“Measure B”) that became effective on April 1, 2002 (the “Sales Tax”), imposed in the 
County in accordance with the Act and Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, net of 
an administrative fee paid to the California State Board of Equalization (the “BOE”) in connection with 
the collection and disbursement of the Sales Tax.  The Sales Tax was approved on November 7, 2000 by 
more than two-thirds of the electorate of the County voting on Measure B and is scheduled to expire on 
March 31, 2022. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS” 
herein. 

Limited Obligations 

THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL BE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF ALAMEDA CTC AND 
WILL BE PAYABLE SOLELY, BOTH AS TO PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FROM REVENUES, 
PRIMARILY CONSISTING OF SALES TAX REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD BY THE 
TRUSTEE UNDER THE INDENTURE, AND ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE OBLIGATED TO 
PAY THE SERIES 2014 BONDS EXCEPT FROM SUCH REVENUES AND SUCH FUNDS.  THE 
SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OTHER THAN ALAMEDA CTC, OR A PLEDGE OF 
THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE STATE OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF 
THE STATE.  THE GENERAL FUND OF ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE LIABLE, AND THE 
CREDIT OR TAXING POWER (OTHER THAN AS DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE) OF 
ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2014 BONDS 
OR INTEREST THEREON.  THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT BE SECURED BY A LEGAL 
OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON, ANY OF THE 
PROPERTY OF ALAMEDA CTC OR ANY OF ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE SALES 
TAX REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds 

Other than Refunding Bonds and Parity Obligations incurred in connection with Refunding 
Bonds, Alameda CTC may not issue additional bonds or incur any other obligations secured by the Sales 
Tax Revenues on a parity with or senior to the Series 2014 Bonds.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES 
OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS – No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding 
Bonds” herein. 

No Acceleration Provision or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default 

The Indenture does not contain a provision allowing for the acceleration of the Series 2014 Bonds 
or an increase in the interest rate on the Series 2014 Bonds in the event of a default in the payment of 
principal and interest on the Series 2014 Bonds when due.  In the event of a default by Alameda CTC, the 
Holders of at least a majority of the aggregate amount of the Series 2014 Bonds will have the right to 
request the Trustee to exercise the remedies, subject to the limitations thereon, set forth in the Indenture.  
See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Page 382Page 382Page 382Page 382



 
 

79348408.8  3 

No Reserve Fund 

No reserve fund will be established for the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Continuing Disclosure 

Alameda CTC will covenant for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Series 2014 Bonds to 
provide certain financial information and operating data relating to Alameda CTC and notices of the 
occurrence of certain enumerated events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) 
pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”). These 
covenants are being made in order to assist the Underwriters of the Series 2014 Bonds in complying with 
Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) promulgated under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. See APPENDIX D – “FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.”  Alameda CTC has not previously delivered an undertaking pursuant to 
the Rule. 

References 

The descriptions and summaries of the Indenture and various other documents hereinafter set 
forth do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each such document for 
the complete details of all terms and conditions.  All statements herein are qualified in their entirety by 
reference to each such document, copies of which are available for inspection at the offices of Alameda 
CTC. 

THE SERIES 2014 BONDS  

General 

The Series 2014 Bonds will be the first series of Bonds issued by Alameda CTC.  The Series 
2014 Bonds will mature on March 1 in the years and in the principal amounts shown on the inside cover 
of this Official Statement.  Interest on the Series 2014 Bonds will be payable on each March 1 and 
September 1 of each year, commencing September 1, 2014 (each an “Interest Payment Date”), and will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

Interest on each Series 2014 Bond will be payable by check mailed by first-class mail on each 
Interest Payment Date to the Holder thereof as of the close of business on the Record Date or, upon the 
written request of any Holder of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Series 2014 Bonds 
who has provided the Trustee with wire transfer instructions, by wire transfer to an account within the 
United States on each Interest Payment Date, to the Holder thereof as of the close of business on the 
Series 2014 Record Date. “Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the calendar month prior to the 
calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date occurs, whether or not such day is a Business Day. 

The Series 2014 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without coupons in the 
denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof.  The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) will 
act as the initial securities depository for the Series 2014 Bonds, which will be issued initially pursuant to 
a book-entry only system.  See APPENDIX E – “BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”  Under the Indenture, 
Alameda CTC may appoint a successor securities depository to DTC for the Series 2014 Bonds.  The 
information under this caption, “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS,” is subject in its entirety to the provisions 
described in APPENDIX E – “BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM” while the Series 2014 Bonds are in DTC’s 
book-entry system. 

Page 383Page 383Page 383Page 383



 
 

79348408.8  4 

No Redemption 

The Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to optional or mandatory redemption prior to their 
maturity. 

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

The following table shows the annual debt service requirements on the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Period Ending  Principal  Interest  Debt Service 
  $  $  $ 
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       

  $  $  $ 
 
 

Page 384Page 384Page 384Page 384



 
 

79348408.8  5 

PLAN OF FINANCE  

Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds will be applied: (i) to finance a portion of the transportation 
improvements consisting of the Bay Area Rapid Transit (“BART”) Warm Springs Extension, the BART 
Oakland Airport Connector, the Route 84 Expressway and I-580 Corridor Improvement projects, and/or 
such other transportation improvements as permitted by the Act, the Ordinance, the Expenditure Plan and 
the tax certificate executed and delivered in connection with the Series 2014 Bonds, (ii) to fund 
capitalized interest on the Series 2014 Bonds through March 1, 2017∗, and (iii) to pay costs of issuance of 
the Series 2014 Bonds. See “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” and “ALAMEDA 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION EXPENDITURE PLAN” herein. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of the funds are as follows: 

Sources of Funds:  
 Par Amount of Series 2014 Bonds $ 
 [Net] Premium  
Total Sources $ 
  
Uses of Funds:  
 Deposit to Project Fund $ 
 Deposit to Interest Fund(1)  
 Costs of Issuance(2)   
Total Uses: $ 

____________________ 
(1)  To be applied to pay interest on the Series 2014 Bonds through March 1, 2017*. 
(2) Includes underwriters’ discount, rating agency fees, Trustee fees, printing costs, Bond Counsel, Disclosure 
Counsel, General Counsel and Financial Advisor fees and expenses and other miscellaneous expenses. 
 

                                                      
∗ Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 385Page 385Page 385Page 385



 
 

79348408.8  6 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS  

Limited Obligations 

THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL BE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF ALAMEDA CTC AND 
WILL BE PAYABLE SOLELY, BOTH AS TO PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FROM REVENUES, 
PRIMARILY CONSISTING OF SALES TAX REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD BY THE 
TRUSTEE UNDER THE INDENTURE, AND ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE OBLIGATED TO 
PAY THE SERIES 2014 BONDS EXCEPT FROM SUCH REVENUES AND SUCH FUNDS.  THE 
SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE STATE OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OTHER THAN ALAMEDA CTC, OR A PLEDGE OF 
THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE STATE OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF 
THE STATE.  THE GENERAL FUND OF ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE LIABLE, AND THE 
CREDIT OR TAXING POWER (OTHER THAN AS DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE) OF 
ALAMEDA CTC WILL NOT BE PLEDGED FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 2014 BONDS 
OR INTEREST THEREON.  THE SERIES 2014 BONDS WILL NOT BE SECURED BY A LEGAL 
OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF, OR CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON, ANY OF THE 
PROPERTY OF ALAMEDA CTC OR ANY OF ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS, EXCEPT THE SALES 
TAX REVENUES AND CERTAIN FUNDS HELD UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

Pledge of Sales Tax Revenues and Certain Funds and Accounts Held by Trustee 

Pursuant to the Indenture, Alameda CTC will pledge to the Trustee: (i) all Revenues (including 
all Sales Tax Revenues), and (ii) all amounts, including proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds, held on 
deposit in the funds and accounts established in the Indenture (except for amounts held in the Rebate 
Fund, any Letter of Credit Account and any Purchase Fund), subject to the provisions of the Indenture 
permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth therein.  Sales 
Tax Revenues consist of the amounts collected on account of the Measure B Sales Tax imposed in the 
County pursuant to the Act and the Ordinance, after deducting amounts payable by Alameda CTC to the 
BOE for costs and expenses for its services.  The collateral identified above will immediately be subject 
to the pledge under the Indenture, and the pledge shall constitute a first lien on and security interest in 
such collateral which will immediately attach to the collateral and be effective, binding and enforceable 
against Alameda CTC and all others asserting the rights therein, to the extent set forth, and in accordance 
with, the Indenture, irrespective of whether those parties have notice of the pledge and without the need 
for any physical delivery, recordation, filing or further act.  The pledge of Revenues and all amounts held 
on deposit in the funds and accounts established under the Indenture (except for amounts held in the 
Rebate Fund, any Letter of Credit Account and any Purchase Fund) will be irrevocable until all of the 
Series 2014 Bonds and any Refunding Bonds are no longer Outstanding and all Parity Obligations, 
Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations and amounts owed in connection with the 
Series 2014 Bonds, any Refunding Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and 
Expense Obligations have been paid. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Alameda CTC will assign and cause all amounts available for distribution to Alameda CTC on 
account of the Sales Tax, after deducting amounts payable by Alameda CTC to the BOE for costs and 
expenses for its services in connection with the Sales Tax, to be transmitted by the BOE to the Trustee, 
which will hold amounts deposited in the Interest Fund and Principal Fund in trust for the benefit of the 
holders of the Bonds and will remit the remainder to Alameda CTC in accordance with the Indenture.  
See “Revenue Fund; Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues”  below. 

Page 386Page 386Page 386Page 386



 
 

79348408.8  7 

The Project Fund will be held by the Trustee and the Project Fund, investments held therein and 
the investment earnings thereon will be pledged to the repayment of the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant to 
the Indenture. 

Alameda CTC shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source other than 
Revenues for the payment of principal or interest on the Series 2014 Bonds or for any other purpose of 
the Indenture. 

For a more detailed description of the Sales Tax Revenues and projected receipts of Sales Tax 
Revenues, see “THE SALES TAX” herein. 

Revenue Fund; Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues 

The Trustee will deposit all Sales Tax Revenues, when and as received by the Trustee, in a trust 
fund, designated as the Revenue Fund (the “Revenue Fund”).  All other Revenues will also be deposited 
in the Revenue Fund. 

So long as any Bonds remain Outstanding and any Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations, 
Fee and Expense Obligations and other amounts payable under the Indenture remain unpaid, in each 
month following receipt and deposit of the Sales Tax Revenues in the Revenue Fund, the Trustee is 
required to set aside the moneys in the Revenue Fund in the following respective funds, amounts and 
order of priority (provided that deficiencies in any previously required deposit may be made up prior to 
the deposit to a fund subsequent in priority and further provided that set asides or transfers required with 
respect to outstanding Parity Obligations shall be made on a parity basis each month, as provided in the 
Indenture): 

1 Interest Fund.  The Indenture requires the Trustee to make monthly deposits in 
the Interest Fund in an amount equal to (a) one-sixth of the aggregate semiannual amount of 
interest becoming due and payable on the Outstanding Current Interest Bonds (other than Bonds 
constituting Variable Rate Indebtedness) during the next ensuing six (6) months (excluding any 
interest for which there are moneys deposited in the Interest Fund from the proceeds of any Series 
of Bonds or other source and reserved as capitalized interest to pay such interest during said next 
ensuing six (6) months); plus (b) the aggregate amount of interest to accrue during that month on 
Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness, calculated, if the actual rate of interest is not known, at 
the interest rate specified in writing by Alameda CTC, or if Alameda CTC does not specify an 
interest rate in writing, calculated at the maximum interest rate borne by such Variable Rate 
Indebtedness during the month prior to the month of deposit plus 100 basis points (provided, 
however, that the amount of such deposit into the Interest Fund for any month may be reduced by 
the amount by which the deposit in the prior month exceeded the actual amount of interest 
accrued and paid during that month on said Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness and provided 
further that the amount of such deposit into the Interest Fund for any month will be increased by 
the amount by which the deposit in the prior month was less than the actual amount of interest 
accruing during that month on said Outstanding Variable Rate Indebtedness).  No deposit need be 
made into the Interest Fund if the amount contained therein is at least equal to the interest to 
become due and payable on the Interest Payment Dates falling within the next six (6) months 
upon all of the Bonds issued under the Indenture and then Outstanding, and on March 1 and 
September 1 of each year any excess amounts in the Interest Fund not needed to pay interest on 
such date (and not held to pay interest on Bonds having Interest Payment Dates other than March 
1 and September 1) will be transferred to Alameda CTC (but excluding, in each case, any moneys 
on deposit in the Interest Fund from the proceeds of any Series of Bonds or other source and 
reserved as capitalized interest to pay interest on any future Interest Payment Dates following 

Page 387Page 387Page 387Page 387



 
 

79348408.8  8 

such Interest Payment Dates); subject to such adjustments as are provided pursuant to the 
provisions of the Indenture.  See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE INDENTURE.” 

2 Principal Fund; Sinking Accounts.  The Indenture also requires the Trustee to 
make monthly deposits in the Principal Fund in an amount equal to at least (a) one-sixth of the 
aggregate semiannual amount of Bond Obligation becoming due and payable on the Outstanding 
Serial Bonds of all Series having semiannual maturity dates within the next six (6) months, plus 
(b) one-twelfth of the aggregate yearly amount of Bond Obligation becoming due and payable on 
the Outstanding Serial Bonds of all Series having annual maturity dates within the next twelve 
(12) months, plus (c) one-sixth of the aggregate of the Mandatory Sinking Account Payments to 
be paid during the next six-month period into the respective Sinking Accounts for the Term 
Bonds of all Series for which Sinking Accounts have been created and for which semiannual 
mandatory redemption is required from said Sinking Accounts, plus (d) one-twelfth of the 
aggregate of the Mandatory Sinking Account Payments to be paid during the next 12-month 
period into the respective Sinking Accounts for the Term Bonds of all Series for which Sinking 
Accounts shall have been created and for which annual mandatory redemption is required from 
such Sinking Accounts; provided that if Alameda CTC certifies to the Trustee that any principal 
payments are expected to be refunded on or prior to their respective due dates or paid from 
amounts on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund that would be in excess of the Bond Reserve 
Requirement applicable to such Bond Reserve Fund upon such payment, no amounts need be set 
aside towards such principal to be so refunded or paid. 

If Sales Tax Revenues shall not be sufficient to make the required deposits so that 
moneys in the Principal Fund on any principal or mandatory redemption date are equal to the 
amount of Bond Obligation to become due and payable on the Outstanding Serial Bonds of all 
Series plus the Bond Obligation amount of and redemption premium on the Outstanding Term 
Bonds required to be redeemed or paid at maturity on such date, then such moneys shall be 
applied on a Proportionate Basis and in such proportion as said Serial Bonds and said Term 
Bonds shall bear to each other, after first deducting for such purposes from said Term Bonds any 
of said Term Bonds required to be redeemed annually as shall have been redeemed or purchased 
during the preceding 12-month period and any of said Term Bonds required to be redeemed 
semiannually as shall have been redeemed or purchased during the six-month period ending on 
such date or the immediately preceding six month period. In the event that the Sales Tax 
Revenues shall not be sufficient to pay in full all Mandatory Sinking Account Payments required 
to be paid at any one time into all such Sinking Accounts, then payments into all such Sinking 
Accounts will be made on a Proportionate Basis, in proportion that the respective Mandatory 
Sinking Account Payments required to be made into each Sinking Account during the then 
current 12-month period bear to the aggregate of all of the Mandatory Sinking Account Payments 
required to be made into all such Sinking Accounts during such 12-month period. 

No deposit need be made into the Principal Fund so long as there is in such fund (i) 
moneys sufficient to pay the Bond Obligations of all Serial Bonds then Outstanding and maturing 
by their terms within the next twelve (12) months plus (ii) the aggregate of all Mandatory Sinking 
Account Payments required to be made in such 12-month period, but less any amounts deposited 
into the Principal Fund during such 12-month period and theretofore paid from the Principal Fund 
to redeem or purchase Term Bonds during such 12-month period; provided that if Alameda CTC 
certifies to the Trustee that any principal payments are expected to be refunded on or prior to their 
respective due dates or paid from amounts on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund that would be in 
excess of the Bond Reserve Requirement applicable to such Bond Reserve Fund upon such 
payment, no amounts need be on deposit with respect to such principal payments.  At the 

Page 388Page 388Page 388Page 388



 
 

79348408.8  9 

beginning of each Fiscal Year and in any event not later than March 1 of each year, the Trustee is 
required to request from Alameda CTC a Certificate of Alameda CTC setting forth the principal 
payments for which deposits will not be necessary pursuant to the preceding sentence and the 
reason therefor.  On March 1 of each year or as soon as practicable thereafter any excess amounts 
in the Principal Fund not needed to pay principal on such date (and not held to pay principal on 
Bonds having principal payment dates other than March 1) will be transferred to Alameda CTC.  
See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.” 

3 Bond Reserve Fund.  Upon the occurrence of any deficiency in any Bond 
Reserve Fund, the Trustee will make such deposit to such Bond Reserve Fund as is required by 
the Indenture until the balance in such Bond Reserve Fund is at least equal to the applicable Bond 
Reserve Requirement. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 
THE INDENTURE.” No Bond Reserve Fund will be established in connection with the issuance 
of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

4 Subordinate Obligations Fund.  If Alameda CTC issues or incurs Subordinate 
Obligations, the Trustee will establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as 
the “Subordinate Obligations Fund.”  After the transfers described in (1), (2) and (3) above have 
been made, the Trustee will deposit in the Subordinate Obligations Fund in each month such 
amount as Alameda CTC will specify in writing is necessary to make payments due and payable 
during the following month with respect to Subordinate Obligations then outstanding. 

5 Fees and Expenses Fund.  If Alameda CTC incurs Fee and Expense Obligations, 
the Trustee will establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the “Fees and 
Expenses Fund.”  After the transfers described in (1), (2), (3) and (4) above have been made, the 
Trustee will deposit in the Fees and Expenses Fund in each month the amounts necessary for 
payment of Fee and Expense Obligations owing in such month or owing in the following month 
by Alameda CTC.  Alameda CTC will inform the Trustee of such amounts, in writing, such 
notification to be provided no later than the tenth calendar day of each month. 

See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE – Allocation of 
Sales Tax Revenues” for a more complete discussion. 

All amounts held on deposit in the funds and accounts established pursuant to the provisions of 
the Indenture will be held by the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2014 Bonds and any 
Refunding Bonds.  After making the foregoing allocations, all Sales Tax Revenues will be transferred to 
Alameda CTC and may be applied by Alameda CTC for all lawful purposes of Alameda CTC. 

No Bond Reserve Fund for the Series 2014 Bonds 

No Bond Reserve Fund will be established for the Series 2014 Bonds. 

No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds 

General.  Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC may only issue 
additional Bonds in order to refund all or any portion of any Series 2014 Bonds or Parity Obligations then 
outstanding.  Any such additional Series of Bonds shall be payable from Sales Tax Revenues and secured 
by the pledge made under the Indenture equally and ratably with the Series 2014 Bonds and shall be 
established by Supplemental Indenture, subject, among other things, to the following conditions precedent 
to the issuance of any additional Series of Bonds:  

Page 389Page 389Page 389Page 389



 
 

79348408.8  10 

(A) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing under the Indenture. 

(B) Subject to the provisions of the Indenture relating to application of moneys in a Bond 
Reserve Fund, if a Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of Bonds shall 
require either (i) the establishment of a Bond Reserve Fund to provide additional security for such Series 
of Bonds or (ii) that the balance on deposit in an existing Bond Reserve Fund be increased, forthwith 
upon the receipt of the proceeds of the sale of such Series, to an amount at least equal to the Bond 
Reserve Requirement with respect to such Series of Bonds and all other Bonds secured by such Bond 
Reserve Fund to be considered Outstanding upon the issuance of such additional Series of Bonds, the 
Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such additional Series of Bonds shall require 
deposit of the amount necessary. Such deposit shall be made as provided in the Supplemental Indenture 
providing for the issuance of such additional Series of Bonds and may be made from the proceeds of the 
sale of such Series of Bonds or from other funds of Alameda CTC or from both such sources or may be 
made in the form of a Reserve Facility.  No Bond Reserve Fund will be established for the Series 2014 
Bonds. 

(C) The aggregate principal amount of Bonds issued under the Indenture shall not exceed any 
limitation imposed by the Act, the Ordinance or any other law or by any Supplemental Indenture. 

(D) Principal payments of each additional Series of Bonds shall be due on March 1 or 
September 1 in each year in which principal is to be paid if and to the extent deemed practical in the 
reasonable judgment of Alameda CTC with regard to the type of Bond to be issued, and, if the interest on 
such Series of Bonds is to be paid semiannually, such interest payments shall be due on March 1 and 
September 1 in each year to the extent deemed practical in the reasonable judgment of Alameda CTC 
with regard to the type of Bond to be issued. 

Proceedings for Issuance of Refunding Bonds.  Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 
Bonds, before any additional Series of Bonds shall be issued and delivered, Alameda CTC shall file each 
of the documents identified below with the Trustee (upon which documents the Trustee may conclusively 
rely in determining whether the conditions precedent to the issuance of such Series of Bonds have been 
satisfied). 

(A) A Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series executed by Alameda CTC. 

(B) A Certificate of Alameda CTC certifying:  (i) that no Event of Default has occurred and 
is then continuing under the Indenture; and (ii) that the requirement specified in paragraph (B) under the 
caption “– No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds – General” above has been satisfied 
by Alameda CTC. 

(C) A Certificate of Alameda CTC certifying that Maximum Annual Debt Service on all 
Bonds Outstanding and all Parity Obligations outstanding following the issuance of such Refunding 
Bonds is less than or equal to Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Bonds Outstanding and all Parity 
Obligations outstanding prior to the issuance of such Refunding Bonds. 

(D) An Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the Supplemental Indenture is being 
entered into in accordance with the Indenture and that such Series of Bonds, when duly executed by 
Alameda CTC and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, will be valid and binding obligations of 
Alameda CTC.   

(E) If any of the Bonds to be refunded are to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity dates, 
irrevocable instructions to the Trustee to give the applicable notice of redemption or a waiver of the 

Page 390Page 390Page 390Page 390



 
 

79348408.8  11 

notice of redemption signed by the Holders of all or the portion of the Bonds or Parity Obligations to be 
redeemed, or proof that such notice has been given by Alameda CTC; provided, however, that in lieu of 
such instructions or waiver or proof of notice of redemption, Alameda CTC may cause to be deposited 
with the Trustee all of the Bonds and Parity Obligations proposed to be redeemed (whether canceled or 
uncanceled) with irrevocable instructions to the Trustee to cancel said Bonds or Parity Obligations so to 
be redeemed upon the exchange and delivery of said Refunding Bonds; and provided further that no 
provision of the Indenture shall be construed to require the redemption of Bonds prior to their respective 
maturity dates in connection with the refunding thereof. 

See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Subordinate Obligations 

Except to the extent restricted by the Indenture, Alameda CTC may issue or incur obligations 
(“Subordinate Obligations”) payable out of Sales Tax Revenues on a basis junior and subordinate to the 
payment of the principal, interest and reserve fund requirements for the Bonds and Parity Obligations, as 
the same become due and payable and at the times and in the manner as required by the Indenture or as 
required by the instrument pursuant to which such Parity Obligations were issued or incurred, as 
applicable.  Alameda CTC currently has no outstanding Subordinate Obligations and currently has no 
plans to issue any Subordinate Obligations. 

THE SALES TAX  

General 

In accordance with the Act, on November 7, 2000, more than two-thirds of the voters of the 
County voting on the measure (specifically 81.5% of such voters) approved Measure B, which authorized 
the imposition of the Sales Tax in the County.  The Sales Tax commenced on April 1, 2002 and will be 
collected for a twenty-year period ending on March 31, 2022.  The Sales Tax consists of a one-half of one 
percent (1/2%) sales tax on the gross receipts of retailers from the sale of tangible personal property sold 
in the County and a use tax at the same rate upon the storage, use or other consumption in the County of 
such property purchased from any retailer for storage, use or other consumption in the County, subject to 
certain limited exceptions described below. 

The one-half of one percent sales tax imposed in the County for transportation purposes and 
administered by Alameda CTC is in addition to the sales tax levied statewide by the State of California 
(the “State”) and certain other sales taxes imposed by cities and local agencies within the County.  See 
“THE SALES TAX – Other Sales Taxes Imposed in the County.”  Proposition 30, approved by the voters 
of the State in the November 2012 election, increased the statewide sales tax by one-quarter of one 
percent, from 7.25% to 7.5%, for a period of four years from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2016.  In 
general, the statewide sales tax applies to the gross receipts of retailers from the sale of tangible personal 
property.  The statewide use tax is imposed on the storage, use or other consumption in the State of 
property purchased from a retailer for such storage, use or other consumption.  Since the use tax does not 
apply to cases where the sale of the property is subject to the sales tax, the application of the use tax 
generally applies to purchases made outside of the State for use within the State. 

The Sales Tax generally is imposed upon the same transactions and items subject to the sales and 
use tax levied statewide by the State (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “State Sales Tax”), with 
generally the same exceptions.  Many categories of transactions are exempt from the State Sales Tax and 
the Sales Tax. The most important of these exemptions are: sales of food products for home consumption, 
prescription medicine, edible livestock and their feed, seed and fertilizer used in raising food for human 

Page 391Page 391Page 391Page 391



 
 

79348408.8  12 

consumption, and gas, electricity and water when delivered to consumers through mains, lines and pipes.  
In addition, “Occasional Sales” (i.e., sales of property not held or used by a seller in the course of 
activities for which he or she is required to hold a seller’s permit) are generally exempt from the State 
Sales Tax and from the Sales Tax; however, the “Occasional Sales” exemption does not apply to the sale 
of an entire business and other sales of machinery and equipment used in a business.  Sales of property to 
be used outside the County which are shipped to a point outside the County, pursuant to the contract of 
sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a 
consignee, at such point, are exempt from the State Sales Tax and from the Sales Tax. 

Action by the State Legislature or by voter initiative or judicial decisions interpreting State law 
could change the transactions and items upon which the State Sales Tax and the Sales Tax are imposed.  
Such changes or amendments could have either an adverse or beneficial effect on Sales Tax Revenues.  
Alameda CTC is not currently aware of any proposed legislative change which would have a material 
adverse effect on Sales Tax Revenues.  See also “RISK FACTORS – Proposition 218” herein. 

Collection of Sales Tax Revenues 

Collection of the Sales Tax is administered by the BOE. Alameda CTC and the BOE have entered 
into an agreement for state administration of transactions and use taxes [which is being amended and 
restated] to authorize payment of Sales Tax Revenues directly to the Trustee.  [Pursuant to the amended 
and restated agreement,] the BOE, after deducting amounts payable to itself for administrative costs, will 
be required to remit the balance of amounts received from the Sales Tax directly to the Trustee.  The 
Trustee will be required to apply the Sales Tax Revenues to make deposits to the funds and accounts 
established under the Indenture.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 
2014 BONDS” herein.  The fee that the BOE is authorized to charge for collection of the Sales Tax is 
determined by State legislation.  The BOE fee for collection of the Sales Tax for Fiscal Year 2013-14 is 
estimated at $1,507,530. 

Historical Sales Tax Revenues 

The following table sets forth Sales Tax Revenues net of the BOE administrative fee for the 
Fiscal Years indicated below.     

Page 392Page 392Page 392Page 392



 
 

79348408.8  13 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
HISTORICAL SALES TAX REVENUES 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

Sales    
Tax Revenues(1) 

% Change 
From Prior Fiscal Year 

   
2003 $  92,695,376  
2004 99,054,892 6.86% 
2005 101,134,874 2.10 
2006 110,339,552 9.10 
2007 113,726,121 3.07 
2008 116,267,321 2.23 
2009 101,317,661 (12.86) 
2010 94,453,574 (6.77) 
2011 105,393,813 11.58 
2012 112,568,093 6.81 
2013 121,084,780 7.57 

________________ 
(1) Net of BOE administrative fee. 
Source:  Alameda CTC. 
 

Annual Sales Tax Revenues for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013 were $121,084,780, 
representing an increase in the amount of $8,516,687 or 7.57% from Sales Tax Revenues for the Fiscal 
Year ended June 30, 2012.  Sales Tax Revenues for the first quarter of the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 
2014 were $31,666,900, representing an increase of 2.49% from Sales Tax Revenues for the first quarter 
of the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013. 

Alameda CTC is unable to predict the amount of future Sales Tax Revenues.  For a summary of 
historical taxable retail sales within the County, see the table entitled “County of Alameda, Taxable Sales 
Transactions” in APPENDIX B – “COUNTY OF ALAMEDA DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC 
INFORMATION.” 

The following table sets forth the Maximum Annual Debt Service coverage on the Series 2014 
Bonds based on Sales Tax Revenues for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
COVERAGE RATIO 

Sales Tax Revenues 
Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2013 
Maximum Annual  

Debt Service*   

 
Coverage  

Ratio∗ 
$_________ $_______   

________________ 
Source:  Public Financial Management, Inc. 

Other Sales Taxes Imposed in the County 

With limited exceptions, the Sales Tax is imposed on the same transactions and items subject to 
the State Sales Tax.  See “RISK FACTORS – Other Sales Taxes” herein.  In addition to the State Sales 
                                                      
∗  Preliminary, subject to change. 

Page 393Page 393Page 393Page 393



 
 

79348408.8  14 

Tax and the Sales Tax, the following sales and use taxes are imposed by certain entities within the 
County.  No portion of the State Sales Tax or the following taxes imposed within the County are pledged 
to the repayment of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

Sales and Use Tax 
Tax 
Rate 

Effective  
Date 

Termination 
Date 

    
Alameda County Essential Health Care Services(1) 0.50% 07/01/2004 06/30/2019 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District(1) 0.50% 04/01/1970 N/A 
City of Albany(2) 0.50% 04/01/2013 03/31/2021 
City of San Leandro(2) 0.25% 04/01/2011 03/31/2018 
City of Union City(2) 0.50% 04/01/2011 03/31/2015 

____________________ 
(1)  Levied throughout the County. 
(2)  Levied only in the respective cities. 
Source: California City and County Sales and Use Tax Rates (October 1, 2013) and BOE. 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

General 

Alameda CTC is a joint powers agency formed to plan, fund and deliver a broad spectrum of 
transportation projects and programs to enhance mobility throughout the County.  Alameda CTC is the 
successor to two previous agencies, the Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority 
(“ACTIA”), which was the successor to the Alameda County Transportation Authority (“ACTA”) and the 
Alameda County Congestion Management Agency (“ACCMA”), as described below.  

ACTA was created in connection with the approval of a ballot measure (“Original Measure B”) 
by County voters in November 1986. Original Measure B authorized the imposition of a one-half of one 
percent (½%) sales and use tax in the County for a period of 15 years.  Proceeds of Original Measure B 
funded highway improvements, local transportation improvements, and transit funding in the County 
identified in the Alameda County Expenditure Plan adopted on April 1, 1986.  

In November 2000, prior to the expiration of Original Measure B, the County Board of 
Supervisors placed Measure B on the ballot and County voters voting on the measure approved Measure 
B with 81.5% support.  ACTIA was formed to manage Measure B funds, as detailed in “Alameda 
County’s 20-Year Transportation Expenditure Plan,” adopted in July 2000 (the “Expenditure Plan”). 
Administration activities by ACTIA included contract oversight, policy direction, financing, investment 
management, and coordinating projects with regional transit and transportation agencies and other project 
sponsors, as required.  

The sales tax authorized by Original Measure B terminated on March 31, 2002.  Subsequently, 
ACTA continued to complete certain unfinished projects. On June 24, 2010, the ACTA Board adopted a 
resolution to transfer all of ACTA’s assets, responsibilities, functions and liabilities to ACTIA, effective 
on July 1, 2010. This resolution also provided for the termination of ACTA following the completion of 
the transfer process.  

ACCMA was created in 1991 pursuant to a joint powers agreement between the County and all 
cities within the County.  ACCMA was responsible for planning, programming, and coordinating Federal, 
State, and regional funds for transportation projects within the County, including the Sunol Smart Carpool 
Lane Project, which planned, designed and constructed, and then administered the operation of a value 

Page 394Page 394Page 394Page 394



 
 

79348408.8  15 

pricing high-occupancy vehicle program on the Sunol Grade segment of southbound Interstate 680 in 
Alameda and Santa Clara counties. 

In early 2010, ACTIA, ACCMA, the County, the fourteen cities within the County, the San 
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District each acted to 
form Alameda CTC to combine the roles of ACCMA and ACTIA. 

On June 24, 2010, the governing bodies of ACTIA and ACCMA gave the final approvals 
required to create Alameda CTC. After a transition period necessary to accomplish certain administrative 
matters, on February 29, 2012, ACTIA and ACCMA were both terminated, and Alameda CTC was 
designated as the successor to both agencies.  Alameda CTC has all the functions and responsibilities 
previously held by ACTA, ACTIA and ACCMA, along with certain additional powers as described in the 
joint powers agreement establishing Alameda CTC. 

Governance 

 Alameda CTC is governed by a Commission consisting of 22 Commissioners, with the following 
representation:  all five County Supervisors, two City of Oakland representatives and one representative 
from each of the other 13 cities in the County, one representative from the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid 
Transit District and one representative from the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District.  The role of the 
Commission is to act as a policy-making board for Alameda CTC activities. 

Executive Staff 

Alameda CTC’s key staff members, the position held by each and a brief statement of the 
background of each staff member are set forth below. 

Arthur L. Dao, Executive Director.  Arthur L. Dao is Alameda CTC’s first Executive Director, 
leading the integration of both ACTIA and ACCMA. He works with the Commission to provide for 
planning, funding and continued delivery of a broad range of transportation projects and programs 
throughout the County. Mr. Dao was the former deputy director of ACTIA from 2001 to 2010, and he 
brings over 25 years of transportation engineering and management experience to Alameda CTC. Mr. 
Dao holds a bachelor’s degree of science in civil engineering from the University of California at Davis, 
and he is a licensed professional engineer. 

Tess Lengyel, Deputy Director of Planning and Policy.  Tess Lengyel is the Deputy Director of 
Planning and Policy for Alameda CTC with over 23 years of transportation experience. Ms. Lengyel 
directs all short and long-range transportation planning for the County which provides the foundation for 
transportation funding decisions made by Alameda CTC.  Ms. Lengyel led the development of a new $8 
billion transportation expenditure plan that will go before County voters in November 2014 and was also 
a key participant in the passage of Measure B.  She is also responsible for policy, legislation and public 
affairs at Alameda CTC.  Prior to joining Alameda CTC, Ms. Lengyel served as a programs and public 
affairs manager for ACTIA and was responsible for the development and implementation of $60 million 
per year of ACTIA’s programmatic expenditures.  Ms. Lengyel holds a bachelor’s degree in planning and 
policy/environmental studies, and is Chair of the International Women’s Transportation Seminar 
Leadership Program. 

Stewart Ng, Deputy Director of Programming and Projects.  Stewart Ng has been the Deputy 
Director of Programming and Projects since August 2011.  Mr. Ng has over 35 years of transportation 
project delivery experience on public infrastructure projects in the Bay Area. Currently, he is 
managing capital projects and grant programs in the County totaling over $4 billion. Mr. Ng’s previous 

Page 395Page 395Page 395Page 395



 
 

79348408.8  16 

position was Caltrans District 4’s Deputy Director of Projects and Programs for the 9-Bay Area Counties 
managing projects and programs totaling $10 billion. Mr. Ng has served as both the project and design 
manager for Caltrans on the $600 million 1996 Measure B Highway Program of the Santa Clara Valley 
Transportation Authority (“VTA”), closely assisting VTA with the delivery of its 1996 Measure B half-
cent transportation sales tax measure. 

Patricia Reavey, Director of Finance.  Patricia Reavey has been the Director of Finance for 
Alameda CTC since December 2010.  Ms. Reavey brings over 25 years of finance related experience to 
Alameda CTC.  She came to Alameda CTC from the San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans), 
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (Caltrain) and the San Mateo County Transportation Authority 
(SMCTA) where she served as the Director of Finance since December 2005.  She was a member of the 
San Mateo County Investment Pool Oversight Committee until she resigned when coming to Alameda 
CTC.  Her public sector career began in April, 2002 working for SamTrans where she was promoted to 
Director of Finance by December 2005.  Prior to her career in the public sector, she worked in finance for 
a private firm in downtown San Francisco for 14 years.  The company name changed multiple times due 
to mergers and acquisitions, but Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein was ultimately the name of the agency 
from which she resigned as Controller and Vice President. Ms. Reavey is a licensed CPA in the State of 
California.   

Expenditure Plan 

In July 2000, ACTIA, the predecessor to Alameda CTC, adopted the Expenditure Plan for the 
Sales Tax. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2001-1, Sales Tax Revenues from the Sales Tax may be used to 
finance the transportation projects and programs listed in the Expenditure Plan. For planning purposes, 
38.3% of Sales Tax Revenues are earmarked by Alameda CTC for capital projects.  The entire 
Expenditure Plan is located at http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/4897/2000 
_MeasureB_Expenditure_Plan_v14.pdf.  Information set forth on such website is not incorporated herein 
by reference. 

The priorities set forth in the Expenditure Plan include:  

1.  Expand mass transit programs that have a demonstrated ability to get people out of their 
cars, including major new expansions of the BART system in the County, Altamont Commuter Express 
Rail service, and express, local and feeder bus services.  

2.  Improve the County’s aging highway infrastructure by funding major new projects to 
improve interchanges, open new lanes, and improve surface streets and arterial roads that feed key 
commute corridors.  

3.  Maintain and improve local streets and roads by providing critical funds to the County 
and every city within the County for maintenance and upkeep of local streets and roads, including, but not 
limited to, repaving streets, filling potholes, and upgrading local transportation infrastructure.  

4.  Improve bike and pedestrian infrastructure to improve access and maximize safety for 
cyclists and pedestrians.  

5.  Expand special transportation services for seniors and people with disabilities. 

Other than the Series 2014 Bonds, Alameda CTC does not currently plan to issue additional debt 
to finance projects under the Expenditure Plan. 

Page 396Page 396Page 396Page 396



 
 

79348408.8  17 

Future Expenditure Plan 

The Commission is planning to seek approval from cities within the County and from the County 
Board of Supervisors for a new sales tax measure to be submitted to the voters of the County in 
November 2014.  If this effort and the November 2014 ballot measure are successful, Alameda CTC 
would receive additional sales tax revenues to fund a new transportation expenditure plan.  Any sales tax 
revenues generated by this effort would not serve as security for the Series 2014 Bonds and the revenues 
available from such tax would not be available to pay debt service on the Series 2014 Bonds. In addition, 
any debt issued to fund the new transportation expenditure plan would not be secured by or payable from 
the Sales Tax Revenues. The draft new transportation expenditure plan can be located at 
http://www.alamedactc.org/files/managed/Document/12452/8.1_Combo.pdf. Information set forth on 
such website is not incorporated herein by reference. 

Cash and Investments 

As of December 31, 2013 (based on unaudited financial information), Alameda CTC had 
approximately $_______ million, at book value, in cash and investments.  The discretionary accounts 
were invested, as of December 31, 2013, as follows: 

Cash and Investments Percentage of Total Book Value 
as of December 31, 2013 

  
  Total  $______________ 100.0% 

 
Debt Policy 

The Commissioners adopted a Debt Policy on July 25, 2013.  The Debt Policy is subject to 
revision by majority action of the Commissioners. Overall policy direction of the Debt Policy is provided 
by the Commission. Responsibility for implementation of the Debt Policy and day-to-day responsibility 
and authority for structuring, implementing, and managing Alameda CTC debt and finance program, 
resides with the Executive Director and Director of Finance of Alameda CTC.  Priorities of the Debt 
Policy are as follows: 

• Effectively manage and mitigate financial risk  

• Maintain strong credit ratings and good investor relations  

• Achieve the lowest cost of capital 

• Preserve future program flexibility 

• Maintain ready and cost-effective access to the capital markets 

A copy of the full Debt Policy can be obtained from the Director of Finance of Alameda CTC at 1111 
Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607.  

Page 397Page 397Page 397Page 397



 
 

79348408.8  18 

  RISK FACTORS 

Economy of the County and the State 

The amount of Sales Tax Revenues collected at any time is directly dependent upon the level of 
retail sales within the County.  The economy of the County during the period 2008 through 2010 
experienced significant stress, as evidenced by an increased unemployment rate, a decrease in total 
personal income and taxable sales, a drop in residential and commercial building permits, a decline in the 
rate of home sales and the median price of single-family homes and condominiums, an increase in notices 
of default on mortgage loans secured by homes and condominiums and an increase in foreclosures 
resulting from such defaults.  Sales Tax Revenues have rebounded from the low point in Fiscal Year 
2009-10, growing 11.58% in Fiscal Year 2010-11, 6.81% in Fiscal Year 2011-12 and 7.57% in Fiscal 
Year 2012-13.  For information relating to historic and current economic conditions within the County 
and the State, see “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT – The Sales Tax” and APPENDIX B – 
“COUNTY DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION.” 

The Sales Tax 

With limited exceptions, the Sales Tax is imposed upon the same transactions and items subject 
to the State Sales Tax.  The State Legislature or the voters within the State, through the initiative process, 
or judicial decisions interpreting State law, could change or limit the transactions and items upon which 
the State Sales Tax and the Sales Tax are imposed.  Any such change or limitation could have a material 
adverse impact on the Sales Tax Revenues collected.  For a further description of the Sales Tax, see “THE 
SALES TAX.” 

Increased Internet Use May Reduce Sales Tax Revenues 

The increasing use of the Internet to conduct electronic commerce may affect the levels of Sales 
Tax Revenues.  Internet sales of physical products by businesses located in the State, and Internet sales of 
physical products delivered to the State by businesses located outside of the State are generally subject to 
the Sales Tax.  However, Alameda CTC believes that many of these transactions may avoid taxation 
either through error or deliberate non-reporting and this potentially reduces the amount of Sales Tax 
Revenues.  As a result, the more that the Internet is used to conduct electronic commerce, along with the 
failure to collect sales taxes on such Internet purchases, the more that Alameda CTC may experience 
reductions of Sales Tax Revenues. 

Proposition 218 

On November 5, 1996, voters in the State approved an initiative known as the Right to Vote on 
Taxes Act (“Proposition 218”).  Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California 
Constitution. Article XIIIC requires majority voter approval for the imposition, extension or increase of 
general taxes and two-thirds voter approval for the imposition, extension or increase of special taxes by a 
local government, which is defined to include local or regional governmental agencies such as Alameda 
CTC.  The Sales Tax was approved by more than two thirds of the voters in the County and is therefore in 
compliance with the requirements of Proposition 218.  Article XIIIC also removes limitations that may 
have applied to the voter initiative power with regard to reducing or repealing previously authorized local 
taxes, even previously voter-approved taxes like the Sales Tax.  In the view of Alameda CTC, however, 
any attempt by the voters to use the initiative provisions of Proposition 218 to rescind or reduce the levy 
and collection of the Sales Tax in a manner which would prevent the payment of debt service on the 
Series 2014 Bond, would violate the Contracts Clause of the United States Constitution and, accordingly, 

Page 398Page 398Page 398Page 398



 
 

79348408.8  19 

would be precluded.  The interpretation and application of Proposition 218 will ultimately be determined 
by the courts. 

Further Initiatives 

Proposition 218 was adopted as a measure that qualified for the ballot pursuant to California’s 
initiative process.  From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted, which may affect 
Alameda CTC’s ability to levy and collect the Sales Tax. 

No Acceleration or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default 

The Indenture does not contain a provision allowing for the acceleration of the Series 2014 Bonds 
or an increase in the interest rate on the Series 2014 Bonds, in the event of a default in the payment of 
principal and interest on the Series 2014 Bonds when due.  In the event of a default by Alameda CTC, the 
Holders of at least a majority of the aggregate amount of the Series 2014 Bonds will have the right to 
request the Trustee to exercise the remedies, subject to the limitations thereon, set forth in the Indenture.  
See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Loss of Tax Exemption 

As discussed under “TAX MATTERS,” interest on the Series 2014 Bonds could become 
includable in federal gross income, possibly from the date of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, as a 
result of acts or omissions of Alameda CTC subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Should 
interest become includable in federal gross income, the Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to redemption 
by reason thereof and will remain outstanding until maturity. 

Impact of Bankruptcy of Alameda CTC 

Alameda CTC may be authorized to file for Chapter 9 municipal bankruptcy under certain 
circumstances.  Should Alameda CTC file for bankruptcy, there could be adverse effects on the holders of 
the Series 2014 Bonds.  

If the Sales Tax Revenues are “special revenues” under the Bankruptcy Code, then Sales Tax 
Revenues collected after the date of the bankruptcy filing should be subject to the lien of the Indenture.  
“Special revenues” are defined to include taxes specifically levied to finance one or more projects or 
systems, excluding receipts from general property, sales, or income taxes levied to finance the general 
purposes of the governmental entity.  The Sales Tax was levied to finance the Expenditure Plan, which 
includes a number of projects (collectively referred to herein as the “Expenditure Plan Projects”), and 
some of these Expenditure Plan Projects are described in broad terms.  In addition, the Expenditure Plan 
Projects are not owned by Alamenda CTC.  No assurance can be given that a court would not hold that 
the Sales Tax Revenues are not special revenues.  Were the Sales Tax Revenues determined not to be 
“special revenues,” then Sales Tax Revenues collected after the commencement of a bankruptcy case 
would likely not be subject to the lien of the Indenture.  The holders of the Series 2014 Bonds may not be 
able to assert a claim against any property of Alameda CTC other than the Sales Tax Revenues, and were 
these amounts no longer subject to the lien of the Indenture following commencement of a bankruptcy 
case, then there could thereafter be no amounts from which the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds are 
entitled to be paid. 

The Bankruptcy Code provides that special revenues can be applied to necessary operating 
expenses of the project or system from which the special revenues are derived, before they are applied to 
other obligations.  This rule applies regardless of the provisions of the transaction documents.  The law is 

Page 399Page 399Page 399Page 399



 
 

79348408.8  20 

not clear as to whether, or to what extent, Sales Tax Revenues would be considered to be “derived” from 
the Expenditure Plan Projects.  To the extent that Sales Tax Revenues are determined to be both special 
revenues and derived from the Expenditure Plan Projects, Alameda CTC may be able to use Sales Tax 
Revenues to pay necessary operating expenses connected with the Expenditure Plan Projects, before the 
remaining Sales Tax Revenues are turned over to the Trustee to pay amounts owed to the holders of the 
Series 2014 Bonds.  It is not clear precisely which expenses would constitute necessary operating 
expenses. 

If Alameda CTC is in bankruptcy, the parties (including the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds) 
may be prohibited from taking any action to collect any amount from Alameda CTC or to enforce any 
obligation of Alameda CTC, unless the permission of the bankruptcy court is obtained.  These restrictions 
may also prevent the Trustee from making payments to the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds from funds 
in the Trustee’s possession.  The procedure pursuant to which Sales Tax Revenues are paid directly by the 
BOE to the Trustee may no longer be enforceable, and Alameda CTC may be able to require the BOE to 
pay Sales Tax Revenues directly to Alameda CTC. 

Alameda CTC as a debtor in bankruptcy may be able to borrow additional money that is secured 
by a lien on any of its property (including Sales Tax Revenues), which lien could have priority over the 
lien of the Indenture, or to cause some Sales Tax Revenues to be released to it, free and clear of lien of the 
Indenture, in each case provided that the bankruptcy court determines that the rights of the Trustee and 
the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds will be adequately protected.  Alameda CTC may also be able, 
without the consent and over the objection of the Trustee and the holders of the Series 2014 Bonds, to 
alter the priority, interest rate, payment terms, collateral, maturity dates, payment sources, covenants 
(including tax-related covenants), and other terms or provisions of the Indenture and the Series 2014 
Bonds, provided that the bankruptcy court determines that the alterations are fair and equitable. 

There may be delays in payments on the Series 2014 Bonds while the court considers any of these 
issues.  There may be other possible effects of a bankruptcy of Alameda CTC that could result in delays 
or reductions in payments on the Series 2014 Bonds, or result in losses to the holders of the Series 2014 
Bonds.  Regardless of any specific adverse determinations in an Alameda CTC bankruptcy proceeding, 
the fact of an Alameda CTC bankruptcy proceeding could have an adverse effect on the liquidity and 
value of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of Alameda CTC for the Fiscal Year ended June 30 2013, included in 
APPENDIX A of this Official Statement have been audited by Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (the 
“Auditor”), independent auditors, as stated in their report therein.  The Auditor was not requested to 
consent to the inclusion of its report in APPENDIX A, nor has it undertaken to update its report or to take 
any action intended or likely to elicit information concerning the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the 
statements made in this Official Statement, and no opinion is expressed by the Auditor with respect to any 
event subsequent to the date of its report.  The Auditor has not been engaged to perform and has not 
performed, since the date of its report, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that report.  
The Auditor also has not performed any procedures relating to this Official Statement.  For more recent 
financial information with respect to the collection of Sales Tax Revenues, see “SALES TAXES —
Historical Sales Tax Revenues.” 

LITIGATION 

There is no pending or, to the knowledge of Alameda CTC, threatened litigation seeking to 
restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds or questioning or affecting the validity 

Page 400Page 400Page 400Page 400



 
 

79348408.8  21 

of the Series 2014 Bonds or the proceedings or authority under which they are to be issued or the levy, 
collection and pledge of Sales Tax Revenues.  Neither the creation, organization or existence of Alameda 
CTC, nor the title of the present Commissioners or officers of Alameda CTC to their respective offices, is 
being contested. 

TAX MATTERS 

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to Alameda CTC (“Bond 
Counsel”), based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and 
assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain 
covenants, interest on the Series 2014 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and is exempt from State 
of California personal income taxes.  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Series 
2014 Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and corporate 
alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted 
current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  A complete copy of 
the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix F hereto. 

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series 2014 Bonds is less than the amount to 
be paid at maturity of such Series 2014 Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at 
least annually over the term of such Series 2014 Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue 
discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each beneficial owner thereof, is 
treated as interest on the Series 2014 Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes and State of California personal income taxes.  For this purpose, the issue price of a particular 
maturity of the Series 2014 Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the 
Series 2014 Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The original issue 
discount with respect to any maturity of the Series 2014 Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of 
such Series 2014 Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-
line interpolations between compounding dates).  The accruing original issue discount is added to the 
adjusted basis of such Series 2014 Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including 
sale, prepayment, or payment on maturity) of such Series 2014 Bonds.  Beneficial owners of the Series 
2014 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of 
Series 2014 Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not 
purchase such Series 2014 Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a 
substantial amount of such Series 2014 Bonds is sold to the public. 

Series 2014 Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher 
than their principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium 
Bonds”) will be treated as having amortizable bond premium.  No deduction is allowable for the 
amortizable bond premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  However, the amount of tax-exempt 
interest received, and a beneficial owner’s basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of 
amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such beneficial owner.  Beneficial owners of Premium 
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond 
premium in their particular circumstances. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series 2014 Bonds.  
Alameda CTC has made certain representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, 
conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Series 2014 Bonds will not be 

Page 401Page 401Page 401Page 401



 
 

79348408.8  22 

included in federal gross income.  Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these 
covenants may result in interest on the Series 2014 Bonds being included in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  The opinion 
of Bond Counsel assumes the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants.  
Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or 
not taken), or events occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel’s 
attention after the date of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax 
status of interest on, the Series 2014 Bonds.  Accordingly, the opinion of Bond Counsel is not intended to, 
and may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or matters. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series 2014 Bonds is excluded from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income 
taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the 
Series 2014 Bonds may otherwise affect a beneficial owner’s federal, state or local tax liability.  The 
nature and extent of these other tax consequences depend upon the particular tax status of the beneficial 
owner or the beneficial owner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion 
regarding any such other tax consequences. 

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court 
decisions may cause interest on the Series 2014 Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in 
part, to federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise 
prevent beneficial owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest.  For 
example, legislative proposals have been made in recent years that would limit the exclusion from gross 
income of interest on obligations like the Series 2014 Bonds to some extent for taxpayers who are 
individuals and whose income is subject to higher marginal income tax rates.  The introduction or 
enactment of any such legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions may also affect, 
perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Series 2014 Bonds.  Prospective 
purchasers of the Series 2014 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact 
of any pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond 
Counsel is expected to express no opinion. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not 
directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment 
of the Series 2014 Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  It is not binding on the Internal Revenue 
Service (“IRS”) or the courts.  Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or 
assurance about the future activities of Alameda CTC, or about the effect of future changes in the Code, 
the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS.  Alameda 
CTC has covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the Code. 

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds ends with the issuance of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend Alameda 
CTC or the beneficial owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Series 2014 Bonds in the event of an 
audit examination by the IRS.  Under current procedures, parties other than Alameda CTC and its 
appointed counsel, including the beneficial owners, would have little, if any, right to participate in the 
audit examination process.  Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit 
examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with 
which Alameda CTC legitimately disagrees may not be practicable.  Any action of the IRS, including but 
not limited to selection of the Series 2014 Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, or an 
audit of obligations presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, 
the Series 2014 Bonds and may cause Alameda CTC or the beneficial owners to incur significant 
expense. 

Page 402Page 402Page 402Page 402



 
 

79348408.8  23 

LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the Series 2014 Bonds and certain other legal matters are subject to the approving 
opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to Alameda CTC.  A complete copy of the 
proposed form of Bond Counsel opinion is contained in Appendix F hereto.  Bond Counsel undertakes no 
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement.  Certain legal matters 
will be passed upon for Alameda CTC by Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, a member of Norton Rose 
Fulbright, as Disclosure Counsel, and by Wendel, Rosen, Black & Dean LLP, General Counsel to 
Alameda CTC, and for the Underwriters by Nixon Peabody LLP, as Underwriters’ Counsel. 

RATINGS 

Standard and Poor’s Financial Services LLC, a subsidiary of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. 
(“S&P”), has assigned a rating of “___” to the Series 2014 Bonds and Fitch Ratings, Inc.  (“Fitch”) has 
assigned a rating of “___” to the Series 2014 Bonds.  These ratings reflect only the views of S&P and 
Fitch, respectively, and do not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Series 2014 Bonds.  
An explanation of these ratings and any outlook associated with these ratings should be obtained from the 
respective rating agency. 

Alameda CTC has furnished to S&P and Fitch certain information respecting the Series 2014 
Bonds and Alameda CTC including information not included herein.  Generally, rating agencies base 
their ratings on such information and materials and their own investigations, studies and assumptions.  
The ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by S&P and Fitch, and there is no assurance 
that the ratings will continue for any period of time or that it will not be lowered, suspended or 
withdrawn.  Alameda CTC undertakes no responsibility to oppose any such revision, suspension or 
withdrawal.  Any reduction, suspension or withdrawal of the ratings, or other actions by a rating agency 
relating to its rating, may have an adverse effect on the market price for, or marketability of, the Series 
2014 Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The underwriters of the Series 2014 Bonds listed on the cover hereof have agreed, subject to 
certain conditions, to purchase the Series 2014 Bonds at a price of $____________ (representing 
$___________ aggregate principal amount of Series 2014 Bonds, plus a [net] premium of $__________, 
less an Underwriters’ discount of $________).  The Bond Purchase Agreement provides that the 
Underwriters will purchase all the Series 2014 Bonds if any are purchased. 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., an underwriter of the Series 2014 Bonds, has entered into a retail 
distribution agreement with each of TMC Bonds L.L.C. (“TMC”) and UBS Financial Services Inc. 
(“UBSFS”). Under these distribution agreements, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. may distribute municipal 
securities to retail investors through the financial advisor network of UBSFS and the electronic primary 
offering platform of TMC.  As part of this arrangement, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. may compensate 
TMC (and TMC may compensate its electronic platform member firms) and UBSFS for their selling 
efforts with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Alameda CTC has retained Public Financial Management Inc., San Francisco, California, as 
Financial Advisor in connection with the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Unless specifically noted, 
the Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent 
verification or assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information 

Page 403Page 403Page 403Page 403



 
 

79348408.8  24 

contained in this Official Statement.  The Financial Advisor is an independent financial advisory firm and 
is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public 
securities.  Compensation paid to the Financial Advisor is contingent upon the successful issuance of the 
Series 2014 Bonds. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

Alameda CTC has covenanted for the benefit of the owners and beneficial owners of the Series 
2014 Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to Alameda CTC by not 
later than 195 days following the end of Alameda CTC’s Fiscal Year (presently June 30) (the “Annual 
Report”), commencing with the report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014, and to provide notices of 
the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  The Annual Report and notices of enumerated events will 
be filed by the Dissemination Agent on behalf of Alameda CTC with the MSRB.  The filing of the 
Annual Report and notices of enumerated events will be made in accordance with the EMMA system of 
the MSRB or in another manner approved under the Rule.  The specific nature of the information to be 
contained in the Annual Report and the notices of enumerated events is set forth in the form of 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement attached hereto as APPENDIX D – “FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.”  Alameda CTC has not previously delivered an undertaking pursuant to 
the Rule. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The references herein to the Act and the Indenture are brief outlines of certain provisions thereof.  
Such outlines do not purport to be complete and for full and complete statements of such provisions 
reference is made to said documents or the Act, as the case may be.  Copies of the documents mentioned 
under this heading are available for inspection at Alameda CTC and following delivery of the Series 2014 
Bonds will be on file at the offices of the Trustee in San Francisco, California.  References are made 
herein to certain documents and reports which are brief summaries thereof which do not purport to be 
complete or definitive.  Reference is made to such documents and reports for full and complete statements 
of the content thereof.   

Any statement in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly 
so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact.  This Official Statement is not to be 
construed as a contract or agreement between Alameda CTC and the purchasers or Holders of any of the 
Series 2014 Bonds. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by Alameda CTC. 

    ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION  
    COMMISSION 
 

    By: ______________________________________ 
      Executive Director 

Page 404Page 404Page 404Page 404



 
 

A-1 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

ALAMEDA CTC AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Page 405Page 405Page 405Page 405



DRAFT OF 
12/20/13 

57404678.8 B-1 

APPENDIX B 
 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 

Set forth below is certain demographic and economic information with respect to the 
County of Alameda, California (the “County”).  Such information is provided as general 
information and has been obtained from sources that Alameda CTC believes to be reliable, but 
Alameda CTC makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the information 
included. 

The County was established on March 25, 1853.  Located on the east side of the San 
Francisco Bay, the County extends from the cities of Albany and Berkeley in the north to the city 
of Fremont in the south.  The County covers 813 square miles and contains 14 incorporated 
cities.  The County is the seventh most populous county in the State, with a population of 
1,548,681 as of January 1, 2013.  The county seat is located in the City of Oakland. 

Population 

According to the 2010 Census taken by the United States Census Bureau, the County’s 
population was 1,510,271, representing a 4.6% increase since the 2000 Census or a simple 
annual average of 0.46%.  According to the State Department of Finance, Demographic Research 
Unit, the County's population was estimated at 1,548,681 as of January 1, 2013, reflecting a 
1.21% increase over the prior year. 

The following table sets forth the population of the County, the State of California and 
the United States for the years 2009 to 2013.  The County’s population increased by 50,882, or 
approximately 3.4%, over this five-year period. 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND 
THE UNITED STATES POPULATION 

2009 THROUGH 2013 
 

Year 
County of 
Alameda(1) 

State of 
California(1) United States(2) 

2009 1,497,799 36,966,713 307,006,550 
2010 1,509,240 37,223,900 309,326,225 
2011 1,517,756 37,427,946 311,587,816 

2012 1,530,176 37,668,804 313,914,040 
2013 1,548,681 37,966,471  315,957,951 

____________________ 
(1) Source: State of California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit. Reflects 

population estimates as of January 1. 
(2) Source: U.S. Census Bureau. Reflects population estimates as of July 1, except 2013, which reflects 

population estimate as of October 1. 

Page 406Page 406Page 406Page 406



 

57404678.8 B-2 

Personal Income 

The following table sets forth a summary of the total personal income and per capita 
personal income for the County and the State of California for the calendar years 2008 through 
2012. 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA AND STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA INCOME 

2008 THROUGH 2012(1) 

 
Year 

 
Area 

Total Personal 
Income 

(in Thousands) 
Per Capita 

Personal Income(2) 

2008 County $     74,305,916 $50,302 
 State 1,596,281,897 43,609 

2009 County 69,438,854 46,338 
 State 1,536,429,610 41,569 

2010 County 72,024,822 47,603 
 State 1,579,148,473 42,297 

2011 County 75,908,145 49,617 
 State 1,683,203,700 44,666 

2012 County -- -- 
 State 1,768,039,281 46,477 

____________________ 
(1) No information is currently available for the County after 2011. 
(2) Per capita personal income is total personal income divided by Census Bureau midyear population 

estimates, which differ from the population estimates shown above in the preceding table.  
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis. 

Page 407Page 407Page 407Page 407



 

57404678.8 B-3 

Industry and Employment 

The following table sets forth a comparison of labor force, employment and 
unemployment for the County, the State of California and the United States for the years 2008 
through 2012.  For the month ending August 31, 2013, the County’s unadjusted unemployment 
rate was 7.4% (57,800 persons), the State’s unadjusted unemployment rate was 8.8% (1,650,000 
persons), and the United States’ unadjusted unemployment rate was 7.3% (11,462,000 persons). 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND UNITED STATES 
ANNUAL AVERAGE LABOR FORCE AND INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT 

2008 THROUGH 2012(1) 

Year Area 
Civilian  

Labor Force Employment Unemployment 
Unemployment 

Rate 
2008 County 757,600 710,900 46,700 6.2% 

 California 18,207,300 16,893,900 1,313,500 7.2 
 United States 154,287,000 145,362,000 8,924,000 5.8 

2009 County 761,000 681,200 79,800 10.5 
 California 18,207,300 16,151,100 2,064,600 11.3 
 United States 154,142,000 139,877,000 14,265,000 9.3 

2010 County 761,300 675,500 85,700 11.3 
 California 18,330,500 16,063,500 2,267,000 12.4 
 United States 153,889,000 139,064,000 14,825,000 9.6 

2011 County 760,900 682,000 78,900 10.4 
 California 18,404,500 16,237,300 2,167,200 11.8 
 United States 153,617,000 139,869,000 13,747,000 8.9 

2012 County 775,900 705,900 70,000 9.0 
 California 18,494,900 16,560,300 1,934,500 10.5 
 United States 154,975,000 142,469,000 12,506,000 8.1 

____________________ 
(1)   All data presented as annual averages. 
Source:  For State and County information, State of California Employment Development Department, California 
Labor Market Information Division. For the U.S. information, U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 
Statistics.  
 

The County possesses a diverse economic base featuring a wide range of manufacturing 
industries (consisting of transportation, equipment, computer, food processing, fabricated metal 
products, non-electrical machinery, and stone-clay-glass products).  The County has one of the 
most diversified manufacturing sectors in Northern California.  The County’s fastest growing 
industrial sector is services, which in 2012 accounted for 43.9% of total employment.  The Port 
of Oakland ranks among the top five in the nation and top 20 in the world in terms of annual 
container traffic and is a major economic engine in the Bay Area. 

The County has become one of the leading research centers in the country with research 
activities at the University of California Berkeley, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory, and 
Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory. Many private biotechnology firms have located near 
these research centers. 

Page 408Page 408Page 408Page 408



 

57404678.8 B-4 

Major private sector employers in the County include Novartis, Safeway and Tesla 
Motors. 

The following table sets forth employment by selected industry groups in the County for 
calendar years 2008 through 2012: 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
ANNUAL AVERAGE EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY GROUP(1) 

2008 THROUGH 2012  
Industry Group 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 131,800 121,700 117,600 118,900 121,900 
Government 124,600 121,200 116,100 116,000 114,800 
Professional and Business Services 112,900 102,800 107,500 111,400 116,900 
Educational and Health Services 83,000 89,500 88,700 87,900 90,600 
Manufacturing 72,300 64,100 61,400 63,100 62,900 
Leisure and Hospitality 56,300 53,900 54,500 56,000 58,300 
Financial Activities 30,600 22,400 22,900 23,000 23,200 
Other Services 23,700 22,900 23,200 23,300 23,700 
Information 16,100 14,900 14,000 13,600 13,600 
____________________ 
(1) Industry employment is by place of work and excludes self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, household 

domestic workers and workers on strike. 
Source: State of California Employment Development Department. 

Page 409Page 409Page 409Page 409



 

57404678.8 B-5 

The following table sets forth the ten largest employers in the East Bay area, which 
includes Alameda County and Contra Costa County, and their respective annual average number 
of employees as of May 2013: 

EAST BAY PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS(1) 
AS OF MAY 2013 

 
Rank 

 
Employer 

 
 
Type of Business  

Number of 
Employees(2) 

% of Total 
County 
Employment(3) 

1 University of California, Berkeley  Education  13,326 1.84% 
2 Kaiser Permanente/Foundation 

Hospitals 
Health and Medical 

10,914 1.51 
3 County of Alameda Local Government 8,055 1.11 
4 Safeway Inc. Food 7,599 1.05 
5 Oakland Unified School District Education 7,200 0.99 
6 Lawrence Livermore National 

Laboratory 
Energy Development and 
Conservation 7,000 0.97 

7 Lawrence Berkeley National 
Laboratory 

Scientific Research 
6,000 0.83 

8 United States Postal Service Postal Service 4,788 0.66 
9 City of Oakland Local Government 4,047 0.56 

10 Edy’s Grand Ice Cream Food   3,700   0.51 
 Total  72,629 10.03% 

___________________ 
(1)  Reflects employment information aggregated from the following sources: National Establishment Time Series, 

Dunn & Bradstreet and ZoomInfo. 
(2) The number of employees shown include all employees of the employer in the East Bay area.  The East Bay area 

consists of Alameda and Contra Costa Counties. 
 (3)  Percentage calculated based on the County’s total employment of 724,800 for May 2013, as reported by the State 

of California Employment Development Department, California Labor Market Information Division. 
Source: EconoVue, May 2013. 

Page 410Page 410Page 410Page 410



 

57404678.8 B-6 

 
Commercial Activity 

Commercial activity is an important part of the County’s economy.  As a result of a 
change in business categories by the State Board of Equalization, data for calendar years 2007 
and 2008 are presented separately from calendar years 2009 through 2011 and the first two 
quarters of 2012.  

 
TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS 

2007 and 2008 
(in thousands) 

 2007 2008 

Apparel Stores $   666,247 $   747,645 
General Merchandise Stores 2,929,279 2,126,734 
Food Stores 801,916 780,311 
Eating and Drinking Places 1,953,544 1,989,406 
Home Furnishings and Appliances 811,390 823,075 
Building Materials Group 1,504,738 1,309,455 
Automotive Group 2,912,074 2,329,408 
Service Stations 1,831,042 2,030,681 
Other Retail Stores 2,891,710 2,411,035 
   Total Retail Outlets $15,664,940 $14,547,749 
Business and Personal Services 1,068,985 959,945 
All Other Outlets 9.097,215 8,355,262 
   Total All Outlets(1) $25,831,140 $23,862,957 

 
___________________________ 
(1) Totals may not add due to rounding. 
Source:  State Board of Equalization, Research and Statistics Division. 

 

Page 411Page 411Page 411Page 411



 

57404678.8 B-7 

 
The following table shows the County’s taxable transactions for calendar year 2009 

through 2011.  As noted above, the business categories for taxable transactions changed in 2009 
to the categories listed below. Annual figures are not yet available for 2012. 
 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS 

2009, 2010 and 2011 
(in thousands) 

 2009 2010 2011 
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealers $ 1,949,009 $ 2,183,709 $ 2,405,412 
Furniture and Home Furnishings Stores 410,092 412,979 438,369 
Electronics and Appliance Stores 571,854 575,374 583,234 
Building Material and Garden Equip. and Supplies 1,085,191 1,091,857 1,153,236 
Food and Beverage Stores 866,117 884,033 928,190 
Health and Personal Care Stores 415,203 419,672 434,353 
Gasoline Stations 1,491,427 1,716,376 2,135,182 
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 878,290 926,611 995,486 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores 502,870 489,954 484,909 
General Merchandise Stores 1,629,370 1,710,291 1,810,195 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 845,915 900,038 955,440 
Nonstore Retailers 70,906 68,868 74,685 
Food Services and Drinking Places 1,925,171 1,994,522 2,121,065 
   Total Retail and Food Services $12,641,415 $13,374,283 $14,519,756 
   All Other Outlets 7,788,780 8,167,458 8,911,043 
   Total All Outlets(1) $20,430,195 $21,541,741 $23,430,799 
____________________ 
(1) Totals may not add due to rounding. 
Source:  State Board of Equalization, Research and Statistics Division. 

 
  

Page 412Page 412Page 412Page 412



 

57404678.8 B-8 

 The following table shows the County’s taxable transactions for the first two calendar 
quarters of 2012.  Annual figures for 2012 taxable transactions are not yet available. 

 
COUNTY OF ALAMEDA  

TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS 
First and Second Quarter 2012 

(in thousands) 

 First Quarter 
2012 

Second Quarter 
2012 

   
Motor Vehicle and Parts Dealers $   656,559  $   707,723 
Furniture and Home Furnishings Stores 108,714 111,403 
Electronics and Appliance Stores 154,593 151,238 
Bldg. Matrl. and Garden Equip. and Supplies 272,640 321,743 
Food and Beverage Stores 226,044 241,921 
Health and Personal Care Stores 107,759 110,186 
Gasoline Stations 555,553 597,131 
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores 228,682 245,122 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores 111,001 112,595 
General Merchandise Stores 402,831 437,222 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers 232,927 243,035 
Nonstore Retailers 16,918 20,433 
Food Services and Drinking Places      552,062      582,973 
   Total Retail and Food Services $3,626,282 $3,882,726 
   All Other Outlets $2,191,368 $2,394,606 
   Total All Outlets(1) $5,817,650 $6,277,332 
____________________ 
(1) Totals may not add due to rounding. 
Source:  State Board of Equalization, Research and Statistics Division. 

Local Housing Market 

The County’s housing market is growing, with a number of indicators pointing toward 
continued improvement.  According to The Real Estate Market Trends Report for May 2013, 
single family median housing prices have increased in each of the last two years.  In addition, the 
County’s median home price rose by $165,000 for the period of May 2012 to May 2013, 
reaching a median price of $540,000.  As reported by East Bay Economic Development Alliance 
in its East Bay Economic Outlook report for May 2013, growth in the number of existing home 
sales has been hampered by a less than two-month supply of available homes, the lowest supply 
since mid-2005. The County’s historical single family home median price for the last fifteen 
years is presented in the following table: 

Page 413Page 413Page 413Page 413



 

57404678.8 B-9 

 
____________________ 
Sources: Data Quick Information Systems and The Real Estate Market Trends Report, May 2013. 

Building and Real Estate Activity 
The following tables set forth five-year summaries of building permit valuations and new 

dwelling units authorized in the County (in both incorporated and unincorporated areas) for the 
years 2008 through 2012. 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
BUILDING PERMIT VALUATIONS 

(In Thousands) 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
RESIDENTIAL      

New Single-Family $238,743.0 $227,982.5 $   276,660.5 $   269,312.8 $   372,939.4 
New Multi-Family 201,122.3 96,518.0 157,459.9 249,684.0 343,669.8 
Alterations & Adjustments      28,782.4    229,873.2    243,289.9    243,207.7      235,264.8 
Total Residential $725,647.6 $554,373.7 $677,409.6 $762,204.5 $ 951,874.0 

      
NON-RESIDENTIAL      

New Commercial $   197,181.1 $     72,055.6 $   14,689.1 $   178,689.5 $   20,749.3 
New Industrial 60,200.0 89,535.4 82,475.8 17,485.7 29,808.2 
New Other(1) 95,640.7 45,100.3 69,060.1 151,043.4 60,612.9 
Alterations & Adjustments      457,412.5    391,295.8     398,430.5     392,163.7     352,261.1 
Total Nonresidential $810,434.3 $   597,987.1 $   1,242,065.0 $    739,382.3 $   463,431.6 

      
TOTAL ALL BUILDING $1,536,081.9 $1,152,360.9 $1,242,065.0 $1,259,379.2 $1,415,305.6 
      

____________________ 
Source:  Construction Industry Research Board for years 2008 and 2009; California Homebuilding 
Foundation/Construction Industry  Research Board for years 2010, 2011 and 2012.  
(1) Includes churches and religious buildings, hospitals and institutional buildings, schools and educational buildings, 

residential garages, and public works and utilities buildings. 

Page 414Page 414Page 414Page 414



 

57404678.8 B-10 

 
 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
NUMBER OF NEW DWELLING UNITS 

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
      
Single Family 761 802 907 817 1,119 
Multi-Family 1,296    536     936 1,352     1,508 

TOTAL 2,057 1,338 1,843 2,169 2,627 
____________________ 
Source:  Construction Industry Research Board for years 2008 and 2009; California Homebuilding 
Foundation/Construction Industry Research Board for years, 2010, 2011 and 2012. 
 
Transportation 

Surface and air transportation facilities serve County residents and businesses.  Transbay 
bridges include the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge, which extends Interstate 80 into San 
Francisco; the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge, leading into Marin County and northern areas; and 
the Hayward-San Mateo and Dumbarton Bridges connecting East Bay points with San Mateo 
and Palo Alto on the San Francisco Peninsula. 

The Southern Pacific and Union Pacific Railroads, which were recently merged, operate 
rail terminal facilities in Oakland.  Atcheson, Topeka, and Santa Fe Railway serves the East Bay 
from its Richmond switching yards.  Amtrak provides passenger service through its Oakland and 
Emeryville stations to Southern California, Sacramento, and other destinations. 

Local motor coach transportation is provided by AC Transit, which serves East Bay cities 
and continues into San Francisco via the Bay Bridge.  Other bus service is available through the 
Central Contra Costa Transit District, the Livermore Transit Corporation and Greyhound bus 
lines.  San Mateo County Transit District provides bus service between Hayward and the San 
Francisco Peninsula across the Hayward-San Mateo Bridge.  Bay Area Rapid Transit (“BART”), 
a high-speed rail transit system, services the County, in addition to the counties of Contra Costa 
and San Francisco.  Currently, BART stretches from San Francisco International Airport and 
Millbrae on the San Francisco Peninsula, through Oakland, to Richmond in the north, Pittsburg 
in the northeast, Fremont in the south, and Dublin/Pleasanton in the southeast. 

The Oakland International Airport (the “Airport”) is located in the City of Oakland, about 
6.5 miles southeast of downtown Oakland.  The Airport is 2,600 acres, including 327 acres of 
wetlands under jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  Currently, the Airport has 32 
boarding gates at two terminals, eight domestic and three international scheduled passenger 
airlines, with Southwest Airlines being the largest.  The Airport is ranked among the top 20 
airports in the U.S. by amount of air cargo handled, and is serviced by three major cargo carriers. 

Page 415Page 415Page 415Page 415



 

57404678.8 B-11 

Education 

Eighteen independent school districts provide educational programs for elementary and 
secondary public school children in the County.  Thirteen of the County’s school districts also 
operate adult education programs. 

There are three community college districts in the County with students at seven 
campuses.  The County also operates four Regional Occupation Programs providing technical 
job training for high school students and adults. 

Among the institutions of higher education offering bachelors and graduate programs in 
the County are the University of California at Berkeley, California State University East Bay, 
Graduate Theological Union, Holy Names University and Mills College.  

Page 416Page 416Page 416Page 416



 
 

C-1 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
 

Page 417Page 417Page 417Page 417



 
 

D-1 
 

APPENDIX D 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
 

Page 418Page 418Page 418Page 418



 
 

E-1 
 

APPENDIX E 

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM 

The information in this Appendix E concerning The Depository Trust Company, New York, New 
York (“DTC”), and DTC’s Book-Entry System has been obtained from DTC and Alameda CTC, the 
Trustee and the Underwriters take no responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof.  

Alameda CTC, the Trustee and the Underwriters cannot and do not give any assurances that 
DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants (each as defined below) or others will distribute any 
(a) payments of principal or purchase price or interest with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds, 
(b) certificates representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Series 
2014 Bonds, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered 
owner of the Series 2014 Bonds, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants 
or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the manner described in this Appendix.  The current “Rules” 
applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “Procedures” 
of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.  Alameda CTC, the 
Trustee and the Underwriters are not responsible or liable for the failure of DTC or any DTC Participant 
to make any payment or give any notice to a beneficial owner with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds or an 
error or delay relating thereto. 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 2014 Bonds.  The Series 2014 Bonds will be 
issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or 
such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered bond 
certificate will be issued for each maturity of each series of the Series 2014 Bonds, in the aggregate 
principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a 
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial 
Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and 
non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 
100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the 
post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities 
Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+.  The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More 
information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.  The information set forth on this website is not 
incorporated by reference herein. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series 2014 Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each 

Page 419Page 419Page 419Page 419



 
 

E-2 
 

actual purchaser of each Series 2014 Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct 
and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of 
their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing 
details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect 
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership 
interests in the Series 2014 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and 
Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry 
system for the Series 2014 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2014 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with 
DTC are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Series 2014 Bonds with DTC and 
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in 
beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2014 Bonds; 
DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2014 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants 
will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series 2014 Bonds within an 
issue are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Series 2014 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  
Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy as soon as possible after the record date.  The 
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 
accounts Series 2014 Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Principal, premium, if any, and interest payments on the Series 2014 Bonds will be made to Cede 
& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s 
practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail 
information from the Trustee, on a payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC nor its 
nominee, the Trustee, or Alameda CTC, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 
effect from time to time.  Payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest to Cede & Co. (or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the 
Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants. 

Page 420Page 420Page 420Page 420



 
 

E-3 
 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds 
at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

Alameda CTC may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC 
(or a successor securities depository).  In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered. 

Page 421Page 421Page 421Page 421



 
 

F-1 
 

APPENDIX F 
 

PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

 

Page 422Page 422Page 422Page 422



$[_______________] 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 
(LIMITED TAX BONDS) 

SERIES 2014 

 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

February [__], 2014 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California 94607 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (the “Representative”), acting on behalf of itself and 
Barclays Capital Inc. (collectively the “Underwriters”), hereby offers to enter into this Bond 
Purchase Agreement with the Alameda County Transportation Commission (the “Alameda 
CTC”), which, upon the Alameda CTC’s acceptance hereof, will be binding upon the Alameda 
CTC and the Underwriters.  This offer is made subject to the written acceptance of this Bond 
Purchase Agreement by the Alameda CTC and the delivery of such acceptance to the 
Representative or its attorney at or prior to 6:00 p.m., Pacific time, on the date hereof, and, if not 
so accepted, will be subject to withdrawal by the Underwriters upon notice delivered to the 
Alameda CTC at any time prior to the acceptance hereof by the Alameda CTC. 

The Representative represents and warrants to the Alameda CTC that it has been duly 
authorized to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement and to act hereunder by and on behalf of 
the Underwriters. 

1. Definitions.  All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in the Indenture (as defined below).  Unless a different meaning clearly appears 
from the context, the following words and terms shall have the following meanings, respectively: 

“Bond Purchase Agreement” means this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

“Bond Resolution” means Resolution No. [_____] adopted by the governing body of the 
Alameda CTC (the “Commission”) on January [23], 2014. 

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the 
State or in New York, New York or a day on which either the Trustee or the Alameda CTC is 
legally authorized to close. 

“Closing Date” has the meaning given such term in Section 7 hereof. 

10.1E

Page 423Page 423Page 423Page 423



14679342.7 
 

 

 2 

“Closing Time” means the time at which payment for and delivery of the Series 2014 
Bonds shall occur, as established pursuant to Section 7 hereof. 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated 
as of February 1, 2014. 

“County” means the County of Alameda, California. 

“End Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 2 hereof. 

“First Supplemental Indenture” means the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
February 1, 2014, between the Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee (the “Trustee”). 

“Indenture” means the Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, between the Alameda 
CTC and the Trustee, as amended or supplemented, including as supplemented by the First 
Supplemental Indenture. 

“Legal Documents” means the Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the 
Tax Certificate. 

“Official Statement” means the Official Statement of the Alameda CTC, dated February 
[__], 2014, relating to the Series 2014 Bonds, together with the cover page thereof and all 
appendices, exhibits, amendments and supplements thereto. 

“Ordinance” has the meaning given such term in Section 8(c) hereof. 

“Preliminary Official Statement” means the Preliminary Official Statement of the 
Alameda CTC, dated January [24], 2014, relating to the Series 2014 Bonds, together with the 
cover page thereof and all appendices, exhibits, amendments and supplements thereto. 

“Rule 15c2-12” means Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

“Sales Tax” means the retail transactions and use tax applicable in the incorporated and 
unincorporated territory of the County levied at the rate of one-half of one percent (1/2%) and 
imposed pursuant to the provisions of the Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of Part 
1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code commencing April 1, 2002 and ending on 
March 31, 2022. 

“Series 2014 Bonds” means $[_______________] aggregate principal amount of 
Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), 
Series 2014. 

“State” means the State of California. 

“Tax Certificate” means the Tax Certificate of the Alameda CTC dated the Closing Date. 

Page 424Page 424Page 424Page 424



14679342.7 
 

 

 3 

2. Use and Preparation of Official Statement; Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 
The Alameda CTC has heretofore delivered to the Underwriters copies of the Preliminary 
Official Statement, which the Alameda CTC hereby deems final as of its date, except for the 
omission of such information as is permitted to be omitted in accordance with paragraph (b)(1) 
of Rule 15c2-12.  The Alameda CTC shall prepare and deliver to the Underwriters, as promptly 
as practicable, but in no event later than seven (7) business days from the date hereof and at least 
two (2) business days prior to the Closing Date, whichever occurs first, a final Official 
Statement, with such changes and amendments as may be agreed to by the Representative, in 
such quantities as the Underwriters may reasonably request in order to comply with paragraph 
(b)(4) of Rule 15c2-12 and the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the 
“MSRB”).  The Alameda CTC hereby ratifies, confirms and approves the use and distribution by 
the Underwriters prior to the date hereof of the Preliminary Official Statement, and hereby 
authorizes the Underwriters to use and distribute the Official Statement and all information 
contained therein in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2014 Bonds.  The 
Representative agrees to promptly file a copy of the Official Statement, including any 
supplements prepared by the Alameda CTC, with the MSRB on its Electronic Municipal Markets 
Access (“EMMA”) system.  The Alameda CTC shall deliver sufficient copies of the Official 
Statement to enable the Underwriters to distribute a single copy to any potential customer of the 
Underwriters requesting an Official Statement during the time period beginning when the 
Official Statement becomes available and ending on a date referred to herein as the “End Date,” 
which is the date when the Official Statement becomes available through EMMA, but in no 
event less than 25 days after the end of the underwriting period (as defined in Rule 15c2-12).  On 
the Closing Date the Alameda CTC may assume that the end of the underwriting period has 
occurred unless otherwise informed in writing by the Representative.  In any event, the 
Representative shall promptly notify the Alameda CTC of the end of the underwriting period. 

The Alameda CTC will undertake pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement to 
provide certain annual financial and operating information and certain event notices.  A 
description of this undertaking is set forth in the Official Statement. 

3. Purchase and Sale of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions and 
in reliance upon the representations, warranties and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriters 
hereby agree to purchase from the Alameda CTC the Series 2014 Bonds for offering to the 
public, and the Alameda CTC hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriters, all (but not less than all) 
of the $[____________] aggregate principal amount of the Series 2014 Bonds at an aggregate 
purchase price of $[____________] (the “Purchase Price”), representing the aggregate principal 
amount of the Series 2014 Bonds, plus a net original issue premium of $[___________], less an 
underwriters’ discount of $[__________]. 

4. The Series 2014 Bonds.  The principal amounts, maturity dates, interest rates and 
prices with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds shall be as described in the Official Statement and 
in Exhibit A hereto. 

5. Public Offering of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Except as otherwise disclosed and 
agreed to by the Alameda CTC, the Underwriters agree to make a bona fide public offering of 
the Series 2014 Bonds at the initial public offering price or prices set forth on the inside cover 
page of the Official Statement and in Exhibit A hereto; provided, however, the Underwriters 

Page 425Page 425Page 425Page 425



14679342.7 
 

 

 4 

reserve the right to change such initial public offering prices as the Underwriters deem necessary 
or desirable, in their sole discretion, in connection with the marketing of the Series 2014 Bonds, 
and to sell the Series 2014 Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers depositing the Series 2014 
Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the initial offering prices set forth in 
the Official Statement.  A “bona fide public offering” shall include an offering to institutional 
investors or registered investment companies, regardless of the number of such investors to 
which the Series 2014 Bonds are sold.  The Representative shall provide to the Alameda CTC on 
the Closing Date a certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto stating that the 
Underwriters made a bona fide public offering of the Series 2014 Bonds at the initial public 
offering price or prices set forth on the inside cover page of the Official Statement and in Exhibit 
A hereto. 

6. Use of Documents.  The Alameda CTC hereby authorizes the Underwriters to use, 
in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, this Bond Purchase 
Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and the Legal Documents, 
and the information contained herein and therein. 

7. Closing.  The Closing Time shall be no later than 10:00 a.m., Pacific time, on 
February [__], 2014, or at such other time or on such later date as shall have been mutually 
agreed upon by the Alameda CTC and the Representative (the “Closing Date”).  At the Closing 
Time, the Alameda CTC will deliver or cause to be delivered the Series 2014 Bonds to the 
Underwriters through The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) in definitive or temporary form, 
duly executed by the Alameda CTC, together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned; 
and the Underwriters will accept such delivery and pay the Purchase Price in immediately 
available funds to the Trustee. 

The Series 2014 Bonds will be registered in the name of “Cede & Co.” as nominee of 
DTC.  It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Series 2014 
Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on the Series 2014 Bonds nor any error with 
respect thereto shall constitute a cause for failure or refusal by the Underwriters to accept 
delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Bond Purchase 
Agreement. 

Delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds will be made through the book-entry system of DTC, 
and all other actions to be taken at the Closing Time, including the delivery of the items set forth 
in Section 9 hereof, shall take place at the offices of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, San 
Francisco, California, or at such other place as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the 
Alameda CTC and the Representative. 

8. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the Alameda CTC.  The Alameda 
CTC hereby represents, warrants and agrees with the Underwriters that: 

(a) The Alameda CTC has been duly created and is validly existing under the 
laws of the State and has the power to issue the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant to the Act, the Bond 
Resolution and the Indenture. 

Page 426Page 426Page 426Page 426



14679342.7 
 

 

 5 

(b) The Alameda CTC has full legal right, power and authority under the 
Constitution and the laws of the State to cause the collection of the Sales Tax, to adopt the Bond 
Resolution, to enter into the Legal Documents and this Bond Purchase Agreement, and to sell, 
issue and deliver the Series 2014 Bonds to the Underwriters as provided herein; the Alameda 
CTC has full legal right, power and authority to perform its obligations under the Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2014 Bonds, the Legal Documents and this Bond Purchase Agreement, 
and to carry out and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby and hereby and by the 
Official Statement; except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, the Alameda CTC has complied with, or will at the Closing Time be in compliance 
with, in all respects material to this transaction, the Constitution, the Act, the Ordinance and laws 
of the State, and the terms of the Bond Resolution, the Series 2014 Bonds, the Legal Documents 
and this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

(c) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, by all necessary official action, the Alameda County Transportation Improvement 
Authority (the “ACTIA”), predecessor in interest to the Alameda CTC, duly adopted Ordinance 
2000-01 (the “Ordinance”), which was approved by more than a two-thirds vote of the voters in 
the County voting on such extension on November 7, 2000. 

(d) By all necessary official action, the Commission has duly adopted the 
Bond Resolution, has duly authorized the preparation and distribution of the Preliminary Official 
Statement, and the preparation, execution and delivery of the Official Statement, has duly 
authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and the performance of the Alameda 
CTC’s obligations under, the Series 2014 Bonds, this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Legal 
Documents, and the consummation by it of all other transactions contemplated by this Bond 
Purchase Agreement, the Bond Resolution, and the Legal Documents.  When executed and 
delivered by their respective parties, the Legal Documents and this Bond Purchase Agreement 
(assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by and enforceability against the other 
parties thereto) will be in full force and effect and each will constitute legal, valid and binding 
agreements or obligations of the Alameda CTC, enforceable in accordance with their respective 
terms, except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles relating to or limiting creditors rights 
generally, the application of equitable principles, the exercise of judicial discretion and the 
limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State. 

(e) The Series 2014 Bonds, when issued, authenticated and delivered in 
accordance with the Bond Resolution and the Indenture, and sold to the Underwriters as 
provided herein, will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Alameda CTC, 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement thereof may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable 
principles relating to or limiting creditors’ rights generally, the application of equitable 
principles, the exercise of judicial discretion and the limitations on legal remedies against public 
entities in the State, and will be entitled to the benefits of the laws of the State, the Indenture and 
the Bond Resolution. 

(f) All consents, approvals, authorizations, orders, licenses or permits of any 
governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the 

Page 427Page 427Page 427Page 427



14679342.7 
 

 

 6 

matter, that are required for the due authorization by, or that would constitute a condition 
precedent to or the absence of which would materially adversely affect the issuance, delivery or 
sale of the Series 2014 Bonds and the execution, delivery of and performance of the Legal 
Documents by the Alameda CTC have been duly obtained (except for such approvals, consents 
and orders as may be required under the Blue Sky or securities laws of any state in connection 
with the offering and sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, as to which no representation is made). 

(g) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, the Alameda CTC is not in any material respect in breach of or default under any 
constitutional provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or of the United States or 
any agency or instrumentality of either or any judgment or decree or any loan agreement, 
indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the Alameda CTC is a 
party or to which the Alameda CTC or any of its property or assets is otherwise subject 
(including, without limitation, the Bond Resolution and the Legal Documents), and no event has 
occurred and is continuing which with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 
constitute a default or event of default under any such instrument; and the adoption of the Bond 
Resolution, the issuance, delivery and sale of the Series 2014 Bonds and the execution and 
delivery of this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Legal Documents and compliance with the 
Alameda CTC’s obligations therein and herein will not in any material respect conflict with, 
violate or result in a breach of or constitute a default under, any constitutional provision, law, 
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, agreement, mortgage, 
lease or other instrument to which the Alameda CTC is a party or to which the Alameda CTC or 
any of its property or assets is otherwise subject, nor will any such execution, delivery, adoption 
or compliance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or 
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the Alameda CTC 
or under the terms of any such law, regulation or instruments, except as provided by the Bond 
Resolution and the Legal Documents. 

(h) As of the date hereof, no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation 
at law or in equity before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, is pending 
or, to the best of the Alameda CTC’s knowledge, threatened against the Alameda CTC:  (i) in 
any way affecting the existence of the Alameda CTC or in any way challenging the respective 
powers of the several offices or the titles of the officials of the Alameda CTC to such offices; (ii) 
affecting or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of any of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, the application of the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, the 
proceedings authorizing and approving the Sales Tax, the levy or collection of the Sales Tax; (iii) 
in any way contesting or affecting, as to the Alameda CTC, the validity or enforceability of the 
Act, the proceedings authorizing the Sales Tax, the Bond Resolution, the Series 2014 Bonds, the 
Legal Documents or this Bond Purchase Agreement; (iv) in any way contesting the powers of the 
Alameda CTC or its authority with respect to issuance or delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds, the 
adoption of the Bond Resolution, or the execution and delivery of the Legal Documents or this 
Bond Purchase Agreement, or contesting the power or authority to levy the Sales Tax; 
(v) contesting the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Series 2014 Bonds for federal 
income tax purposes; (vi) in any way contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary 
Official Statement or the Official Statement, or any supplement or amendment thereto; or (vii) in 
any way contesting or challenging the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or 
thereby or that might materially adversely affect the ability of the Alameda CTC to perform and 

Page 428Page 428Page 428Page 428



14679342.7 
 

 

 7 

satisfy its obligations under this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents or the Series 
2014 Bonds; nor to the best of the Alameda CTC’s knowledge is there any basis for any such 
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or 
finding would materially adversely affect the Act, the proceedings authorizing the Sales Tax, the 
Bond Resolution, the Legal Documents or this Bond Purchase Agreement or the performance by 
the Alameda CTC of its obligations thereunder, or the authorization, execution, delivery or 
performance by the Alameda CTC of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Bond Resolution, the Legal 
Documents or this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

(i) Between the date hereof and the Closing Time, the Alameda CTC will not, 
without the prior written consent of the Representative, offer or issue in any material amount any 
bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed money, or in any material amount incur any 
material liabilities, direct or contingent, except in the course of normal business operations of the 
Alameda CTC or relating to the Project. 

(j) The Alameda CTC will furnish such information, execute such 
instruments, and take such other action in cooperation with and at the expense of the 
Underwriters as the Underwriters may reasonably request in order (i) to qualify the Series 2014 
Bonds for sale under the Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and 
other jurisdictions in the United States as the Underwriters may designate and (ii) to determine 
the eligibility of the Series 2014 Bonds for investment under the laws of such states and other 
jurisdictions; and the Alameda CTC will use commercially reasonable efforts to continue such 
qualification in effect so long as required for distribution of the Series 2014 Bonds; provided, 
however, that in no event shall the Alameda CTC be required to consent to suit or to service of 
process in any jurisdiction in which it is not already so subject or to take any action which would 
subject itself to service of process in any jurisdiction in which it is not already so subject, and 
will use its best efforts to provide prompt written notice to the Underwriters of receipt by the 
Alameda CTC of any written notification with regard to the suspension of the qualification of the 
Series 2014 Bonds for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threat of any proceeding for that 
purpose. 

(k) The Alameda CTC has the legal authority to apply and will apply, or cause 
to be applied, the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds as provided in and subject to 
all of the terms and provisions of the Act, the Ordinance, the Bond Resolution and the Indenture, 
and will not take or omit to take any action which action or omission will adversely affect the 
exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Series 2014 
Bonds.   

(l) The Series 2014 Bonds, when issued, will conform to the description 
thereof contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement under the 
captions “INTRODUCTION — The Series 2014 Bonds,”  “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS” and 
Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE”; the 
proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds, when issued, will be applied generally as described in the 
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement under the captions 
“INTRODUCTION — Purpose and Application of Proceeds” and “PLAN OF FINANCE”; and 
the Bond Resolution and the Indenture conform to the descriptions thereof contained in the 
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement. 

Page 429Page 429Page 429Page 429



14679342.7 
 

 

 8 

(m) The Preliminary Official Statement (other than information allowed to be 
omitted by Rule 15c2-12), as of its date and as of the date hereof, did not and does not contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading (excluding therefrom the information contained under the caption 
“UNDERWRITING,” all information concerning the book-entry system set forth under the 
captions “INTRODUCTION — The Series 2014 Bonds” and “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS — 
General” and in Appendix E (collectively, the “Excluded Information”)). 

(n) As of the date hereof, and (unless an event occurs of the nature described 
in paragraph (p) of this Section 8) at all times subsequent thereto, up to and including the Closing 
Time, the Official Statement (excluding therefrom the Excluded Information) did not and does 
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material fact 
necessary in order to make the statements in the Official Statement, in the light of the 
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. 

(o) If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to 
paragraph (p) of this Section 8, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless 
subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph) at all times 
subsequent thereto up to and including the Closing Time, the Official Statement as so 
supplemented or amended will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. 

(p) The Alameda CTC shall not amend or supplement the Official Statement 
without the prior written consent of the Representative.  If between the date hereof and the 
Closing Time, any event shall occur which might or would cause the Official Statement, as then 
supplemented or amended, to contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading, the Alameda CTC shall notify the Representative thereof, 
and if, in the opinion of the Representative, such event requires the preparation and publication 
of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the Alameda CTC shall forthwith 
prepare and furnish (at the expense of the Alameda CTC) a reasonable number of copies of an 
amendment of or supplement to the Official Statement in form and substance satisfactory to the 
Representative. 

(q) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, the Alameda CTC has not granted a lien on or made a pledge of the Revenues or any 
other funds pledged under the Indenture. 

(r) The Alameda CTC is not in default, and at no time has defaulted in any 
material respect, on any bond, note or other obligation for borrowed money or any agreement 
under which any such obligation is or was outstanding. 

(s) The financial statements of the Alameda CTC set forth in Appendix A to 
the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.  Except as disclosed in the 

Page 430Page 430Page 430Page 430



14679342.7 
 

 

 9 

Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement or otherwise disclosed in writing to the 
Representative, there has not been any materially adverse change in the financial condition of the 
Alameda CTC or in its operations since June 30, 2013 and there has been no occurrence, 
circumstance or combination thereof which is reasonably expected to result in any such 
materially adverse change. 

(t) Prior to the Closing Time, the Alameda CTC will not take any action 
within or under its control, other than actions in the normal course of operation, that will cause 
any material adverse change in such financial position, results of operations or condition, 
financial or otherwise, of the Alameda CTC. 

(u) Upon the delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds, the aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds authorized to be issued under the Indenture, together with all outstanding 
Parity Obligations, will not in combination with all outstanding debt obligations of the Alameda 
CTC exceed any limitation imposed by law or by the Indenture or by Section 180250 of the 
Public Utilities Code of the State of California. 

(v) The sum of the principal of and interest on the Series 2014 Bonds, 
together with all outstanding Parity Obligations and other outstanding debt obligations of the 
Alameda CTC, does not exceed the estimated proceeds of the retail transactions and use tax for 
the period for which the retail transactions and use tax is to be imposed by the Alameda CTC. 

(w) The Series 2014 Bonds are the first obligations issued by the Alameda 
CTC and therefore the Alameda CTC has no previous undertakings required pursuant to 
Rule 15c2 12. 

(x) Any certificate, signed by any official of the Alameda CTC authorized to 
do so in connection with the transactions described in this Bond Purchase Agreement, shall be 
deemed a representation and warranty by the Alameda CTC to the Underwriters as to the 
statements made therein. 

9. Conditions to the Underwriters’ Obligations.  The Representative has entered into 
this Bond Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations, warranties and obligations 
of the Alameda CTC contained herein and upon the documents and instruments to be delivered 
at the Closing Time.  Accordingly, the Underwriters’ obligations under this Bond Purchase 
Agreement shall be subject to the following conditions: 

(a) The representations and warranties of the Alameda CTC contained herein 
shall be true and correct at the date hereof and true and correct at and as of the Closing Time, as 
if made at and as of the Closing Time and will be confirmed by a certificate or certificates of the 
appropriate Alameda CTC official or officials dated the Closing Date, and the Alameda CTC 
shall be in compliance with each of the agreements and covenants made by it in this Bond 
Purchase Agreement; 

(b) (i) At the Closing Time, the Act, the Bond Resolution and the Legal 
Documents shall be in full force and effect, and shall not have been amended, modified or 
supplemented, except as may have been agreed to by the Alameda CTC and the Representative, 
and (ii) the Alameda CTC shall perform or have performed all of its obligations required under 

Page 431Page 431Page 431Page 431



14679342.7 
 

 

 10 

or specified in the Act, the Bond Resolution, the Legal Documents, this Bond Purchase 
Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement to be performed at or 
prior to the Closing Time;  

(c) As of the date hereof and at the Closing Time, all necessary official action 
of the Alameda CTC relating to this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents, the 
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement shall have been taken and shall be in 
full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented in any material 
respect; 

(d) Subsequent to the date hereof, up to and including the Closing Time, there 
shall not have occurred any change in or particularly affecting the Alameda CTC, the Act, the 
Ordinance, the Sales Tax, the Revenues, or the Series 2014 Bonds as the foregoing matters are 
described in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement, which in the 
reasonable professional judgment of the Representative materially adversely impacts the 
marketability of the Series 2014 Bonds; 

(e) Subsequent to the date hereof, up to and including the Closing Time, the 
California State Board of Equalization shall not have suspended or advised the suspension of the 
collection of the Sales Tax or the escrow of any proceeds thereof, and the General Counsel to the 
Alameda CTC shall not have advised the suspension of the collection of the Sales Tax or the 
escrow of any proceeds thereof other than as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and 
the Official Statement; 

(f) At or prior to the Closing Date, the Representative shall receive copies of 
each of the following documents: 

(1) A certified copy of the proceedings relating to authorization and 
approval of the Sales Tax. 

(2) A certified copy of the Bond Resolution. 

(3) Fully executed copies of each of the Legal Documents. 

(4) The Official Statement delivered in accordance with Section 2 
hereof and each supplement or amendment, if any, executed on behalf of the Alameda 
CTC by its Executive Director or its Director of Finance. 

(5) An approving opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, 
Bond Counsel to the Alameda CTC (“Bond Counsel”), dated the Closing Date, as to the 
validity of the Series 2014 Bonds, the exclusion of interest on the Series 2014 Bonds 
from federal gross income and the exclusion of interest on the Series 2014 Bonds from 
State income taxation, addressed to the Alameda CTC substantially in the form attached 
as Appendix F to the Official Statement, and a reliance letter with respect thereto 
addressed to the Underwriters.   

(6) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the 
Underwriters, to the effect that: 

Page 432Page 432Page 432Page 432



14679342.7 
 

 

 11 

(i) the Bond Purchase Agreement has been duly executed and 
delivered by the Alameda CTC and each is valid and binding upon the Alameda 
CTC, subject to laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or 
creditors’ rights generally, to the application of equitable principles, the exercise 
of judicial discretion and the limitations on legal remedies against public entities 
in the State of California; 

(ii) the statements contained in the Official Statement in the 
sections titled “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS” (other than the information 
concerning DTC and the book-entry system), “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF 
PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS,” “TAX MATTERS” and 
Appendix C — “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
INDENTURE,” excluding any material that may be treated as included under 
such captions by cross-reference, insofar as such statements expressly summarize 
certain provisions of the Indenture and the form and content of such counsel’s 
opinion attached as Appendix F to the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement, are accurate in all material respects; and 

(iii) the Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) and the 
Indenture is exempt from qualification pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 
1939, as amended (the “Trust Indenture Act”). 

(7) A letter from Norton Rose Fulbright, Disclosure Counsel, dated the 
Closing Date and addressed to the Alameda CTC, substantially in the form set forth in 
Exhibit C hereto, and a reliance letter with respect thereto addressed to the Underwriters,   

(8) The opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Underwriters’ Counsel, 
addressed to the Underwriters, in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriters, 
covering such items as the Representative may request. 

(9) The opinion of Wendel Rosen Black & Dean LLP, General 
Counsel to the Alameda CTC, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the Underwriters and 
the Trustee, to the effect that: 

(i) the Alameda CTC has been duly organized and is validly 
existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and has all 
requisite power and authority thereunder:  (a) to adopt the Bond Resolution, and 
to enter into, execute, deliver and perform its covenants and agreements under the 
Legal Documents and the Bond Purchase Agreement; (b) to approve and 
authorize the use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the 
use, execution and distribution of the Official Statement; (c) to issue, sell, execute 
and deliver the Series 2014 Bonds; (d) to cause the Sales Tax to be collected as 
described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement; (e) to 
pledge the Revenues as contemplated by the Indenture; and (f) to carry on its 
activities as currently conducted; 

Page 433Page 433Page 433Page 433



14679342.7 
 

 

 12 

(ii) the Alameda CTC has taken all actions required to be taken 
by it prior to the Closing Date material to the transactions contemplated by the 
documents mentioned in paragraph (i) above, and the Commission has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of, and the due performance of its 
obligations under, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents and the 
Series 2014 Bonds; 

(iii) the Bond Resolution was duly adopted by at least a two-
thirds vote of all the voting members of the Commission at a meeting of the 
Commission which was called and held pursuant to law and with all required 
notices and in accordance with all applicable open meetings laws and at which a 
quorum was present and acting at the time of the adoption of the Bond 
Resolution; 

(iv) the adoption of the Bond Resolution, the execution and 
delivery by the Alameda CTC of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal 
Documents and the Series 2014 Bonds and the compliance with the provisions of 
the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents and the Series 2014 Bonds 
do not and will not conflict with or violate in any material respect any California 
constitutional, statutory or regulatory provision, or conflict with or constitute on 
the part of the Alameda CTC a material breach of or default under any agreement 
or instrument to which the Alameda CTC is a party or by which it is bound; 

(v) the Series 2014 Bonds, the Legal Documents and the Bond 
Purchase Agreement constitute binding and legal obligations of the Alameda CTC 
and are enforceable according to the terms thereof, except as enforcement thereof 
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting enforcement of 
creditors’ rights generally, and by the application of equitable principles if 
equitable remedies are sought, by the exercise of judicial discretion and the 
limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State; 

(vi) no litigation is pending with service of process completed, 
or threatened against the Alameda CTC in any court in any way affecting the titles 
of the officials of the Alameda CTC to their respective positions, or seeking to 
restrain or to enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds, or the 
collection of revenues pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of and interest 
on the Series 2014 Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or 
enforceability of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Bond Resolution, the Legal 
Documents or the Bond Purchase Agreement, or contesting in any way the 
completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official 
Statement, or contesting the powers of the Alameda CTC or its authority with 
respect to the Series 2014 Bonds, the Bond Resolution, the Legal Documents or 
the Bond Purchase Agreement; 

(vii) nothing has come to the attention of the attorneys in our 
firm working for the Alameda CTC which would cause us to believe that the 
information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Page 434Page 434Page 434Page 434



14679342.7 
 

 

 13 

Statement under the captions “SALES TAX ― General,” “― Collection of Sales 
Tax Revenues,” “ALAMEDA CTC,” “RISK FACTORS – Impact of Bankruptcy 
of Alameda CTC” and “LITIGATION” (excluding from each any information 
relating to DTC, the operation of the book-entry system or any other financial or 
statistical data or projections or estimates or expressions of opinion included in 
the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, as to which no 
opinion need be expressed) contains any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omits to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;  

(viii) no authorization, approval, consent or other order of the 
State or any local agency of the State, other than such authorizations, approvals 
and consents which have been obtained, is required for the valid authorization, 
execution and delivery by the Alameda CTC of the Legal Documents and the 
authorization and distribution of the Official Statement (provided that no opinion 
need be expressed as to any action required under state securities or Blue Sky 
laws in connection with the purchase of the Series 2014 Bonds by the 
Underwriters); and 

(ix) the Alameda CTC is not in breach of or default under any 
applicable law or administrative regulation of the State or any applicable 
judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, 
agreement or other instrument to which the Alameda CTC is a party or is 
otherwise subject, which breach or default would materially adversely affect the 
Alameda CTC’s ability to enter into or perform its obligations under the Legal 
Documents and the Bond Purchase Agreement, and no event has occurred and is 
continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 
constitute a default or an event of default under any such instrument and which 
would materially adversely affect the Alameda CTC’s ability to enter into or 
perform its obligations under the Legal Documents and the Bond Purchase 
Agreement. 

(10) A certificate, dated the Closing Date and signed by such official or 
officials of the Alameda CTC as shall be satisfactory to the Representative, to the effect 
that (i) the representations, warranties and covenants of the Alameda CTC contained in 
the Bond Purchase Agreement are true and correct in all material respects on and as of 
the Closing Time with the same effect as if made at the Closing Time; (ii) the Bond 
Resolution is in full force and effect at the Closing Time and has not been amended, 
modified or supplemented, except as agreed to by the Alameda CTC and the 
Representative; (iii) the Alameda CTC has complied with all the agreements and satisfied 
all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the Closing Time; 
(iv) subsequent to the date of the Official Statement and on or prior to the date of such 
certificate, there has been no material adverse change in the condition (financial or 
otherwise) of the Alameda CTC, whether or not arising in the ordinary course of the 
Alameda CTC’s operations, as described in the Official Statement; and (v) the 
Preliminary Official Statement, as of its date and as of the date of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement, and the Official Statement as of its date and as of the Closing Date 

Page 435Page 435Page 435Page 435



14679342.7 
 

 

 14 

(excluding therefrom the Excluded Information), did not and do not contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact and neither omitted nor omits to state any material fact 
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading. 

(11) The audited financial statements of the Alameda CTC as of June 
30, 2013 included as Appendix A to the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement, certified by the Alameda CTC on the Closing Date as being correct and 
complete. 

(12) A certified copy of the general resolution or other documentation 
of the Trustee evidencing signature authority and incumbency to execute and deliver the 
Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party. 

(13) A certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by a duly authorized 
official of the Trustee, satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative, to the 
effect that:   

(i) the Trustee is a national banking association organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, having 
the full power and being qualified to enter into and perform its duties under the 
Indenture;  

(ii) the Trustee is duly authorized to enter into, has duly 
executed and delivered the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party and 
has duly authenticated and delivered the Series 2014 Bonds;  

(iii) the execution and delivery of the Legal Documents to 
which the Trustee is a party and compliance with the provisions on the Trustee’s 
part contained therein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default 
under any law, administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, 
indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the 
Trustee is a party or is otherwise subject (except that no representation, warranty 
or agreement is made with respect to any federal or state securities or Blue Sky 
laws or regulations), nor will any such execution, delivery, adoption or 
compliance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other 
security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the 
properties or assets held by the Trustee pursuant to the lien created by the 
Indenture under the terms of any such law, administrative regulation, judgment, 
decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other 
instrument, except as provided by the Indenture;  

(iv) the Trustee has not been served with any action, suit, 
proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, 
governmental agency, public board or body, nor is any such action, to the best of 
such official’s knowledge after reasonable investigation, threatened against the 
Trustee affecting the existence of the Trustee, or the titles of its officers to their 

Page 436Page 436Page 436Page 436



14679342.7 
 

 

 15 

respective offices, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or 
enforceability of the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party, or 
contesting the powers of the Trustee or its authority to enter into, adopt or 
perform its obligations under any of the foregoing, wherein an unfavorable 
decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the validity or 
enforceability of the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party; and  

(v) the Trustee will apply the proceeds from the Series 2014 
Bonds as provided in the Indenture. 

(14) The opinion of counsel of the Trustee, dated the Closing Date, 
addressed to the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters, to the effect that: 

(i) the Trustee is a national banking association duly 
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the United 
States having full power and authority and being qualified to enter into, accept 
and administer the trust created under the Legal Documents to which it is a party 
and to enter into such Legal Documents; 

(ii) the Legal Documents to which it is a party have been duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by the Trustee and constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Trustee enforceable against the Trustee in accordance 
with their respective terms, except as enforcement thereof may be limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights 
generally and by the application of equitable principles if equitable remedies are 
sought; 

(iii) the execution, delivery and performance of the Legal 
Documents will not conflict with or cause a default under any law, ruling, 
agreement, administrative regulation or other instrument by which the Trustee is 
bound; 

(iv) all authorizations and approvals required by law and the 
articles of association and bylaws of the Trustee in order for the Trustee to 
execute and deliver and perform its obligations under the Legal Documents to 
which it is a party have been obtained; and 

(v) no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law 
or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body, is 
pending or threatened in any way affecting the existence of the Trustee or the 
titles of its directors or officers to their respective offices, or seeking to restrain or 
enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds or the application of 
proceeds thereof in accordance with the Legal Documents to which it is a party, 
or in any way contesting or affecting the Series 2014 Bonds or the Legal 
Documents to which it is a party. 

(15) Evidence of required filings with the California Debt and 
Investment Advisory Commission. 

Page 437Page 437Page 437Page 437



14679342.7 
 

 

 16 

(16) A copy of the Blue Sky Survey with respect to the Series 2014 
Bonds. 

(17) A Tax Certificate of the Alameda CTC, in form satisfactory to 
Bond Counsel, signed by such official or officials of the Alameda CTC as shall be 
satisfactory to the Representative. 

(18) Evidence as of the Closing Date satisfactory to the Representative 
that the Series 2014 Bonds have received a rating of “AAA” from Standard & Poor’s 
Ratings Services and “AAA” from Fitch Ratings (or such other equivalent rating as 
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Fitch Ratings shall issue), and that such ratings 
have not been revoked or downgraded. 

(19) Two transcripts of all proceedings relating to the authorization and 
issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, which may be in digital form (or a commitment to so 
provide). 

(20) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, 
instruments and other documents as the Representative, Underwriters’ Counsel or Bond 
Counsel may reasonably request to evidence compliance by the Alameda CTC with legal 
requirements, the truth and accuracy, as of the Closing Time, of the representations of the 
Alameda CTC herein contained and of the Official Statement and the due performance or 
satisfaction by the Alameda CTC at or prior to such time of all agreements then to be 
performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the Alameda CTC. 

10. Termination.   

(a) If the Alameda CTC shall be unable to satisfy the conditions of the 
Underwriters’ obligations contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement or if the Underwriters’ 
obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement, this 
Bond Purchase Agreement may be cancelled by the Representative at, or at any time prior to, the 
Closing Time.  Notice of such cancellation shall be given to the Alameda CTC in writing, or by 
telephone or telegraph confirmed in writing.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the 
contrary, the performance of any and all obligations of the Alameda CTC hereunder and the 
performance of any and all conditions contained herein for the benefit of the Underwriters may 
be waived by the Representative at its sole discretion. 

(b) The Underwriters shall also have the right, prior to the Closing Time, to 
cancel their obligations to purchase the Series 2014 Bonds, by written notice to the Alameda 
CTC, if between the date hereof and the Closing Time: 

(i) any event occurs or information becomes known, which, in 
the reasonable professional judgment of the Representative, makes untrue or 
incorrect any statement of a material fact set forth in the Official Statement or 
results in an omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading; 

Page 438Page 438Page 438Page 438



14679342.7 
 

 

 17 

(ii) the market for the Series 2014 Bonds or the market prices 
of the Series 2014 Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts 
for the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds shall have been materially and adversely 
affected, in the reasonable professional judgment of the Representative, by: 

(A) an amendment to the Constitution of the United 
States or the State of California shall have been passed or legislation shall 
have been passed by either chamber of the Congress of the United States 
or the legislature of any state having jurisdiction of the subject matter or 
legislation pending in the Congress of the United States shall have been 
amended or legislation shall have been recommended to the Congress of 
the United States or to any state having jurisdiction of the subject matter 
or otherwise endorsed for passage (by press release, other form of notice 
or otherwise) by the President of the United States, the Treasury 
Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or the 
Chairman or ranking minority member of the Committee on Finance of 
the United States Senate or the Committee on Ways and Means of the 
United States House of Representatives, or legislation shall have been 
proposed for consideration by either such Committee by any member 
thereof or presented as an option for consideration by either such 
Committee by the staff of such Committee or by the staff of the joint 
Committee on Taxation of the Congress of the United States, or legislation 
shall have been favorably reported for passage to either House of the 
Congress of the United States by a Committee of such House to which 
such legislation has been referred for consideration, or a decision shall 
have been rendered by a court of the United States or of the State of 
California or the Tax Court of the United States, or a ruling shall have 
been made or a regulation or temporary regulation shall have been made 
or any other release or announcement shall have been made by the 
Treasury Department of the United States, the Internal Revenue Service or 
other federal or State of California authority, with respect to federal or 
State of California taxation upon revenues or other income of the general 
character to be derived by the Alameda CTC or upon interest received on 
obligations of the general character of the Series 2014 Bonds which, in the 
reasonable judgment of the Representative, is likely to have the purpose or 
effect, directly or, indirectly, of adversely affecting the tax status of the 
Alameda CTC, its property or income, its securities (including the Series 
2014 Bonds) or the interest thereon, or any tax exemption granted or 
authorized by State of California legislation; or 

(B) legislation shall have been passed by either chamber 
of the Congress or recommended for passage by the President of the 
United States, or a decision rendered by a court established under Article 
III of the Constitution of the United States, or an order, ruling, regulation 
(final, temporary or proposed) or official statement issued or made by or 
on behalf of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any other 
governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall have 

Page 439Page 439Page 439Page 439



14679342.7 
 

 

 18 

been made or issued to the effect that obligations of the general character 
of the Series 2014 Bonds are not exempt from registration under the 1933 
Act, or that the Indenture is not exempt from qualification under the Trust 
Indenture Act; or 

(C) the declaration of war or engagement in or 
escalation of military hostilities by the United States or the occurrence of 
any other national or international emergency or calamity or terrorism 
affecting the operation of the government of the United States, or the 
financial, political or economic conditions affecting the United States or 
the Alameda CTC; or 

(D) the declaration of a general banking moratorium by 
federal, New York or California authorities or a major financial crisis, a 
material disruption in commercial banking or securities settlement or 
clearance services, the general suspension of trading on any national 
securities exchange, the establishment of minimum or maximum prices on 
any national securities exchange; or 

(E) an order, decree or injunction of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, issued or made to the effect that the issuance, 
offering or sale of obligations of the general character of the Series 2014 
Bonds, or the issuance, offering or sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, 
including any or all underlying obligations, as contemplated hereby or by 
the Official Statement, is or would be in violation of the federal securities 
laws as amended and then in effect; or 

(F) any material adverse change in the levy or 
collection of the Sales Tax or in the affairs or financial condition of the 
Alameda CTC, except for changes which the Official Statement discloses 
are expected to occur. 

(iii) additional material restrictions not in force or being 
enforced as of the date hereof shall have been imposed upon trading in securities 
generally by any governmental authority or by any national securities exchange 
which, in the reasonable professional judgment of the Representative, materially 
and adversely affect the market or market price for the Series 2014 Bonds; or 

(iv) an event described in paragraph (p) of Section 8 hereof 
shall have occurred which, in the reasonable professional judgment of the 
Representative, requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or 
amendment to the Official Statement; or 

(v) any litigation shall be instituted or be pending at the 
Closing Time to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2014 
Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting any authority for or the validity of 
the proceedings authorizing and approving the Sales Tax or the rate, levy or 

Page 440Page 440Page 440Page 440



14679342.7 
 

 

 19 

collection thereof, the issuance, sale or delivery of Series 2014 Bonds, the Act, 
the Ordinance, the Bond Resolution, the Legal Documents or the existence or 
powers of the Alameda CTC with respect to its obligations under the Legal 
Documents or the Series 2014 Bonds; or 

(vi) there shall have occurred any suspension, withdrawal, 
downgrading or published negative credit watch or similar published information 
from a rating agency that as of the date hereof has published, or has been asked to 
furnish, an unenhanced long-term rating on the Series 2014 Bonds, which action 
reflects a change or possible change in the ratings accorded to such obligations, 
including the Series 2014 Bonds. 

If the Underwriters terminate their obligation to purchase the Series 2014 Bonds because 
any of the conditions specified in Section 6, Section 9 or this Section 10 shall not have been 
fulfilled at or before the Closing Time, such termination shall not result in any liability on the 
part of the Representative. 

11. Conditions to Obligations of the Alameda CTC.  The performance by the 
Alameda CTC of its obligations is conditioned upon (i) the performance by the Underwriters of 
their obligations hereunder and (ii) receipt by the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters of 
opinions addressed to the Underwriters and certificates being delivered at the Closing Time by 
persons and entities other than the Alameda CTC. 

12. Amendment of Official Statement.  For a period beginning on the date hereof and 
continuing until the End Date, (a) the Alameda CTC will not adopt any amendment of, or 
supplement to, the Official Statement to which the Representative shall object in writing or that 
shall be disapproved by the Underwriter’s Counsel and (b) if any event relating to or affecting 
the Alameda CTC shall occur as a result of which it is necessary, in the opinion of Underwriter’s 
Counsel, to amend or supplement the Official Statement in order to make the Official Statement 
not misleading in the light of the circumstances existing at the time it is delivered to a purchaser 
of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC will forthwith prepare and furnish to the 
Underwriters a reasonable number of copies of an amendment of, or supplement to, the Official 
Statement (in form and substance satisfactory to Underwriters’ Counsel) that will amend or 
supplement the Official Statement so that it will not contain an untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light 
of the circumstances existing at the time the Official Statement is delivered to a purchaser of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, not misleading. 

13. Indemnification.  The Alameda CTC (an “Alameda CTC Indemnifying Party”) 
shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the extent permitted by law, the Underwriters and their 
respective directors, officers, employees and agents and each person who controls the 
Underwriters within the meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act (any such person being therein 
sometimes called an “Alameda CTC Indemnified Party”), against any and all losses, claims, 
damages or liabilities, joint or several, to which such Alameda CTC Indemnified Party may 
become subject under any statute or at law or in equity or otherwise, and shall promptly 
reimburse any such Alameda CTC Indemnified Party for any reasonable legal or other expenses 
incurred by it in connection with investigating any claims against it and defending any actions, 

Page 441Page 441Page 441Page 441



14679342.7 
 

 

 20 

but only to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or actions arise out of or are 
based upon any untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Preliminary Official 
Statement or the Official Statement under the captions “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS,” 
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS,” “THE 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,” “THE SALES TAX,” “PLAN 
OF FINANCE,” and “LITIGATION” or any amendment or supplement thereof, or the omission 
to state therein a material fact necessary to make the statements therein in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made not misleading.  This indemnity agreement shall not 
be construed as a limitation on any other liability which the Alameda CTC may otherwise have 
to any Alameda CTC Indemnified Party, provided that in no event shall the Alameda CTC be 
obligated for double indemnification. 

The Underwriters (collectively, an “Underwriter Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify 
and hold harmless, to the extent permitted by law, the Alameda CTC and its directors, officers, 
members, employees and agents and each person who controls the Alameda CTC within the 
meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act (any such person being therein sometimes called an 
“Underwriter Indemnified Party”), against any and all losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint 
or several, to which such Underwriter Indemnified Party may become subject under any statute 
or at law or in equity or otherwise, and shall promptly reimburse any such Underwriter 
Indemnified Party for any reasonable legal or other expenses incurred by it in connection with 
investigating any claims against it and defending any actions, but only to the extent that such 
losses, claims, damages, liabilities or actions arise out of or are based upon any untrue statement 
of a material fact contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement under 
the caption “UNDERWRITING” and the yield set forth on the inside cover page, or any 
amendment or supplement thereof, or the omission to state therein under the caption 
“UNDERWRITING” a material fact necessary to make the statements therein in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made not misleading.  This indemnity agreement shall not 
be construed as a limitation on any other liability which the Underwriters may otherwise have to 
any Underwriter Indemnified Party, provided that in no event shall the Underwriters be obligated 
for double indemnification.   

For purposes of this paragraph and the immediately succeeding paragraph, an 
“Indemnified Party” means an Alameda CTC Indemnified Party or an Underwriter Indemnified 
Party as the context dictates and an “Indemnifying Party” means an Alameda CTC Indemnifying 
Party or an Underwriter Indemnifying Party as the context dictates.   An Indemnified Party shall, 
promptly after the receipt of notice of the commencement of any action against such Indemnified 
Party in respect of which indemnification may be sought against an Indemnifying Party, notify 
the Indemnifying Party in writing of the commencement thereof, but the omission to notify the 
Indemnifying Party of any such action shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party from any liability 
that it may have to such Indemnified Party otherwise than under the indemnity agreement 
contained herein.  In case any such action shall be brought against an Indemnified Party and such 
Indemnified Party shall notify the Indemnifying Party of the commencement thereof, the 
Indemnifying Party may, or if so requested by such Indemnified Party shall, participate therein or 
assume the defense thereof, with counsel satisfactory to such Indemnified Party, and after notice 
from the Indemnifying Party to such Indemnified Party of an election so to assume the defense 
thereof, the Indemnifying Party will not be liable to such Indemnified Party under this paragraph 
for any legal or other expenses subsequently incurred by such Indemnified Party in connection 

Page 442Page 442Page 442Page 442



14679342.7 
 

 

 21 

with the defense thereof other than reasonable costs of investigation.  If the Indemnifying Party 
shall not have employed counsel to have charge of the defense of any such action or if the 
Indemnified Party shall have reasonably concluded that there may be defenses available to it or 
them that are different from or additional to those available to the Indemnifying Party (in which 
case the Indemnifying Party shall not have the right to direct the defense of such action on behalf 
of such Indemnified Party), such Indemnified Party shall have the right to retain legal counsel of 
its own choosing and reasonable legal and other expenses incurred by such Indemnified Party 
shall be borne by the Indemnifying Party. 

An Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any settlement of any such action effected 
without its consent by any Indemnified Party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
but if settled with the consent of the Indemnifying Party or if there be a final judgment for the 
plaintiff in any such action against the Indemnifying Party or any Indemnified Party, with or 
without the consent of the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnifying Party agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless such Indemnified Party to the extent provided herein. 

In order to provide for just and equitable contribution in circumstances in which 
indemnification hereunder is for any reason held to be unavailable from the Alameda CTC or the 
Underwriters, to the extent permitted by law, the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters shall 
contribute to the aggregate losses, claims, damages and liabilities (including any investigation, 
legal and other expenses incurred in connection with, and any amount paid in settlement of, any 
action, suit or proceeding or any claims asserted, to which the Alameda CTC and the 
Underwriters may be subject) in such proportion so that the Underwriters are jointly and 
severally responsible for that portion represented by the percentage that the Underwriters’ 
discount set forth in the Official Statement bears to the public offering price appearing thereon 
and the Alameda CTC is responsible for the balance; provided, however, that no person guilty of 
fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the 1933 Act) shall be 
entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.  
For purposes of this paragraph, each person, if any, who controls the Underwriters within the 
meaning of the 1933 Act shall have the same rights to contribution as the Underwriters.  Any 
party entitled to contribution will, promptly after receipt of notice of commencement of any 
action, suit or proceeding against such party in respect of which a claim for contribution may be 
made against another party or parties under this paragraph, notify such party or parties from 
whom contribution may be sought, but the omission so to notify shall not relieve that party or 
parties from whom contribution may be sought from any other obligation it or they may have 
hereunder or otherwise than under this paragraph.  No party shall be liable for contribution with 
respect to any action or claim settled without its consent. 

14. Expenses.   

(a) Whether or not the Series 2014 Bonds are issued as contemplated by this 
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay and the 
Alameda CTC hereby agrees to pay any expenses incident to the performance of the Alameda 
CTC’s obligations hereunder, including but not limited to the following:  (i) the cost of 
preparation, printing, engraving, execution and delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds; (ii) any fees 
charged by any rating agency for issuing the rating on the Series 2014 Bonds; (iii) the cost of 
printing (and/or word processing and reproduction), distribution and delivery of the Preliminary 

Page 443Page 443Page 443Page 443



14679342.7 
 

 

 22 

Official Statement  and the Official Statement; (iv) the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel, 
the Trustee (including its counsel’s fees), any disclosure counsel, accountants, consultants and 
any financial advisor; and (v) any out-of-pocket disbursements of the Alameda CTC.   

(b) Whether or not the Series 2014 Bonds are issued as contemplated by this 
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters shall pay (i) any fees assessed upon the 
Underwriters with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds by the MSRB or FINRA; (ii) all advertising 
expenses in connection with the public offering and distribution of the Series 2014 Bonds 
(excluding any expenses of the Alameda CTC and its employees or agents); (iii) any fees 
payable to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission; and (iv) all other expenses 
incurred by them or any of them in connection with the public offering and distribution of the 
Series 2014 Bonds, including the fees and disbursements of Underwriters’ Counsel.   

(c) As a convenience to the Alameda CTC, the Underwriters may, from time 
to time, make arrangements for certain items and advance certain costs for which the Alameda 
CTC is responsible hereunder, such as printing the Preliminary Official Statement and Official 
Statement, entertainment, meals, lodging and travel arrangements for Alameda CTC 
representatives, in connection with the transaction for which the Underwriters will be reimbursed 
from the Underwriters’ discount. 

(d) The Alameda CTC acknowledges that it has had an opportunity, in 
consultation with such advisors as it may deem appropriate, if any, to evaluate and consider the 
fees and expenses being incurred as part of the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

15. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given under this Bond 
Purchase Agreement (other than the acceptance hereof as specified in the first paragraph hereof) 
may be given by delivering the same in writing, if to the Alameda CTC, addressed to: 

Alameda County Transportation Commission  
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California  94607 
Attention: Executive Director 

or if to the Representative or the Underwriters, addressed to: 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. 
Municipal Securities Division 
One Sansome Street, 27th Floor 
San Francisco, California 94104 
Attention: Darren Hodge 

16. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations and Warranties.  This Bond 
Purchase Agreement when accepted by the Alameda CTC in writing as heretofore specified shall 
constitute the entire agreement between the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters and is made 
solely for the benefit of the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters (including the successors or 
assigns of the Underwriters).  No other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by 
virtue hereof.  All representations, warranties and agreements of the Alameda CTC in this Bond 
Purchase Agreement or in any certificate delivered pursuant hereto shall survive regardless of (a) 

Page 444Page 444Page 444Page 444



14679342.7 
 

 

 23 

any investigation or any statement in respect thereof made by or on behalf of the Underwriters, 
(b) delivery to and payment by the Underwriters for the Series 2014 Bonds hereunder and (c) any 
termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

17. Execution in Counterparts.  This Bond Purchase Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall 
constitute one and the same document. 

18. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The Alameda CTC acknowledges and agrees 
that: (i) the primary role of the Underwriters, is to purchase securities, for resale to investors, in 
an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters and 
that the Underwriters have financial and other interests that differ from those of the Alameda 
CTC; (ii) the Underwriters are not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor, or fiduciary 
to the Alameda CTC and have not assumed any advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the 
Alameda CTC with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby and the discussions, 
undertakings and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriters  have 
provided other services or are currently providing other services to the Alameda CTC on other 
matters) and the Underwriters have no contractual obligation to the Alameda CTC with respect 
to the offering contemplated hereby except the obligations expressly set forth in this Bond 
Purchase Agreement; and (iii) the Alameda CTC has consulted its own financial and/or 
municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it deems 
appropriate. If the Alameda CTC would like a municipal advisor in this transaction that has legal 
fiduciary duties to the Alameda CTC, then the Alameda CTC is free to engage a municipal 
advisor to serve in that capacity. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 

 

Page 445Page 445Page 445Page 445



14679342.7 
 

 

 S-1 

19. Applicable Law.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be interpreted, governed 
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 Very truly yours, 

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC. 
BARCLAYS CAPITAL INC. 

By  CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC., 
as Representative 

By:   
Director 

 
Accepted and Agreed to: 

ALAMEDA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

By:   
Patricia Reavey  

Director of Finance  
 

 

 
 

Page 446Page 446Page 446Page 446



14679342.7 
 

 

 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

 
$[______________] 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 

(LIMITED TAX BONDS) 
SERIES 2014 

 
Maturity 

(March 1) 
Principal 

Amount ($) 
Interest 

Rate (%) Yield (%) Price (%) 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
 
 

 

Page 447Page 447Page 447Page 447



14679342.7 
 

 

 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF THE 
REPRESENTATIVE REGARDING OFFERING PRICES 

This certificate is furnished by Citigroup Global Markets Inc., acting on behalf of itself 
and as representative (the “Representative”) of Barclays Capital Inc. (collectively, the 
“Underwriters”) as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated February [__], 2014 (the 
“Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the Underwriters and the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission for the sale of the $[_________] aggregate principal amount of  Alameda County 
Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (the 
“Bonds”). 

Certain information furnished in this certificate has been derived from other purchasers, 
bond houses and brokers and has not been independently verified by us.  We have relied (without 
any independent investigation or verification) on trades reported to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board via its EMMA portal for all information regarding trades to which neither the 
Representative nor the syndicate account were a party.  We make no representations as to the 
accuracy of any information reported on the EMMA portal.   

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFY AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The undersigned is authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of the 
Underwriters. 

2. On February [__], 2014 (the “Sale Date”), all of the Bonds have been the subject 
of a bona fide offering to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) (the “Public”) pursuant to the 
Bond Purchase Agreement, and on the Sale Date we reasonably expected that all of each 
maturity of the Bonds could be initially sold to the Public at the respective price for that 
maturity, as set forth in Schedule 1 hereto.  [Except for the Bonds scheduled to mature on 
________ __, 20__,] The first price at which at least 10% of the principal amount of each 
maturity of the Bonds initially was sold to the Public was the respective price for that maturity 
shown on Schedule I hereto.  For purposes of this certificate, we have assumed that (a) the 
phrase “bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of 
underwriters or wholesalers” refers only to persons who, to our actual knowledge, are acting in 
such capacity, and (b) sales of the Bonds reported as “Customer” trades on the EMMA portal are 
sales to the Public, unless we have specific knowledge to the contrary. 

3. We have no reason to believe that the prices shown on Schedule 1 hereto 
represent prices that are greater than the fair market value or market-clearing prices for all of the 
Bonds as of the Sale Date. 

4. [Subject to particular facts--For the Bonds scheduled to mature on ________ __, 
20__, 10% or more of such Bonds were not sold to the Public at any single price on the Sale 
Date, and none of such Bonds were sold by the Underwriters on the Sale Date to any person at a 

Page 448Page 448Page 448Page 448



14679342.7 
 

 

 B-2 

price higher than (or a yield lower than) the price for such Bonds shown on the attached 
schedule.] 

5. The Alameda County Transportation Commission may rely on the foregoing 
representations in making its certification as to issue price of the Bonds under the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), and Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as bond counsel, 
may rely on the foregoing representations in rendering their opinion that the interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes; provided, however, that 
nothing herein represents our interpretation of any laws, and in particular, regulations under 
section 148 of the Code. 

Dated:  February [__], 2014.  
CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC., on 

behalf of itself and as Representative of 
Barclays Capital Inc. 

By:   
Authorized Signatory 

 
 

Page 449Page 449Page 449Page 449



14679342.7 
 

 

 B-3 

Schedule 1 

$[_________________] 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 
(LIMITED TAX BONDS) 

SERIES 2014 
 

Maturity 
(March 1) 

Principal 
Amount ($) 

Interest 
Rate (%) Yield (%) Price (%) 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 

Page 450Page 450Page 450Page 450



14679342.7 
 

 

 
Fulbright & Jaworski LLP is a limited liability partnership registered under the laws of Texas. 

Fulbright & Jaworski LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright LLP, Norton Rose Fulbright Australia, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, Norton Rose 
Fulbright South Africa (incorporated as Deneys Reitz, Inc.), each of which is a separate legal entity, are members of Norton Rose Fulbright 
Verein, a Swiss Verein.  Details of each entity, with certain regulatory information, are at nortonrosefulbright.com. Norton Rose Fulbright Verein 
helps coordinate the activities of the members but does not itself provide legal services to clients. 
 
 
 

 C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF LETTER FROM DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 

February __, 2014 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California  94607 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., 
   as Representative 
One Sansome Street, 27th Floor 
San Francisco, California  94104 

Re: Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as Disclosure Counsel to the Alameda County Transportation Commission 
(“Alameda CTC”) in connection with the issuance by Alameda CTC of its Alameda County 
Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (the 
“Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, 
as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture thereto, dated as of February 1, 2014 
(collectively the “Indenture”), between Alameda CTC and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee.  The 
Bonds are more fully described in the Official Statement of Alameda CTC, dated February __, 
2014 (the “Official Statement”).  This opinion is delivered to you pursuant to Section 9(f)(7) of 
the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated February __, 2014 (the “Purchase Agreement”), by and 
between Alameda CTC and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as Representative of the 
Underwriters.  Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to 
such terms in the Purchase Agreement. 

In rendering this opinion, we have reviewed such records, documents, certificates and opinions, 
and made such other investigations of law and fact as we have deemed necessary or appropriate.   

This opinion is limited to matters governed by the federal securities law of the United States, and 
we assume no responsibility with respect to the applicability or effect of the laws of any other 
jurisdiction.   

Page 451Page 451Page 451Page 451



14679342.7 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
February [__], 2014 
Page 2 

 

 C-2 

In our capacity as Disclosure Counsel to Alameda CTC, we have rendered certain legal advice 
and assistance in connection with the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement of 
Alameda CTC, dated February __, 2014 (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), and the Official 
Statement.  Rendering such assistance involved, among other things, discussions and inquiries 
concerning various legal matters, review of certain records, documents and proceedings, and 
participation in meetings and telephone conferences with, among others, representatives of 
Alameda CTC, Public Financial Management, Inc., Alameda CTC’s financial advisor, Alameda 
CTC’s General Counsel, Bond Counsel, the Underwriters and Underwriters’ Counsel, at which 
meetings and conferences the contents of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement and related matters were discussed.  On the basis of the information made available to 
us in the course of the foregoing (but without having undertaken to determine or verify 
independently, or assuming any responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any 
of the statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement), no 
facts have come to the attention of the personnel directly involved in rendering legal advice and 
assistance in connection with the preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement that causes them to believe that (a) the Preliminary Official Statement as of its 
date or as of February __, 2014 contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to 
state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (except for the description of any 
claim or litigation, any information relating to The Depository Trust Company, Cede & Co., the 
book-entry system, forecasts, projections, estimates, assumptions and expressions of opinions 
and the other financial and statistical data included therein, and information in Appendices A, C, 
E and F thereof, as to all of which we express no view, and except for such information as is 
permitted to be excluded from the Preliminary Official Statement pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including but not limited to information as to 
pricing, yield, interest rate, maturity, amortization, redemption provisions, underwriters’ discount 
and CUSIP numbers), or (b) the Official Statement as of its date or as of the date hereof 
contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading (except for the description of any claim or litigation, any 
information relating to The Depository Trust Company, Cede & Co., the book-entry system, 
CUSIP numbers, forecasts, projections, estimates, assumptions and expressions of opinions and 
the other financial and statistical data included therein, and information Appendices A, C, E and 
F thereof, as to all of which we express no view).   

During the period from the date of the Preliminary Official Statement to the date of this opinion, 
except for our review of the certificates and opinions regarding the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement delivered on the date hereof, we have not undertaken any 
procedures or taken any actions which were intended or likely to elicit information concerning 
the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any of the statements contained in the Preliminary 
Official Statement or the Official Statement.   

We are furnishing this opinion to you, solely for your benefit.  This opinion is rendered in 
connection with the transaction described herein, and may not be relied upon by you for any 
other purpose.  This opinion shall not extend to, and may not be used, circulated, quoted, referred 

Page 452Page 452Page 452Page 452



14679342.7 
 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
February [__], 2014 
Page 3 

 

 C-3 

to, or relied upon by, any other person, firm, corporation or other entity without our prior written 
consent; provided, however, this opinion may be included in the transcript of closing documents 
prepared in connection with the Bonds.  The delivery of this opinion shall not create any 
attorney-client relationship between our firm and the addressees hereof, other than Alameda 
CTC.  Our engagement with respect to this matter terminates upon the delivery of this opinion to 
you at the time of the closing relating to the Bonds, and we have no obligation to update this 
opinion.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

Page 453Page 453Page 453Page 453



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 454Page 454Page 454Page 454



 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

by and between 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

and 

[DISSEMINATION AGENT], 
as Dissemination Agent 

Dated as of February 1, 2014 

Relating to 
 

$__________ 
ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds  
(Limited Tax Bonds),  

Series 2014 
 

 

10.1F

Page 455Page 455Page 455Page 455



 

57429551.4  1 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

THIS CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT, dated as of February 1, 2014 
(this “Disclosure Agreement”), is by and between the ALAMEDA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, a joint exercise of powers authority and a public entity 
duly established and existing under the laws of the State of California (“Alameda CTC”), and 
UNION BANK, N.A., as Dissemination Agent hereunder (the “Dissemination Agent”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Alameda CTC has issued $__________ Alameda County Transportation 
Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014 (the “Series 2014 
Bonds”) pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014 (the “2014 Indenture”), as 
supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014 (the “First 
Supplemental Indenture”) (the 2014 Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture are 
collectively referred to herein as the “Indenture”), between Alameda CTC and Union Bank, 
N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”); and 

WHEREAS, this Disclosure Agreement is being executed and delivered by Alameda 
CTC and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of the owners and beneficial owners of the 
Series 2014 Bonds and in order to assist the underwriters of the Series 2014 Bonds in complying 
with the Rule (as defined herein); 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is 
being executed and delivered by Alameda CTC and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of 
the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Series 2014 Bonds and in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule. 

Section 2. Definitions.  Capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the 
meanings ascribed thereto in the Indenture.  In addition, the following capitalized terms shall 
have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by Alameda CTC pursuant to, and 
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Disclosure Representative” means the Director of Finance of Alameda CTC, or such 
other officer or employee of Alameda CTC as the Executive Director of Alameda CTC or the 
Finance Director of Alameda CTC shall designate in writing to the Dissemination Agent and the 
Trustee from time to time. 

“Dissemination Agent” means an entity selected and retained by Alameda CTC, or any 
successor thereto selected by Alameda CTC. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be Union 
Bank, N.A. 

Page 456Page 456Page 456Page 456



 

57429551.4  2 

“EMMA” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic 
Municipal Market Access System for Municipal Securities disclosures, maintained on the 
internet at http://emma.msrb.org.   

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the 
next succeeding June 30, or any twelve-month or fifty-two week period hereafter selected by 
Alameda CTC, with notice of such selection or change in fiscal year to be provided as set forth 
herein. 

“Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Section 5 hereof. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to 
Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or any other entity designated or 
authorized by the SEC to receive reports pursuant to the Rule.  Until otherwise designated by the 
MSRB or the SEC, filings with the MSRB are to be made through the EMMA website of the 
MSRB, currently located at http://emma.msrb.org. 

“Official Statement” means the Official Statement, dated February ___, 2014, relating 
to the Series 2014 Bonds. 

“Participating Underwriters” means the underwriters of the Series 2014 Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Series 2014 Bonds. 

“Repository” means, until otherwise designated by the SEC, EMMA.  

“Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) So long as any Series 2014 Bonds remain outstanding pursuant to the 
Indenture, Alameda CTC shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than 
195 days following the end of Alameda CTC’s Fiscal Year (presently June 30), 
commencing with the report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014, provide to the 
MSRB, through EMMA, an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. The Annual Report must be submitted in 
electronic format, accompanied by such identifying information as provided by the 
MSRB.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as 
provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided, that the audited financial 
statements of Alameda CTC may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual 
Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they 
are not available by that date.  If the Fiscal Year changes for Alameda CTC, Alameda 
CTC shall give notice of such change in the manner provided under Section 5(e) hereof. 

Page 457Page 457Page 457Page 457

http://emma.msrb.org/
http://emma.msrb.org/


 

57429551.4  3 

(b) Not later than two (2) Business Days prior to the date specified in 
subsection (a) for providing the Annual Report to each Repository, Alameda CTC shall 
provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent. If by such date, the 
Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report from Alameda CTC, 
the Dissemination Agent shall contact Alameda CTC to determine if Alameda CTC is in 
compliance with the first sentence of subsection (a).  

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that an Annual Report of 
Alameda CTC has been provided to each Repository by the date required in 
subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall send a notice to each Repository in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine the electronic filing address of, and then-current 
procedures for submitting Annual Reports to, the MSRB each year prior to 
the date for providing the Annual Report; and 

(ii) to the extent known to the Dissemination Agent file a 
report with Alameda CTC and (if the Dissemination Agent is not the 
Trustee) the Trustee certifying that the Annual Report has been provided 
pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, and stating the date it was 
provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. Alameda CTC’s Annual Report shall 
contain or include by reference the following: 

(a) The audited financial statements of Alameda CTC for the prior Fiscal 
Year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. If Alameda CTC’s audited financial statements are not 
available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), 
the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the 
financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited financial 
statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become 
available. 

(b) The debt service schedule for the Series 2014 Bonds, if there have been 
any unscheduled redemptions, retirements or defeasances, and the debt service on any 
additional parity refunding bonds issued, in each case during the prior Fiscal Year.  

(c) The actual Sales Tax Revenues and debt service coverage for the prior 
Fiscal Year consistent with the information set forth in the tables entitled “Historical 
Sales Tax Revenues” and “Coverage Ratio” under the caption “THE SALES TAX – 
Historical Sales Tax Revenues” in the Official Statement. 

 

Page 458Page 458Page 458Page 458



 

57429551.4  4 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of Alameda CTC or public entities related 
thereto, which have been submitted to each Repository or the Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  If the document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be 
available from the MSRB.  Alameda CTC shall clearly identify each such other document so 
included by reference. 

The contents, presentation and format of the Annual Reports may be modified from time 
to time as determined in the judgment of Alameda CTC to conform to changes in accounting or 
disclosure principles or practices and legal requirements followed by or applicable to Alameda 
CTC or to reflect changes in the business, structure, operations, legal form of Alameda CTC or 
any mergers, consolidations, acquisitions or dispositions made by or affecting Alameda CTC; 
provided that any such modifications shall comply with the requirements of the Rule. 

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.  (a) Pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section 5, Alameda CTC shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds, in a timely manner not more than ten 
(10) Business Days after the event: 

(1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) defeasances; 

(3) tender offers; 

(4) rating changes; 

(5) adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue 
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability or Notices 
of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB); 

(6) unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(7) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(8) substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to 
perform; or 

(9) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings. 

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding numbered 
paragraph (9) is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a 
receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for Alameda CTC in a proceeding under the United 
States Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or 
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of 
Alameda CTC, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body 

Page 459Page 459Page 459Page 459



 

57429551.4  5 

and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or 
governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 
arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of Alameda CTC. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, Alameda CTC shall give, or 
cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to 
the Series 2014 Bonds, if material: 

(1) the consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition 
involving Alameda CTC or the sale of all or substantially all of the 
assets of Alameda CTC, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any 
such actions; 

(2) appointment of a successor or additional Trustee or the change of 
the name of a Trustee; 

(3) non-payment related defaults; 

(4) modifications to the rights of Holders; 

(5) bond calls;  

(6) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Series 2014 Bonds; or 

(7) in addition to the adverse tax opinions or determinations of 
taxability described in Section 5(a)(5) above, any other notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Series 2014 
Bonds. 

(c) Whenever Alameda CTC obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed 
Event, described in subsection (b) of this Section 5, Alameda CTC shall as soon as 
possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities 
law. 

(d) If Alameda CTC determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed 
Event described in subsection (b) of this Section 5 would be material under applicable 
federal securities law, Alameda CTC shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in 
writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence to the MSRB in a 
timely manner not more than ten (10) Business Days after the event. 

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by Alameda CTC to report 
the occurrence of a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such 
occurrence with the MSRB.   

Page 460Page 460Page 460Page 460



 

57429551.4  6 

Section 6. Filings with the MSRB.  All information, operating data, financial 
statements, notices and other documents provided to the MSRB in accordance with this 
Disclosure Agreement shall be provided in an electronic format prescribed by the MSRB and 
shall be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  Alameda CTC’s obligations 
under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance or payment in full of 
all of the Series 2014 Bonds.  If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Series 
2014 Bonds, Alameda CTC shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for a 
Listed Event under Section 5. 

Section 8. Dissemination Agent.  Alameda CTC may, from time to time, appoint or 
engage another Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without 
appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  If at any time there is not any other designated 
Dissemination Agent, the Trustee shall be the Dissemination Agent; provided, it shall receive 
written notice of such designation at the time of such designation. 

Section 9. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Agreement, Alameda CTC may amend this Disclosure Agreement, provided no 
amendment increasing or affecting the obligations or duties of the Dissemination Agent shall be 
made without the consent of such party, and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be 
waived if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of counsel expert in federal 
securities laws acceptable to Alameda CTC to the effect that such amendment or waiver would 
not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such amendment or 
waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking into account any subsequent change in or 
official interpretation of the Rule. 

Section 10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be 
deemed to prevent Alameda CTC from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that 
which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 11. Default.  In the event of a failure of Alameda CTC or the Dissemination 
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Trustee shall, at the 
written request of any Participating Underwriter or of the Holders of at least twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2014 Bonds then Outstanding (but only to 
the extent funds in an amount satisfactory to the Trustee have been provided to it or it has been 
otherwise indemnified to its satisfaction from any cost, liability, expense or additional charges 
and fees of the Trustee whatsoever, including, without limitation, reasonable fees and expenses 
of its attorneys), or any Holder or beneficial owner of the Series 2014 Bonds may, take such 
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance 
by court order, to cause Alameda CTC or the Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to 
comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  A default under this Disclosure 
Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy 
under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of Alameda CTC or the 

Page 461Page 461Page 461Page 461



 

57429551.4  7 

Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel 
performance. 

Section 12. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The 
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible for the form or content of any notice of Listed 
Event. The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable compensation for its services provided 
under this Disclosure Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are 
specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and Alameda CTC agrees to indemnify and 
save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any 
loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of 
its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of 
defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination 
Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of Alameda CTC under this Section 
shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Series 2014 
Bonds. 

Section 13. Notices.  Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties to 
the Disclosure Agreement or the Trustee may be given as follows: 

To Alameda CTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission 
1111 Broadway, Suite 800 
Oakland, California 94607 
Attention:  Director of Finance 
Telephone:  (510) 208-7422 
 

To the Dissemination Agent: Union Bank, N.A. 
350 California Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, California 94104 
Attention:  Corporate Trust 
Telephone: (415) 273-2514 
 
 

To the Trustee: Union Bank, N.A. 
350 California Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, California 94104 
Attention:  Corporate Trust 
Telephone: (415) 273-2514 
 

Any person may, by written notice to the other persons listed above, designate a different 
address or telephone number(s) to which subsequent notices or communications should be sent. 
Any notice or communication may also be sent by electronic mail, receipt of which shall be 
confirmed. 

Section 14. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit 
of Alameda CTC, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and 
beneficial owners from time to time of the Series 2014 Bonds, and shall create no rights in any 
other person or entity. 

Page 462Page 462Page 462Page 462



 

57429551.4  8 

Section 15. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Disclosure Agreement 
as of the date first above written. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION 
 
 
 
By:    
 Executive Director 
 
 
UNION BANK, N.A., 
as Dissemination Agent 
 
 
 
By:    
 Authorized Representative 
 

Page 463Page 463Page 463Page 463



 

57429551.4  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 
NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of Issuer:  Alameda County Transportation Commission (“Alameda CTC”) 

Name of Issue:   $_________ Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax 
 Revenue Bonds  (Limited Tax Bonds), Series 2014  

Date of Issuance:  February ___, 2014 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Alameda CTC has not provided an Annual Report 
with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by this Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
dated as of February 1, 2014, between Alameda CTC and the Dissemination Agent.  Alameda 
CTC anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by _____________. 

Dated: _______, 20__ 

[DISSEMINATION AGENT], as Dissemination Agent, 
on behalf of Alameda CTC 

 
 
 

cc:  Alameda CTC 

Page 464Page 464Page 464Page 464



AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT FOR STATE ADMINISTRATION 

OF DISTRICT TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAXES 

The Alameda County Transportation Commission (hereinafter "District") and the Board 

of Equalization (hereinafter "Board") enter into this Amended and Restated Agreement to 

provide for the administration of taxes (hereinafter "District Taxes") pursuant to the provisions of 

Division 2, Part 1.6. of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California (the 

"Transactions and Use Tax Law"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, as authorized pursuant to Ordinance No. 2000-01, adopted on July 25, 2000, 

the Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority ("ACTIA"), a predecessor agency to 

the District, entered into an "Agreement for State Administration of District Transactions and 

Use Taxes" (the "Existing Agreement") with the Board, which was effective on January 1, 2002, 

and continues in effect;  

WHEREAS, from and after January 1, 2002, the Board has performed all functions 

incident to the administration and operation of the hereinafter defined District Ordinance;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to its Resolution Number 2012-0001 Termination of ACTIA, 

ACTIA was terminated, with the District designated as the successor entity, and all of ACTIA's 

assets, functions and responsibilities were transferred and assigned to the District as of close of 

business on February 29, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the District, as successor agency to ACTIA, and the Board desire to amend 

and restate the Existing Agreement as set forth herein; 

AGREEMENT 

The Board and the District enter into this "Amended and Restated Agreement for State 

Administration of District Transactions and Use Taxes" (hereinafter this "Agreement") to carry 

out the provisions of the Transactions and Use Tax Law and the District Ordinance, a copy of 

which District Ordinance is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The Board and the District agree that 

this Agreement will supersede the Existing Agreement.  This Agreement will become operative 

10.1G

Page 465Page 465Page 465Page 465



 2 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

on February 1, 2014 to provide for the Board's administration and operation of the District 

Ordinance pursuant to the District Ordinance and to provide security for the hereinafter defined 

Bonds. 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context requires otherwise, wherever the following terms appear in the 

Agreement, they shall be interpreted to mean the following: 

1. "Bonds" shall mean any bonds, notes or other obligations of the District secured by a 

pledge of all or a portion of the District Taxes. 

2. "Corporate Trust Office" shall mean the corporate trust office of the Trustee located 

at 350 California Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, California 94104, Attention:  Corporate 

Trust, or such other or additional offices as may be designated in writing to the Board by the 

Trustee. 

3. "District Ordinance" shall mean the Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance referenced 

above and attached hereto as Exhibit A, as amended or extended from time to time, or as deemed 

to be amended from time to time pursuant to Section 7262.2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code 

of the State of California. 

4. "District Taxes" shall mean the transactions and use taxes, penalties, and interest 

imposed under an ordinance specifically authorized by Section 180201 Public Utilities Code of 

the State of California and in compliance with the "Transactions and Use Tax Law". 

5. "Indenture" shall mean that certain Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2014, between 

the District and the Trustee, as supplemented and amended from time to time pursuant to its 

terms, or any replacement therefor, pursuant to which the District issues or incurs obligations 

secured by a pledge of all or a portion of the District Taxes, including Bonds. 

6. "Trustee" shall mean the national banking association or state banking corporation 

serving as trustee under the Indenture, including any successor thereto appointed pursuant to the 

Page 466Page 466Page 466Page 466



 3 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

provisions of the Indenture.  Unless and until the Board shall have received a written notice of 

resignation or removal, either from the existing Trustee or District, as applicable, Trustee shall 

mean Union Bank, N.A.. 

ARTICLE II 

ADMINISTRATION AND COLLECTION 

OF DISTRICT TAXES 

A. Administration.  The Board and the District agree that the Board shall perform 

exclusively all functions incident to the administration and operation of the District Ordinance. 

B. Other Applicable Laws.  The District agrees that all provisions of law applicable 

to the administration and operation of the State Sales and Use Tax Law which are not 

inconsistent with the Transactions and Use Tax Law shall be applicable to the administration and 

operation of the District Ordinance.  The District agrees that money collected pursuant to the 

District Ordinance may be deposited into the State Treasury to the credit of the Retail Sales Tax 

Fund and may be drawn from that Fund for any authorized purpose, including making refunds, 

compensating and reimbursing the Board pursuant to Article IV of this Agreement, and of 

transmitting to the District the amount to which the District is entitled. 

C. Transmittal of money. 

1. So long as any Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity Obligations, Subordinate 

Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid (as such terms are defined in the 

Indenture), all taxes imposed under the District Ordinance and collected by the Board, less the 

Board's compensation, as provided in Article IV of this Agreement, shall be transmitted by the 

Board periodically as promptly as feasible, but not less often than once in each calendar month, 

directly to the Trustee at the Corporate Trust Office for the account of the District.  The first 

month in which payment shall be made to the Trustee shall be March, 2014.  Transmittals to the 

Trustee shall be made via same day deposit program or by electronic funds transfer to an account 

of the Trustee designated and authorized by the District, to be held in trust for the District, or as 

otherwise provided in writing to the Board.  Bonds shall be assumed to be Outstanding and 

Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations shall be assumed 

Page 467Page 467Page 467Page 467



 4 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

to remain unpaid unless the District and the Trustee have both delivered written notice to the 

Board stating that no Bonds remain Outstanding and that no Parity Obligations, Subordinate 

Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid. 

2. At such time as no Bonds remain Outstanding and no Parity Obligations, 

Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid, all District Taxes 

collected under the provisions of the District Ordinance shall be transmitted to District 

periodically as promptly as feasible, but not less often than once in each calendar month. 

3. Transmittals may be made by electronic funds transfer to an account of the 

District designated and authorized by District.   

4. A statement shall be furnished by the Board to the District at least quarterly, 

indicating the amounts withheld pursuant to Article IV of this Agreement. 

D. Rules.  The Board shall prescribe and adopt such rules and regulations as in its 

judgment are necessary or desirable for the administration and operation of the District 

Ordinance and the distribution of the District Taxes collected thereunder. 

E. Preference.  Unless the payor instructs otherwise, and except as otherwise 

provided in this Agreement, the Board shall give no preference in applying money received for 

state sales and use taxes, state-administered local sales and use taxes, and District Taxes owed by 

a taxpayer, but shall apply moneys collected to the satisfaction of the claims of the State, cities, 

counties, cities and counties, redevelopment agencies, other districts, and the District as their 

interests appear. 

F. Security.  The Board agrees that any security which it hereafter requires to be 

furnished by taxpayers under the State Sales and Use Tax Law will be upon such terms that it 

also will be available for the payment of the claims of the District for District Taxes owing to it 

as its interest appears.  The Board shall not be required to change the terms of any security now 

held by it, and the District shall not participate in any security now held by the Board. 

G. Records of the Board.  When requested by resolution of the legislative body of 

the District under Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, the Board agrees to permit 

Page 468Page 468Page 468Page 468



 5 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

authorized personnel of the District to examine the records of the Board, including the name, 

address, and account number of each seller holding a seller's permit with a registered business 

location in the District, pertaining to the ascertainment of District Taxes.  Information obtained 

by the District from examination of the Board's records shall be used by the District only for 

purposes related to the collection of transactions and use taxes by the Board pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

H. Annexation.  The District agrees that the Board shall not be required to give 

effect to an annexation, for the purpose of collecting, allocating, and distributing District 

transactions and use taxes, earlier than the first day of the calendar quarter which commences not 

less than two months after notice to the Board.  The notice shall include the name of the county 

or counties annexed to the extended District boundary.  In the event the District shall annex an 

area, the boundaries of which are not coterminous with a county or counties, the notice shall 

include a description of the area annexed and two maps of the District showing the area annexed 

and the location address of the property nearest to the extended District boundary on each side of 

every street or road crossing the boundary. 

ARTICLE III 

ALLOCATION OF TAX 

A. Allocation.  In the administration of the Board's contracts with all districts that 

impose transactions and use taxes imposed under ordinances, which comply with the 

Transactions and Use Tax Law: 

1. Any payment not identified as being in payment of liability owing to a designated 

district or districts may be apportioned among the districts as their interest appear, or, in the 

discretion of the Board, to all districts with which the Board has contracted, using ratios reflected 

by the distribution of district taxes collected from all taxpayers. 

2. All district taxes collected as a result of determinations or billings made by the 

Board, and all amounts refunded or credited may be distributed or charged to the respective 

districts in the same ratio as the taxpayer's self-declared district taxes for the period for which the 

determination, billing, refund or credit applies. 

Page 469Page 469Page 469Page 469



 6 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

B. Vehicles, Vessels, and Aircraft.  For the purpose of allocating use tax with 

respect to vehicles, vessels, or aircraft, the address of the registered owner appearing on the 

application for registration or on the certificate of ownership may be used by the Board in 

determining the place of use. 

ARTICLE IV 

COMPENSATION 

The District agrees to pay to the Board as the Board's cost of administering the District 

Ordinance such amount as is provided for by law (including, but not limited to, the Transactions 

and Use Tax Law, Section 7272 and Section 7273, and Section 11256 of the Government Code 

of the State of California).  Such amounts shall be deducted from the taxes collected by the 

Board for the District. 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Communications.  Communications and notices may be sent by first class United 

States mail to the addresses listed below, or to such other addresses as the parties may from time 

to time designate.  A notification is complete when deposited in the mail. 

Communications and notices to be sent to the Board shall be addressed to: 

 State Board of Equalization 

P.O. Box 942879 

Sacramento, California 94279-0073 

Attention:  Executive Director 

 

 

Communications and notices to be sent to the District shall be addressed to: 

 Alameda County Transportation Commission 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, California 92401 

Attention:  Director of Finance 

 

Page 470Page 470Page 470Page 470



 7 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

Communications and notices to be sent to the Trustee shall be addressed to the Trustee at 

the Corporate Trust Office. 

B. Term.  This Agreement amends, restates and supersedes the Existing Agreement. 

The date of this Agreement is the date on which this Agreement is approved by the Department 

of General Services.  This Agreement shall take effect on February 1, 2014.  This Agreement 

shall continue until December 31 next following the expiration date of the District Ordinance, 

and shall thereafter be renewed automatically from year to year until the Board completes all 

work necessary to the administration of the District Ordinance and has collected all District 

Taxes and disbursed all payments due under the District Ordinance. 

C. Trustee.  The parties hereto acknowledge that the Trustee shall be entitled to the 

same immunities and protections hereunder as are set forth in Article VIII of the Indenture. 

D. Notice of Repeal of District Ordinance.  The District shall give the Board 

written notice of the repeal of the District Ordinance not less than 110 days prior to the operative 

date of the repeal. 

ARTICLE VI 

ADMINISTRATION OF TAXES IF THE 

ORDINANCE IS CHALLENGED AS BEING INVALID 

A. Impoundment of funds. 

1. When a legal action is begun challenging the validity of the imposition of the tax, 

the District (or the Trustee if Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity Obligations, Subordinate 

Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid) shall deposit in an interest-bearing 

escrow account (as specified by the District), any proceeds transmitted to it under Article II.C., 

until a court of competent jurisdiction renders a final and non-appealable judgment that the tax is 

valid. 

2. If the tax is determined to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, the District (or 

the Trustee if Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee 

and Expense Obligations remain unpaid) shall transmit to the Board the moneys retained in 

Page 471Page 471Page 471Page 471



 8 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

escrow, including any accumulated interest, within ten days of the final and non-appealable 

judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, in the litigation awarding costs and fees becoming 

final and non-appealable. 

B. Costs of administration.  Should a court of competent jurisdiction render a final 

and non-appealable judgment, holding that District Ordinance is invalid or void, and requiring a 

rebate or refund to taxpayers of any taxes collected under the terms of this Agreement, the 

parties mutually agree that: 

1. The Board may retain all payments made by the District to Board for the Board's 

services involved in preparing to administer the District Ordinance. 

2. The District will pay to the Board and allow the Board to retain the Board's 

administrative costs in the amounts set forth in Article IV of this Agreement. 

3. The District will pay to the Board or to the State of California the amount of any 

taxes, plus interest and penalties, if any, that the Board or the State of California may be required 

to rebate or refund to taxpayers. 

4. The District will pay to the Board its costs for rebating or refunding such taxes, 

interest, or penalties.  The Board's costs shall include its additional cost for developing 

procedures for processing the rebates or refunds, its costs of actually making these refunds, 

designing and printing forms, and developing instructions for Board's staff for use in making 

these rebates or refunds and any other costs incurred by the Board which are reasonably 

appropriate or necessary to make those rebates or refunds.  These costs shall include Board's 

direct and indirect costs as specified by Section 11256 of the Government Code. 

5. Costs may be accounted for in a manner, which conforms to the internal 

accounting, and personnel records currently maintained by the Board.  The billings for such costs 

may be presented in summary form.  Detailed records will be retained for audit and verification 

by the District. 

Page 472Page 472Page 472Page 472



 9 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

6. The District and the Board agree that any dispute as to the amount of costs 

incurred by the Board in refunding taxes shall be referred to the State Director of Finance for 

resolution and such Director's decision shall be final. 

7. Costs incurred by Board in connection with such refunds shall be billed by the 

Board on or before the 25th day of the second month following the month in which the judgment 

of a court of competent jurisdiction holding the District Ordinance invalid or void becomes final.  

Thereafter the Board shall bill District on or before the 25th of each month for all costs incurred 

by the Board for the preceding calendar month.  The District shall pay to the Board the amount 

of such costs on or before the last day of the succeeding month and shall pay to the Board the 

total amount of taxes, interest, and penalties refunded or paid to taxpayers, together with Board 

costs incurred in making those refunds. 

ALAMEDA COUNTY 
  TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

  
  
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 

Arthur L. Dao Executive Director 
Executive Director  

 

Page 473Page 473Page 473Page 473



 

 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY THE TRUSTEE 

The Trustee hereby acknowledges receipt of this Amended and Restated Agreement for 

State Administration of District Transactions and Use Taxes and, subject to the provisions of the 

Indenture, accepts its duties hereunder. 

Dated as of February 1, 2014 UNION BANK, N.A., as trustee 
  
  
 By: ___________________________________ 

 Authorized Officer 
  

Notice Address: Union Bank, N.A. 
   350 California Street, 11th Floor 
   San Francisco, California  94104 

Attention:  Corporate Trust 

Page 474Page 474Page 474Page 474



 

 OHSUSA:755079254.3  
 

Exhibit A 

Ordinance No. 2000-01 

Page 475Page 475Page 475Page 475



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 476Page 476Page 476Page 476



 
 

     ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

                       RESOLUTION 14-003 

 
A Resolution of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with the State 
Board of Equalization for Implementation of a Local Transactions and Use 

Tax 

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2000, the Alameda County Transportation 
Improvement Authority, a predecessor agency to the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission, approved Ordinance No. 2000-1 providing for 
a local transactions and use tax; and 

WHEREAS, the State Board of Equalization (the "Board") administers and 
collects the transactions and use taxes for all applicable jurisdictions within 
the state; and 

WHEREAS, the Board will be responsible to administer and collect the 
transactions and use tax for the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Board requires that the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission as successor agency to the Alameda County Transportation 
Improvement Authority enter into an "Administration Agreement," and 

WHEREAS, the Board requires that the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission authorize the Administration Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission that the attached "Amended and Restated Agreement for 
State Administration of District Transaction and Use Taxes" is hereby 
approved and the Executive Director of the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission is hereby authorized to execute the Amended 
and Restated Agreement for State Administration of District Transaction 
and Use Taxes. 

  
Duly passed and adopted by the Alameda County Transportation 
Commission at the regular meeting of the Commission held on Thursday, 
January 23, 2014 in Oakland, California by the following votes: 

 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
 
Commission Vice Chair 
Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 
City of Oakland 
 
AC Transit 
Director Elsa Ortiz 
 
Alameda County 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 
 
BART 
Director Thomas Blalock 
 
City of Alameda 
Mayor Marie Gilmore 
 
City of Albany 
Mayor Peggy Thomsen 
 
City of Berkeley 
Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 
 
City of Dublin 
Mayor Tim Sbranti 
 
City of Emeryville 
Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 
 
City of Fremont 
Mayor William Harrison 
 
City of Hayward 
Councilmember Marvin Peixoto 
 
City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 
 
City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 
 
City of Oakland 
Vice Mayor Larry Reid 
 
City of Piedmont 
Mayor John Chiang 
 
City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  
 
City of San Leandro 
Councilmember Michael Gregory 
 
City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 
 
 
Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao 
 

10.1H

Page 477Page 477Page 477Page 477



Alameda County Transportation Commission  
Resolution 14-003 
Page 2 

AYES:   NOES:   ABSTAIN:  ABSENT: 
 
 
SIGNED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________  ____________________________________ 
Scott Haggerty, Chairperson  Vanessa Lee, Clerk of the Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 478Page 478Page 478Page 478



Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures 
For Tax-Exempt Bonds 

___________ 1, 2014 

The purpose of these Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Procedures is to establish policies 
and procedures in connection with tax-exempt bonds ("Bonds") issued by the Alameda County 
Transportation Commission (the "Issuer") so as to ensure that the Issuer complies with all 
applicable post-issuance requirements of federal income tax law needed to preserve the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds. 

General 

Ultimate responsibility for all matters relating to Issuer financings and refinancings rests 
with the Director of Finance (the "Director of Finance"). 

Post-Issuance Compliance Requirements 

External Advisors / Documentation 

The Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel shall consult with bond 
counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, throughout the process of issuing Bonds 
to identify requirements and to establish procedures necessary or appropriate so that the Bonds 
will continue to qualify for the appropriate tax status.  Those requirements and procedures shall 
be documented in an Issuer resolution(s), Tax Certificate(s) and/or other documents finalized at 
or before issuance of the Bonds.  Those requirements and procedures shall include future 
compliance with applicable arbitrage rebate requirements and all other applicable post-issuance 
requirements of federal tax law throughout (and in some cases beyond) the term of the Bonds. 

The Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel also shall consult with 
bond counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, following issuance of the Bonds to 
ensure that all applicable post-issuance requirements in fact are met.  This shall include, without 
limitation, consultation in connection with contracts with respect to the use of Bond-financed 
assets entered into or amended subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds.  

Whenever necessary or appropriate, the Issuer shall engage expert advisors (each a 
"Rebate Service Provider") to assist in the calculation of arbitrage rebate payable in respect of 
the investment of Bond proceeds. 

Role of the Issuer as Bond Issuer 

Unless otherwise provided by Issuer documentation, investment of Bond proceeds shall 
be managed by the Director of Finance.  The Director of Finance shall maintain records 
regarding the investment of, and transactions involving, Bond proceeds. 

10.1I

Page 479Page 479Page 479Page 479



 2  OHSUSA:755150786.2  
 

If Issuer documentation provides for Bond proceeds to be administered by a trustee, the 
trustee shall provide regular, periodic (monthly) statements regarding the investments and 
transactions involving Bond proceeds. 

Arbitrage Rebate and Yield 

Unless a Tax Certificate documents that bond counsel has advised that arbitrage rebate 
will not be applicable to an issue of Bonds: 

• the Issuer shall engage the services of a Rebate Service Provider, and the Issuer or 
the trustee shall deliver periodic statements concerning the investment of Bond proceeds to the 
Rebate Service Provider on a prompt basis; 

• upon request, the Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel shall 
provide to the Rebate Service Provider additional documents and information reasonably 
requested by the Rebate Service Provider; 

• the Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel shall monitor 
efforts of the Rebate Service Provider and assure payment of required rebate amounts, if any, no 
later than 60 days after each 5-year anniversary of the issue date of the Bonds, and no later than 
60 days after the last Bond of each issue is redeemed; and 

• during the construction period of each capital project financed in whole or in part 
by Bonds, the Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel shall monitor the 
investment and expenditure of Bond proceeds and shall consult with the Rebate Service Provider 
to determine compliance with any applicable exceptions from the arbitrage rebate requirements 
during each 6-month spending period up to 6 months, 18 months or 24 months, as applicable, 
following the issue date of the Bonds. 

The Issuer shall retain copies of all arbitrage reports and trustee statements as described 
below under "Record Keeping Requirements." 

Use of Bond Proceeds 

The Issuer grants Bond proceeds to agencies that are not directly or indirectly controlled 
by the Issuer and do not directly or indirectly control the Issuer (such agencies being hereinafter 
referred to as "Unrelated Agencies") in order to finance assets that are owned and operated by 
the Unrelated Agencies and with respect to which the Issuer receives no payments (such assets 
being hereinafter referred to as "Grant Assets").  The Issuer may finance other assets as well 
(such other assets being hereinafter referred to as "Issuer Assets").   

The Director of Finance and other appropriate Issuer personnel shall: 

• monitor the use of Bond proceeds and the use of Issuer Assets throughout the 
term of the Bonds (and in some cases beyond the term of the Bonds) to ensure compliance with 
covenants and restrictions set forth in applicable Issuer documentation, including Tax 
Certificates; 

Page 480Page 480Page 480Page 480



 3  OHSUSA:755150786.2  
 

• monitor any changes to the use of Grant Assets that will cause any of the Bond 
proceeds granted to Unrelated Agencies to be returned to the Issuer and consult with bond 
counsel regarding the use of any such returned proceeds; 

• maintain records identifying all of the assets or portion of assets that are financed 
or refinanced with proceeds of each issue of Bonds; 

• consult with bond counsel and other professional expert advisers in the review of 
any contracts or arrangements involving use of Issuer Assets to ensure compliance with all 
covenants and restrictions set forth in applicable Issuer documentation, including Tax 
Certificates; 

• maintain records for any contracts or arrangements involving the use of Issuer 
Assets as might be necessary or appropriate to document compliance with all covenants and 
restrictions set forth in applicable Issuer documentation and Tax Certificates; and 

• meet at least annually with personnel responsible for Issuer Assets to identify and 
discuss any existing or planned use of Issuer Assets to ensure that those uses are consistent with 
all covenants and restrictions set forth in applicable Issuer documentation, including Tax 
Certificates. 

All relevant records and contracts shall be maintained as described below. 

Record Keeping Requirements 

Unless otherwise specified in applicable Issuer documentation or Tax Certificates, the 
Issuer shall maintain the following documents for the term of each issue of Bonds (including 
refunding Bonds, if any) plus at least three years: 

• a copy of the Bond closing transcript(s) and other relevant documentation 
delivered to the Issuer at or in connection with closing of the issue of Bonds; 

• a copy of all material documents relating to capital expenditures financed or 
refinanced by Bond proceeds, including (without limitation) construction contracts, purchase 
orders, invoices, trustee requisitions and payment records, as well as documents relating to costs 
reimbursed with Bond proceeds and records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are 
financed or refinanced with Bond proceeds; 

• a copy of all contracts and arrangements involving private use of Bond-financed 
assets; and 

• copies of all records of investments, investment agreements, arbitrage reports and 
underlying documents, including trustee statements. 

Page 481Page 481Page 481Page 481



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 482Page 482Page 482Page 482


	Commission_Meeting_Notice_20140123
	hyperlinked_Commission_Agenda_20140123
	Commission_Packet_20140123
	Commission_Meeting_Notice_20140123
	hyperlinked_Commission_Agenda_20140123
	Final_Commission_Packet_20140123
	4-Combo
	Election_Chair-ViceChair_Memo_20140107
	Commission_Member_Committee_Assignment_CY2013
	Current Assignments


	7.1_Combo
	7.2_Combo
	7.2_I580HOV_Progress_Report
	7.2A_I580EBHOVLaneStatusUpdate
	7.2B_I580WBHOVLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	7.2C_I-580CorridorProjects_LocationMap

	7.3_Combo
	7.3_I580Express_HOT_SI_ProgressRpt
	7.3A_I580EBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	7.3B_I580WBHOTLaneProjectsStatusUpdate
	7.3C_I580ExpressLaneSystemIntegration
	7.3D_I580Express_LocationMap

	7.4_Combo
	7.5_Combo
	7.5_EnvironmentalDocReview
	7.5A_Pleasanton_EPSP_NOP_Signed
	7.5B_Tracy_THSP_NOP_Signed
	7.5C_Oakland_LakeMerrittSAP_DEIR_Signed
	7.5D_SanLeandro_Shoreline_NOP_Signed

	7.6_Combo
	7.6_CTC_Meeting_Summary
	7.6A_Attachment_A_CTCSummaryItem
	Sheet1


	7.7_Combo
	7.7_AR_Reports_memo_20140113
	7.7A_STIP_AR_PPC_20140113
	Pg1of5
	Pg2of5
	Pg3of5
	Pg4of5
	Pg5of5

	7.7B_Fed_AR_PPC_20140113
	Pg1of11
	Pg2of11
	Pg3of11
	Pg4of11
	Pg5of11
	Pg6of11
	Pg7of11
	Pg8of11
	Pg9of11
	Pg10of11
	Pg11of11
	A1ofA1
	B1ofB3
	B2ofB3
	B3ofB3

	7.7C_TFCA_AR_Board_20140113
	AR- Jan 2013


	7.8_Combo
	7.9_Combo
	7.9_VRF_SMART_Corridor_Status
	7.9A_EBSC_Elements_20131217

	7.10_Combo
	7.10_VRF_Tech_Policy_20140106
	7.10A_VRF_Tech_Policy_20140106

	7.11_Combo
	7.11_Cap_Trade
	7.11_AttachmentA
	kim_reso_4130
	tmp-4130_as revised by Commission

	7.11_AttachmentB
	kim_reso_4130
	tmp-4130_as revised by Commission


	7.12_Combo
	7.12_Revise_Imp_Guidelines_20140113_V3
	7.12A_Paratransit_Implementation_Guidelines_20131112

	7.13_Combo
	7.13_Prop1B_Transit_Security
	7.13_AttachmentA_Reso_14-001
	7.13_Grant_Assurances

	7.14_Combo
	7.14_I580AuxLane_MitigationCoop_with_Caltrans_140113
	7.14A_Mitigation_Coop_580EBHOV_4-2467_20131205

	7.15_COmbo
	7.15_SR84_CorridorProjects_Agreements_TVTDF
	7.15A_TVTDF_Agreement_SR84_ EXWY_South Segment
	7.15B_TVTDF_Agreement _SR84_ Pigeon Pass_I- 680

	7.16_Combo
	7.16_SR84_Corridor_ Projects_Agreement_Utility Relocation_Memo
	7.16A_Utility_Relocation_Agreement_Rte84_Expressway

	7.17_Combo
	7.17_Time_Ext_Amend_Memo_201312
	7.17A_AttachmentA

	7.18-Combo
	7.18_Staff_Report_FY1415_Admin_Contracts_Plan
	7.18_Attachment_A_Table_1_Contracts_Plan

	7.19_Combo
	7.19_Staff_Report_Bond_Ratings
	7.19_Attachment_B_Fitch_Final_Press_Release_Alameda_CTC_1_3_14

	7.20_Combo
	7.21_Combo
	7.22_Combo
	7.22_Meeting Schedule_CalendarYR_2014
	2014_ACTC_Meeting-Schedule
	Sheet1


	7.23_Combo
	8.1-Combo
	8.1_Bicycle_and_Pedestrian_Advisory_Committee.pdf
	Active Members


	8.2-Combo
	8.2_Citizens_Watchdog_Committee.pdf
	Active Members


	8.3_Combo
	9.1_Combo
	9.1_LegislativeUpdate_20131231
	9.1A_2014_Legislative_Platform_Table
	9.1_B_GovernorBudgetSummary
	9.1C_CMA_AB32Scoping Plan updateLetter_20131101

	9.2_Combo
	9.2_2014_TEP_Approval_20140116
	9.2_B_TEP_Implementation_Schedule_FY13-14_20140115
	FY 13-14


	10.1_Combo
	10.1_Staff_Report_Debt_Issuance_Approval
	10.1_Attachment_A_Reso_14-002_VL
	Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and the Commission so finds and determines.
	Section 2. Approval of Bonds.  The issuance by the Alameda CTC of not to exceed $165,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Alameda County Transportation Commission Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Limited Tax Bonds), in one or more Series, is hereby authorize...
	Section 3. Approval of Master Indenture and Supplemental Indenture.  The proposed form of Master Indenture and the proposed form of Supplemental Indenture, each between the Alameda CTC and the Trustee, presented to the Commission, and the terms and pr...
	The Clerk of the Alameda CTC (the "Clerk") is directed to file a copy of said form of Master Indenture and said form of Supplemental Indenture with the minutes of this meeting, and the Chair of the Commission (the "Chair"), the Vice Chair of the Commi...
	Section 4. Application of Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be applied to finance costs of the Project, to fund capitalized interest and to pay certain costs incurred by the Alameda CTC in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, all in acc...

	10.1_Attachment_B_ACTC_Indenture
	INDENTURE
	Dated as of February 1, 2014
	INDENTURE
	WITNESSETH:
	ARTICLE I   EQUALITY OF SECURITY; DEFINITIONS; CONTENT OF CERTIFICATES
	SECTION 1.01 Equality of Security.  In consideration of the acceptance of the Bonds by the owners thereof from time to time, this Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract among the Alameda CTC, the Trustee and the owners from ti...
	SECTION 1.02 Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section shall, for all purposes of this Indenture and of any Supplemental Indenture and of any certificate, opinion or other document herein mentioned, have th...
	(A) Excluded Principal Payments (and the interest related thereto provided such interest is being paid from the same source as the Excluded Principal Payments) shall be excluded from such calculation and Assumed Debt Service shall be included in such ...
	(B) in determining the principal amount due in each Fiscal Year, payment shall (unless a different subsection of this definition applies for purposes of determining principal maturities or amortization) be assumed to be made in accordance with any amo...
	(C) if any Obligations bear, or if any Obligations proposed to be issued will bear, interest at a variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is not in place and the interest on which is excluded or expected to be excluded from gr...
	(D) if any Obligations bear, or if any Obligations proposed to be issued will bear, interest at a variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is not in place and the interest on which is included or expected to be included in gros...
	(E) with respect to any Obligations bearing interest, or expected to bear interest, at a variable interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is in place providing for a fixed rate of interest to maturity or for a specific term with respec...
	(F) with respect to any Obligations bearing interest, or expected to bear interest, at a fixed interest rate for which an Interest Rate Swap Agreement is in place providing for a net variable interest rate with respect to such Obligations for a specif...
	(G) if any Obligations feature an option, on the part of the owners or an obligation under the terms of such Obligations, to tender all or a portion of such Obligations to the Alameda CTC, the Trustee or other fiduciary or agent, and requires that suc...
	(H) principal and interest payments on Obligations shall be excluded to the extent such payments are to be paid from Revenues then held on deposit by the Trustee or from other amounts on deposit, including Investment Securities and interest to be paya...
	(1) any bonds or other obligations which as to principal and interest constitute direct obligations of, or are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, including obligations of any of the federal agencies and federally sponsored en...
	(2) any certificates, receipts, securities or other obligations evidencing ownership of, or the right to receive, a specified portion of one or more interest payments or principal payments, or any combination thereof, to be made on any bond, note, or ...
	(3) obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Government National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Banks, Farmers Home Administration and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation;
	(4) housing authority bonds issued by public agencies or municipalities and fully secured as to the payment of both principal and interest by a pledge of annual contributions under an annual contributions contract or contracts with the United States o...
	(5) obligations of any state, territory or commonwealth of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof or any agency or department of the foregoing; provided that, except with respect to direct obligations of the State, at the ti...
	(6) any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or any political subdivision thereof (a) which are not callable prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given to the trustee of such bonds or o...
	(7) bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any corporation which are, at the time of purchase, rated by both Moody's and Standard & Poor's at least "A1/P1" for money market instruments and at least "A" for ...
	(8) demand or time deposits or certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or nonnegotiable, issued by any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or any national banking association (including the T...
	(9) taxable commercial paper, other than that issued by bank holding companies, or tax-exempt commercial paper rated at least "A1/P1" by both Moody's and Standard & Poor's;
	(10) any repurchase agreement with any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States or any national banking association (including the Trustee) having a minimum permanent capital of one hundred million dollars ($100...
	(11) any cash sweep or similar account arrangement of or available to the Trustee, and which may include funds for which the Trustee, its parent holding company, if any, or any affiliates or subsidiaries of the Trustee provide investment advisory or o...
	(12) any investment agreement with a financial institution or insurance company or whose obligations are guaranteed by a financial institution or insurance company which: (a) has at the date of execution thereof an outstanding issue of unsecured, unin...
	(13) shares of beneficial interest in diversified management companies investing exclusively in securities and obligations described in clauses (1) through (12) of this definition of Investment Securities and which companies have either the highest ra...
	(14) shares in a common law trust established pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State which invests exclusively in investments permitted by Section 53635 of Title 5, Division 2, Chapter 4 of the Government Code o...
	(15) bankers' acceptances issued by domestic or foreign banks, which may include the Trustee and its affiliates, that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System, the short-term paper of which is rated in the highest category by both Moody...
	(16) the Local Agency Investment Fund or similar pooled fund operated by or on behalf of the State of California and which is authorized to accept investments of moneys held in any of the funds or accounts established pursuant to this Indenture;
	(17) general obligation bonds of the State; and
	(18) Defeasance Securities.


	SECTION 1.03 Content of Certificates.  Every certificate provided for in this Indenture with respect to compliance with any provision hereof shall include:  (1) a statement that the person making or giving such certificate has read such provision and ...

	ARTICLE II   THE BONDS
	SECTION 2.01 Authorization of Bonds.  Bonds may be issued hereunder as fully registered bonds without coupons, in book-entry form or otherwise, from time to time as the issuance thereof is approved by the Alameda CTC.  The maximum principal amount of ...
	SECTION 2.02 Terms of the Bonds.  The Bonds of each Series shall bear interest, if any, at such rate or rates or determined in such manner and payable at such intervals as may be determined by the Alameda CTC at the time of issuance thereof pursuant t...
	SECTION 2.03 Form of Bonds.  The Bonds of any Series shall be in such form or forms as may be specified in the Supplemental Indenture creating such Series, which form or forms may be modified as necessary in connection with any interest rate conversio...
	SECTION 2.04 Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name and on behalf of the Alameda CTC by the facsimile or manual signature of the Chair of the Commission or any Vice Chair of the Commission and shall be countersigned by the facsim...
	SECTION 2.05 Transfer of Bonds.  Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred, upon the register required to be kept pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07, by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly autho...
	SECTION 2.06 Exchange of Bonds.  Bonds may be exchanged at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations of the same Series, tenor, maturity and interest rate; provided that,...
	SECTION 2.07 Bond Register.  Unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture delivered in connection with a Series of Bonds, the Trustee will keep or cause to be kept, at its Corporate Trust Office sufficient books for the registration and trans...
	SECTION 2.08 Temporary Bonds.  The Bonds may be issued in temporary form exchangeable for definitive Bonds when ready for delivery.  Any temporary Bond may be printed, lithographed or typewritten, shall be of such denomination as may be determined by ...
	SECTION 2.09 Bonds Mutilated; Lost; Destroyed or Stolen.  If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Alameda CTC, at the expense of the Holder of said Bond, shall execute, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like Serie...
	SECTION 2.10 Use of Securities Depository.  Unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture delivered in connection with a Series of Bonds, notwithstanding any provision of this Indenture to the contrary:
	(A) The Bonds shall be delivered and registered as provided in Section 2.02.  Registered ownership of any Series of Bonds, or any portion thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except:
	(1) To any successor of the Securities Depository or its nominee, or to any substitute depository designated pursuant to clause (2) of this subsection (A) (each, a "substitute depository"); provided that any successor of the Securities Depository or s...
	(2) To any substitute depository designated by the Alameda CTC upon (a) the resignation of the Securities Depository or its successor (or any substitute depository or its successor) from its functions as depository or (b) a determination by the Alamed...
	(3) To any Person as provided below, upon (a) the resignation of the Securities Depository or its successor (or substitute depository or its successor) from its functions as depository; provided that no substitute depository can be obtained or (b) a d...

	(B) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (1) or clause (2) of subsection (A) above, upon receipt of the Outstanding Bonds by the Trustee, together with a Statement of the Alameda CTC to the Trustee, a single new Bond for each maturity of eac...
	(C) In the case of partial redemption or an advance refunding of any Series of the Bonds evidencing all or a portion of such amount Outstanding, the Securities Depository shall make an appropriate notation on such Bonds indicating the date and amounts...
	(D) The Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall be entitled to treat the Person in whose name any Bond is registered as the Bondholder thereof for all purposes of the Indenture and any applicable laws, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by ...
	(E) So long as the Outstanding Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. or its registered assign, the Alameda CTC and the Trustee shall cooperate with Cede & Co., as sole registered Bondholder, and its registered assigns in effecting payment of ...


	ARTICLE III   ISSUANCE OF BONDS
	SECTION 3.01 Issuance of Bonds.  Whenever the Alameda CTC shall determine to issue a Series of Bonds hereunder, the Alameda CTC (i) shall authorize the execution of a Supplemental Indenture specifying the principal amount, and prescribing the forms of...
	SECTION 3.02 Issuance of Refunding Bonds.  Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC may only issue additional Bonds in order to refund all or any portion of any Bonds or Parity Obligations then outstanding.  Any such additi...
	(A) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing.
	(B) Subject to the provisions of Section 5.05, in the event a Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of Bonds shall require either (i) the establishment of a Bond Reserve Fund to provide additional security for such Series of...
	(C) The aggregate principal amount of Bonds issued hereunder shall not exceed any limitation imposed by the Act, the Ordinance or any other law or by any Supplemental Indenture.
	(D) Principal payments of each additional Series of Bonds shall be due on March 1 or September 1 in each year in which principal is to be paid if and to the extent deemed practical in the reasonable judgment of the Alameda CTC with regard to the type ...

	SECTION 3.03 Proceedings for Issuance of Refunding Bonds.  Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, before any additional Series of Bonds shall be issued and delivered, the Alameda CTC shall file each of the documents identified below with...
	(A) A Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Series executed by the Alameda CTC.
	(B) A Certificate of the Alameda CTC certifying:  (i) that no Event of Default has occurred and is then continuing; and (ii) that the requirement specified in Section 3.02(B) hereof has been satisfied by the Alameda CTC.
	(C) A Certificate of the Alameda CTC certifying that Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Bonds Outstanding and all Parity Obligations outstanding following the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is less than or equal to Maximum Annual Debt Service on all...
	(D) An Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the Supplemental Indenture is being entered into in accordance with this Indenture and that such Series of Bonds, when duly executed by the Alameda CTC and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, w...
	(E) If any of the Bonds to be refunded are to be redeemed prior to their stated maturity dates, irrevocable instructions to the Trustee to give the applicable notice of redemption or a waiver of the notice of redemption signed by the Holders of all or...

	SECTION 3.04 Utilization of Proceeds of Refunding Bonds.  Refunding Bonds may be issued in an aggregate principal amount sufficient (together with any additional funds available or to become available) to provide funds for the payment of all or a port...
	The proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee according to the written direction of the Alameda CTC to the retirement of the Outstanding Bonds or Parity Obligations for the refunding of which said Refunding Bonds are ...

	SECTION 3.05 Limitations on the Issuance of Obligations Payable from Sales Tax Revenues; Parity Obligations; Subordinate Obligations; Fee and Expense Obligations.  Subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, the Alameda CTC will not, so long ...
	(A) Bonds authorized in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 3.01 and in compliance with the provisions set forth in Section 3.02.
	(B) Parity Obligations, provided that the following conditions to the issuance or incurrence of such Parity Obligations are satisfied:
	(1) Such Parity Obligations have been duly and legally authorized by the Alameda CTC;
	(2) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, as evidenced by the delivery of a Certificate of the Alameda CTC to that effect, which Certificate of the Alameda CTC shall be filed with the Trustee;
	(3) Such Parity Obligations are being issued or incurred in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds; and
	(4) As and to the extent applicable, the Trustee shall be designated as paying agent or trustee for such Parity Obligations and the Alameda CTC shall deliver to the Trustee a transcript of the proceedings providing for the issuance of such Parity Obli...

	(C) Subordinate Obligations that are payable as to principal, premium, interest and reserve fund requirements, if any, only out of Sales Tax Revenues after the prior payment of all amounts then required to be paid hereunder from Sales Tax Revenues for...
	(1) Such Subordinate Obligations have been duly and legally authorized by the Alameda CTC for any lawful purpose;
	(2) No Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, as evidenced by the delivery to the Trustee of a Certificate of the Alameda CTC to that effect; and
	(3) As and to the extent applicable, the Trustee shall be designated as paying agent or trustee for such Subordinate Obligations and the Alameda CTC shall deliver to the Trustee a transcript of the proceedings providing for the issuance of such Subord...

	(D) Fee and Expense Obligations.

	SECTION 3.06 Calculation of Maximum Annual Debt Service with Respect to Bonds, Parity Obligations and Subordinate Obligations.  For purposes of this Article III, Maximum Annual Debt Service with respect to Bonds shall be determined no later than the d...
	SECTION 3.07 Designation of Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations.  Upon the issuance or incurrence of any obligations which constitute Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations, t...
	SECTION 3.08 Application of Proceeds.  Proceeds of each Series of Bonds shall be applied as specified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which such Series of Bonds is issued.

	ARTICLE IV   REDEMPTION, TENDER AND PURCHASE OF BONDS
	SECTION 4.01 Terms of Redemption, Tender and Purchase.  Each Series of Bonds may be made subject to redemption or mandatory or optional tender and purchase prior to their respective stated maturities, as a whole or in part, at such time or times, upon...
	SECTION 4.02 Notice of Redemption.  Unless otherwise specified in a Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of a Series of Bonds, written notice of redemption shall be given by the Alameda CTC to the Trustee at least twenty-five (...
	SECTION 4.03 Selection of Bonds for Optional Redemption; Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which a Series of Bonds is issued, in the event of a partial optional redemption, the Alameda C...
	Upon surrender of any Bond redeemed in part only, the Alameda CTC shall execute (but need not prepare) and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the Holder thereof, at the expense of the Alameda CTC, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominat...
	SECTION 4.04 Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been duly given as aforesaid, and moneys for payment of the Redemption Price of, together with interest accrued to the redemption date on, the Bonds (or portions thereof) so called for re...

	ARTICLE V   SALES TAX REVENUES
	SECTION 5.01 Pledge of Revenues; Revenue Fund.
	(A) As security for the payment of all amounts owing on the Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations and Fee and Expense Obligations, in accordance with the provisions set forth herein, there are irrevocably pledged to the Trustee:  (i) all ...
	(B) As long as any Bonds are Outstanding or any Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Fee and Expense Obligations remain unpaid, the Alameda CTC assigns and shall cause Sales Tax Revenues to be transmitted by the State Board of Equalization d...
	(C) The Bonds are limited obligations of the Alameda CTC and are payable as to both principal and interest, and any premium upon redemption thereof, exclusively from the Revenues and other funds pledged hereunder.

	SECTION 5.02 Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues.
	(A) So long as any Bonds are Outstanding and Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations, Fee and Expense Obligations and other amounts payable hereunder remain unpaid, the Trustee shall set aside in each month following receipt of the Sales Tax Reven...
	(1) Interest Fund.  Following receipt of the Sales Tax Revenues in each month, the Trustee shall set aside in the Interest Fund as soon as practicable in such month an amount equal to (a) one-sixth of the aggregate half-yearly amount of interest becom...
	(2) Principal Fund; Sinking Accounts.  Following receipt of the Sales Tax Revenues in each month, the Trustee shall deposit in the Principal Fund as soon as practicable in such month an amount equal to at least (a) one-sixth of the aggregate semiannua...
	(3) Bond Reserve Fund.  Upon the occurrence of any deficiency in any Bond Reserve Fund, the Trustee shall make such deposit to such Bond Reserve Fund as is required pursuant to Section 5.05(D), each such deposit to be made as soon as possible in each ...
	(4) Subordinate Obligations Fund.  In the event that the Alameda CTC issues or incurs Subordinate Obligations, the  Trustee shall establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the "Subordinate Obligations Fund."  After the transf...
	(5) Fees and Expenses Fund.  In the event that the Alameda CTC incurs Fee and Expense Obligations, the Trustee shall establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the "Fees and Expenses Fund."  After the transfers described in (1...

	(B) Any Revenues remaining in the Revenue Fund after the foregoing transfers described in (1), (2), (3), (4) and (5) of subsection (A) above, except as the Alameda CTC shall otherwise direct in writing or as is otherwise provided in a Supplemental Ind...
	(C) If, five (5) Business Days prior to any principal payment date, Interest Payment Date or mandatory redemption date, the amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund, including the Sinking Accounts therein, and, as ...

	SECTION 5.03 Application of Interest Fund.  All amounts in the Interest Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purposes of:  (a) paying interest on the Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued interest on any...
	SECTION 5.04 Application of Principal Fund.
	(A) All amounts in the Principal Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purposes of paying the Bond Obligation of the Bonds when due and payable, except that all amounts in the Sinking Accounts shall be used and withdrawn by th...
	(B) The Trustee shall establish and maintain within the Principal Fund a separate account for the Term Bonds of each Series and maturity, designated as the "_____ Sinking Account," inserting therein the Series and maturity designation of such Bonds.  ...

	SECTION 5.05 Establishment, Funding and Application of Bond Reserve Funds.  The Alameda CTC may at its sole discretion at the time of issuance of any Series of Bonds or at any time thereafter by Supplemental Indenture provide for the establishment of ...
	(A) In lieu of making the Bond Reserve Requirement deposit applicable to one or more Series of Bonds in cash or in replacement of moneys then on deposit in any Bond Reserve Fund (which shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Alameda CTC), or in sub...
	(B) In lieu of making a Bond Reserve Requirement deposit in cash or in replacement of moneys then on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund (which shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Alameda CTC) or in substitution of any Reserve Facility comprising pa...
	(C) Subject to Section 5.05(E), all amounts in any Bond Reserve Fund (including all amounts which may be obtained from a Reserve Facility on deposit in such Bond Reserve Fund) shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee, as hereinafter provided:  (i) f...
	(D) The Trustee shall notify the Alameda CTC of any deficiency in any Bond Reserve Fund (i) due to a withdrawal from such Bond Reserve Fund for purposes of making up any deficiency in the Interest Fund or the Principal Fund relating to the Bonds of th...
	(E) Unless the Alameda CTC shall otherwise direct in writing, any amounts in any Bond Reserve Fund in excess of the Bond Reserve Requirement relating to the Bonds of the Series to which such Bond Reserve Fund relates shall be transferred by the Truste...

	SECTION 5.06 Application of Subordinate Obligations Fund.  All moneys in the Subordinate Obligations Fund shall be applied to the payment of principal of and interest on Subordinate Obligations in accordance with Section 5.02(A)(4).
	SECTION 5.07 Application of Fees and Expenses Fund.  All amounts in the Fees and Expenses Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying fees, expenses and similar charges owed by the Alameda CTC in connection with th...
	SECTION 5.08 Application of Redemption Fund.  The Trustee shall establish, maintain and hold in trust a special fund designated as the "Redemption Fund."  All moneys deposited by the Alameda CTC with the Trustee for the purpose of optionally redeeming...
	SECTION 5.09 Rebate Fund.
	(A) Upon receipt of funds to be applied to the Rebate Requirement, the Trustee shall establish and maintain a fund separate from any other fund established and maintained hereunder designated as the Rebate Fund.  Within the Rebate Fund, the Trustee sh...
	(B) Pursuant to each Tax Certificate, an amount shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund by the Alameda CTC so that the balance of the amount on deposit thereto shall be equal to the Rebate Requirement applicable to the Series of Bonds to which such Tax ...
	(C) The Trustee shall invest all amounts held in the Rebate Fund, pursuant to written instructions of the Alameda CTC, in Investment Securities, subject to the restrictions set forth in the applicable Tax Certificate.  Money shall not be transferred f...
	(D) Upon receipt of Rebate Instructions, the Trustee shall remit part or all of the balances in the Rebate Fund to the United States of America, as so directed.  In addition, if the Rebate Instructions so direct, the Trustee will deposit moneys into o...
	(E) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, including in particular Article X thereof, the obligation to remit the Rebate Requirement applicable to each Series of Bonds to the federal government of the United States of America and to com...

	SECTION 5.10 Payment Provisions Applicable to Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  In the event the Alameda CTC shall enter into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement in connection with a Series of Bonds, the amounts received by the Alameda CTC, if any, pursuant...
	SECTION 5.11 Investment in Funds and Accounts.  All moneys in any of the funds and accounts held by the Trustee and established pursuant to this Indenture shall be invested, as directed by the Alameda CTC, solely in Investment Securities.  All Investm...

	ARTICLE VI   COVENANTS OF THE ALAMEDA CTC
	SECTION 6.01 Punctual Payments.  The Alameda CTC will punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on all the Bonds, in strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds and of this Indenture, according to the true ...
	SECTION 6.02 Extension of Payment of Bonds.  The Alameda CTC will not directly or indirectly extend or assent to the extension of the maturity of any of the Bonds or the time of payment of any Bonds or claims for interest by the purchase or funding of...
	SECTION 6.03 Waiver of Laws.  The Alameda CTC will not at any time insist upon or plead in any manner whatsoever, or claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay or extension of law now or at any time hereafter in force that may affect the cove...
	SECTION 6.04 Further Assurances.  The Alameda CTC will make, execute and deliver any and all such instruments and assurances as may be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Indenture and for...
	SECTION 6.05 Against Encumbrances.  The Alameda CTC will not create any pledge, lien or charge upon any of the Sales Tax Revenues having priority over or having parity with the lien of the Bonds, the Parity Obligations, the Subordinate Obligations and...
	SECTION 6.06 Accounting Records and Financial Statements.
	(A) The Alameda CTC will at all times keep, or cause to be kept, proper books of record and account, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, in which complete and accurate entries shall be made of all transactions relatin...
	(B) The Alameda CTC will furnish the Trustee, with copies to each Credit Provider and each Liquidity Provider, within one hundred ninety-five (195) days after the end of each Fiscal Year or as soon thereafter as they can practically be furnished, the ...

	SECTION 6.07 Collection of Sales Tax Revenues.
	(A) The Alameda CTC covenants and agrees that the Sales Tax was duly levied by ACTIA in accordance with the Act, pursuant to and in accordance with the Ordinance, duly passed and adopted by ACTIA and the electorate of the County.  The Ordinance will n...
	(B) Sales Tax Revenues received by the Trustee shall be transmitted to the Alameda CTC pursuant to Section 5.02; provided that, during the continuance of an Event of Default, any Sales Tax Revenues received by the Trustee shall be applied as set forth...
	(C) The Alameda CTC covenants and agrees to separately account for all Revenues and to provide to the Trustee access to such accounting records at reasonable hours and under reasonable circumstances.
	(D) The Alameda CTC covenants that so long as the Bonds are Outstanding, it will not, to the best of its ability, suffer or permit any change, modification or alteration to be made to the Act which would materially and adversely affect the rights of B...

	SECTION 6.08 Tax Covenants.  The Alameda CTC covenants that it will not take any action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds under...
	SECTION 6.09 Continuing Disclosure.  Upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds requiring an undertaking regarding continuing disclosure under Rule 15c2-12, the Alameda CTC hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the pr...

	ARTICLE VII   EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	SECTION 7.01 Events of Default.  The following events shall be Events of Default:
	(A) default in the due and punctual payment of the principal or Redemption Price of any Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as therein expressed, by proceedings for redemption, by declaration or otherwise, or de...
	(B) default in the due and punctual payment of any installment of interest on any Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due and payable;
	(C) if the Alameda CTC shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition, agreement or provision in this Indenture on its part to be observed or performed, other than as referred to in subsection (A) or (B) of this Section, for a period of sixt...
	(D) if any payment default shall exist under any agreement governing any Parity Obligations and such default shall continue beyond the grace period, if any, provided for with respect to such default;
	(E) if the Alameda CTC files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy for the composition of its affairs or for its corporate reorganization under any state or federal bankruptcy or insolvency law, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or adm...
	(F) if a court of competent jurisdiction shall enter an order, judgment or decree declaring the Alameda CTC insolvent, or adjudging it bankrupt, or appointing a trustee or receiver of the Alameda CTC, or approving a petition filed against the Alameda ...
	(G) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Alameda CTC or of the Revenues, and such custody or control shall not be terminated within sixty...
	(H) if the Legislature of the State shall repeal or amend all or any portion of the provisions of the Act relating to the retail transactions and use tax, being Sections 180200 to 180207, inclusive, of the Public Utilities Code of the State unless the...

	SECTION 7.02 Application of the Revenues and Other Funds After Default; No Acceleration.  If an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the Alameda CTC shall immediately transfer to the Trustee all Revenues held by it and the Trustee shall app...
	(1) to the payment of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to protect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds and Parity Obligations, including the costs and expenses of the Trustee and the Bondholders in declaring such Event of Defa...
	(2) to the payment of the whole amount of Bond Obligation then due on the Bonds and Parity Obligations (upon presentation of the Bonds and Parity Obligations to be paid, and stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or surrender thereof ...
	(3) to the extent Revenues are available therefor, to the payment of Subordinate Obligations,  provided that if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all Subordinate Obligations, then to the payment thereof ratably;
	(4) to the extent Revenues are available therefor, to the payment of Fee and Expense Obligations, provided that if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all Fee and Expense Obligations, then to the payment thereof ratably; and
	(5) to the payment of all other obligations payable hereunder.

	SECTION 7.03 Trustee to Represent Bondholders.  The Trustee is hereby irrevocably appointed (and the successive respective Holders of the Bonds, by taking and holding the same, shall be conclusively deemed to have so appointed the Trustee) as trustee ...
	SECTION 7.04 Bondholders' Direction of Proceedings.  Anything in this Indenture to the contrary (except provisions relating to the rights of a Credit Provider to direct proceedings as set forth in Section 7.10) notwithstanding, the Holders of a majori...
	SECTION 7.05 Limitation on Bondholders' Right to Sue.  No Holder of any Bond shall have the right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, for the protection or enforcement of any right or remedy under this Indenture, the Act o...
	SECTION 7.06 Absolute Obligation of the Alameda CTC.  Nothing in Section 7.05 or in any other provision of this Indenture, or in the Bonds, contained shall affect or impair the obligation of the Alameda CTC, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay...
	SECTION 7.07 Termination of Proceedings.  In case any proceedings taken by the Trustee, any Credit Provider or any one or more Bondholders on account of any Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason or shall have been d...
	SECTION 7.08 Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee, to any Credit Provider or to the Holders of the Bonds is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy, to the...
	SECTION 7.09 No Waiver of Default.  No delay or omission of the Trustee, any Credit Provider or of any Holder of the Bonds to exercise any right or power arising upon the occurrence of any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be const...
	SECTION 7.10 Credit Provider Directs Remedies Upon Event of Default.  Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default as defined herein, the Credit Provider then providing Credit En...

	ARTICLE VIII   THE TRUSTEE
	SECTION 8.01 Appointment, Duties Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee.
	(A) Union Bank, N.A., is hereby appointed as Trustee under this Indenture and hereby accepts the trust imposed upon it as Trustee hereunder and to perform all the functions and duties of the Trustee hereunder, subject to the terms and conditions set f...
	(B) The Alameda CTC may remove the Trustee at any time unless an Event of Default shall have occurred and then be continuing, and shall remove the Trustee if at any time requested to do so by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed b...
	(C) The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice of such resignation to the Alameda CTC and each Credit Provider then insuring any Series of Bonds and by giving the Bondholders notice of such resignation by mail at the addresses shown o...
	(D) Any removal or resignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.  If no successor Trustee shall have been appointed and have accepted appointment withi...
	(E) Any Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section in succession to the Trustee shall be a trust company, or national banking association or bank having the powers of a trust company, having (or, if such trust company, national banking ass...

	SECTION 8.02 Accounting Records and Monthly Statements.  The Trustee shall keep proper books of record and accounts containing complete and correct entries of all transactions relating to the receipt, investment, disbursement, allocation and applicati...
	SECTION 8.03 Merger or Consolidation.  Any company into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company...
	SECTION 8.04 Liability of Trustee.
	(A) The recitals of facts herein and in the Bonds contained shall be taken as statements of the Alameda CTC, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of the same (other than the certificate of authentication of the Trustee on each...
	(B) The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a responsible officer unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts.  The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or power...
	(C) The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstand...
	(D) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Indenture at the request, order or direction of any Credit Provider or any of the Bondholders pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture, inclu...
	(E) No provision of this Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance or exercise of any of its duties hereunder or in the exercise of its rights or powers.
	(F) The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of, and shall not be required to take any action with respect to, any Event of Default (other than an Event of Default described in subsections (A) or (B) of Section 7.01) or event that would, with...
	(G) No permissive power, right or remedy conferred upon the Trustee hereunder shall be construed to impose a duty to exercise such power, right or remedy.
	(H) The Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, requisition, bond, debenture, coupon or o...
	(I) The Trustee shall not be responsible for:
	(1) the application or handling by the Alameda CTC of any Revenues or other moneys transferred to or pursuant to any Requisition or Request of the Alameda CTC in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof;
	(2) the application and handling by the Alameda CTC of any other fund or account designated to be held by the Alameda CTC hereunder;
	(3) any error or omission by the Alameda CTC in making any computation or giving any instruction pursuant to Section 5.09 and Section 6.08 and may rely conclusively on the Rebate Instructions and any computations or instructions furnished to it by the...
	(4) the construction, operation or maintenance of any portion of the Project by the Alameda CTC.

	(J) Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every provision of this Indenture relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or affording protection to the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Article VIII.
	(K) The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon instructions or directions pursuant to this Indenture sent by unsecured e-mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic methods to which is attached the applicable Certificate, Stateme...
	(L) The Trustee shall not be considered in breach of or in default in its obligations hereunder or progress in respect thereto in the event of enforced delay ("unavoidable delay") in the performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyo...
	(M) The Trustee shall have no responsibility or liability with respect to any information, statements or recital in any official statement, offering memorandum or other disclosure material prepared or distributed with respect to the issuance of  Bonds...

	SECTION 8.05 Right of Trustee to Rely on Documents and Opinions.  The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, report, opinion, note or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine...
	SECTION 8.06 Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee.  The Alameda CTC covenants to pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall be entitled to, reasonable compensation for all services rendered by it in the exercise and performance...

	ARTICLE IX   MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THIS INDENTURE
	SECTION 9.01 Amendments Permitted.
	(A)
	(2) No such modification or amendment shall (a) extend the maturity of any Bond, or reduce the amount of principal thereof, or extend the time of payment or reduce the amount of any Mandatory Sinking Account Payment provided for the payment of any Bon...
	(B) This Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Alameda CTC, of the Trustee and of the Holders of the Bonds may also be modified or amended from time to time and at any time by a Supplemental Indenture, which the Alameda CTC and the Trustee m...
	(1) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Alameda CTC set forth in this Indenture other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, to pledge or assign additional security for the Bonds (or any portion thereof), or to surrender any rig...
	(2) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency or omission, or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained in this Indenture, or in regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture, as the ...
	(3) to modify, amend or supplement this Indenture in such manner as to permit the qualification hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar federal statute hereafter in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and p...
	(4) to provide for the issuance of an additional Series of Bonds subsequent to the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Article III hereof;
	(5) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable to provide for the issuance or incurrence, as applicable, of Capital Appreciation Bonds, Parity Obligations, Subordinate Obligations or Variable Rate Indebtedness, with such ...
	(6) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable to provide for change from one interest rate mode to another in connection with any Series of Bonds;
	(7) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable to accommodate Credit Enhancements, Liquidity Facilities and Reserve Facilities;
	(8) to make modifications or adjustments necessary, appropriate or desirable to provide for the appointment of an auction agent, a broker-dealer, a calculation agent, an index agent, a remarketing agent, a tender agent and/or a paying agent in connect...
	(9) to modify the auction provisions applicable to any Series of Bonds in accordance with the terms and provisions set forth in the Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of such Series of Bonds;
	(10) to provide for any additional covenants or agreements necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of interest on any Series of Bonds;
	(11) if the Alameda CTC agrees in a Supplemental Indenture to maintain the exclusion of interest on a Series of Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, to make such provisions as are necessary or appropriate to ensure such exc...
	(12) to provide for the issuance of Bonds in book-entry form or bearer form and/or to modify or eliminate the book-entry registration system for any Series of Bonds;
	(13) to modify, alter, amend or supplement this Indenture in any other respect, including amendments that would otherwise be described in Section 9.01(A), if the effective date of such amendments is a date on which all Bonds affected thereby are subje...
	(14) for any other purpose that does not materially and adversely affect the interests of the Holders of the Bonds.


	SECTION 9.02 Effect of Supplemental Indenture.  From and after the time any Supplemental Indenture becomes effective pursuant to this Article, this Indenture shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights...
	SECTION 9.03 Endorsement of Bonds; Preparation of New Bonds.  Bonds delivered after any Supplemental Indenture becomes effective pursuant to this Article may, and if the Trustee so determines shall, bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form ...
	SECTION 9.04 Amendment of Particular Bonds.  The provisions of this Article shall not prevent any Bondholder from accepting any amendment as to the particular Bonds held by him, provided that due notation thereof is made on such Bonds.

	ARTICLE X   DEFEASANCE
	SECTION 10.01 Discharge of Indenture.  Bonds of any Series or a portion thereof may be paid by the Alameda CTC in any of the following ways:
	(A) by paying or causing to be paid the Bond Obligations of and interest on such Outstanding Bonds, as and when they become due and payable;
	(B) by depositing with the Trustee, an escrow agent or other fiduciary, in trust, at or before maturity, money or securities in the necessary amount (as provided in Section 10.03) to pay or redeem such Outstanding Bonds; or
	(C) by delivering to the Trustee, for cancellation by it, such Outstanding Bonds.

	SECTION 10.02 Discharge of Liability on Bonds.  Upon the deposit with the Trustee, escrow agent or other fiduciary, in trust, at or before maturity, of money or securities in the necessary amount (as provided in Section 10.03) to pay or redeem any Out...
	SECTION 10.03 Deposit of Money or Securities.  Whenever in this Indenture it is provided or permitted that there be deposited with or held in trust money or securities in the necessary amount to pay or redeem any Bonds, the money or securities to be d...
	(A) lawful money of the United States of America in an amount equal to the principal amount of such Bonds and all unpaid interest thereon to maturity, except that, in the case of Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to maturity and in respect of which...
	(B) Defeasance Securities the principal of and interest on which when due will, in the opinion of an independent certified public accountant, a firm of independent certified public accountants or other independent consulting firm delivered to the Trus...

	SECTION 10.04 Payment of Bonds After Discharge of Indenture.  Any moneys held by the Trustee in trust for the payment of the principal, Redemption Price, or interest on any Bond and remaining unclaimed for one (1) year after such principal, Redemption...

	ARTICLE XI   MISCELLANEOUS
	SECTION 11.01 Liability of Alameda CTC Limited to Sales Tax Revenues.  Notwithstanding anything in this Indenture or in the Bonds contained, the Alameda CTC shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source other than the Sales Tax R...
	SECTION 11.02 Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to Predecessor.  Whenever in this Indenture either the Alameda CTC or the Trustee is named or referred to, such reference shall be deemed to include the successors or assigns thereof, and al...
	SECTION 11.03 Limitation of Rights.  Nothing in this Indenture or in the Bonds expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to give to any Person other than the Alameda CTC, the Trustee, each Credit Provider, each Liquidity Provider, each Re...
	SECTION 11.04 Waiver of Notice.  Whenever in this Indenture the giving of notice by mail or otherwise is required, the giving of such notice may be waived in writing by the person entitled to receive such notice and in any such case the giving or rece...
	SECTION 11.05 Destruction or Delivery of Canceled Bonds.  Whenever in this Indenture provision is made for the cancellation by the Trustee and the delivery to the Alameda CTC of any Bonds, the Trustee may, in its sole discretion, in lieu of such cance...
	SECTION 11.06 Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or provisions ...
	SECTION 11.07 Notice to Alameda CTC and Trustee.  Any notice to or demand may be served or presented, and such demand may be made and shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or served for all purposes by being deposited, first-class mail posta...
	SECTION 11.08 Notices to Rating Agencies.  The Trustee shall provide notice of  (i) a change in Trustee, (ii) amendment of this Indenture, (iii) optional redemption or defeasance of any Bonds, (iv) a change in Credit Provider with respect to any Serie...
	SECTION 11.09 Evidence of Rights of Bondholders.  Any request, consent or other instrument required or permitted by this indenture to be signed and executed by Bondholders may be in any number of concurrent instruments of substantially similar tenor a...
	SECTION 11.10 Disqualified Bonds.  In determining whether the Holders of the requisite aggregate Bond Obligation of Bonds have concurred in any demand, request, direction, consent or waiver under this Indenture, Bonds that are owned or held by or for ...
	SECTION 11.11 Money Held for Particular Bonds.  The money held by the Trustee for the payment of the interest, principal, Redemption Price or purchase price due on any date with respect to particular Bonds (or portions of Bonds in the case of register...
	SECTION 11.12 Funds and Accounts.  Any fund required by this Indenture to be established and maintained by the Trustee may be established and maintained in the accounting records of the Trustee, either as a fund or an account, and may, for the purpose...
	SECTION 11.13 Limitations on Rights of Credit Providers, Liquidity Providers, Reserve Facility Providers.  A Supplemental Indenture establishing the terms and provisions of a Series of Bonds may provide that any Credit Provider, Liquidity Provider or ...
	SECTION 11.14 Article and Section Headings and References.  The headings or titles of the several Articles and Sections hereof, and any table of contents appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the ...
	SECTION 11.15 Waiver of Personal Liability.  No Commission member, officer, agent or employee of the Alameda CTC or the Trustee shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the Bonds...
	SECTION 11.16 Governing Law.  This Indenture shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
	SECTION 11.17 Business Day.  Except as specifically set forth in this Indenture or a Supplemental Indenture, transfers which would otherwise become due on any day which is not a Business Day shall become due or shall be made on the next succeeding Bus...
	SECTION 11.18 Effective Date of Indenture.  This Indenture shall take effect upon its execution and delivery.
	SECTION 11.19 Execution in Counterparts.  This Indenture may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.


	10.1_Attachment_C_ACTC_First_Supplemental_Indenture
	W I T N E S S E T H:
	ARTICLE XII   DEFINITIONS
	Section 12.01.  Definitions.
	(A) Definitions.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein to the contrary or unless the context otherwise requires, all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in Section 1.02 of the...
	(B) Additional Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall, for all purposes of the Series 2014 Bonds and this Supplemental Indenture, have the following meanings:


	ARTICLE XIII   findings and determinations
	Section 13.01.  Findings and Determinations.  The Alameda CTC hereby finds and determines that the Series 2014 Bonds shall be issued pursuant to Section 3.01 and upon the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, any and all acts, conditions and things requi...
	Section 13.02.  Recital in Bonds.  There shall be included in each of the definitive Series 2014 Bonds, and in each of the temporary Series 2014 Bonds, if any are issued, a certification and recital to the effect that any and all acts, conditions and ...
	Section 13.03.  Effect of Findings and Recital.  From and after the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, the findings and determinations herein shall be conclusive evidence of the existence of the facts so found and determined in any action or proceedin...

	ARTICLE XIV   TERMS OF SERIES 2014 BONDS
	Section 14.01.  Authorization and Terms of Series 2014 Bonds; Payment Provisions Applicable to the Series 2014 Bonds.
	(B) The Series 2014 Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form, in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (each, an "Authorized Denomination") and shall be initially registered in the name of "Cede & Co.," as nominee of the Secur...
	Section 14.02.  Form of Series 2014 Bonds.  The Series 2014 Bonds and the certificate of authentication to be executed thereon shall be in substantially such form as is set forth in Exhibit A to this Supplemental Indenture.  The Series 2014 Bond numbe...
	Section 14.03.  Issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.  At any time after the execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture, the Alameda CTC may execute and, upon the Order of the Alameda CTC, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver the Series ...
	Section 14.04.  Application of Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds.  The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, $________, comprised of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2014 Bonds, $[Par Amount], plus a [net] original issue premium o...
	(A) The Trustee shall deposit in the Interest Fund, the sum of $________, representing capitalized interest on the Series 2014 Bonds, such amount to be applied to pay all interest on the Series 2014 Bonds on each Series 2014 Interest Payment Date to a...
	(B) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund, which is established pursuant to Section 14.05, the sum of $________.
	(C) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2014 Project Fund, which is established pursuant to Section 14.06, the sum of $________.

	Section 14.05.  Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund.  There is hereby established and maintained with the Trustee a fund designated as the "Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund."  Amounts in the Series 2014 Costs of I...
	Section 14.06.  Establishment and Application of the Series 2014 Project Fund.
	(B) Before any payment from the Series 2014 Project Fund shall be made by the Trustee, the Alameda CTC shall file or cause to be filed with the Trustee a Requisition of the Alameda CTC, such Requisition to be in substantially such form as is set forth...
	(C) When the Alameda CTC determines that the Series 2014 Project has been completed, a Certificate of the Alameda CTC shall be delivered to the Trustee by the Alameda CTC stating:  (i) the fact and date of such completion; (ii) that all of the costs t...

	Section 14.07.  Investment of Funds; Investment Earnings.  The Trustee shall invest funds on deposit in the Series 2014 Costs of Issuance Fund and the Series 2014 Project Fund in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 5.11 of this Indentu...
	Section 14.08.  Series 2014 Bonds Not Subject to Optional Redemption.  The Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates.

	ARTICLE XV   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Section 15.01.  Terms of Series 2014 Bonds Subject to the Indenture; Ratification of the Indenture.  Except as in this Supplemental Indenture expressly provided, every term and condition contained in the Indenture shall apply to this Supplemental Inde...
	Section 15.02.  Effective Date of Supplemental Indenture.  This Supplemental Indenture shall take effect upon the date of its execution and delivery, February __, 2014, the date of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.
	Section 15.03.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Supplemental Indenture may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.


	10.1_Attachment_D_ACTC_Preliminary_Official_Statement
	FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
	ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
	COMMISSIONERS
	Supervisor Scott Haggerty (Alameda County, District 1), Chair  Councilmember At-Large Rebecca Kaplan (City of Oakland), Vice Chair
	MANAGEMENT

	SPECIAL SERVICES
	OFFICIAL STATEMENT
	$_________3F(  ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  Sales Tax Revenue Bonds  (Limited Tax Bonds)  Series 2014
	INTRODUCTION
	General
	Authority for Issuance
	Purpose and Application of Proceeds; No Additional Debt Contemplated for Expenditure Plan Projects
	The Series 2014 Bonds
	Security for the Bonds
	Limited Obligations
	No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds
	No Acceleration Provision or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default
	No Reserve Fund
	Continuing Disclosure
	References

	THE SERIES 2014 BONDS
	General
	No Redemption

	DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE
	PLAN OF FINANCE
	ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
	SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES 2014 BONDS
	Limited Obligations
	Pledge of Sales Tax Revenues and Certain Funds and Accounts Held by Trustee
	Revenue Fund; Allocation of Sales Tax Revenues
	1 Interest Fund.  The Indenture requires the Trustee to make monthly deposits in the Interest Fund in an amount equal to (a) one-sixth of the aggregate semiannual amount of interest becoming due and payable on the Outstanding Current Interest Bonds (o...
	2 Principal Fund; Sinking Accounts.  The Indenture also requires the Trustee to make monthly deposits in the Principal Fund in an amount equal to at least (a) one-sixth of the aggregate semiannual amount of Bond Obligation becoming due and payable on ...
	3 Bond Reserve Fund.  Upon the occurrence of any deficiency in any Bond Reserve Fund, the Trustee will make such deposit to such Bond Reserve Fund as is required by the Indenture until the balance in such Bond Reserve Fund is at least equal to the app...
	4 Subordinate Obligations Fund.  If Alameda CTC issues or incurs Subordinate Obligations, the Trustee will establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the “Subordinate Obligations Fund.”  After the transfers described in (1), (...
	5 Fees and Expenses Fund.  If Alameda CTC incurs Fee and Expense Obligations, the Trustee will establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the “Fees and Expenses Fund.”  After the transfers described in (1), (2), (3) and (4) ab...

	No Bond Reserve Fund for the Series 2014 Bonds
	No Additional Parity Bonds Other Than Refunding Bonds
	Subordinate Obligations

	THE SALES TAX
	General
	Collection of Sales Tax Revenues
	Historical Sales Tax Revenues
	Other Sales Taxes Imposed in the County

	ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
	General
	Governance
	Executive Staff
	Expenditure Plan
	Future Expenditure Plan
	Cash and Investments
	Debt Policy

	RISK FACTORS
	Economy of the County and the State
	The Sales Tax
	Increased Internet Use May Reduce Sales Tax Revenues
	Proposition 218
	Further Initiatives
	No Acceleration or Increase in Interest Rate Upon Default
	Loss of Tax Exemption
	Impact of Bankruptcy of Alameda CTC

	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	LITIGATION
	TAX MATTERS
	LEGAL MATTERS
	RATINGS
	UNDERWRITING
	FINANCIAL ADVISOR
	CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
	MISCELLANEOUS
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E
	BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM
	AttachD_AdditionalAppendix.pdf
	APPENDIX B  COUNTY OF ALAMEDA DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION
	Population

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND THE UNITED STATES POPULATION 2009 through 2013
	Personal Income

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA and state of california TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA INCOME 2008 THROUGH 2012(1)
	Industry and Employment

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA ANNUAL AVERAGE EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY GROUP(1) 2008 THROUGH 2012
	East bay PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS(1)
	As of May 2013
	Commercial Activity
	Local Housing Market
	Building and Real Estate Activity
	Education



	10.1_Attachment_E_FIRM_DM-#14679342-v7-ACTC_Bond_Purchase_Agreement
	1. Definitions.  All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture (as defined below).  Unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context, the following words and terms shall have the followin...
	2. Use and Preparation of Official Statement; Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The Alameda CTC has heretofore delivered to the Underwriters copies of the Preliminary Official Statement, which the Alameda CTC hereby deems final as of its date, except f...
	3. Purchase and Sale of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the representations, warranties and agreements set forth herein, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from the Alameda CTC the Series 2014 Bonds fo...
	4. The Series 2014 Bonds.  The principal amounts, maturity dates, interest rates and prices with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds shall be as described in the Official Statement and in Exhibit A hereto.
	5. Public Offering of the Series 2014 Bonds.  Except as otherwise disclosed and agreed to by the Alameda CTC, the Underwriters agree to make a bona fide public offering of the Series 2014 Bonds at the initial public offering price or prices set forth ...
	6. Use of Documents.  The Alameda CTC hereby authorizes the Underwriters to use, in connection with the public offering and sale of the Series 2014 Bonds, this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and the...
	7. Closing.  The Closing Time shall be no later than 10:00 a.m., Pacific time, on February [__], 2014, or at such other time or on such later date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the Alameda CTC and the Representative (the “Closing Date”). ...
	8. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the Alameda CTC.  The Alameda CTC hereby represents, warrants and agrees with the Underwriters that:
	(a) The Alameda CTC has been duly created and is validly existing under the laws of the State and has the power to issue the Series 2014 Bonds pursuant to the Act, the Bond Resolution and the Indenture.
	(b) The Alameda CTC has full legal right, power and authority under the Constitution and the laws of the State to cause the collection of the Sales Tax, to adopt the Bond Resolution, to enter into the Legal Documents and this Bond Purchase Agreement, ...
	(c) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, by all necessary official action, the Alameda County Transportation Improvement Authority (the “ACTIA”), predecessor in interest to the Alameda CTC, duly adopted...
	(d) By all necessary official action, the Commission has duly adopted the Bond Resolution, has duly authorized the preparation and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preparation, execution and delivery of the Official Statemen...
	(e) The Series 2014 Bonds, when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Bond Resolution and the Indenture, and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein, will constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Alameda CTC, enf...
	(f) All consents, approvals, authorizations, orders, licenses or permits of any governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the matter, that are required for the due authorization by, or that would cons...
	(g) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the Alameda CTC is not in any material respect in breach of or default under any constitutional provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or of th...
	(h) As of the date hereof, no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, is pending or, to the best of the Alameda CTC’s knowledge, threatened against the Ala...
	(i) Between the date hereof and the Closing Time, the Alameda CTC will not, without the prior written consent of the Representative, offer or issue in any material amount any bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed money, or in any material amo...
	(j) The Alameda CTC will furnish such information, execute such instruments, and take such other action in cooperation with and at the expense of the Underwriters as the Underwriters may reasonably request in order (i) to qualify the Series 2014 Bonds...
	(k) The Alameda CTC has the legal authority to apply and will apply, or cause to be applied, the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds as provided in and subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Act, the Ordinance, the Bond Resoluti...
	(l) The Series 2014 Bonds, when issued, will conform to the description thereof contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement under the captions “INTRODUCTION — The Series 2014 Bonds,”  “THE SERIES 2014 BONDS” and Appendix...
	(m) The Preliminary Official Statement (other than information allowed to be omitted by Rule 15c2-12), as of its date and as of the date hereof, did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact nece...
	(n) As of the date hereof, and (unless an event occurs of the nature described in paragraph (p) of this Section 8) at all times subsequent thereto, up to and including the Closing Time, the Official Statement (excluding therefrom the Excluded Informat...
	(o) If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to paragraph (p) of this Section 8, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph) at all times s...
	(p) The Alameda CTC shall not amend or supplement the Official Statement without the prior written consent of the Representative.  If between the date hereof and the Closing Time, any event shall occur which might or would cause the Official Statement...
	(q) Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, the Alameda CTC has not granted a lien on or made a pledge of the Revenues or any other funds pledged under the Indenture.
	(r) The Alameda CTC is not in default, and at no time has defaulted in any material respect, on any bond, note or other obligation for borrowed money or any agreement under which any such obligation is or was outstanding.
	(s) The financial statements of the Alameda CTC set forth in Appendix A to the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.  Except as di...
	(t) Prior to the Closing Time, the Alameda CTC will not take any action within or under its control, other than actions in the normal course of operation, that will cause any material adverse change in such financial position, results of operations or...
	(u) Upon the delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds, the aggregate principal amount of Bonds authorized to be issued under the Indenture, together with all outstanding Parity Obligations, will not in combination with all outstanding debt obligations of the...
	(v) The sum of the principal of and interest on the Series 2014 Bonds, together with all outstanding Parity Obligations and other outstanding debt obligations of the Alameda CTC, does not exceed the estimated proceeds of the retail transactions and us...
	(w) The Series 2014 Bonds are the first obligations issued by the Alameda CTC and therefore the Alameda CTC has no previous undertakings required pursuant to Rule 15c2 12.
	(x) Any certificate, signed by any official of the Alameda CTC authorized to do so in connection with the transactions described in this Bond Purchase Agreement, shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Alameda CTC to the Underwriters as t...

	9. Conditions to the Underwriters’ Obligations.  The Representative has entered into this Bond Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations, warranties and obligations of the Alameda CTC contained herein and upon the documents and instrumen...
	(a) The representations and warranties of the Alameda CTC contained herein shall be true and correct at the date hereof and true and correct at and as of the Closing Time, as if made at and as of the Closing Time and will be confirmed by a certificate...
	(b) (i) At the Closing Time, the Act, the Bond Resolution and the Legal Documents shall be in full force and effect, and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to by the Alameda CTC and the Representative...
	(c) As of the date hereof and at the Closing Time, all necessary official action of the Alameda CTC relating to this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents, the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement shall have been taken and ...
	(d) Subsequent to the date hereof, up to and including the Closing Time, there shall not have occurred any change in or particularly affecting the Alameda CTC, the Act, the Ordinance, the Sales Tax, the Revenues, or the Series 2014 Bonds as the forego...
	(e) Subsequent to the date hereof, up to and including the Closing Time, the California State Board of Equalization shall not have suspended or advised the suspension of the collection of the Sales Tax or the escrow of any proceeds thereof, and the Ge...
	(f) At or prior to the Closing Date, the Representative shall receive copies of each of the following documents:
	(1) A certified copy of the proceedings relating to authorization and approval of the Sales Tax.
	(2) A certified copy of the Bond Resolution.
	(3) Fully executed copies of each of the Legal Documents.
	(4) The Official Statement delivered in accordance with Section 2 hereof and each supplement or amendment, if any, executed on behalf of the Alameda CTC by its Executive Director or its Director of Finance.
	(5) An approving opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the Alameda CTC (“Bond Counsel”), dated the Closing Date, as to the validity of the Series 2014 Bonds, the exclusion of interest on the Series 2014 Bonds from federal gros...
	(6) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Underwriters, to the effect that:
	(i) the Bond Purchase Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Alameda CTC and each is valid and binding upon the Alameda CTC, subject to laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or creditors’ rights generally, to the appli...
	(ii) the statements contained in the Official Statement in the sections titled “the Series 2014 Bonds” (other than the information concerning DTC and the book-entry system), “Security and Sources of Payment for the Series 2014 Bonds,” “Tax Matters” an...
	(iii) the Series 2014 Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) and the Indenture is exempt from qualification pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “Trust ...

	(7) A letter from Norton Rose Fulbright, Disclosure Counsel, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Alameda CTC, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit C hereto, and a reliance letter with respect thereto addressed to the Underwriters,
	(8) The opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Underwriters’ Counsel, addressed to the Underwriters, in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriters, covering such items as the Representative may request.
	(9) The opinion of Wendel Rosen Black & Dean LLP, General Counsel to the Alameda CTC, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the Underwriters and the Trustee, to the effect that:
	(i) the Alameda CTC has been duly organized and is validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and has all requisite power and authority thereunder:  (a) to adopt the Bond Resolution, and to enter into, execute, delive...
	(ii) the Alameda CTC has taken all actions required to be taken by it prior to the Closing Date material to the transactions contemplated by the documents mentioned in paragraph (i) above, and the Commission has duly authorized the execution and deliv...
	(iii) the Bond Resolution was duly adopted by at least a two-thirds vote of all the voting members of the Commission at a meeting of the Commission which was called and held pursuant to law and with all required notices and in accordance with all appl...
	(iv) the adoption of the Bond Resolution, the execution and delivery by the Alameda CTC of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Documents and the Series 2014 Bonds and the compliance with the provisions of the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Legal Docu...
	(v) the Series 2014 Bonds, the Legal Documents and the Bond Purchase Agreement constitute binding and legal obligations of the Alameda CTC and are enforceable according to the terms thereof, except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, ...
	(vi) no litigation is pending with service of process completed, or threatened against the Alameda CTC in any court in any way affecting the titles of the officials of the Alameda CTC to their respective positions, or seeking to restrain or to enjoin ...
	(vii) nothing has come to the attention of the attorneys in our firm working for the Alameda CTC which would cause us to believe that the information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement under the captions “SALES ...
	(viii) no authorization, approval, consent or other order of the State or any local agency of the State, other than such authorizations, approvals and consents which have been obtained, is required for the valid authorization, execution and delivery b...
	(ix) the Alameda CTC is not in breach of or default under any applicable law or administrative regulation of the State or any applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to whic...

	(10) A certificate, dated the Closing Date and signed by such official or officials of the Alameda CTC as shall be satisfactory to the Representative, to the effect that (i) the representations, warranties and covenants of the Alameda CTC contained in...
	(11) The audited financial statements of the Alameda CTC as of June 30, 2013 included as Appendix A to the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, certified by the Alameda CTC on the Closing Date as being correct and complete.
	(12) A certified copy of the general resolution or other documentation of the Trustee evidencing signature authority and incumbency to execute and deliver the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party.
	(13) A certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by a duly authorized official of the Trustee, satisfactory in form and substance to the Representative, to the effect that:
	(i) the Trustee is a national banking association organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, having the full power and being qualified to enter into and perform its duties under the Indenture;
	(ii) the Trustee is duly authorized to enter into, has duly executed and delivered the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party and has duly authenticated and delivered the Series 2014 Bonds;
	(iii) the execution and delivery of the Legal Documents to which the Trustee is a party and compliance with the provisions on the Trustee’s part contained therein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any law, administrati...
	(iv) the Trustee has not been served with any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, governmental agency, public board or body, nor is any such action, to the best of such official’s knowledge ...
	(v) the Trustee will apply the proceeds from the Series 2014 Bonds as provided in the Indenture.

	(14) The opinion of counsel of the Trustee, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters, to the effect that:
	(i) the Trustee is a national banking association duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the United States having full power and authority and being qualified to enter into, accept and administer the trust created unde...
	(ii) the Legal Documents to which it is a party have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Trustee and constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Trustee enforceable against the Trustee in accordance with their respective terms,...
	(iii) the execution, delivery and performance of the Legal Documents will not conflict with or cause a default under any law, ruling, agreement, administrative regulation or other instrument by which the Trustee is bound;
	(iv) all authorizations and approvals required by law and the articles of association and bylaws of the Trustee in order for the Trustee to execute and deliver and perform its obligations under the Legal Documents to which it is a party have been obta...
	(v) no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body, is pending or threatened in any way affecting the existence of the Trustee or the titles of its directors ...

	(15) Evidence of required filings with the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission.
	(16) A copy of the Blue Sky Survey with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds.
	(17) A Tax Certificate of the Alameda CTC, in form satisfactory to Bond Counsel, signed by such official or officials of the Alameda CTC as shall be satisfactory to the Representative.
	(18) Evidence as of the Closing Date satisfactory to the Representative that the Series 2014 Bonds have received a rating of “AAA” from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and “AAA” from Fitch Ratings (or such other equivalent rating as Standard & Poor...
	(19) Two transcripts of all proceedings relating to the authorization and issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds, which may be in digital form (or a commitment to so provide).
	(20) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments and other documents as the Representative, Underwriters’ Counsel or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to evidence compliance by the Alameda CTC with legal requirements, the ...


	10. Termination.
	(a) If the Alameda CTC shall be unable to satisfy the conditions of the Underwriters’ obligations contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement or if the Underwriters’ obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreemen...
	(b) The Underwriters shall also have the right, prior to the Closing Time, to cancel their obligations to purchase the Series 2014 Bonds, by written notice to the Alameda CTC, if between the date hereof and the Closing Time:
	(i) any event occurs or information becomes known, which, in the reasonable professional judgment of the Representative, makes untrue or incorrect any statement of a material fact set forth in the Official Statement or results in an omission to state ...
	(ii) the market for the Series 2014 Bonds or the market prices of the Series 2014 Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the sale of the Series 2014 Bonds shall have been materially and adversely affected, in the reasonable ...
	(A) an amendment to the Constitution of the United States or the State of California shall have been passed or legislation shall have been passed by either chamber of the Congress of the United States or the legislature of any state having jurisdictio...
	(B) legislation shall have been passed by either chamber of the Congress or recommended for passage by the President of the United States, or a decision rendered by a court established under Article III of the Constitution of the United States, or an ...
	(C) the declaration of war or engagement in or escalation of military hostilities by the United States or the occurrence of any other national or international emergency or calamity or terrorism affecting the operation of the government of the United ...
	(D) the declaration of a general banking moratorium by federal, New York or California authorities or a major financial crisis, a material disruption in commercial banking or securities settlement or clearance services, the general suspension of tradi...
	(E) an order, decree or injunction of any court of competent jurisdiction, issued or made to the effect that the issuance, offering or sale of obligations of the general character of the Series 2014 Bonds, or the issuance, offering or sale of the Seri...
	(F) any material adverse change in the levy or collection of the Sales Tax or in the affairs or financial condition of the Alameda CTC, except for changes which the Official Statement discloses are expected to occur.

	(iii) additional material restrictions not in force or being enforced as of the date hereof shall have been imposed upon trading in securities generally by any governmental authority or by any national securities exchange which, in the reasonable prof...
	(iv) an event described in paragraph (p) of Section 8 hereof shall have occurred which, in the reasonable professional judgment of the Representative, requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement; or
	(v) any litigation shall be instituted or be pending at the Closing Time to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Series 2014 Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting any authority for or the validity of the proceedings authoriz...
	(vi) there shall have occurred any suspension, withdrawal, downgrading or published negative credit watch or similar published information from a rating agency that as of the date hereof has published, or has been asked to furnish, an unenhanced long-...


	11. Conditions to Obligations of the Alameda CTC.  The performance by the Alameda CTC of its obligations is conditioned upon (i) the performance by the Underwriters of their obligations hereunder and (ii) receipt by the Alameda CTC and the Underwriter...
	12. Amendment of Official Statement.  For a period beginning on the date hereof and continuing until the End Date, (a) the Alameda CTC will not adopt any amendment of, or supplement to, the Official Statement to which the Representative shall object i...
	13. Indemnification.  The Alameda CTC (an “Alameda CTC Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the extent permitted by law, the Underwriters and their respective directors, officers, employees and agents and each person who controls...
	14. Expenses.
	(a) Whether or not the Series 2014 Bonds are issued as contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay and the Alameda CTC hereby agrees to pay any expenses incident to the performance of the Alameda ...
	(b) Whether or not the Series 2014 Bonds are issued as contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Underwriters shall pay (i) any fees assessed upon the Underwriters with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds by the MSRB or FINRA; (ii) all advertisin...
	(c) As a convenience to the Alameda CTC, the Underwriters may, from time to time, make arrangements for certain items and advance certain costs for which the Alameda CTC is responsible hereunder, such as printing the Preliminary Official Statement and...
	(d) The Alameda CTC acknowledges that it has had an opportunity, in consultation with such advisors as it may deem appropriate, if any, to evaluate and consider the fees and expenses being incurred as part of the issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.

	15. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given under this Bond Purchase Agreement (other than the acceptance hereof as specified in the first paragraph hereof) may be given by delivering the same in writing, if to the Alameda CTC, address...
	16. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations and Warranties.  This Bond Purchase Agreement when accepted by the Alameda CTC in writing as heretofore specified shall constitute the entire agreement between the Alameda CTC and the Underwriters a...
	17. Execution in Counterparts.  This Bond Purchase Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.
	18. No Advisory or Fiduciary Role. The Alameda CTC acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the primary role of the Underwriters, is to purchase securities, for resale to investors, in an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Alameda CTC and the Un...
	19. Applicable Law.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be interpreted, governed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
	Alameda County Transportation Commission 1111 Broadway, Suite 800 Oakland, California  94607
	Citigroup Global Markets Inc.,    as Representative One Sansome Street, 27th Floor San Francisco, California  94104

	10.1_Attachment_F_Continuing_Disclosure_Agreement-ACTC_Sales_Tax_Bonds
	CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT
	Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is being executed and delivered by Alameda CTC and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Series 2014 Bonds and in order to assist ...
	Section 2. Definitions.  Capitalized undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Indenture.  In addition, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:
	Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.
	(a) So long as any Series 2014 Bonds remain outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, Alameda CTC shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than 195 days following the end of Alameda CTC’s Fiscal Year (presently June 30), commencing wit...
	(b) Not later than two (2) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) for providing the Annual Report to each Repository, Alameda CTC shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent. If by such date, the Dissemination Agent...
	(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that an Annual Report of Alameda CTC has been provided to each Repository by the date required in subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall send a notice to each Repository in substantially the fo...
	(d) The Dissemination Agent shall:
	(i) determine the electronic filing address of, and then-current procedures for submitting Annual Reports to, the MSRB each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report; and
	(ii) to the extent known to the Dissemination Agent file a report with Alameda CTC and (if the Dissemination Agent is not the Trustee) the Trustee certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, and stating t...


	Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. Alameda CTC’s Annual Report shall contain or include by reference the following:
	(a) The audited financial statements of Alameda CTC for the prior Fiscal Year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Stand...
	(b) The debt service schedule for the Series 2014 Bonds, if there have been any unscheduled redemptions, retirements or defeasances, and the debt service on any additional parity refunding bonds issued, in each case during the prior Fiscal Year.
	(c) The actual Sales Tax Revenues and debt service coverage for the prior Fiscal Year consistent with the information set forth in the tables entitled “Historical Sales Tax Revenues” and “Coverage Ratio” under the caption “THE SALES TAX – Historical S...

	Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.  (a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, Alameda CTC shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Series 2014 Bonds, in a timely man...
	Section 6. Filings with the MSRB.  All information, operating data, financial statements, notices and other documents provided to the MSRB in accordance with this Disclosure Agreement shall be provided in an electronic format prescribed by the MSRB an...
	Section 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  Alameda CTC’s obligations under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance or payment in full of all of the Series 2014 Bonds.  If such termination occurs prior to the final mat...
	Section 8. Dissemination Agent.  Alameda CTC may, from time to time, appoint or engage another Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or wi...
	Section 9. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, Alameda CTC may amend this Disclosure Agreement, provided no amendment increasing or affecting the obligations or duties of the Dissemination Agent shall ...
	Section 10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to prevent Alameda CTC from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of co...
	Section 11. Default.  In the event of a failure of Alameda CTC or the Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Trustee shall, at the written request of any Participating Underwriter or of the Holders of at lea...
	Section 12. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible for the form or content of any notice of Listed Event. The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable compensation for its servi...
	Section 13. Notices.  Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties to the Disclosure Agreement or the Trustee may be given as follows:
	Section 14. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of Alameda CTC, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Series 2014 Bonds, and shall cre...
	Section 15. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
	EXHIBIT A
	NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

	10.1_Attachment_G_ACTC_Amended_and_Restated_SBOE_Agreement
	10.1_Attachment_H_Resolution
	10.1_Attachment_I_ACTC_Post-Issuance_Compliance_Procedures

	4-Combo.pdf
	Election_Chair-ViceChair_Memo_20140107
	Commission_Member_Committee_Assignment_CY2013
	Current Assignments


	4-Combo.pdf
	Election_Chair-ViceChair_Memo_20140107
	Commission_Member_Committee_Assignment_CY2013
	Current Assignments






<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




